
 
 

Page 1 of  417 

 

 

President 
Mr. Dave Warren 
City of Placerville  
 
Treasurer 
Ms. Jen Lee 
City of Rio Vista 

Vice President 
Vacant 
 
 
Secretary 
Ms. Jennifer Styczynski 
City of Marysville  

 

pg. 124  4. Sedgwick Workers’ Compensation Quarterly Claims Report   
pg. 129  5. 21/22 Alliant-Commission Opt-Out Letter dated November 15, 2022   

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA 
 

DATE/TIME: Thursday, April 21, 2022, at 12:00 p.m. 
                                     Lunch available at 11:30 a.m.  
 

LOCATION: Rocklin Event Center – Ballroom  
                                    2650 Sunset Blvd 
                                    Rocklin, CA 95677 
 

 
MISSION STATEMENT 

The Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund, or NCCSIF, is an association of municipalities joined to pro-
tect member resources by stabilizing risk costs in a reliable, economical and beneficial manner while providing 
members with broad coverage and quality services in risk management and claims management. 
     
 A. CALL TO ORDER   
     
 B. ROLL CALL   
     
 C. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

This time is reserved for members of the public to address the Board of 
Directors on matters pertaining to NCCSIF that are of interest to them. 

  

     
pg. 6 D. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the consent calendar are considered routine with no 
separate discussion necessary. Any member of the public or the Board of 
Directors may request any item to be considered separately. 

A 1 

pg. 7  1. Board Meeting Minutes – December 16, 2021   
pg. 15  2. Check Register from December 2022 to March 21, 2022   
  3. Investment Reports   
pg. 19 
 
pg. 122 
 
pg. 123 

 a. Chandler Asset Management Short/Long Term - December 2021 to 
March 2022 

b. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report as of December 31, 
2021 

c. Treasurer’s Report as of December 31, 2021 

  

A - Action 
I - Information 
 
1 - Attached 
2 - Hand Out 
3 - Separate Cover 
4 - Verbal 



Page 2 of  417 

President 
Mr. Dave Warren 
City of Placerville 

Treasurer 
Ms. Jen Lee 
City of Rio Vista 

Vice President 
Vacant 

Secretary 
Ms. Jennifer Styczynski 
City of Marysville  

pg. 130 

pg. 137 

pg.  149 

6. FY 21/22 NorCal Cities Liability Program Claims Audit and Sedgwick 
response 

7. Lintelio, LLC Master Subscription Agreement

8. Alliant PE Pool Database Agreement and Flyer

pg. 152 E. GENERAL RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES
This is an opportunity for a member to discuss a topic of interest or seek 
guidance and input from the group about a current issue, risk management 
topic or exposure the member is facing. 

I 4 

F. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS I 

1. President’s Report
Dave Warren will address the Committee on items pertaining to NorCal
Cities.

 4 

2. CJPRMA Update
The Board will receive an update on CJPRMA matters pertinent to NorCal
Cities. Minutes of the last meeting can be found at http://www.cjprma.org.

 4 

3. Program Administrator’s Report
Alliant will address the Committee on items pertaining to NorCal Cities.

 2021-22 Member Training Fund usage
 Police Risk Management Committee Meeting and Training

 4 

pg. 156 4. Summary of the March 24, 2022, Executive Committee Meeting
The Board will receive an update of the actions taken at the Executive
Committee meeting.

 1 

pg. 157 5. FY 21/22 PRISM Member Annual Report
Marcus Beverly will provide an update on the benefits achieved as a result
of NCCSIF’s participation in the PRISM program.

 1 

pg. 170 G. FY 22/23 OFFICERS AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  
The Board will be provided information regarding the Executive Committee 
Rotation Schedule. 

I 1 

H. FINANCIAL REPORTS

pg. 176 1. Quarterly Financial Report for Period Ending December 31, 2021
James Marta & Company will present the quarterly financial report ending
December 31, 2021, for the Board to Accept and File.

A 1 



 
 

Page 3 of  417 

 

 

President 
Mr. Dave Warren 
City of Placerville  
 
Treasurer 
Ms. Jen Lee 
City of Rio Vista 

Vice President 
Vacant 
 
 
Secretary 
Ms. Jennifer Styczynski 
City of Marysville  

 
 

    

pg. 213  2. Budget to Actual as of December 31, 2021 
The Board will receive an update on the Budget to Actual as of December 
31, 2021. 

I 1 

     
 I. JPA BUSINESS   
     
pg. 214  1. FY 22/23 NCCSIF Administration Budget 

The Board will review and may provide direction regarding the 
Preliminary Admin Budget. 

I 1 

     
 
 
pg. 217  
 
 
 
pg. 256 

 2. Actuarial Services - Mike Harrington, Bickmore Actuarial 
 

a. Actuarial Study for Workers’ Compensation Program 
The Board will review and may approve the Actuarial Study for the 
Workers’ Compensation Program. 
 

b. Actuarial Study for Liability Program 
The Board will review and may approve the Actuarial Study for the 
Liability Program. 

A 1 

     
 
 
pg. 296 
 
 
 
pg. 298 
 
 
 
pg. 300 

 3. Workers’ Compensation Program 
 

a. Annual Banking Plan Adjustments - James Marta & Company 
The Board will review and may approve adjustments to the Banking 
Layer for the Workers’ Compensation program. 
 

b. Annual Shared Risk Plan Adjustments - Alliant Insurance Services 
The Board will review and may approve adjustments to the Shared Risk 
Layer for the Workers’ Compensation program. 
 

c. FY 22/23 Deposit Premium Calculations 
The Board will review and may approve the Preliminary Deposit 
Premium Calculations for the Workers’ Compensation Program. 

A 1 

     
 
 
pg. 310 
 
 
 

 4. Liability Program 
 

a. Annual Banking Plan Adjustments - James Marta & Company 
The Board will review and may approve adjustments to the Banking 
Layer for the Liability program. 

 

A 1 



Page 4 of  417 

President 
Mr. Dave Warren 
City of Placerville 

Treasurer 
Ms. Jen Lee 
City of Rio Vista 

Vice President 
Vacant 

Secretary 
Ms. Jennifer Styczynski 
City of Marysville  

pg. 312 

pg. 314 

b. Annual Shared Risk Plan Adjustments - Alliant Insurance Services
The Board will review and may approve adjustments to the Shared Risk
Layer for the Liability program.

c. FY 22/23 Deposit Premium Calculations
The Board will review and may approve the Preliminary Deposit
Premium Calculations for the Liability Program.

pg. 324 A 1 

pg. 343 A 1 

pg. 344 A I 

pg. 346 A 1 

pg. 348 A 1 

pg. 376 

5. Consideration of Board E&O Coverage
The Board will receive a proposal for Trustee Errors and Omissions 
Insurance through Alliant Public Pool Liability Program (APPL).

6. FY 22/23 Renewal Updates
The Board will receive an update on the various insurance program 
renewals, including property and cyber renewal options.

7. Appointment of CJPRMA Board Alternate and Nomination of NCCSIF 
Board Officers
The Board will appoint a new CJPRMA Alternate Board Member and 
Nominate Board Officers for the 2022-2024 term.

8. FY 22/23 Meeting Calendar
The Board will be asked to approve the Preliminary FY 22/23 Meeting 
Calendar.

9. Policy and Procedure Revisions
The Board will review and may act or provide direction on the following 
Policies.

a. L-4: Formula for Determining Liability Annual Deposit

b. A-2: Service Provider Performance Evaluation

c. A-10: Annual Calendar of Reports, Audits and Filings

10. Sedgwick Workers’ Compensation Claims Administration Services 
Renewal Agreement
The Board will review and may approve or revise the Executive Committee 
recommendation to approve the agreement.

A 1 



 
 

Page 5 of  417 

 

 

President 
Mr. Dave Warren 
City of Placerville  
 
Treasurer 
Ms. Jen Lee 
City of Rio Vista 

Vice President 
Vacant 
 
 
Secretary 
Ms. Jennifer Styczynski 
City of Marysville  

pg. 384 J. INFORMATION ITEMS   

pg. 385  1. Glossary of Terms I 1 

pg. 394  2. NCCSIF Organizational Chart   

pg. 395  3. NCCSIF 2021-2022 Meeting Calendar   

pg. 396  4. NCCSIF Resource Contact Guide   

pg. 409  5. Sedgwick Who’s Who in Claims - WC and Liability Contacts   

pg. 411  6. James Marta & Company Accounting team bio    

pg. 414  7. ACI Training Flyer – Supporting Employees Mental Health – April 26th, 
2022 

  

pg. 415  8. Police Risk Management Training with Ed Obayashi – May 5th, 2022   

pg. 416  9. ACI Training Flyer – Developing Team Relationships – May 24th, 2022   

pg. 417  10. Travel Mileage Reimbursement Form    

     

 K. ADJOURNMENT   
  UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Police Risk Management Committee Meeting - May 5, 2022 
 Claims Committee Meeting - May 26, 2022 
Executive Committee Meeting - May 26, 2022 

  

 
 

Per Government Code 54954.2, persons requesting disability related modifications or accommodations, 
including auxiliary aids or services to participate in the meeting, are requested to contact Jenna Wirkner at 
Alliant Insurance Services at (916) 643-2714. 
 
The agenda packet will be posted on the NCCSIF website at www.nccsif.org. Documents and material relating 
to an open session agenda item that are provided to the NCCSIF Board of Directors less than 72 hours prior 
to a regular meeting will be available for public inspection and copying at 2180 Harvard Street, Suite 460, 
Sacramento, CA 95815. 
 
Access to some buildings and offices may require routine provisions of identification to building security. 
However, NCCSIF does not require any member of the public to register his or her name or to provide other 
information, as a condition to attendance at any public meeting and will not inquire of building security con-
cerning information so provided. See Government Code section 54953.3. 



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item D. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

ACTION ITEM 

ISSUE: Items on the Consent Calendar should be reviewed by the Board, and if any item requires 
clarification or amendment such item(s) should be pulled from the agenda for separate discussion. Items 
pulled from the Consent Calendar will be placed back on the agenda in an order determined by the 
President. 

RECOMMENDATION: Adoption of the Consent Calendar after review by the Board.  

FISCAL IMPACT: None. 

BACKGROUND: The Board places the following items on the Consent Calendar for adoption. The 
Board may accept the Consent Calendar as presented or pull items for discussion and separate action 
while accepting the remaining items. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Board Meeting Minutes- December 16, 2021

2. Check Register from December 31, 2021, to March 21, 2022

3. Investment Reports

a. Chandler Asset Management Short/Long Term – December 2021 to March 2022

b. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report as of December 31, 2021

c. Treasurer’s Report as of December 31, 2021

4. Sedgwick Workers’ Compensation Quarterly Claims Report

5. 21/22 Alliant-Commission Opt-Out Letter dated November 21, 2021

6. FY 21/22 NorCal Cities Liability Program Claims Audit and Sedgwick response

7. Lintelio, LLC Master Subscription Agreement

8. Alliant PE Pool Database Agreement and Flyer

 
Page 6 of 417



 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
DECEMBER 16, 2021 

 

 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

 Page 1 of 8 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT 
Liz Cottrell, City of Anderson Ishrat Aziz- Khan, City of Colusa  
Rachel Ancheta, City of Dixon Kara Reddig, City of Elk Grove   
Stephanie Van Steyn, City of Galt  Elisa Arteaga, City of Gridley  
Dalacie Blankenship, City of Jackson Michael Rock, City of Ione 
Veronica Rodriguez, City of Lincoln Joan Phillipe, City of Nevada City 
Elizabeth Ehrenstrom, City of Oroville Ross Gilb, Town of Paradise                                 
Dave Warren, City of Placerville Andy Schiltz, City of Rocklin 
Marti Brown, City of Willows                            Spencer Morrison, City of Yuba City                           

 
 
OTHER MEMBERS PRESENT 
Alison Garcia, City of Folsom  Jim Ramsey, City of Elk Grove 
 
 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS ABSENT 
Nathan Bagwill, City of Auburn Kristina Miller, City of Corning 
Steven Wang, City of Folsom Yvonne Kimball, City of Jackson  
Jennifer Styczynski, City of Marysville  Sandy Ryan, City of Red Bluff 
Jose Jasso, City of Rio Vista   
  

 
CONSULTANTS & GUESTS 
Marcus Beverly, Alliant Insurance Services Devora Brainard, Sedgwick 
Conor Boughey, Alliant Insurance Services Eric Lucero, Sedgwick 
Jenna Wirkner, Alliant Insurance Services Carlos Oblites, Chandler  
Erik Baumle, Sedgwick Summer Simpson, Sedgwick 
James Marta, James Marta, and Company   
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Dave Warren called the meeting to order at 12:30p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Roll call was made, and a majority of the members were present constituting a quorum. 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There were no public comments. 
 

 
Page 7 of 417



 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
DECEMBER 16, 2021 

 

 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

 Page 2 of 8 

 
D. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
1. Board of Directors & Long-Range Planning Meeting Minutes – October 27, 2021 

2. Check Register November 2021 

3. Investment Reports 
a) Chandler Asset Management Short/Long Term – October 2021 to November 2021 
b) Chandler Asset Management GASB 40 Reports as of June 30, 2021 
c) Chandler Asset Management GASB 72 Reports as of June 30, 2021 

d) Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report as of November 17, 2021 
e) Treasurer’s Report as of September 30, 2021 

4. FY 22/23 EIA PRISM Excess Workers’ Compensation Premium Estimate v1 

5. FY 21/22 Liability Claims Auditing Services Agreement with Risk Management Services 

6. Alliant Commission Disclosure Letter and Fact Sheet Retail vs. Wholesale Commissions  

7. Agreement for Financial Accounting and Consulting Services, James Marta & Company 
LLP, effective July 1, 2022.  

8. Quarterly Financial Report for Period Ending June 30, 2021 

 
A motion was made to approve the Consent Calendar as posted. 
 

MOTION: Liz Ehrenstrom  SECOND: Dalacie Blankenship 
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Aziz-Khan, Ancheta, Reddig, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Blankenship, Rock, Rodriguez, 
Phillipe, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Morrison 
Nays: None. 
 
E.  CAJPA Accreditation with Excellence  
 
James Marta presented the CAJPA Accreditation with Excellence. The pooling isn’t regulated as 
insurance. CAJPA stepped in to set best practice standards for JPAs’. The CAJPA Accreditation 
makes sure the appropriate coverages are in place. The process includes reviewing documents 
against accreditation standards. PRISM offers a discount of around $7,000-$8,000 per year. The 
accreditation cost approx. $6,000 per year. Members need to show why they aren’t funding at the 
80% Confidence Level. NCCSIF  received CAJPA Accreditation with Excellence.  
Motion was made to file and receive the CAJPA accreditation. 
 

MOTION: Joan Phillipe  SECOND: Liz Ehrenstrom.  
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Aziz-Khan, Ancheta, Reddig, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Blankenship, Rock, Rodriguez, 
Phillipe, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Morrison  
Nays: None. 

 
Page 8 of 417



 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
DECEMBER 16, 2021 

 

 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

 Page 3 of 8 

 
  
F. SUMMARY OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE SPECIAL MEETING ON 
DECEMBER 2, 2021  
 
Mr. Beverly gave an overview of the Executive Committee Special Meeting on December 2, 2021.  
 
G. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 
 
G.1. President’s Report  
 
Mr. Warren thanked members for attending the Long-Range Planning Meeting.  
  
G.2. Program Administrator’s Report 
 
Mr. Beverly discussed that Mike Simmons was very thankful for the Resolution made on his 
behalf.  
 
H.        GENERAL RISK MANGEMENT ISSUES 
 
No discussion.  
 
I. FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
I.1. Quarterly Financial Report for Period Ending September 30, 2021 
 
Mr. James Marta reviewed the Quarterly Financial Report and recommended members use the 
Risk Management Reserve Funds, and Police Risk Management Grant Funds.  
 
I.2. Budget-to-Actual as of September 30, 201 
 
NCCSIF is under budget for Administrative Services. We haven’t been having in – person 
meetings or covering the cost of mileage reimbursements.  
.  
A motion was made to approve to receive and file the statement.  
 

MOTION: Liz Ehrenstrom   SECOND: Andy Schiltz.  
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Aziz-Khan, Ancheta, Reddig, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Blankenship, Rock, Rodriguez, 
Phillipe, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Morrison 
Nays: None.  
 
 

 
Page 9 of 417



 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
DECEMBER 16, 2021 

 

 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

 Page 4 of 8 

I.3. FY 20/21 Financial Audits  
 
Mr. Marta gave an overview of the FY 20/21 Financial Audit. Crowe is the auditor for NCCSIF. 
We have no audit adjustments. The auditors are responsible for financial statements and related 
accounting and controls. Mr. Beverly and Mr. Marta both signed the audit. The net position of the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, for the pool decreased by ($566, 837). NCCSIF had, $3,071,640 
in refund and assessments this year. The total in Net Refunds and Assessment’s for the last 26 
years is $53,000,000. If CJPRMA pushes us to a higher retention layer we will need to be able to 
strengthen our funding.  
 
A motion was made to receive and file the Audited Financial Statements as of June 30, 2020, 
and 2021.  
 

MOTION: Liz Ehrenstrom  SECOND: Andy Schiltz 
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Aziz-Khan, Ancheta, Reddig, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Blankenship, Rock, Rodriguez, 
Phillipe, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Morrison 
Nays: None.  
 
I.4. NCCSIF Investment Portfolio Review 
 
Carlos Oblites from Chandler Asset Management gave an overview of the NCCSIF Investment 
Portfolio. Mr. Oblites reviewed the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position. When rates fall that causes the value of investments to go back up. Unemployment is 
going down, demand on goods and services, increased prices. This is all causing inflation. 
Chandler manages a short- and long-term investment for NCCSIF. Since we have been running 
this portfolio, we have averaged 2.73% per year. Over the last three years we have averaged around 
3.00-3.50%. When interest rates fell because of COVID-19, the portfolio increased. The Federal 
Funds Rate would start to increase mid 2022-2023. They will be doing it 2-3 times next year. 
NCCSIF is following California Government Code. Were still picking up a better yield. High 
credit quality and well diversified. We moved over $7.5 million from LAIF to our Investments. 
Were recommended that NCCSIF doesn’t make any changes at this time.  
 
A motion was made to receive and file the Investment Portfolio.  

MOTION: Andy Schiltz SECOND: Spencer Morrison  
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Aziz-Khan, Ancheta, Reddig, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Blankenship, Rock, Rodriguez, 
Phillipe, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Morrison 
Nays: None.  
 
 
 
 

 
Page 10 of 417



 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
DECEMBER 16, 2021 

 

 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

 Page 5 of 8 

I.5. Investment Policy 
 
Mr. Oblites reviewed the updates to the Investment Policy. We will remove “NCCSIF operates its 
pooled idle fund investments under the prudent person rule (Civil Code Section 2261, et. Seq). We 
will also be replacing Finance Committee with Executive Committee.  
 
Senate Bill 998 now removed the restrictions on zero or negative, we are encouraging you to adopt 
it.  
 
A motion was made to approve the investment policy as presented.  
 

MOTION: Liz Ehrenstrom  SECOND: Andy Schiltz  
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Aziz-Khan, Ancheta, Reddig, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Blankenship, Rock, Rodriguez, 
Phillipe, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Morrison 
Nays: None.  
 
Carlos Oblites left the meeting at 1:45 p.m.  
 
J. JPA BUSINESS  
 
J.1. CJPRMA Update & Membership   
 
Mr. Beverly gave an update on our Membership with CJPRMA. The NCCSIF Loss Ratio is 128%, 
which result in a surcharge of 15%. We could avoid the surcharge by increasing our SIR. Currently 
based on the FY 22-23 Estimates, the $750,000 SIR is approx. $4.5 million, with an additional 
surcharge of 7.5%. They will be giving us credit for the increased SIR. We should have a year 
drop off that will improve our Loss Ratio.  
 
Information only. No motion was taken.  
 
James Marta left the meeting at 2:04 p.m.  
 
J.5.     Service Provider Survey Results 
 
Mr. Beverly gave an overview of the Service Provider Survey Results. Workers Compensation 
Claims - Sedgwick will work on having claims reviews with members yearly. Mr. Beverly 
mentioned that Sedgwick will work on communications regarding claims.  
 
Sedgwick is putting together a Calendar to work with members on having Claims Review 
Meetings for both GL and WC. Sedgwick also discussed working on a performance plan and 
working with adjusters to approve communications.  
 

 
Page 11 of 417



 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
DECEMBER 16, 2021 

 

 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

 Page 6 of 8 

Sedgwick – Liability Claims – Members requested more extensive claim reviews. Members also 
discussed who gets the status report at the city level.  
 
Safety and Risk Control Services – Not as many responses for this survey. Fairly consistent overall.  
 
J.2.a. NCCSIF Service Provider Contract Renewal Review – Sedgwick Risk Control 
Services  
 
Mr. Beverly discussed the Sedgwick Risk Control Services Renewal Contract. NCCSIF pricing 
hasn’t gone up in a while. After the initial increase it will remain a flat rate for the following years.  
 
A motion was made to approve the Sedgwick Risk Control Services Renewal Contract. 
 

MOTION: Dave Warren SECOND: Liz Ehrenstrom  
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Aziz-Khan, Ancheta, Reddig, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Blankenship, Rock, Rodriguez, 
Phillipe, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Morrison 
Nays: None. 
 
 
J.2.b. NCCSIF Service Provider Contract Renewal Review – Sedgwick Workers’ 
Compensation Claims Administration   
 
Mr. Beverly discussed the Sedgwick Workers’ Compensation Claims Administration for the next 
three years. We will have a 3% increase or a total of $18, 253. The current fee has been the same 
since 7/1/2019. Sedgwick will address the issues that were brought up my members. Members 
discussed included in the contract that we can terminate our agreement if they aren’t following the 
performance plan.  
 
 
A motion was made to approve the Sedgwick Workers’ Compensation Claims proposal for 
Renewal with a 2-year contract and 1-year optional year including 
 a performance plan.  

MOTION: Liz Ehrenstrom  SECOND: John Phillipe  
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Aziz-Khan, Ancheta, Reddig, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Blankenship, Rock, Rodriguez, 
Phillipe, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Morrison 
Nays: None. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 12 of 417



 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
DECEMBER 16, 2021 

 

 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

 Page 7 of 8 

J.3. Long Range Planning Objectives 
 
Mr. Beverly discussed the Long-Range Planning Objectives from the October 27th, 2021, Meeting.  
LP-1: We will review the Self-Insured Retention funds for a Property Program. 
LP-2: Liability Program – flattening the curve of increasing premiums and risk management.  
LP-3: Cyber Program – Objective: Analyze purchasing insurance. 
LP-4: Workers’ Compensation Program: Objective Investigate tools/services to mitigate cost of 
claim. 
LP-5: Mr. Beverly briefly discussed that he would work on Strategic Growth.  
LP-6: Member Engagement and Education: Create a Board member Academy, Create a plan for 
staff visits.  
 
Mr. Beverly discussed the potential of a Property Banking Layer.  
 
A motion was made to approve the Long-Range Planning items.  

MOTION: Dalacie Blankenship  SECOND: Liz Ehrenstrom  
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Aziz-Khan, Ancheta, Reddig, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Blankenship, Rock, Rodriguez, 
Phillipe, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Morrison 
Nays: None. 
 
 
J.4. State of the Market    
  
Mr. Boughey gave an overview on the State of the Market. The Natural catastrophe insured losses 
totaled $42 billion globally during the first six months of 2021. The combined ratio was 96.9%. 
Improving prior year by 2.9%. All lines of Coverage are under a significant price increase. The 
highest rates were. 2020 was a record breaking 30 named storms and 12 landfalling storms in the 
continental United States. Wildfires, droughts, and CAT losses are concerns for underwriters.  
 
I. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
1. PARMA 2022 Conference (February 27, 2022 – March 2, 2022)  

2. Glossary of Terms 

3. NorCal Cities Organizational Chart 

4. NorCal Cities 21/22 Meeting Calendar 

5. NorCal Cities Resource Contact Guide 

6. York Who’s Who in Claims - WC and Liability Contact 

7. NorCal Cities Travel Mileage Reimbursement Form 

 
These items were provided as information only. 
 

 
Page 13 of 417



 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
DECEMBER 16, 2021 

 

 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

 Page 8 of 8 

M. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:30 p.m.  
 
Next Meeting Date: April 21, 2022  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
___________________________ 
Jennifer Styczynski, Secretary 
 
____________ 
Date 
 
 

 
Page 14 of 417



Company Name: NCCSIF
Report Name: NCCSIF Check Register Board Repor
Created On: 12/31/2021
Check# Date Vendor Account Title Account Memo Amount

8870 12/2/2021 Randy Peters Catering Board Meetings 52503 12/16/21 Catering - BOD Meeting 475.43
12011 12/3/2021 JM and Co LLP Acctg Services 52403 Monthly Acctg Svcs - Nov 2021 9,480.00
12012 12/3/2021 DKF Solutions Grp, LLC RM Comm Svcs 52201 Consulting: SSMP 675.00
12013 12/3/2021 York Risk Svcs Grp Inc On Site 52204 Safety and Risk Control Svcs - 11.2021 14,873.33
12014 12/3/2021 Sedgwick CMS, Inc Claims Admin - Liab ULAE 51135 Nov 2021 Liab Claims 21,813.00
12015 12/3/2021 Sedgwick CMS, Inc Claims Admin - WC 52300 Nov 2021 WC Claims 50,699.33
12016 12/3/2021 Alliant Ins Svcs Inc Program Admin Fee 52401 12/21 Monthly Installment 30,114.83
12017 12/3/2021 CAM, Inc. Investment Income 44040 Investment Income 4,842.84
12018 12/3/2021 Dept of Industrial Re State Funding/Fraud Assessmen 52304 Assessment for FY 21-22 235,273.57
12019 12/14/2021 Cole Pro Media, LLC Risk Mgmt Comm Services 52201 11.4.21 Transp Engagement Tng for Mtg 2,000.00
12020 12/20/2021 Rachel Ancheta Member Training and RM 52207 11/16-11/19/21 Member Trng and RM 174.72
12021 12/20/2021 Jenna Wirkner BOD Long Range Planning 52509 Catering Reimb 12.16.21 BOD RMC Mtg 247.37
12022 12/20/2021 Dave Warren BOD Long Range Planning 52509 12.16.21 RMC Mtg 85.80

Voided -
12009 12/14/2021 Cole Pro Media, LLC Risk Mgmt Comm Services 52201 11.4.21 Transp Engagement Tng for Mtg -2,000.00

 
Page 15 of 417



Company Name: NCCSIF
Report Name: NCCSIF Check Register Board Report
Created On: 1/31/2022
Check# Date Vendor Account Title Account Memo Amount

8871 1/21/2022 Cole Pro Media, LLC Risk Mgmt Comm Svcs 52201 11.4.21 Transparency Engagement Tng for Mtg 2,000.00
12023 1/5/2022 Gibbons and Conley Legal Services 52103 Nov 2021 General Matters 45.00
12024 1/5/2022 JM and Company LLP Accounting Services 52403 Monthly Accounting Services - Dec 2021 9,480.00
12025 1/5/2022 Sedgwick CMS, Inc Claims Admin - WC Only 52300 Dec 2021 WC Claims 50,699.33
12026 1/5/2022 Sedgwick CMS, Inc Claims Admin - Liab ULAE 51135 Dec 2021 Liab Claims 21,813.00
12027 1/5/2022 York Risk Svcs Grp Inc. On Site 52204 Safety and Risk Control Services - Nov 2021 14,873.33
12028 1/5/2022 Alliant Ins Svcs Inc Program Admin Fee 52401 01/22 Monthly Installment 30,114.83
12029 1/6/2022 CAM, Inc. Investment Income 44040 Dec-21 5,080.98
12030 1/20/2022 AGRIP, Inc. Associations Memberships 52504 1/22-12/22 AGRIP Membership Ren - CAJPA 3,530.90
12031 1/20/2022 PRISM Excess Deposit/Prem Exp 54100 21/22 EWC Prem Adj 97,816.00
12032 1/20/2022 Stephanie Van Steyn BOD Long Range Planning 52509 10.27.21 BOD Mtg 55.58
12033 1/20/2022 Stephanie Van Steyn BOD Long Range Planning 52509 12.16.21 BOD Mtg 55.58

Voided - 
12019 1/21/2022 Cole Pro Media, LLC Risk Mgmt Comm Svcs 52201 11.4.21 Transparency Engagement Tng for Mtg -2,000.00

 
Page 16 of 417



Company Name: NCCSIF
Report Name: NCCSIF Check Register Board Report
Created On: 2/18/2022
Check# Date Vendor Account Title Account Memo Amount

12034 2/4/2022 Sedgwick CMS, Inc Claims Admin - Liab ULAE 51135 Jan 2022 Liab Claims 21,813.00
12035 2/4/2022 Sedgwick CMS, Inc Claims Admin - WC Only 52300 Jan 2022 WC Claims 50,699.33
12036 2/4/2022 CAM, Inc. Investment Income 44040 Investment Income 5,248.56
12037 2/4/2022 JM and Company LLP Accounting Svcs 52403 Monthly Acctg Services - Jan 2022 9,480.00
12038 2/4/2022 York Risk Svcs Grp Inc. On Site 52204 Safety and Risk Ctrl Svcs - Jan 2022 14,873.33
12039 2/4/2022 Alliant Ins Svcs Inc Program Admin Fee 52401 02/22 Monthly Installment 30,114.83
12040 2/4/2022 Risk Management Svcs Claims Audit 52101 Jan 2022 Lia-Prop Claims Audit 6,625.00
12041 2/18/2022 Gibbons and Conley Legal Services 52103 Memos to M Beverly 157.50
12042 2/18/2022 City of Galt Member Trng and RM 52207 Feb 2022 SF-LCW Conf- S VanSteyn 1,584.57

Feb 2022 SF-LCW Conf- R Anguiano 1,068.17
12043 2/18/2022 Stephanie Van Steyn Member Trng and RM 52207 Feb 2022 SF-LCW Conference 111.85
12044 2/18/2022 City of Marysville Member Trng and RM 52207 11.16-19.21 CALPELRA Reg - J Stycznski 889.05

 
Page 17 of 417



Company Name: NCCSIF
Report Name: NCCSIF Check Register Board Report
Created On: 3/21/2022
Check# Date Vendor Account Title Account Memo Amount

12045 3/4/2022 Sedgwick CMS Svcs Inc Claims Admin WC Only 52300 Feb 2022 WC Claims 50,699.33

12046 3/4/2022 City of Marysville Member Trng and RM 52207 11.15-19.21 CALPELRA Reg - N Moe 1,927.97
12047 3/4/2022 York Risk Svcs Grp Inc. On Site 52204 Safety and Risk Ctrl Svcs - Jan 2022 14,873.33
12048 3/4/2022 City of Galt Police RM Grant Funds 52209 Implement Body Worn Cameras Prog 21,210.00
12049 3/4/2022 Sedgwick CMS, Inc Claims Admin Liab ULAE 51135 Feb 2022 Liab Claims 21,813.00
12050 3/4/2022 JM and Co LLP Accounting Services 52403 Monthly Accth Svcs - Feb 2022 9,480.00
12051 3/4/2022 Alliant Ins Svcs Inc Program Admin Fee 52401 02/22 Monthly Installment 30,114.83
12052 3/4/2022 City of Yuba City Member Trng and RM 52207 2021 CalPELRA Conf- Loza, Springer 4,000.00
12053 3/4/2022 CAM, Inc. Investment Income 44040 Investment Income 5,222.23
12054 3/4/2022 CJPRMA Excess Dep/Prem Exp 54100 Corridor Deductible 7/13-6/16 123,916.05

3/4/2022 CJPRMA Other Insurance Exp 54150 Drone-Grid-1865161/68 948.00
12055 3/21/2022 City of Ione Police RM Grant Funds 52209 Reimb-New Body Cameras 1,584.00

3/21/2022 City of Ione Safety Grant Funds 54200 Reimb-New Body Cameras 4,514.00
12056 3/21/2022 City of Oroville Member Trng and RM 52207 2022 PARMA Conf and Trng/RM - EE 1,548.55
12057 3/21/2022 Sedgwick CMS Svcs Inc Claims Admin - Liab ALE 51136 2/22/2022 TE Peggy Pfahlert 281.75
12058 3/21/2022 City of Jackson Member Trng and RM 52207 2022 City Managers Conf 1,346.04

 
Page 18 of 417



MONTHLY ACCOUNT STATEMENT

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term - Account #170

DECEMBER 1, 2021 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2021

Information contained herein is confidential. We urge you to compare this statement to the one you receive from your qualified custodian. Please see Important Disclosures.

CHANDLER ASSET MANAGEMENT
chandlerasset.com

Chandler Team:
For questions about your account, please call (800) 317-4747,
or contact operations@chandlerasset.com

Custodian
Bank of New York Mellon
Lauren Dehner
(904) 645-1918

 
Page 19 of 417



ACCOUNT SUMMARY
Beg. Values

as of 11/30/21
End Values

as of 12/31/21

Market Value 28,059,896 35,517,244
Accrued Interest 102,841 109,799
Total Market Value 28,162,736 35,627,043
Income Earned 34,291 36,462
Cont/WD 7,500,000
Par 27,825,411 35,296,708
Book Value 27,862,835 35,395,313
Cost Value 27,912,821 35,448,063

TOP ISSUERS

Government of United States 24.3%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp 15.9%
Federal National Mortgage Assoc 12.5%
Federal Home Loan Bank 7.0%
Inter-American Dev Bank 2.7%
Intl Bank Recon and Development 2.5%
Toyota ABS 2.2%
JP Morgan Chase & Co 2.1%

Total 69.3%

PORTFOLIO CHARACTERISTICS

Average Modified Duration 2.63

Average Coupon 1.49%

Average Purchase YTM 1.38%

Average Market YTM 0.98%

Average S&P/Moody Rating AA/Aa1

Average Final Maturity 2.91 yrs

Average Life 2.70 yrs

CREDIT QUALITY (S&P)MATURITY DISTRIBUTIONSECTOR ALLOCATION

Portfolio Summary
As of December 31, 2021

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Annualized

TOTAL RATE OF RETURN 1M 3M YTD 1YR 2YRS 3YRS 5YRS 10YRS 12/31/1997
Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term -0.14% -0.65% -0.89% -0.89% 1.79% 2.72% 2.15% 1.66% 3.66%
ICE BofA 1-5 Yr US Treasury & Agency Index -0.28% -0.68% -1.09% -1.09% 1.53% 2.41% 1.88% 1.35% 3.35%
ICE BofA 1-5 Yr AAA-A US Corp & Govt Index -0.25% -0.68% -1.05% -1.05% 1.62% 2.55% 1.99% 1.51% 3.46%

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:31 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 1
 

Page 20 of 417



Category Standard Comment 

Treasury Issues No limitation Complies

US Government & Agencies
No limitation;  Include: mortgage-backed, mortgage passthrough securities, and collateralized mortgage obligations issued 

by the federal government or federal agency/GSE issuers
Complies

Supranationals AA rating category or better by a NRSRO;  30% maximum;  5 years max maturity; Issued by IBRD, IFC or IADB only Complies

Municipal Securities 5 years max maturity Complies

Asset-Backed & Mortgage-Backed 

Securities
AA rating category or better by a NRSRO;  20% maximum;  5 years max maturity Complies 

Banker’s Acceptances 40% maximum;  180 days max maturity Complies 

Commercial Paper A-1/P-1 by a  NRSRO; 25% maximum; 270 days max maturity Complies 

Corporate Medium Term Notes A rating category or better by a NRSRO;  30% maximum; 5 years max maturity Complies 

Money Market Mutual Funds Highest ratings by two NRSROs; 20% maximum Complies

Mutual Funds Highest ratings by two NRSROs; 20% maximum Complies 

Negotiable CDs 30% maximum;  5 years max maturity Complies 

Time Certificates of Deposit; 

Collateralized Bank Deposits
5 years max maturity Complies 

LAIF Maximum as law permits Complies 

Repurchase Agreements 1 year max maturity;  Not used by Investment Adviser Complies 

Prohibited

Common or preferred stocks, convertible or junk bonds, commodities, options, limited partnerships, GICs, 

Reverse repurchase agreements, uninsured deposits, Inverse floaters; ranges notes, mortgage derived, interest only strips, 

Zero interest accrual securities if held to maturity; Investments denominated in Non-USD; Collateralized Mortgage 

Obligations (CMOs) with collateral not specifically GNMA, FHLMC, or FNMA; Purchasing or selling securities on margin; 

Securities lending or any other form of borrowing or leverage

Complies 

Max Per Issuer
5%  per issuer or institution unless explicitly stated in the policy, excluding U.S. government, agency, investment pool, and 

money market funds
Complies

Maximum Maturity 10 years Complies

Northern California Cities Self-Insurance Fund - Short Term

The portfolio complies with state law and with the Client's investment policy.

Statement of Compliance
As of December 31, 2021

 
Page 21 of 417



BOOK VALUE RECONCILIATION

BEGINNING BOOK VALUE $27,862,835.08

Acquisition
+ Security Purchases $7,801,023.59
+ Money Market Fund Purchases $476,307.43
+ Money Market Contributions $7,500,000.00
+ Security Contributions $0.00
+ Security Transfers $0.00
   Total Acquisitions $15,777,331.02
Dispositions

- Security Sales $322,617.28
- Money Market Fund Sales $7,817,930.60
- MMF Withdrawals $0.00
- Security Withdrawals $0.00
- Security Transfers $0.00
- Other Dispositions $0.00
- Maturites $0.00
- Calls $0.00
- Principal Paydowns $105,080.21
   Total Dispositions $8,245,628.09
Amortization/Accretion
+/- Net Accretion ($2,198.85)

($2,198.85)
Gain/Loss on Dispositions
+/- Realized Gain/Loss $2,973.98

$2,973.98
ENDING BOOK VALUE $35,395,313.14

CASH TRANSACTION SUMMARY

BEGINNING BALANCE $94,789.65

Acquisition
          Contributions $7,500,000.00
          Security Sale Proceeds $322,617.28
          Accrued Interest Received $1,919.79
          Interest Received $46,688.87
          Dividend Received $1.28
          Principal on Maturities $0.00
          Interest on Maturities $0.00
          Calls/Redemption (Principal) $0.00
          Interest from Calls/Redemption $0.00
          Principal Paydown $105,080.21
Total Acquisitions $7,976,307.43
Dispositions
          Withdrawals $0.00
          Security Purchase $7,801,023.59
          Accrued Interest Paid $16,907.01
Total Dispositions $7,817,930.60
ENDING BOOK VALUE $253,166.48

Reconciliation Summary
As of December 31, 2021

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Short Term
Account #170

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:31 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 3
 

Page 22 of 417



Holdings Report
As of December 31, 2021

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

ABS

58770FAC6 Mercedes Benz Auto Lease Trust 2020-
A A3
1.84% Due 12/15/2022

42,375.87 01/21/2020
1.85%

42,370.29
42,374.02

100.27
0.51%

42,488.76
34.65

0.12%
114.74

Aaa / AAA
NR

0.96
0.20

47789JAD8 John Deere Owner Trust 2019-A A3
2.91% Due 7/17/2023

38,964.99 06/24/2020
0.83%

39,989.34
39,261.79

100.55
0.36%

39,177.74
50.39

0.11%
(84.05)

Aaa / NR
AAA

1.54
0.22

43815NAC8 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2019-3 
A3
1.78% Due 8/15/2023

102,234.75 08/20/2019
1.79%

102,233.90
102,234.55

100.57
0.35%

102,818.20
80.88

0.29%
583.65

Aaa / AAA
NR

1.62
0.40

58769EAC2 Mercedes-Benz Auto Lease Trust 2020-
B A3
0.4% Due 11/15/2023

90,000.00 09/15/2020
0.40%

89,995.44
89,997.95

99.88
0.54%

89,891.91
16.00

0.25%
(106.04)

NR / AAA
AAA

1.87
0.86

477870AC3 John Deere Owner Trust 2019-B A3
2.21% Due 12/15/2023

43,369.00 07/16/2019
2.23%

43,359.79
43,364.91

100.66
0.63%

43,654.67
42.60

0.12%
289.76

Aaa / NR
AAA

1.96
0.42

92348AAA3 Verizon Owner Trust 2019-C A1A
1.94% Due 4/22/2024

101,840.61 10/01/2019
1.95%

101,832.76
101,836.62

100.69
0.48%

102,538.42
60.37

0.29%
701.80

NR / AAA
AAA

2.31
0.47

65479JAD5 Nissan Auto Receivables Owner 2019-C 
A3
1.93% Due 7/15/2024

133,478.86 10/16/2019
1.94%

133,471.82
133,475.09

100.81
0.38%

134,556.30
114.50

0.38%
1,081.21

Aaa / AAA
NR

2.54
0.52

43813DAC2 Honda Auto Receivables 2020-2 A3
0.82% Due 7/15/2024

85,291.60 05/18/2020
0.83%

85,284.89
85,287.49

100.18
0.57%

85,444.02
31.08

0.24%
156.53

Aaa / AAA
NR

2.54
0.71

47789KAC7 John Deere Owner Trust 2020-A A3
1.1% Due 8/15/2024

169,658.89 Various
1.26%

169,107.40
169,319.45

100.35
0.58%

170,255.75
82.95

0.48%
936.30

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.62
0.68

43813KAC6 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2020-3 
A3
0.37% Due 10/18/2024

145,000.00 09/22/2020
0.38%

144,978.70
144,987.24

99.72
0.65%

144,594.73
19.37

0.41%
(392.51)

NR / AAA
AAA

2.80
0.99

36262XAC8 GM Financial Auto Lease Trust 2021-3 
A2
0.39% Due 10/21/2024

590,000.00 Various
0.73%

586,695.39
586,743.59

99.04
0.91%

584,344.86
70.31

1.64%
(2,398.73)

NR / AAA
AAA

2.81
1.84

47787NAC3 John Deere Owner Trust 2020-B A3
0.51% Due 11/15/2024

65,000.00 07/14/2020
0.52%

64,990.09
64,994.20

99.85
0.69%

64,900.49
14.73

0.18%
(93.71)

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.88
0.83

09690AAC7 BMW Vehicle Lease Trust 2021-2 A3
0.33% Due 12/26/2024

85,000.00 09/08/2021
0.34%

84,991.23
84,992.37

99.24
0.80%

84,351.20
4.68

0.24%
(641.17)

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.99
1.64

89236XAC0 Toyota Auto Receivables 2020-D A3
0.35% Due 1/15/2025

115,000.00 10/06/2020
0.36%

114,978.58
114,984.71

99.74
0.64%

114,703.99
17.89

0.32%
(280.72)

NR / AAA
AAA

3.04
0.90

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:31 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 4
 

Page 23 of 417



Holdings Report
As of December 31, 2021

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

ABS

92290BAA9 Verizon Owner Trust 2020-B A
0.47% Due 2/20/2025

205,000.00 08/04/2020
0.48%

204,956.95
204,970.15

99.73
0.71%

204,455.73
29.44

0.57%
(514.42)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.14
1.11

43813GAC5 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2021-1 
A3
0.27% Due 4/21/2025

70,000.00 02/17/2021
0.27%

69,998.72
69,999.08

99.47
0.71%

69,626.55
5.25

0.20%
(372.53)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.31
1.21

44891RAC4 Hyundai Auto Receivables Trust 2020-C 
A3
0.38% Due 5/15/2025

150,000.00 10/20/2020
0.39%

149,965.45
149,977.78

99.57
0.73%

149,356.35
25.33

0.42%
(621.43)

NR / AAA
AAA

3.37
1.21

89240BAC2 Toyota Auto Receivables Owners 2021-
A A3
0.26% Due 5/15/2025

255,000.00 02/02/2021
0.27%

254,952.67
254,966.35

99.50
0.67%

253,718.63
29.47

0.71%
(1,247.72)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.37
1.23

44933LAC7 Hyundai Auto Receivables Trust 2021-A 
A3
0.38% Due 9/15/2025

120,000.00 04/20/2021
0.38%

119,987.38
119,990.19

99.25
0.84%

119,104.20
20.27

0.33%
(885.99)

NR / AAA
AAA

3.71
1.62

89239BAC5 Toyota Auto Receivables Trust 2021-C 
A3
0.43% Due 1/15/2026

340,000.00 12/17/2021
0.91%

336,653.13
336,687.86

98.94
1.00%

336,405.86
64.98

0.94%
(282.00)

Aaa / AAA
NR

4.04
1.88

43815GAC3 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2021-4 
A3
0.88% Due 1/21/2026

95,000.00 11/16/2021
0.89%

94,979.97
94,980.61

99.76
0.99%

94,770.77
23.22

0.27%
(209.84)

Aaa / NR
AAA

4.06
2.13

47789QAC4 John Deere Owner Trust 2021-B A3
0.52% Due 3/16/2026

115,000.00 07/13/2021
0.52%

114,989.74
114,991.00

98.86
1.02%

113,689.58
26.58

0.32%
(1,301.42)

Aaa / NR
AAA

4.21
2.30

89238JAC9 Toyota Auto Receivables Trust 2021-D 
A3
0.71% Due 4/15/2026

85,000.00 11/09/2021
0.71%

84,998.19
84,998.26

99.39
1.37%

84,477.51
26.82

0.24%
(520.75)

NR / AAA
AAA

4.29
0.94

44935FAD6 Hyundai Auto Receivables Trust 2021-C 
A3
0.74% Due 5/15/2026

65,000.00 11/09/2021
0.75%

64,985.49
64,986.06

99.31
1.05%

64,554.36
21.38

0.18%
(431.70)

NR / AAA
AAA

4.37
2.19

362554AC1 GM Financial Securitized Term 2021-4 
A3
0.68% Due 9/16/2026

70,000.00 10/13/2021
0.68%

69,998.22
69,998.32

99.25
1.06%

69,474.23
19.83

0.20%
(524.09)

Aaa / AAA
NR

4.71
1.98

Total ABS 3,377,214.57 0.79%
3,370,745.53
3,370,399.64 0.77%

3,363,354.81
932.97

9.44%
(7,044.83)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

3.11
1.31

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:31 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 5
 

Page 24 of 417



Holdings Report
As of December 31, 2021

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

AGENCY

3135G0T94 FNMA Note
2.375% Due 1/19/2023

200,000.00 04/11/2018
2.71%

197,052.00
199,352.22

102.05
0.41%

204,107.80
2,137.50

0.58%
4,755.58

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.05
1.03

3137EAER6 FHLMC Note
0.375% Due 5/5/2023

520,000.00 05/05/2020
0.39%

519,781.60
519,902.29

99.78
0.54%

518,875.76
303.33

1.46%
(1,026.53)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.34
1.34

3137EAEN5 FHLMC Note
2.75% Due 6/19/2023

500,000.00 07/20/2018
2.86%

497,490.00
499,252.04

103.15
0.59%

515,731.00
458.33

1.45%
16,478.96

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.47
1.44

3135G05G4 FNMA Note
0.25% Due 7/10/2023

230,000.00 07/08/2020
0.32%

229,505.50
229,749.36

99.46
0.60%

228,767.20
273.13

0.64%
(982.16)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.52
1.52

3137EAEV7 FHLMC Note
0.25% Due 8/24/2023

325,000.00 08/19/2020
0.28%

324,668.50
324,818.85

99.36
0.64%

322,921.30
286.63

0.91%
(1,897.55)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.65
1.64

3135G0U43 FNMA Note
2.875% Due 9/12/2023

505,000.00 09/12/2018
2.96%

502,929.50
504,297.35

103.70
0.68%

523,673.89
4,395.95

1.48%
19,376.54

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.70
1.65

3135G06H1 FNMA Note
0.25% Due 11/27/2023

150,000.00 11/23/2020
0.29%

149,829.00
149,891.66

99.13
0.71%

148,701.60
35.42

0.42%
(1,190.06)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.91
1.90

3130A0F70 FHLB Note
3.375% Due 12/8/2023

440,000.00 01/16/2019
2.73%

452,843.60
445,077.03

105.07
0.73%

462,322.96
948.75

1.30%
17,245.93

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.94
1.88

3130AB3H7 FHLB Note
2.375% Due 3/8/2024

500,000.00 04/29/2019
2.37%

500,035.00
500,015.72

103.34
0.83%

516,716.00
3,727.43

1.46%
16,700.28

Aaa / AA+
NR

2.19
2.12

3130A1XJ2 FHLB Note
2.875% Due 6/14/2024

475,000.00 06/18/2019
1.96%

495,548.65
485,093.88

104.87
0.87%

498,116.35
644.88

1.40%
13,022.47

Aaa / AA+
NR

2.45
2.37

3135G0V75 FNMA Note
1.75% Due 7/2/2024

500,000.00 12/22/2021
0.84%

511,285.00
511,174.84

102.21
0.86%

511,054.50
4,350.69

1.45%
(120.34)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.50
2.43

3130A2UW4 FHLB Note
2.875% Due 9/13/2024

450,000.00 09/13/2019
1.79%

473,305.50
462,598.26

105.11
0.95%

472,972.95
3,881.25

1.34%
10,374.69

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.70
2.59

3135G0W66 FNMA Note
1.625% Due 10/15/2024

200,000.00 10/17/2019
1.66%

199,658.00
199,809.13

101.88
0.94%

203,764.80
686.11

0.57%
3,955.67

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.79
2.72

3130AQF40 FHLB Note
1% Due 12/20/2024

550,000.00 12/21/2021
1.02%

549,642.50
549,645.77

100.08
0.97%

550,465.85
137.50

1.55%
820.08

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.97
2.92

3135G0X24 FNMA Note
1.625% Due 1/7/2025

505,000.00 Various
1.21%

514,840.05
511,145.85

101.83
1.01%

514,228.37
3,966.35

1.45%
3,082.52

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.02
2.92

3137EAEP0 FHLMC Note
1.5% Due 2/12/2025

605,000.00 02/13/2020
1.52%

604,534.15
604,709.51

101.46
1.02%

613,858.41
3,503.96

1.73%
9,148.90

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.12
3.02

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:31 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 6
 

Page 25 of 417



Holdings Report
As of December 31, 2021

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

AGENCY

3135G03U5 FNMA Note
0.625% Due 4/22/2025

475,000.00 04/22/2020
0.67%

474,021.50
474,352.49

98.64
1.04%

468,536.20
569.01

1.32%
(5,816.29)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.31
3.26

3135G04Z3 FNMA Note
0.5% Due 6/17/2025

565,000.00 Various
0.47%

565,574.15
565,496.06

98.03
1.08%

553,850.86
109.86

1.55%
(11,645.20)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.46
3.42

3137EAEU9 FHLMC Note
0.375% Due 7/21/2025

320,000.00 07/21/2020
0.48%

318,406.40
318,866.83

97.48
1.10%

311,934.40
533.33

0.88%
(6,932.43)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.56
3.51

3135G05X7 FNMA Note
0.375% Due 8/25/2025

560,000.00 Various
0.46%

557,801.20
558,369.74

97.29
1.14%

544,818.96
735.00

1.53%
(13,550.78)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.65
3.60

3137EAEX3 FHLMC Note
0.375% Due 9/23/2025

555,000.00 Various
0.44%

553,354.65
553,750.72

97.32
1.11%

540,098.25
566.57

1.52%
(13,652.47)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.73
3.68

3135G06G3 FNMA Note
0.5% Due 11/7/2025

565,000.00 Various
0.56%

563,434.90
563,796.29

97.59
1.14%

551,392.54
423.75

1.55%
(12,403.75)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.85
3.79

Total Agency 9,695,000.00 1.28%
9,755,541.35
9,731,165.89 0.89%

9,776,909.95
32,674.73

27.53%
45,744.06

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.65
2.59

CMO

3137BM6P6 FHLMC K721 A2
3.09% Due 8/25/2022

342,042.68 09/21/2017
2.22%

355,053.97
343,754.31

100.87
0.66%

345,020.52
880.76

0.97%
1,266.21

Aaa / NR
NR

0.65
0.44

3137B4WB8 FHLMC K033 A2
3.06% Due 7/25/2023

425,000.00 09/13/2019
2.14%

438,862.30
430,619.85

102.99
0.83%

437,690.08
216.75

1.23%
7,070.23

Aaa / NR
NR

1.56
1.41

3137B7MZ9 FHLMC K036 A2
3.527% Due 10/25/2023

400,000.00 10/29/2018
3.32%

403,937.50
401,432.21

104.12
0.92%

416,493.60
235.13

1.17%
15,061.39

Aaa / NR
AAA

1.82
1.63

3137BYPQ7 FHLMC K726 A2
2.905% Due 4/25/2024

350,284.12 04/22/2019
2.72%

352,788.12
351,442.24

103.54
1.14%

362,692.23
847.98

1.02%
11,249.99

NR / AAA
NR

2.32
2.07

3137BFE98 FHLMC K041 A2
3.171% Due 10/25/2024

500,000.00 12/15/2021
1.17%

526,328.13
525,940.57

105.13
1.19%

525,636.00
1,321.25

1.48%
(304.57)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

2.82
2.62

3137BPW21 FHLMC K055 A2
2.673% Due 3/25/2026

170,000.00 12/15/2021
1.25%

178,705.86
178,637.67

104.90
1.41%

178,326.26
378.68

0.50%
(311.41)

NR / NR
AAA

4.23
3.90

3137FQXJ7 FHLMC K737 A2
2.525% Due 10/25/2026

523,000.00 12/15/2021
1.41%

548,700.55
548,523.91

104.92
1.40%

548,749.38
1,100.48

1.54%
225.47

NR / NR
AAA

4.82
4.40

Total CMO 2,710,326.80 2.01%
2,804,376.43
2,780,350.76 1.08%

2,814,608.07
4,981.03

7.91%
34,257.31

Aaa / AAA
AAA

2.62
2.38

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:31 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 7
 

Page 26 of 417



Holdings Report
As of December 31, 2021

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

CORPORATE

89236TDP7 Toyota Motor Credit Corp Note
2.6% Due 1/11/2022

230,000.00 Various
3.15%

225,905.34
229,967.68

100.04
1.07%

230,097.06
2,823.89

0.65%
129.38

A1 / A+
A+

0.03
0.03

69353RFE3 PNC Bank Callable Note Cont 6/28/2022
2.45% Due 7/28/2022

355,000.00 07/25/2017
2.45%

354,968.05
354,996.36

100.97
0.48%

358,431.08
3,696.44

1.02%
3,434.72

A2 / A
A+

0.57
0.49

48128BAB7 JP Morgan Chase & Co Callable Note 1X 
1/15/2022
2.972% Due 1/15/2023

325,000.00 Various
3.24%

321,131.25
324,177.93

100.07
1.18%

325,224.58
4,453.87

0.93%
1,046.65

A2 / A-
AA-

1.04
0.04

24422ETG4 John Deere Capital Corp Note
2.8% Due 3/6/2023

150,000.00 06/13/2018
3.44%

145,828.50
148,962.57

102.47
0.69%

153,709.35
1,341.67

0.44%
4,746.78

A2 / A
A

1.18
1.16

037833AK6 Apple Inc Note
2.4% Due 5/3/2023

235,000.00 11/28/2018
3.54%

224,140.65
231,725.38

102.39
0.60%

240,623.55
908.67

0.68%
8,898.17

Aaa / AA+
NR

1.34
1.32

02665WCJ8 American Honda Finance Note
3.45% Due 7/14/2023

100,000.00 07/11/2018
3.49%

99,827.00
99,946.98

104.09
0.76%

104,094.00
1,600.42

0.30%
4,147.02

A3 / A-
NR

1.53
1.48

69371RP59 Paccar Financial Corp Note
3.4% Due 8/9/2023

250,000.00 08/06/2018
3.41%

249,897.50
249,967.16

104.03
0.87%

260,065.75
3,352.78

0.74%
10,098.59

A1 / A+
NR

1.61
1.55

06406RAJ6 Bank of NY Mellon Corp Note
3.45% Due 8/11/2023

320,000.00 05/16/2019
2.79%

328,416.00
323,199.61

104.20
0.82%

333,443.84
4,293.33

0.95%
10,244.23

A1 / A
AA-

1.61
1.56

02665WCQ2 American Honda Finance Note
3.625% Due 10/10/2023

245,000.00 10/03/2018
3.64%

244,799.10
244,928.82

104.84
0.87%

256,866.58
1,998.28

0.73%
11,937.76

A3 / A-
NR

1.78
1.72

24422EVN6 John Deere Capital Corp Note
0.45% Due 1/17/2024

195,000.00 03/01/2021
0.47%

194,861.55
194,901.54

99.05
0.92%

193,145.75
399.75

0.54%
(1,755.79)

A2 / A
A

2.05
2.02

06051GHF9 Bank of America Corp Callable Note 1X 
3/5/2023
3.55% Due 3/5/2024

321,000.00 03/06/2019
3.01%

322,235.85
321,537.97

102.98
1.00%

330,564.52
3,671.88

0.94%
9,026.55

A2 / A-
AA-

2.18
1.15

89114QCB2 Toronto Dominion Bank Note
3.25% Due 3/11/2024

325,000.00 03/26/2019
2.97%

329,114.50
326,818.56

104.52
1.16%

339,682.85
3,227.43

0.96%
12,864.29

A1 / A
AA-

2.19
2.11

808513BN4 Charles Schwab Corp Callable Note 
Cont 2/18/2024
0.75% Due 3/18/2024

160,000.00 03/16/2021
0.77%

159,920.00
159,941.09

99.57
0.95%

159,313.44
343.33

0.45%
(627.65)

A2 / A
A

2.21
2.18

79466LAG9 Salesforce.com Inc Callable Note Cont 
7/15/2022
0.625% Due 7/15/2024

295,000.00 Various
0.93%

292,715.95
292,779.87

99.09
0.99%

292,312.85
865.53

0.82%
(467.02)

A2 / A+
NR

2.54
2.50

69371RQ25 Paccar Financial Corp Note
2.15% Due 8/15/2024

70,000.00 08/08/2019
2.20%

69,845.30
69,918.97

102.43
1.20%

71,704.43
568.56

0.20%
1,785.46

A1 / A+
NR

2.62
2.53

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:31 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 8
 

Page 27 of 417



Holdings Report
As of December 31, 2021

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

CORPORATE

78015K7C2 Royal Bank of Canada Note
2.25% Due 11/1/2024

325,000.00 12/05/2019
2.26%

324,831.00
324,902.23

102.74
1.26%

333,907.60
1,218.75

0.94%
9,005.37

A2 / A
AA-

2.84
2.74

14913Q3B3 Caterpillar Finl Service Note
2.15% Due 11/8/2024

325,000.00 02/19/2020
1.83%

329,628.00
327,800.45

102.92
1.11%

334,497.15
1,028.72

0.94%
6,696.70

A2 / A
A

2.86
2.76

90331HPL1 US Bank NA Callable Note Cont 
12/21/2024
2.05% Due 1/21/2025

340,000.00 01/16/2020
2.10%

339,275.80
339,557.63

102.31
1.25%

347,860.46
3,097.78

0.99%
8,302.83

A1 / AA-
AA-

3.06
2.86

747525AF0 Qualcomm Inc Callable Note Cont 
2/20/2025
3.45% Due 5/20/2025

350,000.00 12/22/2021
1.46%

372,977.50
372,884.85

106.60
1.44%

373,116.80
1,375.21

1.05%
231.95

A2 / A
NR

3.39
3.20

46647PCH7 JP Morgan Chase & Co Callable Note 
Cont 6/1/2024
0.824% Due 6/1/2025

300,000.00 05/24/2021
0.74%

300,388.80
300,331.85

98.85
1.10%

296,554.20
206.00

0.83%
(3,777.65)

A2 / A-
AA-

3.42
3.36

46647PCK0 JP Morgan Chase & Co Callable Note 
Cont 6/23/2024
0.969% Due 6/23/2025

140,000.00 Various
0.87%

140,087.55
140,076.10

99.05
1.16%

138,664.40
30.14

0.39%
(1,411.70)

A2 / A-
AA-

3.48
3.41

023135BX3 Amazon.com Inc Callable Note Cont 
4/12/2026
1% Due 5/12/2026

440,000.00 05/10/2021
1.09%

438,099.20
438,342.79

99.07
1.22%

435,922.08
598.89

1.23%
(2,420.71)

A1 / AA
AA-

4.36
4.25

808513BR5 Charles Schwab Corp Callable Note 
Cont 4/13/2026
1.15% Due 5/13/2026

200,000.00 12/15/2021
1.49%

197,152.00
197,178.57

98.71
1.46%

197,414.60
306.67

0.55%
236.03

A2 / A
A

4.37
4.23

91324PEC2 United Health Group Inc Callable Note 
Cont 4/15/2026
1.15% Due 5/15/2026

355,000.00 Various
1.09%

355,928.75
355,844.34

98.97
1.39%

351,355.93
521.65

0.99%
(4,488.41)

A3 / A+
A

4.37
4.24

89236TJK2 Toyota Motor Credit Corp Note
1.125% Due 6/18/2026

300,000.00 06/15/2021
1.13%

299,868.00
299,882.24

98.54
1.46%

295,614.60
121.88

0.83%
(4,267.64)

A1 / A+
A+

4.47
4.33

06051GJD2 Bank of America Corp Callable Note 
Cont 6/19/2025
1.319% Due 6/19/2026

350,000.00 Various
1.36%

349,042.00
348,988.82

98.98
1.53%

346,435.95
153.88

0.97%
(2,552.87)

A2 / A-
AA-

4.47
4.32

594918BR4 Microsoft Callable Note Cont 5/8/2026
2.4% Due 8/8/2026

350,000.00 12/21/2021
1.36%

365,442.00
365,354.98

104.70
1.28%

366,465.75
3,336.67

1.04%
1,110.77

Aaa / AAA
AAA

4.61
4.10

89114TZG0 Toronto-Dominion Bank Note
1.25% Due 9/10/2026

200,000.00 12/15/2021
1.67%

196,202.00
196,234.97

98.30
1.63%

196,608.60
770.83

0.55%
373.63

A1 / A
AA-

4.70
4.52

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:31 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 9
 

Page 28 of 417



Holdings Report
As of December 31, 2021

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

CORPORATE

037833DN7 Apple Inc Callable Note Cont 7/11/2026
2.05% Due 9/11/2026

270,000.00 Various
1.50%

276,565.80
276,479.29

102.78
1.41%

277,517.61
1,691.25

0.78%
1,038.32

Aaa / AA+
NR

4.70
4.30

06368FAC3 Bank of Montreal Note
1.25% Due 9/15/2026

280,000.00 09/13/2021
1.28%

279,661.20
279,681.24

97.92
1.71%

274,176.00
1,030.56

0.77%
(5,505.24)

A2 / A-
AA-

4.71
4.53

931142ER0 Wal-Mart Stores Callable Note Cont 
08/17/2026
1.05% Due 9/17/2026

70,000.00 09/08/2021
1.09%

69,867.70
69,875.38

98.94
1.28%

69,255.34
212.33

0.19%
(620.04)

Aa2 / AA
AA

4.72
4.56

78016EZZ3 Royal Bank of Canada Note
1.4% Due 11/2/2026

200,000.00 12/15/2021
1.74%

196,850.00
196,876.53

98.73
1.68%

197,452.80
653.33

0.56%
576.27

A2 / A
AA-

4.84
4.64

Total Corporate 8,371,000.00 1.96%
8,395,473.84
8,404,062.75 1.16%

8,482,099.50
49,900.37

23.95%
78,036.75

A1 / A+
AA-

2.96
2.76

MONEY MARKET FUND

26200X845 Dreyfus Funds Inst'l Reserve Treasury 
#6541

253,166.48 Various
0.01%

253,166.48
253,166.48

1.00
0.01%

253,166.48
0.00

0.71%
0.00

Aaa / AAA
AAA

0.00
0.00

Total Money Market Fund 253,166.48 0.01%
253,166.48
253,166.48 0.01%

253,166.48
0.00

0.71%
0.00

Aaa / AAA
AAA

0.00
0.00

MUNICIPAL BONDS

13063DRK6 California State Taxable GO
2.4% Due 10/1/2024

320,000.00 10/16/2019
1.91%

327,350.40
324,090.80

103.86
0.97%

332,352.00
1,920.00

0.94%
8,261.20

Aa2 / AA-
AA

2.75
2.65

Total Municipal Bonds 320,000.00 1.91%
327,350.40
324,090.80 0.97%

332,352.00
1,920.00

0.94%
8,261.20

Aa2 / AA-
AA

2.75
2.65

SUPRANATIONAL

4581X0CW6 Inter-American Dev Bank Note
2.125% Due 1/18/2022

385,000.00 01/10/2017
2.15%

384,526.45
384,995.59

100.07
0.55%

385,284.90
3,704.29

1.09%
289.31

Aaa / NR
AAA

0.05
0.05

459058JL8 Intl. Bank Recon & Development Note
0.5% Due 10/28/2025

910,000.00 Various
1.00%

892,819.20
893,067.91

97.46
1.18%

886,903.29
796.25

2.49%
(6,164.62)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

3.83
3.77

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:31 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 10
 

Page 29 of 417



Holdings Report
As of December 31, 2021

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

SUPRANATIONAL

4581X0DV7 Inter-American Dev Bank Note
0.875% Due 4/20/2026

575,000.00 04/13/2021
0.97%

572,366.50
572,735.71

98.44
1.25%

566,002.98
992.27

1.59%
(6,732.73)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

4.30
4.20

Total Supranational 1,870,000.00 1.23%
1,849,712.15
1,850,799.21 1.07%

1,838,191.17
5,492.81

5.17%
(12,608.04)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

3.18
3.11

US TREASURY

912828N30 US Treasury Note
2.125% Due 12/31/2022

500,000.00 01/25/2018
2.46%

492,226.56
498,428.04

101.66
0.46%

508,301.00
29.35

1.43%
9,872.96

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.00
0.99

91282CDM0 US Treasury Note
0.5% Due 11/30/2023

550,000.00 12/23/2021
0.68%

548,109.38
548,122.83

99.63
0.70%

547,958.95
241.76

1.54%
(163.88)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.92
1.90

91282CBR1 US Treasury Note
0.25% Due 3/15/2024

350,000.00 03/30/2021
0.33%

349,152.34
349,368.96

98.82
0.79%

345,871.05
261.05

0.97%
(3,497.91)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.21
2.19

91282CCC3 US Treasury Note
0.25% Due 5/15/2024

700,000.00 12/21/2021
0.80%

690,839.84
690,944.53

98.66
0.82%

690,593.40
227.21

1.94%
(351.13)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.37
2.36

912828XX3 US Treasury Note
2% Due 6/30/2024

550,000.00 12/12/2019
1.74%

556,294.92
553,452.54

102.81
0.86%

565,468.75
30.39

1.59%
12,016.21

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.50
2.44

912828D56 US Treasury Note
2.375% Due 8/15/2024

500,000.00 08/29/2019
1.45%

522,167.97
511,707.92

103.86
0.89%

519,277.50
4,485.39

1.47%
7,569.58

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.62
2.53

9128283D0 US Treasury Note
2.25% Due 10/31/2024

500,000.00 11/07/2019
1.77%

511,308.59
506,428.30

103.68
0.93%

518,398.50
1,926.80

1.46%
11,970.20

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.84
2.74

91282CDN8 US Treasury Note
1% Due 12/15/2024

550,000.00 12/15/2021
0.99%

550,171.88
550,169.37

100.13
0.95%

550,730.40
256.87

1.55%
561.03

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.96
2.91

912828ZC7 US Treasury Note
1.125% Due 2/28/2025

450,000.00 03/18/2020
0.81%

456,943.36
454,434.22

100.38
1.00%

451,722.60
1,720.13

1.27%
(2,711.62)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.16
3.09

912828ZF0 US Treasury Note
0.5% Due 3/31/2025

565,000.00 01/25/2021
0.32%

569,259.57
568,309.90

98.37
1.01%

555,796.72
721.77

1.56%
(12,513.18)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.25
3.20

91282CAM3 US Treasury Note
0.25% Due 9/30/2025

575,000.00 02/19/2021
0.51%

568,149.41
569,424.98

96.88
1.10%

557,031.25
367.27

1.56%
(12,393.73)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.75
3.71

91282CAT8 US Treasury Note
0.25% Due 10/31/2025

575,000.00 01/11/2021
0.48%

568,800.78
570,052.65

96.69
1.13%

555,975.55
246.20

1.56%
(14,077.10)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.84
3.79

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:31 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 11
 

Page 30 of 417



Holdings Report
As of December 31, 2021

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

US TREASURY

91282CAZ4 US Treasury Note
0.375% Due 11/30/2025

565,000.00 03/26/2021
0.77%

554,869.73
556,519.53

97.02
1.15%

548,182.21
186.26

1.54%
(8,337.32)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.92
3.87

91282CCJ8 US Treasury Note
0.875% Due 6/30/2026

350,000.00 12/22/2021
1.22%

344,708.98
344,737.84

98.47
1.23%

344,640.80
8.46

0.97%
(97.04)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.50
4.39

91282CCP4 US Treasury Note
0.625% Due 7/31/2026

140,000.00 08/04/2021
0.68%

139,622.66
139,653.54

97.29
1.23%

136,210.20
366.17

0.38%
(3,443.34)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.58
4.49

91282CCW9 US Treasury Note
0.75% Due 8/31/2026

150,000.00 09/17/2021
0.86%

149,185.55
149,232.00

97.82
1.23%

146,730.45
382.25

0.41%
(2,501.55)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.67
4.55

91282CCZ2 US Treasury Note
0.875% Due 9/30/2026

850,000.00 Various
1.08%

841,591.80
841,954.27

98.28
1.25%

835,357.05
1,900.24

2.35%
(6,597.22)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.75
4.62

91282CDG3 US Treasury Note
1.125% Due 10/31/2026

280,000.00 11/15/2021
1.25%

278,293.75
278,336.19

99.40
1.25%

278,315.52
539.50

0.78%
(20.67)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.84
4.68

Total US Treasury 8,700,000.00 1.02%
8,691,697.07
8,681,277.61 0.98%

8,656,561.90
13,897.07

24.34%
(24,715.71)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.19
3.13

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 35,296,707.85 1.38%
35,448,063.25
35,395,313.14 0.98%

35,517,243.88
109,798.98

100.00%
121,930.74

Aa1 / AA
AAA

2.91
2.63

TOTAL MARKET VALUE PLUS ACCRUED 35,627,042.86

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:31 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 12
 

Page 31 of 417



MONTHLY ACCOUNT STATEMENT

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term - Account #171

DECEMBER 1, 2021 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2021

Information contained herein is confidential. We urge you to compare this statement to the one you receive from your qualified custodian. Please see Important Disclosures.

CHANDLER ASSET MANAGEMENT
chandlerasset.com

Chandler Team:
For questions about your account, please call (800) 317-4747,
or contact operations@chandlerasset.com

Custodian
Bank of New York Mellon
Lauren Dehner
(904) 645-1918

 
Page 32 of 417



ACCOUNT SUMMARY
Beg. Values

as of 11/30/21
End Values

as of 12/31/21

Market Value 29,635,006 29,577,960
Accrued Interest 117,670 118,749
Total Market Value 29,752,675 29,696,709
Income Earned 41,988 42,279
Cont/WD 0
Par 29,162,363 29,204,675
Book Value 29,145,368 29,186,567
Cost Value 29,159,871 29,201,475

TOP ISSUERS

Government of United States 25.3%
Federal Home Loan Bank 14.9%
Federal National Mortgage Assoc 13.8%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp 10.1%
Inter-American Dev Bank 2.5%
Tennessee Valley Authority 2.1%
Bank of America Corp 2.0%
Toyota ABS 1.9%

Total 72.6%

PORTFOLIO CHARACTERISTICS

Average Modified Duration 3.67

Average Coupon 1.76%

Average Purchase YTM 1.73%

Average Market YTM 1.12%

Average S&P/Moody Rating AA/Aa1

Average Final Maturity 4.02 yrs

Average Life 3.84 yrs

CREDIT QUALITY (S&P)MATURITY DISTRIBUTIONSECTOR ALLOCATION

Portfolio Summary
As of December 31, 2021

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Annualized

TOTAL RATE OF RETURN 1M 3M YTD 1YR 2YRS 3YRS 5YRS 10YRS 5/31/2006
Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term -0.19% -0.59% -1.52% -1.52% 2.21% 3.40% 2.62% 2.10% 3.58%
ICE BofA 1-10 Yr US Treasury & Agency Index -0.29% -0.51% -1.63% -1.63% 1.93% 2.98% 2.29% 1.68% 3.21%
ICE BofA 1-10 Yr AAA-A US Corp & Govt Index -0.24% -0.53% -1.52% -1.52% 2.15% 3.40% 2.60% 2.09% 3.40%

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:54 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 1
 

Page 33 of 417



Category Standard Comment 

Treasury Issues No limitation Complies

US Government & Agencies
No limitation;  Include: mortgage-backed, mortgage passthrough securities, and collateralized mortgage obligations issued 

by the federal government or federal agency/GSE issuers
Complies

Supranationals AA rating category or better by a NRSRO;  30% maximum;  5 years max maturity; Issued by IBRD, IFC or IADB only Complies

Municipal Securities 5 years max maturity Complies

Asset-Backed & Mortgage-Backed 

Securities
AA rating category or better by a NRSRO;  20% maximum;  5 years max maturity Complies 

Banker’s Acceptances 40% maximum;  180 days max maturity Complies 

Commercial Paper A-1/P-1 by a NRSRO; 25% maximum; 270 days max maturity Complies 

Corporate Medium Term Notes A rating category or better by a NRSRO;  30% maximum; 5 years max maturity Complies 

Money Market Mutual Funds Highest ratings by two NRSROs; 20% maximum Complies

Mutual Funds Highest ratings by two NRSROs; 20% maximum Complies 

Negotiable CDs 30% maximum;  5 years max maturity Complies 

Time Certificates of Deposit; 

Collateralized Bank Deposits
5 years max maturity Complies 

LAIF Maximum as law permits Complies 

Repurchase Agreements 1 year max maturity;  Not used by Investment Adviser Complies 

Prohibited

Common or preferred stocks, convertible or junk bonds, commodities, options, limited partnerships, GICs, 

Reverse repurchase agreements, uninsured deposits, Inverse floaters; ranges notes, mortgage derived, interest only strips, 

Zero interest accrual securities if held to maturity; Investments denominated in Non-USD; Collateralized Mortgage 

Obligations (CMOs) with collateral not specifically GNMA, FHLMC, or FNMA; Purchasing or selling securities on margin;  

Securities lending or any other form of borrowing or leverage

Complies 

Max Per Issuer
5%  per issuer or institution unless explicitly stated in the policy, excluding U.S. government, agency, investment pool, and 

money market funds
Complies

Maximum Maturity 10 years Complies

Northern California Cities Self-Insurance Fund - Long Term

The portfolio complies with state law and with the Client's investment policy.

Statement of Compliance
As of December 31, 2021

 
Page 34 of 417



BOOK VALUE RECONCILIATION

BEGINNING BOOK VALUE $29,145,367.54

Acquisition
+ Security Purchases $39,700.00
+ Money Market Fund Purchases $107,397.13
+ Money Market Contributions $0.00
+ Security Contributions $0.00
+ Security Transfers $0.00
   Total Acquisitions $147,097.13
Dispositions

- Security Sales $0.00
- Money Market Fund Sales $39,797.22
- MMF Withdrawals $0.00
- Security Withdrawals $0.00
- Security Transfers $0.00
- Other Dispositions $0.00
- Maturites $0.00
- Calls $0.00
- Principal Paydowns $65,287.70
   Total Dispositions $105,084.92
Amortization/Accretion
+/- Net Accretion ($812.45)

($812.45)
Gain/Loss on Dispositions
+/- Realized Gain/Loss $0.00

$0.00
ENDING BOOK VALUE $29,186,567.30

CASH TRANSACTION SUMMARY

BEGINNING BALANCE $45,113.18

Acquisition
          Contributions $0.00
          Security Sale Proceeds $0.00
          Accrued Interest Received $0.00
          Interest Received $42,108.59
          Dividend Received $0.84
          Principal on Maturities $0.00
          Interest on Maturities $0.00
          Calls/Redemption (Principal) $0.00
          Interest from Calls/Redemption $0.00
          Principal Paydown $65,287.70
Total Acquisitions $107,397.13
Dispositions
          Withdrawals $0.00
          Security Purchase $39,700.00
          Accrued Interest Paid $97.22
Total Dispositions $39,797.22
ENDING BOOK VALUE $112,713.09

Reconciliation Summary
As of December 31, 2021

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Long Term Account
Account #171

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:54 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 3
 

Page 35 of 417



Holdings Report
As of December 31, 2021

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

ABS

58770FAC6 Mercedes Benz Auto Lease Trust 2020-
A A3
1.84% Due 12/15/2022

44,606.19 01/21/2020
1.85%

44,600.31
44,604.24

100.27
0.51%

44,725.02
36.48

0.15%
120.78

Aaa / AAA
NR

0.96
0.20

43815NAC8 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2019-3 
A3
1.78% Due 8/15/2023

107,477.56 08/20/2019
1.79%

107,476.66
107,477.35

100.57
0.35%

108,090.93
85.03

0.36%
613.58

Aaa / AAA
NR

1.62
0.40

92348AAA3 Verizon Owner Trust 2019-C A1A
1.94% Due 4/22/2024

109,674.51 10/01/2019
1.95%

109,666.05
109,670.21

100.69
0.48%

110,426.00
65.01

0.37%
755.79

NR / AAA
AAA

2.31
0.47

89232HAC9 Toyota Auto Receivable Own 2020-A A3
1.66% Due 5/15/2024

214,202.78 06/17/2020
0.68%

219,139.48
217,197.34

100.66
0.50%

215,606.02
158.03

0.73%
(1,591.32)

Aaa / AAA
NR

2.37
0.56

47789KAC7 John Deere Owner Trust 2020-A A3
1.1% Due 8/15/2024

130,506.83 03/04/2020
1.11%

130,498.86
130,502.12

100.35
0.58%

130,965.95
63.80

0.44%
463.83

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.62
0.68

43813KAC6 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2020-3 
A3
0.37% Due 10/18/2024

155,000.00 09/22/2020
0.38%

154,977.23
154,986.36

99.72
0.65%

154,566.78
20.71

0.52%
(419.58)

NR / AAA
AAA

2.80
0.99

36262XAC8 GM Financial Auto Lease Trust 2021-3 
A2
0.39% Due 10/21/2024

205,000.00 08/10/2021
0.39%

204,997.21
204,997.64

99.04
0.91%

203,035.08
24.43

0.68%
(1,962.56)

NR / AAA
AAA

2.81
1.84

47787NAC3 John Deere Owner Trust 2020-B A3
0.51% Due 11/15/2024

70,000.00 07/14/2020
0.52%

69,989.33
69,993.76

99.85
0.69%

69,892.83
15.87

0.24%
(100.93)

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.88
0.83

09690AAC7 BMW Vehicle Lease Trust 2021-2 A3
0.33% Due 12/26/2024

90,000.00 09/08/2021
0.34%

89,990.71
89,991.92

99.24
0.80%

89,313.03
4.95

0.30%
(678.89)

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.99
1.64

92290BAA9 Verizon Owner Trust 2020-B A
0.47% Due 2/20/2025

215,000.00 08/04/2020
0.48%

214,954.85
214,968.70

99.73
0.71%

214,429.18
30.88

0.72%
(539.52)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.14
1.11

43813GAC5 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2021-1 
A3
0.27% Due 4/21/2025

75,000.00 02/17/2021
0.27%

74,998.63
74,999.01

99.47
0.71%

74,599.88
5.63

0.25%
(399.13)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.31
1.21

44891RAC4 Hyundai Auto Receivables Trust 2020-C 
A3
0.38% Due 5/15/2025

155,000.00 10/20/2020
0.39%

154,964.30
154,977.04

99.57
0.73%

154,334.90
26.18

0.52%
(642.14)

NR / AAA
AAA

3.37
1.21

89240BAC2 Toyota Auto Receivables Owners 2021-
A A3
0.26% Due 5/15/2025

270,000.00 02/02/2021
0.27%

269,949.89
269,964.38

99.50
0.67%

268,643.25
31.20

0.90%
(1,321.13)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.37
1.23

47788UAC6 John Deere Owner Trust 2021-A A3
0.36% Due 9/15/2025

80,000.00 03/02/2021
0.37%

79,984.62
79,988.09

99.19
0.84%

79,352.80
12.80

0.27%
(635.29)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.71
1.70

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:54 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 4
 

Page 36 of 417



Holdings Report
As of December 31, 2021

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

ABS

44933LAC7 Hyundai Auto Receivables Trust 2021-A 
A3
0.38% Due 9/15/2025

125,000.00 04/20/2021
0.38%

124,986.85
124,989.78

99.25
0.84%

124,066.88
21.11

0.42%
(922.90)

NR / AAA
AAA

3.71
1.62

43815GAC3 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2021-4 
A3
0.88% Due 1/21/2026

100,000.00 11/16/2021
0.89%

99,978.92
99,979.60

99.76
0.99%

99,758.70
24.44

0.34%
(220.90)

Aaa / NR
AAA

4.06
2.13

47789QAC4 John Deere Owner Trust 2021-B A3
0.52% Due 3/16/2026

125,000.00 07/13/2021
0.52%

124,988.85
124,990.22

98.86
1.02%

123,575.63
28.89

0.42%
(1,414.59)

Aaa / NR
AAA

4.21
2.30

89238JAC9 Toyota Auto Receivables Trust 2021-D 
A3
0.71% Due 4/15/2026

90,000.00 11/09/2021
0.71%

89,998.08
89,998.16

99.39
1.37%

89,446.77
28.40

0.30%
(551.39)

NR / AAA
AAA

4.29
0.94

44935FAD6 Hyundai Auto Receivables Trust 2021-C 
A3
0.74% Due 5/15/2026

70,000.00 11/09/2021
0.75%

69,984.38
69,984.99

99.31
1.05%

69,520.08
23.02

0.23%
(464.91)

NR / AAA
AAA

4.37
2.19

362554AC1 GM Financial Securitized Term 2021-4 
A3
0.68% Due 9/16/2026

75,000.00 10/13/2021
0.68%

74,998.09
74,998.20

99.25
1.06%

74,436.68
21.25

0.25%
(561.52)

Aaa / AAA
NR

4.71
1.98

Total ABS 2,506,467.87 0.65%
2,511,123.30
2,509,259.11 0.75%

2,498,786.39
728.11

8.42%
(10,472.72)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

3.15
1.24

AGENCY

880591EN8 Tennessee Valley Authority Note
1.875% Due 8/15/2022

30,000.00 08/29/2012
1.94%

29,818.80
29,988.74

101.00
0.27%

30,298.50
212.50

0.10%
309.76

Aaa / AA+
AAA

0.62
0.62

313383YJ4 FHLB Note
3.375% Due 9/8/2023

560,000.00 11/29/2018
3.00%

569,307.20
563,283.95

104.57
0.65%

585,588.64
5,932.50

1.99%
22,304.69

Aaa / AA+
NR

1.69
1.63

3135G06H1 FNMA Note
0.25% Due 11/27/2023

280,000.00 11/23/2020
0.29%

279,680.80
279,797.77

99.13
0.71%

277,576.32
66.11

0.93%
(2,221.45)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.91
1.90

880591ER9 Tennessee Valley Authority Note
2.875% Due 9/15/2024

550,000.00 02/27/2019
2.65%

556,352.50
553,097.86

105.01
0.99%

577,552.25
4,655.90

1.96%
24,454.39

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.71
2.59

3135G0W66 FNMA Note
1.625% Due 10/15/2024

275,000.00 10/17/2019
1.66%

274,529.75
274,737.55

101.88
0.94%

280,176.60
943.40

0.95%
5,439.05

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.79
2.72

3135G0X24 FNMA Note
1.625% Due 1/7/2025

215,000.00 01/08/2020
1.69%

214,314.15
214,585.63

101.83
1.01%

218,928.91
1,688.65

0.74%
4,343.28

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.02
2.92

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:54 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 5
 

Page 37 of 417



Holdings Report
As of December 31, 2021

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

AGENCY

3137EAEP0 FHLMC Note
1.5% Due 2/12/2025

425,000.00 02/13/2020
1.52%

424,672.75
424,795.94

101.46
1.02%

431,222.85
2,461.46

1.46%
6,426.91

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.12
3.02

3130AEBV1 FHLB Note
3.125% Due 6/13/2025

400,000.00 08/28/2018
3.07%

401,372.00
400,696.51

106.87
1.09%

427,491.20
625.00

1.44%
26,794.69

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.45
3.28

3135G04Z3 FNMA Note
0.5% Due 6/17/2025

475,000.00 06/17/2020
0.54%

474,016.75
474,319.16

98.03
1.08%

465,626.83
92.36

1.57%
(8,692.33)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.46
3.42

3137EAEU9 FHLMC Note
0.375% Due 7/21/2025

340,000.00 07/21/2020
0.48%

338,306.80
338,796.01

97.48
1.10%

331,430.30
566.67

1.12%
(7,365.71)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.56
3.51

3137EAEX3 FHLMC Note
0.375% Due 9/23/2025

370,000.00 09/23/2020
0.44%

368,886.30
369,169.00

97.32
1.11%

360,065.50
377.71

1.21%
(9,103.50)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.73
3.68

3135G06G3 FNMA Note
0.5% Due 11/7/2025

530,000.00 11/09/2020
0.57%

528,102.60
528,535.01

97.59
1.14%

517,235.48
397.50

1.74%
(11,299.53)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.85
3.79

3135G0K36 FNMA Note
2.125% Due 4/24/2026

565,000.00 Various
2.18%

562,430.10
563,818.46

103.73
1.24%

586,054.16
2,234.50

1.98%
22,235.70

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.32
4.11

3130AGFP5 FHLB Note
2.5% Due 6/12/2026

500,000.00 06/17/2019
2.19%

510,085.00
506,416.29

105.53
1.22%

527,666.00
659.72

1.78%
21,249.71

Aaa / AA+
NR

4.45
4.21

3130A2VE3 FHLB Note
3% Due 9/11/2026

575,000.00 Various
2.81%

583,719.50
579,385.25

107.92
1.26%

620,561.28
5,270.83

2.11%
41,176.03

Aaa / AA+
NR

4.70
4.36

3135G0Q22 FNMA Note
1.875% Due 9/24/2026

575,000.00 Various
2.78%

531,510.00
553,643.14

102.78
1.27%

590,990.75
2,904.95

2.00%
37,347.61

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.73
4.50

3130ACKB9 FHLB Note
2.625% Due 9/10/2027

600,000.00 Various
2.75%

593,685.00
596,254.15

106.70
1.40%

640,198.20
4,856.26

2.17%
43,944.05

Aaa / AA+
NR

5.70
5.26

3135G05Y5 FNMA Note
0.75% Due 10/8/2027

600,000.00 Various
0.79%

598,402.20
598,647.54

96.51
1.38%

579,049.80
1,037.51

1.95%
(19,597.74)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.77
5.61

3130AEB25 FHLB Note
3.25% Due 6/9/2028

500,000.00 01/29/2019
3.13%

504,785.00
503,291.26

110.61
1.51%

553,033.00
993.06

1.87%
49,741.74

Aaa / AA+
NR

6.44
5.84

3130AG3X1 FHLB Note
2.875% Due 3/9/2029

380,000.00 Various
2.66%

386,815.50
385,010.44

109.21
1.52%

414,979.00
3,398.89

1.41%
29,968.56

Aaa / AA+
NR

7.19
6.48

3130AGDY8 FHLB Note
2.75% Due 6/8/2029

510,000.00 Various
2.45%

523,261.05
519,944.36

108.25
1.57%

552,087.76
896.04

1.86%
32,143.40

Aaa / AA+
NR

7.44
6.74

3130AGUW3 FHLB Note
2.125% Due 9/14/2029

70,000.00 03/05/2020
1.21%

75,742.80
74,643.43

104.44
1.51%

73,106.88
442.12

0.25%
(1,536.55)

Aaa / AA+
NR

7.71
7.07

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:54 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 6
 

Page 38 of 417



Holdings Report
As of December 31, 2021

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

AGENCY

3135G05Q2 FNMA Note
0.875% Due 8/5/2030

610,000.00 Various
0.99%

603,622.55
604,428.06

94.37
1.58%

575,674.08
2,164.66

1.95%
(28,753.98)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

8.60
8.19

Total Agency 9,935,000.00 1.92%
9,933,419.10
9,937,285.51 1.21%

10,216,594.29
42,878.30

34.55%
279,308.78

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.62
4.37

CMO

3137B4WB8 FHLMC K033 A2
3.06% Due 7/25/2023

400,000.00 10/19/2018
3.39%

394,906.25
398,326.55

102.99
0.83%

411,943.60
204.00

1.39%
13,617.05

Aaa / NR
NR

1.56
1.41

3137B7YY9 FHLMC K037 A2
3.49% Due 1/25/2024

400,000.00 06/26/2019
2.08%

422,515.63
410,153.58

104.47
0.96%

417,860.00
1,163.33

1.41%
7,706.42

NR / AAA
NR

2.07
1.81

3137BYPQ7 FHLMC K726 A2
2.905% Due 4/25/2024

391,494.04 04/22/2019
2.72%

394,292.61
392,788.40

103.54
1.14%

405,361.93
947.74

1.37%
12,573.53

NR / AAA
NR

2.32
2.07

3137FARE0 FHMS K727 A2
2.946% Due 7/25/2024

330,000.00 07/23/2019
2.15%

340,248.05
335,186.58

103.92
1.21%

342,952.17
810.15

1.16%
7,765.59

NR / AAA
NR

2.57
2.32

3137BEVH4 FHLMC K040 A2
3.241% Due 9/25/2024

275,000.00 02/06/2020
1.80%

291,457.03
284,729.93

105.13
1.17%

289,119.33
742.73

0.98%
4,389.40

NR / NR
AAA

2.74
2.50

Total CMO 1,796,494.04 2.47%
1,843,419.57
1,821,185.04 1.05%

1,867,237.03
3,867.95

6.30%
46,051.99

Aaa / AAA
AAA

2.21
1.98

CORPORATE

037833DC1 Apple Inc Callable Note Cont 8/12/2022
2.1% Due 9/12/2022

100,000.00 09/12/2017
2.23%

99,393.00
99,915.47

101.16
0.21%

101,155.40
635.83

0.34%
1,239.93

Aaa / AA+
NR

0.70
0.61

06051GEU9 Bank of America Corp Note
3.3% Due 1/11/2023

90,000.00 03/09/2018
3.44%

89,451.90
89,883.55

102.74
0.62%

92,469.15
1,402.50

0.32%
2,585.60

A2 / A-
AA-

1.03
1.00

808513AT2 Charles Schwab Corp Callable Note 
Cont 12/25/2022
2.65% Due 1/25/2023

350,000.00 04/13/2018
3.24%

340,903.50
347,971.02

101.85
0.75%

356,492.15
4,019.17

1.21%
8,521.13

A2 / A
A

1.07
0.97

24422ERT8 John Deere Capital Corp Note
2.8% Due 1/27/2023

350,000.00 05/22/2018
3.47%

339,993.50
347,710.63

102.23
0.71%

357,799.40
4,192.22

1.22%
10,088.77

A2 / A
A

1.07
1.05

084670BR8 Berkshire Hathaway Callable Note Cont 
1/15/2023
2.75% Due 3/15/2023

300,000.00 07/13/2018
3.23%

293,820.00
298,409.61

102.11
0.71%

306,330.60
2,429.17

1.04%
7,920.99

Aa2 / AA
A+

1.20
1.02

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:54 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 7
 

Page 39 of 417



Holdings Report
As of December 31, 2021

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

CORPORATE

06406RAG2 Bank of NY Mellon Corp Note
3.5% Due 4/28/2023

360,000.00 03/14/2019
3.01%

366,807.60
362,184.60

103.56
0.79%

372,816.36
2,205.00

1.26%
10,631.76

A1 / A
AA-

1.32
1.29

931142EK5 Wal-Mart Stores Callable Note Cont 
5/26/2023
3.4% Due 6/26/2023

115,000.00 06/20/2018
3.41%

114,968.95
114,990.80

104.03
0.51%

119,638.64
54.31

0.40%
4,647.84

Aa2 / AA
AA

1.48
1.38

89114QC48 Toronto Dominion Bank Note
3.5% Due 7/19/2023

325,000.00 07/27/2018
3.56%

324,057.50
324,706.96

104.22
0.76%

338,702.00
5,118.75

1.16%
13,995.04

Aa2 / AA-
AA

1.55
1.49

02665WCQ2 American Honda Finance Note
3.625% Due 10/10/2023

370,000.00 10/03/2018
3.64%

369,696.60
369,892.50

104.84
0.87%

387,920.95
3,017.81

1.32%
18,028.45

A3 / A-
NR

1.78
1.72

24422EVN6 John Deere Capital Corp Note
0.45% Due 1/17/2024

205,000.00 03/01/2021
0.47%

204,854.45
204,896.49

99.05
0.92%

203,050.66
420.25

0.69%
(1,845.83)

A2 / A
A

2.05
2.02

69371RR24 Paccar Financial Corp Note
0.35% Due 2/2/2024

120,000.00 01/28/2021
0.39%

119,860.80
119,903.13

98.68
0.99%

118,414.20
173.83

0.40%
(1,488.93)

A1 / A+
NR

2.09
2.07

06051GJY6 Bank of America Corp Callable Note 
Cont 6/14/2023
0.523% Due 6/14/2024

190,000.00 06/07/2021
0.50%

190,012.80
190,010.45

99.35
0.77%

188,755.88
46.93

0.64%
(1,254.57)

A2 / A-
AA-

2.45
2.43

79466LAG9 Salesforce.com Inc Callable Note Cont 
7/15/2022
0.625% Due 7/15/2024

100,000.00 Various
0.75%

99,669.40
99,683.63

99.09
0.99%

99,089.10
293.40

0.33%
(594.53)

A2 / A+
NR

2.54
2.50

46647PAU0 JP Morgan Chase & Co Callable Note 1X 
7/23/2023
3.797% Due 7/23/2024

330,000.00 10/09/2019
1.96%

349,430.40
340,388.09

104.23
1.06%

343,950.42
5,499.32

1.18%
3,562.33

A2 / A-
AA-

2.56
1.50

69371RQ25 Paccar Financial Corp Note
2.15% Due 8/15/2024

145,000.00 08/08/2019
2.20%

144,679.55
144,832.15

102.43
1.20%

148,530.61
1,177.72

0.50%
3,698.46

A1 / A+
NR

2.62
2.53

94974BGA2 Wells Fargo Corp Note
3.3% Due 9/9/2024

350,000.00 09/11/2019
2.37%

365,197.00
358,186.21

105.17
1.33%

368,102.00
3,593.33

1.25%
9,915.79

A1 / BBB+
A+

2.69
2.56

78015K7C2 Royal Bank of Canada Note
2.25% Due 11/1/2024

355,000.00 12/05/2019
2.26%

354,815.40
354,893.20

102.74
1.26%

364,729.84
1,331.25

1.23%
9,836.64

A2 / A
AA-

2.84
2.74

90331HPL1 US Bank NA Callable Note Cont 
12/21/2024
2.05% Due 1/21/2025

430,000.00 01/16/2020
2.10%

429,084.10
429,440.53

102.31
1.25%

439,941.17
3,917.78

1.49%
10,500.64

A1 / AA-
AA-

3.06
2.86

06367WB85 Bank of Montreal Note
1.85% Due 5/1/2025

264,000.00 07/23/2021
0.85%

273,720.48
272,602.70

101.52
1.38%

268,011.74
814.00

0.91%
(4,590.96)

A2 / A-
AA-

3.33
3.22

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:54 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 8
 

Page 40 of 417



Holdings Report
As of December 31, 2021

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

CORPORATE

037833DT4 Apple Inc Callable Note Cont 4/11/2025
1.125% Due 5/11/2025

100,000.00 05/04/2020
1.16%

99,821.00
99,879.82

99.73
1.21%

99,729.00
156.25

0.34%
(150.82)

Aaa / AA+
NR

3.36
3.28

46647PCH7 JP Morgan Chase & Co Callable Note 
Cont 6/1/2024
0.824% Due 6/1/2025

205,000.00 05/24/2021
0.74%

205,267.30
205,228.15

98.85
1.10%

202,645.37
140.77

0.68%
(2,582.78)

A2 / A-
AA-

3.42
3.36

06051GHY8 Bank of America Corp Callable Note 
Cont 2/13/2025
2.015% Due 2/13/2026

300,000.00 Various
1.05%

309,823.50
308,650.96

101.33
1.40%

303,981.90
2,317.26

1.03%
(4,669.06)

A2 / A-
AA-

4.12
3.92

78016EZQ3 Royal Bank of Canada Note
1.2% Due 4/27/2026

150,000.00 06/09/2021
1.13%

150,517.50
150,458.22

98.28
1.61%

147,421.50
320.00

0.50%
(3,036.72)

A2 / A
AA-

4.32
4.18

023135BX3 Amazon.com Inc Callable Note Cont 
4/12/2026
1% Due 5/12/2026

465,000.00 05/10/2021
1.09%

462,991.20
463,248.63

99.07
1.22%

460,690.38
632.92

1.55%
(2,558.25)

A1 / AA
AA-

4.36
4.25

91324PEC2 United Health Group Inc Callable Note 
Cont 4/15/2026
1.15% Due 5/15/2026

75,000.00 06/16/2021
1.06%

75,299.25
75,265.79

98.97
1.39%

74,230.13
110.21

0.25%
(1,035.66)

A3 / A+
A

4.37
4.24

89236TJK2 Toyota Motor Credit Corp Note
1.125% Due 6/18/2026

315,000.00 06/15/2021
1.13%

314,861.40
314,876.35

98.54
1.46%

310,395.33
127.97

1.05%
(4,481.02)

A1 / A+
A+

4.47
4.33

931142ER0 Wal-Mart Stores Callable Note Cont 
08/17/2026
1.05% Due 9/17/2026

75,000.00 09/08/2021
1.09%

74,858.25
74,866.48

98.94
1.28%

74,202.15
227.50

0.25%
(664.33)

Aa2 / AA
AA

4.72
4.56

Total Corporate 6,534,000.00 2.08%
6,563,856.33
6,562,976.12 1.05%

6,649,196.03
44,375.45

22.54%
86,219.91

A1 / A+
AA-

2.57
2.42

MONEY MARKET FUND

26200X845 Dreyfus Funds Inst'l Reserve Treasury 
#6541

112,713.09 Various
0.01%

112,713.09
112,713.09

1.00
0.01%

112,713.09
0.00

0.38%
0.00

Aaa / AAA
AAA

0.00
0.00

Total Money Market Fund 112,713.09 0.01%
112,713.09
112,713.09 0.01%

112,713.09
0.00

0.38%
0.00

Aaa / AAA
AAA

0.00
0.00

SUPRANATIONAL

4581X0CW6 Inter-American Dev Bank Note
2.125% Due 1/18/2022

130,000.00 01/10/2017
2.15%

129,840.10
129,998.51

100.07
0.55%

130,096.20
1,250.80

0.44%
97.69

Aaa / NR
AAA

0.05
0.05

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:54 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 9
 

Page 41 of 417



Holdings Report
As of December 31, 2021

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

SUPRANATIONAL

4581X0CZ9 Inter-American Dev Bank Note
1.75% Due 9/14/2022

300,000.00 09/26/2017
2.01%

296,295.00
299,476.56

100.95
0.40%

302,838.60
1,560.42

1.03%
3,362.04

Aaa / AAA
AAA

0.70
0.70

4581X0DV7 Inter-American Dev Bank Note
0.875% Due 4/20/2026

305,000.00 04/13/2021
0.97%

303,603.10
303,798.94

98.44
1.25%

300,227.66
526.34

1.01%
(3,571.28)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

4.30
4.20

Total Supranational 735,000.00 1.60%
729,738.20
733,274.01 0.77%

733,162.46
3,337.56

2.48%
(111.55)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

2.06
2.01

US TREASURY

912828B66 US Treasury Note
2.75% Due 2/15/2024

400,000.00 Various
2.04%

420,077.56
405,518.97

104.17
0.77%

416,672.00
4,154.89

1.42%
11,153.03

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.13
2.05

912828J27 US Treasury Note
2% Due 2/15/2025

500,000.00 08/31/2015
2.15%

493,634.81
497,898.53

103.03
1.01%

515,156.00
3,777.17

1.75%
17,257.47

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.13
3.01

912828ZF0 US Treasury Note
0.5% Due 3/31/2025

325,000.00 03/30/2021
0.64%

323,146.48
323,496.63

98.37
1.01%

319,706.08
415.18

1.08%
(3,790.55)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.25
3.20

912828M56 US Treasury Note
2.25% Due 11/15/2025

350,000.00 05/29/2019
2.13%

352,419.92
351,449.29

104.20
1.14%

364,697.20
1,022.44

1.23%
13,247.91

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.88
3.70

912828R36 US Treasury Note
1.625% Due 5/15/2026

500,000.00 Various
2.23%

475,523.49
487,991.69

101.73
1.22%

508,652.50
1,054.90

1.72%
20,660.81

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.37
4.21

91282CCP4 US Treasury Note
0.625% Due 7/31/2026

150,000.00 07/29/2021
0.72%

149,285.16
149,344.73

97.29
1.23%

145,939.50
392.32

0.49%
(3,405.23)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.58
4.49

912828YG9 US Treasury Note
1.625% Due 9/30/2026

400,000.00 12/18/2019
1.86%

394,031.25
395,824.04

101.76
1.24%

407,046.80
1,660.71

1.38%
11,222.76

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.75
4.54

91282CCZ2 US Treasury Note
0.875% Due 9/30/2026

600,000.00 Various
1.13%

592,710.94
593,018.66

98.28
1.25%

589,663.80
1,341.34

1.99%
(3,354.86)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.75
4.62

912828ZB9 US Treasury Note
1.125% Due 2/28/2027

545,000.00 03/24/2020
0.75%

558,901.76
555,348.05

99.30
1.27%

541,168.11
2,083.27

1.83%
(14,179.94)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.16
4.98

91282CAH4 US Treasury Note
0.5% Due 8/31/2027

150,000.00 08/06/2021
0.94%

146,121.09
146,375.24

95.49
1.33%

143,238.30
254.83

0.48%
(3,136.94)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.67
5.54

91282CAL5 US Treasury Note
0.375% Due 9/30/2027

300,000.00 10/25/2021
1.33%

283,792.97
284,294.53

94.73
1.33%

284,179.80
287.43

0.96%
(114.73)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.75
5.65

9128283F5 US Treasury Note
2.25% Due 11/15/2027

300,000.00 11/07/2019
1.89%

307,957.03
305,824.47

105.07
1.35%

315,210.90
876.38

1.06%
9,386.43

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.88
5.49

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:54 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 10
 

Page 42 of 417



Holdings Report
As of December 31, 2021

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

US TREASURY

91282CBB6 US Treasury Note
0.625% Due 12/31/2027

625,000.00 03/29/2021
1.30%

597,875.98
600,921.52

95.76
1.36%

598,510.63
10.79

2.02%
(2,410.89)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

6.00
5.86

91282CBJ9 US Treasury Note
0.75% Due 1/31/2028

550,000.00 03/12/2021
1.28%

530,857.42
533,081.71

96.38
1.37%

530,083.95
1,726.22

1.79%
(2,997.76)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

6.09
5.90

91282CCV1 US Treasury Note
1.125% Due 8/31/2028

300,000.00 09/03/2021
1.10%

300,457.03
300,436.24

98.15
1.42%

294,445.20
1,146.75

1.00%
(5,991.04)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

6.67
6.37

912828YB0 US Treasury Note
1.625% Due 8/15/2029

350,000.00 05/28/2020
0.66%

380,009.77
374,819.37

101.54
1.41%

355,400.50
2,148.27

1.20%
(19,418.87)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

7.63
7.11

912828ZQ6 US Treasury Note
0.625% Due 5/15/2030

615,000.00 Various
0.90%

599,593.95
601,274.95

93.60
1.44%

575,625.86
499.05

1.94%
(25,649.09)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

8.38
8.10

91282CAV3 US Treasury Note
0.875% Due 11/15/2030

625,000.00 Various
1.30%

600,808.59
602,955.80

95.18
1.46%

594,873.13
710.03

2.01%
(8,082.67)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

8.88
8.47

Total US Treasury 7,585,000.00 1.38%
7,507,205.20
7,509,874.42 1.26%

7,500,270.26
23,561.97

25.34%
(9,604.16)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.50
5.29

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 29,204,675.00 1.73%
29,201,474.79
29,186,567.30 1.12%

29,577,959.55
118,749.34

100.00%
391,392.25

Aa1 / AA
AAA

4.02
3.67

TOTAL MARKET VALUE PLUS ACCRUED 29,696,708.89

Execution Time: 1/4/2022 3:29:54 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 11
 

Page 43 of 417



MONTHLY ACCOUNT STATEMENT

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term - Account #170

JANUARY 1, 2022 THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2022

Information contained herein is confidential. We urge you to compare this statement to the one you receive from your qualified custodian. Please see Important Disclosures.

CHANDLER ASSET MANAGEMENT
chandlerasset.com

Chandler Team:
For questions about your account, please call (800) 317-4747,
or contact operations@chandlerasset.com

Custodian
Bank of New York Mellon
Lauren Dehner
(904) 645-1918

 
Page 44 of 417



ACCOUNT SUMMARY
Beg. Values

as of 12/31/21
End Values

as of 1/31/22

Market Value 35,517,244 35,172,611
Accrued Interest 109,799 109,255
Total Market Value 35,627,043 35,281,867
Income Earned 36,462 40,838
Cont/WD -1,412
Par 35,296,708 35,339,852
Book Value 35,395,313 35,435,282
Cost Value 35,448,063 35,497,918

TOP ISSUERS

Government of United States 24.3%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp 15.8%
Federal National Mortgage Assoc 12.5%
Federal Home Loan Bank 7.1%
Intl Bank Recon and Development 2.5%
Toyota ABS 2.2%
Bank of America Corp 1.9%
Dreyfus Institutional Reserves 1.8%

Total 68.1%

PORTFOLIO CHARACTERISTICS

Average Modified Duration 2.61

Average Coupon 1.45%

Average Purchase YTM 1.33%

Average Market YTM 1.37%

Average S&P/Moody Rating AA/Aa1

Average Final Maturity 2.88 yrs

Average Life 2.68 yrs

CREDIT QUALITY (S&P)MATURITY DISTRIBUTIONSECTOR ALLOCATION

Portfolio Summary
As of January 31, 2022

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Annualized

TOTAL RATE OF RETURN 1M 3M YTD 1YR 2YRS 3YRS 5YRS 10YRS 12/31/1997
Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term -0.96% -1.15% -0.96% -1.84% 0.88% 2.22% 1.91% 1.50% 3.61%
ICE BofA 1-5 Yr US Treasury & Agency Index -0.90% -1.12% -0.90% -1.93% 0.64% 1.99% 1.66% 1.23% 3.30%
ICE BofA 1-5 Yr AAA-A US Corp & Govt Index -0.93% -1.15% -0.93% -1.92% 0.71% 2.09% 1.77% 1.37% 3.40%

Execution Time: 2/1/2022 6:47:11 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 1
 

Page 45 of 417



Category Standard Comment 

Treasury Issues No limitation Complies

US Government & Agencies
No limitation;  Include: mortgage-backed, mortgage passthrough securities, and collateralized mortgage obligations issued 

by the federal government or federal agency/GSE issuers
Complies

Supranationals AA rating category or better by a NRSRO;  30% maximum;  5 years max maturity; Issued by IBRD, IFC or IADB only Complies

Municipal Securities 5 years max maturity Complies

Asset-Backed & Mortgage-Backed 

Securities
AA rating category or better by a NRSRO;  20% maximum;  5 years max maturity Complies 

Banker’s Acceptances 40% maximum;  180 days max maturity Complies 

Commercial Paper A-1/P-1 by a  NRSRO; 25% maximum; 270 days max maturity Complies 

Corporate Medium Term Notes A rating category or better by a NRSRO;  30% maximum; 5 years max maturity Complies 

Money Market Mutual Funds Highest ratings by two NRSROs; 20% maximum Complies

Mutual Funds Highest ratings by two NRSROs; 20% maximum Complies 

Negotiable CDs 30% maximum;  5 years max maturity Complies 

Time Certificates of Deposit; 

Collateralized Bank Deposits
5 years max maturity Complies 

LAIF Maximum as law permits Complies 

Repurchase Agreements 1 year max maturity;  Not used by Investment Adviser Complies 

Prohibited

Common or preferred stocks, convertible or junk bonds, commodities, options, limited partnerships, GICs, 

Reverse repurchase agreements, uninsured deposits, Inverse floaters; ranges notes, mortgage derived, interest only strips, 

Zero interest accrual securities if held to maturity; Investments denominated in Non-USD; Collateralized Mortgage 

Obligations (CMOs) with collateral not specifically GNMA, FHLMC, or FNMA; Purchasing or selling securities on margin; 

Securities lending or any other form of borrowing or leverage

Complies 

Max Per Issuer
5%  per issuer or institution unless explicitly stated in the policy, excluding U.S. government, agency, investment pool, and 

money market funds
Complies

Maximum Maturity 10 years Complies

Northern California Cities Self-Insurance Fund - Short Term

The portfolio complies with state law and with the Client's investment policy.

Statement of Compliance
As of January 31, 2022

 
Page 46 of 417



BOOK VALUE RECONCILIATION

BEGINNING BOOK VALUE $35,395,313.14

Acquisition
+ Security Purchases $704,212.39
+ Money Market Fund Purchases $1,082,669.15
+ Money Market Contributions $0.00
+ Security Contributions $0.00
+ Security Transfers $0.00
   Total Acquisitions $1,786,881.54
Dispositions

- Security Sales $0.00
- Money Market Fund Sales $704,212.39
- MMF Withdrawals $1,412.50
- Security Withdrawals $0.00
- Security Transfers $0.00
- Other Dispositions $0.00
- Maturites $615,000.00
- Calls $325,000.00
- Principal Paydowns $98,899.71
   Total Dispositions $1,744,524.60
Amortization/Accretion
+/- Net Accretion ($2,388.21)

($2,388.21)
Gain/Loss on Dispositions
+/- Realized Gain/Loss $0.00

$0.00
ENDING BOOK VALUE $35,435,281.87

CASH TRANSACTION SUMMARY

BEGINNING BALANCE $253,166.48

Acquisition
          Contributions $0.00
          Security Sale Proceeds $0.00
          Accrued Interest Received $0.00
          Interest Received $43,754.84
          Dividend Received $14.60
          Principal on Maturities $615,000.00
          Interest on Maturities $0.00
          Calls/Redemption (Principal) $325,000.00
          Interest from Calls/Redemption $0.00
          Principal Paydown $98,899.71
Total Acquisitions $1,082,669.15
Dispositions
          Withdrawals $1,412.50
          Security Purchase $704,212.39
          Accrued Interest Paid $0.00
Total Dispositions $705,624.89
ENDING BOOK VALUE $630,210.74

Reconciliation Summary
As of January 31, 2022

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Short Term
Account #170

Execution Time: 2/1/2022 6:47:11 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 3
 

Page 47 of 417



Holdings Report
As of January 31, 2022

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

ABS

58770FAC6 Mercedes Benz Auto Lease Trust 2020-
A A3
1.84% Due 12/15/2022

32,267.04 01/21/2020
1.85%

32,262.79
32,265.76

100.24
0.19%

32,345.90
26.39

0.09%
80.14

Aaa / AAA
NR

0.87
0.15

47789JAD8 John Deere Owner Trust 2019-A A3
2.91% Due 7/17/2023

30,459.68 06/24/2020
0.83%

31,260.43
30,659.87

100.44
0.50%

30,594.89
39.39

0.09%
(64.98)

Aaa / NR
AAA

1.46
0.19

43815NAC8 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2019-3 
A3
1.78% Due 8/15/2023

90,700.33 08/20/2019
1.79%

90,699.58
90,700.18

100.48
0.39%

91,134.15
71.75

0.26%
433.97

Aaa / AAA
NR

1.54
0.35

58769EAC2 Mercedes-Benz Auto Lease Trust 2020-
B A3
0.4% Due 11/15/2023

90,000.00 09/15/2020
0.40%

89,995.44
89,998.12

99.78
0.76%

89,799.66
16.00

0.25%
(198.46)

NR / AAA
AAA

1.79
0.62

477870AC3 John Deere Owner Trust 2019-B A3
2.21% Due 12/15/2023

38,067.44 07/16/2019
2.23%

38,059.36
38,064.01

100.58
0.53%

38,286.78
37.39

0.11%
222.77

Aaa / NR
AAA

1.87
0.34

92348AAA3 Verizon Owner Trust 2019-C A1A
1.94% Due 4/22/2024

89,157.84 10/01/2019
1.95%

89,150.97
89,154.48

100.56
0.67%

89,660.16
52.85

0.25%
505.68

NR / AAA
AAA

2.22
0.44

65479JAD5 Nissan Auto Receivables Owner 2019-C 
A3
1.93% Due 7/15/2024

121,553.15 10/16/2019
1.94%

121,546.74
121,549.83

100.58
0.64%

122,262.05
104.27

0.35%
712.22

Aaa / AAA
NR

2.45
0.45

43813DAC2 Honda Auto Receivables 2020-2 A3
0.82% Due 7/15/2024

79,419.10 05/18/2020
0.83%

79,412.85
79,415.40

99.99
0.84%

79,409.65
28.94

0.23%
(5.75)

Aaa / AAA
NR

2.45
0.65

47789KAC7 John Deere Owner Trust 2020-A A3
1.1% Due 8/15/2024

157,075.95 Various
1.26%

156,565.36
156,771.86

100.18
0.80%

157,363.72
76.79

0.45%
591.86

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.54
0.62

43813KAC6 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2020-3 
A3
0.37% Due 10/18/2024

145,000.00 09/22/2020
0.38%

144,978.70
144,987.82

99.46
0.98%

144,222.66
19.37

0.41%
(765.16)

NR / AAA
AAA

2.72
0.88

36262XAC8 GM Financial Auto Lease Trust 2021-3 
A2
0.39% Due 10/21/2024

590,000.00 Various
0.73%

586,695.39
586,878.37

98.78
1.19%

582,813.22
70.31

1.65%
(4,065.15)

NR / AAA
AAA

2.72
1.53

47787NAC3 John Deere Owner Trust 2020-B A3
0.51% Due 11/15/2024

64,950.88 07/14/2020
0.52%

64,940.98
64,945.33

99.65
1.00%

64,725.30
14.72

0.18%
(220.03)

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.79
0.70

09690AAC7 BMW Vehicle Lease Trust 2021-2 A3
0.33% Due 12/26/2024

85,000.00 09/08/2021
0.34%

84,991.23
84,992.70

98.82
1.19%

83,997.00
4.68

0.24%
(995.70)

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.90
1.38

89236XAC0 Toyota Auto Receivables 2020-D A3
0.35% Due 1/15/2025

115,000.00 10/06/2020
0.36%

114,978.58
114,985.14

99.52
0.96%

114,450.76
17.89

0.32%
(534.38)

NR / AAA
AAA

2.96
0.78

Execution Time: 2/1/2022 6:47:11 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 4
 

Page 48 of 417



Holdings Report
As of January 31, 2022

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

ABS

92290BAA9 Verizon Owner Trust 2020-B A
0.47% Due 2/20/2025

205,000.00 08/04/2020
0.48%

204,956.95
204,970.96

99.47
0.99%

203,908.38
29.44

0.58%
(1,062.58)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.06
1.03

05601XAC3 BMW Vehicle Lease Trust 2022-1 A3
1.1% Due 3/25/2025

115,000.00 01/11/2022
1.11%

114,982.81
114,983.09

99.69
1.28%

114,642.24
42.17

0.33%
(340.85)

NR / AAA
AAA

3.15
1.73

43813GAC5 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2021-1 
A3
0.27% Due 4/21/2025

70,000.00 02/17/2021
0.27%

69,998.72
69,999.11

99.13
1.07%

69,387.85
5.25

0.20%
(611.26)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.22
1.10

44891RAC4 Hyundai Auto Receivables Trust 2020-C 
A3
0.38% Due 5/15/2025

150,000.00 10/20/2020
0.39%

149,965.45
149,978.67

99.27
1.05%

148,908.15
25.33

0.42%
(1,070.52)

NR / AAA
AAA

3.29
1.09

89240BAC2 Toyota Auto Receivables Owners 2021-
A A3
0.26% Due 5/15/2025

255,000.00 02/02/2021
0.27%

254,952.67
254,967.65

99.03
1.12%

252,531.35
29.47

0.72%
(2,436.30)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.29
1.13

44933LAC7 Hyundai Auto Receivables Trust 2021-A 
A3
0.38% Due 9/15/2025

120,000.00 04/20/2021
0.38%

119,987.38
119,990.54

98.98
1.09%

118,778.52
20.27

0.34%
(1,212.02)

NR / AAA
AAA

3.62
1.44

89239BAC5 Toyota Auto Receivables Trust 2021-C 
A3
0.43% Due 1/15/2026

340,000.00 12/17/2021
0.91%

336,653.13
336,785.74

98.38
1.32%

334,494.04
64.98

0.95%
(2,291.70)

Aaa / AAA
NR

3.96
1.82

43815GAC3 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2021-4 
A3
0.88% Due 1/21/2026

95,000.00 11/16/2021
0.89%

94,979.97
94,981.14

98.90
1.43%

93,956.62
23.22

0.27%
(1,024.52)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.98
2.01

47789QAC4 John Deere Owner Trust 2021-B A3
0.52% Due 3/16/2026

115,000.00 07/13/2021
0.52%

114,989.74
114,991.24

98.02
1.45%

112,717.94
26.58

0.32%
(2,273.30)

Aaa / NR
AAA

4.12
2.14

89238JAC9 Toyota Auto Receivables Trust 2021-D 
A3
0.71% Due 4/15/2026

85,000.00 11/09/2021
0.71%

84,998.19
84,998.31

98.67
1.42%

83,865.85
26.82

0.24%
(1,132.46)

NR / AAA
AAA

4.21
1.88

44935FAD6 Hyundai Auto Receivables Trust 2021-C 
A3
0.74% Due 5/15/2026

65,000.00 11/09/2021
0.75%

64,985.49
64,986.44

98.67
1.40%

64,134.01
21.38

0.18%
(852.43)

NR / AAA
AAA

4.29
2.04

362554AC1 GM Financial Securitized Term 2021-4 
A3
0.68% Due 9/16/2026

70,000.00 10/13/2021
0.68%

69,998.22
69,998.37

98.82
1.46%

69,174.77
19.83

0.20%
(823.60)

Aaa / AAA
NR

4.63
1.52

Execution Time: 2/1/2022 6:47:11 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 5
 

Page 49 of 417



Holdings Report
As of January 31, 2022

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

ABS

380146AC4 GM Financial Auto Receivables 2022-1 
A3
1.26% Due 11/16/2026

75,000.00 01/11/2022
1.27%

74,993.48
74,993.55

99.49
1.48%

74,616.90
31.50

0.21%
(376.65)

NR / AAA
AAA

4.79
2.32

Total ABS 3,488,651.41 0.79%
3,481,980.60
3,481,993.68 1.08%

3,462,182.52
946.98

9.82%
(19,811.16)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

3.09
1.25

AGENCY

3135G0T94 FNMA Note
2.375% Due 1/19/2023

200,000.00 04/11/2018
2.71%

197,052.00
199,404.65

101.51
0.81%

203,016.80
158.33

0.58%
3,612.15

Aaa / AA+
AAA

0.97
0.96

3137EAER6 FHLMC Note
0.375% Due 5/5/2023

520,000.00 05/05/2020
0.39%

519,781.60
519,908.48

99.34
0.90%

516,585.16
465.83

1.47%
(3,323.32)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.26
1.25

3137EAEN5 FHLMC Note
2.75% Due 6/19/2023

500,000.00 07/20/2018
2.86%

497,490.00
499,295.46

102.44
0.97%

512,190.50
1,604.17

1.46%
12,895.04

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.38
1.36

3135G05G4 FNMA Note
0.25% Due 7/10/2023

230,000.00 07/08/2020
0.32%

229,505.50
229,763.36

98.93
1.00%

227,531.41
33.54

0.64%
(2,231.95)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.44
1.43

3137EAEV7 FHLMC Note
0.25% Due 8/24/2023

325,000.00 08/19/2020
0.28%

324,668.50
324,828.21

98.73
1.07%

320,861.13
354.34

0.91%
(3,967.08)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.56
1.55

3135G0U43 FNMA Note
2.875% Due 9/12/2023

505,000.00 09/12/2018
2.96%

502,929.50
504,332.54

102.88
1.07%

519,546.53
5,605.85

1.49%
15,213.99

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.61
1.56

3135G06H1 FNMA Note
0.25% Due 11/27/2023

150,000.00 11/23/2020
0.29%

149,829.00
149,896.50

98.44
1.12%

147,653.55
66.67

0.42%
(2,242.95)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.82
1.81

3130A0F70 FHLB Note
3.375% Due 12/8/2023

440,000.00 01/16/2019
2.73%

452,843.60
444,854.10

104.11
1.13%

458,067.72
2,186.25

1.30%
13,213.62

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.85
1.79

3130AB3H7 FHLB Note
2.375% Due 3/8/2024

500,000.00 04/29/2019
2.37%

500,035.00
500,015.11

102.38
1.23%

511,884.50
4,717.01

1.46%
11,869.39

Aaa / AA+
NR

2.10
2.03

3130A1XJ2 FHLB Note
2.875% Due 6/14/2024

475,000.00 06/18/2019
1.96%

495,548.65
484,744.25

103.66
1.30%

492,386.43
1,782.90

1.40%
7,642.18

Aaa / AA+
NR

2.37
2.29

3135G0V75 FNMA Note
1.75% Due 7/2/2024

500,000.00 12/22/2021
0.84%

511,285.00
510,795.41

101.08
1.29%

505,414.50
704.86

1.43%
(5,380.91)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.42
2.36

3130A2UW4 FHLB Note
2.875% Due 9/13/2024

450,000.00 09/13/2019
1.79%

473,305.50
462,202.17

103.90
1.35%

467,563.50
4,959.38

1.34%
5,361.33

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.62
2.50

3135G0W66 FNMA Note
1.625% Due 10/15/2024

200,000.00 10/17/2019
1.66%

199,658.00
199,814.94

100.72
1.35%

201,437.40
956.94

0.57%
1,622.46

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.71
2.63

Execution Time: 2/1/2022 6:47:11 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 6
 

Page 50 of 417



Holdings Report
As of January 31, 2022

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

AGENCY

3130AQF40 FHLB Note
1% Due 12/20/2024

550,000.00 12/21/2021
1.02%

549,642.50
549,655.90

98.88
1.40%

543,833.40
595.83

1.54%
(5,822.50)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.89
2.83

3135G0X24 FNMA Note
1.625% Due 1/7/2025

505,000.00 Various
1.21%

514,840.05
510,972.96

100.60
1.41%

508,050.71
547.08

1.44%
(2,922.25)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.94
2.85

3137EAEP0 FHLMC Note
1.5% Due 2/12/2025

605,000.00 02/13/2020
1.52%

604,534.15
604,717.43

100.32
1.39%

606,923.30
4,260.21

1.73%
2,205.87

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.04
2.93

3135G03U5 FNMA Note
0.625% Due 4/22/2025

475,000.00 04/22/2020
0.67%

474,021.50
474,369.13

97.54
1.41%

463,296.95
816.41

1.32%
(11,072.18)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.22
3.17

3135G04Z3 FNMA Note
0.5% Due 6/17/2025

565,000.00 Various
0.47%

565,574.15
565,483.88

96.96
1.43%

547,814.40
345.27

1.55%
(17,669.48)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.38
3.33

3137EAEU9 FHLMC Note
0.375% Due 7/21/2025

320,000.00 07/21/2020
0.48%

318,406.40
318,893.92

96.34
1.46%

308,301.12
33.33

0.87%
(10,592.80)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.47
3.43

3135G05X7 FNMA Note
0.375% Due 8/25/2025

560,000.00 Various
0.46%

557,801.20
558,407.69

96.08
1.51%

538,045.76
910.00

1.53%
(20,361.93)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.57
3.51

3137EAEX3 FHLMC Note
0.375% Due 9/23/2025

555,000.00 Various
0.44%

553,354.65
553,779.17

95.96
1.52%

532,569.68
740.00

1.51%
(21,209.49)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.65
3.59

3135G06G3 FNMA Note
0.5% Due 11/7/2025

565,000.00 Various
0.56%

563,434.90
563,822.82

96.29
1.52%

544,016.47
659.16

1.54%
(19,806.35)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.77
3.70

Total Agency 9,695,000.00 1.28%
9,755,541.35
9,729,958.08 1.28%

9,676,990.92
32,503.36

27.52%
(52,967.16)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.56
2.51

CMO

3137BM6P6 FHLMC K721 A2
3.09% Due 8/25/2022

322,103.08 09/21/2017
2.22%

334,355.87
323,503.20

100.64
0.84%

324,159.08
829.42

0.92%
655.88

Aaa / NR
NR

0.56
0.38

3137B4WB8 FHLMC K033 A2
3.06% Due 7/25/2023

425,000.00 09/13/2019
2.14%

438,862.30
430,314.21

102.41
1.12%

435,231.45
216.75

1.23%
4,917.24

Aaa / NR
NR

1.48
1.32

3137B7MZ9 FHLMC K036 A2
3.527% Due 10/25/2023

400,000.00 10/29/2018
3.32%

403,937.50
401,365.14

103.41
1.23%

413,648.80
235.13

1.17%
12,283.66

Aaa / NR
AAA

1.73
1.55

3137BYPQ7 FHLMC K726 A2
2.905% Due 4/25/2024

349,887.17 04/22/2019
2.72%

352,388.33
351,001.53

102.69
1.49%

359,295.99
847.02

1.02%
8,294.46

NR / AAA
NR

2.23
1.99

3137BFE98 FHLMC K041 A2
3.171% Due 10/25/2024

500,000.00 12/15/2021
1.17%

526,328.13
525,139.62

104.04
1.54%

520,203.50
1,321.25

1.48%
(4,936.12)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

2.73
2.54

Execution Time: 2/1/2022 6:47:11 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 7
 

Page 51 of 417



Holdings Report
As of January 31, 2022

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

CMO

3137BPW21 FHLMC K055 A2
2.673% Due 3/25/2026

170,000.00 12/15/2021
1.25%

178,705.86
178,461.50

103.45
1.75%

175,866.70
378.68

0.50%
(2,594.80)

NR / NR
AAA

4.15
3.82

3137FQXJ7 FHLMC K737 A2
2.525% Due 10/25/2026

523,000.00 12/15/2021
1.41%

548,700.55
548,067.60

103.17
1.77%

539,566.55
1,100.48

1.53%
(8,501.05)

NR / NR
AAA

4.73
4.31

Total CMO 2,689,990.25 2.01%
2,783,278.54
2,757,852.80 1.40%

2,767,972.07
4,928.73

7.86%
10,119.27

Aaa / AAA
AAA

2.55
2.30

CORPORATE

69353RFE3 PNC Bank Callable Note Cont 6/28/2022
2.45% Due 7/28/2022

355,000.00 07/25/2017
2.45%

354,968.05
354,996.90

100.85
0.37%

358,013.95
72.48

1.01%
3,017.05

A2 / A
A+

0.49
0.41

24422ETG4 John Deere Capital Corp Note
2.8% Due 3/6/2023

150,000.00 06/13/2018
3.44%

145,828.50
149,037.53

101.97
0.99%

152,957.10
1,691.67

0.44%
3,919.57

A2 / A
A

1.09
1.07

037833AK6 Apple Inc Note
2.4% Due 5/3/2023

235,000.00 11/28/2018
3.54%

224,140.65
231,933.83

101.61
1.10%

238,784.91
1,378.67

0.68%
6,851.08

Aaa / AA+
NR

1.25
1.23

02665WCJ8 American Honda Finance Note
3.45% Due 7/14/2023

100,000.00 07/11/2018
3.49%

99,827.00
99,949.92

102.81
1.49%

102,808.80
162.92

0.29%
2,858.88

A3 / A-
A

1.45
1.42

69371RP59 Paccar Financial Corp Note
3.4% Due 8/9/2023

250,000.00 08/06/2018
3.41%

249,897.50
249,968.90

102.98
1.41%

257,451.25
4,061.11

0.74%
7,482.35

A1 / A+
NR

1.52
1.46

06406RAJ6 Bank of NY Mellon Corp Note
3.45% Due 8/11/2023

320,000.00 05/16/2019
2.79%

328,416.00
323,030.63

103.15
1.36%

330,091.84
5,213.33

0.95%
7,061.21

A1 / A
AA-

1.53
1.47

02665WCQ2 American Honda Finance Note
3.625% Due 10/10/2023

245,000.00 10/03/2018
3.64%

244,799.10
244,932.23

103.68
1.41%

254,018.94
2,738.39

0.73%
9,086.71

A3 / A-
A

1.69
1.63

24422EVN6 John Deere Capital Corp Note
0.45% Due 1/17/2024

195,000.00 03/01/2021
0.47%

194,861.55
194,905.63

98.28
1.34%

191,649.71
34.13

0.54%
(3,255.92)

A2 / A
A

1.96
1.94

06051GHF9 Bank of America Corp Callable Note 1X 
3/5/2023
3.55% Due 3/5/2024

321,000.00 03/06/2019
3.03%

322,235.85
321,516.97

102.25
1.36%

328,232.77
4,621.51

0.94%
6,715.80

A2 / A-
AA-

2.09
2.00

89114QCB2 Toronto Dominion Bank Note
3.25% Due 3/11/2024

325,000.00 03/26/2019
2.97%

329,114.50
326,748.09

103.54
1.54%

336,500.13
4,107.64

0.97%
9,752.04

A1 / A
AA-

2.11
2.02

808513BN4 Charles Schwab Corp Callable Note 
Cont 2/18/2024
0.75% Due 3/18/2024

160,000.00 03/16/2021
0.77%

159,920.00
159,943.36

98.45
1.49%

157,512.32
443.33

0.45%
(2,431.04)

A2 / A
A

2.13
2.10

Execution Time: 2/1/2022 6:47:11 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 8
 

Page 52 of 417



Holdings Report
As of January 31, 2022

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

CORPORATE

79466LAG9 Salesforce.com Inc Callable Note Cont 
7/15/2022
0.625% Due 7/15/2024

295,000.00 Various
0.93%

292,715.95
292,854.19

97.92
1.49%

288,849.25
81.95

0.82%
(4,004.94)

A2 / A+
NR

2.45
2.42

69371RQ25 Paccar Financial Corp Note
2.15% Due 8/15/2024

70,000.00 08/08/2019
2.20%

69,845.30
69,921.59

101.30
1.62%

70,911.96
693.97

0.20%
990.37

A1 / A+
NR

2.54
2.44

78015K7C2 Royal Bank of Canada Note
2.25% Due 11/1/2024

325,000.00 12/05/2019
2.26%

324,831.00
324,905.16

101.14
1.82%

328,713.45
1,828.13

0.94%
3,808.29

A1 / A
AA-

2.75
2.64

14913Q3B3 Caterpillar Finl Service Note
2.15% Due 11/8/2024

325,000.00 02/19/2020
1.83%

329,628.00
327,717.14

101.15
1.72%

328,736.20
1,611.01

0.94%
1,019.06

A2 / A
A

2.77
2.67

89236TJT3 Toyota Motor Credit Corp Note
1.45% Due 1/13/2025

310,000.00 01/10/2022
1.50%

309,584.60
309,591.80

99.27
1.70%

307,741.65
224.75

0.87%
(1,850.15)

A1 / A+
A+

2.95
2.87

90331HPL1 US Bank NA Callable Note Cont 
12/21/2024
2.05% Due 1/21/2025

340,000.00 01/16/2020
2.10%

339,275.80
339,569.92

100.83
1.75%

342,813.84
193.61

0.97%
3,243.92

A1 / AA-
AA-

2.98
2.80

747525AF0 Qualcomm Inc Callable Note Cont 
2/20/2025
3.45% Due 5/20/2025

350,000.00 12/22/2021
1.46%

372,977.50
372,310.41

104.84
1.93%

366,938.60
2,381.46

1.05%
(5,371.81)

A2 / A
NR

3.30
3.11

46647PCH7 JP Morgan Chase & Co Callable Note 
Cont 6/1/2024
0.824% Due 6/1/2025

300,000.00 05/24/2021
0.74%

300,388.80
300,323.61

97.55
1.51%

292,660.50
412.00

0.83%
(7,663.11)

A2 / A-
AA-

3.33
3.27

46647PCK0 JP Morgan Chase & Co Callable Note 
Cont 6/23/2024
0.969% Due 6/23/2025

140,000.00 Various
0.87%

140,087.55
140,074.24

97.65
1.59%

136,715.47
143.20

0.39%
(3,358.77)

A2 / A-
AA-

3.39
3.32

023135BX3 Amazon.com Inc Callable Note Cont 
4/12/2026
1% Due 5/12/2026

440,000.00 05/10/2021
1.09%

438,099.20
438,375.06

96.94
1.74%

426,548.32
965.56

1.21%
(11,826.74)

A1 / AA
AA-

4.28
4.15

808513BR5 Charles Schwab Corp Callable Note 
Cont 4/13/2026
1.15% Due 5/13/2026

200,000.00 12/15/2021
1.49%

197,152.00
197,233.47

96.85
1.92%

193,706.60
498.33

0.55%
(3,526.87)

A2 / A
A

4.28
4.14

91324PEC2 United Health Group Inc Callable Note 
Cont 4/15/2026
1.15% Due 5/15/2026

355,000.00 Various
1.09%

355,928.75
355,827.62

96.59
1.98%

342,889.89
861.86

0.97%
(12,937.73)

A3 / A+
A

4.29
4.14

89236TJK2 Toyota Motor Credit Corp Note
1.125% Due 6/18/2026

300,000.00 06/15/2021
1.13%

299,868.00
299,884.48

96.71
1.91%

290,138.40
403.13

0.82%
(9,746.08)

A1 / A+
A+

4.38
4.24

Execution Time: 2/1/2022 6:47:11 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 9
 

Page 53 of 417



Holdings Report
As of January 31, 2022

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

CORPORATE

06051GJD2 Bank of America Corp Callable Note 
Cont 6/19/2025
1.319% Due 6/19/2026

350,000.00 Various
1.36%

349,042.00
349,003.45

97.08
2.00%

339,767.75
538.60

0.96%
(9,235.70)

A2 / A-
AA-

4.38
4.22

594918BR4 Microsoft Callable Note Cont 5/8/2026
2.4% Due 8/8/2026

350,000.00 12/21/2021
1.36%

365,442.00
365,055.22

102.32
1.83%

358,121.40
4,036.67

1.03%
(6,933.82)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

4.52
4.01

89114TZG0 Toronto-Dominion Bank Note
1.25% Due 9/10/2026

200,000.00 12/15/2021
1.67%

196,202.00
196,303.10

95.94
2.18%

191,874.80
979.17

0.55%
(4,428.30)

A1 / A
AA-

4.61
4.42

037833DN7 Apple Inc Callable Note Cont 7/11/2026
2.05% Due 9/11/2026

270,000.00 Various
1.50%

276,565.80
276,357.71

100.49
1.93%

271,335.96
2,152.50

0.78%
(5,021.75)

Aaa / AA+
NR

4.61
4.20

06368FAC3 Bank of Montreal Note
1.25% Due 9/15/2026

280,000.00 09/13/2021
1.28%

279,661.20
279,686.99

95.96
2.17%

268,692.48
1,322.22

0.77%
(10,994.51)

A2 / A-
AA-

4.62
4.43

931142ER0 Wal-Mart Stores Callable Note Cont 
08/17/2026
1.05% Due 9/17/2026

70,000.00 09/08/2021
1.09%

69,867.70
69,877.63

96.66
1.81%

67,659.06
273.58

0.19%
(2,218.57)

Aa2 / AA
AA

4.63
4.47

78016EZZ3 Royal Bank of Canada Note
1.4% Due 11/2/2026

200,000.00 12/15/2021
1.74%

196,850.00
196,931.36

96.53
2.17%

193,060.40
886.67

0.55%
(3,870.96)

A1 / A
AA-

4.76
4.54

87612EBM7 Target Corp Callable Note Cont 
12/15/2026
1.95% Due 1/15/2027

205,000.00 01/19/2022
1.99%

204,651.50
204,653.03

99.82
1.99%

204,630.59
77.73

0.58%
(22.44)

A2 / A
A

4.96
4.63

Total Corporate 8,331,000.00 1.86%
8,362,673.35
8,363,421.17 1.64%

8,320,528.29
45,091.28

23.71%
(42,892.88)

A1 / A+
AA-

3.08
2.94

MONEY MARKET FUND

26200X845 Dreyfus Funds Inst'l Reserve Treasury 
#6541

630,210.74 Various
0.01%

630,210.74
630,210.74

1.00
0.01%

630,210.74
0.00

1.79%
0.00

Aaa / AAA
AAA

0.00
0.00

Total Money Market Fund 630,210.74 0.01%
630,210.74
630,210.74 0.01%

630,210.74
0.00

1.79%
0.00

Aaa / AAA
AAA

0.00
0.00

Execution Time: 2/1/2022 6:47:11 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 10
 

Page 54 of 417



Holdings Report
As of January 31, 2022

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

MUNICIPAL BONDS

13063DRK6 California State Taxable GO
2.4% Due 10/1/2024

320,000.00 10/16/2019
1.91%

327,350.40
323,964.49

102.57
1.41%

328,220.80
2,560.00

0.94%
4,256.31

Aa2 / AA-
AA

2.67
2.56

Total Municipal Bonds 320,000.00 1.91%
327,350.40
323,964.49 1.41%

328,220.80
2,560.00

0.94%
4,256.31

Aa2 / AA-
AA

2.67
2.56

SUPRANATIONAL

459058JL8 Intl. Bank Recon & Development Note
0.5% Due 10/28/2025

910,000.00 Various
1.00%

892,819.20
893,443.90

96.12
1.57%

874,696.55
1,175.41

2.48%
(18,747.35)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

3.74
3.68

4581X0DV7 Inter-American Dev Bank Note
0.875% Due 4/20/2026

575,000.00 04/13/2021
0.97%

572,366.50
572,780.42

96.67
1.70%

555,840.43
1,411.55

1.58%
(16,939.99)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

4.22
4.11

Total Supranational 1,485,000.00 0.99%
1,465,185.70
1,466,224.32 1.62%

1,430,536.98
2,586.96

4.06%
(35,687.34)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

3.93
3.84

US TREASURY

912828N30 US Treasury Note
2.125% Due 12/31/2022

500,000.00 01/25/2018
2.46%

492,226.56
498,561.91

101.22
0.78%

506,113.50
939.23

1.44%
7,551.59

Aaa / AA+
AAA

0.92
0.91

91282CDM0 US Treasury Note
0.5% Due 11/30/2023

550,000.00 12/23/2021
0.68%

548,109.38
548,206.20

98.86
1.13%

543,748.15
475.96

1.54%
(4,458.05)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.83
1.81

91282CBR1 US Treasury Note
0.25% Due 3/15/2024

350,000.00 03/30/2021
0.33%

349,152.34
349,393.30

98.00
1.21%

342,986.35
335.98

0.97%
(6,406.95)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.12
2.10

91282CCC3 US Treasury Note
0.25% Due 5/15/2024

700,000.00 12/21/2021
0.80%

690,839.84
691,269.06

97.78
1.24%

684,441.10
377.07

1.94%
(6,827.96)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.29
2.27

912828XX3 US Treasury Note
2% Due 6/30/2024

550,000.00 12/12/2019
1.74%

556,294.92
553,335.06

101.75
1.26%

559,625.00
972.38

1.59%
6,289.94

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.41
2.35

912828D56 US Treasury Note
2.375% Due 8/15/2024

500,000.00 08/29/2019
1.45%

522,167.97
511,328.66

102.71
1.29%

513,535.00
5,485.73

1.47%
2,206.34

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.54
2.44

9128283D0 US Treasury Note
2.25% Due 10/31/2024

500,000.00 11/07/2019
1.77%

511,308.59
506,235.58

102.46
1.33%

512,324.00
2,890.19

1.46%
6,088.42

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.75
2.65

Execution Time: 2/1/2022 6:47:11 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 11
 

Page 55 of 417



Holdings Report
As of January 31, 2022

Northern CA Cities Self Ins. Fund Short Term

Account #170

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

US TREASURY

91282CDN8 US Treasury Note
1% Due 12/15/2024

550,000.00 12/15/2021
0.99%

550,171.88
550,164.50

99.00
1.36%

544,500.00
725.27

1.55%
(5,664.50)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.87
2.81

912828ZC7 US Treasury Note
1.125% Due 2/28/2025

450,000.00 03/18/2020
0.81%

456,943.36
454,315.10

99.19
1.39%

446,361.30
2,153.66

1.27%
(7,953.80)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.08
3.00

912828ZF0 US Treasury Note
0.5% Due 3/31/2025

565,000.00 01/25/2021
0.32%

569,259.57
568,223.31

97.20
1.41%

549,175.48
962.36

1.56%
(19,047.83)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.16
3.11

91282CAM3 US Treasury Note
0.25% Due 9/30/2025

575,000.00 02/19/2021
0.51%

568,149.41
569,551.32

95.59
1.49%

549,664.35
489.70

1.56%
(19,886.97)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.67
3.62

91282CAT8 US Treasury Note
0.25% Due 10/31/2025

575,000.00 01/11/2021
0.48%

568,800.78
570,162.27

95.43
1.51%

548,743.20
369.30

1.56%
(21,419.07)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.75
3.70

91282CAZ4 US Treasury Note
0.375% Due 11/30/2025

565,000.00 03/26/2021
0.77%

554,869.73
556,703.50

95.73
1.53%

540,877.32
366.71

1.53%
(15,826.18)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.83
3.77

91282CCJ8 US Treasury Note
0.875% Due 6/30/2026

350,000.00 12/22/2021
1.22%

344,708.98
344,837.25

96.98
1.59%

339,418.10
270.72

0.96%
(5,419.15)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.41
4.30

91282CCP4 US Treasury Note
0.625% Due 7/31/2026

140,000.00 08/04/2021
0.68%

139,622.66
139,659.96

95.81
1.59%

134,132.04
2.42

0.38%
(5,527.92)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.50
4.41

91282CCW9 US Treasury Note
0.75% Due 8/31/2026

150,000.00 09/17/2021
0.86%

149,185.55
149,245.98

96.27
1.60%

144,404.25
478.59

0.41%
(4,841.73)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.58
4.46

91282CCZ2 US Treasury Note
0.875% Due 9/30/2026

850,000.00 Various
1.08%

841,591.80
842,098.20

96.73
1.61%

822,176.10
2,533.66

2.34%
(19,922.10)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.67
4.53

91282CDG3 US Treasury Note
1.125% Due 10/31/2026

280,000.00 11/15/2021
1.25%

278,293.75
278,365.43

97.77
1.62%

273,743.68
809.25

0.78%
(4,621.75)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.75
4.58

Total US Treasury 8,700,000.00 1.02%
8,691,697.07
8,681,656.59 1.36%

8,555,968.92
20,638.18

24.31%
(125,687.67)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.10
3.03

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 35,339,852.40 1.33%
35,497,917.75
35,435,281.87 1.37%

35,172,611.24
109,255.49

100.00%
(262,670.63)

Aa1 / AA
AAA

2.88
2.61

TOTAL MARKET VALUE PLUS ACCRUED 35,281,866.73

Execution Time: 2/1/2022 6:47:11 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 12
 

Page 56 of 417



MONTHLY ACCOUNT STATEMENT

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term - Account #171

JANUARY 1, 2022 THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2022

Information contained herein is confidential. We urge you to compare this statement to the one you receive from your qualified custodian. Please see Important Disclosures.

CHANDLER ASSET MANAGEMENT
chandlerasset.com

Chandler Team:
For questions about your account, please call (800) 317-4747,
or contact operations@chandlerasset.com

Custodian
Bank of New York Mellon
Lauren Dehner
(904) 645-1918

 
Page 57 of 417



ACCOUNT SUMMARY
Beg. Values

as of 12/31/21
End Values

as of 1/31/22

Market Value 29,577,960 29,216,205
Accrued Interest 118,749 120,445
Total Market Value 29,696,709 29,336,651
Income Earned 42,279 42,021
Cont/WD 0
Par 29,204,675 29,240,575
Book Value 29,186,567 29,240,543
Cost Value 29,201,475 29,267,709

TOP ISSUERS

Government of United States 25.2%
Federal Home Loan Bank 14.8%
Federal National Mortgage Assoc 13.8%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp 11.3%
Bank of America Corp 2.0%
Tennessee Valley Authority 2.0%
Toyota ABS 1.9%
JP Morgan Chase & Co 1.8%

Total 72.8%

PORTFOLIO CHARACTERISTICS

Average Modified Duration 3.72

Average Coupon 1.76%

Average Purchase YTM 1.70%

Average Market YTM 1.52%

Average S&P/Moody Rating AA/Aa1

Average Final Maturity 4.08 yrs

Average Life 3.90 yrs

CREDIT QUALITY (S&P)MATURITY DISTRIBUTIONSECTOR ALLOCATION

Portfolio Summary
As of January 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Annualized

TOTAL RATE OF RETURN 1M 3M YTD 1YR 2YRS 3YRS 5YRS 10YRS 5/31/2006
Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term -1.21% -1.28% -1.21% -2.47% 0.95% 2.76% 2.32% 1.89% 3.48%
ICE BofA 1-10 Yr US Treasury & Agency Index -1.23% -1.26% -1.23% -2.58% 0.61% 2.41% 2.00% 1.50% 3.11%
ICE BofA 1-10 Yr AAA-A US Corp & Govt Index -1.32% -1.36% -1.32% -2.54% 0.79% 2.72% 2.28% 1.87% 3.29%

Execution Time: 2/2/2022 12:02:50 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 1
 

Page 58 of 417



Category Standard Comment 

Treasury Issues No limitation Complies

US Government & Agencies
No limitation;  Include: mortgage-backed, mortgage passthrough securities, and collateralized mortgage obligations issued 

by the federal government or federal agency/GSE issuers
Complies

Supranationals AA rating category or better by a NRSRO;  30% maximum;  5 years max maturity; Issued by IBRD, IFC or IADB only Complies

Municipal Securities 5 years max maturity Complies

Asset-Backed & Mortgage-Backed 

Securities
AA rating category or better by a NRSRO;  20% maximum;  5 years max maturity Complies 

Banker’s Acceptances 40% maximum;  180 days max maturity Complies 

Commercial Paper A-1/P-1 by a NRSRO; 25% maximum; 270 days max maturity Complies 

Corporate Medium Term Notes A rating category or better by a NRSRO;  30% maximum; 5 years max maturity Complies 

Money Market Mutual Funds Highest ratings by two NRSROs; 20% maximum Complies

Mutual Funds Highest ratings by two NRSROs; 20% maximum Complies 

Negotiable CDs 30% maximum;  5 years max maturity Complies 

Time Certificates of Deposit; 

Collateralized Bank Deposits
5 years max maturity Complies 

LAIF Maximum as law permits Complies 

Repurchase Agreements 1 year max maturity;  Not used by Investment Adviser Complies 

Prohibited

Common or preferred stocks, convertible or junk bonds, commodities, options, limited partnerships, GICs, 

Reverse repurchase agreements, uninsured deposits, Inverse floaters; ranges notes, mortgage derived, interest only strips, 

Zero interest accrual securities if held to maturity; Investments denominated in Non-USD; Collateralized Mortgage 

Obligations (CMOs) with collateral not specifically GNMA, FHLMC, or FNMA; Purchasing or selling securities on margin;  

Securities lending or any other form of borrowing or leverage

Complies 

Max Per Issuer
5%  per issuer or institution unless explicitly stated in the policy, excluding U.S. government, agency, investment pool, and 

money market funds
Complies

Maximum Maturity 10 years Complies

Northern California Cities Self-Insurance Fund - Long Term

The portfolio complies with state law and with the Client's investment policy.

Statement of Compliance
As of January 31, 2022

 
Page 59 of 417



BOOK VALUE RECONCILIATION

BEGINNING BOOK VALUE $29,186,567.30

Acquisition
+ Security Purchases $996,377.70
+ Money Market Fund Purchases $977,914.42
+ Money Market Contributions $0.00
+ Security Contributions $0.00
+ Security Transfers $0.00
   Total Acquisitions $1,974,292.12
Dispositions

- Security Sales $870,958.90
- Money Market Fund Sales $998,071.25
- MMF Withdrawals $0.00
- Security Withdrawals $0.00
- Security Transfers $0.00
- Other Dispositions $0.00
- Maturites $0.00
- Calls $0.00
- Principal Paydowns $63,943.45
   Total Dispositions $1,932,973.60
Amortization/Accretion
+/- Net Accretion ($993.54)

($993.54)
Gain/Loss on Dispositions
+/- Realized Gain/Loss $13,650.85

$13,650.85
ENDING BOOK VALUE $29,240,543.13

CASH TRANSACTION SUMMARY

BEGINNING BALANCE $112,713.09

Acquisition
          Contributions $0.00
          Security Sale Proceeds $870,958.90
          Accrued Interest Received $8,621.60
          Interest Received $34,389.74
          Dividend Received $0.73
          Principal on Maturities $0.00
          Interest on Maturities $0.00
          Calls/Redemption (Principal) $0.00
          Interest from Calls/Redemption $0.00
          Principal Paydown $63,943.45
Total Acquisitions $977,914.42
Dispositions
          Withdrawals $0.00
          Security Purchase $996,377.70
          Accrued Interest Paid $1,693.55
Total Dispositions $998,071.25
ENDING BOOK VALUE $92,556.26

Reconciliation Summary
As of January 31, 2022

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Long Term Account
Account #171

Execution Time: 2/2/2022 12:02:50 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 3
 

Page 60 of 417



Holdings Report
As of January 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

ABS

58770FAC6 Mercedes Benz Auto Lease Trust 2020-
A A3
1.84% Due 12/15/2022

33,965.31 01/21/2020
1.85%

33,960.83
33,963.96

100.24
0.19%

34,048.32
27.78

0.12%
84.36

Aaa / AAA
NR

0.87
0.15

43815NAC8 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2019-3 
A3
1.78% Due 8/15/2023

95,351.63 08/20/2019
1.79%

95,350.83
95,351.47

100.48
0.39%

95,807.70
75.43

0.33%
456.23

Aaa / AAA
NR

1.54
0.35

92348AAA3 Verizon Owner Trust 2019-C A1A
1.94% Due 4/22/2024

96,016.15 10/01/2019
1.95%

96,008.74
96,012.53

100.56
0.67%

96,557.10
56.92

0.33%
544.57

NR / AAA
AAA

2.22
0.44

89232HAC9 Toyota Auto Receivable Own 2020-A A3
1.66% Due 5/15/2024

196,860.25 06/17/2020
0.68%

201,397.26
199,513.73

100.48
0.72%

197,799.27
145.24

0.67%
(1,714.46)

Aaa / AAA
NR

2.29
0.51

47789KAC7 John Deere Owner Trust 2020-A A3
1.1% Due 8/15/2024

120,827.64 03/04/2020
1.11%

120,820.26
120,823.42

100.18
0.80%

121,049.00
59.07

0.41%
225.58

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.54
0.62

43813KAC6 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2020-3 
A3
0.37% Due 10/18/2024

155,000.00 09/22/2020
0.38%

154,977.23
154,986.97

99.46
0.98%

154,169.05
20.71

0.53%
(817.92)

NR / AAA
AAA

2.72
0.88

36262XAC8 GM Financial Auto Lease Trust 2021-3 
A2
0.39% Due 10/21/2024

205,000.00 08/10/2021
0.39%

204,997.21
204,997.74

98.78
1.19%

202,502.90
24.43

0.69%
(2,494.84)

NR / AAA
AAA

2.72
1.53

47787NAC3 John Deere Owner Trust 2020-B A3
0.51% Due 11/15/2024

69,947.09 07/14/2020
0.52%

69,936.43
69,941.11

99.65
1.00%

69,704.16
15.85

0.24%
(236.95)

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.79
0.70

09690AAC7 BMW Vehicle Lease Trust 2021-2 A3
0.33% Due 12/26/2024

90,000.00 09/08/2021
0.34%

89,990.71
89,992.26

98.82
1.19%

88,938.00
4.95

0.30%
(1,054.26)

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.90
1.38

92290BAA9 Verizon Owner Trust 2020-B A
0.47% Due 2/20/2025

215,000.00 08/04/2020
0.48%

214,954.85
214,969.54

99.47
0.99%

213,855.13
30.88

0.73%
(1,114.41)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.06
1.03

05601XAC3 BMW Vehicle Lease Trust 2022-1 A3
1.1% Due 3/25/2025

95,000.00 01/11/2022
1.11%

94,985.80
94,986.03

99.69
1.28%

94,704.46
34.83

0.32%
(281.57)

NR / AAA
AAA

3.15
1.73

43813GAC5 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2021-1 
A3
0.27% Due 4/21/2025

75,000.00 02/17/2021
0.27%

74,998.63
74,999.05

99.13
1.07%

74,344.13
5.63

0.25%
(654.92)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.22
1.10

44891RAC4 Hyundai Auto Receivables Trust 2020-C 
A3
0.38% Due 5/15/2025

155,000.00 10/20/2020
0.39%

154,964.30
154,977.96

99.27
1.05%

153,871.76
26.18

0.52%
(1,106.20)

NR / AAA
AAA

3.29
1.09

89240BAC2 Toyota Auto Receivables Owners 2021-
A A3
0.26% Due 5/15/2025

270,000.00 02/02/2021
0.27%

269,949.89
269,965.75

99.03
1.12%

267,386.13
31.20

0.91%
(2,579.62)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.29
1.13

Execution Time: 2/2/2022 12:02:50 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 4
 

Page 61 of 417



Holdings Report
As of January 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

ABS

47788UAC6 John Deere Owner Trust 2021-A A3
0.36% Due 9/15/2025

80,000.00 03/02/2021
0.37%

79,984.62
79,988.46

98.71
1.21%

78,968.72
12.80

0.27%
(1,019.74)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.62
1.52

44933LAC7 Hyundai Auto Receivables Trust 2021-A 
A3
0.38% Due 9/15/2025

125,000.00 04/20/2021
0.38%

124,986.85
124,990.15

98.98
1.09%

123,727.63
21.11

0.42%
(1,262.52)

NR / AAA
AAA

3.62
1.44

43815GAC3 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2021-4 
A3
0.88% Due 1/21/2026

100,000.00 11/16/2021
0.89%

99,978.92
99,980.15

98.90
1.43%

98,901.70
24.44

0.34%
(1,078.45)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.98
2.01

47789QAC4 John Deere Owner Trust 2021-B A3
0.52% Due 3/16/2026

125,000.00 07/13/2021
0.52%

124,988.85
124,990.48

98.02
1.45%

122,519.50
28.89

0.42%
(2,470.98)

Aaa / NR
AAA

4.12
2.14

89238JAC9 Toyota Auto Receivables Trust 2021-D 
A3
0.71% Due 4/15/2026

90,000.00 11/09/2021
0.71%

89,998.08
89,998.21

98.67
1.42%

88,799.13
28.40

0.30%
(1,199.08)

NR / AAA
AAA

4.21
1.88

44935FAD6 Hyundai Auto Receivables Trust 2021-C 
A3
0.74% Due 5/15/2026

70,000.00 11/09/2021
0.75%

69,984.38
69,985.41

98.67
1.40%

69,067.39
23.02

0.24%
(918.02)

NR / AAA
AAA

4.29
2.04

362554AC1 GM Financial Securitized Term 2021-4 
A3
0.68% Due 9/16/2026

75,000.00 10/13/2021
0.68%

74,998.09
74,998.25

98.82
1.46%

74,115.83
21.25

0.25%
(882.42)

Aaa / AAA
NR

4.63
1.52

380146AC4 GM Financial Auto Receivables 2022-1 
A3
1.26% Due 11/16/2026

65,000.00 01/11/2022
1.27%

64,994.35
64,994.41

99.49
1.48%

64,667.98
27.30

0.22%
(326.43)

NR / AAA
AAA

4.79
2.32

Total ABS 2,602,968.07 0.67%
2,607,207.11
2,605,407.04 1.07%

2,585,504.99
746.31

8.82%
(19,902.05)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

3.14
1.21

AGENCY

313383YJ4 FHLB Note
3.375% Due 9/8/2023

560,000.00 11/29/2018
3.00%

569,307.20
563,118.42

103.64
1.08%

580,405.28
7,507.50

2.00%
17,286.86

Aaa / AA+
NR

1.60
1.55

3135G06H1 FNMA Note
0.25% Due 11/27/2023

280,000.00 11/23/2020
0.29%

279,680.80
279,806.79

98.44
1.12%

275,619.96
124.44

0.94%
(4,186.83)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.82
1.81

880591ER9 Tennessee Valley Authority Note
2.875% Due 9/15/2024

550,000.00 02/27/2019
2.65%

556,352.50
553,000.66

103.79
1.40%

570,842.25
5,973.61

1.97%
17,841.59

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.62
2.50

3135G0W66 FNMA Note
1.625% Due 10/15/2024

275,000.00 10/17/2019
1.66%

274,529.75
274,745.54

100.72
1.35%

276,976.43
1,315.80

0.95%
2,230.89

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.71
2.63

Execution Time: 2/2/2022 12:02:50 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 5
 

Page 62 of 417



Holdings Report
As of January 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

AGENCY

3135G0X24 FNMA Note
1.625% Due 1/7/2025

215,000.00 01/08/2020
1.69%

214,314.15
214,597.29

100.60
1.41%

216,298.82
232.92

0.74%
1,701.53

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.94
2.85

3137EAEP0 FHLMC Note
1.5% Due 2/12/2025

425,000.00 02/13/2020
1.52%

424,672.75
424,801.50

100.32
1.39%

426,351.08
2,992.71

1.46%
1,549.58

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.04
2.93

3130AEBV1 FHLB Note
3.125% Due 6/13/2025

400,000.00 08/28/2018
3.07%

401,372.00
400,679.36

105.28
1.51%

421,107.60
1,666.67

1.44%
20,428.24

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.37
3.19

3135G04Z3 FNMA Note
0.5% Due 6/17/2025

475,000.00 06/17/2020
0.54%

474,016.75
474,335.88

96.96
1.43%

460,551.93
290.28

1.57%
(13,783.95)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.38
3.33

3137EAEU9 FHLMC Note
0.375% Due 7/21/2025

340,000.00 07/21/2020
0.48%

338,306.80
338,824.79

96.34
1.46%

327,569.94
35.42

1.12%
(11,254.85)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.47
3.43

3137EAEX3 FHLMC Note
0.375% Due 9/23/2025

370,000.00 09/23/2020
0.44%

368,886.30
369,187.93

95.96
1.52%

355,046.45
493.33

1.21%
(14,141.48)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.65
3.59

3135G06G3 FNMA Note
0.5% Due 11/7/2025

530,000.00 11/09/2020
0.57%

528,102.60
528,567.31

96.29
1.52%

510,316.33
618.33

1.74%
(18,250.98)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.77
3.70

3135G0K36 FNMA Note
2.125% Due 4/24/2026

565,000.00 Various
2.18%

562,430.10
563,841.73

102.43
1.53%

578,705.77
3,235.02

1.98%
14,864.04

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.23
4.02

3130AGFP5 FHLB Note
2.5% Due 6/12/2026

500,000.00 06/17/2019
2.19%

510,085.00
506,293.74

104.01
1.55%

520,036.00
1,701.39

1.78%
13,742.26

Aaa / AA+
NR

4.36
4.12

3130A2VE3 FHLB Note
3% Due 9/11/2026

575,000.00 Various
2.81%

583,719.50
579,305.94

105.91
1.66%

608,957.20
6,708.33

2.10%
29,651.26

Aaa / AA+
NR

4.61
4.27

3135G0Q22 FNMA Note
1.875% Due 9/24/2026

575,000.00 Various
2.78%

531,510.00
554,026.50

101.20
1.61%

581,895.40
3,803.39

2.00%
27,868.90

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.65
4.41

3130ACKB9 FHLB Note
2.625% Due 9/10/2027

600,000.00 Various
2.75%

593,685.00
596,310.03

104.81
1.72%

628,869.00
6,168.76

2.16%
32,558.97

Aaa / AA+
NR

5.61
5.17

3135G05Y5 FNMA Note
0.75% Due 10/8/2027

600,000.00 Various
0.79%

598,402.20
598,667.44

94.57
1.76%

567,390.00
1,412.51

1.94%
(31,277.44)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.69
5.51

3130AEB25 FHLB Note
3.25% Due 6/9/2028

500,000.00 01/29/2019
3.13%

504,785.00
503,247.86

108.53
1.82%

542,646.50
2,347.22

1.86%
39,398.64

Aaa / AA+
NR

6.36
5.74

3130AG3X1 FHLB Note
2.875% Due 3/9/2029

380,000.00 Various
2.66%

386,815.50
384,951.24

106.88
1.84%

406,146.28
4,309.31

1.40%
21,195.04

Aaa / AA+
NR

7.11
6.38

3130AGDY8 FHLB Note
2.75% Due 6/8/2029

510,000.00 Various
2.45%

523,261.05
519,830.82

105.96
1.88%

540,378.66
2,064.79

1.85%
20,547.84

Aaa / AA+
NR

7.36
6.64

Execution Time: 2/2/2022 12:02:50 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 6
 

Page 63 of 417



Holdings Report
As of January 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

AGENCY

3130AGUW3 FHLB Note
2.125% Due 9/14/2029

70,000.00 03/05/2020
1.21%

75,742.80
74,592.26

101.65
1.89%

71,156.54
566.08

0.24%
(3,435.72)

Aaa / AA+
NR

7.62
6.96

3135G05Q2 FNMA Note
0.875% Due 8/5/2030

610,000.00 Various
0.99%

603,622.55
604,483.11

91.84
1.92%

560,200.82
2,609.44

1.92%
(44,282.29)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

8.52
8.09

Total Agency 9,905,000.00 1.92%
9,903,600.30
9,907,216.14 1.57%

10,027,468.24
56,177.25

34.37%
120,252.10

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.54
4.28

CMO

3137B4WB8 FHLMC K033 A2
3.06% Due 7/25/2023

400,000.00 10/19/2018
3.39%

394,906.25
398,417.56

102.41
1.12%

409,629.60
204.00

1.40%
11,212.04

Aaa / NR
NR

1.48
1.32

3137B7YY9 FHLMC K037 A2
3.49% Due 1/25/2024

400,000.00 06/26/2019
2.08%

422,515.63
409,736.12

103.64
1.30%

414,561.20
1,163.33

1.42%
4,825.08

NR / AAA
NR

1.98
1.73

3137BYPQ7 FHLMC K726 A2
2.905% Due 4/25/2024

391,050.39 04/22/2019
2.72%

393,845.79
392,295.85

102.69
1.49%

401,566.13
946.67

1.37%
9,270.28

NR / AAA
NR

2.23
1.99

3137FARE0 FHMS K727 A2
2.946% Due 7/25/2024

330,000.00 07/23/2019
2.15%

340,248.05
335,010.28

102.69
1.68%

338,888.55
810.15

1.16%
3,878.27

NR / AAA
NR

2.48
2.23

3137BEVH4 FHLMC K040 A2
3.241% Due 9/25/2024

275,000.00 02/06/2020
1.80%

291,457.03
284,427.69

104.08
1.52%

286,217.53
742.73

0.98%
1,789.84

NR / NR
AAA

2.65
2.42

3137H5DX2 FHLMC K747 A2
2.05% Due 11/25/2028

350,000.00 01/19/2022
1.96%

351,635.55
351,632.90

100.60
1.94%

352,110.85
597.92

1.20%
477.95

NR / NR
AAA

6.82
6.24

Total CMO 2,146,050.39 2.39%
2,194,608.30
2,171,520.40 1.49%

2,202,973.86
4,464.80

7.52%
31,453.46

Aaa / AAA
AAA

2.87
2.59

CORPORATE

037833DC1 Apple Inc Callable Note Cont 8/12/2022
2.1% Due 9/12/2022

50,000.00 09/12/2017
2.23%

49,696.50
49,962.89

100.84
0.50%

50,421.75
405.42

0.17%
458.86

Aaa / AA+
NR

0.61
0.53

06051GEU9 Bank of America Corp Note
3.3% Due 1/11/2023

90,000.00 03/09/2018
3.44%

89,451.90
89,893.17

102.13
1.03%

91,917.63
165.00

0.31%
2,024.46

A2 / A-
AA-

0.95
0.93

808513AT2 Charles Schwab Corp Callable Note 
Cont 12/25/2022
2.65% Due 1/25/2023

350,000.00 04/13/2018
3.24%

340,903.50
348,132.71

101.55
0.92%

355,414.50
154.58

1.21%
7,281.79

A2 / A
A

0.98
0.89

Execution Time: 2/2/2022 12:02:50 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 7
 

Page 64 of 417



Holdings Report
As of January 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

CORPORATE

084670BR8 Berkshire Hathaway Callable Note Cont 
1/15/2023
2.75% Due 3/15/2023

300,000.00 07/13/2018
3.23%

293,820.00
298,522.17

101.62
1.04%

304,861.20
3,116.67

1.05%
6,339.03

Aa2 / AA
A+

1.12
0.94

06406RAG2 Bank of NY Mellon Corp Note
3.5% Due 4/28/2023

360,000.00 03/14/2019
3.01%

366,807.60
362,044.09

102.83
1.20%

370,171.08
3,255.00

1.27%
8,126.99

A1 / A
AA-

1.24
1.21

931142EK5 Wal-Mart Stores Callable Note Cont 
5/26/2023
3.4% Due 6/26/2023

115,000.00 06/20/2018
3.41%

114,968.95
114,991.32

103.07
1.05%

118,528.55
380.14

0.41%
3,537.23

Aa2 / AA
AA

1.40
1.29

89114QC48 Toronto Dominion Bank Note
3.5% Due 7/19/2023

325,000.00 07/27/2018
3.56%

324,057.50
324,723.07

103.23
1.27%

335,507.90
379.17

1.14%
10,784.83

Aa2 / AA-
AA

1.46
1.43

02665WCQ2 American Honda Finance Note
3.625% Due 10/10/2023

370,000.00 10/03/2018
3.64%

369,696.60
369,897.65

103.68
1.41%

383,620.44
4,135.52

1.32%
13,722.79

A3 / A-
A

1.69
1.63

24422EVN6 John Deere Capital Corp Note
0.45% Due 1/17/2024

205,000.00 03/01/2021
0.47%

204,854.45
204,900.79

98.28
1.34%

201,477.90
35.88

0.69%
(3,422.89)

A2 / A
A

1.96
1.94

69371RR24 Paccar Financial Corp Note
0.35% Due 2/2/2024

120,000.00 01/28/2021
0.39%

119,860.80
119,907.07

97.84
1.45%

117,404.52
208.83

0.40%
(2,502.55)

A1 / A+
NR

2.01
1.98

06051GJY6 Bank of America Corp Callable Note 
Cont 6/14/2023
0.523% Due 6/14/2024

190,000.00 06/07/2021
0.50%

190,012.80
190,010.09

98.67
1.07%

187,474.71
129.73

0.64%
(2,535.38)

A2 / A-
AA-

2.37
2.35

79466LAG9 Salesforce.com Inc Callable Note Cont 
7/15/2022
0.625% Due 7/15/2024

100,000.00 Various
0.75%

99,669.40
99,694.22

97.92
1.49%

97,915.00
27.78

0.33%
(1,779.22)

A2 / A+
NR

2.45
2.42

46647PAU0 JP Morgan Chase & Co Callable Note 1X 
7/23/2023
3.797% Due 7/23/2024

330,000.00 10/09/2019
1.98%

349,430.40
340,043.30

103.13
1.47%

340,314.48
278.45

1.16%
271.18

A2 / A-
AA-

2.48
2.38

69371RQ25 Paccar Financial Corp Note
2.15% Due 8/15/2024

145,000.00 08/08/2019
2.20%

144,679.55
144,837.58

101.30
1.62%

146,889.06
1,437.51

0.51%
2,051.48

A1 / A+
NR

2.54
2.44

94974BGA2 Wells Fargo Corp Note
3.3% Due 9/9/2024

350,000.00 09/11/2019
2.37%

365,197.00
357,927.78

103.68
1.85%

362,886.65
4,555.83

1.25%
4,958.87

A1 / BBB+
A+

2.61
2.47

78015K7C2 Royal Bank of Canada Note
2.25% Due 11/1/2024

355,000.00 12/05/2019
2.26%

354,815.40
354,896.40

101.14
1.82%

359,056.23
1,996.88

1.23%
4,159.83

A1 / A
AA-

2.75
2.64

90331HPL1 US Bank NA Callable Note Cont 
12/21/2024
2.05% Due 1/21/2025

430,000.00 01/16/2020
2.10%

429,084.10
429,456.07

100.83
1.75%

433,558.68
244.86

1.48%
4,102.61

A1 / AA-
AA-

2.98
2.80

Execution Time: 2/2/2022 12:02:50 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 8
 

Page 65 of 417



Holdings Report
As of January 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

CORPORATE

06367WB85 Bank of Montreal Note
1.85% Due 5/1/2025

264,000.00 07/23/2021
0.85%

273,720.48
272,383.38

99.90
1.88%

263,741.02
1,221.00

0.90%
(8,642.36)

A2 / A-
AA-

3.25
3.13

037833DT4 Apple Inc Callable Note Cont 4/11/2025
1.125% Due 5/11/2025

100,000.00 05/04/2020
1.16%

99,821.00
99,882.86

98.15
1.71%

98,145.50
250.00

0.34%
(1,737.36)

Aaa / AA+
NR

3.28
3.19

46647PCH7 JP Morgan Chase & Co Callable Note 
Cont 6/1/2024
0.824% Due 6/1/2025

205,000.00 05/24/2021
0.74%

205,267.30
205,222.47

97.55
1.51%

199,984.68
281.53

0.68%
(5,237.79)

A2 / A-
AA-

3.33
3.27

06051GHY8 Bank of America Corp Callable Note 
Cont 2/13/2025
2.015% Due 2/13/2026

300,000.00 Various
1.07%

309,823.50
308,472.65

99.63
1.86%

298,894.80
2,821.00

1.03%
(9,577.85)

A2 / A-
AA-

4.04
3.83

78016EZQ3 Royal Bank of Canada Note
1.2% Due 4/27/2026

150,000.00 06/09/2021
1.13%

150,517.50
150,449.22

96.51
2.06%

144,767.40
470.00

0.50%
(5,681.82)

A1 / A
AA-

4.24
4.09

023135BX3 Amazon.com Inc Callable Note Cont 
4/12/2026
1% Due 5/12/2026

465,000.00 05/10/2021
1.09%

462,991.20
463,282.73

96.94
1.74%

450,784.02
1,020.42

1.54%
(12,498.71)

A1 / AA
AA-

4.28
4.15

91324PEC2 United Health Group Inc Callable Note 
Cont 4/15/2026
1.15% Due 5/15/2026

75,000.00 06/16/2021
1.06%

75,299.25
75,260.53

96.59
1.98%

72,441.53
182.08

0.25%
(2,819.00)

A3 / A+
A

4.29
4.14

89236TJK2 Toyota Motor Credit Corp Note
1.125% Due 6/18/2026

315,000.00 06/15/2021
1.13%

314,861.40
314,878.71

96.71
1.91%

304,645.32
423.28

1.04%
(10,233.39)

A1 / A+
A+

4.38
4.24

931142ER0 Wal-Mart Stores Callable Note Cont 
08/17/2026
1.05% Due 9/17/2026

75,000.00 09/08/2021
1.09%

74,858.25
74,868.89

96.66
1.81%

72,491.85
293.13

0.25%
(2,377.04)

Aa2 / AA
AA

4.63
4.47

26442CAS3 Duke Energy Carolinas Callable Note 
Cont 9/1/2026
2.95% Due 12/1/2026

300,000.00 01/13/2022
1.81%

315,051.00
314,926.10

103.99
2.03%

311,980.20
1,475.00

1.07%
(2,945.90)

Aa3 / A
NR

4.84
4.27

87612EBM7 Target Corp Callable Note Cont 
12/15/2026
1.95% Due 1/15/2027

170,000.00 01/19/2022
1.99%

169,711.00
169,712.27

99.82
1.99%

169,693.66
64.46

0.58%
(18.61)

A2 / A
A

4.96
4.63

Total Corporate 6,604,000.00 2.00%
6,658,928.33
6,649,180.18 1.56%

6,644,990.26
29,409.15

22.75%
(4,189.92)

A1 / A
AA-

2.75
2.61

Execution Time: 2/2/2022 12:02:50 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 9
 

Page 66 of 417



Holdings Report
As of January 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

MONEY MARKET FUND

26200X845 Dreyfus Funds Inst'l Reserve Treasury 
#6541

92,556.26 Various
0.01%

92,556.26
92,556.26

1.00
0.01%

92,556.26
0.00

0.32%
0.00

Aaa / AAA
AAA

0.00
0.00

Total Money Market Fund 92,556.26 0.01%
92,556.26
92,556.26 0.01%

92,556.26
0.00

0.32%
0.00

Aaa / AAA
AAA

0.00
0.00

SUPRANATIONAL

4581X0DV7 Inter-American Dev Bank Note
0.875% Due 4/20/2026

305,000.00 04/13/2021
0.97%

303,603.10
303,822.66

96.67
1.70%

294,837.10
748.73

1.01%
(8,985.56)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

4.22
4.11

Total Supranational 305,000.00 0.97%
303,603.10
303,822.66 1.70%

294,837.10
748.73

1.01%
(8,985.56)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

4.22
4.11

US TREASURY

912828B66 US Treasury Note
2.75% Due 2/15/2024

400,000.00 Various
2.04%

420,077.56
405,298.21

103.16
1.18%

412,656.40
5,081.53

1.42%
7,358.19

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.04
1.96

912828J27 US Treasury Note
2% Due 2/15/2025

500,000.00 08/31/2015
2.15%

493,634.81
497,955.62

101.79
1.40%

508,965.00
4,619.57

1.75%
11,009.38

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.04
2.92

912828ZF0 US Treasury Note
0.5% Due 3/31/2025

325,000.00 03/30/2021
0.64%

323,146.48
323,535.96

97.20
1.41%

315,897.40
553.57

1.08%
(7,638.56)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.16
3.11

912828M56 US Treasury Note
2.25% Due 11/15/2025

350,000.00 05/29/2019
2.13%

352,419.92
351,417.51

102.69
1.52%

359,406.25
1,696.82

1.23%
7,988.74

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.79
3.61

912828R36 US Treasury Note
1.625% Due 5/15/2026

500,000.00 Various
2.23%

475,523.49
488,225.09

100.21
1.57%

501,074.00
1,750.69

1.71%
12,848.91

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.29
4.11

91282CCP4 US Treasury Note
0.625% Due 7/31/2026

150,000.00 07/29/2021
0.72%

149,285.16
149,356.88

95.81
1.59%

143,712.90
2.59

0.49%
(5,643.98)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.50
4.41

912828YG9 US Treasury Note
1.625% Due 9/30/2026

400,000.00 12/18/2019
1.86%

394,031.25
395,898.74

100.13
1.60%

400,531.20
2,214.29

1.37%
4,632.46

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.67
4.45

91282CCZ2 US Treasury Note
0.875% Due 9/30/2026

600,000.00 Various
1.13%

592,710.94
593,143.54

96.73
1.61%

580,359.60
1,788.46

1.98%
(12,783.94)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.67
4.53

Execution Time: 2/2/2022 12:02:50 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 10
 

Page 67 of 417



Holdings Report
As of January 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

US TREASURY

912828ZB9 US Treasury Note
1.125% Due 2/28/2027

545,000.00 03/24/2020
0.75%

558,901.76
555,177.78

97.59
1.62%

531,843.16
2,608.32

1.82%
(23,334.62)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.08
4.88

91282CAH4 US Treasury Note
0.5% Due 8/31/2027

150,000.00 08/06/2021
0.94%

146,121.09
146,429.58

93.76
1.68%

140,642.55
319.06

0.48%
(5,787.03)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.58
5.45

91282CAL5 US Treasury Note
0.375% Due 9/30/2027

300,000.00 10/25/2021
1.33%

283,792.97
284,526.59

93.00
1.68%

279,000.00
383.24

0.95%
(5,526.59)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.67
5.55

9128283F5 US Treasury Note
2.25% Due 11/15/2027

300,000.00 11/07/2019
1.89%

307,957.03
305,740.25

103.09
1.69%

309,269.40
1,454.42

1.06%
3,529.15

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.79
5.40

91282CBB6 US Treasury Note
0.625% Due 12/31/2027

625,000.00 03/29/2021
1.30%

597,875.98
601,262.36

93.95
1.71%

587,158.13
345.30

2.00%
(14,104.23)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.92
5.76

91282CBJ9 US Treasury Note
0.75% Due 1/31/2028

550,000.00 03/12/2021
1.28%

530,857.42
533,317.85

94.52
1.71%

519,878.70
11.40

1.77%
(13,439.15)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

6.00
5.82

91282CCV1 US Treasury Note
1.125% Due 8/31/2028

300,000.00 09/03/2021
1.10%

300,457.03
300,430.68

96.14
1.75%

288,433.50
1,435.77

0.99%
(11,997.18)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

6.59
6.27

912828YB0 US Treasury Note
1.625% Due 8/15/2029

350,000.00 05/28/2020
0.66%

380,009.77
374,542.91

99.24
1.73%

347,347.70
2,627.38

1.19%
(27,195.21)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

7.54
7.01

912828ZQ6 US Treasury Note
0.625% Due 5/15/2030

615,000.00 Various
0.90%

599,593.95
601,414.18

91.31
1.76%

561,571.88
828.21

1.92%
(39,842.30)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

8.29
8.00

91282CAV3 US Treasury Note
0.875% Due 11/15/2030

625,000.00 Various
1.30%

600,808.59
603,166.72

92.82
1.76%

580,126.88
1,178.35

1.98%
(23,039.84)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

8.79
8.37

Total US Treasury 7,585,000.00 1.38%
7,507,205.20
7,510,840.45 1.61%

7,367,874.65
28,898.97

25.21%
(142,965.80)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.41
5.19

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 29,240,574.72 1.70%
29,267,708.60
29,240,543.13 1.52%

29,216,205.36
120,445.21

100.00%
(24,337.77)

Aa1 / AA
AAA

4.08
3.72

TOTAL MARKET VALUE PLUS ACCRUED 29,336,650.57

Execution Time: 2/2/2022 12:02:50 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 11
 

Page 68 of 417



��������	

�������	�������������
	�
����������������������������������	������� !"#$%&'()'*�+,�-.--�/0'1(20�$%&'()'*�-3,�-.--
456789:;<75�=75;:<5>?�@>8><5�<A�=756<?>5;<:BC�D>�E8F>�G7E�;7�=79H:8>�;@<A�A;:;>9>5;�;7�;@>�75>�G7E�8>=><I>�6879�G7E8�JE:B<6<>?�=EA;7?<:5C�KB>:A>�A>>�49H78;:5;�L<A=B7AE8>ACMNOPQRST�UVVWX�YUZU[WYWZX\]̂ _̀ abĉddbef\gh


�i��������i�j$kl�mnopqrksp�tuknq�vknl�twwknsq,�xyotpo�wtyy�z3..{�|+}~�}�},kl�wksqtwq�����i��������i�����i��������
������i�&ts��k���o��*kl���oyyks�tnlos��o�solz�.�{����~+�+3
 

Page 69 of 417



����������		�
� ���������������������� ����������������������� !"#$�% &'# ()*+,-*.++ (/*01(*1((233!'#4�56$#!#7$ +80*-)) ++(*,.)9:$ &�� !"#$�% &'# �;<���<�=> �;<?@><;@�563:A#�B !6#4 /8*1(1 (0*),8C:6$DEF 8G ! ()*((0*1)- ()*(0,*.00H::"�% &'# ()*/()*-1- ()*/,(*),(C:7$�% &'# ()*/0,*0+1 ()*)(1*080
��I�J����
�KLMNOPQNPR�LS�TPURNV�WRXRNY -/Z+[\NVNOX]�̂LQN�_LXP�̀LORaXaN�bLOc +)Z,[\NVNOX]�dXRULPX]�̀LORaXaN�eYYLf +-Z)[\NVNOX]�̂LQN�_LXP�gXPh ,Z+[iPR]�gXPh�jNfLP�XPV�kNMN]LcQNPR -Z)[K̀ �\UPXPfUX]�elRLQLmU]N�_NXYUPa -Z([nLoLRX�egW -Z-[gXPh�LS�eQNOUfX�bLOc +Z0[��p�� =���q

I�
�r�sJ���t�
����
J��J��eMNOXaN�̀LVUSUNV�klOXRULP -Z.+eMNOXaN�bLlcLP +Z/.[eMNOXaN�ulOfvXYN�wǹ +Z(.[eMNOXaN�̀XOhNR�wǹ +Z.0[eMNOXaN�WxuỳLLVo�jXRUPa eeyeX+eMNOXaN�\UPX]�̀XRlOURo -Z08�oOYeMNOXaN�_USN -Z.0�oOY �
�zJ��{��sJ���|�}I~	���
J���zJ��
J���J�������
��ss����J��
I��p�������������27�:���#�!' !�������������p���������p�������J����r��������p����effLlPR��+,8

I�
r�
	�����
��J�� ������������������������������ �	 �	 ��z ��
 ��
� ��
� ;�
� �?�
� �������@@>dLORvNOP�be�bURUNY�WN]S�iPYZ�\lPV�WvLOR�nNOQ �8Z)-[ �+Z.-[ �+Z/1[ �-Z88[ 8Z++[ +Z00[ +Z,,[ +Z/)[ (Z),[ib �gLSe�+�)�wO�TW�nONXYlOo�x�eaNPfo�iPVN¡ �8Z/([ �+Z.8[ �+Z(([ �+Z00[ �8Z+)[ +Z1([ +Z))[ +Z-+[ (Z-,[ib �gLSe�+�)�wO�eee�e�TW�bLOc�x�KLMR�iPVN¡ �8Z/.[ �+Z.([ �+Z(0[ �-Z8+[ �8Z81[ +Z0+[ +Z.([ +Z(/[ (Z(,[ ¡NflRULP�nUQN¢�(y+y-8--�1¢)0¢-)�ùbvXPV]NO�eYYNR�̀XPXaNQNPR���b£d\ik dnie_ uXaN�+ 
Page 70 of 417



�������� 	��
���� �����
��������������� ������������ ��� !"#$%&'�(�������)*+��,��� ������������-��,��.�/����+�+�01�,2�.3����+�+�4����5���+5��,�������3��.,����������6�.����+�+��1��+�����������.1��5�7�.����+�(���������7�.�����+��,�8'&9������� ��� !"#$&�4����������� **�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-<=>��?����-@�������?��������-�����.1��A:B3�CD���*BA���� ��� !"#$E���,�4��&�,������� @�������?�������� ��� !"#$*����0A�,2�.)E���+�+�0A�,2�.&�,������� **�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-F=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$GHIJKLMNOPPKQRHIPKN S=>��?����-TU=.�����?�������� ��� !"#$D�����,���V�4�� *0T8V0T1���:&:;-F@>��?����-FW=.�����?�������� ��� !"#$D��4�����E�.������������ *�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-<=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$E����E��2��E�����C��.� X�+5��������+�1��Y��:&:;�-F=>��?���� ��� !"#$E�����C��.� X�+5��������+�1��Y��:&:;�-F=>��?���� ��� !"#$��+����1��DB� <=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$����D����7�,�����7B�4����-D����������6�.A��2B�4����� @�������?�������� ��� !"#$Z*�C E�?��������Y4������ ��� !"#$:�4��,5���*+�������� T������?��������-������.1���(�������*.(���� ��� !"#$V��5�1���. D�������4��7����.���,2�3,��(����1����[��21��.�3,����.�����3�4�����3������.4�������5�4�3'�D�3:�(������4��,5����+��������3��������..�4�����3��(����7�������-���+�������3����+�+�.���(�.3����������������4�3\������������,,������,��������75��.����������-��(��������.���������.�����0%&B-D����������6�.E���+�+�;1��+������]DE;�̂Y��5,�������������4�,�7�,����'�E*3CXZED3��C�E*-V��,5����+��������+��,������������+��-&�,����������.��+�������5��7����71����Y��+����(���+� ��� !"#$E�?V�������� @>4����������������������������?4��,���������.���5�4���,�3�?,��.��+%_&_+�(�������3�+��,�3��(�������4���3��.��������2��7��.� ��� !"#$E�?����E������� T=����� ��� !"#$

�̀��a��
��bcd��
c��c�c�e	�bdfg
eh��
i�jh
�f	a���k���lm# �nop�!"�q�� !"#$r"om$oso#!srstur"omom#�!"#tov$"tw#$o�#to �!"qxy	������
��d���zbc�
i�{$�p|#}n~snx�������

 
Page 71 of 417



���������	�
	����������	���������������	 ����������������������� !"�#$%&'()*�+&'%,-.$. /010231425652"�789$*�7-':$)�;&9<�+&'%,-.$. /=4>130=6?5"�789$*�7-':$)�@89)'(A&)(89. /B6BB"�#$%&'()*�@89)'(A&)(89. /B6BB"�#$%&'()*�C'-9.D$'. /B6BB���� �EF���������� !� �������G�H�GHI��J ���� !�K�#$%&'()*�#-L$. />541BBM635K�789$*�7-':$)�;&9<�#-L$. /0102>15426>?K�77;�N(),<'-O-L. /B6BBK�#$%&'()*�N(),<'-O-L. /B6BBK�#$%&'()*�C'-9.D$'. /B6BBK�P),$'�Q(.R8.()(89. /B6BBK�7-)&'()$. /B6BBK�@-LL. /B6BBK�+'(9%(R-L�+-*<8O9. /0B21M436?M���� �EF�I��J ���� !� ����GH������H�S T��UE�� !V���TW�� !"XK�Y$)�Z%%'$)(89 [/3125M623\ [/3125M623\�E�!V� ��� !�I��J ���� !�"XK�]$-L(̂$<�_-(9X̀8.. /5135B654 /5135B654	�I������������	 ��������������

��ab��
��a������a�cc�
d�	������������	 �e�G���G������������ !����������@89)'(A&)(89. /B6BB����������#$%&'()*�#-L$�+'8%$$<. />541BBM635����������Z%%'&$<�f9)$'$.)�]$%$(g$< /?0565B����������f9)$'$.)�]$%$(g$< /541=B2602����������Q(g(<$9<�]$%$(g$< />63=����������+'(9%(R-L�89�7-)&'()($. /B6BB����������f9)$'$.)�89�7-)&'()($. /B6BB����������@-LL.X]$<$hR)(89�[+'(9%(R-L\ /B6BB����������f9)$'$.)�D'8h�@-LL.X]$<$hR)(89 /B6BB����������+'(9%(R-L�+-*<8O9 /0B21M436?M� �EF���������� !� �����������I��J ���� !�����������N(),<'-O-L. /B6BB����������#$%&'()*�+&'%,-.$ /010231425652����������Z%%'&$<�f9)$'$.)�+-(< /01=35600� �EF�I��J ���� !� ����e����e���	�I������������	 ��G�G�G�GG


W� !��F�E�� !�a�SSETijk�lm�nopqrsqt�uvw�uxuu� T�yWT!��EF�z T!�E�����W��aWFz�!��TE!�W�{�!|�ay T���WTSZ%%8&9)�}0?B

~�$%&)(89�C(h$��5X0X3B33�4�=M�3=�+7@,-9<L$'�Z..$)�7-9-�$h$9)�K�@PY;fQ~YCfZ̀ +-�$�5 
Page 72 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !	 �����	"��#	$��%	&'��	"���	(�)*++,-./	0123 4"$5 "�6'��7	8��6������ 59	:9�'�;4���� 5'6�9��	89��<��=	>����  ���	:9�'�<��=	:9�'� ?=�	5�6�?=�	>(? ?9=��	:9�'�!66'��	$��% @	�#	5��%A9��;B���?���7;"C5	&��6� ?9�'��78'9����!<"DE223F*GH IJK+JLJM	NJ.O	*-/,	PJQMJ	RK-M/	S3S3T*	*U1VEWX	Y-J	1SZ1DZS3SS SS[\3HVU2 31ZS1ZS3S31VEDX SS[\3UVUDSS[\3DVDW 133V1U3VWHX SS[\UHVEH1EV2U 3V32XU1VUS *QQ	Z	***]̂ 3V2\3V3\W22E\_*YE _,̀.	YJJKJ	ab.JK	RK-M/	S31\T*	*USV\1X	Y-J	2Z12ZS3SU S3[E2UV2S 3HZSWZS3S33VEUX S1[WSSVW2S3[\\1VS1 133VUW3VHUX S3[\WUV2DS2V33 3V3HXcW2VWHd *QQ	Z	]̂*** 1VUE3V1WWUE1D]*GE e,.LQ	*-/,	̂J+JfgQhiJM	RK-M/	S31\TU	*U1V2EX	Y-J	EZ1DZS3SU 2\[232V3D 3EZS3ZS31\1V2\X 2\[23HVU\2\[23HV\U 133VSE3V\WX 2\[\SHVEEHUV3H 3VSUXS1\V\D *QQ	Z	***]̂ 1VWH3VU1DE2H\j*GS IJK+JLJMTNJ.O	*-/,	PJQMJ	RK-M/	S3S3TN	*U3VWX	Y-J	11Z1DZS3SU \3[333V33 3\Z1DZS3S33VW3X E\[\\DVWWE\[\\EVS2 \\VHU1V3EX E\[HHEVHS1HV33 3VSHXcUS\VHDd ]̂	Z	****** 1V213VDDW22E23*GU _,̀.	YJJKJ	ab.JK	RK-M/	S31\TN	*USVS1X	Y-J	1SZ1DZS3SU U3[2WHV2E 32Z1HZS31\SVSUX U3[2W3VSDU3[2WWV1S 133VWH3V2EX U3[EE2VSHU3VS3 3V3\X1WUV1W *QQ	Z	]̂*** 1V2\3VU1\SUWE***U kJKfO,.	ab.JK	RK-M/	S31\TG	*1*1V\WX	Y-J	WZSSZS3SW 2\[1DHVE3 13Z31ZS31\1V\DX 2\[1D3V232\[1DUV\S 133VUH1V13X 2\[WW3V1EWHV\S 3VSUXSEHVSH ]̂	Z	****** SV1D3VW1HDW2\_*YD ]fMMQ.	*-/,	̂J+JfgQhiJM	ab.JK	S31\TG	*U1V\UX	Y-J	2Z1DZS3SW 113[SS\V3U 13Z1HZS31\1V\WX 113[SSUVSS113[SSHV11 133VWD3VE\X 113[2SSVU3\WVDD 3VUSXW\HV1\ *QQ	Z	***]̂ SVUE3VWSWUE1UY*GS e,.LQ	*-/,	̂J+JfgQhiJM	S3S3TS	*U3VESX	Y-J	2Z1DZS3SW 2U[EEHVUH 3DZ1EZS3S33VEUX 2U[EE3VDD2U[EEUV3S \\V2E1V1\X 2U[2S1V2WSHV\U 3VS1Xc1H1VSEd *QQ	Z	***]̂ SVUE3VHSW22E\l*G2 _,̀.	YJJKJ	ab.JK	RK-M/	S3S3T*	*U1V1X	Y-J	EZ1DZS3SW 1WS[1U1VWD kQKf,-M1VSHX 1W1[HH\VWW1W1[EHWVH1 \\V\E1V1WX 1WS[132VEHH\VW\ 3VW1XSWUVSD *QQ	Z	]̂*** SVWH3VDEWUE1Ul*GH e,.LQ	*-/,	̂J+JfgQhiJM	RK-M/	S3S3TU	*U3VU2X	Y-J	13Z1EZS3SW 1WD[333V33 3\ZSSZS3S33VUEX 1WW[\2EV231WW[\EEVUW \\VSE1VSEX 1WU[\D3V\U1\VU2 3VW1Xc1[3U2VW1d ]̂	Z	****** SVHW3VE3UHSHSm*GE nI	Ff.Q.+fQi	*-/,	PJQMJ	RK-M/	S3S1TU	*S3VU\X	Y-J	13ZS1ZS3SW D\3[333V33 kQKf,-M3V2UX DEH[H\DVU\DE2[333V13 \EV1H1VHEX D2\[12SVUS23VU1 1VHDXc2[ES2V2Ed ]̂	Z	****** SVHD1VWWW22E2]*GU _,̀.	YJJKJ	ab.JK	RK-M/	S3S3TN	*U3VD1X	Y-J	11Z1DZS3SW DE[S\1V1D 32Z1WZS3S33VDSX DE[SESVS2DE[SEHVU2 \\VW11VU\X D2[\WDVU11UVS1 3V12XcUW1V3Hd *QQ	Z	]̂*** SV2S3VH23\H\3**G2 NIo	kJ̀f+iJ	PJQMJ	RK-M/	S3S1TS	*U3VUUX	Y-J	1SZSHZS3SW ED[333V33 3\Z3EZS3S13VUWX EW[\\1VSUEW[\\SV\\ \EVW\1VD3X EU[21HV2HWVHE 3VSWXc1[S2HVSUd *QQ	Z	]̂*** SVEU1VU3E\SUHm*G3 R,p,/Q	*-/,	̂J+JfgQhiJM	S3S3TY	*U3VUDX	Y-J	1Z1DZS3SD 11D[333V33 13Z3HZS3S33VUHX 11W[\2EVDE11W[\EDVDS \\V1D1VDWX 11W[3SDVEW12VE\ 3VUSXc\D\VHEd ]̂	Z	****** SVEE3V2SjqJ+-/f,.	RfrJs	UZ1ZS3SS	EsD\sSD	tIG̀Q.LiJK	*MMJ/	IQ.QuJrJ./	T	Ga]FvYj]Rv*P tQuJ	W 
Page 73 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !	 �����	"��#	$��%	&'��	"���	(�)*++,-./	0123 4"$5 "�6'��7	8��6������ 59	:9�'�;4���� 5'6�9��	89��<��=	>����  ���	:9�'�<��=	:9�'� ?=�	5�6�?=�	>(? ?9=��	:9�'�!66'��	$��% @	�#	5��%A9��;B���?���7;"C5	&��6� ?9�'��78'9����!<"DEED3F**D GHIJK,.	LM.HI	NI-O/	E3E3PF	*3QR2S	T-H	EUE3UE3EV E3VW333Q33 3XU3RUE3E33QRXS E3RWDVYQDVE3RWD21QYD DDQ111QRES E3ZW1YDQD2EDQRR 3QVXS[1WX31Q2E\ *]]	U	̂_*** EQDX3QDRZYEYV̀ *aD b̀ 	cJ.].+J]d	*-/,	eH]OH	NI-O/	E3EEP1	*Z1QDS	T-H	ZUE3UE3EV ER3W333Q33 3EU1VUE3EE1QD1S EZDWDD2QDREZDWDD2QDY 133Q331QD1S ER3W333Q33131QZZ 3QYXSEQ3R *]]	U	̂_*** ZQ3Y1QXY3VY31f*aZ F̀ g	GHhJ+dH	eH]OH	NI-O/	E3EEP1	*Z1Q1S	T-H	ZUEVUE3EV 11VW333Q33 31U11UE3EE1Q11S 11RWDXEQX111RWDXZQ23 DDQER1QV2S 11RW1ERQV1E1Q3X 3QZZS[XVDQ1D\ _̂	U	****** ZQ321QYVRZX1Zb*aV i,.j]	*-/,	_H+HJk]ldHO	NI-O/	E3E1P1	*Z3QE2S	T-H	RUE1UE3EV 23W333Q33 3EU12UE3E13QE2S YDWDDXQ2EYDWDDDQ1R DXQ2X1QV3S YDW1RYQEXVQEV 3QE3S[XVEQXY\ *]]	U	̂_*** ZQ1V3QDDRRXD1_*aR im-.j]J	*-/,	_H+HJk]ldHO	NI-O/	E3E3Pa	*Z3QZXS	T-H	VU1VUE3EV 1V3W333Q33 13UE3UE3E33QZDS 1RDWDYVQRV1RDWD2DQR2 DXQ2Z1QYZS 1RXW3DRQ13EVQZZ 3QRES[1WXXVQZ2\ _̂	U	****** ZQE11Q3EXDER3F*aE N,m,/]	*-/,	_H+HJk]ldHO	LM.HIO	E3E1P*	*Z3QEYS	T-H	VU1VUE3EV EVVW333Q33 3EU3EUE3E13QE2S EVRWDVEQY2EVRWDYXQXE DXQ221QVYS EV1WXVEQVREDQR2 3Q2ES[ZW11YQEX\ *]]	U	̂_*** ZQE13QDVRRDZZe*a2 im-.j]J	*-/,	_H+HJk]ldHO	NI-O/	E3E1P*	*Z3QZXS	T-H	DU1VUE3EV 1E3W333Q33 3RUE3UE3E13QZXS 11DWDX2QZX11DWDD3QXY DXQ1V1Q2RS 112W2XEQEXE3QE2 3QZRS[EWE3XQVX\ _̂	U	****** ZQVV1QZ2XDEZDF*aV N,m,/]	*-/,	_H+HJk]ldHO	NI-O/	E3E1Pa	*Z3QRZS	T-H	1U1VUE3EY ZR3W333Q33 1EU12UE3E13QD1S ZZYWYVZQ1ZZZYWX2RQ1V D2QX31Q2ZS ZZEWV11Q1YYRQDX 3QDVS[RWZYEQDD\ *]]	U	***_̂ ZQXX1Q21RZX1Vb*aZ i,.j]	*-/,	_H+HJk]ldHO	NI-O/	E3E1PR	*Z3QXXS	T-H	1UE1UE3EY DVW333Q33 11U1YUE3E13QXDS DRWD2DQD2DRWDX1QY1 DXQR31Q23S DZWRX1QZZEZQEE 3QE2S[1WV33QEX\ *]]	U	̂_*** ZQD31QD2R22XDn*aR o,h.	THHIH	LM.HI	NI-O/	E3E1PF	*Z3QVES	T-H	ZU1YUE3EY 11VW333Q33 32U1ZUE3E13QVES 11RWDXDQ2R11RWDD1QRY D2QZ21QD3S 111WD2VQYEEYQVX 3QZES[ZW31VQXR\ *]]	U	̂_*** RQ3V1QDEXDEZXo*aD N,m,/]	*-/,	_H+HJk]ldHO	NI-O/	E3E1PT	*Z3Q21S	T-H	RU1VUE3EY XVW333Q33 11U3DUE3E13Q21S XRWDDXQ1DXRWDDXQZV D2QXREQZES XZW1YRQ33EYQXE 3QERS[1WXZRQZV\ _̂	U	****** RQ1Z1QZYRRDZVc*TY im-.j]J	*-/,	_H+HJk]ldHO	NI-O/	E3E1Pa	*Z3Q2RS	T-H	VU1VUE3EY YVW333Q33 11U3DUE3E13Q2VS YRWDXVQRDYRWDXYQX3 D2QRVEQ3RS YZWZRVQEZE1QZX 3Q1XS[1WYR1QV2\ _̂	U	****** RQE11QDDpqH+-/J,.	NJrHs	ZU1UE3EE	XsVDsEV	t̀ah].jdHI	*OOH/	̀].]uHrH./	P	aL̂ cvTp̂Nv*e t]uH	V 
Page 74 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !	 �����	"��#	$��%	&'��	"���	(�)*++,-./	0123 4"$5 "�6'��7	8��6������ 59	:9�'�;4���� 5'6�9��	89��<��=	>����  ���	:9�'�<��=	:9�'� ?=�	5�6�?=�	>(? ?9=��	:9�'�!66'��	$��% @	�#	5��%A9��;B���?���7;"C5	&��6� ?9�'��78'9����!<"DEF1GH*ID J,.KL	*-/,	MN+NOPLQRNS	TU-S/	V3VVW1	*E1XFFY	Z-N	G[1G[V3V\ 1]3̂333X33 3V[1G[V3VV1XF]Y 1F]̂]21XDV1F]̂]21XG2 133X331XF]Y 1]3̂333X332]XEF 3XGDYVFXDE *LL	[	***_M DXV1VXV\E\VGGD*I1 à	bO.L.+OLR	cN+-UO/OdNK	TNUe	V3V1WD	*E3X\FY	Z-N	][1\[V3V\ 23̂333X33 13[1E[V3V13X\FY \]̂]]FXVV\]̂]]FXD1 ]FXE21X\1Y \F̂F\VX311]XFE 3XV3Yf1̂1E\XD3g *LL	[	***_M DXGG1X2\EF31D\*ID à	bO.L.+OLR	*-/,	MN+NOPLQRNS	V3VVW1	*E1XV\Y	Z-N	11[1\[V3V\ 2Ĝ333X33 31[11[V3VV1XV2Y 2D̂]]EXDF2D̂]]EX23 ]FX]]VXDDY 2D̂VDGXF3E]XEF 3XV1Yf2D2X]3g _M	[	****** DX2V3XF\(��9�	!<" hijhkilkj%mn o%lo@ hijkpiokl%qrhijkpirnr%mr n%qj@ himloilkn%rrnioqk%oj no%jo@shqirlh%hot !99	;	!!!!!! h%non%kq!Au� >E1EG̀3T]D b_a*	_,/NVXE2GY	Z-N	1[1][V3VE V33̂333X33 3D[11[V31FVX21Y 1]2̂3GVX331]]̂DGVX31 131X1E1X13Y V3V̂VG2XF3GGDX12 3XGFYV̂F3GX2] *LL	[	**v*** 3XF]3XFFE1E2w*wM\ bJxaI	_,/N3XE2GY	Z-N	G[G[V3VE GV3̂333X33 3G[3G[V3V33XE]Y G1]̂2F1X\3G1]̂]1DX3F ]]X3F1X1\Y G1ĜV11XFD\VFXEE 1XD2YfD̂23VXVDg *LL	[	**v*** 1X1F1X1FE1E2w*w_G bJxaI	_,/NVX2GY	Z-N	\[1][V3VE G33̂333X33 32[V3[V31FVXF\Y D]2̂D]3X33D]]̂EEDX\F 131X]\1XVDY G3]̂2]3XG3V̂2G3X33 1XD\Y13̂DGGXFV *LL	[	**v*** 1XE31XVFE1EG̀3G̀D b_a*	_,/N3XVGY	Z-N	2[13[V3VE VE3̂333X33 32[3F[V3V33XEVY VV]̂G3GXG3VV]̂22\X31 ]FXG]1XV]Y VV\̂2\3X]1F1XD\ 3X\GYfÊ31GX13g *LL	[	**v*** 1XE\1XE\E1E2w*wy2 bJxaI	_,/N3XVGY	Z-N	F[VD[V3VE EVĜ333X33 3F[1][V3V33XVFY EVD̂\\FXG3EVD̂FE\X\2 ]FXG31XV2Y EV3̂11EX]G1GXF3 3X]1YfD̂2VVX2Vg *LL	[	**v*** 1XDF1XDFE1EG̀3zDE b_a*	_,/NVXF2GY	Z-N	][1V[V3VE G3Ĝ333X33 3][1V[V31FVX]\Y G3V̂]V]XG3G3D̂E\DXEV 13VXE31XE\Y G1\̂\3FX]D\̂F1GX2G 1XD]Y1V̂VDDX\V *LL	[	**v*** 1XGD1XD]E1EG̀3\J1 b_a*	_,/N3XVGY	Z-N	11[V2[V3VE 1G3̂333X33 11[VE[V3V33XV]Y 1D]̂FV]X331D]̂]33XF\ ]FX311XD1Y 1D2̂313XEG]2X]V 3XDVYfV̂F]3XG1g *LL	[	**v*** 1X2G1X2EE1E3*3b23 bJxH	_,/NEXE2GY	Z-N	1V[F[V3VE DD3̂333X33 31[1\[V31]VX2EY DGV̂FDEX\3DDD̂\GVX2G 13EXDE1XD1Y DGĜ3]]X3DÊDVEX2G 1XE1Y13̂DD\XV] *LL	[	**v*** 1X2F1X2VE1E3*HEJ2 bJxH	_,/NVXE2GY	Z-N	E[F[V3VD G33̂333X33 3D[V][V31]VXE2Y G33̂3EGX33G33̂31DXG\ 131XF\1XDDY G3]̂E3FX33Ĝ23\X\3 1XD2Y]̂V]EXDD *LL	[	**v_M VX3V1X]\E1E3*1{|V bJxH	_,/NVXF2GY	Z-N	\[1D[V3VD D2Ĝ333X33 3\[1F[V31]1X]\Y D]ĜGDFX\GDFD̂DVFXD2 13VX]D1XG\Y DFF̂]2GXDGV̂]V3X]E 1XD3YD̂GD\X]F *LL	[	**v_M VXV]VXV1w}N+-/O,.	TOeN~	E[1[V3VV	F~G]~VG	�aI�L.KRNU	*SSN/	aL.L�NeN./	W	I�_b�Zw_T�*x �L�N	\ 
Page 75 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !	 �����	"��#	$��%	&'��	"���	(�)*++,-./	0123 4"$5 "�6'��7	8��6������ 59	:9�'�;4���� 5'6�9��	89��<��=	>����  ���	:9�'�<��=	:9�'� ?=�	5�6�?=�	>(? ?9=��	:9�'�!66'��	$��% @	�#	5��%A9��;B���?���7;"C5	&��6� ?9�'��78'9����!AD� >E1EFG3H2F IJK*	J,/L1M2FN	O-L	2PQPQ3QR F33S333M33 1QPQQPQ3Q13MTRN F11SQTFM33F13SRFQM23 133MEU1MFTN F31SUF3M331SRERM3E 1MRENVTSF3QM23W *XX	P	**Y*** QMERQMQTE1E3*QZ[R I\]̂	J,/LQMT2FN	O-L	UP1EPQ3QR RF3S333M33 3UP1EPQ31U1M2UN R2ESE3FMF3R_1STRRMR1 13EME31MFFN R_RSTR1M33_S3E2MF3 1MERNQSUU_MFU *XX	P	**Y*** QMFRQMRQE1EFG3[__ IJK*	J,/L1M_QFN	O-L	13P1FPQ3QR Q33S333M33 13P12PQ31U1M__N 1UUS_FTM331UUSTQ3M1U 133M3_1M_3N Q33S1QUMT31SQQ2M2T 3MF2NE3UM_1 *XX	P	**Y*** QM_EQMFFE1E3*̀IR3 I\]̂	J,/L1N	O-L	1QPQ3PQ3QR FF3S333M33 1QPQ1PQ3Q11M3QN FRUS_RQMF3FRUS__FM3F UTMET1MFUN FR1S13UMQF1S3FRM12 1MFRNVTSFFFMT3W *XX	P	**Y*** QMT1QM2FE1EFG3aQR IJK*	J,/L1M_QFN	O-L	1P2PQ3QF F3FS333M33 HXbc,-d1MQ1N F1RSTR3M3FF13ST1_MT1 UUMUE1M_FN F3RS_EEMTT1SQE3MUR 1MRRNV_S1TQMUEW *XX	P	**Y*** QMT_QM2TE1E2e*ef3 I\]Kg	J,/L1MFN	O-L	QP1QPQ3QF _3FS333M33 3QP1EPQ3Q31MFQN _3RSFERM1F_3RS2QRMF2 UUMF21M_FN _3QSRQRMF1R2TMU_ 1M2QNVQSE33M3_W *XX	P	**Y*** QMU_QMTTE1EFG3EZF IJK*	J,/L3M_QFN	O-L	RPQQPQ3QF R2FS333M33 3RPQQPQ3Q33M_2N R2RS3Q1MF3R2RSETRM1F U_MTQ1M_2N RFUSTUFMRT1S3_EMT3 1ME1NV1RSRTTM_2W *XX	P	**Y*** EM1FEM3UE1EFG3RhE IJK*	J,/L3MFN	O-L	_P12PQ3QF F_FS333M33 HXbc,-d3MR2N F_FSF2RM1FF_FSR2QMTU U_M321M2EN FRQS2_2MTQFT3M_U 1MFFNVQQS23FM32W *XX	P	**Y*** EME3EMQFE1E2e*eZU I\]Kg	J,/L3ME2FN	O-L	2PQ1PQ3QF EQ3S333M33 32PQ1PQ3Q33MRTN E1TSR3_MR3E1TSU1TMET UFM__1M_UN E3_S1QFM2_1EEMEE 3MT2NV1QS2UQM_QW *XX	P	**Y*** EMEUEMEFE1EFG3Fa2 IJK*	J,/L3ME2FN	O-L	TPQFPQ3QF F_3S333M33 HXbc,-d3MR_N FF2ST31MQ3FFTSRR1MUF UFMRE1M2EN FERSET2MQTEFM33 1MFQNVQRS3FRM_2W *XX	P	**Y*** EMRUEMRRE1E2e*eaE I\]Kg	J,/L3ME2FN	O-L	UPQEPQ3QF FFFS333M33 HXbc,-d3MRRN FFESEFRM_FFFEST3RMT2 UFMQU1M2RN FQTSTTEME2U1EMRR 1MF1NVQRSUQ1MF3W *XX	P	**Y*** EMF2EMF1E1EFG3_GE IJK*	J,/L3MFN	O-L	11P2PQ3QF F_FS333M33 HXbc,-d3MF_N F_ESRERMU3F_ESTR_M2U UFMRU1M22N FEUSFERMTUTURMFU 1MFRNVQRSE11MU3W *XX	P	**Y*** EM_UEM_Q(��9�	!���67 ijkiljmmm%mm n%op@ ijqlljlrn%slijqopjpkq%nq n%ls@ ijknqjpni%pospjmqp%ir oq%ln@tnnnjmrq%slu !99	;	!!v!!! o%rpo%rs ?wE1E2̂K_f_ I\]Kg	x2Q1	*QEM3UN	O-L	TPQFPQ3QQ E31SQR1MR3 3UPQ1PQ312QMQQN E1QS233M_1E3QSE21MUU 133MR21M31N E3QS__UMEQ22FM23 3MT_NQU2MEE *XX	P	JyJy 3MRU3MEQE1E2̂R[ T̂ I\]Kg	x3EE	*QEM3_N	O-L	2PQFPQ3QE RQFS333M33 3UP1EPQ31UQM1RN RETST_QME3RE3S3ETM1F 131M2U1MF3N REQS_33M23Q1_M2F 1MQENQSF_QMFF *XX	P	JyJy 1MR31MQRezL+-/c,.	{c|L}	EP1PQ3QQ	T}FU}QF	fKg~X.��Lb	*ddL/	KX.X�L|L./	�	g�JI�OeJ{�*] fX�L	2 
Page 76 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !	 �����	"��#	$��%	&'��	"���	(�)*++,-./	0123 4"$5 "�6'��7	8��6������ 59	:9�'�;4���� 5'6�9��	89��<��=	>����  ���	:9�'�<��=	:9�'� ?=�	5�6�?=�	>(? ?9=��	:9�'�!66'��	$��% @	�#	5��%A9��;B���?���7;"C5	&��6� ?9�'��78'9���� ?DE1E2F2GHI JKLGM	N3EO	*PEQRP2S	T-U	13VPRVP3PE W33X333Q33 13VPIVP31YEQEPS W3EXIE2QR3W31XE3WQR2 13PQOP1QORS W13XWOEQP3PERQ1E 1Q12SIX1RYQOE *ZZ	V	[\*** 1QOR1QW2E1E2F]̂_2 JKLGM	N2PO	*PPQI3RS	T-U	WVPRVP3PW EWIXWYYQ2O 3WVPPVP31IPQ2PS ER1XIY2Q32ER3XROEQR2 131Q2Y1QI1S ERRX21WQI3YWOQ3R 1Q3PSRX1R1QEE [\	V	***[\ PQ1O1QI1E1E2FJ̀IY JKLGM	N3W1	*PEQ121S	T-U	13VPRVP3PW R33X333Q33 1PV1RVP3P11Q12S RPOXEPYQ1ERPWXW1OQ1Y 13EQ1W1QYRS R1RXOI2QR31XEP1QPR 1QW2SaYX21YQOYb *ZZ	V	****** PQOOPQWRE1E2F̂cP1 JKLGM	N3RR	*PPQO2ES	T-U	EVPRVP3PO 123X333Q33 1PV1RVP3P11QPRS 12YX23RQYO12YXE3PQEI 13PQWPPQ31S 12WX13YQPPE2YQOY 3QR3SaWX1IWQ12b [\	V	[\*** WQ32EQ2WE1E2J_de2 JKLGM	N2E2	*PPQRPRS	T-U	13VPRVP3PO RPEX333Q33 1PV1RVP3P11QW1S RWYX233QRRRW2XORRQWR 131QYRPQ32S REPXOIIQ3W1X133QWY 1QRPSa1WXIROQW1b [\	V	[\*** WQOOWQPE(��9�	 ?D fghhigjkl%mh f%ll@ fgjhmgfff%lffgjknghof%kl m%jk@ fgjfkgpof%iingijn%ln j%jj@qmlghpp%nfr !99	;	!!!!!! f%nif%fk D
5D
!(sPWWPP̀tuW e,v.	TUUwU	MZxy/Zz	M,wx	[,/UPQYS	T-U	EVOVP3PE 1R3X333Q33 3OV1EVP31YEQWWS 1WRXYPYQR31WIX13RQPW 131QW31QW1S 1RPX13EQ1RPX3W1QO2 3QWWSPXII2QI1 *P	V	** 1Q3P3QII3E2YEE*NO *xxzU	{.+	[,/UPQWS	T-U	RVEVP3PE PERX333Q33 11VPYVP31YEQRWS PPWX1W3QORPEPX1PPQ13 131QPY1QE3S PEYX313Q1P1XYWYQO2 3QOYSRXYYYQ3P *ZZ	V	**|[\ 1Q1Y1Q1O3POORcMeY *}Uwy+Z.	K,.~Z	Jy.Z.+U	[,/UEQWRS	T-U	2V1WVP3PE 133X333Q33 32V11VP31YEQWIS IIXYP2Q33IIXIRPQRY 13PQE11Q2WS 13PXE1EQE3WR3QWP 3QPISPXEO3Q2P *E	V	*�* 1QE21QEWOIE21\̂RI Ẑ++Zw	Jy.Z.+yZz	M,wx	[,/UEQWS	T-U	YVIVP3PE PR3X333Q33 3YV3OVP31YEQW1S PWIXYI2QR3PWIXI23QW2 13PQRO1QO1S PROXEYIQ2RR1IQWW 3Q2ESOXW1IQPY *1	V	*|[\ 1QWW1QW13OW3O\*eO FZ.�	,�	[]	GUzz,.	M,wx	[,/UEQWRS	T-U	YV11VP3PE EP3X333Q33 3RV1OVP31IPQ2IS EPYXW1OQ33EPPXY2YQ31 13PQEE1QYPS EP2XWR3QPWO1EQEE 3QIESWXR2PQPE *1	V	***� 1QWR1QW13POORcM_P *}Uwy+Z.	K,.~Z	Jy.Z.+U	[,/UEQOPRS	T-U	13V13VP3PE PWRX333Q33 13V3EVP31YEQOWS PWWX2IIQ13PWWXIERQE1 13PQI11Q2IS PRPX1E1QWOEXW2YQWI 3Q2ES2X1IOQ1R *E	V	*�* 1QO11QRRPWWPP̀�[O e,v.	TUUwU	MZxy/Zz	M,wx	[,/U3QWRS	T-U	1V12VP3PW 1IRX333Q33 3EV31VP3P13QW2S 1IWXYO1QRR1IWXI3IQEE I2QY11QOES 1I3X2E3QWY132QPR 3QRWSaWX12YQYRb *P	V	** 1QYY1QYO3O3R1uKJI FZ.�	,�	*}Uwy+Z	M,wx	MZzzZ�zU	[,/U	1d	EVRVP3PEEQRRS	T-U	EVRVP3PW EP1X333Q33 3EV3OVP31IEQ32S EPPXPERQYREP1XWIYQ33 131QOP1Q21S EPOX1Y2QEORXR21Q1E 3QIRSWXOYIQEO *P	V	*�**� PQ3P1QIPYI11W_MFP t,w,./,	T,}y.y,.	FZ.�	[,/UEQPRS	T-U	EV11VP3PW EPRX333Q33 3EVPOVP31IPQI2S EPIX11WQR3EPOXOYWQWW 13PQOE1QIPS EEEXROEQ13WXIY2QYR 3QIOSOXY2YQOO *1	V	***� PQ3E1QIW�̀U+-/y,.	ty}U�	EV1VP3PP	Y�RI�PR	̂GMvZ.~zUw	*��U/	GZ.Z�U}U./	�	M�[J{T̀[t{*L Ẑ�U	Y 
Page 77 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !	 �����	"��#	$��%	&'��	"���	(�)*++,-./	0123 4"$5 "�6'��7	8��6������ 59	:9�'�;4���� 5'6�9��	89��<��=	>����  ���	:9�'�<��=	:9�'� ?=�	5�6�?=�	>(? ?9=��	:9�'�!66'��	$��% @	�#	5��%A9��;B���?���7;"C5	&��6� ?9�'��78'9���� D
5D
!(EF3FG1HIJK LMNOPQR	S+MTNU	L,OV	LNPPNUPQ	J,/Q	L,./	WX1FXW3WK3Y2GZ	[-Q	HX1FXW3WK 1\3]333Y33 3HX1\XW3W13Y22Z 1Ĝ]̂W3Y331Ĝ]̂KGYK3 2̂YF̂1YF3Z 1G\]\WKY\KGKHYHH 3YKGZ_H]HW3Y2\̀ *W	X	** WY3GWY3W3\H\2abcH IN.d	,e	f,./OQNP	J,/Q3Y\WGZ	[-Q	2X̂XW3WK W33]333Y33 3WX3̂XW3WW1YF̂Z 1̂K]32WY331̂K]1̂HYĤ \̂YGGWY1HZ 1̂H]13WYW31F3YG\ 3YGGZ_1]3̂1Y1̂` *W	X	*g**g WYH\WYHW2̂K\\h*î SNPQRe,O+QY+,j	k.+	LNPPNUPQ	J,/Q	L,./	2X1GXW3WW3Y\WGZ	[-Q	2X1GXW3WK ŴG]333Y33 lNOm,-R3ŶHZ ŴW]21GŶGŴW]̂W1YHW 2̂YŴ1Y2̂Z WF2]31FYKFWHGYĜ 3YFWZ_G]̂3WYFK̀ *W	X	*nJo WYHFWYHK\̂H21obWG pN++NO	qm.N.+mNP	L,OV	J,/QWY1GZ	[-Q	FX1GXW3WK 23]333Y33 3FX3FXW31̂WYW3Z \̂]FKGYH3\̂]̂WHŶ\ 133YKG1Ŷ\Z 23]H1\YHH\\YF̂ 3YW3ZĤWYH2 *1	X	*nJo WYK\WYĤ2F31Gr2LW o,sNP	IN.d	,e	LN.NtN	J,/QWYWGZ	[-Q	11X1XW3WK HWG]333Y33 1WX3GXW31̂WYW\Z HWK]FH1Y33HWK]̂32YF3 133Y3̂WYWWZ HWG]WFGYHGW]KH2YG3 3ŶHZH22YGG *1	X	***g WY\FWYG\1K̂1HbHIH LN/QOVmPPNO	qm.P	SQOum+Q	J,/QWY1GZ	[-Q	11XFXW3WK HWG]333Y33 3WX1̂XW3W31YFHZ HŴ]\WFY33HW2]\K1YFF 133YG21ŶHZ HW\]F\3ŶGW]1̂HYH3 3ŶKZ_2F3ŶH̀ *W	X	** WY23WYĜF̂WH\avaH a,s,/N	f,/,O	LOQtm/	L,OV	J,/Q1YKGZ	[-Q	1X1HXW3WG H13]333Y33 31X13XW3WW1YG3Z H3̂]GFKY\3H3̂]\3WYK1 F̂YKKWY31Z H3G]1\2Y13Ĝ ŶHH 3YF2Z_K]KHGYH1̀ *1	X	*n*n WYFFWY2̂3̂HH1wph1 xS	IN.d	J*	LNPPNUPQ	J,/Q	L,./	1WXW1XW3WKWY3GZ	[-Q	1XW1XW3WG HK3]333Y33 31X1\XW3W3WY13Z HĤ]W2GYF3HĤ]GF1Y3W 133Y1KWY33Z HK3]K\GYK\22KYKK 3Ŷ2ZFFKYKK *1	X	**g**g WŶ3WY2̂2K2GWG*q3 b-NP+,jj	k.+	LNPPNUPQ	J,/Q	L,./	WXW3XW3WGHYKGZ	[-Q	GXW3XW3WG HG3]333Y33 1WXWWXW3W11YK\Z H2W]̂22YG3H21]2̂1YG\ 13HŶ\WY12Z H\H]F21Ŷ3H]HF2Y21 1Y3GZ_2]̂1̂Y\\̀ *W	X	*Jo HYWWHY3HK\\K2pLw2 vp	f,OyN.	LMNRQ	z	L,	LNPPNUPQ	J,/Q	L,./	\X1XW3WK3YFWKZ	[-Q	\X1XW3WG H33]333Y33 3GXWKXW3W13Y2KZ H33]HFFYF3H33]H1\Y1G \̂YFW1Y22Z Ŵ3]KG\Y13\1FY33 3YFHZ_̂]F\3Y3G̀ *W	X	*g**g HYW\HY1FK\\K2pLr3 vp	f,OyN.	LMNRQ	z	L,	LNPPNUPQ	J,/Q	L,./	\XWHXW3WK3Ŷ\̂Z	[-Q	\XWHXW3WG 1K3]333Y33 lNOm,-R3YF2Z 1K3]3F2YGG1K3]32WYG\ \̂ŶK1YFHZ 1HG]211YWKWG\YWG 3YĤZ_K]H\1YHẀ *W	X	*g**g HYHWHYWHF̂2FFf**3 aO-mR/	qm.N.+mNP	L,OV	LNPPNUPQ	J,/Q	L,./	32X3HXW3WG1YWZ	[-Q	FXGXW3WG HG3]333Y33 3WX3HXW3WW1YFGZ HKW]H1KY33HKW]KK\Y\W \̂YKWWYŴZ HH2]KG\Y23H3HYHH 3Ŷ\Z_K]̂F̂ŶẀ *H	X	*g* HYKKHYHHK\\K2pIr1 vp	f,OyN.	LMNRQ	z	L,	LNPPNUPQ	J,/Q	L,./	KXWWXW3WGWY3FHZ	[-Q	KXWWXW3W\ W33]333Y33 3WX12XW3WWWYK̂Z 1̂\]G3FY331̂\]GWKY3F F̂Y\FWYĤZ 1̂2]H\̂Y331]K̂WYFW 3YG2ZFKKŶW *W	X	*g**g KY1GHŶ1{|Q+-/m,.	amjQ}	HX1XW3WW	F}Ĝ}WG	pfLMN.tPQO	*RRQ/	fN.NyQjQ./	g	L~Jqk[{Jak*h pNyQ	̂ 
Page 78 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !	 �����	"��#	$��%	&'��	"���	(�)*++,-./	0123 4"$5 "�6'��7	8��6������ 59	:9�'�;4���� 5'6�9��	89��<��=	>����  ���	:9�'�<��=	:9�'� ?=�	5�6�?=�	>(? ?9=��	:9�'�!66'��	$��% @	�#	5��%A9��;B���?���7;"C5	&��6� ?9�'��78'9���� D
5D
!(E3FG1GHIJG *KLM,.N+,K	O.+	PLQQLRQS	T,/S	P,./	UV1FVF3FW1X	Y-S	HV1FVF3FW UU3Z333N33 3HV13VF3F11N3[X UG\Z3[[NF3UG\ZU3UNF3 [WNGH1N[1X UFGZ[U\N\31ZGGFNFF 1NF1X]1UZUHHNU3̂ *1	V	****_ UNF3UN3\\3\H1GÌH PaLbQSc	d+aeLR	P,bf	PLQQLRQS	T,/S	P,./	UV1GVF3FW1N1HX	Y-S	HV1GVF3FW F33Z333N33 1FV1HVF3F11NU[X 1[2Z1HFN331[2ZF\GN3W [WN32FN1GX 1[FZ1GHN\3W[3N33 3NHHX]HZ1U2NFŴ *F	V	** UNF1UN3W[1GFUghPF i.j/Sk	lSLQ/a	mb,-f	O.+	PLQQLRQS	T,/S	P,./	UV1HVF3FW1N1HX	Y-S	HV1HVF3FW GHHZ333N33 nLbj,-c1N3[X GHHZ[F\N2HGHHZ\1FNH3 [HN\1FNF3X GU3Z11FNG21ZF3FN32 3N[2X]1HZ233N1Ĝ *G	V	*o* UNF1UN3W\[FGWpqrF p,s,/L	t,/,b	PbSkj/	P,bf	T,/S1N1FHX	Y-S	WV1\VF3FW G33Z333N33 3WV1HVF3F11N1GX F[[Z\W\N33F[[Z\\WNH1 [HN2\FN1WX F\2ZGUGNG3W\UNG\ 3N\FX]1FZHUGNF1̂ *1	V	*o*o UNG3UN1W3W3H1mqYF IL.u	,v	*KSbj+L	P,bf	PLQQLRQS	T,/S	P,./	WV1[VF3FH1NG1[X	Y-S	WV1[VF3FW GH3Z333N33 nLbj,-c1NGWX GU[Z3UFN33GU[Z31WNWW [HNWFFNG2X GGUZW2\N2H[FGNG3 3N[WX]1UZGG2N[1̂ *F	V	*_**_ UNG1UN1GH[U[1\ÌU tj+b,c,v/	PLQQLRQS	T,/S	P,./	HV\VF3FWFNUX	Y-S	\V\VF3FW GH3Z333N33 1FVF1VF3F11NGWX GWHZUUFN33GWUZ2\UNU\ 131NWW1N[[X GHHZ\1\NU3HGWNW2 1N3FX]\Z[WWN3\̂ *LL	V	****** UNUUGN[2\[11Upwm3 p,b,./,_Y,Kj.j,.	IL.u	T,/S1NFHX	Y-S	[V13VF3FW F33Z333N33 1FV1HVF3F11NW2X 1[WZF3FN331[WZGWUNWH [UN\2FNUHX 1\[Z2UWNU31Z1\2NH3 3NHUX]WZW1\NFĤ *1	V	***_ UNHGUNGU3G2\GGYT2 *ffQS	O.+	PLQQLRQS	T,/S	P,./	2V11VF3FWFN3HX	Y-S	[V11VF3FW F23Z333N33 nLbj,-c1NH3X F2WZHWHN\3F2WZFU2N\\ [[N\1FN3[X FW[ZU\2N33FZW1GN2H 3N2\X]WZ2W3N\\̂ *LL	V	**oT̀ UNHUUNF23WGW\x*PG IL.u	,v	t,./bSLQ	T,/S1NFHX	Y-S	[V1HVF3FW F\3Z333N33 3[V1GVF3F11NF\X F2[ZWW1NF3F2[ZW[FN1[ [UN\[FNUUX FWHZ23FNGW1ZW1GN\[ 3N2WX]1GZ[\[N\Ĝ *F	V	*_**_ UNHHUNGH[G11UFh̀3 yLQ_tLb/	d/,bSc	PLQQLRQS	T,/S	P,./	3\V12VF3FW1N3HX	Y-S	[V12VF3FW 23Z333N33 3[V3\VF3F11N3[X W[Z\W2N23W[Z\2[NWH [WN3H1N[WX W2ZFG1N[[GGUN\G 3N1[X]FZWU2NWŴ *LF	V	**** UNHHUNG[2\31WhwwG ,̀sLQ	IL.u	,v	PL.LkL	T,/S1NUX	Y-S	11VFVF3FW F33Z333N33 1FV1HVF3F11N2UX 1[WZ\H3N331[WZ[\3N\\ [HNG2FNUHX 1[3Z2U3NU31Z1F3N33 3NHHX]WZFU3NU\̂ *1	V	***_ UNW\UNUW\2W1FhIt2 pLbzS/	P,bf	PLQQLRQS	T,/S	P,./	1FV1HVF3FW1N[HX	Y-S	1V1HVF3F2 F3HZ333N33 31V1[VF3FF1N[[X F3UZWH1NH3F3UZWH\NU3 [[N1\FN1GX F3GZG1\NG[U13N\H 3NH\X]1ZGU3N31̂ *F	V	** UN\\UNWF(��9�	 ���9�� {|}~�|���%�� �%{�@ {|}��|���%��{|}��|���%�� ~%��@ {|�~{|{�{%�}��|���%}� ~�%}�@���~|�{�%�~� !�	;	!�!� �%���%��h�S+-/j,.	pjKS�	GV1VF3FF	\�H[�FH	gtPaL.kQSb	*ccS/	tL.LzSKS./	_	P�TxOYhTpO*� gLzS	13 
Page 79 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !	 �����	"��#	$��%	&'��	"���	(�)*++,-./	0123 4"$5 "�6'��7	8��6������ 59	:9�'�;4���� 5'6�9��	89��<��=	>����  ���	:9�'�<��=	:9�'� ?=�	5�6�?=�	>(? ?9=��	:9�'�!66'��	$��% @	�#	5��%A9��;B���?���7;"C5	&��6� ?9�'��78'9����?D�E>	?!
FE(	&4�8GHG33IJKL MNOPQ-R	S-.TR	U.R/VW	XORONYO	ZNO[R-NP	0HLK1 L3\3K3]33 [̂N_,-R3]31̀ L3\3K3]33L3\3K3]33 1]333]31̀ L3\3K3]333]33 3]1K̀3]33 *[[	a	****** 3]333]33(��9�	?���7	?9=��	&'�� bcdcec%cc c%cf@ bcdcec%ccbcdcec%cc c%cf@ bcdcec%ccc%cc c%fe@c%cc !99	;	!!!!!! c%ccc%cc?4�$ $5!B	<D�8"1g3HgMXhH i[W_Q,N._[	j/[/O	Z[k[lWO	mnG]K̀	M-O	13a1aG3GK gG3\333]33 13a1HaG31o1]o1̀ gG2\gL3]K3gGg\JL3]K3 131]231]2g̀ gGL\KK3]33g\G33]33 3]oK̀1\LJo]H3 *[G	a	**p** G]LoG]KJ(��9�	?'��6��9�	<���� qrcdccc%cc f%sf@ qrtdqbc%ecqrqdubc%ec f%tq@ qrbdeec%ccqdrcc%cc c%se@fdbus%vc !9r	;	!!w!! r%bsr%eu"45
!�!($D�!BKLo3LJxyJ U./W]	z[.{	XO+,.	|	MOYOW,}~O./	�,/O3]L̀	M-O	13aGJaG3GL o13\333]33 [̂N_,-R1]33̀ JoG\J1o]G3Jog\2Jg]LG oL]g21]J1̀ JH2\Jgo]231\LLK]Lo G]KJ̀�GL\oKg]JG� *[[	a	****** g]H2g]H3KLJ1I3M̂2 U./ONp*~ON_+[.	MOY	z[.{	�,/O3]J2L̀	M-O	KaG3aG3GH L2L\333]33 3Ka1gaG3G13]o2̀ L2G\gHH]L3L2G\JG3]J3 oH]321]JH̀ LLG\K1J]H31\Jg3]JG 1]LJ̀�G3\K3G]G3� *[[	a	****** K]1KK]3g(��9�	"'�9�9����9� fdeubdccc%cc c%ss@ fdevbdfub%tcfdevvdvce%qr f%uq@ fdercdrbu%qcqdqub%ef e%cv@�evdqev%cr� !99	;	!!!!!! q%ubq%tv4"	(
E!"4
>o1GJGJ�g3 �j	ZNO[R-NP	�,/OG]1GL̀	M-O	1Gag1aG3GG KG3\333]33 31aGLaG31JG]KH̀ K1g\K23]g1K1J\Jog]LJ 133]oK3]oò KGg\oLg]JJ1\K2o]GJ 1]G1̀L\3H3]g3 *[[	a	**�*** 3]JK3]Jgo1GJGiM�3 �j	ZNO[R-NP	�,/O3]L̀	M-O	11ag3aG3Gg LL3\333]33 1GaGgaG3G13]HJ̀ LKJ\13o]gJLKJ\GJ1]L3 oJ]KL1]K3̀ LK1\K23]H3HJ2]L3 1]LK̀�H\J13]o3� *[[	a	**�*** 1]2L1]2go1GJGizX1 �j	ZNO[R-NP	�,/O3]GL̀	M-O	ga1LaG3GK gL3\333]33 3gag3aG3G13]gg̀ gKo\1LG]gKgKo\K1L]G2 o2]LL1]K2̀ gK1\KK1]KLK3g]HH 3]o2̀�2\o2g]JG� *[[	a	**�*** G]3KG]3Go1GJGiiig �j	ZNO[R-NP	�,/O3]GL̀	M-O	La1LaG3GK 233\333]33 1GaG1aG3G13]J3̀ Ho3\Jgo]JKHo1\LHG]1J o2]GJ1]L1̀ HJ3\oK1]13L1G]Kg 1]oK̀�13\HG1]3J� *[[	a	**�*** G]G1G]1o�kO+-/_,.	Z_~O�	ga1aG3GG	J�Lo�GL	��i�[.TWON	*RRO/	�[.[�O~O./	p	in�SUM��ZU*y �[�O	11 
Page 80 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !	 �����	"��#	$��%	&'��	"���	(�)*++,-./	0123 4"$5 "�6'��7	8��6������ 59	:9�'�;4���� 5'6�9��	89��<��=	>����  ���	:9�'�<��=	:9�'� ?=�	5�6�?=�	>(? ?9=��	:9�'�!66'��	$��% @	�#	5��%A9��;B���?���7;"C5	&��6� ?9�'��78'9����4"	(
D!"4
>E1FGFGHHI JK	LMNOP-MQ	R,/NFS	T-N	UVI3VF3FW XX3Y333Z33 1FV1FVF31E1Z2WS XXUYFEWZEFXXIYFFGZEW 131Z131ZXFS XXUY3XGZG31YGFIZF3 1ZXESFYGFEZGU *OO	V	**[*** FZIWFZF2E1FGFGTXU JK	LMNOP-MQ	R,/NFZI2XS	T-N	GV1XVF3FW X33Y333Z33 3GVFEVF31E1ZWXS XFFY1U2ZE2X13YEGUZ11 131ZEG1ZXXS X3EYE3FZX3WXEZFX 1ZWXS\1Y3GIZU1] *OO	V	**[*** FZWUFZIEE1FGFGIT3 JK	LMNOP-MQ	R,/NFZFXS	T-N	13VI1VF3FW X33Y333Z33 11V32VF31E1Z22S X11YI3GZXEX3UY3U1ZX3 131Z2X1ZXGS X3GY2X3Z33IY2U3ZIU 1ZWUSFYUGGZX3 *OO	V	**[*** FZU2FZX2E1FGF̂TRG JK	LMNOP-MQ	R,/N1S	T-N	1FV1XVF3FW XX3Y333Z33 1FV1XVF3F13ZEES XX3Y121ZGGXX3Y1U3Z11 EGZI21ZU3S XW1Y31EZU31Y1WGZIX 1ZXWS\EY1W3ZX1] *OO	V	**[*** FZG3FZ2IE1FGFG_̂2 JK	LMNOP-MQ	R,/N1Z1FXS	T-N	FVFGVF3FX WX3Y333Z33 3IV1GVF3F33ZG1S WXUYEWIZIUWXWYF32ZX1 EGZXU1ZUFS WWIYX1IZ231IZ2U 1ZFUS\13YUEIZG1] *OO	V	**[*** IZ33FZEIE1FGFG_̀3 JK	LMNOP-MQ	R,/N3ZXS	T-N	IVI1VF3FX XUXY333Z33 31VFXVF3F13ZIFS XUEYFXEZX2XUGY1WXZ13 EUZU31ZUIS XWXY2EEZ3W1Y12EZU2 1ZXUS\FFYIWUZ3U] *OO	V	**[*** IZ3EIZ3IE1FGF̂*aI JK	LMNOP-MQ	R,/N3ZFXS	T-N	EVI3VF3FX X2XY333Z33 3FV1EVF3F13ZX1S XUGY1WEZW1XUEYUUXZWF EWZE21Z23S XWUY3EIZ3IU33ZF2 1ZXUS\FIYX2FZIE] *OO	V	**[*** IZXEIZXWE1FGF̂*LG JK	LMNOP-MQ	R,/N3ZFXS	T-N	13VI1VF3FX X2XY333Z33 31V11VF3F13ZWGS XUGYG33Z2GX23YFU1ZFE EWZGU1Z23S XWXYWW1ZXXWG3ZWE 1ZXUS\FWYG1EZ2W] *OO	V	**[*** IZU2IZUFE1FGF̂*_W JK	LMNOP-MQ	R,/N3ZI2XS	T-N	11VI3VF3FX XUXY333Z33 3IVFUVF3F13Z22S XXWYGUEZ2IXXUYGUEZU2 EXZ1U1Z21S XI2YU22Z12XFEZUE 1ZXIS\1EY1EFZX3] *OO	V	**[*** IZ2UIZUEE1FGF̂ b̂G JK	LMNOP-MQ	R,/N3ZG2XS	T-N	UVI3VF3FU IX3Y333Z33 1FVFFVF3F11ZFFS IWWY23GZEGIWWYEF2Z3I EUZWI1Z2IS II2YX3IZEXX32ZU3 3ZEUS\2YWFIZ3G] *OO	V	**[*** WZIWWZFFE1FGF̂ ĉW JK	LMNOP-MQ	R,/N3ZUFXS	T-N	2VI1VF3FU 1W3Y333Z33 3GV3WVF3F13ZUGS 1IEYUFFZUU1IEYUUXZ2U EXZFG1Z2WS 1IIYIEIZUG23Z13 3ZIGS\UYF2FZ3G] *OO	V	**[*** WZWFWZIIE1FGF̂ d̂E JK	LMNOP-MQ	R,/N3Z2XS	T-N	GVI1VF3FU 1X3Y333Z33 3EV12VF3F13ZGUS 1WEY1GXZXX1WEYFXGZU1 EXZ2U1Z2IS 1WIYUWFZXXIZ3U 3ZW1S\XYU1UZ3U] *OO	V	**[*** WZX1WZIEE1FGF̂ _̂F JK	LMNOP-MQ	R,/N3ZG2XS	T-N	EVI3VF3FU GX3Y333Z33 eOMf,-P1Z3GS GW1YXE1ZG3GWFYFFGZ1E EUZF31Z2WS G12YUEIZF3IY13XZ2G FZIWS\FWYXIWZEE] *OO	V	**[*** WZXEWZWX
ghN+-/f,.	LfiNj	IV1VF3FF	GjXEjFX	cak̂O.lmNM	*PPN/	aO.OnNiN./	o	̂pR̀qTgRLq*r cOnN	1F 

Page 81 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !	 �����	"��#	$��%	&'��	"���	(�)*++,-./	0123 4"$5 "�6'��7	8��6������ 59	:9�'�;4���� 5'6�9��	89��<��=	>����  ���	:9�'�<��=	:9�'� ?=�	5�6�?=�	>(? ?9=��	:9�'�!66'��	$��% @	�#	5��%A9��;B���?���7;"C5	&��6� ?9�'��78'9����4"	(
D!"4
>E1FGFHIJK LM	NOPQR-OS	T,/P1U1FVW	I-P	13XK1XF3FY FG3Z333U33 11X1VXF3F11UFVW F2GZFEKU2VF2GZKE1UG[ E2UFK1U2[W F2FZFVYUKF1Z3VFUE3 3U2GW\YZ1KVUVF] *QQ	X	**̂*** [UY2[UV3(��9�	4"	(�9�'7 _̀abc̀ccc%cc d%cd@ _̀adb̀efc%_b_̀acb̀bce%ad d%ge@ _̀fbàggb%dbdh̀_dh%ig bf%ca@jdhg̀agh%fek !99	;	!!l!!! i%cgb%e_(m(!B	5m
(&mB$m ig̀ieh̀ae_%_h d%ia@ ig̀gi_̀ece%diig̀fhìghi%bi d%ae@ if̀e_ì_ib%eiddìhaf%g_ dcc%cc@jf_èhfc%ick !9d	;	!!!!! b%ecb%ad(m(!B	?!
nD(	:!B4D	5B4"	!  
4D8 ig̀ceh̀geh%gd

opP+-/q,.	NqrPs	KX1XF3FF	GsVEsFV	tuHvQ.wxPO	*RRP/	uQ.QyPrP./	z	H{T|}IoTN}*~ tQyP	1K 
Page 82 of 417



��������	

�������	�������������
����
������������������������������� �	!!�����"#$#%&'()*(+�,-�./..�01(2)31�%&'()*(+�.4-�./..
56789:;<=86�>86<;=6?@�A?9?=6�=B�>867=@?6<=;CD�E?�F9G?�H8F�<8�>8:I;9?�<A=B�B<;<?:?6<�<8�<A?�86?�H8F�9?>?=J?�798:�H8F9�KF;C=7=?@�>FB<8@=;6D�LC?;B?�B??�5:I89<;6<�M=B>C8BF9?BDNOPQRSTU�VWWXY�ZV[V\XZX[Y]̂ _̀ abcd_eecfg]hi


������������j%kl�mnopqrksp�tuknq�vknl�twwknsq-�xyotpo�wtyy�z4//{�|,}~�}�}-kl�wksqtwq������������!�������������!��
��������'ts��k���o��+kl���oyyks�tnlos��o�solz�/�{����~,�,4
 

Page 83 of 417



����������		�
� ���������������������� ����������������������� !"#$�% &'# ()*(+,*(-. ()*-/)*0+1233!'#4�56$#!#7$ +(-*//. +(0*8,09:$ &�� !"#$�% &'# �;<��=<=>� �;<�?�<@��563:A#�B !6#4 /(*-(+ 0)*11,C:6$DEF -G ! ()*(/-*.8. ()*(8/*0(0H::"�% &'# ()*(/-*./0 ()*0-(*(.)C:7$�% &'# ()*(,8*8-) ()*0/-*1//
��I�J����
�KLMNOPQNPR�LS�TPURNV�WRXRNY (.Z([\NVNOX]�̂LQN�_LXP�̀XPa +/Z,[\NVNOX]�bXRULPX]�cLORdXdN�eYYLf +0Z8[\NVNOX]�̂LQN�_LXP�cLORdXdN�gLOh +0Z-[iNPPNYYNN�jX]]Nk�elRmLOURk (Z-[X̀Pa�LS�eQNOUfX�gLOh +Z)[no�cLOdXP�gmXYN�p�gL +Z1[iLkLRX�èW +Z1[��q�� ?r��s

I�
�t�uJ���v�
����
J��J��eMNOXdN�cLVUSUNV�wlOXRULP 0Z88eMNOXdN�gLlhLP +Z8.[eMNOXdN�olOfmXYN�xic +Z,,[eMNOXdN�cXOaNR�xic +Z8)[eMNOXdN�WpoycLLVk�zXRUPd eeyeX+eMNOXdN�\UPX]�cXRlOURk /Z+.�kOYeMNOXdN�_USN 0Z)/�kOY �
�{J��|��uJ���}�~I�	���
J���{J��
J���J�������
��uu����J��
I��q�������������27�:���#�!' !�������������q�����������q�������J����t����u�������effLlPR��+8+

I�
t�
	�����
��J�� ������������������������������ �	 �	 ��{ ��
 ��
� ��
� >�
� �@�
� >�����@@=bLORmNOP�gX]Z�gURUNY�WN]S� PYZ�\lPV�_LPd�iNOQ ¡-Z.,[ ¡+Z).[ ¡+Z8,[ ¡(Z+/[ ¡-Z-/[ (Z.0[ (Z+/[ +Z1.[ 0Z/0[ g¢�̀LSe�+¡+-�xO�TW�iONXYlOk�p�edNPfk� PVN£ ¡-Z/([ ¡+Z)0[ ¡+Z,.[ ¡(Z-.[ ¡-Z/-[ (Z()[ +Z1,[ +Z.-[ 0Z-8[ g¢�̀LSe�+¡+-�xO�eee¡e�TW�gLOh�p�KLMR� PVN£ ¡-Z.0[ ¡(Z-8[ ¡+Z1/[ ¡(Z+0[ ¡-Z(([ (Z.0[ (Z+-[ +Z10[ 0Z(/[¢£NflRULP�iUQN¤�0y+y(-((�1¤.)¤/)�ocgmXPV]NO�eYYNR�cXPXdNQNPR�¡�g¥b\ w¢bi e_ oXdN�+ 
Page 84 of 417



�������� 	��
���� �����
��������������� ������������ ��� !"#$%&'�(�������)*+��,��� ������������-��,��.�/����+�+�01�,2�.3����+�+�4����5���+5��,�������3��.,����������6�.����+�+��1��+�����������.1��5�7�.����+�(���������7�.�����+��,�8'&9������� ��� !"#$&�4����������� **�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-<=>��?����-@�������?��������-�����.1��A:B3�CD���*BA���� ��� !"#$E���,�4��&�,������� @�������?�������� ��� !"#$*����0A�,2�.)E���+�+�0A�,2�.&�,������� **�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-F=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$GHIJKLMNOPPKQRHIPKN S=>��?����-TU=.�����?�������� ��� !"#$D�����,���V�4�� *0T8V0T1���:&:;-F@>��?����-FW=.�����?�������� ��� !"#$D��4�����E�.������������ *�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-<=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$E����E��2��E�����C��.� X�+5��������+�1��Y��:&:;�-F=>��?���� ��� !"#$E�����C��.� X�+5��������+�1��Y��:&:;�-F=>��?���� ��� !"#$��+����1��DB� <=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$����D����7�,�����7B�4����-D����������6�.A��2B�4����� @�������?�������� ��� !"#$Z*�C E�?��������Y4������ ��� !"#$:�4��,5���*+�������� T������?��������-������.1���(�������*.(���� ��� !"#$V��5�1���. D�������4��7����.���,2�3,��(����1����[��21��.�3,����.�����3�4�����3������.4�������5�4�3'�D�3:�(������4��,5����+��������3��������..�4�����3��(����7�������-���+�������3����+�+�.���(�.3����������������4�3\������������,,������,��������75��.����������-��(��������.���������.�����0%&B-D����������6�.E���+�+�;1��+������]DE;�̂Y��5,�������������4�,�7�,����'�E*3CXZED3��C�E*-V��,5����+��������+��,������������+��-&�,����������.��+�������5��7����71����Y��+����(���+� ��� !"#$E�?V�������� @>4����������������������������?4��,���������.���5�4���,�3�?,��.��+%_&_+�(�������3�+��,�3��(�������4���3��.��������2��7��.� ��� !"#$E�?����E������� T=����� ��� !"#$

�̀��a��
��bcd��
c��c�c�e	�bdfg
eh��
i�jh
�fk�
�l���mn# �opq�!"�r�� !"#$s"pn$ptp#!tstuvs"pnpn#�!"#upw$"ux#$p�#up �!"ryz	������
��d���{bc�
i�|$�q}#~o�toy�������

 
Page 85 of 417



���������	�
	����������	���������������	 ����������������������� !"�#$%&'()*�+&'%,-.$. /012341567865"�9:;$*�9-'<$)�=&;>�+&'%,-.$. /?5213@?857"�9:;$*�9-'<$)�A:;)'(B&)(:;. /7877"�#$%&'()*�A:;)'(B&)(:;. /7877"�#$%&'()*�C'-;.D$'. /7877���� �EF���������� !� �����G���G���H��I ���� !�J�#$%&'()*�#-K$. /010@L17@28L?J�9:;$*�9-'<$)�=&;>�#-K$. /?5@177L8L?J�99=�M(),>'-N-K. /7877J�#$%&'()*�M(),>'-N-K. /7877J�#$%&'()*�C'-;.D$'. /7877J�O),$'�P(.Q:.()(:;. /7877J�9-)&'()$. /7877J�A-KK. /7877J�+'(;%(Q-K�+-*>:N;. /?6157@853���� �EF�H��I ���� !� �����R��������S T��UE�� !V���TW�� !"XJ�Y$)�Z%%'$)(:; [/21L3587L\ [/21L3587L\�E�!V� ��� !�H��I ���� !�"XJ�]$-K(̂$>�_-(;X̀:.. /2510468@4 /2510468@4	�H������������	 ����������R�RR

��ab��
��a������a�cc�
d�	������������	 ������e��e��������� !����������A:;)'(B&)(:;. /7877����������#$%&'()*�#-K$�+':%$$>. /010@L17@28L?����������Z%%'&$>�f;)$'$.)�]$%$(g$> /612?58L3����������f;)$'$.)�]$%$(g$> /L?1775857����������P(g(>$;>�]$%$(g$> /78?0����������+'(;%(Q-K�:;�9-)&'()($. /7877����������f;)$'$.)�:;�9-)&'()($. /7877����������A-KK.X]$>$hQ)(:;�[+'(;%(Q-K\ /7877����������f;)$'$.)�D':h�A-KK.X]$>$hQ)(:; /7877����������+'(;%(Q-K�+-*>:N; /?6157@853� �EF���������� !� �������Re����H��I ���� !�����������M(),>'-N-K. /7877����������#$%&'()*�+&'%,-.$ /012341567865����������Z%%'&$>�f;)$'$.)�+-(> /41L7@85?� �EF�H��I ���� !� �����R�RG����	�H������������	 �RG�������


W� !��F�E�� !�a�SSETijk�lm�nopqrsqt�uvw�uxuu� T�yWT!��EF�z T!�E�����W��aWFz�!��TE!�W�{�!|�� !}��WTS���� �!�Z%%:&;)�~060

��$%&)(:;�C(h$��LX0X2722�@�53�43�+9A,-;>K$'�Z..$)�9-;-�$h$;)�J�AOY=fP�YCfZ̀ +-�$�L 
Page 86 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !�"	 �����	#��$	%��"	&'��	(���	)�*+,,-./0	1232 4#%5 #�6'��7	8��6������ 5!	9!�'�:4���� 5'6�!��	8!��;��<	=����  ���	9!�'�;��<	9!�'� ><�	5�6�><�	=)> >!<��	9!�'�?66'��	%��" @	�$	5��"A!��:(���>���7:#B5	&��6� >!�'��78'!����?;#CD33EF+GH IJK,JLJM	NJ/O	+.0-	PJQMJ	RK.M0	SESET+	+U2VDWX	Y.J	2SZ2CZSESS SW[222V\D E2ZS2ZSESE2VDCX SW[2EDVDESW[222V22 2EEV2UEVWHX SW[2WWVE32\V3S EVEDXUSV\H +QQ	Z	+++]̂ EV3\EVE\WUD2C]+GD _-/LQ	+.0-	̂J,J̀aQbcJM	RK.M0	SE2\TU	+U2V3DX	Y.J	DZ2CZSESU DU[3\WVHE EDZSEZSE2\2V3\X DU[3\UV\EDU[3\WVWD 2EEVSDEV\WX DW[ESCV32HHVS\ EVS\XSU2VSU +QQ	Z	+++]̂ 2VWHEVU2\SUWD+++U dJK̀O-/	ef/JK	RK.M0	SE2\TG	+2+2V\WX	Y.J	WZSSZSESW DC[SWCV3\ 2EZE2ZSE2\2V\CX DC[SU\VS2DC[SWSVHD 2EEVUH2V2EX DC[CCEV\3CEVCU EVS\XUEDVS\ ]̂	Z	++++++ SV2CEVW2D\SUS_+G\ R-g-0Q	+.0-	̂J,J̀aQbcJ	ef/	SESET+	+U2VHHX	Y.J	CZ2CZSESW 2DE[HWCVWH EHZ23ZSESEEVHDX 2DW[DEDV332DS[\\DVHW 2EEVUS2VESX 2D2[S2\VU32UUVSD EVHSXh2[33\VS3i +QQ	Z	+++]̂ SVS2EVWDW33D\j+G3 k-l/	YJJKJ	ef/JK	RK.M0	SESET+	+U2V2X	Y.J	DZ2CZSESW 2E\[UU2VD3 EUZEWZSESE2V22X 2E\[USCV2\2E\[USDV2H \\V\D2V2WX 2E\[U2UV3SCUVWC EVU3Xh2WVWWi +QQ	Z	]̂+++ SVWHEVCDWUD2Uj+GH _-/LQ	+.0-	̂J,J̀aQbcJM	RK.M0	SESETU	+UEVU3X	Y.J	2EZ2DZSESW 2CC[EEEVEE E\ZSSZSESEEVUDX 2CW[\33VSU2CW[\D3VCU \\VSD2VSDX 2CU[D3DVCDSEV32 EVCUXh2[2EDV\Ci ]̂	Z	++++++ SVHWEVDEUHSHSm+GD nI	F̀/Q/,̀Qc	+.0-	PJQMJ	RK.M0	SES2TU	+SEVU\X	Y.J	2EZS2ZSESW SEC[EEEVEE EDZ2EZSES2EVU\X SEW[\\3VS2SEW[\\3VDS \DV2H2VHDX SE2[SU3VDWSWVWU EVH\XhU[3C\V\Di ]̂	Z	++++++ SVHC2VWWW33D3]+GU k-l/	YJJKJ	ef/JK	RK.M0	SESETN	+UEVC2X	Y.J	22Z2CZSESW HS[33CVE3 E3Z2WZSESEEVCSX HS[3HCVCEHS[3H\V\S \\VW22VU\X HS[WESVHU2WVSU EVS2XhUH3VS\i +QQ	Z	]̂+++ SV3SEVH3E\H\E++G3 NIo	dJl̀,cJ	PJQMJ	RK.M0	SES2TS	+UEVUUX	Y.J	2SZSHZSESW \E[EEEVEE E\ZEDZSES2EVUWX D\[\\EV32D\[\\SVCD \DVW\2VCEX DD[HW2VS3WV\C EVUEXh2[UC2VU2i +QQ	Z	]̂+++ SVDU2VUE\SS\EN++\ dJK̀O-/	ef/JK	RK.M0	SESETN	+EVW3X	Y.J	SZSEZSESC S2C[EEEVEE EDZEWZSESEEVWDX S2W[\CWVDCS2W[\3EVU2 \\V222VWSX S2U[EDEV3EUEVDD EV3UXh2[DD\VH2i +QQ	Z	]̂+++ SV\DEV\WECHE2m+GU NIo	dJl̀,cJ	PJQMJ	RK.M0	SESST2	+U2V2X	Y.J	UZSCZSESC \C[EEEVEE E2Z22ZSESS2V22X \W[\DCVDE\W[\DHVCU \\VSW2VC3X \W[S3HV3323VWS EVUSXh3E\V3Hi ]̂	Z	++++++ UVE32VHCWUD2Un+GC _-/LQ	+.0-	̂J,J̀aQbcJM	RK.M0	SES2T2	+UEVS3X	Y.J	WZS2ZSESC 3C[EEEVEE ESZ23ZSES2EVS3X 3W[\\DVHU3W[\\\VED \DV3D2VCEX 3W[EDCVUECVHU EVSCXh\2UV3Di +QQ	Z	]̂+++ UV2CEV\\WWD\2̂+GW _g./LQ̀	+.0-	̂J,J̀aQbcJM	RK.M0	SESETG	+UEVUDX	Y.J	CZ2CZSESC 2CC[EEEVEE 2EZSEZSESEEVU\X 2CW[\HWVUE2CW[\3DV3\ \DV3U2VHUX 2CU[EUEVC3SHV2D EVCSXh2[\WDVSSi ]̂	Z	++++++ UVS22VESD\SWEN+GS R-g-0Q	+.0-	̂J,J̀aQbcJM	ef/JKM	SES2T+	+UEVSHX	Y.J	CZ2CZSESC S3E[EEEVEE ESZESZSES2EVS3X SH\[\W\VD\SH\[\HHV\\ \DV332VCHX SHH[HH3VU\U2VSE EV\2XhU[S\\VHEi +QQ	Z	]̂+++ UVS2EV\CpqJ,.0̀-/	R̀rJs	UZ2ZSESS	DsC\sW\	tIGlQ/LcJK	+MMJ0	IQ/QuJrJ/0	T	Ge]FvYp]Rv+P tQuJ	W 
Page 87 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !�"	 �����	#��$	%��"	&'��	(���	)�*+,,-./0	1232 4#%5 #�6'��7	8��6������ 5!	9!�'�:4���� 5'6�!��	8!��;��<	=����  ���	9!�'�;��<	9!�'� ><�	5�6�><�	=)> >!<��	9!�'�?66'��	%��" @	�$	5��"A!��:(���>���7:#B5	&��6� >!�'��78'!����?;#C33DDE+FG H-I/	JKKLK	MN/KL	OL.P0	QRQ2S+	+TRUTGV	J.K	WX2YXQRQY DRZRRRURR RTXRQXQRQ2RUT3V 3WZWDCUGQ3WZWDDU3D WDUQC2UGRV 3DZYWQUWG2QUDR RUQ3V[2ZTWYUDQ\ +]]	X	̂_+++ TUYY2UCTCCWTT̀+F3 ab./c]d	+.0-	_K,Kde]fgKP	OL.P0	QRQ2S+	+TRUTDV	J.K	WX2YXQRQY 2QYZRRRURR RCXQRXQRQ2RUTDV 2QCZWDGUDY2QCZWWRUCD WDU2Y2U3CV 2QQZGDWUDDQ2U22 RUCQV[QZTRRUGR\ _̂	X	++++++ TUYY2UT3CTD2Yh+FT a-/c]	+.0-	_K,Kde]fgKP	OL.P0	QRQ2SC	+TRUDDV	J.K	2XQ2XQRQG 2RRZRRRURR 22X2GXQRQ2RUDWV WWZW3DUWQWWZWDRUGY WDUCR2U3RV WDZCR2UCRQCUCC RUTCV[2ZY3WUQY\ +]]	X	̂_+++ TUWR2UW3C33DWi+FC H-I/	JKKLK	MN/KL	OL.P0	QRQ2Sj	+TRUYQV	J.K	TX2GXQRQG 2QYZRRRURR R3X2TXQRQ2RUYQV 2QCZWDDUDY2QCZWWRU3Q W3UT32UWRV 2Q2Z32QUGTQDUDW RUCQV[TZQ3DURW\ +]]	X	̂_+++ CURY2UWQDWQTDH+FW O-b-0]	+.0-	_K,Kde]fgKP	OL.P0	QRQ2SJ	+TRU32V	J.K	CX2YXQRQG WRZRRRURR 22XRWXQRQ2RU32V DWZWWDURDDWZWWDUQY W3UDCQUTQV DDZRYGURRQDUCR RUTRV[2ZWCQUQY\ _̂	X	++++++ CU2T2UTGCCWTYk+JG ab./c]d	+.0-	_K,Kde]fgKP	OL.P0	QRQ2SF	+TRU3CV	J.K	YX2YXQRQG 3RZRRRURR 22XRWXQRQ2RU3YV GWZWDCUTDGWZWDYU3W W3UCYQURCV GDZQ23UWCQTURQ RUQTV[2Z3G3UDY\ _̂	X	++++++ CUQ22UWWTGQYYC+F2 hl	kd/]/,d]g	mK,.Ld0dnKc	OKLo	QRQ2SC	+TRUGDV	J.K	WX2GXQRQG 3YZRRRURR 2RX2TXQRQ2RUGDV 3CZWWDURW3CZWWDUQW WDUT32UG2V 3TZ3DRU3TQ2UQY RUQYV[2ZQ23UYG\ +]]	X	+++_̂ CUYY2U3GTDR2CG+FC hl	kd/]/,d]g	+.0-	_K,Kde]fgKP	QRQQS2	+T2UQGV	J.K	22X2GXQRQG GYZRRRURR R2X22XQRQQ2UQ3V GCZWWCUTYGCZWWCUYC WDUWWQUCCV GCZTCGUTGTCU2T RUQQV[GCDU2D\ _̂	X	++++++ CU3QRUDG)��!�	?;# pqrsrqtuv"ww u"xr@ pqrstqwwv"yspqrszqurp"yp y"rs@ pqruwqsrp"wtxtp"tv z"xu@{suqxtt"ss| ?!!	:	?????? s"uty"yy?A}� =T2TTDT~HC kàj	̂-0KTUT3YV	J.K	WXDXQRQT YRYZRRRURR 22XQWXQR2DTURRV Y2TZTWTU2RYR3ZG33UTQ 2RTURD2UTTV YQRZYT3UTCDZ2WRUC3 2UD2V2QZDGRURQ +]]	X	++�_̂ 2UYT2UC3T2TYhRGa2 k̂l+	̂-0KRUQYV	J.K	22XQ3XQRQT QDRZRRRURR 22XQTXQRQRRUQWV Q3WZGDRUDRQ3WZD2CUWC WDUR22UC2V Q3CZC2WUTQ2DQU3D RUWCV[YZTWYUGQ\ +]]	X	++�+++ 2U3Y2U3TDDRYW2�_W OK//KPPKK	�]ggKb	+.0I-Ld0b	̂-0KQUD3YV	J.K	WX2YXQRQC YYRZRRRURR RQXQ3XQR2WQUGYV YYGZTYQUYRYYQZW2QUD3 2RTU2Q2UGQV YG3Z2GCUCR3ZQW2UTQ 2UW3V2CZQY2UYT +]]	X	++�+++ QUYYQUCTT2TYhR�GG k̂l+	̂-0K2UGQYV	J.K	2RX2YXQRQC Q3YZRRRURR 2RX23XQR2W2UGGV Q3CZYQWU3YQ3CZ3YQU3G 2RRURG2UGRV Q3YZ23DUC32ZGDDU2W RUWYVCQYU32 +]]	X	++�+++ QUGTQUYY��K,.0d-/	OdoK�	TX2XQRQQ	D�YW�CW	�lFI]/cgKL	+PPK0	l]/]�KoK/0	S	FM̂ k�J�̂O�+̀ �]�K	Y 
Page 88 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !�"	 �����	#��$	%��"	&'��	(���	)�*+,,-./0	1232 4#%5 #�6'��7	8��6������ 5!	9!�'�:4���� 5'6�!��	8!��;��<	=����  ���	9!�'�;��<	9!�'� ><�	5�6�><�	=)> >!<��	9!�'�?66'��	%��" @	�$	5��"A!��:(���>���7:#B5	&��6� >!�'��78'!����?AC� =D2DEFGHIJ KLM+	L-0N2OPIEQ	R.N	2S3SIGIE I2ETGGGOGG G2SGUSIGIG2OPVQ I2JTD2JO2EI2JTPG3OUI VVOVD2OPEQ I2JTUJJO2DEIJOGP GO3JQIDPOD2 +WW	S	++X+++ IOUPIO3UD2D3Y+YZG K[\M]	L-0N2OEQ	R.N	IS2ISIGIE JIETGGGOGG GIS2DSIGIG2OEIQ JIJTP3IO3EJIJTUGPOEI VVOE32OPEQ JIDT2VGO3UDDPOJP 2OJEQ2̂TP2EO3J_ +WW	S	++X+++ IOVPIOUUD2DG+Ỳa2 K[\̀	L-0NDO2IEQ	R.N	PS2DSIGIE JGGTGGGOGG GUSIUSIG2UDOG3Q JG2TD3IOGGJGGTPPDOU3 2GJO3I2OPJQ J2UTUVDOPGIT3GUODD 2OJEQ2UTIIVO3D +WW	S	++X+++ DOIVDO22D2DEFGJbD KLM+	L-0NGOEQ	R.N	PS23SIGIE J3ETGGGOGG GPS23SIGIGGOEJQ J3JTG2PO3EJ3JTDEGOV3 VPOG32O3DQ JEPTDGVOIDJUUO2V 2OE3Q2̂UTGJ2O3J_ +WW	S	++X+++ DODGDOIED2D3Y+YcV K[\M]	L-0NGOD3EQ	R.N	3SI2SIGIE DJGTGGGOGG G3SI2SIGIGGOJUQ DDUTDGPOUGDDUTUEGO3U VEOPP2OPVQ DIETIEUOPI2J2OP3 2O2IQ2̂DTEVIO2P_ +WW	S	++X+++ DODVDODED2D3Y+YHD K[\M]	L-0NGOD3EQ	R.N	VSIDSIGIE D3GTGGGOGG GVSIDSIGIGGOJJQ DPUTUUPODGDPVTIGEOGI VEOIV2O3JQ DEITEUUOV2PGUOVP 2OI2Q2̂PTP2PO22_ +WW	S	++X+++ DOE3DOE2D2DEFGPFD KLM+	L-0NGOEQ	R.N	22S3SIGIE EDGTGGGOGG 22SGVSIGIGGOE3Q EIUT2GIOPGEIUTEVPOJV VEOJV2O33Q EGPT22IOD3UDVO23 2O3JQÎITJUJO2I_ +WW	S	++X+++ DOPVDOPID2DEFGdDP KLM+	L-0NIO2IEQ	R.N	JSIJSIGIP EPETGGGOGG aWef-.gIO2UQ EPITJDGO2GEPDTUPIO3E 2G2OJJ2O3PQ E3DT2JJOJ3JTIDEOEJ 2OVUQVTIU2O3I +WW	S	++X+++ JO2EDOVJD2DG+FKZE K[\̀	L-0NIOEQ	R.N	PS2ISIGIP EGGTGGGOGG GPS23SIG2VIO2VQ E2GTGUEOGGEGPT2UDOGJ 2GDO2G2O3EQ E2ETJUGOEGIT3JDOGP 2O3UQVTIV3OJP +WW	S	++XLh JOIVJOGJD2DG+IaYD K[\̀	L-0NDQ	R.N	VS22SIGIP E3ETGGGOGG aWef-.gIOU2Q EUDT32VOEGE3VTIDJODG 2GEOD22O3UQ PGETE2POJGUT2JEOUD IO2GQIPTIUIO2G +WW	S	++XLh JOEJJO2VD2DEFGiII KLM+	L-0N2OU3EQ	R.N	VSIJSIGIP E3ETGGGOGG aWef-.gIO3UQ ED2TE2GOGGEEJTD3IO3P 2GGOEG2O3PQ E33TVG2OJEJT3G2OUD IOGGQIDTEIUOPV +WW	S	++X+++ JOE3JODDD2DG+]d̀V K[\̀	L-0NIOPIEQ	R.N	VS2GSIGI3 PGGTGGGOGG aWef-.gIO3EQ EVDTPUEOGGEVPTDPGOEG 2GDOUU2OUUQ PIDTI3DOJG3TJU2OIP IO2PQIPTV2IOVG +WW	S	++XLh EOEDEOGVD2DEFGEjE KLM+	L-0NGO3EQ	R.N	2GSUSIGI3 PGGTGGGOGG aWef-.gGO3VQ EVUTJGIOIGEVUTPUEOJD VJOG32OU3Q EPJTJGVOIG2T3U3OE2 2OVJQD̂JTI3POID_ +WW	S	++X+++ EOP2EOJDD2DG+ỲIE K[\̀	L-0NDOIEQ	R.N	PSVSIGIU EGGTGGGOGG G2SIVSIG2VDO2DQ EGJT3UEOGGEGDTIGUOP3 2GUOGD2OUVQ EJGT2E3OEGDT3G2ODV 2OUPQDPTVJUOUD +WW	S	++XLh POIUEOP3D2DG+FDH2 K[\̀	L-0NIOU3EQ	R.N	DSVSIGIV DUGTGGGOGG aWef-.gIOPPQ DUPTU2EOEGDUJTUV3O33 2GPOG22OVPQ JGITUDUO3PETI2VO3I 2OJGQ23TVJGOVV +WW	S	++XLh 3OGDPOIVD2DG+FRjU K[\̀	L-0NIO3EQ	R.N	PSUSIGIV E2GTGGGOGG aWef-.gIOJEQ EIDTIP2OGEE2VT3IUOIP 2GJOEUIOG3Q EDDTDE2OUUDTIDDOEJ 2OUJQ2DTPIDOPI +WW	S	++XLh 3OIUPOEPYkN,.0f-/	lfmNn	DS2SIGII	UnEVnJV	ZM]oW/pqNe	+ggN0	MW/WrNmN/0	s	]tLKuRYLlu+\ ZWrN	P 
Page 89 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !�"	 �����	#��$	%��"	&'��	(���	)�*+,,-./0	1232 4#%5 #�6'��7	8��6������ 5!	9!�'�:4���� 5'6�!��	8!��;��<	=����  ���	9!�'�;��<	9!�'� ><�	5�6�><�	=)> >!<��	9!�'�?66'��	%��" @	�$	5��"A!��:(���>���7:#B5	&��6� >!�'��78'!����?AC� =D2DE+FGHD IJKL	M-0NOP2OQR	S.N	TU2VUOEOT 3EWEEEPEE EDUEQUOEOE2PO2R 3QW3VOPXE3VWQVYPEV 2E2PVV2PTOR 32WEE3P3TYTEPED EPOQRZDWQDXPOQ[ +\\	U	++]M̂ 3PQQYPXXD2DQFEQ_O IM̀ +	M-0NEPX3QR	S.N	XUQUOEDE Y2EWEEEPEE a\bc-.dEPTTR YEDWYOOPQQYEVWQDOPXO TEPYOOPETR QQOW3YDP2EDXQPVT 2PTERZQ2W3YTP3O[ +\\	U	++]+++ XPVVXPEV)��!�	?���67 efghifiii"ii j"ej@ efgklfmgm"niefghjfghj"li j"ll@ efgekfokj"mnmhfonk"gi ok"jk@knfkge"en ?!!	:	??p??? k"kgk"nn >qD2D3LVHLX IJK̀ r	sEDD	+ODPEYR	S.N	3UOQUOEOD VEEWEEEPEE 2EU2TUOE2XDPDTR DTVWTEYPOQDTXWVTTP33 2E2P3T2PQER VE3W2QDPYEOEVPEE 2PVERXWYQDPXD +\\	U	M̂M̂ 2PVE2POVD2D3L3ttT IJK̀ r	sED3	+ODPVTR	S.N	2UOQUOEOV VEEWEEEPEE EYUOYUOE2TOPEXR VOOWQ2QPYDVETWDQTPE3 2EOP3T2P32R V22W2YOPXE2W2YDPDD 2PV2R2WXEDP3D M̂	U	+++M̂ 2PT22PYQD2D3Ltu_3 IJK̀ r	s3OY	+OOPTEQR	S.N	VUOQUOEOV DTEWYEQP2E EVUOOUOE2TOP3OR DTDWDT3PDODT2WXEYPDQ 2E2P3X2PT2R DT3WQYDP3DTVQPQT 2PD3RQW3Q3PDX M̂	U	+++M̂ OP2Y2PT2D2D3I+̂vE IJ̀ w	s3O3	+OOPTVYR	S.N	3UOQUOEOV DDEWEEEPEE E3UODUOE2TOP2QR DVEWOVXPEQDDVWXQ2PEQ 2E2P3XOPEYR DDQWXTEP23X2EP2Q 2P2QR2WEDTP2O M̂	U	+++M̂ OPV2OP2QD2D3LvaJV IJK̀ r	sEVE	+ODPOV2R	S.N	TUOQUOEOV O3QWEEEPEE EOUEYUOEOE2PXER OT2WVQ3PEDOXVW2QVP32 2EDPOY2PX2R OXDWTYEPEQ3VOP3D EPTXRZ2TVPYY[ M̂	U	M̂+++ OPQXOPDVD2D3ILLxD IJK̀ r	sEYX	+ODPOVVR	S.N	XUOQUOEO3 O3EWEEEPEE EOUEOUOEOO2PXER OXTW23VPOOOXXWTYDPV2 2EQPDTOP2YR OXVWQV3PYE3OTPTE EPTXRZVWV2QPX2[ +\\	U	M̂M̂ QPVTVPTDD2D3J2yDD IJK̀ r	s3VV	+O2P32OR	S.N	3UOQUOEOX OOYWO3VP2Q EOUEXUOEOOOPD3R OO2WDDOPDDOO2WD3EPV3 T3PO3OP2XR OOEW2E3P3DDOOPXO EP3YRZ2WOYOP3V[ M̂	U	M̂+++ YPV2QP3VD2D3JQSxO IJK̀ r	s3V3	+OOPEQR	S.N	22UOQUOEOX DQEWEEEPEE E2U2TUOEOO2PTYR DQ2WYDQPQQDQ2WY2VPDQ TTPEEOPOER DVYWQ2OPYEQT3PTO 2P2TRZQW2E2P3Q[ M̂	U	M̂+++ YP3QYP2Q)��!�	 >q nfmkjfgle"nh n"on@ nflikfmmm"ognfmgifmje"jg j"ej@ nfmgmfgeg"nghfhjm"kk e"no@mfnle"ji ?!!	:	?????? o"olo"io q
5q
?)CEYVEŶ+FO L\/z	-{	Mt	̀N||-/	r-b}	M-0NDPQR	S.N	VUOXUOEOD 2YEWEEEPEE EDU2VUOE2TDPE2R 2YDWEOQPYE2YEWXQOPEX 2EOPO32PQDR 2YDWYDVPXX2WT2DPDD EPQ3ROW3XOPXE +2	U	+++~ 2P2Y2P2DXT22V_rVX �-b-/0-	S-�c/c-/	L\/z	M-0NDPQR	S.N	3U2TUOEOD DOQWEEEPEE E3UO3UOE2XDPQYR DOVWEQ3PQEDOVW3D3PYO 2EOPYD2PQXR DDDWQVXP2Q2WDO3PEX 2P2QRXWX2EPQD +\O	U	++~++ 2PDT2PDYv�N,.0c-/	�c�N�	DU2UOEOO	X�QT�VT	ùr�\/�|Nb	+ddN0	̀\/\�N�N/0	~	r�MI�SvM��+K u\�N	3 
Page 90 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !�"	 �����	#��$	%��"	&'��	(���	)�*+,,-./0	1232 4#%5 #�6'��7	8��6������ 5!	9!�'�:4���� 5'6�!��	8!��;��<	=����  ���	9!�'�;��<	9!�'� ><�	5�6�><�	=)> >!<��	9!�'�?66'��	%��" @	�$	5��"A!��:(���>���7:#B5	&��6� >!�'��78'!���� C
5C
?)DEFGGHIJKF +LMNO,P/	Q-/RP	SO/P/,M	T-0MUVGFHW	X.M	2EY2EYFEFU U3EZEEEVEE 2EYEUYFE2[UVG\W UG]ZG]GVGEUG]Z]EFVUE 2EFV]22V3]W U[EZ3G]V]GHZFHUVFU 2VUFW2EZ[G3VGG +U	Y	+̂+ 2VG22VHHF\\FF_̀TG a-b/	XMMNM	JPcO0Pd	J-Nc	T-0MEV\HW	X.M	2Y23YFEF\ FEHZEEEVEE EUYE2YFEF2EV\3W FE\Z[H\V\HFE\Z]E\VG[ ]3V[22VGUW FEEZH22VHU22FV3H EVG]We\ZU]UV2Hf +F	Y	++ 2V[[2V[GG]U32ggF\ hP,,PN	SO/P/,OPd	J-Nc	T-0MEVUHW	X.M	FYFYFEF\ 2FEZEEEVEE E2YF[YFEF2EVU]W 22]Z[GEV[E22]Z]2EVGU ]3VUF2V33W 22GZ3[[V\\UUV[U EV\EWeUZ2FFV2]f +2	Y	+iTg 2V]U2V]2EGEH2jakG lP/m	-n	+LMNO,P	J-Nc	JPddPodM	T-0M	J-/0	GY2\YFEFUEVHFUW	X.M	GY2\YFEF\ 2]EZEEEVEE EGYE3YFEF2EVHEW 2]EZE2FV[E2]EZEE]V3G ][VFF2VF]W 2[GZGFEV[HF2FVH\ EVG\WeUZU[[V]2f +F	Y	+̂++̂ FVF]FVFG3]\GGp+j] qPdMrn-N,MV,-L	s/,	JPddPodM	T-0M	J-/0	3Y2HYFEFFEVGFHW	X.M	3Y2HYFEF\ 2EEZEEEVEE P̀NO-.rEV3HW ]]ZGG]V\E]]Z3EUV3] ]3VF]2V3]W ]3ZF]\V\E3]V[G EVUUWeFZ\E]VU]f +F	Y	+iTg FVU[FVU\\GG\3h+tE ah	u-NvP/	JbPrM	w	J-	JPddPodM	T-0M	2x	3YFUYFEFUUV3]3W	X.M	3YFUYFEF\ UUEZEEEVEE 2EYE]YFE2]FVEFW U\]Z\UEV\EUU]Z3U2V[[ 2EFV\\2V3[W UU[ZE\EV\H2ZUFFVGF 2V2GWe2ZG]2V\Uf +F	Y	+̂++̂ FV\EFVF]G]U32gKFH hP,,PN	SO/P/,OPd	J-Nc	T-0MFV2HW	X.M	[Y2HYFEF\ 2\HZEEEVEE E[YE[YFE2]FVFEW 2\\ZG3]VHH2\\Z[\FV\] 2EEV\H2V]GW 2\HZGHHVFG2U[VHG EVHEW[2FV33 +2	Y	+iTg FV\GFVU]]\]3\lj+F IMddr	SPNv-	J-Nc	T-0MUVUW	X.M	]Y]YFEF\ UHEZEEEVEE E]Y22YFE2]FVU3W UGHZ2]3VEEUH3ZG]\VU3 2EFVH3FVFHW UH]ZE2EVEHHZH2[VUU 2VFHW2ZU2HVG[ +2	Y	llli+i FVHUFVU]3[E2Hy3JF g-zPd	lP/m	-n	JP/PRP	T-0MFVFHW	X.M	22Y2YFEF\ UHHZEEEVEE 2FYEHYFE2]FVFGW UH\Z[2HV\EUH\Z[]]VF] 2EEVE]FVFFW UHHZU22VG]FZGGFVHE 2VFUW\2FV\E +2	Y	+++̂ FVG[FVHG]EUU2Qhp2 tq	lP/m	T+	JPddPodM	T-0M	J-/0	2FYF2YFEF\FVEHW	X.M	2YF2YFEFH \UEZEEEVEE E2Y2GYFEFEFV2EW \F]ZE[\V2E\F]Z\3EV22 2EEV2\FVEEW \UEZH[[VG3]3]V\\ 2V\[W2Z22[VHG +2	Y	++̂++̂ FV]EFV3]EEF[F\llH +oo-00	pPo-NP0-NOMr	JPddPodM	T-0M	J-/0	2FY2HYFEF\FV]HW	X.M	UY2HYFEFH F\EZEEEVEE E2YF[YFEFF2VG3W F\[ZH[EVEEF\[ZUHEV3G 2EFVHFFVEUW F\GZEUGV3FUZFG\VG3 EV[HWeFZU2\VE\f +2	Y	+iTg UVE\FVG\EGUG3Il[H lP/m	-n	u-/0NMPd	T-0M2V[HW	X.M	HY2YFEFH FG\ZEEEVEE E3YFUYFEF2EV[HW F3UZ3FEV\[F3FZ2[HVUE ][V]UFVFEW FG2Z2GFVEE2ZGF[VEE EV]EWe22ZEFUVUEf +F	Y	+̂++̂ UV23UVEHEU3[UUX{\ +ccdM	s/,	JPddPodM	T-0M	J-/0	\Y22YFEFH2V2FHW	X.M	HY22YFEFH 2EEZEEEVEE EHYE\YFEFE2V2GW ]]Z[F2VEE]]Z[[HVGE ]3VG32V[[W ]3ZG3FV\EU\UV3H EVU\WeFZF2UVFEf +PP	Y	++iTg UVFEUV22\GG\3hJQ3 ah	u-NvP/	JbPrM	w	J-	JPddPodM	T-0M	J-/0	GY2YFEF\EV[F\W	X.M	GY2YFEFH FEHZEEEVEE EHYF\YFEF2EV3\W FEHZFG3VUEFEHZF23VUG ]GV[F2V33W 2][Z\3[VU\\FFVUE EVG[WeGZ3U]VEFf +F	Y	+̂++̂ UVFGUV2[_|M,.0O-/	{OLM}	UY2YFEFF	[}H]}\]	huJbP/RdMN	+rrM0	uP/PvMLM/0	̂	J~TSsX_T{s+p hPvM	[ 
Page 91 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !�"	 �����	#��$	%��"	&'��	(���	)�*+,,-./0	1232 4#%5 #�6'��7	8��6������ 5!	9!�'�:4���� 5'6�!��	8!��;��<	=����  ���	9!�'�;��<	9!�'� ><�	5�6�><�	=)> >!<��	9!�'�?66'��	%��" @	�$	5��"A!��:(���>���7:#B5	&��6� >!�'��78'!���� C
5C
?)DEFGFHI+JK LMNO	P/,	IOQQORQS	T-0S	I-/0	EU2KUFVFWXY2WZ	J.S	2FU2KUFVFW XVV[VVVYVV V2UFGUFVFF2Y3WZ X2K[H3EYVVX2K[XH3YGH 2VXYH2FYVEZ X2V[G2HYFVF[VF2YFW 2YV3Z\X[WW2YHH] +OX	U	++̂T_ XY3EXYXFGE22K̀Ia2 b-c-/0-	J-dM/M-/	eO/f	T-0SVY3WZ	J.S	2UHUFVFH 2WV[VVVYVV VFUVGUFVFFFY2WZ 2KF[2KHYVV2KF[FWVYHW EKYFHFYX2Z 2K2[XE3YXW232YGG VYKEZ\GWXYXV] +2	U	+++̂ XYGHXY3HVHVW2ghiG eO/f	-j	+dScM,O	I-ck	IOQQORQS	T-0S	I-/0	FU2XUFVFWFYV2WZ	J.S	FU2XUFVFH XGV[VVVYVV LOcM-.N2YXKZ XGG[KGFY3VXGH[WH3YWE EGYXKFYFHZ X3X[HEHY2GXGFYGH 2YFGZ\2F[G32YK2] +F	U	+̂++̂ XYEHXY333GV2Hlm̀X _-nOQ	eO/f	-j	IO/OoO	T-0S2YFZ	J.S	KUF3UFVFH 2WV[VVVYVV VHUVEUFVF22Y2XZ 2WV[W23YWV2WV[KK2YVG EWYVWFYKHZ 2KF[WGVY2VHFVYVV VYKEZ\3[GHVYEG] +2	U	+++̂ KY2HKYVVVFX2XWepX +dOq-/Y,-d	P/,	IOQQORQS	T-0S	I-/0	KU2FUFVFH2Z	J.S	WU2FUFVFH KHW[VVVYVV VWU2VUFVF22YVEZ KHF[EE2YFVKHX[X2XYWX EHYXW2YE2Z KKG[VXHYGV2[KV3YEF 2YWKZ\2W[F3HY3X] +2	U	++++̂ KYFVKYVGE2XFKalIF r/M0So	hSOQ0s	gc-.k	P/,	IOQQORQS	T-0S	I-/0	KU2WUFVFH2Y2WZ	J.S	WU2WUFVFH 3W[VVVYVV VHU2HUFVF22YVHZ 3W[FEEYFW3W[FWWY33 EWYG2FYFVZ 32[GWKY3XFWXYEH VYFWZ\X[KV2YVK] +X	U	+t+ KYF2KYVHGEFXHbuvF b-n-0O	w-0-c	IcSoM0	I-ck	T-0S2Y2FWZ	J.S	HU2GUFVFH X2W[VVVYVV VHU2WUFVF22Y2XZ X2K[GH2YKVX2K[GGVYGX EWY3GFY2HZ XV2[32VYK332GYWE 2YVKZ\2X[23VYXH] +2	U	+t+t KYXVKY2HEX22KFl_V xOQ̂wOc0	y0-cSN	IOQQORQS	T-0S	I-/0	VGU23UFVFH2YVWZ	J.S	EU23UFVFH 3W[VVVYVV VEUVGUFVF22YVEZ 3K[GWGYFW3K[G32YVH EHYVW2YEHZ 3F[VXKYFGXWGY3W VYFWZ\F[GXHY3G] +OF	U	++++ KYWWKYXEFHKKFI+yX J.fS	l/Sczn	IOc-QM/ON	IOQQORQS	T-0S	I-/0	EU2UFVFHFYEWZ	J.S	2FU2UFVFH XVV[VVVYVV V2U2XUFVFF2YG2Z X2W[VW2YVVX2K[H3HYFE 2VXYVXFYFKZ XVE[VGWYWVF[F2FYWV 2YV3Z\W[WEVY3E] +OX	U	+T_ KY3HKY2GG3H2Flew3 bOczS0	I-ck	IOQQORQS	T-0S	I-/0	2FU2WUFVFH2YEWZ	J.S	2U2WUFVF3 23V[VVVYVV V2U2EUFVFF2YEEZ 2HE[322YVV2HE[32HY3X EEY2GFY2XZ 2HG[HVWYKEXKVY32 VYWGZ\2[222YFK] +F	U	++ KYGGKYHF)��!�	 ���!�� {|}{~|���"�� �"��@ {|���|�{~"{�{|�}�|{�~"�� �"~�@ {|}��|~��"�~��|���"}� }�"��@���|{~�"�}� ?�	:	???� �"��}"~}
l�S,.0M-/	bMdS�	XU2UFVFF	G�WE�KE	awIsO/oQSc	+NNS0	wO/OzSdS/0	̂	I�T�PJlTbP+� aOzS	E 

Page 92 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !�"	 �����	#��$	%��"	&'��	(���	)�*+,,-./0	1232 4#%5 #�6'��7	8��6������ 5!	9!�'�:4���� 5'6�!��	8!��;��<	=����  ���	9!�'�;��<	9!�'� ><�	5�6�><�	=)> >!<��	9!�'�?66'��	%��" @	�$	5��"A!��:(���>���7:#B5	&��6� >!�'��78'!����>C�D=	>?
ED)	&4�8FGFHHIJKL MNOPQ.R	S./TR	U/R0VW	XORONYO	ZNO[R.NP	1GLK2 J3\L]̂_KH [̀Na-.RH_H2b J3\L]̂_KHJ3\L]̂_KH 2_HHH_H2b J3\L]̂_KHH_HH H_]HbH_HH +[[	c	++++++ H_HHH_HH)��!�	>���7	>!<��	&'�� defghi"jk k"kl@ defghi"jkdefghi"jk k"kl@ defghi"jkk"kk k"hk@k"kk ?!!	:	?????? k"kkk"kk#45
?�?)%C�?(KLJ2IHM̀3 U/0ONm+nONa,[/	MOY	o[/p	q-0OH_J3Lb	M.O	KcFHcFHFG ]HL\HHH_HH HKc2]cFHF2H_̂3b ]H]\GH]_2H]H]\JKK_HJ Ĝ_H32_JGb F̂]\HFF_HK3̂2_2] 2_H2br2H\JFF_HKs +[[	c	++++++ K_2KK_H])��!�	#'�!�!����!� hkgfkkk"kk k"ie@ hkhftkh"lkhkhfdjj"kd l"dt@ uihfkuu"kjiel"lh l"kl@vlkfduu"kjw ?!!	:	?????? j"ljj"kh4#	)
D?#4
=2̂FJFJoGG xy	ZNO[R.NP	q-0OF_3Lb	M.O	Fc2LcFHFK KHH\HHH_HH [̀Na-.RF_HKb KFH\H33_LGKHL\ĤJ_J2 2HF_LL2_K]b K2H\2J3_GHKFL_K2 2_K2bL\HJJ_3̂ +[[	c	++z+++ 2_̂G2_̂22̂FJFJ{F3 xy	ZNO[R.NP	q-0OFb	M.O	Fc2LcFHFL LHH\HHH_HH HJc]2cFH2LF_2Lb K̂]\G]K_J2K̂J\HH3_2̂ 2H2_2H2_GFb LHL\LHJ_HH]JG_3K 2_3]b3\LHH_J2 +[[	c	++z+++ F_̂3F_J32̂FJFJ|SH xy	ZNO[R.NP	q-0OH_Lb	M.O	]c]2cFHFL ]FL\HHH_HH H]c]HcFHF2H_GKb ]F]\2KG_KJ]F]\L32_KJ Ĝ_GH2_G]b ]2]\̂LL_FHG3J_L3 2_HJbr̂\G2G_FJs +[[	c	++z+++ ]_Ĥ]_H]2̂FJFJ}LG xy	ZNO[R.NP	q-0OF_FLb	M.O	22c2LcFHFL ]LH\HHH_HH HLcF̂cFH2̂F_2]b ]LF\K2̂_̂F]L2\]JJ_J2 2H2_̂G2_3Hb ]LG\JG]_2LF\]HL_̂K 2_F]bL\K3K_]K +[[	c	++z+++ ]_3F]_L]2̂FJFJX]G xy	ZNO[R.NP	q-0O2_GFLb	M.O	Lc2LcFHFG LHH\HHH_HH [̀Na-.RF_F]b K3L\LF]_K̂KJJ\K]L_Ĵ ^̂_LG2_3]b K̂3\J2F_LHF\]3̂_2K 2_32b\̂]3G_G2 +[[	c	++z+++ K_F2K_H]2̂FJF~~�K xy	ZNO[R.NP	q-0OH_GFLb	M.O	3c]2cFHFG 2LH\HHH_HH H3cF̂cFHF2H_3Fb 2K̂\FJL_2G2K̂\]G3_JL L̂_FJ2_3Kb 2KF\̂F2_JH3L_2H H_K̂brG\KKG_HLs +[[	c	++z+++ K_KFK_]]2̂FJFJ��̂ xy	ZNO[R.NP	q-0O2_GFLb	M.O	̂c]HcFHFG KHH\HHH_HH 2Fc2JcFH2̂2_JGb ]̂K\H]2_FL]̂L\̂GG_F2 ^̂_L22_3Kb ]̂J\HKG_JHF\32K_F̂ 2_]3bF\HJH_L̂ +[[	c	++z+++ K_L̂K_]32̂FJF~~|F xy	ZNO[R.NP	q-0OH_J3Lb	M.O	̂c]HcFHFG GHH\HHH_HH [̀Na-.R2_2]b L̂F\32H_̂KL̂]\FLG_]L Ĝ_FH2_3Kb L33\2̂L_FHF\2̂F_]H 2_̂̂ br2G\HG2_2Ls +[[	c	++z+++ K_L̂K_KL
��O,.0a-/	ZanO�	]c2cFHFF	J�L̂�K̂	�}~�[/TWON	+RRO0	}[/[�OnO/0	m	~�qSUM�qZU+� �[�O	2H 

Page 93 of 417



��������	
������	��	��������	���	����������	 !�"	 �����	#��$	%��"	&'��	(���	)�*+,,-./0	1232 4#%5 #�6'��7	8��6������ 5!	9!�'�:4���� 5'6�!��	8!��;��<	=����  ���	9!�'�;��<	9!�'� ><�	5�6�><�	=)> >!<��	9!�'�?66'��	%��" @	�$	5��"A!��:(���>���7:#B5	&��6� >!�'��78'!����4#	)
C?#4
=D2EFEFGHD IJ	KLMNO.LP	Q-0M2R2EST	U.M	EVEFVEWE3 SXSYWWWRWW WZVEXVEWEWWR3ST SSFYDW2R3[SSSYWEZRDD D3RWD2R3XT SEDY22FR2[2[R[[ 2RF2T\ESYDWSRFZ] +NN	V	++̂+++ SRWWXRFZD2EFE_+̀X IJ	KLMNO.LP	Q-0MWRST	U.M	FVZ2VEWE3 2SWYWWWRWW WFVW[VEWE2WRDXT 2X[Y2E2RWD2X[YX3FR[[ DZRZF2R33T 2XWYW[ERSWERWX WRXFT\[YX2[R2[] +NN	V	++̂+++ SRS2SRZFD2EFE_+aS IJ	KLMNO.LP	Q-0MWRZ3ST	U.M	DVZWVEWE3 ZWWYWWWRWW 2WVESVEWE22RZZT EFZY3DERD3EFXY3Z[REW DERSD2R33T E33Y3[DRXWX[DR3F WRDST\[YD[[RFW] +NN	V	++̂+++ SRSDSRX3D2EFEFZbS IJ	KLMNO.LP	Q-0MEREST	U.M	22V2SVEWE3 ZWWYWWWRWW 22VW3VEW2D2RFDT ZW3YDS3RWZZWSY[[XR2D 2WERSX2R3FT ZW3Y[EDRWW2YD3[RSE 2RW[T2YD[XRF2 +NN	V	++̂+++ SR3ESRZ2D2EFE_HH[ IJ	KLMNO.LP	Q-0MWR[EST	U.M	2EVZ2VEWE3 [ESYWWWRWW WZVEDVEWE22RZWT SD3YF3SRDF[W2YS3WRE2 DZR[W2R3FT SFXYDFSR[Z[X3RXX ERW2T\2[YSFXRSF] +NN	V	++̂+++ SRFXSR[FD2EFE_HcD IJ	KLMNO.LP	Q-0MWR3ST	U.M	2VZ2VEWEF SSWYWWWRWW WZV2EVEWE22REFT SZWYFS3RXESZZYSZ2R2Z DXR232R3DT S23YDXSRXSZZWRX[ 2R3FT\2SYSFSR[F] +NN	V	++̂+++ SRDZSR3XD2EFE__d2 IJ	KLMNO.LP	Q-0M2R2EST	U.M	FVZ2VEWEF ZWWYWWWRWW WDVWZVEWE22R2WT ZWWYXS3RWZZWWYXESR[3 DSR3X2RFET EF3YE2XRDWDR23 WRDFT\2ZYE2WR33] +NN	V	++̂+++ [RS2[REED2EFEFeHW IJ	KLMNO.LP	Q-0M2R[EST	U.M	FV2SVEWED ZSWYWWWRWW WSVEFVEWEWWR[[T ZFWYWWDR33Z3XYEDZREW DFR3D2RFWT ZXSY3[2RFSE2DRD[ 2R2DT\EFYSZ2RZS] +NN	V	++̂+++ 3RX3[RDDD2EFEFGf[ IJ	KLMNO.LP	Q-0MWR[EST	U.M	SV2SVEWZW [2SYWWWRWW dNLg-.OWRDWT SDDYSDZRDS[W2YSZDRDZ DWRD22RFET SSDYW3ZR2Z2Y2ESRSE 2RDET\XEYX[[RFW] +NN	V	++̂+++ FRE23RDED2EFE_+dZ IJ	KLMNO.LP	Q-0MWRF3ST	U.M	22V2SVEWZW [ESYWWWRWW dNLg-.O2RZWT [WWYFWFRSD[WZYZS3REE DERZS2RFZT S33Y23ZR2Z2Y[W2RZS 2RDFT\E[Y2FXRWD] +NN	V	++̂+++ FR3EFRED)��!�	4#	)�!�'7 hijkjilll"ll m"nk@ hijlhiolj"olhijmmihmo"pp m"hq@ hinopioon"qlmhijjr"np oj"mk@smkoiqkp"jpt ?!!	:	??u??? j"nnj"mo)v)?(	5v
)&v(%v opiohqinon"qo m"rr@ opinqlikqq"lpopinloiojk"kk m"hp@ opilqpinmk"qomonihro"pm mll"ll@sojoipql"qrt ?!m	:	????? q"mjn"hh)v)?(	>?
wC)	9?(4C	5(4#	?  
4C8 opimhnilkm"nn
xyM,.0g-/	KgzM{	ZV2VEWEE	F{SD{XD	|}_~N/��ML	+OOM0	}N/N�MzM/0	�	_�Qb�UxQK�+a |N�M	22 

Page 94 of 417



��������	

�������	�������������
	�
����������������������������������	������� !"#$%&'(�)*�+,++�-(&./0(�$%&'(�1)*�+,++
23456789:53�;5398:3<=�><6<:3�:?�;534:=<39:8@A�B<�C6D<�E5C�95�;57F86<�9>:?�?989<7<39�95�9><�53<�E5C�6<;<:G<�4657�E5C6�HC8@:4:<=�;C?95=:83A�I@<8?<�?<<�27F569839�J:?;@5?C6<?AKLMNOPQR�STTUV�WSXSYUWUXVZ[\]̂ _̀a\bb̀cdZef


�g��������g�hijk�lmnopqjro�stjmp�ujmk�svvjmrp*�wxnson�vsxx�yz,,{�1)|}~|~|*jk�vjrpsvp�����g��������g�����g��������
������g��sr��j���n���jk��$nxxjr�smknr��n�rnky�,~{��~�})�)z
 

Page 95 of 417



����������		�
� ���������������������� ����������������������� !"#$�% &'# ()*+,(*,(( ()*(,-*(.(/00!'#1�23$#!#4$ --(*5.6 +5*5..78$ &�� !"#$�% &'# �9:;<=:9<� �>:>=<:��<2308?#�@ !3#1 (+*65A )A*(+5B83$CDE AF ! (6*(+5*.++ (6*)6(*5-,G88"�% &'# (6*)5(*65( (6*6H+*6A.B84$�% &'# (6*6(,*+A+ (6*.A)*HA.
��I�J����
�KLMNOPQNPR�LS�TPURNV�WRXRNY H-Z+[\NVNOX]�̂LQN�_LXP�̀LORaXaN�bLOc -6Z5[\NVNOX]�dXRULPX]�̀LORaXaN�eYYLf -HZ-[\NVNOX]�̂LQN�_LXP�gXPh 5ZA[iPR]�gXPh�jNfLP�XPV�kNMN]LcQNPR HZ6[K̀ �\UPXPfUX]�elRLQLmU]N�_NXYUPa HZ)[nLoLRX�egW HZH[gXPh�LS�eQNOUfX�bLOc -Z+[��p�� q9��r

I�
�s�tJ���u�
����
J��J��eMNOXaN�̀LVUSUNV�klOXRULP HZ6.eMNOXaN�bLlcLP -Z).[eMNOXaN�vlOfwXYN�xǹ -Z(5[eMNOXaN�̀XOhNR�xǹ HZ).[eMNOXaN�Wyvz̀LLVo�jXRUPa eezeX-eMNOXaN�\UPX]�̀XRlOURo HZ,5�oOYeMNOXaN�_USN HZ.6�oOY �
�{J��|��tJ���}�~I�	���
J���{J��
J���J�������
��tt����J��
I��p�������������/4�8��� !0�������������p���������p�������J����s��������p����effLlPR��-5A

I�
s�
	�����
��J�� ������������������������������ �	 �	 ��{ ��
 ��
� ��
� 9�
� �;�
� �������<<=dLORwNOP�be�bURUNY�WN]S�iPYZ�\lPV�WwLOR�nNOQ �-Z5.[ �(ZHH[ �(ZHH[ �(Z.A[ �-ZAH[ -Z-H[ -Z(+[ -ZH+[ (Z),[ib �gLSe�-�6�xO�TW�nONXYlOo�y�eaNPfo�iPVN¡ �-Z,.[ �(Z-.[ �(Z-.[ �(Z5-[ �-Z+-[ AZ+-[ -Z-6[ -ZA)[ (Z-,[ib �gLSe�-�6�xO�eee�e�TW�bLOc�y�KLMR�iPVN¡ �-Z,)[ �(ZHA[ �(ZHA[ �(Z5A[ �-Z.([ AZ++[ -ZH6[ -Z-.[ (ZH,[ ¡NflRULP�nUQN¢�)z(zHAHH�-¢A(¢)-�v̀bwXPV]NO�eYYNR�̀XPXaNQNPR���b£d\ik dnie_ vXaN�- 
Page 96 of 417



�������� 	��
���� �����
��������������� ������������ ��� !"#$%&'�(�������)*+��,��� ������������-��,��.�/����+�+�01�,2�.3����+�+�4����5���+5��,�������3��.,����������6�.����+�+��1��+�����������.1��5�7�.����+�(���������7�.�����+��,�8'&9������� ��� !"#$&�4����������� **�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-<=>��?����-@�������?��������-�����.1��A:B3�CD���*BA���� ��� !"#$E���,�4��&�,������� @�������?�������� ��� !"#$*����0A�,2�.)E���+�+�0A�,2�.&�,������� **�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-F=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$A��2��G�*,,�4���,�� H=>��?����-IJ=.�����?�������� ��� !"#$D�����,���K�4�� *0I8K0I1���:&:;-F@>��?����-FL=.�����?�������� ��� !"#$D��4�����E�.������������ *�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-<=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$E����E��2��E�����C��.� M�+5��������+�1��N��:&:;�-F=>��?���� ��� !"#$E�����C��.� M�+5��������+�1��N��:&:;�-F=>��?���� ��� !"#$��+����1��DB� <=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$����D����7�,�����7B�4����-D����������6�.A��2B�4����� @�������?�������� ��� !"#$O*�C E�?��������N4������ ��� !"#$:�4��,5���*+�������� I������?��������-������.1���(�������*.(���� ��� !"#$K��5�1���. D�������4��7����.���,2�3,��(����1����P��21��.�3,����.�����3�4�����3������.4�������5�4�3'�D�3:�(������4��,5����+��������3��������..�4�����3��(����7�������-���+�������3����+�+�.���(�.3����������������4�3Q������������,,������,��������75��.����������-��(��������.���������.�����0%&B-D����������6�.E���+�+�;1��+������RDE;�SN��5,�������������4�,�7�,����'�E*3CMOED3��C�E*-K��,5����+��������+��,������������+��-&�,����������.��+�������5��7����71����N��+����(���+� ��� !"#$E�?K�������� @>4����������������������������?4��,���������.���5�4���,�3�?,��.��+%T&T+�(�������3�+��,�3��(�������4���3��.��������2��7��.� ��� !"#$E�?����E������� I=����� ��� !"#$

U���V��
��WXY��
X��X�X�Z	�WY[\
Z]��
̂�_]
�[	V���̀���ab# �cde�!"�f�� !"#$g"db$dhd#!hghijg"dbdb#�!"#idk$"il#$d�#id �!"fmn	������
��Y���oWX�
̂�p$�eqhcfbrstuvuu

 
Page 97 of 417



���������	�
	����������	���������������	 ������������������������� �!"#$%&'(�)$%#*+,", -./012345.6 �789"(�7+%:"'�;$9<�)$%#*+,", -0=61>33546 �789"(�7+%:"'�?89'%&@$'&89, ->5>> �!"#$%&'(�?89'%&@$'&89, ->5>> �!"#$%&'(�A%+9,B"%, ->5>>������CD������������� �E�FG���HH�E�I��J��������K�!"#$%&'(�!+L", -.M61=/6534K�789"(�7+%:"'�;$9<�!+L", -./012345.6K�77;�N&'*<%+O+L, ->5>>K�!"#$%&'(�N&'*<%+O+L, ->5>>K�!"#$%&'(�A%+9,B"%, ->5>>K�P'*"%�Q&,R8,&'&89, ->5>>K�7+'$%&'", ->5>>K�?+LL, ->5>>K�)%&9#&R+L�)+(<8O9, -.>14.M5=2������CD�I��J�������� �E���H��HG����S�T��UC����V���TW���� XK�Y"'�Z##%"'&89 [-41.>054.\ [-41.>054.\�C��V��������I��J�������� XK�]"+L&̂"<�_+&9X̀8,, [-/63564\ [-/63564\	�I������������	 ������a��G���G

��bc��
��b������b�dd�
e�	������������	 ��G�G�G�GG���������������������?89'%&@$'&89, ->5>>����������!"#$%&'(�!+L"�)%8#""<, -.M61=/6534����������Z##%$"<�f9'"%",'�]"#"&g"< -314=35=6����������f9'"%",'�]"#"&g"< -==10/05/4����������Q&g&<"9<�]"#"&g"< -4530����������)%&9#&R+L�89�7+'$%&'&", ->5>>����������f9'"%",'�89�7+'$%&'&", ->5>>����������?+LL,X]"<"hR'&89�[)%&9#&R+L\ ->5>>����������f9'"%",'�B%8h�?+LL,X]"<"hR'&89 ->5>>����������)%&9#&R+L�)+(<8O9 -.>14.M5=2���CD������������� �a�H�G����HI��J������������������N&'*<%+O+L, ->5>>����������!"#$%&'(�)$%#*+," -./012345.6����������Z##%$"<�f9'"%",'�)+&< ->5>>���CD�I��J�������� �F�a�����FH	�I������������	 �E�H���G��G


W�����D�C�����b�SSCTijk�lm�nopqr�stu�vwvv��T�xWT���CD�y�T��C�����W��bWDy����TC��W�z��{�bx�T���WTSZ##8$9'�|M2>

}~"#$'&89�A&h"��/X3X4>44�M�>3�/M�)7?*+9<L"%�Z,,"'�7+9+�"h"9'�K�?PY;fQ}YAfZ̀ )+�"�3 
Page 98 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8���� ;!CD112E)FG HIJ*IKIL	MI-N	),.+	OIPLI	QJ,L.	R2R2S)	)T0UDVW	X,I	0RY0CYR2RR 00ZG0TU22 20YR0YR2R20UDCW 00ZG00UV100ZG0RUGR 022U2T2U[0W 00ZG0GUD[[UC2 2U2TWVUR1 )PP	Y	)))\] 2U102U2VV11D[̂)XD +̂_-	XIIJI	̀a-IJ	QJ,L.	R20[S)	)TRU[0W	X,I	1Y01YR2RT 0VZD[0UT1 2GYRVYR2R22UDTW 0CZRDRUDC0VZ[C[UGT 022U0G0U0TW 0VZ[0VUDC0[URG 2U2VWbVVU1Dc )PP	Y	\]))) 0UT22U2[VTD0C\)FD d+-KP	),.+	]I*IefPghIL	QJ,L.	R20[ST	)T0U1DW	X,I	DY0CYR2RT G[ZV1GUTD 2DYR2YR20[0U1[W G[ZV1CUD2G[ZV1GUR[ 022U2D0UVDW G[ZCTTU[DCVU[G 2UR2WC1UG[ )PP	Y	)))\] 0UTD2UR[CD1G[i)FR HIJ*IKILSMI-N	),.+	OIPLI	QJ,L.	R2R2SM	)T2UVW	X,I	00Y0CYR2RT [2Z222U22 2[Y0CYR2R22UV2W D[Z[[CUVVD[Z[[DUVV [[UT[0U1RW D[ZVC2UGV0GU22 2URGWbCV1UD2c \]	Y	)))))) 0UGT2UVGV11D12)FT +̂_-	XIIJI	̀a-IJ	QJ,L.	R20[SM	)TRUR0W	X,I	0RY0CYR2RT RCZD2TUGV 21Y0GYR20[RURTW RCZ1[DU0GRCZD20UC0 022UR10URCW RCZD1RUVTRCUTV 2U2DW12U[R )PP	Y	\]))) 0U102URD[RTVD)))T jIJeN+-	̀a-IJ	QJ,L.	R20[SF	)0)0U[VW	X,I	VYRRYR2RV 12ZRTRU1G 02Y20YR20[0U[CW 12ZRR1UTC12ZRT2UT0 022U0T0UC[W 12ZTRTURRV0UGT 2UR2W[RU[0 \]	Y	)))))) RU2G2UTDGCV1[̂)XC \eLLP-	),.+	]I*IefPghIL	̀a-IJ	R20[SF	)T0U[TW	X,I	1Y0CYR2RV 022ZVGCU11 02Y0GYR20[0U[VW 022ZVG2UV1022ZVGTUR2 022U0[0UVRW 022ZGG2UT1DGU0D 2UR[W0[1U01 )PP	Y	)))\] RUR[2UTDVTD0TX)FR d+-KP	),.+	]I*IefPghIL	R2R2SR	)T2UDRW	X,I	1Y0CYR2RV GDZ1RTU[T 2CY0DYR2R22UDTW GDZ10DUCTGDZ1R2U[V [[UTR0U[[W GDZRCVUG0RCU2C 2UR2WbVGGUTTc )PP	Y	)))\] RUR[2UCDV11D[k)F1 +̂_-	XIIJI	̀a-IJ	QJ,L.	R2R2S)	)T0U0W	X,I	DY0CYR2RV 0T0ZD[GUTC jPJe+,L0URGW 0T0ZVG1UG00T0ZGC1URD [[UGD0UG[W 0T0ZV1DUT1GVUVD 2UTDWb01DU[0c )PP	Y	\]))) RUTD2UCTVTD0Tk)FG d+-KP	),.+	]I*IefPghIL	QJ,L.	R2R2ST	)T2UT1W	X,I	02Y0DYR2RV 0VCZ222U22 2[YRRYR2R22UTDW 0VVZ[1DU120VVZ[DDU[0 [DU1VRU0TW 0VTZ011UR00[UT1 2UVRWb0ZD00U12c \]	Y	)))))) RUCC2U10TGRGRl)FD mH	Ee-P-*ePh	),.+	OIPLI	QJ,L.	R2R0ST	)R2UT[W	X,I	02YR0YR2RV C[2Z222U22 jPJe+,L2U1TW CDGZG[CUT[CD1Z0TVUDD [1U0TRUCVW C1TZ2CVUGR12UT0 0UGGWb0VZ2D2URGc \]	Y	)))))) RUCG0UTCV11D1\)FT +̂_-	XIIJI	̀a-IJ	QJ,L.	R2R2SM	)T2UC0W	X,I	00Y0CYR2RV CTZ[T2U2[ 21Y0VYR2R22UCRW CTZ[R0UD1CTZ[RCUDG [DUD[RURRW CTZTR[UDC0RURR 2U0CWbC[GU20c )PP	Y	\]))) RUGT2UGC2[G[2))F1 MHn	jI_e*hI	OIPLI	QJ,L.	R2R0SR	)T2UTTW	X,I	0RYRGYR2RV DCZ222U22 2[Y2DYR2R02UTVW DVZ[[0URTDVZ[[TUTR [1UV[RUVTW DRZDGVUR[VUGD 2URVWbRZ0R[U2Tc )PP	Y	\]))) RU1V0UR2D[RTGl)F2 Q+o+.P	),.+	]I*IefPghIL	R2R2SX	)T2UTCW	X,I	0Y0CYR2RC 00CZ222U22 02Y2GYR2R22UTGW 00VZ[1DUCD00VZ[DCU[C [DUDCRU0VW 00TZG1GU0R01UD[ 2UTTWb0ZT2[UDTc \]	Y	)))))) RUD22UGVipI*,.e+-	QeqIr	VYTYR2RR	0r2TrV0	sHF_P-KhIJ	)LLI.	HP-PtIqI-.	S	F̀\EuXi\Qu)O sPtI	V 
Page 99 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8���� ;!CDDC2E))C FGHIJ+-	KL-GH	MH,N.	D2D2OE	)2PQ1R	S,G	DTD2TD2DU D2UV222P22 2WT2QTD2D22PQWR D2QVCUXPCUD2QVC1DPU2 CWPXDDP2CR D2DV0XUPX1DCPQQ 2PUCRYDVW2XPWZ[ )\\	T	]̂))) DPC22PWXZXDXU_)̀C a_	bI-\-*I\c	),.+	dG\NG	MH,N.	D2DDO0	)Z0PCR	S,G	ZTD2TD2DU DQ2V222P22 2DT0UTD2DD0PC0R DZCVCC1PCQDZCVCCWP2Q CWPW2DPUWR DZ1V00DPW20ZCPZZ 2PXCRYDVWWUPDQ[ )\\	T	]̂))) DPC10P1W2UX20e)̀Z E_f	FGgI*cG	dG\NG	MH,N.	D2DDO0	)Z0P0R	S,G	ZTDUTD2DU 00UV222P22 20T00TD2DD0P00R 00QVCWDPW000QVCWQPZX C1PU0DP1DR 00DV0ZCPWQD0P2W 2PZZRYDVWQQPUD[ ]̂	T	)))))) DPCC0PUUQZW0Za)̀U h+-i\	),.+	̂G*GIj\kcGN	MH,N.	D2D0O0	)Z2PD1R	S,G	QTD0TD2DU 12V222P22 2DT01TD2D02PD1R XCVCCWP1DXCVCCCP0W C1PCDDPUQR XWVUQ0PUUUPDU 2PD2RY0VQU1PXZ[ )\\	T	]̂))) ZP2X2PCDQQWC0̂)̀Q hl,-i\I	),.+	̂G*GIj\kcGN	MH,N.	D2D2Ò	)Z2PZWR	S,G	UT0UTD2DU 0U2V222P22 02TD2TD2D22PZCR 0QCVCXUPQU0QCVCW2PZX CWPDDDPZ0R 0Q1VZZQPZUDUPZZ 2PQZRYDVXQXP20[ ]̂	T	)))))) ZP0Z2PCDWCDQ2E)̀D M+l+.\	),.+	̂G*GIj\kcGN	KL-GHN	D2D0O)	)Z2PDXR	S,G	UT0UTD2DU DUUV222P22 2DT2DTD2D02PD1R DUQVCUDPX1DUQVC12P0D CWP02DPDXR DU2V0XDPQ2DCPQ1 2P1ZRYQVW21P1D[ )\\	T	]̂))) ZP0Z2PCUQQCZZd)̀1 hl,-i\I	),.+	̂G*GIj\kcGN	MH,N.	D2D0O)	)Z2PZWR	S,G	CT0UTD2DU 0D2V222P22 2QTD2TD2D02PZWR 00CVCW1PZW00CVCC0PD0 C1PU2DPZQR 00XVCCCPWWD2PD1 2PZQRYDVCC0PZZ[ ]̂	T	)))))) ZPQX0PDCWCDZCE)̀U M+l+.\	),.+	̂G*GIj\kcGN	MH,N.	D2D0Ò	)Z2PQZR	S,G	0T0UTD2DX ZQ2V222P22 0DT01TD2D02PC0R ZZXVXUZP0ZZZXVC1DP2Z CXPZZZP2UR ZD1VUD1P1WXQPCW 2PCURYCVQQQPDU[ )\\	T	)))]̂ ZPW20PQDQZW0Ua)̀Z h+-i\	),.+	̂G*GIj\kcGN	MH,N.	D2D0OQ	)Z2PWWR	S,G	0TD0TD2DX CUV222P22 00T0XTD2D02PWCR CQVC1CPC1CQVCWDP0Z CXPWDDPUWR C0VCW0PWUDZPDD 2PD1RYZV222PDW[ )\\	T	]̂))) ZPW00PWCQ11WCm)̀Q n+g-	SGGHG	KL-GH	MH,N.	D2D0OE	)Z2PUDR	S,G	ZT0XTD2DX 00UV222P22 21T0ZTD2D02PUDR 00QVCWCP1Q00QVCC0P12 CUPWDDPWDR 002V0CDP11DXPUW 2PZDRYQV1CWPCZ[ )\\	T	]̂))) ZPCX0PWUWCDZWn)̀C M+l+.\	),.+	̂G*GIj\kcGN	MH,N.	D2D0OS	)Z2P10R	S,G	QT0UTD2DX WUV222P22 00T2CTD2D02P10R WQVCCWP0CWQVCCWPQ2 CXPDDDPWDR W0V1C2PQ2DXPWD 2PDQRYZVD2WP22[ ]̂	T	)))))) QP2Q0PW0QQCZUb)SX hl,-i\I	),.+	̂G*GIj\kcGN	MH,N.	D2D0Ò	)Z2P1QR	S,G	UT0UTD2DX XUV222P22 00T2CTD2D02P1UR XQVCWUPQCXQVCW1P0C CXP02DPWDR XDVQXQPW1D0PZW 2P0WRYDVUDDPZD[ ]̂	T	)))))) QP0Z0PC2opG*,.I+-	MIqGr	QTZTD2DD	0r2ZrQ0	s_g̀\-icGH	)NNG.	_\-\tGqG-.	O	̀K]buSo]Mu)d s\tG	U 
Page 100 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8���� ;!CDE0FG)HC I+-JK	),.+	LM*MNOKPQMR	ST,R.	U2UUV0	)D0WEEX	Y,M	FZ0FZU2U[ 0\2]222W22 2UZ0FZU2UU0WE\X 0E\]\10WCU0E\]\1UWDU \EWU0UW[EX 0E[]F\EW2F0FEW1[ 2WFCXD̂]D1CWU1_ )KK	Z	)))L̀ CW0DUWU[D[UFFC)H0 ab	cN-K-*NKQ	dM*,TN.NeMJ	SMTf	U2U0VC	)D2W[EX	Y,M	\Z0[ZU2U[ 12]222W22 02Z0DZU2U02W[EX [\]\\EWUU[\]\\EWCF \[W[2UW[1X [1][01W\10\WED 2WU2XÛ]DE2WCE_ )KK	Z	)))L̀ CWC10W1DC11E1g)HU g+h-	YMMTM	ij-MT	ST,R.	U2UUV)	)DUWDUX	Y,M	\Z0[ZU2U[ 0CF]222W22 2DZ02ZU2UUUWDCX 0CC]\[1W\D0CC]\[EWDD \EW12UW\0X 0CD]00\W[C0C2W01 2WCUX0̂]ECEW[\_ )KK	Z	̀L))) CWC1UWUUCCE\11)Y2 Ik,-JKN	),.+	LM*MNOKPQMR	ST,R.	U2UUV)	)DUWUUX	Y,M	02Z0FZU2U[ 0FF]222W22 2DZ2\ZU2UUUWUDX 0FC]\\CW2D0FC]\\CW00 \EW1FUW1\X 0FD]2[1W0F0CDWDE 2WCCX0̂]\U[W\[_ L̀	Z	)))))) CWFFUWU0DE20C[)HC ab	cN-K-*NKQ	),.+	LM*MNOKPQMR	U2UUV0	)D0WU[X	Y,M	00Z0[ZU2U[ 1F]222W22 20Z00ZU2UU0WU1X 1C]\\DWCE1C]\\DWE1 \[WE0DW2\X 1U][2EWDUD\WDE 2WU0XÛ]DEFWFF_ L̀	Z	)))))) CW[D0W1['��8�	 ;! lmnopmnqq$pr n$rr? lmnslmrto$rtlmnssmtnq$ll p$lp? qmrtrmoqp$tlumlnu$sl uu$ss?vtomntn$tnw  88	:	      q$usu$px @y��=D0DFa2S\C c̀b)	̀+.MUWD1FX	Y,M	0Z0\ZU2UD E2]222W22 2CZ00ZU20EUW10X 1E]EU2WE21\]E20W1E 022W[[0WFDX E2]FD0W1[DE2W22 2WUDX1U\W\E )KK	Z	))z))) 2WE02W1\D0D1{){L[ cI|bH	̀+.M2WD1FX	Y,M	FZFZU2UD FU2]222W22 2FZ2FZU2U22WD\X F0\]1E0W[2F0\]\U2WU1 \EWC00WEFX F00]1DCW[21\2WED 0WC\XÊ]0EFW[1_ )KK	Z	))z))) 0W020W2ED0D1{){̀F cI|bH	̀+.MUW1FX	Y,M	[Z0\ZU2UD F22]222W22 21ZU2ZU20EUWE[X C\1]C\2W22C\\]D1EW02 022W\[0W\FX F2C]1ECW22D]E\FWED 0WCEXF]C2FW\2 )KK	Z	))z))) 0WUU0W0\D0DFa2FaC c̀b)	̀+.M2WUFX	Y,M	1Z02ZU2UD UD2]222W22 21Z2EZU2U22WDUX UU\]F2FWF2UU\]1\2W20 \1WEF0W\1X UUF]2C[W1U0U\WDE 2W[FXĈ]1CDWU\_ )KK	Z	))z))) 0WUE0WU[D0D1{){}1 cI|bH	̀+.M2WUFX	Y,M	EZUCZU2UD DUF]222W22 2EZ0\ZU2U22WUEX DUC][[EWF2DUC]EC[W2U \1WC\UW2EX D0[]ECCW1EEDWF0 2W\UXÊ]220WUC_ )KK	Z	))z))) 0WC20WDED0DFa2~CD c̀b)	̀+.MUWE1FX	Y,M	\Z0UZU2UD F2F]222W22 2\Z0UZU20EUW\[X F2U]\U\WF2F2C]D\\WF0 020W21UW0UX F02]DEDWE01[[WU1 0WCEXF]\ECWD2 )KK	Z	))z))) 0WCF0WC0D0DFa2[I0 c̀b)	̀+.M2WUFX	Y,M	00ZU1ZU2UD 0F2]222W22 00ZUDZU2U22WU\X 0C\]EU\W220C\]\2FW[\ \[W\DUW0FX 0CF]D\1WC20U\W01 2WCUXĈ]F2EWU\_ )KK	Z	))z))) 0W[[0W[DD0D2)2c12 cI|G	̀+.MDWD1FX	Y,M	0UZEZU2UD CC2]222W22 20Z0[ZU20\UW1DX CFU]ECDW[2CCC]CU\WEU 020WEUUWU1X CCE]222W2EC][[0WUF 0WD0XD]F12WU[ )KK	Z	))z))) 0W[\0W[U{�M*,.N+-	SNfM�	CZDZU2UU	0�2D�C0	�bHhK-JQMT	)RRM.	bK-K�MfM-.	V	Hì c�Y{̀S�)| �K�M	[ 
Page 101 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8���� @C��=D0D2)EDF1 GFHE	I+.JKLD1MN	O,J	DPQPK2KR M22S222L22 2RPKTPK20TKLD1N M22S2DML22M22S20DLTM 022L0DKLD2N M22SUU0LM21MQLUQ 0LRMNUR1LMM )VV	P	))WIX 0LTR0LQQD0D2)0YZK GFHE	I+.JKLQ1MN	O,J	UP0RPK2KR R1MS222L22 2UP0QPK20T0LTUN RTMSMRQLUMRQRS21QLQM 020L20KLR2N R1TSQ2UL2MRS2MQLTM 0LR2N[RSK1KLQ2\ )VV	P	))WIX KLK0KL00D0DM]2̂1M GI_)	I+.J0L1MN	O,J	1PKPK2KR M22S222L22 0KPKKPK2K02LQRN M00SKQML22M02S21DLK1 TQL12KLDRN RTDSM02L22KS0UDL0T 0LRRN[0USMUDLK1\ )VV	P	))W))) KLKUKL0QD0D2)K̀aR GFHE	I+.JKLQ1MN	O,J	TP0DPK2KR RM2S222L22 2TP0DPK20T0L1TN R1DSD2MLM2RU0SRRQLDK 020L2MKLRDN RMRS1DQLTMURULQQ 0LDKN[US12TLD1\ )VV	P	))W))) KLRUKLDMD0DM]2aUU GI_)	I+.J0LUKMN	O,J	02P0MPK2KR K22S222L22 02P01PK20T0LUUN 0TTSUMQL220TTSQKUL22 TQL21KLR0N 0TUS0R2LK20SRTQLU0 2LM1N[DSUQMLQ2\ )VV	P	))W))) KLMMKLRMD0D2)bGR2 GFHE	I+.J0N	O,J	0KPK2PK2KR MM2S222L22 0KPK0PK2K00L2KN MRTSURKLM2MRTSU1ML0Q TULKDKLRRN MKTSKRTLU20SM0KLM2 0LMRN[K2SRKMLMQ\ )VV	P	))W))) KL1DKLUMD0DM]2YKR GI_)	I+.J0LUKMN	O,J	0P1PK2KM M2MS222L22 V̂cd+,e0LK0N M0RSQR2L2MM02SURDLTK T1L1DKLRQN RTDSMR0LMM0ST0RL1T 0LRRN[01S02KLD1\ )VV	P	))W))) KL1QKLU1D0D1f)fg2 GFH_h	I+.J0LMN	O,J	KP0KPK2KM U2MS222L22 2KP0DPK2K20LMKN U2RSMDRL0MU2RS1DKLRT T1LKTKLRTN MQQSU2KL2Q0SKDMLK0 0L10N[0US0D2LR0\ )VV	P	))W))) KLQ1KL11D0DM]2D̀M GI_)	I+.J2LUKMN	O,J	RPKKPK2KM R1MS222L22 2RPKKPK2K22LU1N R1RS2K0LM2R1RSR22L1Q TRLMMKLRTN RRTS2TULQD0SD00LK2 0LD0N[KMSD2DLTM\ )VV	P	))W))) DL2UKLTTD0DM]2RiD GI_)	I+.J2LMN	O,J	UP01PK2KM MUMS222L22 V̂cd+,e2LR1N MUMSM1RL0MMUMSRU2L10 TDLQRKLM0N MD2S01MLUUQ0UL00 0LMRN[DMSKQML2M\ )VV	P	))W))) DLKKDL0RD0D1f)f̀T GFH_h	I+.J2LD1MN	O,J	1PK0PK2KM DK2S222L22 21PK0PK2K22LRQN D0QSR2ULR2D0QSTRMLRU TDLDUKLRQN KTQS1RRLURKDDLDD 2LQ1N[K2SK22LQK\ )VV	P	))W))) DLD0DLKRD0DM]2MY1 GI_)	I+.J2LD1MN	O,J	QPKMPK2KM MU2S222L22 V̂cd+,e2LRUN MM1SQ20LK2MMQSR1TLQT TDL0QKLRQN MK0SQDKLURK02L22 0LM0N[DUSUR1LKM\ )VV	P	))W))) DLR0DLDRD0D1f)fYD GFH_h	I+.J2LD1MN	O,J	TPKDPK2KM MMMS222L22 V̂cd+,e2LRRN MMDSDMRLUMMMDSQDDLDD TKLTRKLM0N M0MS1TMLDURULKM 0LM2N[DQS2D1LT1\ )VV	P	))W))) DLRQDLR0D0DM]2U]D GI_)	I+.J2LMN	O,J	00P1PK2KM MUMS222L22 V̂cd+,e2LMUN MUDSRDRLT2MUDSQ1DLDD TDLKDKLRQN MKUS1D0LRK0S0D2L22 0LMDN[D1S0R0LT0\ )VV	P	))W))) DLU0DLMK'��8�	 ���56 jklmlknnn$nn o$pq? jkqrmkron$oljkqnmkjlq$qs p$rp? jkrpokrtj$qrpskrmo$jt pm$op?upsqkqnm$nlv  88	:	  w   p$tpp$rlfxJ*,.d+-	ydzJ{	RPDPK2KK	0{2D{R0	g_h|V-}~Jc	)eeJ.	_V-V�JzJ-.	�	h�IG�OfIy�)H gV�J	1 
Page 102 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8�����>CD0D1EFGHG IJKFL	M1N0	)NDO2PQ	R,S	TUNVUN2NN NPNWD1POPG 2PUN0UN201NONNQ D2DWV2NO2TNPDWNTVO02 022ON20ODVQ NPNWP12ONT1VNOTT 2OTVQXD0YOTNZ )[[	U	\]\] 2OY22ONYD0D1EŶ ET IJKFL	M2DD	)NDO2GQ	R,S	1UNVUN2ND YNVW222O22 2PU0DUN20PNO0YQ YDTWTGNOD2YNPW1DNOV0 022OP1NO2GQ YNPW0Y0ON2N0GO1V 0ONVQXVP0OD0Z )[[	U	\]\] 0ODN0O0GD0D1E1F_P IJKFL	M2DG	)NDOVN1Q	R,S	02UNVUN2ND Y22W222O22 02UNPUN20TDODNQ Y2DWPD1OV2Y20WND1OV2 020ODVNOY0Q Y2VWY01OG2NDVO0D 0O0TQYW0T2O02 )[[	U	\]))) 0OV10ODPD0D1ÈHa1 IJKFL	M1NG	)NNOP2VQ	R,S	YUNVUN2NY DYTWPGYO2V 2YUNNUN20PNO1NQ DV0WYVTOG0DYPWPPYOPN 022OVNNOVDQ DV2W1PVOY0TYYO1T 0O2NQT22OYP \]	U	)))\] NO210OTDD0D1EIbPT IJKFL	M2Y0	)NDO010Q	R,S	02UNVUN2NY V22W222O22 0NU0VUN2N00O01Q VNGWDNTO0DVNDWG0VONN 020O0YNOGNQ V2VW100O220WDN0ONV 0OY1QX01WP2YONNZ )[[	U	)))))) NOV1NODGD0D1EĤ N0 IJKFL	M2VV	)NNOG1DQ	R,S	DUNVUN2NG 012W222O22 0NU0VUN2N00ONVQ 01TW12VOTG01TW0NGOND PPO1YNO10Q 0GPWVGNOYND1TOGT 2OYPQXTWVGDOT0Z \]	U	\]))) DOPPDOGVD0D1Iacd1 IJKFL	M1D1	)NNOVNVQ	R,S	02UNVUN2NG VNDW222O22 0NU0VUN2N00OY0Q VYTW122OVVVY1W0PPO0Y PTOVTNOTYQ V0VWV12O1P0W022OYT 0OV2QXD0WGNTODVZ \]	U	\]))) YOV1YO0Y'��8�	�>C efghifjkk$lm e$ll? efnhmfkih$ljefnejfmil$ge e$ji? efggifmgo$nlkfoki$ih n$ng?phkflem$ieq  88	:	      e$jie$mk�C
4C
 'rNYYNNbstY d+u-	RSSvS	L[wx.[y	L+vw	\+.SNOTQ	R,S	DUGUN2ND 0V2W222O22 2GU0DUN20TDOYYQ 0YVWTNTOV20YPW0T2ON0 022OTT0OTVQ 0V0WD0YOYVNP0OG1 2OYYQNW0DYONY )N	U	)) 2OPD2OPN2D1TDD)MG )wwyS	z-*	\+.SNOYQ	R,S	VUDUN2ND NDVW222O22 00UNTUN20TDOVYQ NNYW0Y2OGVNDNWDD2OVV 022OV10OT1Q NDGWDYDO1DNWD0TOG1 2OGPQYW20DO0T )[[	U	)){\] 0O2P0O2G2NGGV̂ LdT )|Svx*[-	J+-}[	Ix-[-*S	\+.SDOYVQ	R,S	1U0YUN2ND 022W222O22 21U00UN20TDOYPQ PPWTN1O22PPWPVVOVN 020OY0NODDQ 020WY02O021D1OPN 2OD2Q0WYVYOVT )D	U	)~) 0ONP0ONVGPD10]HVP H[**[v	Ix-[-*x[y	L+vw	\+.SDOYQ	R,S	TUPUN2ND NV2W222O22 2TU2GUN20TDOY0Q NYPWTP1OV2NYPWP1NON0 020O01NOV0Q NVNWPNGO1V0WNN1O1T 2O1YQNWPVYOVY )0	U	){\] 0ODG0OD02GY2G])dG E[-�	+�	\̀	FSyy+-	L+vw	\+.SDOYVQ	R,S	TU00UN2ND DN2W222O22 2VU0GUN20PNO1PQ DNTWY0GO22DNNW12PO2Y 020ODTNOY0Q DNYWY00ON20WVDDODD 2OPVQ0W12NO0G )0	U	)))~ 0ODG0ODN2NGGV̂ LaN )|Svx*[-	J+-}[	Ix-[-*S	\+.SDOGNVQ	R,S	02U02UN2ND NYVW222O22 02U2DUN20TDOGYQ NYYW1PPO02NYYWPDTO1N 020OY2NOGTQ NYTWYDDOPNYWN0TOVP 2O1DQDWYPVON2 )D	U	)~) 0OVD0OYVNYYNNb�\G d+u-	RSSvS	L[wx.[y	L+vw	\+.S2OYVQ	R,S	0U01UN2NY 0PVW222O22 2DU20UN2N02OY1Q 0PYWTG0OVV0PYWP0DOYN PGO1YNODNQ 0TTWGY2OY10T2ODT 2OVVQXGWN1NOPVZ )N	U	)) 0OT20O11b�S*,.x+-	sx|S�	YUDUN2NN	0�2D�Y0	HFLu[-}ySv	)��S.	F[-[�S|S-.	~	L�\IzRb\sz)K H[�S	T 
Page 103 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8�����C
4C
 'D2E2F0GHIJ KL-M	+N	)OPQR*L	S+QT	SLUULVUP	W+.P	0X	YZFZ[2[YY\FF]	̂,P	YZFZ[2[_ Y[0̀222\22 2YZ2EZ[20JY\0E] Y[[̀[YF\aFY[0̀_1E\JJ 022\12[\YY] Y[Ỳ[__\1Fa[Y\20 2\J_]0̀1E1\1E )[	Z	)b))b 0\JY0\aEaJ00_cSK[ d+Q+-.+	̂+OR-R+-	KL-M	W+.PY\[F]	̂,P	YZ00Z[2[_ Y[F̀222\22 2YZ[EZ[20J[\J1] Y[J̀00_\F2Y[ÈE0Y\Ja 020\[1[\Fa] Y[J̀00_\F2FaE\a0 2\JE][̀F22\F[ )0	Z	)))b 0\JF0\a1a2aF0YKW_ SeLQUPf	g*ehLV	S+QT	SLUULVUP	W+.P	S+-.	[Z0aZ[2[_2\1F]	̂,P	YZ0aZ[2[_ 0E2̀222\22 2YZ0EZ[2[02\11] 0FJ̀J[2\220FJ̀J_1\EE JE\1F[\_E] 0F_̀1JY\0[_Y\YY 2\_F]iF̀0F_\F_j )[	Z	)) 0\J10\JY2EYE1dckY KL-M	+N	l+-.QPLU	W+.P2\E[F]	̂,P	1ZJZ[2[_ [22̀222\22 2[Z2JZ[2[[0\aJ] 0J_̀21[\220J_̀_2[\_E JF\00[\aE] 0J2̀[0_\E2[a_\1[ 2\FF]i_̀0a1\aEj )[	Z	)b))b [\[a[\[[1J_EEm)GJ gLUPfN+Q*P\*+O	n-*	SLUULVUP	W+.P	S+-.	1Z0FZ[2[[2\E[F]	̂,P	1Z0FZ[2[_ [JF̀222\22 oLQR+,f2\JY] [J[̀10F\JF[J[̀JJF\E_ JF\aY[\F0] [a[̀Ea1\aaYaJ\[_ 2\a[]i02̀Y21\1Ej )[	Z	)pWq [\[J[\[_EJY10qc[F rL**LQ	IR-L-*RLU	S+QT	W+.P[\0F]	̂,P	aZ0FZ[2[_ 12̀222\22 2aZ2aZ[20J[\[2] EJ̀a_F\Y2EJ̀J[E\FJ Ja\J_[\E[] EJ̀[F_\F10J[\Y0 2\[2]iE1[\2[j )0	Z	)pWq [\Ya[\[J1a20Fs1S[ q+tLU	KL-M	+N	SL-LuL	W+.P[\[F]	̂,P	00Z0Z[2[_ Y[F̀222\22 0[Z2FZ[20J[\[E] Y[_̀aY0\22Y[_̀J02\1Y Ja\E1[\1a] Y[2̀EJY\_YỲ2_E\aa 2\J_]i_̀[01\Y2j )0	Z	)))b [\FJ[\_10_J0YcYKY SL.PQTRUULQ	IR-U	gPQvR*P	W+.P[\0F]	̂,P	00ZaZ[2[_ Y[F̀222\22 2[Z0JZ[2[20\aY] Y[J̀E[a\22Y[1̀FFa\F1 JJ\0J[\_1] Y[[̀YE[\JF[̀11F\FJ 2\J_]iF̀0JF\E[j )[	Z	)) [\E0[\_JaJ[YEdwdY d+t+.L	l+.+Q	SQPuR.	S+QT	W+.P0\_F]	̂,P	0Z0YZ[2[F Y02̀222\22 20Z02Z[2[[0\F2] Y2J̀Fa_\E2Y2J̀E0_\0E JE\_F[\1a] [JàJJJ\2YJ1Y\J[ 2\a1]i02̀E0F\0Yj )0	Z	)p)p [\1J[\EJJ2YY0Hrm0 xg	KL-M	W)	SLUULVUP	W+.P	S+-.	0[Z[0Z[2[_[\2F]	̂,P	0Z[0Z[2[F Y_2̀222\22 20Z0EZ[2[2[\02] YYJ̀[1F\a2YYJ̀FJY\Y0 Ja\20[\1J] YYỲ[[[\1a0̀YFF\[a 2\J1]iÈY12\FYj )0	Z	))b))b [\a0[\EJ1_1F[F)I2 c,LU*+OO	n-*	SLUULVUP	W+.P	S+-.	[Z[2Z[2[FY\_F]	̂,P	FZ[2Z[2[F YF2̀222\22 0[Z[[Z[2[00\_E] Y1[̀J11\F2Y10̀[01\0Y 020\JJ[\1a] YFÈJFE\JF_̀YJY\JE 0\2F]i0_̀[E2\0aj )[	Z	)Wq Y\0_[\J[_EE_1rSH1 wr	l+QyL-	SeLfP	z	S+	SLUULVUP	W+.P	S+-.	EZ0Z[2[_2\a[_]	̂,P	EZ0Z[2[F Y22̀222\22 2FZ[_Z[2[02\1a] Y22̀Yaa\a2Y22̀[a2\JE JF\_Y[\YY] [aÈY20\12a[_\22 2\aY]i0ỲJ1J\[Ej )[	Z	)b))b Y\01Y\2J_EE_1rSs2 wr	l+QyL-	SeLfP	z	S+	SLUULVUP	W+.P	S+-.	EZ[YZ[2[_2\JEJ]	̂,P	EZ[YZ[2[F 0_2̀222\22 oLQR+,f2\JY] 0_2̀2a1\FF0_2̀212\12 JF\FE[\Y1] 0YỲ111\0FYEJ\Y2 2\YJ]iÈ[JY\FFj )[	Z	)b))b Y\[YY\0_{|P*,.R+-	dROP}	_ZYZ[2[[	0}2Y}_0	rlSeL-uUPQ	)ffP.	lL-LyPOP-.	b	S~WIn̂{Wdn)m rLyP	J 
Page 104 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8�����C
4C
 'DEF1EEG))2 HI,JK.	LJ-M-*JMN	O+IP	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	21T2UTV2VW0XVY	Z,R	ETWTV2VW UW2[222X22 2VT2UTV2VV0XEWY U\V[U0\X22U\V[]UUXW2 F\XV1UX20Y UVF[FW\X02]WUXUU 2XF]Y0̂V[]1FX\2_ )U	T	)̀) UXUWUXVU\]]\1abc0 da	G+IeM-	OfMKR	g	O+	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	\TVVTV2VWVX2EUY	Z,R	\TVVTV2V] V22[222X22 2VT01TV2VVVXW\Y 0F][W2EX220F][WFWXU2 F]X]0VXFFY 0FU[VV0XE20[EUFXFE 2XW1YÛ[U1UXW2_ )V	T	)̀))̀ \X2]UXEV2VU0UWbhU )iMj+-X*+i	k-*	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	\T0VTV2V]0Y	Z,R	WT0VTV2V] \\2[222X22 2WT02TV2V00X2FY \UE[2FFXV2\UE[\U]X\1 FUXE]VXWEY \0V[F10X]E0[]FEXEF 0XV2YV̂W[\]\X1F_ )0	T	))))̀ \X0VUXF1E2EW0UblW OfMINRK	m*fnMQ	O+IP	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	\T0UTV2V]0X0WY	Z,R	WT0UTV2V] V22[222X22 0VT0WTV2V00X\FY 0F1[0WVX220F1[UU1XF1 FUXV\VXF2Y 0E][\11X22EE0X]1 2XW\Y0̂2[E]2XF1_ )V	T	)) \X0VUXFWF0UV\aoOV p-J.Rq	rRMN.f	sI+,P	k-*	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	\T0WTV2V]0X0WY	Z,R	WT0WTV2V] UWW[222X22 tMIJ+,K0X2FY UWW[FVEX1WUWW[1FWX1E FUX2WVXFWY UU2[U02X000[W\VXV1 2XF]YV̂W[\EWX]1_ )U	T	)u) \X0UUXF]EFVU]HdcV H+v+.M	G+.+I	OIRqJ.	O+IP	S+.R0X0VWY	Z,R	]T0ETV2V] U22[222X22 2]T0WTV2V00X0UY VFF[E]EX22VFF[EEEX1W FVXF2VXFUY V1E[102XE2F]WX]U 2XE0YV̂0[011XFW_ )0	T	)u)u \XVV\X2W2]2W0sdZV bM-w	+x	)iRIJ*M	O+IP	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	]T0FTV2VW0XU0FY	Z,R	]T0FTV2V] UW2[222X22 tMIJ+,K0XUEY U\F[2\VX22U\F[2U0XU2 FUXEUVXF0Y UVE[\21X\W0[U2EX20 2XF]YV̂2[]VUXEW_ )V	T	)̀))̀ \XVV\X2\WF\F0Ebl\ GJ*I+K+x.	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	WTETV2V]VX\Y	Z,R	ETETV2V] UW2[222X22 0VTV0TV2V00XU]Y U]W[\\VX22U]\[\E\X1U FFX21VX]UY U\][1U2X]W0[VU]X]1 0X20Y0̂1[1W\X2E_ )MM	T	)))))) \XU]\X2FEF00\Hys2 H+I+-.+̀Z+iJ-J+-	bM-w	S+.R0XVWY	Z,R	FT02TV2V] V22[222X22 0VT0WTV2V00X]1Y 0F][V2VX220F][\UVX1E FVX21UX0EY 0E\[0UWXE20\WXEU 2XWUY0̂V[VF]XFE_ )0	T	)))̀ \X\W\XV]2U1EUUZS1 )PPNR	k-*	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	1T00TV2V]VX2WY	Z,R	FT00TV2V] V12[222X22 tMIJ+,K0XW2Y V1][W]WXE2V1][0V]XU2 F1XV2VX1VY V]V[\U\XUUU21XW2 2X1]Y0̂U[]F0XF1_ )MM	T	))uSl \X\W\XV02]U]EL)OU bM-w	+x	G+-.IRMN	S+.R0XVWY	Z,R	FT0WTV2V] VE2[222X22 2FT0UTV2V00XVEY V1F[]]0XV2V1F[]F1XF\ F0XFUUXV0Y VW1[\2\XE\0WWXW] 2X1WYV̂V[VFUX02_ )V	T	)̀))̀ \X\]\XV1FU00\Vol2 zMǸGMI.	m.+IRK	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	2ET01TV2V]0X2WY	Z,R	FT01TV2V] 12[222X22 2FT2ETV2V00X2FY ]F[E]1X12]F[EE0XF2 FUX02VX12Y ]W[0]EXE0VEXWE 2X0FY\̂[10UX2F_ )MV	T	)))) \X\1\XU01E20]oyyU l+vMN	bM-w	+x	OM-MqM	S+.R0X\Y	Z,R	00TVTV2V] V22[222X22 0VT0WTV2V00X1\Y 0F][EW2X220F1[2UWX10 FVXVWUXVUY 0E\[\FWX\20[UWUXUU 2XW\Y0̂V[W\2XU0_ )0	T	)))̀ \XWF\XUWo{R*,.J+-	HJiR|	\TUTV2VV	0|2U|\0	aGOfM-qNRI	)KKR.	GM-MeRiR-.	̀	O}SLkZoSHk)~ aMeR	02 
Page 105 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8�����C
4C
 'DE1F0GHIJ1 KLMNO.	P+MQ	PLRRLSRO	T+.O	P+-.	0GU0VUG2GF0WXVY	Z,O	0U0VUG2G1 G2V[222W22 20U0XUG2GG0WXXY G2\[FV0WV2G2\[FF\W]V XFW1GGWFXY 0XE[GFEWFG1\]WXE 2WVEYF̂[]XVW1]_ )G	U	)) \WE2\WV0E2EV0]Ì2 PaLMROb	c*adLS	P+MQ	PLRRLSRO	T+.O	P+-.	GU]UG2G1GW\VY	Z,O	]U]UG2G1 0\2[222W22 2]U20UG2GGGW\1Y 0]X[E\EWE20]X[EV0WG2 X1WG0]W2FY 0]F[2XEWG2GFFW1E 2W\2Y]̂[1V]W22_ )G	U	)) \WX]\WVE2E\FF\PeG IOMfbagMO	hL.aLdLi	PLRRLSRO	T+.O	P+-.	GU0VUG2G1GW]Y	Z,O	]U0VUG2G1 \02[222W22 2]U21UG2GGGW]2Y \2X[XGGW02\2X[XGGWE] XEWGEGWF1Y \2G[XV\WVF\0XW00 0W01YF̂[XFEWG1_ )LG	U	)))j \WXF\WF\'��8�	����8�� klmnolppp$pp q$rk? klmkplsnp$mpklmkpltmu$so m$or? klppmlrtr$qrtplqqs$rq mo$ms?vmrnlunn$qrw  q	:	 x x s$qos$pm>C�D=	> 
yD'	%3�7GFG22zE\V ZMOi{,b	|,-}b	~-b.�R	�ObOM�O	KMOLb,Mi	/FV\0 0VF[]\2W\2 �LMg+,b2W20Y 0VF[]\2W\20VF[]\2W\2 0W222W20Y 0VF[]\2W\22W22 2W\VY2W22 )LL	U	)))))) 2W222W22'��8�	>���6	>8<��	%&�� quolstp$tp p$pq? quolstp$tpquolstp$tp p$pq? quolstp$tpp$pp p$tu?p$pp  88	:	      p$ppp$pp>3�#�#4 A	;C�7!0]2F]Z��F PLRg{+M-gL	c.L.O	KL�LSRO	��GW\Y	Z,O	02U0UG2G\ ]G2[222W22 02U0FUG20X0WX0Y ]G1[]V2W\2]G][1G\W2X XXW\0GWF\Y ]0E[0G0WF2][E\2W22 2WX]YV̂[F2GW\X_ )LG	U	))�)) GWV0GW]E'��8�	>&��5��8�	;���� smplppp$pp q$kq? smnlsup$tpsmslnmt$pk m$ot? sqrlqmq$opslrtp$pp p$ks?vulopm$tkw  8m	:	  �  m$uqm$sr!34
 � '#C� A\VX2VE��E ~-.RW	IL-f	�O*+-	�	ZO�OR+Q�O-.	T+.O2WVY	Z,O	02UGEUG2GV X02[222W22 �LMg+,b0W22Y EXG[E0XWG2EX\[0VXWVG XGWX0GWVXY E\V[\E]W1]0[X]]W1V GW\FY\̂E[F1VW1X_ )LL	U	)))))) ]WVE]W\X\VE0z2Z�1 ~-.OM�)�OMg*L-	ZO�	IL-f	T+.O2WE1VY	Z,O	\UG2UG2GF V1V[222W22 2\U0]UG2G02WX1Y V1G[]FFWV2V1G[EFVWV0 X]W\2GWF2Y V]1[2F\W]EG[GV2W2X 0WVFY]̂V[E20W0]_ )LL	U	)))))) \W2F]WXG'��8�	!&�8�8����8� qltrulppp$pp p$kk? qltoulqru$npqltonlpmu$ps m$uk? qlsrmlutr$qqtlqrs$rt t$pm?vrtltno$kmw  88	:	      s$nns$ooH�O*,.g+-	Kg�O�	\U]UG2GG	0�2]�\0	�JPaL-}ROM	)bbO.	JL-LNO�O-.	�	P�T|~ZHTK~)� �LNO	00 
Page 106 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8����3!	'
C !3
=D0EFEGHI2 JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2STU	H,N	00VW2VE2EW TT2X222S22 0EVEWVE2E02SYFU TZFX02DSWFTZFXWYZSF1 D1SETES0DU TWZXFDYSZTDE0S12 0STTU[0WXZYFSZE\ )OO	V	))]))) 0SY10SYZD0EFEĜ_0 JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2SETU	H,N	WV0TVE2EZ WT2X222S22 2WVW2VE2E02SWWU WZDX0TESWZWZDXZWDSY2 DYS0WESEDU WWYXZW1ST2Z2SZE 2SDFU[0WX22ES02\ )OO	V	))]))) 0SDY0SDWD0EFEGGGW JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2SETU	H,N	TV0TVE2EZ 122X222S22 0EVE0VE2E02SF2U YD2XFWDSFZYD0XFFYS1E DTSYTESWYU YYDXTYYS02YYESED 0SDZU[EEXWE2SYE\ )OO	V	))]))) ES0WES2DD0EFEF̀ Ẁ JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.NEU	H,N	YVW2VE2EZ TT2X222S22 0EV0EVE20D0S1ZU TTYXEDZSDETTWX000SZY DDS0YESWDU TZTXWTDS02EX1YTS0D 0STDU[1X1TESWY\ )OO	V	))]))) ESETES0FD0EFEFHTY JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.NESW1TU	H,N	FV0TVE2EZ T22X222S22 2FVEDVE20D0SZTU TEEX0Y1SD1T02XY2YSFY DDSFYESZZU ZDDXE11ST20XZ1YS01 0SZTU[00XWEDSWY\ )OO	V	))]))) ESWFESEDD0EFEFWH2 JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.NESETU	H,N	02VW0VE2EZ T22X222S22 00V21VE20D0S11U T00XW2FSTDT2TXFYFS1F DDSZFESZYU ZD1XZ2EST2ZX1EWS1Y 0SZYU[FXZYYSEF\ )OO	V	))]))) ESTDESZ1D0EFEGHRF JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N0U	H,N	0EV0TVE2EZ TT2X222S22 0EV0TVE2E02SDDU TT2X010SFFTT2X0TTSEZ DYSE2ESZYU TEDX21ZS0T0XY0YS1Y 0STZU[E0X2F0S2D\ )OO	V	))]))) ES10ESYZD0EFEFaG1 JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N0S0ETU	H,N	EVEFVE2ET ZT2X222S22 2WV0FVE2E22SF0U ZTYXDZWSWYZTZX2FFSZ2 DYSEEESZFU ZWEXDFZSY2ZZ2SEE 0SEYU[E0X02WSF2\ )OO	V	))]))) ESDEESFZD0EFEFab2 JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2STU	H,N	WVW0VE2ET TYTX222S22 20VETVE2E02SWEU TYDXETDST1TYFX2TFST0 DZSW2ESZFU TWEXFE0STY1S1E 0STTU[WTXEWYSDT\ )OO	V	))]))) WS22ESDZD0EFEG)IW JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2SETU	H,N	DVW2VE2ET T1TX222S22 2EV0DVE2E02ST0U TYFX0ZDSZ0TYDX1D0S1Y DESZFEST0U TW0X1YESFFWSDW 0STZU[WFX2EFSFF\ )OO	V	))]))) WST2WSZZD0EFEG)LF JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2SETU	H,N	02VW0VE2ET T1TX222S22 20V00VE2E02SZFU TYFXF22S1FT12XW12SDE DESW2EST0U TW2X1EDSY2Y2WSTD 0STZU[WDXYZ0SWE\ )OO	V	))]))) WSTDWSTED0EFEG)aZ JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2SW1TU	H,N	00VW2VE2ET TYTX222S22 2WVEYVE2E02S11U TTZXFYDS1WTT1X2TWSYZ DESTTEST0U TEEXDWZS2Y102S0W 0STEU[WZX00DSTF\ )OO	V	))]))) WSY1WSTDD0EFEGGcF JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2SF1TU	H,N	YVW2VE2EY WT2X222S22 0EVEEVE2E00SEEU WZZX12FSDFWZTX2EYSZZ DWSTEESZDU WE1XW2ZSY21YDSFT 2SDTU[01X1E0SFZ\ )OO	V	))]))) ZSETZS0ED0EFEGGdZ JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2SYETU	H,N	1VW0VE2EY 0Z2X222S22 2FV2ZVE2E02SYFU 0WDXYEESYY0WDXY1ES0F DESZ2ESZFU 0EDXWT1S1Y0ZTS2W 2SWFU[02XW0ZSZE\ )OO	V	))]))) ZSWZZSEWD0EFEGGeD JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2S1TU	H,N	FVW0VE2EY 0T2X222S22 2DV01VE2E02SFYU 0ZDX0FTSTT0ZDXE1ESTD DESF0ESZFU 0WDXE0FS1TD1SFW 2SZ2U[02X2TWSFZ\ )OO	V	))]))) ZSZEZSEDfgN*,.h+-	LhiNj	ZVWVE2EE	0j2WjZ0	dIGkO-lmNM	)PPN.	IO-OnNiN-.	o	GpRbqHfRLq)r dOnN	0E 
Page 107 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8����3!	'
C !3
=D0EFEGGHE IJ	KLMNO,LP	Q+.M2RF1ST	U,M	DVW2VE2EX FS2Y222R22 ZNL[+,O0R2FT F\0YSD0RF2F\EYW1ER00 DWRE2ER\FT 1DEYEEXRWSE2RW0 ERW2T]S2Y0\SR1X̂ )NN	V	))_))) \RS2\RWX'��8�	3!	'�8�&6 àbcdaddd$dd d$bc? àbceaèf$̀fàbdgaehd$di c$hj? àggeajgj$hfegaddh$bd ce$bh?kjgjàif$fcl  88	:	  m   j$dcc$bh'n' A	4n
'%nA#n jgahgjàè$̀d e$j̀? jgafdhacdg$fejgagcbagdg$̀d c$hf? jhajieajfc$icb̀àfg$bi edd$dd?keaehiaehc$iil  8e	:	     c$ìc$gf'n' A	> 
oC'	9 A3C	4A3!	 ��
3C7 jhah̀baeci$id

pqM*,.[+-	K[rMs	\VWVE2EE	0s2Ws\0	tuGvN-wxML	)OOM.	uN-NyMrM-.	z	G{Q|}UpQK})~ tNyM	0W 
Page 108 of 417



��������	

�������	�������������
����
������������������������������� �	!!�����"#$#%&'()�*+�,-,,�.)'/01)�%&'()�2*+�,-,,
3456789:;64�<64:9;4=>�?=7=;4�;@�<645;>=4:;9AB�C=�D7E=�F6D�:6�<68G97=�:?;@�@:9:=8=4:�:6�:?=�64=�F6D�7=<=;H=�5768�F6D7�ID9A;5;=>�<D@:6>;94B�JA=9@=�@==�38G67:94:�K;@<A6@D7=@BLMNOPQRS�TUUVW�XTYTZVXVYW[\]̂ _̀ab]ccade[fg


������������hijk�lmnopqjro�stjmp�ujmk�svvjmrp+�wxnson�vsxx�yz--{�2*|}~|~|+jk�vjrpsvp������������!�������������!��
���������sr��j���n���jk��%nxxjr�smknr��n�rnky�-~{��~�}*�*z
 

Page 109 of 417



����������		�
� ���������������������� ����������������������� !"#$�% &'# ()*+,)*-./ (/*,+0*/+1233!'#4�56$#!#7$ .(-*81- )0*0(89:$ &�� !"#$�% &'# �;<�=�<>�� ��<?>�<���563:@#�A !6#4 -)*//1 ,+*(/1B:6$CDE +F ! ()*(8,*-(- ()*-01*-/-G::"�% &'# ()*-+(*(0) ()*-)/*,.8B:7$�% &'# ()*-,+*/,, ()*,0+*--8
��H�I����
�JKLMNOPMOQ�KR�SOTQMU�VQWQMX (-Y)Z[MUMNW\�]KPM�̂KWO�_KNQ̀ẀM�aKNb .,Y+Z[MUMNW\�]KPM�̂KWO�cWOd .-Y.Z[MUMNW\�eWQTKOW\�_KNQ̀ẀM�fXXKg .(Y0ZhMOOMXXMM�iW\\Mj�fkQlKNTQj .Y)ZcWOd�KR�fPMNTgW�aKNb .Y)Zmn�_KǸWO�alWXM�o�aK .Y)ZhKjKQW�fcV .Y/Z��p�� =��>q

H�
�r�sI���t�
����
I��I��fLMNẀM�_KUTRTMU�ukNWQTKO -Y/+fLMNẀM�aKkbKO .Y81ZfLMNẀM�nkNglWXM�vh_ .Y11ZfLMNẀM�_WNdMQ�vh_ (Y0-ZfLMNẀM�Vonw_KKUj�xWQTÒ ffwfW.fLMNẀM�[TOW\�_WQkNTQj ,Y((�jNXfLMNẀM�̂TRM ,Y+.�jNX �
�yI��z��sI���{�|H}	���
I���yI��
I���I�������
��ss����I��
H�~p�����������~�27�:��� !3������������~p�~���������p�������I����r����s�����~�fggKkOQ��.8.

H�
r�
	�����
��I�� ������������������������������ �	 �	 ��y ��
 ��
� ��
� ?�
� �>�
� ?�����>>�eKNQlMNO�aW\Y�aTQTMX�VM\R��OXY�[kOU�̂KÒ�hMNP �(Y-+Z �,Y+-Z �,Y+-Z �-Y)-Z �.Y0-Z .Y-,Z .Y10Z .Y10Z -Y(1Z�a �cKRf�.�.+�vN�SV�hNMWXkNj�o�f̀MOgj��OUM¡ �(Y,.Z �,Y+.Z �,Y+.Z �-Y),Z �(Y1,Z .Y+1Z .Y-0Z .Y-.Z (Y/)Z�a �cKRf�.�.+�vN�fff�f�SV�aKNb�o�JKLQ��OUM¡ �(Y-8Z �,Y.8Z �,Y.8Z �-Y),Z �.Y/8Z .Y()Z .Y1+Z .Y1-Z -Y+8Z ¡MgkQTKO�hTPM¢�,w-w(+((�.¢+,¢+8�n_alWOU\MN�fXXMQ�_WOẀMPMOQ���a£e[�u eh�f̂ nẀM�. 
Page 110 of 417



�������� 	��
���� �����
��������������� ������������ ��� !"#$%&'�(�������)*+��,��� ������������-��,��.�/����+�+�01�,2�.3����+�+�4����5���+5��,�������3��.,����������6�.����+�+��1��+�����������.1��5�7�.����+�(���������7�.�����+��,�8'&9������� ��� !"#$&�4����������� **�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-<=>��?����-@�������?��������-�����.1��A:B3�CD���*BA���� ��� !"#$E���,�4��&�,������� @�������?�������� ��� !"#$*����0A�,2�.)E���+�+�0A�,2�.&�,������� **�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-F=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$A��2��G�*,,�4���,�� H=>��?����-IJ=.�����?�������� ��� !"#$D�����,���K�4�� *0I8K0I1���:&:;-F@>��?����-FL=.�����?�������� ��� !"#$D��4�����E�.������������ *�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-<=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$E����E��2��E�����C��.� M�+5��������+�1��N��:&:;�-F=>��?���� ��� !"#$E�����C��.� M�+5��������+�1��N��:&:;�-F=>��?���� ��� !"#$��+����1��DB� <=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$����D����7�,�����7B�4����-D����������6�.A��2B�4����� @�������?�������� ��� !"#$O*�C E�?��������N4������ ��� !"#$:�4��,5���*+�������� I������?��������-������.1���(�������*.(���� ��� !"#$K��5�1���. D�������4��7����.���,2�3,��(����1����P��21��.�3,����.�����3�4�����3������.4�������5�4�3'�D�3:�(������4��,5����+��������3��������..�4�����3��(����7�������-���+�������3����+�+�.���(�.3����������������4�3Q������������,,������,��������75��.����������-��(��������.���������.�����0%&B-D����������6�.E���+�+�;1��+������RDE;�SN��5,�������������4�,�7�,����'�E*3CMOED3��C�E*-K��,5����+��������+��,������������+��-&�,����������.��+�������5��7����71����N��+����(���+� ��� !"#$E�?K�������� @>4����������������������������?4��,���������.���5�4���,�3�?,��.��+%T&T+�(�������3�+��,�3��(�������4���3��.��������2��7��.� ��� !"#$E�?����E������� I=����� ��� !"#$

U���V��
��WXY��
X��X�X�Z	�WY[\
Z]��
̂�_]
�[̀�
�a���bc# �def�!"�g�� !"#$h"ec$eie#!ihijkh"ecec#�!"#jel$"jm#$e�#je �!"gno	������
��Y���pWX�
̂�q$�fridgcstuvwvv

 
Page 111 of 417



���������	�
	����������	���������������	 ������������������������ !�"#$%&'()�*%&$+,-#- ./01230453672!�89:#)�8,&;#(�<%:=�*%&$+,-#- ./0/4>07/4635!�89:#)�8,&;#(�?9:(&'@%('9:- .5655!�"#$%&'()�?9:(&'@%('9:- .5655!�"#$%&'()�A&,:-B#&- .5655������CD����������� � ���EF��E�E��FG��H������ �I�"#$%&'()�",J#- ./0K7L0/216/KI�89:#)�8,&;#(�<%:=�",J#- ./0>L102>/654I�88<�M'(+=&,N,J- .5655I�"#$%&'()�M'(+=&,N,J- .5655I�"#$%&'()�A&,:-B#&- .5655I�O(+#&�P'-Q9-'('9:- .5655I�8,(%&'(#- .5655I�?,JJ- .5655I�*&':$'Q,J�*,)=9N:- .250/K7623������CD�G��H������ � ���F�����R����S�T��UC��� V���TW��� !XI�Y#(�Z$$&#('9: [.>0>75643\ [.>0>75643\�C� V������ �G��H������ �!XI�]#,J'̂#=�_,':X̀9-- .>302K26>K .>302K26>K	�G������������	 ��������RaF��a

��bc��
��b������b�dd�
e�	������������	 ��E�����R����������� ����������?9:(&'@%('9:- .5655����������"#$%&'()�",J#�*&9$##=- ./0K7L0/216/K����������Z$$&%#=�f:(#&#-(�]#$#'g#= ./K0K226>4����������f:(#&#-(�]#$#'g#= .1301436//����������P'g'=#:=�]#$#'g#= .561K����������*&':$'Q,J�9:�8,(%&'('#- .5655����������f:(#&#-(�9:�8,(%&'('#- .5655����������?,JJ-X]#=#hQ('9:�[*&':$'Q,J\ .5655����������f:(#&#-(�B&9h�?,JJ-X]#=#hQ('9: .5655����������*&':$'Q,J�*,)=9N: .250/K7623���CD����������� � �a��a���FE�E�G��H������ �����������M'(+=&,N,J- .5655����������"#$%&'()�*%&$+,-# ./01230453672����������Z$$&%#=�f:(#&#-(�*,'= ./2/6>2���CD�G��H������ � �a��F���F��a�	�G������������	 ��R�E����a


W�� ��D�C��� �b�SSCTijk�lm�nopqr�stu�vwvv��T�xWT ��CD�y�T �C�����W��bWDy� ��TC �W�z� {��� |��WTS������ �Z$$9%:(�}/3/

~�#$%('9:�A'h#��LXKX>5>>�/�5L�53�*8?+,:=J#&�Z--#(�8,:,�#h#:(�I�?OY<fP~YAfZ̀ *,�#�K 
Page 112 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& ����>:"BC22DE*FG HIJ+IKIL	MI.N	*-/,	OIPLI	QJ-L/	RDRDS*	*T1UCVW	X-I	1RY1BYRDRR 1RZRRVURR D1YR1YRDRD1UCBW 1RZRRRUG11RZRRTUCR 1DDUDTDU[1W 1RZRRCUTR1DUDD DUDVWVUBD *PP	Y	***\] DU21DUDVVTC1B\*FC ,̂.KP	*-/,	]I+I_̀PabIL	QJ-L/	RD1[ST	*T1U2CW	X-I	CY1BYRDRT 2TZDT[URC DCYRDYRD1[1U2[W 2TZDTCUG22TZDT[U1[ 1DDUDC1UVCW 2TZD[[UCTB2U2C DURGWGDUGV *PP	Y	***\] 1UTCDUR[[RTVC***T cIJ_N,.	de.IJ	QJ-L/	RD1[SF	*1*1U[VW	X-I	VYRRYRDRV 2BZGTBUR[ 1DYD1YRD1[1U[BW 2BZGR[UVB2BZGTRUGV 1DDU1T1UB[W 2BZ2TRU21VVUCT DUR2W1DDUD2 \]	Y	****** RUDGDUTCC[RTR̂*F[ Q,f,/P	*-/,	]I+I_̀PabI	de.	RDRDS*	*T1UGGW	X-I	BY1BYRDRV 1GBZ[RVUGG DGY12YRDRDDUGCW 1G[Z2VCU2D1GCZDDRU[V 1DDUDC1UV2W 1GGZDGDUDB1RRUVR DUBCWg1Z[VRUC[h *PP	Y	***\] RU1TDUVBV22C[i*F2 j,k.	XIIJI	de.IJ	QJ-L/	RDRDS*	*T1U1W	X-I	CY1BYRDRV 1D1ZVBCU21 DTYDVYRDRD1U11W 1D1ZVBRUB11D1ZVBBUT[ [[UGC1UG[W 1D1Z1T2U1[V[UGD DUTGWgT1CURDh *PP	Y	\]*** RUTCDUBTVTC1Ti*FG ,̂.KP	*-/,	]I+I_̀PabIL	QJ-L/	RDRDST	*TDUT2W	X-I	1DY1CYRDRV 1BBZDDDUDD D[YRRYRDRDDUTCW 1BVZ[22URT1BVZ[CCU1B [CU2VRU1TW 1BTZDB1UBDRDU21 DUBVWg1Z[TGUGBh \]	Y	****** RUBBDU21TGRGRl*FC mH	E_.P.+_Pb	*-/,	OIPLI	QJ-L/	RDR1ST	*RDUT[W	X-I	1DYR1YRDRV RDBZDDDUDD DCY1DYRDR1DUT[W RDVZ[[2UR1RDVZ[[2U[R [2U1TRUBVW 1[[Z11RURDRVUVT DU2DWgBZCCBU2Rh \]	Y	****** RUBG1UTBV22C2\*FT j,k.	XIIJI	de.IJ	QJ-L/	RDRDSM	*TDUB1W	X-I	11Y1BYRDRV BCZD2CUBV D2Y1VYRDRDDUBRW BCZDG[UG[BCZD2TU[[ [CUC[RURRW B2ZVTRU1T1TU1G DURDWgGV1UCGh *PP	Y	\]*** RUGTDUGBD[G[D**F2 MHn	cIk_+bI	OIPLI	QJ-L/	RDR1SR	*TDUTTW	X-I	1RYRGYRDRV [DZDDDUDD D[YDCYRDR1DUTVW C[Z[[DU21C[Z[[RU[R [2UV[RUVTW C2Z2TCUGGVU[B DUT1WgRZRBVURGh *PP	Y	\]*** RU2V1URD[RR[DM**[ cIJ_N,.	de.IJ	QJ-L/	RDRDSM	*DUV2W	X-I	RYRDYRDRB R1BZDDDUDD DCYDVYRDRDDUVCW R1VZ[BVUCBR1VZ[21U1G [CUGRRUD[W R1RZDR2UV1TDUCC DU2VWgRZ[VTU2Bh *PP	Y	\]*** RU[DDUCGDBGD1l*FT MHn	cIk_+bI	OIPLI	QJ-L/	RDRRS1	*T1U1W	X-I	TYRBYRDRB [BZDDDUDD D1Y11YRDRR1U11W [VZ[CBUCD[VZ[C2UDC [2UB1RU2RW [RZGT2URG12UVR DUTTWgRZTV[UCRh \]	Y	****** RU[[1UBBVTC1Tm*FB ,̂.KP	*-/,	]I+I_̀PabIL	QJ-L/	RDR1S1	*TDUR2W	X-I	VYR1YRDRB 2BZDDDUDD DRY12YRDR1DUR2W 2VZ[[CUGT2VZ[[[U1R [2U[RRUBVW 2TZVT2UTCBUGT DURGWg1ZBG1U2Vh *PP	Y	\]*** TUDGDU[RVVC[1]*FV f̂-.KP_	*-/,	]I+I_̀PabIL	QJ-L/	RDRDSF	*TDUTCW	X-I	BY1BYRDRB 1BBZDDDUDD 1DYRDYRDRDDUT[W 1BVZ[GVUTD1BVZ[2[U21 [CURRRUT1W 1BRZRVBUBDRGU1C DUBTWgRZ2TVUR1h \]	Y	****** TU1TDU[RC[RVDM*FR Q,f,/P	*-/,	]I+I_̀PabIL	de.IJL	RDR1S*	*TDURGW	X-I	BY1BYRDRB R2DZDDDUDD DRYDRYRDR1DUR2W RG[Z[V[UC[RG[Z[GCUT2 [CU1DRURGW RGVZC22UCTT1URD DU[TWgBZD[DUBVh *PP	Y	\]*** TU1TDU[BopI+-/_,.	Q_qIr	VYTYRDRR	1rDVrD2	sHFkP.KbIJ	*LLI/	HP.PtIqI./	S	Fd\EuXo\Qu*O sPtI	V 
Page 113 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& ����>:"B22CCD*EF G,H.	IJJKJ	LM.JK	NK-O/	PQP1R*	*SQTSFU	I-J	VW1XWPQPX CQYQQQTQQ QSWQPWPQP1QTS2U 2VYVCBTFP2VYVCVT1X VFTCXPT2VU 22YB2VTPC1PTCQ QTP2UZPYXQVTC2[ *\\	W	]̂*** STBF1TSQBBVSS_*E2 à-.b\c	*-/,	̂J+Jcd\efJO	NK-O/	PQP1R*	*SQTSCU	I-J	VW1XWPQPX 1PXYQQQTQQ QBWPQWPQP1QTSCU 1PBYVCFTCX1PBYVVQTCB V2TXQPTSBU 1P1YC2BTCCP1T11 QTBSUZSY11XTVF[ ]̂	W	****** STBF1TPVBSC1Xg*ES ,̀.b\	*-/,	̂J+Jcd\efJO	NK-O/	PQP1RB	*SQTCCU	I-J	1WP1WPQPF 1QQYQQQTQQ 11W1FWPQP1QTCVU VVYV2CTVPVVYVC1TPQ VFTCPPTXCU VFYCPSTQQPBTBB QTSBUZSY1XCTPQ[ *\\	W	]̂*** STC11TCVB22CVh*EB G,H.	IJJKJ	LM.JK	NK-O/	PQP1Ri	*SQTXPU	I-J	SW1FWPQPF 1PXYQQQTQQ Q2W1SWPQP1QTXPU 1PBYVCCTCX1PBYVVQTV2 VXTCPPTCPU 11VY22BT2XPCTCV QTBPUZXYP1FTPP[ *\\	W	]̂*** STVF1TCXCVPSCG*EV N,a,/\	*-/,	̂J+Jcd\efJO	NK-O/	PQP1RI	*SQT21U	I-J	BW1XWPQPF VQYQQQTQQ 11WQVWPQP1QT21U CVYVVCTQCCVYVVCTSQ VFTPPPTCPU CFYFQ1TFQPCTBQ QTSQUZSYSVFT2Q[ ]̂	W	****** BTQB1TC1BBVSXj*IF à-.b\c	*-/,	̂J+Jcd\efJO	NK-O/	PQP1RE	*SQT2BU	I-J	XW1XWPQPF 2QYQQQTQQ 11WQVWPQP1QT2XU FVYVCBTSCFVYVCFTP1 VFT1QPTCPU F2YPFVTCFPSTQP QTPBUZPY21FTSX[ ]̂	W	****** BT1S1TVQSFPXXB*E1 gk	jc.\.+c\f	lJ+-Kc/cmJb	NJKn	PQP1RB	*SQTFCU	I-J	VW1FWPQPF 2XYQQQTQQ 1QW1SWPQP1QTFCU 2BYVVCTQV2BYVVCTSB VFTFQPTF2U 2PYBB2TCSP1TPX QTPXUZPYXXQTX1[ *\\	W	***]̂ BTB21T2SB22C2G*EP G,H.	IJJKJ	LM.JK	NK-O/	PQPPR*	*SPTSPU	I-J	VW1FWPQPF VXYQQQTQQ QSW1QWPQPPPTSBU VBYV2CTVVVBYV2VTPX VCT2QPTV1U VSY2FCTQBV1TCS QTSSUZ1YP11TP1[ *\\	W	]̂*** BTB2PTPPBBCV22*IQ à-.b\c	*-/,	̂J+Jcd\efJO	NK-O/	PQPPR*	*SPTPPU	I-J	1QW1XWPQPF 1SQYQQQTQQ QSWQVWPQPPPTPSU 1PVYVVXTQQ1PVYVVXTQ2 VCT2XPT2VU 1PCYS2CTVQ1PQTPX QTBXUZ1YF1FT12[ ]̂	W	****** BTXXPTP1SCQ1BF*EB gk	jc.\.+c\f	*-/,	̂J+Jcd\efJO	PQPPR1	*S1TPFU	I-J	11W1FWPQPF FXYQQQTQQ Q1W11WPQPP1TP2U FBYVVBTSXFBYVVBTFV VFTC1STQVU FPYVP2TP1SBT1S QTPPUZPYQF2TBC[ ]̂	W	****** BTFS1T2F(�� �	>:" opqrsptur!qr r!qq? opqrvpwuw!twopqrtposu!vo o!tv? opuvwpsut!towux!ts y!oy?zxxprxt!sr{ >  	9	>>>>>> t!sxs!sy>@|��<S1SSCS}GB j̀_i	],/JSTS2XU	I-J	VWCWPQPS 1QXYQQQTQQ 11WPVWPQ1CSTQQU 1QFY2BXT1Q1QXYXPXTFS 1Q1TCXPTQFU 1QFYVB1TQSPPFTB1 QTSCU1YB1XTBQ *\\	W	**~]̂ 1TBB1TBQ��J+-/c,.	NcnJ�	BWSWPQPP	1�QB�Q2	�kEH\.bfJK	*OOJ/	k\.\�JnJ./	R	EL]j�I�]N�*_ �\�J	X 
Page 114 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& ����>@B��<C1CDEFGH1 IJK*	J,/LFMNDO	P-L	11QN2QNFNC NRFSFFFMFF 11QNCQNFNFFMNTO N2TSGRFMRFN2TSRNCMTG TGMTCNM1DO N21SUFRMURNU1M11 FMTDOVRSU1DMURW *XX	Q	**Y*** 1MGG1MGCRRFDT1Z[T \L..L]]LL	̂X__L̀	*-/a,bc/̀	J,/LNMR2DO	P-L	TQ1DQNFNU DDFSFFFMFF FNQN2QNF1TNMGDO DDGSCDNMDFDDNSR1DMG2 1FFMRCNMDNO DDUSDGFMGF2FNM2R 1MTDO1S2UUMTC *XX	Q	**Y*** NMUGNMCGC1CDEFdGG IJK*	J,/L1MGNDO	P-L	1FQ1DQNFNU N2DSFFFMFF 1FQ12QNF1T1MGGO N2USDNTM2DN2US2GFM2D TRMF2NMU1O NGTSGTNM2RNSFGFMDT FMTDOVDSFG2MT2W *XX	Q	**Y*** NMDDNMUDC1CDEFeNU IJK*	J,/L1MGNDO	P-L	1Q2QNFND N1DSFFFMFF F1QFRQNFNF1MGTO N1USC1UM1DN1USG1TMU2 T2M2CNMURO N1FS1N1MGDR1DMN1 FM2UOVUSUT2MRNW *XX	Q	**Y*** NM2RNMG2C1C2Z*ZfF IHgKh	J,/L1MDO	P-L	NQ1NQNFND UNDSFFFMFF FNQ1CQNFNF1MDNO UNUSG2NM2DUNUSR1NMFR T2MNTNMUTO U1CSURFMRFRG2M21 1MUDOV11SCC1MNRW *XX	Q	**Y*** NMR2NM22C1CF*Zî1 IHgi	J,/LCM1NDO	P-L	GQ1CQNFND UFFSFFFMFF FRQNRQNF1RCMF2O UF1SC2NMFFUFFSGUGM2N 1F1MT1NMDFO UF2SGN2MGFCS2DFMFF 1MUUOGSTRFMRR *XX	Q	**Y*** CMN1CMF1C1CDEFUjC IJK*	J,/LFMDO	P-L	GQ12QNFND U2DSFFFMFF FGQ12QNFNFFMDUO U2USF1GM2DU2USCG2MGR TCMRUNMD1O UUDS2NNMTFGRGM11 1MD2OVNRSGUUM2RW *XX	Q	**Y*** CMNNCM1UC1C2Z*ZkT IHgKh	J,/LFMC2DO	P-L	2QN1QNFND CUFSFFFMFF F2QN1QNFNFFMURO CCRSCFGMRFCCRSR2TMDD TCMCGNMURO C12SU1GM1RNU2MTN 1M11OVN1SUGCMC2W *XX	Q	**Y*** CMC1CMNUC1C2Z*ZeC IHgKh	J,/LFMC2DO	P-L	TQNCQNFND C2FSFFFMFF FTQNCQNFNFFMUUO CGRSRRGMCFCGTSNNCMTD TNMTUNMD1O CUCSRGCMD2CFMRC 1MN1OVNDSCGFMCRW *XX	Q	**Y*** CMURCMU1C1CDEFGEC IJK*	J,/LFMDO	P-L	11Q2QNFND DCFSFFFMFF 11QFTQNFNFFMD2O DNRS1FNMGFDNRSGNRM2T TCMNCNMURO UTUS1FNMFU1SFGFMFF 1M2UOVCUSDNGM2DW *XX	Q	**Y*** CMG1CMDNC1CDEFlCG IJK*	J,/LNM1NDO	P-L	UQNUQNFNG DGDSFFFMFF X̂bc,-]NM1RO DGNSUCFM1FDGCSRRGMFN TRMGGNMU2O DD2SU1FMTNDSNCGMFG 1MT2OVGSU2DM1FW *XX	Q	**Y*** UMF2CMRCC1CF*EIfD IHgi	J,/LNMDO	P-L	GQ1NQNFNG DFFSFFFMFF FGQ12QNF1TNM1TO D1FSFRDMFFDFGSFGFMUT TTMTTNMDFO UTTSTG1MFFCS2RUM2N 1M22OVGSFTTMUTW *XX	Q	**YJ[ UMNFCMTCC1CF*N̂ZC IHgi	J,/LCO	P-L	TQ11QNFNG D2DSFFFMFF X̂bc,-]NMR1O DRCS21TMDFD2TS1DUMTR 1FNM1CNMUTO DR2SNGUM2DTDRMCC NMFGORS1FTM22 *XX	Q	**YJ[ UMUDUM1UC1CDEFmNN IJK*	J,/L1MR2DO	P-L	TQNUQNFNG NCFSFFFMFF X̂bc,-]NM2RO N1NSGFUMFFNN1STFNMUD T2MUTNMU2O NNUSN1DMTGRCMRG FM2TONSC1CMD1 *XX	Q	**Y*** UMUTUMNGC1CF*hliT IHgi	J,/LNMGNDO	P-L	TQ1FQNFN2 GFFSFFFMFF X̂bc,-]NM2DO DTCSGRDMFFDTGSU1GMCR 1FFMNTNMD2O GF1S2DCMRFT1RM2G NM11ODSCC2MUN *XX	Q	**YJ[ DMUDDMFUC1CDEFDnD IJK*	J,/LFM2DO	P-L	1FQRQNFN2 GFFSFFFMFF X̂bc,-]FM2TO DTRSUFNMNFDTRS2FDMCU T1M1TNMU2O DU2S1DCMNFNS1GNMD1 1MTCOVD1SDDNM1UW *XX	Q	**Y*** DMDCDMCNZoL+-/c,.	\cpLq	UQCQNFNN	1qFUqF2	fKhaX.r_Lb	*]]L/	KX.XsLpL./	t	huJIvPZJ\v*g fXsL	G 
Page 115 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& ����>@B��<C1CD*EFGH IJKF	L,/MCNGHO	P-M	QRSRGDGT HDDUDDDNDD D1RGSRGD1SCN1CO HDVU2THNDDHDCU1QHNG2 1DVN11GNHCO HGDUHVTNHDHUDHHNHQ 1NTVO12UCTCNGC *WW	R	**XLY QNGDHNHHC1CD*ZC[1 IJKF	L,/MGNT2HO	P-M	CRSRGDGS CTDUDDDNDD \W]̂,-_GNQQO CTQUT1HNHDCTVUTCTNHT 1DGNQ2GNVHO CSDU1V2N1VQQ2NQV 1NC2OHUCDTNHQ *WW	R	**XLY QNSHQNGQC1CD*ZP̀T IJKF	L,/MGN2HO	P-M	QRTRGDGS H1DUDDDNDD \W]̂,-_GNVHO HGCUGQ1NDHH1SUQ1VN2G 1D1NQCGNHDO H1TUCCQNSTVUVDGNGS 1NTCOa1UG22N2Vb *WW	R	**XLY 2N1SQNVVC1CD*ZcdC IJKF	L,/MGN1GHO	P-M	SR1VRGDGS 2DUDDDNDD DCRDHRGDGD1NG1O 2HU2VGNTD2VUVSVNT2 SQNVTGNQHO Q2UHCTNHS2DNGV DNGVOaQUSHQNGTb *WW	R	**XLY 2NVQQNTGC1CHZDHeG ILf*	L,/MDNT2HO	P-M	TRHRGDCD Q1DUDDDNDD \W]̂,-_DNSSO QDCUQGGNHHQDVUHT2NT2 T2NV1GNHQO HCCU1SQN2VTCDNG2 1NT2Oa21UCS1N1Cb *WW	R	**X*** TNCH2NSC(�� �	>���56 ghijkhjjj!jj i!lm? ghinnhimn!njghiiohgmi!nn n!pl? lhllnhpok!nimphlkl!gi mi!ng?qnmphpoo!jir >  	9	>>s>>> p!knp!np�=tC1C2FVdFT IJKfu	vDCC	*GCNDQO	P-M	2RGHRGDGC VDDUDDDNDD 1DR1SRGD1TCNCSO CSVUSDQNGHCSTUHSDN2T 1DDNS2GNDQO VDCUTS2NQDGDVNDD 1NVGOHUCDQNTG *WW	R	LYLY 1NCG1N1QC1C2F2̀ S̀ IJKfu	vDC2	*GCNVSO	P-M	1RGHRGDGV VDDUDDDNDD DQRGQRGD1SGNDTO VGGUH1HNQCVDTUSV1NQ1 1D1NCGGNHGO VDHUGSCNGD1U1QCNCC 1NVCOaCUQVTNV1b LY	R	***LY 1NTG1NH2C1C2F̀we2 IJKfu	v2GQ	*GGNSDHO	P-M	VRGHRGDGV CSDUD1TNQQ DVRGGRGD1SGN2GO CSGUTDQNQSCS1U12DNTD 1DDNHGGNHCO CSGUDQHNVTSVVN12 1NCTOTSVNQT LY	R	***LY GND21NTCC1C2I*YED IJfx	v2G2	*GGNSVQO	P-M	2RGHRGDGV CCDUDDDNDD D2RGCRGD1SGN1HO CVDUGVTNDHCCVUQ2VN2H 1DDNHCGNQ1O CC1U2VDNDST1DN1H 1N12OaGUSCVNQQb LY	R	***LY GNCGGND2C1C2FE\JV IJKfu	vDVD	*GCNGV1O	P-M	SRGHRGDGV G2HUDDDNDD DGRDQRGDGD1NTDO GS1UVH2NDCGTCUTHGNVT 1D1NGQGNQ1O G2TUVQGNTD2VGN2C DNSTOaHUCTSNQTb LY	R	LY*** GNVSGNGQC1C2IFF[C IJKfu	vDQT	*GCNGVVO	P-M	TRGHRGDG2 G2DUDDDNDD DGRDGRGDGG1NTDO GTSU12VNGGGTTUQQQNCQ 1DGNCQGN2VO G2QUC2VNS22GSNSD DNS2Oa1GUGS1NCSb *WW	R	LYLY HNV1VNTVC1C2J1yCC IJKfu	v2VV	*G1N21GO	P-M	2RGHRGDGT GGQUGQHNSS DGRDTRGDGGGNC2O GG1UCGVNCHGG1UVGTN1T SCNS2GNTDO G1GUQG1NSGCGGNT1 DN2HOaTUTDQNGQb LY	R	LY*** QNCGHNQVC1C2JHP[G IJKfu	v2V2	*GGNDHO	P-M	11RGHRGDGT CHDUDDDNDD D1R1SRGDGG1NSQO CH1UQCHNHHCH1UHSCNTG SHNHGGN2SO CCVUC1DNGDHS2NSG 1N1TOa12UGTCNQGb LY	R	LY*** QNQQQNDHEzM+-/̂,.	{̂|M}	VRCRGDGG	1}DV}D2	wfu~W.��M]	*__M/	fW.W�M|M./	�	u�LI�PEL{�*K wW�M	2 
Page 116 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& �����=BC1C2DEFGC HDFIJ	K1CL	*MMNOLP	Q-R	1SMOSMTCM M2TUTTTNTT TCST1SMTMMMNCVP M2OUEV2NCMM2OUETLNOM L2NEEMNWEP MECUEWVNVCOWMN2O TNLCPX11ULMONTLY *ZZ	S	G[G[ LNWCWNVW(�� �	�=B \]̂__]\̀a!bc \!dd? \]̂ê]e_c!f̂\]̂ca]c\̀!df \!c̀? \]̀̂ ]̀acf!b̂b]f̂e!eb _f!_̂?gcb]fee!b_h >  	9	>>>>>> d!̀ed!ad�B
4B
>(iTEVTE[*jM kZ.l	,m	Gn	IRoo,.	J,pq	G,/RCNOP	Q-R	VSMWSMTMC 1ETUTTTNTT TCS1VSMT1LCNT1P 1ECUTMONET1ETU2WLNEV 1T1NCLMN1WP 1EMUMMEN2MMUCWTNTT TNOWP1UVC2NTW *1	S	***r 1NTW1NTVTMEEOsJtM *uRpv+Z.	D,.wZ	Hv.Z.+R	G,/RCNEMOP	Q-R	1TS1TSMTMC C2TUTTTNTT 1TSTCSMT1WCNEVP CELUELENETCELULT2NVO 1T1NVTMNEWP C2OU1WONLMEUC2TNLV 1NCVPOUM2WNV2 *C	S	*r* 1NOC1NVOMVVMMxyGE z,{.	QRRpR	JZqv/Zo	J,pq	G,/RTNVOP	Q-R	1S12SMTMV MTOUTTTNTT TCST1SMTM1TNV2P MTVUWOVNVOMTVULTWNLW LEN2VMNCMP 1LWUC1VNCV1WLNEC TN2TPXEUOLVNEVY *M	S	** 1NWT1N22ELC21[[MV |Z++Zp	Hv.Z.+vZo	J,pq	G,/RTNCOP	Q-R	MSMSMTMV 1MTUTTTNTT T1SMWSMTM1TNCLP 11LUWETNWT11LUL1VNO2 LENCWMNCWP 11OUEOEN1MEWNWC TNV1PXVUMOWNVOY *1	S	*}G[ 1NWV1NW1TETO1jznE kZ.l	,m	*uRpv+Z	J,pq	JZooZ~oR	G,/R	J,./	ES1VSMTMCTNOMCP	Q-R	ES1VSMTMV 1LTUTTTNTT TEST2SMTM1TNOMP 1LTUT1MNWT1LTUTT2N2T L2NMV1NWWP 1WVU2OWNV2MLONCO TNEOPXOUMVLNMCY *M	S	*r**r MNM1MN122LVEEF*jL �ZoR�m,p+RN+,u	�.+	JZooZ~oR	G,/R	J,./	2S1OSMTMMTNEMOP	Q-R	2S1OSMTMV 1TTUTTTNTT yZpv,-�TN2OP LLUEELNVTLLU21VNCW LONWCMNO1P LOUWMENVT1C1NLO TNCVPXCUWW2NLWY *M	S	*}G[ MNMLMNMVVEEV2|*�T z|	I,p�Z.	J{Z�R	�	J,	JZooZ~oR	G,/R	1�	2SMCSMTMCCN2L2P	Q-R	2SMCSMTMV CCTUTTTNTT 1TSTLSMT1LMN11P CVLUVCTNVTCCLUCW2N1T 1T1N1LMNVVP CCCUL1ENVVMUCEENWT 1N1WPXOUV2TNEEY *M	S	*r**r MNCMMNMTELC21[tMO |Z++Zp	Hv.Z.+vZo	J,pq	G,/RMN1OP	Q-R	WS1OSMTMV 1VOUTTTNTT TWSTWSMT1LMNMTP 1VVUE2LNOO1VVUWV2NLC LWNLVMNEMP 1VCUVOONLTCLWNCO TNOTPX1UCLMNTCY *1	S	*}G[ MNCWMNMLLVL2Vkj*M sRoo�	HZp�,	J,pq	G,/RCNCP	Q-R	LSLSMTMV COTUTTTNTT TLS11SMT1LMNC2P CEOU1L2NTTCO2UVCONLV 1T1NTVMNWOP COCUEOEN1T2TONWC 1NMVPXCU22LNWVY *1	S	kkk}*} MNVOMNCC2WT1OK2JM [,�Zo	kZ.l	,m	JZ.ZwZ	G,/RMNMOP	Q-R	11S1SMTMV COOUTTTNTT 1MSTOSMT1LMNMEP COVUW1ONVTCOVULTMNVL LWNE2MN2WP COTUMLONLTCUCMWN1C 1NMVPXVUETENOLY *1	S	***r MNOLMNV2
x�R+-/v,.	�vuR�	VSCSMTMM	1�TV�T2	|IJ{Z.woRp	*��R/	IZ.Z�RuR./	r	J�GH�QxG��*F |Z�R	W 

Page 117 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& �����B
4B
>(CDEFF1GHI1 JK	LM.N	O*	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	1TUT1UTETVTWEXY	Z-S	1UT1UTETX VFE[EEEWEE E1U1\UTETETW1EY VTD[E]VW1EVTD[V]XW\X D]WE1TW2DY VT1[VT]W]11[21VWEF 1WV]Y]̂[EX\W]V_ *1	U	**̀**̀ TW]1TW\DEET]TVLLX *RR,//	IMR,aM/,abSc	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	1TU1XUTETVTWDXY	Z-S	FU1XUTETX TVE[EEEWEE E1UT]UTETT1W\2Y TV][X]EWEETV][ED\WD2 1EEW22TW\XY TV1[]VTWTVF1VW\2 EW]XY\̂[TXVW2F_ *1	U	**̀Od TWD\TWXDE\F\2eL]X LM.N	,f	g,./aSMQ	O,/S1W]XY	Z-S	XU1UTETX T\V[EEEWEE E2UTFUTET1EW]XY T2F[2TEWV]T21[D\XWD] D\WT1FW1XY TXF[DDDW1XT[EFXWEE EWDEY1̂2[D\\W]F_ *T	U	*̀**̀ FWEDTWDVEF2]FFZhV *iiQS	j.+	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	VU11UTETX1W1TXY	Z-S	XU11UTETX 1EE[EEEWEE EXUEVUTETE1W1\Y DD[]T1WEEDD[]]]W\V DXWXDTW\1Y DX[XDVWEEVF2WXE EWFVYV̂[TDVW\V_ *MM	U	**kOd FW1TFWE1V\\V2HPG2 lH	g,amM.	PnMcS	o	P,	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	\U1UTETVEW]TVY	Z-S	\U1UTETX TEX[EEEWEE EXUTVUTET1EW2]Y TEX[T\2WFETEX[1DFW1\ DXWVFTWFFY 1DX[\FDWXEX\FWE2 EW\DYD̂[XXFW\\_ *T	U	*̀**̀ FW12FWEDDT]T\P*ZV pbcM	j.+	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	DU1VUTETXFW1XY	Z-S	1TU1VUTETX FEE[EEEWEE E1UT]UTETT1W2XY F1V[\2DWEEF1V[ETFWFD 1E1WFXTW2VY FEV[EVTWTET[]E]W2X 1WE]YD̂[D]1W1D_ *MF	U	**̀Od FW21FWTF]D11VqPH1 h,a,./,	Z,rb.b,.	LM.N	O,/SEW2XY	Z-S	1U\UTET\ 1XE[EEEWEE ETUE]UTETTTW1XY 1VT[1V\WEE1VT[VT1WFD D1W21FW1EY 1F2[X\FWDXT\XW\F EWV]YV̂[]X2WVV_ *1	U	***̀ FW22FW\XE\EX1sGt] LM.N	,f	*rSab+M	P,ai	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	TU1FUTETXTWE1XY	Z-S	TU1FUTET\ F]E[EEEWEE pMab,-c1WF\Y F]][V]TW2EF]\[F\DWVE D\WF\TWDTY F\\[1\VWD\1[ETEWDF 1WTDYT̂E[TEVWVV_ *T	U	*̀**̀ FW]]FW\22]E1\uvqF d,wMQ	LM.N	,f	PM.MxM	O,/S1WTY	Z-S	VUT2UTET\ 1XE[EEEWEE E\UEDUTET11W1FY 1XE[X12WXE1XE[VFTWE2 DTW\2FW1FY 1F][DD]WVE22EWEE EWVDY1̂1[VFFW\2_ *1	U	***̀ VWE]FWDEETF1FXLyF *rMz,.W+,r	j.+	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	VU1TUTET\1Y	Z-S	XU1TUTET\ V\X[EEEWEE EXU1EUTET11WEDY V\T[DD1WTEV\F[FV2W\V DFW]\TWX]Y VF\[VFXWD]1[2DXWVT 1WXVYT̂\[D11W\\_ *1	U	****̀ VW1TFWD2D1FTVHuPT J.b/Sx	GSMQ/n	sa,-i	j.+	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	VU1XUTET\1W1XY	Z-S	XU1XUTET\ 2X[EEEWEE E\U1\UTET11WE\Y 2X[TDDWTX2X[TXEWX1 DFWEXTWDXY \D[2]FW]FFTXW]F EWTXYX̂[V\\W\]_ *F	U	*k* VW1FFWD\]DTF\hl{T h,w,/M	g,/,a	PaSxb/	P,ai	O,/S1W1TXY	Z-S	\U1]UTET\ F1X[EEEWEE E\U1XUTET11W1FY F1V[]\1WVEF1V[]]FW1] DTWDETWDFY TDT[\V\WFV1[E1FWD1 1WEFYT̂T[TF\W]V_ *1	U	*k*k VWTTVWEXDF11VTudE eMQ̀gMa/	K/,aSc	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	E]U12UTET\1WEXY	Z-S	DU12UTET\ 2X[EEEWEE EDUE]UTET11WEDY 2V[]X]WTX2V[]2FWV2 DFW1ETW2EY \D[]TFW2FFEW\F EWTXYX̂[EVDW2V_ *MT	U	**** VWV2VWF1u|S+-/b,.	hbrS}	VUFUTETT	1}EV}E2	HgPnM.xQSa	*ccS/	gM.MmSrS./	̀	P~O�jZuOhj*I HMmS	D 
Page 118 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& �����B
4B
>(CDEFFDG*HI J-KL	M.LNOP	GQN,RS.QT	GQRRQURL	V,/L	G,./	WX1XDYDEDZW[\	J-L	1DX1XDYDE IYY]YYYZYY Y1X1IXDYDD1Ẑ1\ I1[]Y[1ZYYI1F]IWWZ21 WWẐ̂DZŴ\ DWW]E[DZYYD]W[YZYY 1ZYE\_1F]2F2Z21̀ *QI	X	*Va FZE2FZY22̂E1DMbc2 dQNOL/	G,Ne	GQRRQURL	V,/L	G,./	1DX1[XDYDE1ZW[\	J-L	1X1[XDYD2 12Y]YYYZYY Y1X1WXDYDD1ZWW\ 1EW]211ZYY1EW]2D1ZEE WEZ2DDZEW\ 1EF]F12Ẑ̂E1EZWE YZ[̂\_[]IYIZ2̂` *D	X	** FẐYFZ[1Ŷ̂[1IbfY GgQNRLT	H+ghQU	G,Ne	GQRRQURL	V,/L	G,./	DXIXDYD2DZF[\	J-L	IXIXDYD2 DY[]YYYZYY YIXY1XDYDDDZFE\ DYF]WFEZWYDYF]WF2Z2D W2ZD1IZYE\ 1WW]D̂EZE[IWYZEF YZ2Y\_[]EE1ZY2̀ *D	X	** FZWIFZ[̂Ŵ11FdidD d,N,./,jJ,kS.S,.	bQ.K	V,/LDẐ\	J-L	IX1YXDYD2 ID[]YYYZYY YIXYWXDYDDDZW2\ IDD]FDDZ2[IDD]F[DZF1 ŴZI[IZ1E\ I1W]EIFZD[[IYẐI 1Z1D\_D]̂1̂Z1È *1	X	*Va FZW[FZ[2ŶFEEFGiD bLNKTgSNL	lQ/gQhQP	GQRRQURL	V,/L	G,./	DX1[XDYD2DZI\	J-L	IX1[XDYD2 IF[]YYYZYY YIXY2XDYDDDZIY\ IFF]WIFZF[IFF]WI[ZYE ŴZD̂DZE2\ IIW]Y21Z[DI[DZE2 1Z1W\_[]̂EIZ[F̀ *QD	X	***m FZWEFZEFŴDIEdniW d,P,/Q	c,/,N	GNLoS/	G,Ne	V,/LIZY[\	J-L	IXDDXDYD2 1W[]YYYZYY YIX12XDYDDIZY[\ 1WF]ŴDZF[1WF]ŴDZ[[ WWZŴIZY[\ 1WF]WEEZD21F̂ZEW YZÊ\_1EZD̂` *1	X	*m*m FZŴFZ[̂(�� �	���� �� pqrstqrrr!rr s!ut? pqrvwqxvu!pwpqryvqtuy!pt z!pt? yquxtqzuw!vpwtqwzr!vp zt!sp?{zsxqzrz!pp| >s	9	>>} w!wpw!sy=B�C<	=>
~C(	%3�7DEDYY�̂F[ JNLP�-T	�-.oT	�.T/�R	aLTLN�L	dNLQT-NP	0E[F1 IF]2ÎZY1 �QNS,-TYZY1\ IF]2ÎZY1IF]2ÎZY1 1ZYYYZY1\ IF]2ÎZY1YZYY YZ1D\YZYY *QQ	X	****** YZYYYZYY(�� �	=���6	= ;��	%&�� wtqpwu!rs r!rs? wtqpwu!rswtqpwu!rs r!rs? wtqpwu!rsr!rr r!sz?r!rr >  	9	>>>>>> r!rrr!rr"34
>�>($B�>'F[̂1�YJ�2 �./LNj*kLNS+Q.	JL�	bQ.K	V,/LYẐ2[\	J-L	FXDYXDYDE IY[]YYYZYY YFX1IXDYD1YZW2\ IYI]EYIZ1YIYI]̂E2Z2W WIZFYDZEY\ D̂F]̂22ZEI1]1WIZ[D 1ZYY\_1̂]WWYZ1È *QQ	X	****** FZYEIZWD(�� �	"&� � ���� � wrxqrrr!rr r!vp? wrwqyrw!srwrwquyp!pv z!yr? zutqupp!ywsqsvw!xz s!rr?{suqvvr!sy| >  	9	>>>>>> t!ryw!vzM�L+-/S,.	dSkL�	FXIXDYDD	1�YF�Y2	�cGgQ.oRLN	*TTL/	cQ.QOLkL./	j	G�V��JMVd�*� �QOL	1Y 
Page 119 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& ����3"	(
B>"3
<C1DEDEFGG HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LDQ2RS	T-L	DU1RUDVDW WVVXVVVQVV YMKZ,-NDQVWS WDVXV22QRGWVWXE2EQVR 1VVQE[DQDCS WV[X[DEQVV1X[G2QWV 1QWDS\1XRRVQVR] *MM	U	**̂*** 1QEE1QEDC1DEDE_D2 HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LDS	T-L	DU1RUDVDR RVVXVVVQVV VEU[1UDV1RDQ1RS WC[XG[WQE1WCEXVGWQDC CEQGCDQW2S WC[XWR2QVV1XDW[QVC 1Q2WS\WXGV2QDC] *MM	U	**̂*** DQEEDQ22C1DEDÈaV HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LVQRS	T-L	[U[1UDVDR [DRXVVVQVV V[U[VUDVD1VQGWS [D[X1WGQWE[D[XG1VQE1 CWQ[VDQWES [VGXWCVQDEWQWW 1QVES\12X1DVQR[] *MM	U	**̂*** [QVVDQCWC1DEDEbRG HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LDQDRS	T-L	11U1RUDVDR [RVXVVVQVV VRUDCUDV1CDQ1[S [RDXW1CQCD[R1X[R2QVW CCQ1VDQR1S [WGXEW1QCRDXCEVQ[D 1QD[S\WXR1RQVC] *MM	U	**̂*** [QG[[QW[C1DEDEc[G HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/L1QGDRS	T-L	RU1RUDVDG RVVXVVVQVV YMKZ,-NDQD[S W2RXRD[QWCWEEXGGCQDE CGQG1DQRVS WE[XVD2QRV[XV2WQC[ 1Q21S\RXGW1Q2E] *MM	U	**̂*** WQ1[[QC[C1DEDddeW HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LVQGDRS	T-L	2U[1UDVDG 1RVXVVVQVV V2UDCUDVD1VQ2DS 1WCXDERQ1G1WCX[EVQVV CDQWVDQWES 1[EXRC2QGV1RRQ[C VQWCS\1VX2EDQWV] *MM	U	**̂*** WQ[WWQD[C1DEDEfgC HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/L1QGDRS	T-L	CU[VUDVDG 1VVXVVVQVV 1DU1EUDV1C1QEGS CEXRV2QE1CCXV1VQD[ CGQW1DQW2S CGXWVGQDVWQWW VQ[WS\DXGVWQV[] *MM	U	**̂*** WQRVWQ[VC1DEDdd̀D HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LVQE2RS	T-L	CU[VUDVDG GVVXVVVQVV YMKZ,-N1Q1[S RCDX21VQCWRC[X[E1QD[ C[QDVDQWES RRCXD1EQGV1WQ[W 1QCGS\[WX1GDQG[] *MM	U	**̂*** WQRVWQ[GC1DEDÈFC HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/L1Q1DRS	T-L	DUDEUDVD2 RWRXVVVQVV V[UDWUDVDVVQ2RS RREXCV1Q2GRRWXER[Q2D C[QC2DQW[S R1DX1DCQCGR[[Q1R 1QEVS\WDX2D[Q2G] *MM	U	**̂*** WQCDWQ2[C1DEDd*hW HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LVQRS	T-L	EU[1UDVD2 1RVXVVVQVV VEUVGUDVD1VQCWS 1WGX1D1QVC1WGXR[DQCC CVQ1EDQWRS 1[RXDGCQRRGRQDD VQW2S\11XDG[QWW] *MM	U	**̂*** RQWDRQDEC1DEDd*iR HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LVQ[2RS	T-L	CU[VUDVD2 [VVXVVVQVV 1VUDRUDVD11Q[[S DE[X2CDQC2DEWXCGEQDG ECQ[CDQWRS DGEX1GVQ1V[QV2 VQCWS\1GXEVEQ1G] *MM	U	**̂*** RQRVRQ[EC1DEDE[aR HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LDQDRS	T-L	11U1RUDVD2 [VVXVVVQVV 11UV2UDV1C1QECS [V2XCR2QV[[VRXR2CQC2 CEQCGDQWRS DCGXEEDQ2VDXRRWQRG 1QVRS\EXGC2QD2] *MM	U	**̂*** RQG[RQDVC1DEDdFFG HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LVQGDRS	T-L	1DU[1UDVD2 GDRXVVVQVV V[UDCUDVD11Q[VS RC2XE2RQCEGV1XC11QVR CVQD2DQWRS RGWX1EWQ[2CE1QCG 1QCES\[2X2DGQGE] *MM	U	**̂*** RQ2GRQR2C1DEDdF_C HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LVQ2RS	T-L	1U[1UDVDE RRVXVVVQVV V[U1DUDVD11QDES R[VXER2QWDR[[X2G2QD2 CVQEDDQWRS WCCXWCVQDVGE[Q2V 1Q2RS\[WXD22QV2] *MM	U	**̂*** RQEWRQGWC1DEDddY1 HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/L1Q1DRS	T-L	EU[1UDVDE [VVXVVVQVV VCUV[UDVD11Q1VS [VVXWR2QV[[VVXWDVQ11 CDQDWDQWWS D2GX21WQCVDC[QWE VQC2S\D[X2VRQD1] *MM	U	**̂*** GQWDGQ1DC1DEDEfFV HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/L1QGDRS	T-L	EU1RUDVDC [RVXVVVQVV VRUDEUDVDVVQGGS [EVXVVCQ22[2WXV1GQ2[ CWQC[DQ[ES [[DXDR[QCR2V2QV1 1Q12S\W1X2GDQ2E] *MM	U	**̂*** 2Q[EGQE2jkL+-/Z,.	JZlLm	WU[UDVDD	1mVWmV2	ebdnM.opLK	*NNL/	bM.MqLlL./	r	dsPatTjPJt*i eMqL	11 
Page 120 of 417



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& ����3"	(
B>"3
<C1DEDEFGH IJ	KLMNO-LP	Q,/MRSHDTU	V-M	TW1TWDRXR H1TYRRRSRR ZNL[,-ORSCRU TCCYTCXSCTHR1YH2CS1H E2SDXDSXHU TXHY\H2STE1Y\T\SHE 1SECU]HTYD11STÊ *NN	W	**_*** ES1X2SERC1DED̀*ZX IJ	KLMNO-LP	Q,/MRSE2TU	V-M	11W1TWDRXR HDTYRRRSRR ZNL[,-O1SXRU HRRYERESTCHRXYTHES1\ EESHXDSX\U TTXYCRHSDTDYRHCSH2 1SCTU]\CYHH1SEĈ *NN	W	**_*** ESHXES1E(�� �	3"	(� �&6 abcdebfff!ff g!hi? abcggbidg!aiabcgebijd!hh c!jh? ibdfcbdci!ikgdbgkf!de ch!kh?ljgcbdcg!ijm >  	9	>>n>>> e!cae!fj(o(>'	4o
(%o'$o ckbheibhdh!hi g!ii? ckbjefbhha!cackbhkdbjgi!dg c!eh? cdbjfebdfe!eckebeca!hc gff!ff?lkkcbigg!ckm > g	9	>>>>> j!cch!df(o(>'	=>
pB(	8>'3B	4'3"	>��
3B7 cdbefgbhhc!dj

qrM+-/[,.	K[sMt	\WXWDRDD	1tR\tR2	uvẁN.xyML	*OOM/	vN.NzMsM./	{	̀|Q}~VqQK~*� uNzM	1D 
Page 121 of 417



1/18/22, 10:01 AM Untitled Page

https://laif.sco.ca.gov/Result.aspx 1/1

 
 

BETTY T. YEE
 

California State Controller
 

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND
REMITTANCE ADVICE

 
 

Agency Name
NO CAL CITIES SELF INSUR FUND

 

Account Number 35-11-001

 
As of 01/14/2022, your Local Agency Investment Fund account has been directly credited
with the interest earned on your deposits for the quarter ending 12/31/2021.

Earnings Ratio .00000625812849570

Interest Rate 0.23%

Dollar Day Total $ 1,908,841,240.10

Quarter End Principal Balance $ 14,038,709.78

Quarterly Interest Earned $ 11,945.77
 
 

 
Page 122 of 417



 
Page 123 of 417



© 2019 Sedgwick

NCCSIF Workers’ 
Compensation 

Update

April 2022

 
Page 124 of 417



2© 2019 Sedgwick 

NCCSIF Workers’ Compensation Update: April 2022

Workers’ Compensation Update:
Dedicated Claims Model:
As we shift to a dedicated examiner model for the pool, with the goal of reducing caseloads and ensuring 
greater responsiveness, redistribution of examiner assignments has been made and shared with the 
members. In an attempt to handle the impact of the pandemic, we have assigned an additional examiner to 
handle the COVID claims for all members (at no additional charge to NCCSIF), this designed to reduce the 
inventory and allow the direct work with members to be handled by the dedicated examiners.

COVID‐19:

2022 started with a bang in relation to COVID claims. January alone experience rose to 139 COVID claims 
reported! Fortunately, no COVID claims have been reported for March bringing a much‐needed relief to the 
claims team. We are cautiously optimistic that we will continue to see a decrease of incoming COVID claims.

Claim Trends:

As of March 31, 2022, for fiscal year 2021‐2022, there has been a 32% increase in new claims as compared to 
the entire 2020‐2021 fiscal year and a 47% increase over the pre‐COVID average of 340 claims per year. The 

next slides illustrate the impact that COVID claims have made on the program since the start of the pandemic. 

Questions About Claims?

We can schedule a telephonic file review to discuss your claims or answer any questions you may have about 
the claims process. We are here to help! This quarter we’ve conducted or scheduled  file reviews/updates with 
the cities of Dixon, Elk Grove, Folsom, Galt, Red Bluff, and Rocklin 

 
Page 125 of 417



3© 2019 Sedgwick 

NCCSIF Workers’ Compensation Update: April 2022

2019‐2020 2020‐2021 2021‐2022*

Total COVID Claims 16 108 240

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Total COVID Claims by Fiscal Year through 3/31/2022

7

25

10 6 9

22

139

22

0
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

July August September October November December January February March

Total Fiscal Year 2021‐2022 COVID Claims through 3/31/2022

 
Page 126 of 417



4© 2019 Sedgwick 

NCCSIF Workers’ Compensation Update: April 2022

347 352
322

379

501

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2017‐2018 2018‐2019 2019‐2020 2020‐2021 2021‐2022*

Total New Claims by Fiscal Year Through 3/31/2022

2017‐2018 2018‐2019 2019‐2020 2020‐2021 2021‐2022*

First Aid 12 7 6 4 34

Medical Only 165 174 127 123 145

Indemnity 170 171 189 252 322

Total 347 352 322 379 501

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Claim Type by Fiscal Year through 3/31/2022

 
Page 127 of 417



                                           NCCSIF Workers' Compensation Team   
Gagain, Bernie  Baumle, Erik  Brainard ‐ DeLong, Devora  
Operations Team Lead  Director, Client Services  Vice President, Client Services  

Bernard.Gagain@Sedgwick.com  

Erik.Baumle@Sedgwick.com   Devora.Brainard@Sedgwick.com  

Phone:  279.900.3084  Phone: 360.742.2799   Phone: 951.231.6825 

                 

Marx, Jessica (Dedicated)  Lopez, Rosa (Dedicated)  Silva, Sandra (Dedicated)  

Jessica.Marx@Sedgwick.com   Rosa.Lopez@Sedgwick.com   Sandra.Silva@Sedgwick.com  

Phone:  916.960.0902   Phone: 916.788.9985   Phone: 279.900.3087 

Members Served   Members Served   Members Served  

   City of Rocklin      City of Folsom     City of Elk Grove (Lopez, Coverage) 
   City of Yuba City      City of Dixon     City of Red Bluff (Marx ‐ Coverage)  

   City of Anderson      City of Auburn     City of Galt (Marx ‐ Coverage)  

   City of Colusa      City of Corning     City of Marysville (Marx ‐ Coverage)  

   City of Jackson     City of Gridley       

   City of Lincoln     City of Ione       

   City of Nevada City      Town of Paradise       

   City of Rio Vista      City of Placerville        

   City of Oroville     City of Willows        

   City of Red Bluff      City of Elk Grove      

   City of Galt              

   City of Marysville             
                 

Summers, Rebecca   Rivas, Diane   Santiago‐Dean, Margarita  

Rebecca.Summers@Sedgwick.com   Diane.Rivas@Sedgwick.com   Margarita.SantiagoDean@Sedgwick.com  

Phone:  916.960.1029   Phone: 916.788.985   All COVID Claims 

Future Medical Examiner  Medical‐Only Claims    
                 
                 
      To File a New Claim        
      E‐mail:  7374NCCSIF@Sedgwick.com     
      Or use your Global Intake Link to file online  
                 
      Sedgwick       
      P. O. Box 14433       
      Lexington, KY 40512       

     
(800) 922‐5020  
Fax (844) 346‐1322      

 

 
Page 128 of 417



 
Page 129 of 417



 
Page 130 of 417



 
Page 131 of 417



 
Page 132 of 417



 
Page 133 of 417



 
Page 134 of 417



 
 
March 2, 2022 
 

To: Mr. Marcus Beverly, Alliant Insurance (via email) 
 
Re: Response to Audit Results for NCCSIF   
 
Dear Mr. Beverly, 
 
This letter is in response to the Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund audit 
report for the NCCSIF General Liability Claims and Property Claims. 62 open claims 
and 20 closed claims were audited. We were very pleased with the findings that our 
claims were well documented, and our investigations were complete. The audit also 
noted timely investigations and that our investigations provided a solid foundation for all 
future handling. Specifically noted as being especially well investigated were those 
investigations involving police and dangerous conditions. The auditor also found our 
examiners to be proactive in identifying risk transfer opportunities and commented the 
adjusters are aggressive in handling claims with merit and that negotiations with 
claimants or their counsel are entered early on.  Also noted were appropriate liability 
evaluations, and active supervision of files. Overall, the auditor found our claims 
handling is done in a professional and competent manner and our claims handling for 
NCCSIF meets or exceeds the industry standard and CAJPA claims handling criteria.    
 
Overall reserving was found to be addressed timely with appropriate rationale. The 
auditor did recommend three claims’ reserves be reviewed.  These reserves were 
reviewed on March 1, 2022 and adjusted as follows: 
 
4020113F3D7- The indemnity reserves were increased to $15,000 based on the 
probable value of claimant’s injury.   
 
NCGA08821A1- The indemnity reserves were increased to $35,000 which is the 
amount of our last offer. 
 
NCGA09043A2- The expense reserve was increased to $150,000 on January 28, 2022.  
 
The auditor found the files were well managed in a professional and competent manner 
and there was good and timely communication with the members. Closed file review 
found timely closings, good reconciliation of financials, timely, proactive, and favorable 
resolutions, complete file notes, and good claim supervisor review and involvement. 
 
The auditor noted that when appropriate the adjuster completes captioned reports that 
are distributed appropriately.  The auditor did note that increased use of the captioned 
report would greatly enhance the claims handling process.  We currently require 

 
Page 135 of 417



captioned reports be completed and sent to the client at 30 days and a minimum of 
every 90 days thereafter.  The Team Lead will monitor for compliance. 
 
There were a few noted issues and suggestions. The issues and suggestions are noted 
below with a response to each. 
 
40201028983- Auditor commented, Special attention should be paid to the VA lien 
issue.  It is RMS’ experience that US Government liens are very difficult to compromise, 
and the US government is hard line on 100 cents on the dollar in recovery.  This should 
be taken into consideration in the evaluation. The examiner to address the VA lien with 
defense counsel and excess.  It will be considered in the evaluation of this matter.   
 
4020113F3D7- Auditor noted, Claim could benefit from a defense counsel evaluation. A 
status report was received from defense counsel on February 15, 2022.  An updated 
captioned report was completed on this same date by the claims examiner. 
 
4021038FF67- Auditor commented, RMS has extensive experience with the Plaintiff 
Counsel on this excessive force case.  He has not had a successful trial and is usually 
ill prepared.  As a result, it is easy to negotiate nuisance values resolutions.  Currently, 
a motion for summary judgment is pending. As in all cases, if we are not successful with 
the motion, we will consider a nuisance value resolution if it makes sense to do. 
 
We appreciate our partnership with NCCSIF very much and are dedicated in our 
commitment to provide excellent claims handling to all NCCSIF members. Please let us 
know if you have any questions or need additional information. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Summer Simpson, Claims Team Lead 
 
cc: Ronda Donovan, Director Claims Property & Casualty 

Jill Petrarca, Claims Assistant Manger 
Erik Baumle, Director Client Services 

 

 
Page 136 of 417



 

ACTIVE 62880371v5 

MASTER SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT 

This Master Subscription Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and 
between Customer (as defined below) and Lintelio, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company with 
an address at 8360 East Via de Ventura, Suite L200, Scottsdale, AZ 85258 (“Lintelio”) effective as 
of the date the Customer (as defined below) agrees to be legally bound by this Agreement by 
virtue of its acceptance of an Order Form and Quote (as defined below) (the “Effective Date”). 
 

RECITALS 

A. Lintelio is the owner or licensee of a certain health and safety software and related 
applications that are useful for digital engagement by “End Users”. 

B. Lintelio wishes to grant, and the Customer wishes to obtain, certain licenses and 
related services with respect to such software. 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. DEFINITIONS.  Capitalized terms used in this Agreement shall have the following meanings 
or as otherwise set forth herein: 

“Confidential Information” shall have the meaning assigned to it in SECTION 10 (“CONFIDENTIAL 

INFORMATION”). 

“Customer” means any Person that has accepted the terms and conditions of this Agreement by 
entering into an Order Form and Quote or Statement of Work. 

“Customer Representatives” shall mean up to three (3) regular employees of the Customer who 
have been identified as such in writing to Lintelio, and who are authorized to make decisions, 
provide approvals, and to receive Maintenance and Support on behalf of the Customer. 

“Disclosing Party” shall have the meaning assigned to it in SECTION 10 (“CONFIDENTIAL 

INFORMATION”). 

“Documentation” shall mean any written documentation provided by Lintelio to explain and 
assist in the use of the Licensed Software, whether printed, electronic, magnetic or in other 
format. 

“Effective Date” shall mean the Subscription Start Date as noted in the Order Form and Quote. 

“End User” shall mean a Person that uses the Licensed Software including such Person’s children, 
parents, guardians, elderly persons, students, or other third party for whom such End User is 
responsible, in each case as applicable.  

“Error” shall have the meaning assigned to it in Exhibit A (“MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT”). 

 
Page 137 of 417



 

ACTIVE 62880371v5 

 

“EULA” shall mean the agreement agreed to by each End User as a condition to using and gaining 
access to the Licensed Software available at this website. https://www.lintelio.com/terms. 

“Fees” shall mean any amounts owed or paid by the Customer to Lintelio in connection with this 
Agreement for the use of the Licensed Software in an amount as set forth in an applicable Order 
Form and Quote or Statement of Work, as applicable. 

“Form of EULA” shall have the meaning assigned to it in Subsection 3.1 (“Grant of License”). 

“IP Claim” shall have the meaning assigned to it in Subsection 6.1 (“By Lintelio”). 

“JAMS” shall have the meaning assigned to it in Subsection 14.6(A) (“Process”). 

“Licensed Software” shall mean the software or other application products that are ordered by 
Customer under an accepted Order Form and Quote, Statement of Work or other online 
purchasing portal.  

“Maintenance and Support” shall have the meaning assigned to it in EXHIBIT A (“MAINTENANCE AND 

SUPPORT”). 

“Person” shall mean any individual, partnership, limited liability company, corporation or other 
legal entity. 

“Order Form and Quote” shall mean an ordering document or online order specifying the 
Licensed Software to be provided hereunder that is entered into between Customer and Lintelio, 
including any addenda and supplements thereto.  

“Receiving Party” shall have the meaning assigned to it in SECTION 10 (“CONFIDENTIAL 

INFORMATION”). 

“Statement of Work” shall mean a written amendment to this Agreement modifying terms, Fees 
or licenses granted herein or as described in an Order Form and Quote, and which may also 
include specialized services to be provided under this Agreement.   

“Term” shall have the meaning assigned to it in Subsection 11.1 (“Term”).  

“Updates” shall have the meaning assigned to it in EXHIBIT A (“MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT”). 

2.  FEES. 

2.1 Fees.  Fees for licenses of the Licensed Software as of the Effective Date are as set 
forth in each Order Form and Quote or any Statement of Work, as applicable, and are subject to 
change by Lintelio upon advance written notice.   

2.2 Order Form and Quote and Statements of Work.  From time to time, the 
Customer may (i) elect into any additional services from Lintelio which shall result in additional 

 
Page 138 of 417

https://www.lintelio.com/terms


 

ACTIVE 62880371v5 

Fees as set forth in the applicable Order Form and Quote; or (ii) mutually agree with Lintelio on 
any Statement of Work based upon a corresponding pre-existing Order Form and Quote.   Once 
elected into by the Customer, each Order Form and Quote or Statement of Work, as applicable, 
is a separate agreement between the parties, and hereby incorporates by reference all the terms 
of this Agreement.  Unless otherwise expressly stated in a Order Form and Quote or Statement 
of Work, in the event of any conflict, the terms of the body of this Agreement shall control over 
the terms of the Order Form and Quote or Statement of Work, as applicable. 

3. LICENSE GRANT, OWNERSHIP AND SERVICES. 

3.1 Grant of License.  Subject to the Customer’s performance hereunder, including 
without limitation the timely payment of Fees, Lintelio hereby grants to the Customer a 
nonexclusive, nontransferable, Fee-bearing license, solely during the term, to use the Licensed 
Software through and by its End Users; provided, however, as a condition to using the Licensed 
Software, each End User shall be required to agree to the form of EULA at 
https://www.lintelio.com/terms. 

3.2 Ownership.  The Customer is not acquiring any right or interest in the Licensed 
Software, other than the license to use, and authorize its End Users to use, the Licensed Software.  
There are no implied licenses granted.  Lintelio reserves all rights not expressly granted to the 
Customer and Lintelio and its licensors retain title and full ownership of the Licensed Software 
and all intellectual property rights therein, under all applicable laws of the United States and any 
other applicable state, federal, or foreign law.  The Customer may not: (a) modify, create 
derivative works of, translate, reverse engineer, reverse compile, or reverse assemble the 
Licensed Software; (b) use the Licensed Software to assist in the development of any other 
computer program or any other product or service; or (c) copy the Licensed Software in whole or 
in part.  The Customer acknowledges that Lintelio may analyze the Customer’s usage of the 
Licensed Software for product support, product development, and administrative and business 
purposes. 

3.3 Training.  Lintelio shall provide reasonable training and instruction to the 
Customer regarding use of the Licensed Software.  

3.4 Purchased Services.  Where so agreed between the parties in an Order Form and 
Quote or Statement of Work, Lintelio may provide certain professional, development, data 
conversion, Customer or End User assistance or other services (“Purchased Services”).  The 
description of such Purchased Services and the amount of corresponding Fees shall be as set 
forth in a corresponding Order Form and Quote or Statement of Work.  

4. LICENSED SOFTWARE.   Lintelio shall make the Licensed Software available to the Customer 
and its End Users subject to the terms of this Agreement.  In such case, the Licensed Software 
will be provided by the Customers directly to End Users from the Apple App Store, the Google 
Play Store, or such other platform as Lintelio may allow.  Each End User shall be required to 
register with Lintelio and to agree to the EULA in the Form of EULA inclusive of a “Platform License 
and Terms of Service” and “Privacy Policy” as a condition of gaining access to the Licensed 

 
Page 139 of 417

https://www.lintelio.com/terms


 

ACTIVE 62880371v5 

Software.  The Customer shall be responsible to pay all corresponding Fees for all End Users as 
calculated and provided in each Order Form and Quote or applicable Statement of Work.   

5. WARRANTY DISCLAIMER. 

5.1. Statement of Limited Warranty.  Lintelio hereby warrants solely to the Customer 
that the Licensed Software as made available by Lintelio shall be free of Errors in ordinary use as 
provided by this Agreement.   

5.2 Remedy.  In the event of any breach of the warranty set forth in Subsection 5.1 
(“Statement of Limited Warranty”), the Customer shall give prompt written notice thereof to 
Lintelio via a Customer Representative.  In such case, Lintelio shall use its commercially 
reasonable efforts to provide Maintenance and Support as described in SECTION 7 (“MAINTENANCE 

AND SUPPORT”) to correct any corresponding Error in accordance with this Agreement.  Such 
Maintenance and Support are the Customer’s sole remedy and Lintelio’s liability for any breach 
of the Statement of Limited Warranty. 

5.3 Disclaimer.  THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN SUBSECTION 5.1 (“STATEMENT OF 
LIMITED WARRANTY”) IS EXCLUSIVE AND IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES.  LINTELIO 
DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES REGARDING THE LICENSED SOFTWARE AND ANY OTHER 
GOODS OR PURCHASED SERVICES, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, ARISING FROM COURSE OF 
DEALING, USAGE OR TRADE, AND INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES 
OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND NON-INFRINGEMENT OF 
THIRD-PARTY RIGHTS.  LINTELIO DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE LICENSED SOFTWARE WILL 
MEET THE CUSTOMER’S OR END USER’S REQUIREMENTS OR THAT ACCESS TO THE LICENSED 
SOFTWARE WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED. 

6. INDEMNIFICATION. 

6.1 By Lintelio.  Lintelio shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Customer 
from and against any losses, liabilities, damages and expenses (including without limitation 
reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising out of or related to any third-party claim that a Customer’s or 
End User’s use of the Licensed Software under a EULA directly infringes any copyright, trademark 
or misappropriates the trade secrets of a third party (each, an “IP Claim”).  The Customer shall 
promptly notify Lintelio in writing of each IP Claim, and shall ensure that the corresponding End 
User shall tender to Lintelio the right to defend or settle such IP Claim. Lintelio shall have sole 
control over the defense and settlement of each IP Claim, and the Customer shall cooperate with 
Lintelio in the defense and settlement thereof.  The Customer shall have the right to participate 
with Lintelio in such defense and settlement at the Customer’s sole option and expense.  If an IP 
Claim is commenced against the Customer or is in the judgment of Lintelio likely, Lintelio may, at 
Lintelio's option, modify or replace the Licensed Software so that the Licensed Software performs 
comparable functions without infringement, or obtain a royalty-free license for the Customer to 
use the Licensed Software; or if neither alternative is available on commercially reasonable 
terms, Lintelio may terminate this Agreement including any corresponding Statement of Work. 

 
Page 140 of 417



 

ACTIVE 62880371v5 

6.2 By the Customer.  The Customer shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 
Lintelio from and against any losses, liabilities, damages and expenses (including without 
limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising out of or related to any third-party claim alleging 
any illegal, false, deceptive or misleading acts or omissions by the Customer or an End User 
regarding the performance of this Agreement or the use of the Licensed Software.  Lintelio shall 
promptly notify the Cusomer in writing of each such claim. 

6.3 Entire Obligation.  THIS SECTION 6 (“INDEMNIFICATION”) STATES LINTELIO'S 
ENTIRE OBLIGATION TO THE CUSTOMER AND THE CUSTOMER’S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR ANY 
INFRINGEMENT OR MISAPPROPRIATION OF ANY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHT OF ANY OTHER 
PERSON. 

7. MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT. 

7.1 Scope.  Subject to the Customer’s performance hereunder, including without 
limitation the timely payment of Fees, Lintelio will use its commercially reasonable efforts to 
provide Maintenance and Support as outlined on Exhibit A (“MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT”). For the 
elimination of doubt, Lintelio shall provide Maintenance and Support directly to the Customer 
solely through the Customer Representatives and to End Users solely within and as outlined on 
Exhibit A (“MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT”).   

7.2 Exclusions.  Maintenance and Support shall not include any of the following:  

A. End User credential creation, configuration or management; 

B. Assistance or training, other than as described in Subsection 3.3 
(“Training”); or 

C. Custom features, enhancements or functionality. 

8. FEES AND PAYMENT. 

 8.1 Fees.  The Customer agrees to pay Lintelio all corresponding Fees for each 
Licensed Software module accepted by the Customer in each Order Form and Quote or any 
corresponding Statement of Work.  Lintelio shall invoice the Customer for all Fees for each 
Licensed Software module accepted by the Customer as set forth in each Order Form and Quote 
or any corresponding Statement of Work.   

8.2 Taxes.  The Customer shall be responsible for and shall pay any and all 
governmental, federal, state, or local taxes (other than taxes based on Lintelio's income), 
including sales taxes imposed in connection with the Licensed Software or the performance of 
the Purchased Services and the rights granted herein, and including without limitation taxes 
assessed because a Customer or End User is located in any particular jurisdiction.  The Customer 
hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Lintelio harmless from and against any such taxes 
and will promptly reimburse Lintelio for any taxes that Lintelio is required to pay as a result of 
the Customer’s failure to pay taxes. 

 
Page 141 of 417



 

ACTIVE 62880371v5 

9. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. 

OTHER THAN FOR ANY BREACH OF SECTION 10 (“CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION”), ANY 
INFRINGEMENT OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS, OR ANY EXCEEDING OF THE SCOPE OF ANY 
LICENSE GRANTED HEREIN, IN NO EVENT WILL EITHER PARTY, ITS SUBSIDIARIES OR ITS 
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES OR AFFILIATES BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY, ITS 
SUBSIDIARIES OR ITS DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES OR AFFILIATES FOR ANY INDIRECT, 
INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES, INCLUDING, 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOST PROFITS, LOST REVENUE, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION, LOSS OF DATA, 
LOSS OF USE, OR COST OF PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS, TECHNOLOGY OR SERVICES, 
IN ANY WAY RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE LICENSED SOFTWARE, PURCHASED SERVICES, 
OR TRAINING, EVEN IF SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF, OR COULD HAVE REASONABLY 
FORESEEN, THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.  OTHER THAN FOR ANY BREACH OF SECTION 10 
(“CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION”), ANY INFRINGEMENT OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS, OR 
ANY EXCEEDING OF THE SCOPE OF ANY LICENSE GRANTED HEREIN, IN NO EVENT WILL EITHER 
PARTY’S LIABILITY TO THE OTHER EXCEED THE AMOUNTS OWED TO LINTELIO HEREUNDER, OR 
TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000), WHICHEVER IS GREATER, REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF 
ACTION, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, TORT, OR OTHERWISE. 

10. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 

10.1 Description.  Each party (the “Disclosing Party”) may from time to time during the 
Term of this Agreement disclose to the other party (the “Receiving Party”) certain non-public 
information regarding the Disclosing Party’s business, including without limitation technical, 
marketing, financial, personnel, planning, and other information (“Confidential Information”).  
The Disclosing Party shall mark all such Confidential Information in tangible form with the legend 
‘confidential,’ ‘proprietary,’ or with similar legend.  Regardless of whether so marked, however, 
all information relating to the Licensed Software (including any Documentation) and Purchased 
Services, shall be deemed the Confidential Information of Lintelio. 

 
10.2 Protection of Confidential Information.  Except as expressly permitted by this 

Agreement, the Receiving Party shall not disclose the Confidential Information of the Disclosing 
Party and shall not use the Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party for any purpose not 
expressly permitted by this Agreement.  The Receiving Party shall limit the disclosure of the 
Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party to the employees of the Receiving Party who 
have a need to know such Confidential Information for purposes of this Agreement, and who are, 
with respect to the Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party, bound in writing by 
confidentiality terms no less restrictive than those contained herein.  The Receiving Party shall 
provide copies of such written agreements to the Disclosing Party upon request; provided, 
however, that such agreement copies shall themselves be deemed the Confidential Information 
of the Receiving Party. 

 
10.3 Exceptions.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Confidential 

Information shall not be deemed to include any information which:  (a) is independently 

 
Page 142 of 417



 

ACTIVE 62880371v5 

developed by the Receiving Party without access to, or use of, the Confidential Information; (b) 
is approved in writing by the Disclosing Party for disclosure by the Receiving Party; (c) is required 
to be disclosed in order for the Receiving Party to enforce its rights under this Agreement; or (d) 
is required to be disclosed by law or by the order of a court or similar judicial or administrative 
body; provided, however, that the Receiving Party shall notify the Disclosing Party of such 
requirement immediately and in writing (if permitted by law), and shall cooperate reasonably 
with the Disclosing Party, at the Disclosing Party’s expense, in the obtaining of a protective or 
similar order with respect thereto. 

 
10.4 Return of Confidential Information.  The Receiving Party shall return to the 

Disclosing Party, destroy or erase all Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party in tangible 
form upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, whichever comes first, and the 
Receiving Party shall promptly certify in writing that it has done so. 
 

11. TERM AND TERMINATION. 

11.1 Term.  The term of this Agreement (“Term”) shall commence on the Effective Date 
and remain in effect as set forth in each applicable Order Form and Quote or any executed 
Statement of Work, as applicable. 

11.2 Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement with respect to a 
material breach by the other party of this Agreement, a Order Form and Quote or any applicable 
Statement of Work where such breach has not been cured within thirty (30) days of written 
notice thereof ((ten (10) days for any failure to pay Fees).   

11.3 Effect.  Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, the Customer’s 
license with respect to the Licensed Software shall immediately terminate, and the Customer 
shall no longer be able to access the Licensed Software or, for the avoidance of doubt, provide 
any access to the Customer’s End Users.   

12. SURVIVAL. 

In the event of any expiration or termination of this Agreement, the following provisions shall 
survive: SECTION 1 (“DEFINITIONS”), Subsection 2.1 (“Fees”), SECTION 5 (“WARRANTY DISCLAIMER”), 
SECTION 6 (“INDEMNIFICATION”), SECTION 8 (“FEES AND PAYMENT”), SECTION 9 (“LIMITATION OF LIABILITY”), 
SECTION 10 (“CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION”), Subsection 11.3 (“Effect”), SECTION 12 (“SURVIVAL”) and 

SECTION 14 (“GENERAL”). 

13. ASSIGNMENT. 

Neither party may assign any rights or obligations under the Agreement, either in whole or in 
part, without the prior, written consent of the other party, which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld; provided, however, that Lintelio may assign the Agreement in whole to a third party in 
the context of a sale, acquisition, merger or similar transaction with such party. 

 
Page 143 of 417



 

ACTIVE 62880371v5 

14. GENERAL. 

14.1 Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be in default by reason of any failure in 
performance of this Agreement if such failure arises, directly or indirectly, out of causes 
reasonably beyond the direct control or foreseeability of such party, including but not limited to, 
acts of God or of the public enemy, U.S. or foreign governmental acts in either a sovereign or 
contractual capacity, fire, flood, pandemics, restrictions, strikes, or embargoes. 

14.2 Waiver.  Any failure by either party to detect, protest, or remedy any breach of 
this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver or impairment of any corresponding term or 
condition, or the right of such party at any time to avail itself of such remedies as it may have for 
any breach or breaches of such term or condition.  A waiver may only occur pursuant to the prior 
written express permission of an authorized officer of the other party. 

14.3 Notices.  All notices, communications, and deliveries under this Agreement (other 
than routine Maintenance and Support communications) must be made in writing, signed by the 
party making the same, delivered by hand, via registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, or via reputable overnight delivery services such as FedEx, and directed, in the case 
of the Customer, consistent with the contact information provided to Lintelio on the Licensed 
Software, or, in the case Lintelio, as follows: 

If to Lintelio: 

Lintelio, LLC 
8360 East Via de Ventura 
Suite L-200 
Scottsdale, AZ  85258 
Attn: Paul Binsfeld 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Greenberg Traurig LLP 
2375 E. Camelback Road, Suite 800 
Phoenix, Arizona 85016 
Attn: Jake B. Smith, Esq. 

 
14.4 Severability.  If any provision hereof is declared invalid by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, such provision shall be ineffective only to the extent of such invalidity, so that the 
remainder of that provision and all remaining provisions of this Agreement will continue in full 
force and effect. 

14.5 Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights of the parties hereunder shall be 
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the state of Arizona, as apply to 
contracts entered into and performed in Arizona between Arizona residents, and without regard 
to conflicts of laws provisions thereof.  Subject to the obligation to arbitrate disputes set forth in 

 
Page 144 of 417



 

ACTIVE 62880371v5 

Subsection 14.6 (“Agreement to Binding Arbitration”), the state and federal courts located in 
Phoenix, Arizona shall have sole jurisdiction over any disputes arising hereunder and the parties 
hereby submit to the personal jurisdiction of such courts.  The United Nations Convention on 
Contracts for the International Sale of Goods shall not apply to this Agreement. 

14.6 Agreement to Binding Arbitration.   

A. Process.  In the event of any dispute between the parties, either party may 
initiate binding arbitration pursuant to the terms set forth in this Agreement.  All claims arising 
out of or relating to the terms set forth in this Agreement (including their formation, 
performance, and breach) shall be finally settled by binding arbitration administered by 
JAMS/ENDISPUTE, LLC (“JAMS”), in accordance with the JAMS Streamlined Arbitration Rules and 
Procedures, excluding any rules or procedures governing or permitting class actions.  Each party 
will have the right to use legal counsel in connection with such JAMS arbitration at its own 
expense.  The parties shall select a single neutral arbitrator in accordance with the JAMS 
Streamlined Arbitration Rules and Procedures.  The arbitrator, and not any federal, state or local 
court or agency, shall have exclusive authority to resolve all disputes arising out of or relating to 
the interpretation, applicability, scope, enforceability, or formation of this Agreement, including 
any claim that all or any part of this Agreement is void or voidable. 

B. Location.  The foregoing arbitration shall take place in Phoenix, Arizona. 

14.7 Export.  The Customer represents and warrants that neither it nor any of its End 
Users shall be: (a) located in an embargoed country as designated by the Office of Foreign Asset 
Control of the Treasury Department; or (b) listed on the prohibited persons list maintained by 
the Bureau of Industry and Security of the Department of Commerce.  The Customer shall not 
access, use or sublicense the Licensed Software in violation of any export laws, restrictions, 
national security controls or regulations of the United States or other applicable foreign agency 
or authority. 

14.8 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including any Order Form and Quote, 
Statement of Work, Exhibits, attachments or amendments hereto, constitutes the entire 
agreement between the parties, and supersedes any prior agreement or understandings, 
whether oral or written, regarding the subject matter addressed herein.  The recitals set forth 
above are hereby incorporated in and made a part of this Agreement as if set forth in full herein. 

14.9 Counterpart Execution; Electronic Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed 
in any number of counterparts pursuant to original or electronically submitted copies of 
signatures (or the acceptance of the Agreement) with the same effect as if the parties had signed 
the same document pursuant to original signatures.  All counterparts shall be construed together 
and shall constitute one (1) agreement.  Each party executing this Agreement electronically (i.e. 
through the acceptance of an Order Form and Quote or otherwise) agrees that for all purposes 
under the E-Sign Act of 2000 and the Uniform Electronic Transaction Act (and any state 
colloraries), that such party affixed their electronic signature to this Agreement and that such 
signature was made with the intent to sign and be legally bound by this Agreement. 

 
Page 145 of 417



 

ACTIVE 62880371v5 

14.10 Equitable Relief.  Each party acknowledges that, in the event of the other party’s 
breach of this Agreement, the non-breaching party may not have an adequate remedy in money 
or damages.  The non-breaching party will be entitled to seek an injunction against such breach 
from any court of competent jurisdiction.  A non-breaching party’s right to obtain injunctive relief 
shall not limit its right to seek further remedies, including damages for breach. 

  

 
Page 146 of 417



 

ACTIVE 62880371v5 

EXHIBIT A - MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT 
 

1.1 Customer Maintenance and Support.  Lintelio shall provide the Customer with 
Maintenance and Support consisting of the following: 

A. Customer Representatives may, from time to time, contact Lintelio by 
telephone or e-mail to consult with Lintelio regarding the operation of the Licensed 
Software and any reproducible failure of the Licensed Software to materially conform to 
its accompanying documentation in ordinary use (each such condition to be considered 
an “Error”).  For the elimination of doubt, it shall be the Customer’s sole responsibility to 
identify, organize and communicate Errors to Lintelio only through the Customer 
Representatives. 

B. Customer Representatives shall provide to Lintelio all documentation and 
related information with respect to each Error, and Lintelio shall examine same.  Where 
a Customer Representative has properly notified Lintelio of an Error, Customer shall fully 
cooperate with Lintelio in all respects, including without limitation to reproduce the Error 
by providing screen shots or allowing screen sharing to enable Lintelio personnel to 
observe such Error. 

C. To the extent that any such Lintelio examination confirms the existence of 
Errors, Lintelio shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to correct such Errors by 
providing Updates to the Licensed Software, and shall provide conforming Licensed 
Software to Customer promptly thereafter.   

D. Lintelio will provide the Customer Representatives access to Lintelio’s 
support portal for reporting Errors.  Customer Representatives may also contact Lintelio 
by telephone at (480) 717-6857 between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Mountain 
Time, Monday through Friday, excluding national holidays, or via email at 
help@lintelio.com.  Maintenance and Support requested outside those hours and days 
will be commenced on the next scheduled working day. 

E. Errors shall be classified as follows for purposes of Maintenance and 
Support: 

(i) “Level 3 Errors” shall mean Errors which cause a major, severe 
endemic system-wide failure where the Licensed Software is substantially 
unavailable for use; 

(ii) “Level 2 Errors” shall mean Errors which cause a serious 
impairment of a material aspect of the Licensed Software; 

(iii) “Level 1 Errors” shall mean Errors which are not Level 2 Errors or 
Level 3 Errors. 

 
Page 147 of 417

mailto:help@lintelio.com


 

ACTIVE 62880371v5 

F. Lintelio shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to respond to and 
acknowledge Errors as follows: 

(i) Level 1 Errors:  Customer shall report Level 1 Errors to Lintelio by 
email or via the support portal.  Lintelio shall respond and acknowledge such 
notice promptly. 

(ii) Level 2 Errors:  Customer shall report Level 2 Errors to Lintelio by 
email or via the support portal.  Lintelio shall respond and acknowledge such 
notice promptly. 

(iii) Level 3 Errors:  Customer shall report Level 3 Errors to Lintelio and 
Lintelio shall use its diligent efforts to respond and acknowledge such notice by 
telephone, via support portal, email or text within four (4) hours of receipt.  
Lintelio will promptly thereafter assemble a team of Lintelio engineers to provide 
corresponding Maintenance and Support, and shall inform the Customer of the 
contact information for the leader of such team. 

G. Lintelio may, from time to time, issue new additions, versions, releases, 
corrections or improvements to the Licensed Software (collectively, “Updates”), and will 
incorporate such Updates into the Licensed Software without notice.  Updates that 
provide additional functionality or features may be subject to additional Fees. 

1.2 End User Maintenance and Support.  Lintelio shall provide End Users with 
Maintenance and Support consisting of the following: 

A. End Users may, from time to time to contact Lintelio between the hours of 
8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Mountain Time, Monday through Friday, excluding national 
holidays or via email at help@lintelio.com, via the support portal, or via the Licensed 
Software, to consult with Lintelio regarding the operation of the Licensed Software, 
including any questions as to proper use, features, functions and problems. 

B. Lintelio shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to assist such End 
Users and to provide answers to their questions. 

 

 
Page 148 of 417

mailto:help@lintelio.com


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. � 701 B Street, 6th Floor, San Diego, CA  92101 

PHONE (619) 238-1828 � www.alliant.com � CA License No. 0C36861 

April 12, 2022

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
2180 Harvard Street, STE 460
Sacramento, CA 95815

Re: Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. - Benchmarking Initiative and Use of Client Data 

Dear Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. (“Alliant”) recently launched a data aggregation 
and benchmark ing initiative for our public entity pool clients (collectively, “Pool Clients”) to 
facilitate the placement target pricing and structure design services performed by Alliant.  
Through this letter agreement (the “Agreement”) Alliant seek s to confirm that Alliant may 
include Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (“Client”) in this initiative and use 
Client’s data as outlined herein.  

1. Purpose.  The purpose of the undertaking is for Alliant to create and maintain a 
database of public entity data in order to, primarily, complete a periodic industry study of the pool 
segment’s performance.  This periodic industry study will generate relevant actuarial pricing 
factors specific to Pool Clients to facilitate placement target pricing and structure design 
(collectively, the “Purpose”).  In analyzing this pool-specific segment output, as opposed to 
general industry data, Alliant aims to better advocate for Pool Clients in the marketplace with 
respect to pricing and structure designs.   

2. Data Affected.  Alliant will access Client information for ground-up loss listings for the 
property, casualty, and workers’ compensation lines of business, as well as associated exposure 
data with these lines of business (collectively, the “Client Data”).  This data is anticipated to be 
obtained mainly from the Client’s renewal submission data provided to Alliant annually for 
placement purposes.  Client Data shall not include personally identifiable information or 
protected health information.   

3. Limited Access.  Alliant shall limit the use or receipt of Client Data to its employees, 
representatives or subcontractors who have a legitimate need to access the Client Data in 
connection with the Purpose.  Alliant may disclose the results of its analysis regarding the 
industry study to Client, as well as (re)insurers and/or insurance intermediaries to aid in the 
Purpose. Alliant will not share any unaggregated Client Data with other Pool Clients.  

4. Subcontractors.  To support this initiative, Alliant entered into an agreement with 
Origami Risk, LLC (“Origami”) to access and implement Origami’s Risk Management Information 
System (“RMIS”).  The RMIS facilitates the consistent and uniform conversion of the data into a 
preferred design/format for later aggregation, as well as aggregation capabilities for Alliant’s 
actuarial analysis needs.  Alliant will export Client Data from Alliant systems, where it will be 
stored in the RMIS Public Entity Database.  Alliant may later export Client Data for use by 
Alliant’s actuaries in connection with the Purpose.   

5. Safeguards.  Alliant agrees to use appropriate safeguards to prevent the use or 
disclosure of the Client Data other than as provided for by this Agreement.  Alliant shall also 
ensure that its employees, representatives, or subcontractors that have access to the Client 
Data shall comply with all restrictions in this Agreement.  

 
Page 149 of 417



Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. � 701 B Street, 6th Floor, San Diego, CA  92101 

PHONE (619) 238-1828 � www.alliant.com � CA License No. 0C36861 

6. Term.   The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and continue for so
long as Client engages Alliant to provide insurance broker services.  Either party may terminate 
the Agreement before the end of the underlying business relationship by providing 30 days written 
notice to the other party.  Upon termination, Alliant will exclude Client from future uploads of Client 
Data.     

This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between Alliant and Client and 
supersedes all prior understandings, written or oral, relating to Alliant’s use of Client Data in 
connection with the Purpose.  Please signify your agreement to the above by signing below. 

Sincerely, 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 

By:_______________________ 

Name:____________________ 

Its:_______________________ 

Agreed and accepted as of the date indicated below: 

By:_______________________ 

Name:____________________ 

Its:_______________________ 

Effective Date: _____________ 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

 
Page 150 of 417



PE Pool Database
A powerful tool for you

Alliant Actuarial Resources: We utilize internal actuarial resources to help price 
and structure reinsurance programs for our clients
 • We put you on “equal footing” with reinsurers in the pricing process
 • This helps inform strategy and approach

Reliance on Industry Data: As part of this pricing exercise, for industry data 
needed, there is heavy use of ISO or RAA data by the marketplace
 • The issue is that this is not representative of PE Pools and can adversely impact
   pricing outcomes  

Leveraging PE Pool Data: Alliant is expanding our offering to clients with the 
creation of a PE Pool database
 • Our client base, including you, can help create a robust database which will
   ultimately benefit you
 • PE Pool-specific data will elevate our advocacy for you in the marketplace
 • Using renewal submission data (i.e., no extra work on your end, hopefully)
 • Casualty, Workers’ Comp and Property – loss and exposure data

Proprietary and Confidential: This database will be proprietary and the individual 
data will NOT be shared with anyone outside of the Alliant “engineers”
 • Aggregate analysis of the database (trends, development patterns, etc.) will be
   used by our actuaries to our clients’ benefit in pricing and structuring exercises
 • Benchmarking will be made available to clients as well (aggregate basis)
 • Client will need to sign a “Data Use” Agreement to grant us permission (you are
   in the driver’s seat)

A Powerful Tool: The power of this data in the pricing and structuring exercise 
cannot be under- stated
 • It will help formulate strategy and approach to the pricing and structuring for
   our clients
 • It will help “move the needle” on pricing negotiations with market
 • It will demonstrate the performance of pools vs insurance industry data

© 2022 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. All rights reserved. www.alliant.com
 

Page 151 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item E. 
 

GENERAL RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 

INFORMATION ITEM 
 
 

ISSUE: The floor will be open to the Board for discussion. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: None. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: Previously titled “Round Table Discussion”, this item has historically been placed 
at the end of Committee and Board meetings as an opportunity for a member to discuss a topic of interest 
or seek guidance and input from the group about a current issue, risk management topic or exposure 
the member is facing. Often there is little or no discussion, while with other groups this item has led to 
very valuable discussions and interest from the members.  
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): ERMA Legal Alert re extended EPL statute and best practices  
 
  

 
Page 152 of 417



Legal Alert

Reminder of Extended Time for Employees to
Pursue FEHA Claims

You may recall learning of AB 9, which lengthened the time for
employees to pursue common discrimination claims and went into
effect January 1, 2020. Employers are now starting to see the
effects of the extended time and starting to receive older
claims. Employers should be mindful of the extended time and take
important steps to address the potential of defending allegations of
conduct several years old. 

Prior to January 1, 2020, an employee alleging harassment,
discrimination, or other claims under the California Fair Employment
and Housing Act (“FEHA”) had one year from the alleged act to file a
complaint with the Department of Fair Employment and Housing
(“DFEH”). Filing such a complaint is a prerequisite to filing a civil
action. The employee can either request that the DFEH immediately
issue a Right to Sue Notice or can opt to have the DFEH investigate
the claim, which can take a year or even much longer. The employee
will receive a Right to Sue Notice at the conclusion of the DFEH’s
investigation. The employee has one year to file a lawsuit after a
Right to Sue Notice is issued.
 
AB 9, also known as the Stop Harassment and Reporting Extension
(SHARE) Act, extended the one-year deadline to file a DFEH
complaint to three years. Because an employee has one year to file a
lawsuit after receiving the Right to Suit Notice, employees now have
a least four years after any alleged harassing, retaliatory or
discriminatory conduct, including any alleged failure to accommodate
a disability or violation of the California Family Rights Act (“CFRA”),
to file a lawsuit. Given how overburdened the California Courts are,
once a civil action is filed it will likely take several more years to fully
litigate and get to a trial or final disposition. This means there could

 
Page 153 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



easily be six, seven or even more years between the alleged conduct
at issue and a trial, placing employers in a difficult defense
position. Employers will find themselves having to piece together
documents, evidence, and witness statements long after key
witnesses have left, memories have faded, and helpful documents
are gone.

The shorter statute of limitations also served to put employers on
earlier notice of potential unlawful conduct, which allowed them to
remedy the misconduct in a timely manner. Now, employers may not
be aware of the alleged conduct until years later. 

The AB 9 extension was purportedly designed to protect #MeToo
litigants but extends to all forms of discrimination, harassment, and
retaliation prohibited by FEHA. Former Governor Jerry Brown had
vetoed the same legislation in 2018, reasoning that the one-year
statute of limitations “not only encourages prompt resolution while
memories and evidence are fresh, but also ensures that unwelcome
behavior is promptly reported and halted.”

AB 9 did not revive claims that had already lapsed under the prior
one-year rule, nor did it extend the three-year period for conduct
that occurred prior to the enactment of AB 9 (e.g., if the alleged
conduct took place on December 1, 2019, the individual only had
until December 1, 2020, to file a complaint with the DFEH, as
opposed to if the underlying conduct took place on January 1, 2020,
in which case the individual would have until January 1, 2023, to file
a complaint with the DFEH).

Although the general rule is now that employees must file a
complaint with the DFEH within three years of alleged unlawful
conduct, there is also an exception called the Continuing Violation
Doctrine which could extend the statute of limitations even
further. Generally, if an employee can prove alleged harassing
conduct was part of a pattern of actions similar in kind, conduct
outside the normal limitation period may also be actionable.

What You Can Do Given the Continued Increase in Delayed
Claims:

Implement a policy that requires a longer records retention
period.
Back up and retain emails and other data as long as possible.
Take extensive contemporaneous notes of all employee related
issues, knowing that a case could develop later down the road
after memories have faded. 
Collect thorough signed witness statements at the time of
incidents as witnesses may be long gone by the time the action

 
Page 154 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



is brought.
Document in greater detail all performance reviews,
counselings, write-ups, warnings and disciplinary notices.
Ensure that all supervisors and employees are properly trained
on anti-harassment and discrimination policies, as well as
complaint procedures, and that managers understand the
potential of delayed claims.

The information in this legal alert was provided by Jackson Lewis.

Visit ERMA Website

Sedgwick | 1750 Creekside Oaks Drive, Suite 200, Sacramento, CA 95833

Unsubscribe answers@yorkrisk.com

About Constant Contact

Sent byermatraining@sedgwick.comin collaboration
with

Try email marketing for free today!

 
Page 155 of 417

http://www.ermajpa.org
http://www.constantcontact.com/legal/about-constant-contact
mailto:ermatraining@sedgwick.com
http://www.constantcontact.com/index.jsp?cc=nge&rmc=VF21_CPE&pn=ROVING&nav=7679a7db-6409-4c09-8056-00e9e52c3fb3
http://www.constantcontact.com/index.jsp?cc=nge&rmc=VF21_CPE&pn=ROVING&nav=7679a7db-6409-4c09-8056-00e9e52c3fb3
mbeverly
Highlight



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item F.4. 
 

SUMMARY OF THE MARCH 24, 2022 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
ACTIONS TAKEN: 
 
 Actuarial Studies 

 Workers’ Compensation Program - reviewed and recommended the Draft study to be finalized. 

 Liability Program - reviewed and recommended the Draft study to be finalized. 
 
 
 Workers’ Compensation Program 

 Annual Banking Plan Adjustments - recommended a 35% return of available equity or 20% 
assessment for members above or below the target benchmark. 

 Shared Risk Plan Adjustment - recommended a 25% return of equity for members above the 
target benchmark. 

 FY 21/22 Deposit Premium - recommended maintain funding at the 80% CL with 40% cap. 
 
 
 Liability Program 

 Annual Banking Plan Adjustments - recommended a 35% return of available equity or 20% 
assessment for members above or below the target benchmark. 

 Annual Shared Risk Plan Adjustments - recommended no refund and no assessment needed if 
maintain funding at 80% CL. 

 FY 21/22 Deposit Premium - recommended maintaining funding at the 80% CL. Traditional cap 
of 30% results in too much re-allocation, reviewed cap of 40% and will present options to adjust 
the cap as needed to ensure capped members contribute to their Banking Layer.    
  

 Sedgwick Workers’ Compensation Claims Administration Services Renewal Proposal 

 The Committee recommended approval of a one-year renewal with two optional years, with an 
updated performance plan. Progress will be assessed at the September EC and October Board 
meetings, with feedback from Service Provider surveys and possible audit.  
 

  

 
Page 156 of 417



Northern CA Cities
Self Insurance
Fund (NCCSIF)

ANNUAL REPORT

Covering all spectrums of risk since 1979 |  916.850.7300 |  prismrisk.gov 
Page 157 of 417



Greetings,

PRISM strongly believes in using innovative ways to find solutions to the issues affecting our members. It has been said
before, but the past few years have been a challenge—from the hard insurance market to the global pandemic. As a
group, PRISM’s members, committee members, and staff have used creative ways create better outcomes.

We do more than deal with losses and premiums, PRISM works with members to face today’s challenges. Take the
pandemic for example: trainings, resources, and a dedicated webpage were created and curated for members enabling
many to find the needed information quickly as well as work together to find solutions.

When it comes to the hard market, we’ve worked tirelessly to engineer options for coverage, leading to a 99% retention
rate at renewal. PRISM continues to look for opportunities in adversity that will positively impact members for years to
come.

Highlights

Through declared dividends, PRISM’s Dental Program returned $7M to its members and the PWC program
returned $2M to its members.

Retained 99% of members at renewal of the programs.

Created new services and resources, such as: PRISM Perspectives Podcast, landing pages for COVID-19, Law
Enforcement, Wildfire resources and Employment resources. Updated Insurance Requirements in Contracts
manual, Risk Simplified, and an updated Schools Liability Handbook.

Developed a distance learning POST certified course on De-Escalation, which has been viewed by over 2,400 law
enforcement officers.

We continue to shield you from insurance market swings and minimize risk & uncertainty.

Our Captive, PRISM Affiliate Risk Captive (ARC), continues to create immediate and long-term savings as well as
serves as a superior risk transfer mechanism.

PRISM was formed as a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) in 1979, pursuant to Article 1, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1, of the
California Government Code (Section 6500 et seq.). Dedicated to the control of losses and cost-effective risk
management solutions, PRISM is a recognized leader and pioneer in the pooling and risk management community in
California and nationwide.

We encourage you to share this information with your governing bodies or others interested in your participation in PRISM.

Regards,

Rick Brush, Chief Member Services Officer

2021/22 Annual Report - Northern CA Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF)

Covering all spectrums of risk since 1979 |  916.850.7300 |  prismrisk.gov 
Page 158 of 417



You're partnered with the 
leader in member-directed 
risk management.

55
of California's counties
enjoy PRISM membership.

20
miscellaneous / ancillary
group-purchase options.

2.0K
public entities participating
overall.

42
years of working with you
and other organizations.

9
major coverage programs to
meet your needs.

2021/22 Annual Report - Northern CA Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF)

Covering all spectrums of risk since 1979 |  916.850.7300 |  prismrisk.gov 
Page 159 of 417



We are one of the largest 
pools in the nation. 
Our major programs 
represent:

    

Our innovative and
successful approach 
has been noticed across 
the state.

Financial Reporting &
Budgeting Awards ACFR
1994-2020, PAFR 1998-
2019, Budget 2011-2021

Compliance with AGRiP
Advisory Standards

2013-2023

Accredited with
Excellence
1989-2022

1.242
Premium

B 57
Payroll

B 1.5
Daily Attendance

M 77.9
Total Insured Val.

B 124
Covered Lives

K

2021/22 Annual Report - Northern CA Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF)

Covering all spectrums of risk since 1979 |  916.850.7300 |  prismrisk.gov 
Page 160 of 417



Having built long-term and enduring relationships
with members, brokers and reinsurers, we’ve been
able to mitigate the impact of the hard insurance
market. Be on the lookout for the “Now’s the best
time to be part of a Pool!” video expected in March
2022. In the meantime, experience the nostalgia of
EIA’s State of the Market message, which in many
ways still applies today.

View PRISM’s State of Hard Market message

Read more about the state of the market and
information you can use to communicate to your
stakeholders.

General Liability 1

General Liability 2

Property

Cyber

Pollution

2021/22 Annual Report - Northern CA Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF)

Covering all spectrums of risk since 1979 |  916.850.7300 |  prismrisk.gov 
Page 161 of 417

https://vimeo.com/364125290
https://www.prismrisk.gov/coverages/communicating-the-state-of-the-hard-market-talking-points-gl1/
https://www.prismrisk.gov/coverages/communicating-the-state-of-the-market-talking-points-gl2/
https://www.prismrisk.gov/coverages/communicating-the-state-of-the-market-talking-points-property/
https://www.prismrisk.gov/coverages/communicating-the-state-of-the-hard-market-talking-points-cyber/
https://www.prismrisk.gov/coverages/communicating-the-state-of-the-market-pollution/


Let's break that down 
by coverage

The Primary General Liability (PGL) program was dissolved into the GL1 program effective 7/1/2018.

Over the past five years, 
members have saved

Excess Workers' Compensation
$169M

General Liability 1
$103M

PRISMHealth
$97M

General Liability 2
$90M

Property
$69M

Primary Workers' Compensation
$34M

Medical Malpractice
$16M

Primary General Liability
$1M

$579M

2021/22 Annual Report - Northern CA Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF)

Covering all spectrums of risk since 1979 |  916.850.7300 |  prismrisk.gov 
Page 162 of 417



How are the premium
comparisons computed?

In the report, we compare the premiums your agency paid to PRISM to what it would likely cost to purchase
similar coverage and services on your own, or what is referred to as the "stand-alone" premium. Except for
the Primary Workers' Compensation, the stand-alone premium estimates are market based projections. For
Primary Workers' Compensation, the program costs are compared to the cost to self-insure at various
confidence levels. Factors such as the entity's size, retention, type of exposures, location, and/or the
coverage being purchased has an impact on the estimated stand-alone projection. Below is a summary of the
analysis that was done to derive the stand-alone projections as well as the various factors that influence the
estimated projections:

PWC Program premiums are compared to the cost to self-insure developed from an
actuarial projection to fund at an 80% confidence level.

EWC

Insurance market projection based on actual quotes received by Alliant for similar
public entity risks, ranging from 15% below market for schools and ranging from 10-
35% below market pricing depending on the type of exposure (county, city, or other)
and SIR levels.

GL1

Insurance market projection based on actual quotes received by Alliant for similar
public entity risks, with 20% below market for schools and 15-20% below market
pricing depending on the type of exposure (county, city, or other). For those members
previously in the deductible buy down program, the premium is compared to the cost
to self-insure developed from an actuarial projection to fund at a 80% confidence
level.

GL2
Insurance market projection based on actual quotes received by Alliant for similar
public entity risks, at approximately 20%-25% below market pricing depending on the
entity's size and type of exposure (county or city).

Medical Malpractice
Insurance market projection based on actual quotes received by Alliant for similar
public entity risks, at approximately 15% below market pricing depending on the size
of the county and whether the member has a low deductible or higher SIR.

Property

Insurance market projection based on actual All Risk and Earthquake quotes received
by Alliant for similar public entity risks, ranging from 10 - 25% on an individual
member basis below market pricing depending on size of the entity. Size of the entity
is measured by total insured values, type of exposure (county, city, school or other),
and if earthquake coverage is purchased, and the earthquake zone of the covered
location.

PRISMHealth Insurance market projection based on medical and pharmacy trends including
insurance company margins for contingencies and profit.

2021/22 Annual Report - Northern CA Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF)

Covering all spectrums of risk since 1979 |  916.850.7300 |  prismrisk.gov 
Page 163 of 417



Your savings with PRISM 
in 2021/22

$693,841

COVERAGE PRISM PREMIUM EST. STAND-ALONE PREMIUM SAVINGS

Excess Workers' Compensation $1,982,404 $2,676,245 $693,841

Total Savings $1,982,404 $2,676,245 $693,841

2021/22 Annual Report - Northern CA Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF)

Covering all spectrums of risk since 1979 |  916.850.7300 |  prismrisk.gov 
Page 164 of 417



5 Year Savings Breakdown 
2017/18 - 2021/22

Excess Workers' Compensation

YEAR PRISM PREMIUM EST. STAND-ALONE PREMIUM SAVINGS

2017/18 $1,440,433 $1,685,707 $245,274

2018/19 $1,526,767 $1,805,174 $278,407

2019/20 $1,668,873 $2,185,729 $516,856

2020/21 $1,457,705 $1,905,483 $447,778

2021/22 $1,982,404 $2,676,245 $693,841

Total Savings $8,076,182 $10,258,338 $2,182,156

2021/22 Annual Report - Northern CA Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF)

Covering all spectrums of risk since 1979 |  916.850.7300 |  prismrisk.gov 
Page 165 of 417



Want to save more? 
We can help with that

You could benefit from these additional coverages.

PRISMHealth
Know your Healthcare alternatives! Explore the PRISMHealth program and create healthcare options
tailored to the needs of your organization, while benefitting from pooled risk sharing renewals!

General Liability 1
Along with the our Excess Workers' Compensation Program, our GL1 Program is a PRISM flagship
Program that provides excess general liability coverage on a broad coverage form.  Members have the
choice of self-insured retentions ranging from $100k to $2M. The program also offers a deductible buy-
down program within the coverage structure which provides a $10k deductible option.  Members also
benefit from a host of risk control, claims, and risk management services.

Property
Benefit from the economies of scale with one of the largest group purchased property placements in
the world, the PRISM Property Program provides the protection you need from physical damage to
property. The coverages range from “All Risk" perils to Boiler & Machinery, and from Flood (included
automatically) to Earthquake and Auto Physical Damage for vehicles (which are both optional).

2021/22 Annual Report - Northern CA Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF)

Covering all spectrums of risk since 1979 |  916.850.7300 |  prismrisk.gov 
Page 166 of 417



We also offer additional 
services for members

Our Member Services are constantly evolving to respond to and meet your needs. Don't see what you need?
Give us a call and we'll see what we can do. We're here to find solutions!

Risk Managment Risk Control Claims

Actuarial Analysis

Subsidies for Loss
Prevention & Risk
Management needs

Real & Personal Property
Appraisals

Certificate of Insurance
Management

Pre-Employment
Background Checks

Legal Advice

Crisis Incident
Management and
Communications

Risk Management 101
Courses

Crisis Incident Counseling

Enterprise Risk Consultants

Strategic Planning
Facilitation

Classroom, Onsite &
Regional Training

Cyber Security Training

Safety Data Sheet
Management

Risk Assessment Tool

Law Enforcement
Resources

Employer Pull Notice
Program

Drug & Alcohol Monitoring
Consortium

Risk Control Toolbox

PRISM TV

Timekeeping Checkpoint
System

24/7 Nurse Triage Services

Return to Work Program

Claim Audits

Claim System Ultilization

ISO Claims Search

Medicare Reporting
Services

Medical Provider Network

Express Scripts Pharmacy
Benefits Managment

Catastrophic Claims
Management

2021/22 Annual Report - Northern CA Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF)

Covering all spectrums of risk since 1979 |  916.850.7300 |  prismrisk.gov 
Page 167 of 417

https://www.prismrisk.gov/services/risk-management/crisis-incident-management/
https://www.prismrisk.gov/services/risk-control/partner-programs/cyber-security-training/
https://www.prismrisk.gov/resources/law-enforcement-resources/
https://www.prismrisk.gov/services/risk-control/toolbox/


Member Spotlights
Nevada County:
Safety & Security Plan for Board of Supervisors Meetings

In 2021, when members of the public attempted to physically disrupt a Nevada County virtual Board of
Supervisors meeting, the situation became chaotic—a security guard was assaulted, people tried to access
the board chambers and other physical spaces of the building. 

The County decided this situation called for event security planning 

Read about the EAGLE Award winning plan to ensure the safety of all public meeting attendees at Nevada
County.

California Fair Services Authority:
Fairs in the Time of Covid

Over the course of the past few years, we’ve all made changes, including the California Fair Services
Authority (CFSA). With fairs throughout the state shut down, the members of CFSA needed to make changes
to keep their businesses rolling. 

A specialized set of guidelines, dubbed the COVID-19 Exposure Control Plan (ECP), was created by CFSA to
help their members adapt to the intricacies of COVID-19 pandemic, and keep their business going. 

Read more about this EAGLE Award Winner’s efforts to adapt to the times and keep businesses open and
productive during the COVID-19 pandemic.

2021/22 Annual Report - Northern CA Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF)

Covering all spectrums of risk since 1979 |  916.850.7300 |  prismrisk.gov 
Page 168 of 417

https://www.prismrisk.gov/about-prism/blog/nevada-countys-safety-security-plan-for-board-of-supervisors-meetings/
https://www.prismrisk.gov/about-prism/blog/fairs-in-the-time-of-covid/


Have your voice heard. 
Your participation is key.

Member involvement is critical to PRISM's success. Be a part of the decision-making process and have your
voice heard.

Getting Started
Committees go through an election process once a year in the fall to nominate potential candidates.
Appointments are then made by the Executive Committee in December. If you're interested in becoming
a committee member, look for and submit the nomination form this fall. Contact a staff member to learn
more about joining a committee.

The organizational chart depicts the governance structure of PRISM and the relationship between the members, the Board of Directors and the committees.

2021/22 Annual Report - Northern CA Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF)

Covering all spectrums of risk since 1979 |  916.850.7300 |  prismrisk.gov 
Page 169 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item G. 
 

FY 22/23 NORCAL CITIES EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  
ROTATION & OFFICERS  

 
INFORMATION ITEM 

 
ISSUE: Membership on the NCCSIF EC rotates annually, and each Member serves a two-year term. 
NCCSIF Officers are selected from the EC or Board as needed. The July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023, term 
for the Executive Committee will include the following Members: 
 

FY 22/23 NCCSIF Executive Committee 
 

 
Member 

 
Representative 

Term of Office 
New Second Year Term 

City of Anderson Liz Cottrell July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2024 

City of Auburn Nathan Bagwill July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2024 

City of Corning  Kristina Miller  July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023 

City of Dixon Rachel Ancheta July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2024 

City of Elk Gove Kara Reddig July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023 

City of Ione Michael Rock  July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023 

City of Red Bluff Sandra Ryan                          July 1, 2022, to June 30,2023 

City of Rocklin Andrew Schiltz July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2024 

City of Yuba City Spencer Morrison July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023 

 
The current Officers are as follows: 

 
President Dave Warren October 29, 2020, to June 30, 2022 

Vice President Jose Jasso October 29, 2020, to June 30, 2022 

Secretary Jennifer Styczynski June 1, 2020, to June 30, 2022 

Treasurer (non-voting) Jen Lee Appointed annually 
(Appointed until June 30, 2022) 

CJPRMA Rep (non-voting) Elizabeth 
Ehrenstrom  

Appointed as needed 

 
RECOMMENDATION: None – Information Only.  

 
 

 
Page 170 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item G. (continued) 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None. 
 
BACKGROUND: The Executive Committee is a standing committee of the Board of Directors and is 
comprised of seven to eleven voting members, and two non-voting members. The President of the Board 
of Directors serves as the Chair of the Executive Committee. The President, Vice-President, Secretary, 
and seven to eight other Directors act as the voting members, so at times their number has varied from 
seven to nine. The two non-voting members are the Treasurer and the Representative to the CJPRMA 
Board of Directors. 
 
Historically, the newly elected officers (President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer) are 
nominated by the Executive Committee (acting as the Nominating Committee). The officers are usually 
chosen from the Executive Committee and are elected by the Board for a two-year term. The President 
is usually selected from the second-year Members (often the current Vice President) and the Vice 
President is generally selected from the first-year members. 
 
The Secretary is elected by the Board and serves a two-year term. The Treasurer is appointed annually 
by the Board and the CJPRMA Representative is appointed on an as-needed basis. 
 
Rotating Off EC 6/30/2022 Rotating on EC 7/1/2022 Remaining EC for another year 
Jackson – Yvonne Kimball Auburn- Nathan Bagwill Corning – Kristina Miller  
Marysville – Jennifer Styczynski  Anderson- Liz Cottrell   Elk Grove – Kara Reddig 
Placerville- Dave Warren  Dixon- Rachel Ancheta   Ione-Michael Rock  
 Rocklin – Andy Schiltz  Red Bluff- Sandy Ryan  
  Yuba City – Spencer Morrison 

 
Section 5 of the NCCSIF Bylaws describes the duties and responsibilities of the Officers of the Authority. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Section 4 and Section 5 of the NCCSIF Bylaws 

2. Executive Committee Rotation Schedule 2019 - 2025 

  

 
Page 171 of 417



BOD Approved: 12/14/2017
Revised: 1/1612020

Member Size Geography FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 23/24 FY 24/25 FY 25/26

Elk Grove, City of Large South x x

Folsom, City of Large East x x x x

Lincoln, City of Large East x x x

Rocklin, City of Large East x x

Yuba City, City of Large North x x

Anderson, City of Medium West x x

Auburn, City of Medium East x x

Corning, City of Medium West x x

Dixon, City of Medium South x x

Galt, City of Medium South x x x

Gridley, City of Medium North x x x

Marysville, City of Medium North x x

Oroville, City of Medium North x x x

Paradise, Town of Medium North x x x

Placerville, City of Medium East x x

Red Bluff, City of Medium West x x x

Rio Vista, City of Medium South x x x x

Colusa, City of Small West x x

Ione, City of Small South x x

Jackson, City of Small South x x x x

Nevada City, City of Small North x x x x

Willows, City of Small West x x

8 8 8 9 8 9 8

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND
2019 - 2025 Executive Committee Rotation Schedule by Size

 
Page 172 of 417

jwirkner
Highlight

jwirkner
Highlight

jwirkner
Highlight

jwirkner
Highlight

jwirkner
Highlight

jwirkner
Highlight

jwirkner
Highlight

jwirkner
Highlight

jwirkner
Highlight



 

 
3 

 E. All meetings of the Board shall be called, noticed, held and conducted in accordance 
with the provisions of Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code Section 54950 et seq.). 
 
 SECTION 4  
 Executive Committee 
 
 A. - Membership.  The Executive Committee shall be composed of seven to eleven (7 to 11) 
voting and two (2) non-voting members of the Board of Directors or their alternates.  The President, 
Vice President and Secretary shall serve as voting members on the Executive Committee.  The 
remaining voting members shall be elected by the Board of Directors on a member rotation basis, as 
established by the Board of Directors.  The two (2) non-voting members shall be comprised of the 
Treasurer and the CJPRMA Board Representative.  The President shall act as Chairman. 
 
 B. - Term.  The terms of all members of the Executive Board shall be two (2) years, except 
for those of the President, Vice President, and Secretary, who shall all serve for two (2) years 
irrespective of the member rotation.  A member may be reappointed to serve on the Executive 
Committee, except for the immediate Past President.   
 
 C. - Powers, Duties and Responsibilities.   
 
  1. The Executive Committee shall conduct, direct and supervise the day-to-day 
business of the Authority and in doing so shall exercise the powers expressly granted to it by the 
Agreement, these Bylaws and as otherwise delegated by the Board of Directors. 
 
  2. The following duties and responsibilities shall be assumed and carried out by 
the Executive Committee, which shall have all powers necessary for those purposes: 
 
   a. Provide general supervision and direction to the Program Director; 
 
   b. Authorize payment of claims against the Authority; provided, 
however, that with respect to claims arising under coverage programs operated by the Authority, 
claim settlement authority shall be in accordance with the policies and procedures governing the 
particular program; 
 
   c. Enter into contracts, within budget limits; 
 
   d. Make payments pursuant to previously authorized contracts, within 
budget limits; this Authority includes the power to authorize and reimburse expenses incurred for 
budgeted activities, within budget limits; 
 
   e.   Review and recommend a budget to the Board no later than seventy-
two (72) hours prior to the spring meeting of the Board;  
 
   f. Act as Program Director in the absence of the Program Director; 
 

 
Page 173 of 417



 

 
4 

   g. Recommend policies and procedures to the Board for implementation 
of the Agreement, the Bylaws and the operation of specific coverage programs; and 
 
   h. Appoint a nominating committee for each election of officers and 
members of the Executive Committee. 
 
   i. Amend annual budget in an amount not to exceed the contingency 
account.  
 
  3.  Subject only to such limitations as are expressly stated in the Agreement, these 
Bylaws or a resolution of the Board of Directors, the Executive Committee shall have and be entitled 
to exercise all powers which may be reasonably implied from powers expressly granted and which 
are reasonably necessary to conduct, direct and supervise the business of the Authority. 
 
 D. - Meetings 
 
  1. Regular Meetings.  Regular meetings shall be held at times, as the Executive 
Committee deems appropriate. 
 
  2. Special Meetings.  Special meetings of the Executive Committee may be 
called by the Chairman or a majority of Executive Committee members, in accordance with the 
provisions of California Government Code Section 54956. 
 
  3. Public Meetings.  All meetings of the Executive Committee shall be open to 
the public, except as provided by law. 
 
  4. Quorum.  A majority of the members of the Executive Committee shall 
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.  Except as otherwise provided, no action may be 
taken by the Executive Committee except by affirmative vote of not less than a majority of those 
Executive Committee members present.  A smaller number may adjourn a meeting. 
 
  5. Removal From Executive Committee.  A member may be removed from the 
Executive Committee in the following ways: 
 
   a. Death of a Committee member;  
 
   b. Voluntary resignation; 
 
   c. Absence from three (3) consecutive meetings without a valid reason, 
in which case the Chair may recommend to the Executive Committee that member be terminated 
from Executive Committee membership.  If the Executive Committee recommends to the Board of 
Directors that an Executive Committee member be terminated, the Board of Directors shall vote on 
the matter at its next regularly scheduled meeting. 
 
   d. When a vacancy occurs under the above provisions, a replacement 
shall be made from among the Board of Directors. 

 
Page 174 of 417



 

 
5 

 
 SECTION 5 
 Officers of the Authority 
 
 A. The officers of the Authority shall be a President, Vice President, Secretary, and 
Treasurer. Officers so appointed shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.  The president 
shall chair meetings to the Board of Directors and Executive Committee; the vice president shall act 
in the place of the president in the president's absence.  The secretary shall keep and maintain minutes 
of the Board meetings and Executive Committee meetings, or to direct the keeping and maintaining 
of such minutes, and to promptly report minutes of meetings to all members as soon as practicable 
after the meeting has concluded.  The treasurer's duties are as described in Sections 11 and 12 of the 
Bylaws.  Other responsibilities may be set forth by the Board of Directors. 
 
 B.  The President, Vice President and Secretary shall be elected by the Board of Directors 
and shall serve two (2) year terms.  No officer shall serve for more than two (2) complete consecutive 
terms in his or her respective office.  The terms of each office will ordinarily commence on July 1st 
of each calendar year, except that if an election has not been conducted by that date, the terms shall 
commence as soon as the election has been held.  The terms of each office shall end on June 30th of 
the calendar year, except that if the election of the officers to serve the next succeeding term has not 
been conducted, the incumbent officers shall continue to hold their offices until the election has been 
conducted.   
 
 C. The Treasurer shall be appointed annually by the Board of Directors and, unless the 
Board of Directors determines otherwise, the Treasurer shall serve at the Board of Directors' pleasure.  
The Treasurer shall be an officer or employee of a Member Entity or a Certified Public Accountant. 
 
 D. The Board of Directors may create such other offices and appoint such other officers 
as it deems necessary and advisable.   
 
 SECTION 6 
 Committees 
 
Committees may be formed as necessary by either the Board of Directors or the Executive Committee 
for the purposes of overseeing any functions that the Board or Executive Committee has authority to 
control, such as, but not limited to, administration and policy direction, claims administration, 
investments, safety/loss control, etc.   
 
 SECTION 7 
 Program Director and Other Staff 
 
 A.  The Board of Directors shall appoint a Program Director who shall be responsible for 
the general administration of the business and activities of the Authority as directed by the Executive 
Committee. 
 

 
Page 175 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.1. 
 

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT 
FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 
ACTION ITEM 

 
 

ISSUE: The Board receives a quarterly report on the financial status of NCCSIF. James Marta from 
James Marta & Company will present NCCSIF’s Financials for the Quarter ending December 31, 2021, 
to the Board. 
 
The report also provides individual member Banking Layer financial reports, including a Combining 
Statement of Net Position and a Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Position for both the Workers’ Compensation and Liability Programs. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file the Quarterly Financials as presented. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
 
BACKGROUND: Each quarter the Board reviews the quarterly financials for accuracy and refers 
questions for follow-up or receives and files the report as presented. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Quarterly Financial Report for Period Ending December 31, 2021 
 
  

 
Page 176 of 417



FINANCIAL REPORT

DECEMBER 31, 2021
AND FOR THE

SIX MONTHS THEN ENDED

 
Page 177 of 417



Northern California Cities
Self Insurance Fund

 
Page 178 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
Table of Contents 
December 31, 2021

Accountant’s Compilation Report         1
     

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Net Position         2

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position         3         

Statement of Cash Flows         4         

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Combining Statement of Net Position – Liability         5

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position – Liability         8         

Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Liability        11        

Combining Statement of Net Position – Workers’ Compensation        14

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position – Workers’ Compensation                17

        
Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Workers’ Compensation        20        

Reconciliation of Claims Liabilities by Program          23
   

Graphical Summary of Claims                    24

Budget to Actual        26

Notes to the Budget to Actual        30

Risk Management Reserves Current Usage Report        31

Police Risk Management Grants Current Usage Report        32

 
Page 179 of 417



James Marta & Company LLP
            Certified Public Accountants

                Accounting, Auditing, Tax, and Consulting

701 Howe Avenue Suite E3, Sacramento, California  95825
Phone: (916) 993-9494    Fax: (916) 993-9489    jmarta@jpmcpa.com     www.jpmcpa.com

1

ACCOUNTANT’S COMPILATION REPORT

Board of Directors
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3
Sacramento, CA 95825

Management is responsible for the accompanying statement of financial position of Northern California Cities 
Self Insurance Fund as of December 31, 2021, and the related statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net 
position and statement of cash flows for the six months then ended and the related notes to the financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
performed a compilation engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review 
Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. We did not audit or 
review the financial statements nor were we required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or the 
completeness of the information provided by management. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a 
conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on these financial statements.

Management has omitted substantially all of the disclosures that accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. If the omitted 
disclosures were included in the financial statements, they might influence the user’s conclusions about the 
company’s financial position, results of operations, comprehensive income and cash flows. Accordingly, the 
financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed about such matters.

The supplementary information on pages 5 through 32 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The information is the representation of management. The 
information was subject to our compilation engagement; however, we have not audited or reviewed the 
information and, accordingly, do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance on such 
information.

Management has elected to present designations of net position on the Statement of Net Position as of December 
31, 2021 contrary to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America which bar the 
presentation of designations of net position on the Statement of Net Position.

We are not independent with respect to Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund since we provide 
accounting, financial and management services.

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
February 14, 2022

 
Page 180 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 2

Current Assets

   Cash and Cash Equivalents  $             14,330,517 

   Accounts Receivable                         2,323 

   Interest Receivable                     240,481 

   Excess Accounts Receivable                     990,051 

   Prepaid Expense                   5,129,986 

Total Current Assets                 20,693,358 

Non-Current Assets

   Investments*                 65,095,205 

Total Assets  $             85,788,563 

Current Liabilities

   Accounts Payable  $                  102,104 

   Unearned Revenue                   7,781,646 

Total Current Liabilities                   7,883,750 

Non-Current Liabilities

   Outstanding Liabilities*                 50,482,568 

   ULAE*                   2,063,070 

Total Non-Current Liabilities                 52,545,638 

Total Liabilities  $             60,429,388 

Net Position

   Designated for Contingency                     200,000 

   Designated for Risk Management                   1,059,900 

   Undesignated                 24,099,276 

Total Net Position                 25,359,176 

Liability & Net Position  $             85,788,563 

*For internal reporting purposes, investments and claim liabilities are classified as non-current.

Assets

Liabilities & Net Position

 
Page 181 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 3

Operating Income

   Administration Deposit  $                  717,076 

   Banking Layer Deposit                   4,863,712 

   Shared Risk Layer                   3,573,000 

   Excess Deposit/Premium                   2,894,104 

   Property/Crime Insurance Income                   2,240,792 

   Risk Management Grants                     563,898 

   Other Income                       29,012 

Total Operating Income                 14,830,259 

Operating Expenses

   Claims Paid                   4,894,593 

   O/S Liability adj.                   1,955,311 

   ULAE                       42,005 

   Consultants                       35,472 

   Safety Service                     188,708 

   Claims Administration                     670,347 

   Program Administration                     238,519 

   Excess Insurance                   2,806,342 

   Property/Crime Insurance Expense                   2,231,455 

Total Operating Expenses                 13,075,368 

Operating Income (Loss)                   1,754,891 

Non-Operating Income

   Change in Fair Market Value                    (847,053)

   Investment Income                     472,291 

Total Non-Operating Income                    (374,762)

Change in Net Position                   1,380,129 

Beginning Net Position                 23,979,047 

Ending Net Position  $             25,359,176 

 
Page 182 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 4

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from members 19,396,515$          

Cash paid for claims (4,978,833)            

Cash paid for insurance (10,090,099)          

Cash paid to vendors (1,096,359)            

Cash (paid) received for dividends 403,654                

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3,634,878             

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment income received 476,836                

Purchases of investments (23,439,237)          

Proceeds from sale or maturity of investments 15,456,235           

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (7,506,166)            

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,871,288)            

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 18,201,805           

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 14,330,517$          

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash

   provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 1,754,891$           

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

   cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in:

Member receivable 202,346                

Excess receivable 46,639                 

Prepaid expense (5,129,986)            

(Decrease) increase in:

Accounts payable (3,909)                  

Unearned revenue 4,767,559             

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses 1,997,338             

   Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3,634,878$           

Supplemental information:

Noncash non-operating and investing activities

Net change in fair value of investments (847,053)$             

 
Page 183 of 417



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Selected Information
Substantially All Disclosures Required by Generally Accepted

Accounting Principles Are Not Included

 
Page 184 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Net Position - Liability
December 31, 2021

5
See Accompanying Accountant’s Report

Total

All Layers Admin Layer Shared Layer

Total Banking 

Layer

Current Assets

   Cash and Cash Equivalents  $            4,443,537  $               352,767  $            1,222,590  $            2,868,180 

   Accounts Receivable                       2,244                              -                       2,244                              - 

   Interest Receivable                     68,541                       2,198                     38,924                     27,419 

   Excess Accounts Receivable                   366,868                              -                   366,868                              - 

   Prepaid Expense                4,062,931                              -                4,062,931                              - 

Total Current Assets                8,944,121                   354,965                5,693,557                2,895,599 

Non-Current Assets

   Investments*              17,909,415                   326,082              11,614,238                5,969,095 

Total Assets  $          26,853,536  $               681,047  $          17,307,795  $            8,864,694 

Current Liabilities

   Accounts Payable  $                 26,632  $                 11,153  $                      223  $                 15,256 

   Unearned Revenue                6,983,815                   224,886                5,638,723                1,120,206 

Total Current Liabilities                7,010,447                   236,039                5,638,946                1,135,462 

Non-Current Liabilities

   Outstanding Liabilities*              11,953,106                              -                8,626,016                3,327,090 

Total Non-Current Liabilities              11,953,106                              -                8,626,016                3,327,090 

Total Liabilities  $          18,963,553  $               236,039  $          14,264,962  $            4,462,552 

Net Position

   Designated for Contingency                   100,000                   100,000                              -                              - 

   Undesignated                7,789,983                   345,008                3,042,833                4,402,142 

Total Net Position                7,889,983                   445,008                3,042,833                4,402,142 

Liability & Net Position  $          26,853,536  $               681,047  $          17,307,795  $            8,864,694 

*For internal reporting purposes, investments and claim liabilities are classified as non-current.

 
Page 185 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Net Position - Liability
December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 6

City of

Anderson

City of

Auburn

City of

Colusa

City of

Corning**

City of

Dixon

City of

Folsom

City of

Galt

City of

Gridley

City of

Ione

Current Assets

   Cash and Cash Equivalents  $             11,453  $       269,246  $         60,402  $               3,910  $             10,778  $         1,002,496  $       116,148  $         47,291  $          36,731 

   Accounts Receivable                         -                       -                      -                           -                           -                           -                      -                       -                          - 

   Interest Receivable                      641               1,353                  374                      267                      561                    8,562               1,418                  816                   271 

   Excess Accounts Receivable                         -                         -                      -                           -                           -                           -                      -                       -                        - 

   Prepaid Expense                         -                         -                      -                           -                           -                           -                      -                       -                        - 

Total Current Assets                 12,094           270,599             60,776                   4,177                 11,339             1,011,058           117,566             48,107              37,002 

Non-Current Assets

   Investments*               150,637           175,006             59,306                 85,352               174,851             1,811,124           333,225           197,464              49,428 

Total Assets  $           162,731  $       445,605  $       120,082  $             89,529  $           186,190  $         2,822,182  $       450,791  $       245,571  $          86,430 

Current Liabilities

   Accounts Payable  $                  918  $           1,723  $              517  $                  420  $                  523  $                6,147  $              689  $              720  $               121 

   Unearned Revenue                 20,354             76,081             22,306                  (3,474)                 25,847                354,453             57,838             29,789              16,455 

Total Current Liabilities                 21,272             77,804             22,823                  (3,054)                 26,370                360,600             58,527             30,509              16,576 

Non-Current Liabilities

   Outstanding Liabilities*               252,714           163,184             33,553                 26,707               124,309                735,384             96,454             86,195              52,509 

Total Non-Current Liabilities               252,714           163,184             33,553                 26,707               124,309                735,384             96,454             86,195              52,509 

Total Liabilities  $           273,986  $       240,988  $         56,376  $             23,653  $           150,679  $         1,095,984  $       154,981  $       116,704  $          69,085 

Net Position

   Designated for Contingency                         -                         -                      -                           -                           -                           -                      -                       -                        - 

   Undesignated              (111,255)           204,617             63,706                 65,876                 35,511             1,726,198           295,810           128,867              17,345 

Total Net Position              (111,255)           204,617             63,706                 65,876                 35,511             1,726,198           295,810           128,867              17,345 

Liability & Net Position  $           162,731  $       445,605  $       120,082  $             89,529  $           186,190  $         2,822,182  $       450,791  $       245,571  $          86,430 

*For internal reporting purposes, investments and claim liabilities are classified as non-current.

**City of Corning has a negative Unearned Revenue due to the impact of the capping of the full liability premium.

 
Page 186 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Net Position - Liability
December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 7

City of

Jackson

City of

Lincoln

City of

Marysville

City of

Oroville

City of

Paradise

City of

Red Bluff

City of

Rio Vista

City of

Rocklin

City of

Willows

City of

Yuba City

Current Assets

   Cash and Cash Equivalents  $          14,392  $       220,679  $            171,479  $                 35,682  $          54,808  $           15,461  $              22,542  $           517,425  $             75,445  $       181,812 

    Accounts Receivable                      -                        -                          -                              -                        -                           -                         -                             -                        -                         - 

   Interest Receivable                   459               1,759                    1,420                          988                1,238                    708                         48                   3,350                      356               2,830 

   Excess Accounts Receivable                        -                      -                            -                              -                        -                         -                           -                           -                          -                       - 

   Prepaid Expense                        -                      -                            -                              -                        -                         -                           -                           -                          -                       - 

Total Current Assets              14,851           222,438                172,899                     36,670              56,046               16,169                  22,590               520,775                 75,801           184,642 

Non-Current Assets

   Investments*            137,354           352,762                264,628                   243,991            353,163             211,992                       907               579,962                 42,719           745,224 

Total Assets  $        152,205  $       575,200  $            437,527  $               280,661  $        409,209  $         228,161  $              23,497  $        1,100,737  $           118,520  $       929,866 

Current Liabilities

   Accounts Payable  $                  (6)  $           2,024  $                2,481  $                      497  $               391  $                734  $                   823  $               2,304  $             (8,133)  $           2,363 

   Unearned Revenue                8,693             50,814                  56,176                     40,186              27,539               32,418                  30,268                 99,883                 20,140           154,440 

Total Current Liabilities                8,687             52,838                  58,657                     40,683              27,930               33,152                  31,091               102,187                 12,007           156,803 

Non-Current Liabilities

   Outstanding Liabilities*              10,802           380,534                228,005                   105,366            115,863               82,538                  96,094               196,926                 90,209           449,744 

Total Non-Current Liabilities              10,802           380,534                228,005                   105,366            115,863               82,538                  96,094               196,926                 90,209           449,744 

Total Liabilities  $          19,489  $       433,372  $            286,662  $               146,049  $        143,793  $         115,690  $            127,185  $           299,113  $           102,216  $       606,547 

Net Position

   Designated for Contingency                        -                      -                            -                              -                        -                         -                           -                           -                          -                       - 

   Undesignated            132,716           141,828                150,865                   134,612            265,416             112,471              (103,688)               801,624                 16,304           323,319 

Total Net Position            132,716           141,828                150,865                   134,612            265,416             112,471              (103,688)               801,624                 16,304           323,319 

Liability & Net Position  $        152,205  $       575,200  $            437,527  $               280,661  $        409,209  $         228,161  $              23,497  $        1,100,737  $           118,520  $       929,866 

*For internal reporting purposes, investments and claim liabilities are classified as non-current.

 
Page 187 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Liability
For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report
8

Total

All Layers Admin Layer Shared Layer Total Banking Layer

Operating Income

   Administration Deposit  $                224,886  $            224,886  $                          -  $                                   - 

   Banking Layer Deposit                 1,120,208                            -                              -                        1,120,208 

   Shared Risk Layer                 1,500,000                            -               1,500,000                                       - 

   Excess Deposit/Premium                 1,916,604                            -               1,916,604                                       - 

   CJPRMA Program Fee                               -                            -                              -                                       - 

   Property/Crime Insurance Income                 2,240,792                            -               2,222,120                             18,672 

   Banking Layer Assessment                               -                            -                              -                                       - 

   Shared Risk Refund                               -                            -                              -                                       - 

   Shared Risk Layer Assessment                               -                            -                              -                                       - 

   Banking Layer Refund                    (51,335)                            -                              -                            (51,335)

   Other Income 29,012                   -                         -                           29,012                           

   Excess Insurance Refund -                             -                         -                           -                                    

Total Operating Income                 6,980,167                224,886               5,638,724                        1,116,557 

Operating Expenses

   Claims Paid                    941,201                          -                    491,946                           449,255 

   O/S Liability adj.                    924,358                            -                  790,148                           134,210 

   Consultants                      19,721                  19,721                              -                                       - 

   Safety Service                      65,912                  51,406                    14,506                                       - 

   Claims Administration                    130,876                            -                              -                           130,876 

   Program Administration                    127,473                127,473                              -                                       - 

   Board Expenses                        3,001                    3,001                              -                                       - 

   Excess Insurance                 1,816,971                            -               1,816,971                                       - 

   Property/Crime Insurance Expense                 2,231,455                            -               2,231,455                                       - 

Total Operating Expense                 6,260,968                201,601               5,345,026                           714,341 

Operating Income (Loss)                    719,199                  23,285                  293,698                           402,216 

Non-Operating Income

   Change in Fair Market Value                  (237,378)                   (7,441)                 (133,716)                            (96,221)

   Investment Income                    137,883                    4,585                    79,468                             53,830 

Total Non-Operating Income                    (99,495)                   (2,856)                   (54,248)                            (42,391)

Change in Net Position                    619,704                  20,429                  239,450                           359,825 

Beginning Net Position                 7,270,279                424,579               2,803,383                        4,042,317 

Ending Net Position  $             7,889,983  $            445,008  $           3,042,833  $                    4,402,142 

 
Page 188 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Liability
For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 9

City of

Anderson

City of

Auburn

City of

Colusa

City of

Corning*

City of

Dixon

City of

Folsom

City of

Galt

City of

Gridley

City of

Ione

Operating Income

   Administration Deposit  $                     -    $                      -  $                       -  $                      -  $                       -  $                       -  $                      -  $                        -  $                       - 

   Banking Layer Deposit                 20,354                76,082                 22,305                 (3,474)                 25,848                354,452                 57,838                  29,789                 16,455 

   Shared Risk Layer                         -                            -                           -                          -                           -                           -                          -                            -                           - 

   Excess Deposit/Premium                         -                            -                           -                          -                           -                           -                          -                            -                           - 

   CJPRMA Program Fee                         -                            -                           -                          -                           -                           -                          -                            -                           - 

   Property/Crime Insurance Income                   1,208                          -                           -                  1,208                           -                    8,407                          -                            -                           - 

   Banking Layer Assessment                         -                            -                           -                          -                           -                           -                          -                            -                           - 

   Shared Risk Refund                         -                            -                           -                          -                           -                           -                          -                            -                           - 

   Shared Risk Layer Assessment                         -                            -                           -                          -                           -                           -                          -                            -                           - 

   Banking Layer Refund                         -                            -                           -                          -                           -                           -                          -                            -                           - 

   Other Income -                    2,899                2,178                 -                       4,016                 -                         -                        -                         -                        

   Excess Insurance Refund -                    -                       -                        -                       -                        -                         -                        -                         -                        

Total Operating Income  $             21,562                78,981                 24,483                 (2,266)                 29,864                362,859                 57,838                  29,789                 16,455 

Operating Expenses

   Claims Paid                 69,590                  3,089                   6,407                  3,239                   8,430                  29,456                 18,924                  53,124                   2,947 

   O/S Liability adj.                (54,041)              101,619                (12,876)                 (4,896)                 45,846                199,285                   9,672                 (26,805)                 45,944 

   Consultants                         -                          -                           -                          -                           -                           -                          -                            -                           -   

   Safety Service                         -                            -                           -                          -                           -                           -                          -                            -                           - 

   Claims Administration                   3,419                  8,909                   3,290                  2,682                   2,440                  33,697                   5,264                    4,394                      614 

   Program Administration                         -                            -                           -                          -                           -                           -                          -                            -                           - 

   Board Expenses                         -                            -                           -                          -                           -                           -                          -                            -                           - 

   Excess Insurance                         -                            -                           -                          -                           -                           -                          -                            -                           - 

   Property/Crime Insurance Expense                         -                            -                           -                          -                           -                           -                          -                            -                           - 

Total Operating Expense                 18,968              113,617                  (3,179)                  1,025                 56,716                262,438                 33,860                  30,713                 49,505 

Operating Income (Loss)                   2,594               (34,636)                 27,662                 (3,291)                (26,852)                100,421                 23,978                      (924)                (33,050)

Non-Operating Income

   Change in Fair Market Value                  (2,208)                 (4,696)                  (1,255)                 (1,014)                  (1,992)                (30,236)                 (5,193)                   (2,901)                     (907)

   Investment Income                   1,306                  2,719                      788                     481                   1,053                  16,554                   2,987                    1,603                      540 

Total Non-Operating Income                     (902)                 (1,977)                     (467)                    (533)                     (939)                (13,682)                 (2,206)                   (1,298)                     (367)

Change in Net Position                   1,692               (36,613)                 27,195                 (3,824)                (27,791)                  86,739                 21,772                   (2,222)                (33,417)

Beginning Net Position              (112,947)              241,230                 36,511                69,700                 63,302             1,639,459               274,038                131,089                 50,762 

Ending Net Position  $          (111,255)  $          204,617  $             63,706  $            65,876  $             35,511  $         1,726,198  $           295,810  $            128,867  $             17,345 

*City of Corning has a negative liability Banking Layer contribution due to the impact of the capping of the full premium.

 
Page 189 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Liability
For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 10

City of

Jackson

City of

Lincoln

City of

Marysville

City of

Oroville

City of

Paradise

City of

Red Bluff

City of

Rio Vista

City of

Rocklin

City of

Willows

City of

Yuba City

Operating Income

   Administration Deposit  $                        -  $                       -  $                        -  $                       -  $                          -  $                          -  $                       -  $                       -  $                      -  $                          - 

    Banking Layer Deposit                    8,693                  50,814                  56,176                  40,185                    27,539                    32,419                  30,269                 99,884                 20,140                  154,440 

   Shared Risk Layer                            -                           -                            -                           -                              -                              -                           -                           -                          -                              - 

   Excess Deposit/Premium                            -                           -                            -                           -                              -                              -                           -                           -                          -                              - 

   CJPRMA Program Fee                            -                           -                            -                           -                              -                              -                           -                           -                          -                              - 

   Property/Crime Insurance Income                            -                       604                       604                    1,935                              -                      2,285                           -                   2,421                          -                              - 

   Banking Layer Assessment                            -                           -                            -                           -                              -                              -                           -                           -                          -                              - 

   Shared Risk Refund                            -                           -                            -                           -                              -                              -                           -                           -                          -                              - 

   Shared Risk Layer Assessment                            -                           -                            -                           -                              -                              -                           -                           -                          -                              - 

   Banking Layer Refund                            -                           -                            -                           -                              -                              -                           -                (51,335)                          -                              - 

   Other Income -                         4,016                 2,400                  2,899                 -                           2,899                    3,222                 4,483                 -                        -                           

   Excess Insurance Refund -                         -                         -                         -                         -                           -                           -                         -                        -                        -                           

Total Operating Income                    8,693                  55,434                  59,180                  45,019                    27,539                    37,603                  33,491                 55,453                 20,140                  154,440 

Operating Expenses

   Claims Paid                      (118)                  14,916                  40,114                  66,314                      6,699                    27,012                  15,561                 12,999                 (2,197)                    72,749 

   O/S Liability adj.                    1,506                  69,981                 (78,258)                (85,424)                     (6,278)                   (30,465)                  (8,330)                (37,494)                 40,795                   (35,571)

   Consultants                            -                           -                            -                           -                              -                              -                           -                           -                          -                              - 

   Safety Service                            -                           -                            -                           -                              -                              -                           -                           -                          -                              - 

   Claims Administration                       118                  11,578                  14,158                    3,546                      2,569                      4,160                    5,127                   9,787                   2,197                    12,927 

   Program Administration                            -                           -                            -                           -                              -                              -                           -                           -                          -                              - 

   Board Expenses                            -                           -                            -                           -                              -                              -                           -                           -                          -                              - 

   Excess Insurance                            -                           -                            -                           -                              -                              -                           -                           -                          -                              - 

   Property/Crime Insurance Expense                            -                           -                            -                           -                              -                              -                           -                           -                          -                              - 

Total Operating Expense                    1,506                  96,475                 (23,986)                (15,564)                      2,990                         707                  12,358                (14,708)                 40,795                    50,105 

Operating Income (Loss)                    7,187                (41,041)                  83,166                  60,583                    24,549                    36,896                  21,133                 70,161               (20,655)                  104,335 

Non-Operating Income

   Change in Fair Market Value                   (1,619)                  (6,406)                   (4,882)                  (3,312)                     (4,410)                     (2,470)                         (4)                (11,656)                 (1,211)                     (9,849)

   Investment Income                       730                    3,762                    2,889                    1,732                      2,392                      1,273                         76                   6,638                      729                      5,578 

Total Non-Operating Income                      (889)                  (2,644)                   (1,993)                  (1,580)                     (2,018)                     (1,197)                         72                  (5,018)                    (482)                     (4,271)

Change in Net Position                    6,298                (43,685)                  81,173                  59,003                    22,531                    35,699                  21,205                 65,143               (21,137)                  100,064 

Beginning Net Position                126,418                185,513                  69,692                  75,609                  242,885                    76,772              (124,893)               736,481                 37,441                  223,255 

Ending Net Position  $            132,716  $            141,828  $            150,865  $            134,612  $              265,416  $              112,471  $          (103,688)  $           801,624  $             16,304  $              323,319 

 
Page 190 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Liability
For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report
11

Total

All Layers Admin Layer Shared Layer

Total Banking 

Layer
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from members 12,937,177$       449,772$          11,277,435$          1,209,970$              

Cash paid for claims (1,072,080)          -                     (491,946)              (580,134)                 

Cash paid for insurance (8,111,357)          -                     (8,111,357)            -                            

Cash paid to vendors (218,536)            (204,182)          (14,800)                446                        

Cash (paid) received for dividends (128,935)            -                     -                      (128,935)                 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3,406,269           245,590           2,659,332             501,347                  

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment income received (5,469,113)          3,958               (5,527,023)            53,952                    

Net investment (purchases) sales (133,072)            (4,049)              (74,355)                (54,668)                  

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (5,602,185)          (91)                  (5,601,378)            (716)                       

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,195,916)          245,499           (2,942,046)            500,631                  

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 6,639,453           107,268           4,164,636             2,367,549               

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 4,443,537$         352,767$          1,222,590$           2,868,180$              

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash

   provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 719,199$            23,285$           293,698$              402,216$                

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

   cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in:

Member receivable 109,271             -                     (11)                      109,282                  

Excess receivable -                       -                     -                      -                            

Prepaid expense (4,062,931)          -                     (4,062,931)            -                            

(Decrease) increase in:

Accounts payable (2,434)                (2,581)              (295)                    442                        

Unearned revenue 5,718,805           224,886           5,638,723             (144,804)                 

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses 924,359             -                     790,148                134,211                  

   Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3,406,269$         245,590$          2,659,332$           501,347$                

Supplemental information:

Noncash non-operating and investing activities

Net change in fair value of investments (237,378)$          (7,441)$            (133,716)$             (96,221)$                 

 
Page 191 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Liability
For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 12

City of

Anderson

City of

Auburn

City of

Colusa

City of

Corning

City of

Dixon

City of

Folsom

City of

Galt

City of

Gridley

City of

Ione

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from members 70,469$           77,279$           49,507$        (2,266)$         20,012$        552,351$          (160,985)$     59,578$       32,910$         

Cash paid for claims (73,009)            (11,998)           (9,697)          (5,921)          (10,870)         (63,154)            (24,188)        (57,518)        (3,562)           

Cash paid for insurance -                  -                 -               -               -                  -                  -              -              -                   

Cash paid to vendors 46                   217                 (177)             (186)             251              (929)                (158)            55               116               

Cash paid for dividends -                     -                     -                  (27,593)         -                  (401,829)          68,519         -                 -                   

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (2,494)              65,498            39,633          (35,966)         9,393            86,439             (116,812)      2,115           29,464           

Cash flows from investing activities: . . . .

Investment income received 1,207               2,596              663              618              1,132            17,089             3,035           1,648           482               

Net investment (purchases) sales (1,230)              (2,638)             (680)             (620)             (1,144)           (17,286)            (3,072)          (1,668)          (491)              

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (23)                  (42)                 (17)               (2)                (12)               (197)                (37)              (20)              (9)                 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,517)              65,456            39,616          (35,968)         9,381            86,242             (116,849)      2,095           29,455           

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 13,970             203,790           20,786          39,878          1,397            916,254           232,997        45,196         7,276            

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 11,453$           269,246$         60,402$        3,910$          10,778$        1,002,496$       116,148$      47,291$       36,731$         

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash

   provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 2,594$             (34,636)$         27,662$        (3,291)$         (26,852)$       100,421$          23,978$        (924)$          (33,050)$        

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

   cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in:

Member receivable 28,553             -                     10,000          -                  -                  -                     -                  -                 -                   

Excess receivable -                     -                     -                  -                  -                  -                     -                  -                 -                   

Prepaid expense -                     -                     -                  -                  -                  -                     -                  -                 -                   

(Decrease) increase in:

Accounts payable 46                   217                 (177)             (186)             251              (930)                (158)            55               115               

Unearned revenue 20,354             (1,702)             15,024          (27,593)         (9,852)           (212,337)          (150,304)      29,789         16,455           

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses (54,041)            101,619           (12,876)         (4,896)          45,846          199,285           9,672           (26,805)        45,944           

   Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (2,494)$            65,498$           39,633$        (35,966)$       9,393$          86,439$           (116,812)$     2,115$         29,464$         

Supplemental information:

Noncash non-operating and investing activities

Net change in fair value of investments (2,208)$            (4,696)$           (1,255)$         (1,014)$         (1,992)$         (30,236)$          (5,193)$        (2,901)$        (907)$            

 
Page 192 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Liability
For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 13

City of

Jackson

City of

Lincoln

City of

Marysville

City of

Oroville

City of

Paradise

City of

Red Bluff

City of

Rio Vista

City of

Rocklin

City of

Willows

City of

Yuba City
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from members 6,100$         (100,415)$        125,356$          4,497$         (23,534)$      18,807$       124,488$       206,671$          40,280$       108,865$          

Cash paid for claims -                 (26,494)           (54,272)            (69,860)        (9,268)          (31,173)        (20,687)         (22,786)            -                 (85,677)             

Cash paid for insurance -              -                     -                  -                 -                 -              -                   -                     -                 -                      

Cash paid to vendors (107)            156                 504                 (70)              (186)            (168)            170               924                 28               (40)                   

Cash paid for dividends -                 28,776             -                     29,988         27,539         51,214         -                   (51,335)            (8,654)          154,440            

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 5,993           (97,977)           71,588             (35,445)        (5,449)          38,680         103,971         133,474           31,654         177,588            

Cash flows from investing activities: . . . . . . . . . .

Investment income received 922             3,717              2,667               1,775           2,516           1,387           (1,098)           7,469               653             5,474                

Net investment (purchases) sales (924)            (3,771)             (2,716)              (1,795)          (2,542)          (1,396)          89                 (6,567)              (666)            (5,551)              

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (2)                (54)                 (49)                  (20)              (26)              (9)                (1,009)           902                 (13)              (77)                   

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,991           (98,031)           71,539             (35,465)        (5,475)          38,671         102,962         134,376           31,641         177,511            

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 8,401           318,710           99,940             71,147         60,283         (23,210)        (80,420)         383,049           43,804         4,301                

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 14,392$       220,679$         171,479$          35,682$       54,808$       15,461$       22,542$         517,425$          75,445$       181,812$          

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash

   provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 7,187$         (41,041)$          83,166$           60,583$       24,549$       36,896$       21,133$         70,161$           (20,655)$      104,335$          

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

   cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in:

Member receivable -                 -                     10,000             -                 -                 -                 60,729           -                     -                 -                      

Excess receivable -                 -                     -                     -                 -                 -                 -                   -                     -                 -                      

Prepaid expense -                 -                     -                     -                 -                 -                 -                   -                     -                 -                      

(Decrease) increase in:

Accounts payable (107)            156                 504                 (70)              (186)            (169)            171               924                 28               (42)                   

Unearned revenue (2,593)          (127,073)          56,176             (10,534)        (23,534)        32,418         30,268           99,883             11,486         108,865            

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses 1,506           69,981             (78,258)            (85,424)        (6,278)          (30,465)        (8,330)           (37,494)            40,795         (35,570)             

   Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 5,993$         (97,977)$          71,588$           (35,445)$      (5,449)$        38,680$       103,971$       133,474$          31,654$       177,588$          

Supplemental information:

Noncash non-operating and investing activities

Net change in fair value of investments (1,619)$        (6,406)$           (4,882)$            (3,312)$        (4,410)$        (2,470)$        (4)$               (11,656)$          (1,211)$        (9,849)$             

 
Page 193 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Net Position – Workers’ Compensation
December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report
14

Total

All Layers Admin Layer Shared Layer Total Banking Layer

Current Assets

   Cash and Cash Equivalents 9,886,981$           915,284$          940,692$              8,031,005$                 

   Accounts Receivable 79                         -                        -                           79                               

   Interest Receivable 171,940                4,488                77,181                  90,271                        

   Excess Accounts Receivable 623,183                -                        623,183                -                                 

   Prepaid Expense 1,067,055             77,684              989,371                -                                 

Total Current Assets 11,749,238           997,456            2,630,427             8,121,355                   

Non-Current Assets

   Investments* 47,185,790           526,642            25,295,544           21,363,604                 

Total Assets 58,935,028$         1,524,098$       27,925,971$         29,484,959$               

Current Liabilities

   Accounts Payable 75,472$                12,287$            1,959$                  61,226$                      

   Unearned Revenue 797,831                -                        186,063                611,768                      

Total Current Liabilities 873,303                12,287              188,022                672,994                      

Non-Current Liabilities

   Outstanding Liabilities* 38,529,462           -                        19,936,516           18,592,946                 

   ULAE* 2,063,070             -                        1,067,507             995,563                      

Total Non-Current Liabilities 40,592,532           -                        21,004,023           19,588,509                 

Total Liabilities 41,465,835$         12,287$            21,192,045$         20,261,503$               

Net Position

   Designated for Contingency 100,000                100,000            -                           -                                 

   Designated for Risk Management 1,059,900             1,059,900         -                           -                                 

   Undesignated 16,309,293           351,911            6,733,926             9,223,456                   

Total Net Position 17,469,193           1,511,811         6,733,926             9,223,456                   

Liability & Net Position 58,935,028$         1,524,098$       27,925,971$         29,484,959$               

*For internal reporting purposes, investments and claim liabilities are classified as non-current.

 
Page 194 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Net Position – Workers’ Compensation
December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 15

City of

Anderson

City of

Auburn

City of

Colusa

City of

Corning

City of

Dixon

City of

Elk Grove

City of

Folsom

City of

Galt

City of

Gridley

City of

Ione

City of

Jackson

Current Assets

   Cash and Cash Equivalents 288,201$           200,879$           27,786$                7,315$               370,622$           1,278,779$        1,215,315$        195,176$            159,812$        33,244$          176,937$        

   Accounts Receivable -                    -                    79                         -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                      -                 -                 

   Interest Receivable 2,045                 3,015                 817                       602                    4,206                 10,396               19,337               3,385                  2,229              375                 1,113              

   Excess Accounts Receivable -                        -                        -                            -                         -                         -                         -                         -                          -                      -                     -                     

   Prepaid Expense -                        -                        -                            -                         -                         -                         -                         -                          -                      -                     -                     

Total Current Assets 290,246             203,894             28,682                  7,917                 374,828             1,289,175          1,234,652          198,561              162,041          33,619            178,050          

Non-Current Assets

   Investments* 374,312             794,883             158,901                201,837             960,645             2,181,473          5,137,724          853,840              583,744          41,616            196,056          

Total Assets 664,558$           998,777$           187,583$              209,754$           1,335,473$        3,470,648$        6,372,376$        1,052,401$         745,785$        75,235$          374,106$        

Current Liabilities

   Accounts Payable 1,894$               1,762$               580$                     509$                  1,868$               7,261$               12,167$             1,474$                288$               170$               429$               

   Unearned Revenue 24,893               -                        -                            3,038                 46,307               13,889               165,321             -                          -                      4,860              14,233            

Total Current Liabilities 26,787               1,762                 580                       3,547                 48,175               21,150               177,488             1,474                  288                 5,030              14,662            

Non-Current Liabilities

   Outstanding Liabilities* 441,441             738,615             132,661                139,701             854,353             2,701,719          4,627,858          566,002              107,696          35,794            173,355          

   ULAE* 23,637               39,549               7,103                    7,480                 45,747               144,664             247,800             30,307                5,767              1,917              9,282              

Total Non-Current Liabilities 465,078             778,164             139,764                147,181             900,100             2,846,383          4,875,658          596,309              113,463          37,711            182,637          

Total Liabilities 491,865$           779,926$           140,344$              150,728$           948,275$           2,867,533$        5,053,146$        597,783$            113,751$        42,741$          197,299$        

Net Position

   Designated for Contingency -                        -                        -                            -                         -                         -                         -                         -                          -                      -                     -                     

   Designated for Safety Grants -                        -                        -                            -                         -                         -                         -                         -                          -                      -                     -                     

   Undesignated 172,693             218,851             47,239                  59,026               387,198             603,115             1,319,230          454,618              632,034          32,494            176,807          

Total Net Position 172,693             218,851             47,239                  59,026               387,198             603,115             1,319,230          454,618              632,034          32,494            176,807          

Liability & Net Position 664,558$           998,777$           187,583$              209,754$           1,335,473$        3,470,648$        6,372,376$        1,052,401$         745,785$        75,235$          374,106$        

*For internal reporting purposes, investments and claim liabilities are classified as non-current.

 
Page 195 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Net Position – Workers’ Compensation
December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 16

City of

Lincoln

City of

Marysville

City of

Nevada City

City of

Oroville

City of

Paradise

City of

Placerville

City of

Red Bluff

City of

Rio Vista

City of

Rocklin

City of

Willows

City of

Yuba City

Current Assets

   Cash and Cash Equivalents 268,697$           102,851$            285,786$              479,814$          393,451$         242,628$              219,423$           170,565$             881,092$           3,392$                 1,029,240$         

   Accounts Receivable -                     -                     -                        -                   -                  -                            -                    -                          -                         -                      -                         

   Interest Receivable 3,964                 2,093                  1,351                    3,374                3,336               2,292                    4,906                 1,354                   9,153                 447                      10,481                

   Excess Accounts Receivable -                         -                         -                            -                       -                      -                            -                        -                          -                         -                          -                         

   Prepaid Expense -                         -                         -                            -                       -                      -                            -                        -                          -                         -                          -                         

Total Current Assets 272,661             104,944              287,137                483,188            396,787           244,920                224,329             171,919               890,245             3,839                   1,039,721           

Non-Current Assets

   Investments* 1,066,615          521,181              158,758                586,805            717,666           513,562                1,362,387          279,170               2,103,317          148,285               2,420,827           

Total Assets 1,339,276$        626,125$            445,895$              1,069,993$       1,114,453$      758,482$              1,586,716$        451,089$             2,993,562$        152,124$             3,460,548$         

Current Liabilities

   Accounts Payable 2,086$               1,614$                588$                     1,194$              1,778$             1,260$                  3,319$               990$                    6,168$               8,847$                 4,980$                

   Unearned Revenue -                         -                         30,855                  108,213            -                      -                            -                        19,911                 -                         -                          180,248              

Total Current Liabilities 2,086                 1,614                  31,443                  109,407            1,778               1,260                    3,319                 20,901                 6,168                 8,847                   185,228              

Non-Current Liabilities

   Outstanding Liabilities* 650,502             488,734              185,340                332,230            325,776           539,220                1,581,042          271,280               2,018,112          16,985                 1,664,530           

   ULAE* 34,831               26,169                9,924                    17,789              17,444             28,873                  84,657               14,526                 108,060             909                      89,128                

Total Non-Current Liabilities 685,333             514,903              195,264                350,019            343,220           568,093                1,665,699          285,806               2,126,172          17,894                 1,753,658           

Total Liabilities 687,419$           516,517$            226,707$              459,426$          344,998$         569,353$              1,669,018$        306,707$             2,132,340$        26,741$               1,938,886$         

Net Position

   Designated for Contingency -                         -                         -                            -                       -                      -                            -                        -                          -                         -                          -                         

   Designated for Safety Grants -                         -                         -                            -                       -                      -                            -                        -                          -                         -                          -                         

   Undesignated 651,857             109,608              219,188                610,567            769,455           189,129                (82,302)              144,382               861,222             125,383               1,521,662           

Total Net Position 651,857             109,608              219,188                610,567            769,455           189,129                (82,302)              144,382               861,222             125,383               1,521,662           

Liability & Net Position 1,339,276$        626,125$            445,895$              1,069,993$       1,114,453$      758,482$              1,586,716$        451,089$             2,993,562$        152,124$             3,460,548$         

*For internal reporting purposes, investments and claim liabilities are classified as non-current.

 
Page 196 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Workers’ Compensation
For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report
17

Total

All Layers Admin Layer Shared Layer

Total

Banking Layer

Operating Income

   Administration Deposit 492,190$                    492,190$                  -$                            -$                              

   Banking Layer Deposit 3,743,504                   -                              -                              3,743,504                   

   Shared Risk Layer 2,073,000                   -                              2,073,000                  -                                

   Excess Deposit/Premium 977,500                      -                              977,500                    -                                

   Risk Management Grants 563,898                      563,898                    -                              -                                

Total Operating Income 7,850,092                   1,056,088                 3,050,500                  3,743,504                   

Operating Expenses

   Claims Paid 3,953,392                   -                              1,627,228                  2,326,164                   

   O/S Liability adj. 1,030,953                   -                              70,555                      960,398                      

   ULAE 42,005                        -                              (3,214)                      45,219                       

   Consultants 15,751                        15,751                     -                              -                                

   Safety Service 122,796                      122,796                    -                              -                                

   Claims Administration 539,471                      235,274                    -                              304,197                      

   Program Administration 111,046                      111,046                    -                              -                                

   Excess Insurance 989,371                      -                              989,371                    -                                

   Contingency Reserves 6,614                         6,614                       -                              -                                

Total Operating Expenses 6,814,400                   494,482                    2,683,940                  3,635,978                   

Operating Income (Loss) 1,035,692                   561,606                    366,560                    107,526                      

Non-Operating Income

   Change in Fair Market Value (609,675)                     (15,361)                    (274,917)                   (319,397)                    

   Investment Income 334,408                      9,875                       149,302                    175,231                      

Total Non-Operating Income (275,267)                     (5,486)                      (125,615)                   (144,166)                    

Change in Net Position 760,425                      556,120                    240,945                    (36,640)                      

Beginning Net Position 16,708,768                  955,691                    6,492,981                  9,260,096                   

Ending Net Position 17,469,193$                1,511,811$               6,733,926$                9,223,456$                 

 
Page 197 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Workers’ Compensation
For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 18

City of

Anderson

City of

Auburn

City of

Colusa

City of

Corning

City of

Dixon

City of

Elk Grove

City of

Folsom

City of

Galt

City of

Gridley

City of

Ione

City of

Jackson

Operating Income

   Administration Deposit -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

   Banking Layer Deposit 76,992               164,938             40,346               39,931               187,002             516,660             682,413             190,201             33,764               20,506               53,072               

   Shared Risk Layer -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

   Excess Deposit/Premium -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

   Risk Management Grants -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total Operating Income 76,992               164,938             40,346               39,931               187,002             516,660             682,413             190,201             33,764               20,506               53,072               

Operating Expenses

   Claims Paid 32,213               86,538               107,403             38,009               120,304             272,159             298,258             160,032             20,415               58,469               64,871               

   O/S Liability adj. 84,157               (48,393)             (88,702)             (46,612)             36,909               353,021             173,091             44,983               (11,334)             (51,096)             (53,896)             

   ULAE 4,380                (2,868)               (4,827)               (2,561)               1,689                18,076               7,700                2,225                (649)                  (2,767)               (2,966)               

   Consultants -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

   Safety Service -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

   Claims Administration 10,639               11,885               3,861                4,691                11,127               39,402               66,559               8,116                1,506                1,344                3,020                

   Program Administration -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

   Excess Insurance -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

   Contingency Reserves -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total Operating Expenses 131,389             47,162               17,735               (6,473)               170,029             682,658             545,608             215,356             9,938                5,950                11,029               

Operating Income (Loss) (54,397)             117,776             22,611               46,404               16,973               (165,998)            136,805             (25,155)             23,826               14,556               42,043               

Non-Operating Income

   Change in Fair Market Value (7,203)               (10,564)             (2,881)               (2,206)               (14,792)             (36,687)             (68,317)             (11,841)             (7,908)               (1,319)               (4,082)               

   Investment Income 4,008                5,743                1,497                1,180                8,252                20,428               37,560               6,348                4,380                740                   2,330                

Total Non-Operating Income (3,195)               (4,821)               (1,384)               (1,026)               (6,540)               (16,259)             (30,757)             (5,493)               (3,528)               (579)                  (1,752)               

Change in Net Position (57,592)             112,955             21,227               45,378               10,433               (182,257)            106,048             (30,648)             20,298               13,977               40,291               

Beginning Net Position 230,285             105,896             26,012               13,648               376,765             785,372             1,213,182          485,266             611,736             18,517               136,516             

Ending Net Position 172,693$           218,851$           47,239$             59,026$             387,198$           603,115$           1,319,230$         454,618$           632,034$           32,494$             176,807$           

 
Page 198 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Workers’ Compensation
For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 19

City of

Lincoln

City of

Marysville

City of

Nevada City

City of

Oroville

City of

Paradise

City of

Placerville

City of

Red Bluff

City of

Rio Vista

City of

Rocklin

City of

Willows

City of

Yuba City

Operating Income

   Administration Deposit -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        

   Banking Layer Deposit 157,686               75,284                 78,609                 132,060               101,771               92,331                 195,514               60,023                 391,323               17,465                 435,613               

   Shared Risk Layer -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

   Excess Deposit/Premium -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

   Risk Management Grants -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total Operating Income 157,686               75,284                 78,609                 132,060               101,771               92,331                 195,514               60,023                 391,323               17,465                 435,613               

Operating Expenses

   Claims Paid 64,923                 145,703               20,992                 32,429                 55,382                 48,260                 242,929               12,350                 286,607               293                     157,625               

   O/S Liability adj. (10,800)                82,839                 21,975                 68,366                 (4,692)                  59,730                 (960)                    41,579                 205,752               1,845                   102,636               

   ULAE (811)                    4,293                   1,119                   3,568                   (368)                    3,030                   (608)                    2,146                   10,379                 93                       4,946                   

   Consultants -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

   Safety Service -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

   Claims Administration 11,685                 10,359                 3,847                   8,081                   9,621                   9,460                   20,339                 6,002                   34,088                 1,167                   27,398                 

   Program Administration -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

   Excess Insurance -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

   Contingency Reserves -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total Operating Expenses 64,997                 243,194               47,933                 112,444               59,943                 120,480               261,700               62,077                 536,826               3,398                   292,605               

Operating Income (Loss) 92,689                 (167,910)              30,676                 19,616                 41,828                 (28,149)                (66,186)                (2,054)                  (145,503)              14,067                 143,008               

Non-Operating Income

   Change in Fair Market Value (13,985)                (7,565)                  (4,740)                  (12,184)                (11,804)                (8,070)                  (17,422)                (4,767)                  (32,375)                (1,618)                  (37,067)                

   Investment Income 7,402                   4,039                   2,680                   6,756                   6,514                   4,420                   9,255                   2,641                   18,006                 836                     20,216                 

Total Non-Operating Income (6,583)                  (3,526)                  (2,060)                  (5,428)                  (5,290)                  (3,650)                  (8,167)                  (2,126)                  (14,369)                (782)                    (16,851)                

Change in Net Position 86,106                 (171,436)              28,616                 14,188                 36,538                 (31,799)                (74,353)                (4,180)                  (159,872)              13,285                 126,157               

Beginning Net Position 565,751               281,044               190,572               596,379               732,917               220,928               (7,949)                  148,562               1,021,094             112,098               1,395,505             

Ending Net Position 651,857$              109,608$              219,188$              610,567$              769,455$              189,129$              (82,302)$              144,382$              861,222$              125,383$              1,521,662$           

 
Page 199 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Workers’ Compensation
For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report
20

Total

All Layers Admin Layer Shared Layer

Total Banking 

Layer

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from members 6,459,338$          1,056,088$           2,369,655$                         3,033,595$               

Cash paid for claims (3,906,753)           -                         (1,580,589)                          (2,326,164)                

Cash paid for insurance (1,978,742)           -                         (1,978,742)                          -                              

Cash paid to vendors (877,823)             (573,776)              69                                     (304,116)                  

Cash (paid) received for dividends 532,589               -                         411,322                              121,267                    

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 228,609               482,312               (778,285)                            524,582                    

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment income received 5,945,949            8,303                  5,756,816                           180,830                    

Net investment (purchases) sales (7,849,929)           (8,510)                 (7,658,482)                          (182,937)                  

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (1,903,980)           (207)                    (1,901,666)                          (2,107)                      

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,675,371)           482,105               (2,679,951)                          522,475                    

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 11,562,352          433,179               3,620,643                           7,508,530                 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 9,886,981$          915,284$             940,692$                            8,031,005$               

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash

   provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 1,035,692$          561,606$             366,560$                            107,526                    

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

   cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in:

Member receivable 93,075                -                         -                                        93,075                     

Excess receivable 46,639                -                         46,639                               -                              

Prepaid expense (1,067,055)           (77,684)               (989,371)                            -                              

(Decrease) increase in:

Accounts payable (1,475)                 (1,610)                 69                                     66                           

Unearned revenue (951,246)             -                         (269,523)                            (681,723)                  

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses 1,072,979            -                         67,341                               1,005,638                 

   Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 228,609$             482,312$             (778,285)$                           524,582$                  

Supplemental information:

Noncash non-operating and investing activities

Net change in fair value of investments (609,675)$            (15,361)$              (274,917)$                           (319,397)$                 

 
Page 200 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Workers’ Compensation
For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 21

City of

Anderson

City of

Auburn

City of

Colusa

City of

Corning

City of

Dixon

City of

Elk Grove

City of

Folsom

City of

Galt

City of

Gridley

City of

Ione

City of

Jackson
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from members 52,100$           174,938$          40,267$           33,856$           94,388$           502,772$          517,092$          182,322$          33,764$           4,135$             6,219$             

Cash paid for claims (32,213)            (86,538)            (107,403)          (38,009)            (120,304)          (272,159)          (298,258)          (160,032)          (20,415)            (58,469)            (64,871)            

Cash paid for insurance -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -                     -                  -                  

Cash paid to vendors (9,946)              (12,162)            (4,104)              (5,105)              (11,322)            (38,578)            (66,044)            (8,357)              (1,531)              (1,451)              (3,244)              

Cash paid for dividends -                     -                     -                     3,038               46,307             -                     -                     7,879               -                     11,511             32,621             

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 9,941               76,238             (71,240)            (6,220)              9,069               192,035           152,790           21,812             11,818             (44,274)            (29,275)            

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment income received 4,055               5,923               1,630               1,296               8,314               20,696             38,613             6,635               4,487               741                 2,388               

Net investment (purchases) sales (4,107)              (5,993)              (1,644)              (1,306)              (8,422)              (20,960)            (39,071)            (6,707)              (4,540)              (752)                (2,418)              

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (52)                  (70)                  (14)                  (10)                  (108)                (264)                (458)                (72)                  (53)                  (11)                  (30)                  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 9,889               76,168             (71,254)            (6,230)              8,961               191,771           152,332           21,740             11,765             (44,285)            (29,305)            

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 278,312           124,711           99,040             13,545             361,661           1,087,008         1,062,983         173,436           148,047           77,529             206,242           

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 288,201$          200,879$          27,786$           7,315$             370,622$          1,278,779$       1,215,315$       195,176$          159,812$          33,244$           176,937$          

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash

   provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (54,397)$          117,776$          22,611$           46,404$           16,973$           (165,998)$        136,805$          (25,155)$          23,826$           14,556$           42,043$           

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

   cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in:

Member receivable -                     10,000             (79)                  -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Excess receivable -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Prepaid expense -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

(Decrease) increase in:

Accounts payable 693                 (279)                (243)                (413)                (195)                824                 510                 (242)                (26)                  (107)                (223)                

Unearned revenue (24,893)            -                     -                     (3,038)              (46,307)            (13,889)            (165,321)          -                     (2)                    (4,860)              (14,233)            

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses 88,538             (51,259)            (93,529)            (49,173)            38,598             371,098           180,796           47,209             (11,980)            (53,863)            (56,862)            

   Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 9,941$             76,238$           (71,240)$          (6,220)$            9,069$             192,035$          152,790$          21,812$           11,818$           (44,274)$          (29,275)$          

Supplemental information:

Noncash non-operating and investing activities

Net change in fair value of investments (7,203)$            (10,564)$          (2,881)$            (2,206)$            (14,792)$          (36,687)$          (68,317)$          (11,841)$          (7,908)$            (1,319)$            (4,082)$            

 
Page 201 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Workers’ Compensation
For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 22

City of

Lincoln

City of

Marysville

City of

Nevada City

City of

Oroville

City of

Paradise

City of

Placerville

City of

Red Bluff

City of

Rio Vista

City of

Rocklin

City of

Willows

City of

Yuba City
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from members 157,686$           41,454$            47,754$                 23,848$            101,771$           92,331$            278,668$           20,202$            391,323$           (18,660)$           255,365$           

Cash paid for claims (64,923)             (145,703)           (20,992)                 (32,429)             (55,382)             (48,260)             (242,929)           (12,350)             (286,607)           (293)                 (157,625)           

Cash paid for insurance -                   -                      -                           -                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Cash paid to vendors (11,476)             (10,529)             (3,909)                   (8,205)               (9,717)               (9,953)               (20,696)             (5,839)               (33,939)             (1,185)               (26,824)             

Cash paid for dividends -                      -                      -                           -                      -                      -                      -                      19,911              -                      -                      -                      

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 81,287              (114,778)           22,853                  (16,786)             36,672              34,118              15,043              21,924              70,777              (20,138)             70,916              

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment income received 7,913                4,383                2,657                    7,039                6,680                4,548                9,919                2,682                18,306              942                  20,983              

Net investment (purchases) sales (7,988)               (4,422)               (2,693)                   (7,115)               (6,762)               (4,600)               (10,014)             (2,717)               (18,537)             (948)                 (21,221)             

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (75)                   (39)                   (36)                       (76)                   (82)                   (52)                   (95)                   (35)                   (231)                 (6)                     (238)                 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 81,212              (114,817)           22,817                  (16,862)             36,590              34,066              14,948              21,889              70,546              (20,144)             70,678              

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 187,485            217,668            262,969                 496,676            356,861            208,562            204,475            148,676            810,546            23,536              958,562            

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 268,697$           102,851$           285,786$               479,814$           393,451$           242,628$           219,423$           170,565$           881,092$           3,392$              1,029,240$        

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash

   provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 92,689$            (167,910)$         30,676$                 19,616$            41,828$            (28,149)$           (66,186)$           (2,054)$             (145,503)$         14,067$            143,008$           

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

   cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in:

Member receivable -                      -                      -                           -                      -                      -                      83,154              -                      -                      -                      -                      

Excess receivable -                      -                      -                           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Prepaid expense -                      -                      -                           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

(Decrease) increase in:

Accounts payable 209                  (171)                 (62)                       (125)                 (98)                   (494)                 (357)                 163                  148                  (19)                   573                  

Unearned revenue -                      (33,830)             (30,855)                 (108,211)           -                      -                      -                      (19,912)             -                      (36,124)             (180,248)           

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses (11,611)             87,133              23,094                  71,934              (5,058)               62,761              (1,568)               43,727              216,132            1,938                107,583            

   Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 81,287$            (114,778)$         22,853$                 (16,786)$           36,672$            34,118$            15,043$            21,924$            70,777$            (20,138)$           70,916$            

Supplemental information:

Noncash non-operating and investing activities

Net change in fair value of investments (13,985)$           (7,565)$             (4,740)$                 (12,184)$           (11,804)$           (8,070)$             (17,422)$           (4,767)$             (32,375)$           (1,618)$             (37,067)$           

 
Page 202 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
(Governmental Enterprise Fund)

Reconciliation of Claims Liability by Program
As of December 31, 2021 and June 30, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 23

Liability Liability Total WC WC Total

Banking Shared Risk Liability Program Banking Shared Risk WC Program Totals

2022 2022 2022 2021 2022 2022 2022 2021 2022 2021

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at 

     beginning of the fiscal year 3,192,879$         7,835,868$         11,028,747$       9,252,340$         18,582,893$       20,936,681$       39,519,574$         35,991,616$         50,548,321$        45,243,956$       

Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses:

     Provision for insured events of the current fiscal year 697,896              1,140,304           1,838,200           3,822,671           2,879,434           1,609,063           4,488,498             8,445,552             6,326,698            12,268,223         

     Increases (Decreases) in provision for insured events

          of prior fiscal years 16,253                49,806                66,059                790,505              407,130              97,062                504,192                310,745                570,251               1,101,250           

    Change in provision for ULAE in current year -                          -                          -                         -                         45,219                (3,213)                42,006                  180,423                42,006                 180,423              

Total incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 714,149              1,190,110           1,904,259           4,613,176           3,331,783           1,702,912           5,034,696             8,936,720             6,938,954            13,549,896         

Payments:

     Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to

          insured events of the current fiscal year 10,432                -                          10,432                185,573              300,461              287,554              588,016                702,904                598,448               888,477              

     Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to

          insured events of prior fiscal years 569,504              399,961              969,465              2,651,195           2,025,703           1,348,017           3,373,720             4,705,858             4,343,185            7,357,053           

Total Payments 579,936              399,961              979,897              2,836,768           2,326,164           1,635,571           3,961,735             5,408,763             4,941,632            8,245,531           

Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at

     end of the fiscal year 3,327,092$         8,626,017$         11,953,109$       11,028,748$       19,588,512$       21,004,022$       40,592,534$         39,519,573$         52,545,643$        50,548,321$       

Claims Liability 3,327,091$         8,626,016$         11,953,107$       11,028,747$       18,592,947$       19,936,516$       38,529,463$         37,498,507$         50,482,570$        48,527,254$       

Claims ULAE -                          -                          -                         -                         995,565              1,067,507           2,063,072             2,021,067             2,063,072            2,021,067           

 Total Claim Liabilities 3,327,091$         8,626,016$         11,953,107$       11,028,747$       19,588,512$       21,004,023$       40,592,535$         39,519,574$         52,545,642$        50,548,321$       

 
Page 203 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
Graphical Summary of Claims

As of December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report
24

 
Page 204 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
Graphical Summary of Claims

As of December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report
25

 
Page 205 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
Budget to Actual

As of December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 26

2021-2022 2021-2022

ADMIN BUDGET Total WC Liab Total WC Liab Total $ Total % WC Liab

Administrative Revenue

41010 Administrative Deposit - See Note 1 1,434,151$    984,379$       449,772$       717,076$       492,190$       224,886$       717,075$       50% 492,189$       224,886$       

44030 Change in Fair Value - See Note 2 -                   -                   -                   (22,802)         (15,361)         (7,441)           22,802          15,361          7,441            

44040 Interest Income - See Note 2 -                   -                   -                   14,460          9,875            4,585            (14,460)         (9,875)           (4,585)           

44080 Risk Management Grants - See Note 6 -                   -                   -                   563,898         563,898         -                   (563,898)        (563,898)        -                   

Total Admin Revenue 1,434,151$    984,379$       449,772$       1,272,632$    1,050,602$    222,030$       161,519$       0% (66,223)$        227,742$       

Administrative Expenses

52101 Claims Audit 7,500$          -$                 7,500$          -$                 -$                 -$                 7,500$          100% -$                 7,500$          

52102 Financial Audit 28,250          14,125          14,125          24,000          12,000          12,000          4,250            15% 2,125            2,125            

52103 Legal Services 17,000          2,000            15,000          2,697            -                   2,697            14,303          84% 2,000            12,303          

52104 Actuarial Services 13,800          5,900            7,900            8,775            3,751            5,024            5,025            36% 2,149            2,876            

52900 Member Identity Theft Protection 12,812          12,812          -                   6,614            6,614            -                   6,198            48% 6,198            -                   

52109 Misc Consulting / Contingency 5,000            2,500            2,500            -                   -                   -                   5,000            100% 2,500            2,500            

Total Admin Expenses 84,362$         37,337$         47,025$         42,086$         22,365$         19,721$         42,276$         50% 14,972$         27,304$         

Safety Services

52201 Outside Training 30,000$         15,000$         15,000$         5,286$          2,643$          2,643$          24,714$         82% 12,357$         12,357$         

52202 Risk Mgmt Comm Mtg Expense 1,500            750               750               -                   -                   -                   1,500            100% 750               750               

52204 Bickmore Risk Management Services 178,480         89,240          89,240          89,240          44,620          44,620          89,240          50% 44,620          44,620          

52207 Member Training and Risk Management 88,000          50,000          38,000          2,353            1,337            1,016            85,647          97% 48,663          36,984          

52208 Lexipol Police Manual Updates & DTBs 144,441         144,441         -                   71,070          71,070          -                   73,371          51% 73,371          -                   

52209 Police Risk Management Funds 50,000          25,000          25,000          6,247            3,127            3,120            43,753          88% 21,873          21,880          

Total Safety Services Expenses 492,421$       324,431$       167,990$       174,196$       122,797$       51,399$         318,225$       65% 201,634$       116,591$       

Budget YTD Expended Remaining

2021-2022

 
Page 206 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
Budget to Actual

As of December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 27

2021-2022 2021-2022

ADMIN BUDGET CONTINUED Total WC Liab Total WC Liab Total Total % WC Liab

Claims Administration

52304 State Funding/Fraud Assessment 355,000$       355,000$       -$                 235,274$       235,274$       -$                 119,726$       34% 119,726$       -$                 

Total Claims Admin Expenses 355,000$       355,000$       -$                 235,274$       235,274$       -$                 119,726$       34% 119,726$       -$                 

Program Administration

52401 Program Administration and Brokerage Fee 361,378$       197,116$       164,262$       180,689$       82,131$         98,558$         180,689$       50% 114,985$       65,704$         

52403 Accounting Services 113,490         56,745          56,745          57,830          28,915          28,915          55,660          49% 27,830          27,830          

Total Program Admin Expenses 474,868$       253,861$       221,007$       238,519$       111,046$       127,473$       236,349$       50% 142,815$       93,534$         

Board Expenses

52501 Executive Committee 2,500$          1,250$          1,250$          -$                 -$                 -$                 2,500$          100% 1,250$          1,250$          

52502 Executive Committee Member Travel 4,000            2,000            2,000            -                   -                   -                   4,000            100% 2,000            2,000            

52503 Board of Directors Meetings (includes Travel) 8,000            4,000            4,000            476               238               238               7,524            94% 3,762            3,762            

52509 Board of Directors Long Range Planning Session (every 3 years, 2012)8,000            4,000            4,000            3,526            1,763            1,763            4,474            56% 2,237            2,237            

52504 Association Memberships 5,000            2,500            2,500            2,000            1,000            1,000            3,000            60% 1,500            1,500            

Total Board Expenses 27,500$         13,750$         13,750$         6,002$          3,001$          3,001$          21,498$         78% 10,749$         10,749$         

Total Admin Expenses 1,434,151$    984,379$       449,772$       696,077$       494,483$       201,594$       738,074$       51% 489,896$       248,178$       

TOTAL ADMIN REVENUE OVER EXPENSES -$                 -$                 -$                 576,555$       556,119$       20,436$         (576,555)$      (556,119)$      (20,436)$        

Budget YTD Expended Remaining

2021-2022

 
Page 207 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
Budget to Actual

As of December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 28

2021-2022 2021-2022

Total WC Liab Total WC Liab Total Total % WC Liab

Banking Layer Revenue

41020 Banking Layer Deposit - See Note 1 9,721,000$    7,487,000$    2,234,000$    4,863,708$    3,743,501$    1,120,207$    4,857,292$    50% 3,743,499$    1,113,793$    

44010 Other Income -                   -                   -                   29,012          -                   29,012          (29,012)         -                   (29,012)         

41050 Banking Layer Refund -                   -                   -                   (51,335)         -                   (51,335)         51,335          -                   51,335          

44030 Change in Fair Value - See Note 2 -                   -                   -                   (415,618)        (319,398)        (96,220)         415,618         319,398         96,220          

44040 Interest Income - See Note 2 -                   -                   -                   229,060         175,230         53,830          (229,060)        (175,230)        (53,830)         

44060 Property Premium 18,672          -                   18,672          18,672          -                   18,672          -                   -                   -                   

Total Banking Layer Revenue 9,739,672$    7,487,000$    2,252,672$    4,673,499$    3,599,333$    1,074,166$    5,066,173$    52% 3,887,667$    1,178,506$    

Banking Layer Expenses

51100 Claims Expense - See Note 4 7,688,000$    5,985,000$    1,703,000$    2,775,221$    2,326,164$    449,057$       4,912,779$    64% 3,658,836$    1,253,943$    

51135 Claims Admin - Liability ULAE -                   -                   -                   130,878         -                   130,878         

51136 Claims Admin - Liability ALE - See Note 4 -                   -                   -                   197               -                   197               (197)              -                   (197)              

51400 OS Liability Adjustment - See Note 4 -                   -                   -                   1,094,613      960,401         134,212         (1,094,613)     (960,401)        (134,212)        

51800 ULAE Adjustment - See Note 4 -                   -                   -                   45,219          45,219          -                   (45,219)         (45,219)         -                   

52300 Claims Admin - Monthly WC Only - See Note 4 608,392         608,392         -                   304,196         304,196         -                   304,196         50% 304,196         -                   

Total Banking Layer Expenses 8,296,392$    6,593,392$    1,703,000$    4,350,324$    3,635,980$    714,344$       4,076,946$    49% 2,957,412$    1,119,534$    

TOTAL BANKING REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 1,443,280$    893,608$       549,672$       323,175$       (36,647)$        359,822$       989,227$       930,255$       58,972$         

2021-2022

Budget YTD Expended Remaining

 
Page 208 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
Budget to Actual

As of December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 29

2021-2022 2021-2022

Total WC Liab Total WC Liab Total Total % WC Liab

Shared Layer Revenue

41030 Shared Risk Layer Deposit - See Note 1 7,146,000$    4,146,000$    3,000,000$    3,573,000$    2,073,000$    1,500,000$    3,573,000$    50% 2,073,000$    1,500,000$    

41040 Excess Deposit/Premium - See Note 1 5,788,207      1,955,000      3,833,207      2,894,104      977,500         1,916,604      2,894,103      50% 977,500         1,916,603      

44030 Change in Fair Value -                   -                   -                   (408,633)        (274,917)        (133,716)        408,633         274,917         133,716         

44040 Interest Income -                   -                   -                   228,770         149,302         79,468          (228,770)        (149,302)        (79,468)         

44060 Property Premium - See Note 1 4,358,287      -                   4,358,287      2,034,151      -                   2,034,151      2,324,136      53% -                   2,324,136      

44070 Crime Premium - See Note 1 53,523          -                   53,523          187,969         -                   187,969         (134,446)        -251% -                   (134,446)        

Total Shared Layer Revenue 17,346,017$  6,101,000$    11,245,017$  8,509,361$    2,924,885$    5,584,476$    8,836,656$    51% 3,176,115$    5,660,541$    

Shared Layer Expenses

51100 Claims Expense 6,396,000$    3,334,000$    3,062,000      2,976,663$    1,694,569$    1,282,094$    3,419,337$    53% 1,639,431$    1,779,906$    

52201 Outside Training -                   -                   -                   14,506          -                   14,506          (14,506)         -                   (14,506)         

54100 Excess Deposit/Premium Exp - See Note 5 5,788,207      1,955,000      3,833,207      2,806,342      989,371         1,816,971      2,981,865      52% 965,629         2,016,236      

54150 Member Property Coverage - See Note 5 4,358,287      -                   4,358,287      2,043,486      -                   2,043,486      2,314,801      53% -                   2,314,801      

54150 Member Crime Coverage - See Note 5 53,523          -                   53,523          187,969         -                   187,969         (134,446)        -251% -                   (134,446)        

Total Shared Layer Expenses 16,596,017$  5,289,000$    11,307,017$  8,028,966$    2,683,940$    5,345,026$    8,567,051$    52% 2,605,060$    5,961,991$    

TOTAL SHARED REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 750,000$       812,000$       (62,000)$        480,395$       240,945$       239,450$       269,605$       571,055$       (301,450)$      

OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSE)

Rounding -                   -                   -                   4                  8                  (4)                 (4)                 (8)                 4                  

Total Other Income/(Expense) -$                 -$                 -$                 4$                 8$                 (4)$                (4)$                (8)$                4$                 

TOTAL INCOME/(EXPENSE) 2,193,280$    1,705,608$    487,672$       1,380,129$    760,425$       619,704$       682,273$       945,183$       (262,910)$      

2021-2022

Budget YTD Expended Remaining

 
Page 209 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
Notes to Budget to Actual
As of December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report
30

1. Revenue Recognition
The budget presents revenue to be earned during the entire fiscal year. In accordance with the accrual 
basis of accounting, the YTD Expended columns show only the amount earned by the organization, 
year-to-date.

2. Investment Income
No budget is developed for the Change in Fair Value and Interest Income amounts, as it is difficult to 
predict the yield on the organization’s portfolio.

3. CJPRMA Refund
For budgeting purposes, the CJPRMA refund is recorded in the year following its approval. In 
accordance with the accrual basis of accounting, the refund to the organization is recorded on the books 
in the period it was declared.

4. Claims Expenses
Claims related expenses are budgeted based on the estimated claims expense for the year. Claims related 
expenses are recorded on the books in several additional categories. Review of the budget to actual 
performance of claims related items should take this into consideration.

5. Insurance Expense Recognition
The budget presents excess and other insurance expense based on the policy fee paid for entire fiscal 
year. In accordance with the accrual basis of accounting, the YTD Expended columns show only the 
portion of the policy used by the organization, year-to-date. The remainder of the policy fee paid, but not 
used to date is recorded in Prepaid Expenses on the Statement of Net Position, as applicable.

 
Page 210 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
Risk Management Reserves Current Usage Report

As of December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 31

06/30/2021 12/31/2021

Designee Balance Forward Election FY21/22* Remaining

  Designated Funds       

    Anderson Designations 9,681.00 4,000.00 13,681.00

    Auburn Designations 24,770.00 4,000.00 28,770.00

    Colusa Designations 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

    Corning Designations 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

    Dixon Designations 79,329.69 2,490.00 81,819.69

    Elk Grove Designations 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

    Folsom Designations (1,829.37) 4,000.00 2,170.63

    Galt Designations 7,931.00 4,000.00 11,931.00

    Gridley Designations 31,140.00 4,000.00 35,140.00

    Ione Designations 514.00 4,000.00 4,514.00

    Jackson Designations 11,409.00 1,208.00 12,617.00

    Lincoln Designations 8,788.31 4,000.00 12,788.31

    Marysville Designations 19,122.00 49,343.00 68,465.00

    Nevada City Designations 2,453.00 4,000.00 6,453.00

    Oroville Designations 2,529.50 2,910.00 5,439.50

    Paradise Designations 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

    Placerville Designations 9,048.00 4,000.00 13,048.00

    Red Bluff Designations 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Rio Vista Designations 0.00 0.00 0.00

    Rocklin Designations 85,545.20 62,312.00 147,857.20

    Willows Designations 1,999.00 56,176.00 58,175.00

    Yuba City Designations 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

  Total Designated Funds 292,430.33 230,439.00 522,869.33

*In June 2021, the Board approved to move any remaining Member Training Funds as of June 30, 2021 into the members' Risk Management 

Reserves for the 2021-22 fiscal year. This was combined with any other individual member elections for the total Election FY21/22 column.

 
Page 211 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
Police Risk Management Grants Current Usage Report

As of December 31, 2021

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 32

07/01/2021 Through

06/30/2021 12/31/2021 12/31/2021

Balance Forward Grant FY21/22 Current Year Spent Remaining

  Designated Funds         

    Anderson Designations 10,605.00 0.00 0.00 10,605.00

    Auburn Designations 3,091.51 0.00 0.00 3,091.51

    Colusa Designations 7,575.00 0.00 0.00 7,575.00

    Corning Designations 5,012.62 0.00 0.00 5,012.62

    Dixon Designations 7,915.62 5,000.00 0.00 12,915.62

    Elk Grove Designations 6,060.00 0.00 0.00 6,060.00

    Folsom Designations 3,787.00 400,000.00 0.00 403,787.00

    Galt Designations 21,210.00 0.00 0.00 21,210.00

    Gridley Designations 6,061.74 0.00 0.00 6,061.74

    Ione Designations 1,583.93 0.00 0.00 1,583.93

    Jackson Designations 1,515.00 0.00 0.00 1,515.00

    Lincoln Designations 397.87 0.00 0.00 397.87

    Marysville Designations 10,988.13 0.00 0.00 10,988.13

    Nevada City Designations 3,030.00 0.00 0.00 3,030.00

    Oroville Designations 9,090.00 0.00 0.00 9,090.00

    Paradise Designations 6,767.09 0.00 0.00 6,767.09

    Placerville Designations 1,882.44 0.00 1,382.87 499.57

    Red Bluff Designations 4,548.83 0.00 2,692.87 1,855.96

    Rio Vista Designations 6,363.85 0.00 0.00 6,363.85

    Rocklin Designations 3,030.00 0.00 0.00 3,030.00

    Willows Designations 6,318.00 0.00 2,178.00 4,140.00

    Yuba City Designations 11,450.95 0.00 0.00 11,450.95

  Total Designated Funds 138,284.58 405,000.00 6,253.74 537,030.84

 
Page 212 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.2. 
 
 

BUDGET TO ACTUAL AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021 
 

INFORMATION ITEM 
 
 

ISSUE: NCCSIF administrative expenses year-to-date are currently on track with the FY 21/22 Budget.  
Member Training and Risk Management is underutilized as of 12/31, with 97% of the budget remaining.  
  
The annual State Workers’ Compensation Assessment was one-third lower than budgeted this year due 
to the (temporary) decrease in claims during FY 20/21, with $355,000 budgeted and a $235,274 
assessment.   
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and provide feedback as needed.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None expected from this item.  
 
 
BACKGROUND: Members have asked for this item to be reviewed at each meeting to ensure that 
NCCSIF is on track. They have requested that the Program Administrators discuss any items pertaining 
to the budget, updating members on the status of the current budget-to-actual. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Please refer to pages 26 and 27 of the Quarterly Financial Report for Period 
Ending December 31, 2021 - Budget to Actual as of December 31, 2021. 
 
Members are also directed to the Police and Risk Management Reserves Current Usage Report on pages 
31and 32 for funds available to them for risk management purposes.    
  

 
Page 213 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item I.1. 
 

FY 22/23 NCCSIF ADMINISTRATION BUDGET 
 

INFORMATION ITEM 
 

ISSUE: The Executive Committee reviews and recommends to the Board the budget for the next 
fiscal year. Attached is the preliminary budget for review and discussion. The Administrative Costs 
are discussed in more detail below.  
 

Administrative Expenses 
 

1. Claim Audits - Every year either the Liability or Workers’ Compensation claims are 
audited. The Liability Claims audit was budgeted at $7,500 for FY 21/22. The Workers’ 
Compensation Claims audit is budgeted at $15,000 based on last audit.    

2. Actuarial Services are increasing by $820 (5.9%) per current service agreement.   

3. Accounting Services are expected to increase $25,962 (22.9%), including software 
licensing, per current contract.  

4. Sedgwick’s Risk Control services are increasing 3.3%, or $5,840, based on the renewal 
contract, and the Lexipol renewal is increasing 3%, or $4,264.   

5. State Funding/Fraud Assessment has been estimated at $325,000 (-8.5%) based on the 
experience of the last two years ($345,404 in FY 20/21 and $235,274 in FY 21/22). This 
is hard to predict as it is based on the amount of indemnity payments during the year.      

6. The Program Administration and Brokerage Fee is increasing by $11,745 (3.3%) per the 
terms of the current agreement. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and approve as presented or provide direction 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Total administrative expenses are estimated to be $1,457,161, an increase of 
$25,311 (1.8%) over FY 21/22.  A small amount of surplus offset may be available to reduce the funding, 
to be determined as we get closer to the fiscal year end.  
 
BACKGROUND: The administration budget is presented as a separate item for approval with most 
expenses allocated evenly between the Liability and Worker’s Compensation programs.   
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Draft FY 22/23 NCCSIF Admin Budget as of 4/11/22 
  

 
Page 214 of 417



WORK COMP LIABILITY

GROUP

PURCHASE

FY 22/23

TOTAL

FY 21/22

TOTAL $ CHANGE % CHANGE

REVENUES

Est WC Program Banking Layer $7,476,000 $7,476,000 $7,487,000 ($11,000) 0%

Est WC Program Shared Layer $4,207,000 $4,207,000 $4,146,000 $61,000 1%

Est WC Program Admin Expense $959,728 $959,728 $984,379 ($24,651) ‐3%

Est Excess WC Coverage (PRISM) $2,269,000 $2,269,000 $1,978,742 $290,258 15% Final Bill > Version Used in Allocation
Est Liability Program Banking Layer $2,662,000 $2,662,000 $2,234,000 $428,000 19%

Est Liability Program Shared Layer $3,728,000 $3,728,000 $3,000,000 $728,000 24%

Est Liability Program Admin Expense $497,433 $497,433 $449,772 $47,661 11%

Est Excess Liability Coverage (CJPRMA) $5,030,860 $5,030,860 $3,833,207 $1,197,653 31%

Est Group Purchase Property Coverage (APIP) $4,068,301 $4,068,301 $4,068,301 $0 0%

Est Group Purchase Crime Coverage (ACIP) $49,209 $49,209 $53,523 ($4,314) ‐8%

Est Group Purchase Coverage (ADWRP) $12,665 $12,665 $0 0%

Est Pass through Cost ‐ Lexipol Fire Manuals  $33,368 $33,368 $0 0%

N/A Pass through Cost ‐ Appraisal Services N/A N/A N/A Next appraisal in 2023
Est Pass through Cost ‐ Drone Coverage $5,000 $5,000 $0 0%

Total Revenues $14,911,728 $11,918,293 $4,117,510 $30,998,563 $28,285,956

EXPENSES WORK COMP LIABILITY

FY 22/23

TOTAL

FY 21/22

TOTAL $ CHANGE % CHANGE

Administrative Expenses:

Consultants
52101 Claims Audit $15,000 $15,000 $7,500 $7,500 100.0% Biannual WC audit is more expensive than GL

52102 Financial Audit $14,125 $14,125 $28,250 $28,250 $0 0.0%

52103 Legal Services $2,000 $15,000 $17,000 $17,000 $0 0.0%

52104 Actuarial Review $5,900 $7,900 $14,620 $13,800 $820 5.9% Per engagement letter including 6/30 Updates

52105 Computer Services N/A N/A N/A N/A Moved as part of Accounting Services

52106 CAJPA Accreditation (every 3 years: not until 2021) N/A N/A N/A N/A Paid Jan 2021, budget for 2024/2025 

52109 Misc. Consulting/Contingency $2,500 $2,500 $5,000 $5,000 $0 0.0%

Total Consultant Expenses $39,525 $39,525 $79,050 $71,550 $7,500 10.5%

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND

ADMIN BUDGET ‐  Draft 4.11.22
July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 

 
Page 215 of 417



WORK COMP LIABILITY

GROUP

PURCHASE

FY 22/23

TOTAL

FY 21/22

TOTAL $ CHANGE % CHANGE

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND

ADMIN BUDGET ‐  Draft 4.11.22
July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 

Safety Services:

52204 Risk Control Services Agreement $92,160 $92,160 $184,320 $178,480 $5,840 3.3% Per 2019‐22 contract

52201 Outside Training & Safety Award $15,000 $15,000 $30,000 $30,000 $0 0.0% Including $10k for safety award here
52202 Risk Mgmt Comm Mtg Expense $750 $750 $1,500 $1,500 $0 0.0%

52207 Member Training and Risk Management  $50,000 $38,000 $88,000 $88,000 $0 0.0%

$4,000 per member annual allocation for 

training/conferences

52208 Lexipol Police Manual Updates & DTBs $146,404 $146,404 $142,140 $4,264 3.0% 3% increase 

52209 Police Risk Management Funds $25,000 $25,000 $50,000 $50,000 $0 0.0% Pending RMC recommendation

Total Safety Services Expenses $329,314 $170,910 $500,224 $490,120 $10,104 2.1%

Claims Administration

52302 Claims Administration Fee (Reports, etc.) Annu $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Claims Adjustment Fee* Flat fee pricing beginning FY 19/20

52304 State Funding/Fraud Assessment $325,000 $325,000 $355,000 ($30,000) ‐8.5% Actual 21/22= $235,274

Total Claims Admininstration Expenses $325,000 $0 $325,000 $355,000 ($30,000) ‐8.5%

Program Administration

52401 Program Administration and Brokerage Fee $169,601 $203,522 $373,123 $361,378 $11,745 3.3% Per 2019‐24 contract 

52403 Accounting Services $69,726 $69,726 $139,452 $113,490 $25,962 22.9% Per 2022‐25 contract + software

Total Program Admininstration Expenses $239,327 $273,248 $512,575 $474,868 $37,707 7.9%

Board Expenses

52501 Executive Committee $1,250 $1,250 $2,500 $2,500 $0 0.0%

52502 Executive Committee Member Travel $2,000 $2,000 $4,000 $4,000 $0 0.0%

52503 Board of Directors Meetings (includes Travel) $4,000 $4,000 $8,000 $8,000 $0 0.0%

52509

Board of Directors Long Range Planning

(every 3 years, last LRP January 2020) $4,000 $4,000 $8,000 $8,000 $0 0.0% Includes Board Training Day in December

52504

Association Memberships

(PARMA, CAJPA, AGRIP) $2,500 $2,500 $5,000 $5,000 $0 0.0% 21 AGRiP membership increased by 10%

Total Board Expenses $13,750 $13,750 $27,500 $27,500 $0 0.0%

52000 Administrative Expense $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0%

52001 Administration Expense ‐ Other $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0%

52900 Member Identity Theft Protection $12,812 0 $12,812 $12,812 $0 0.0%

Total Other Admin $12,812 $0 $12,812 $12,812 $0 0.0%

Total Admin Expenses $959,728 $497,433 $1,457,161 $1,431,850 $25,311 1.8%

OTHER Administration Expenses

(Not identified with above budget line items)

 
Page 216 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item I.2.a 
 

ACTUARIAL STUDY FOR WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM 
 

ACTION ITEM 
 

ISSUE: Mike Harrington will present his firm’s annual actuarial analysis to assist in making funding, 
dividend and assessment decisions. Below is a summary of this year’s report. 
 

FY 22/23 Funding 
Total recommended funding, net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC, for the Banking and Shared Risk Layers is 
$11,683,000 at the current 80% Confidence Level (CL) - $20,000 more than last year. Overall, the rates 
have decreased 3.6%, from $4.637 to $4.427, with a 5% decrease in the Banking Layer and a 3.5% decrease 
for the Shared Layer. 

Outstanding Liabilities at June 30th 
The actuary estimates that NCCSIF will have total assets of approximately $57,231,000 on June 30, 2021, 
compared to $56,010,000 last year. The estimated total Outstanding Liability on June 30 is $47,072,000 at 
the 90% Confidence Level (CL), compared to $47,159,000 last year. This results in an estimated 
$10,159,000 in net position above the 90% CL, compared to $8,851,000 last year. 
 
Assets for the Banking Layer are estimated at $29,266,000 as of June 30, 2022. Banking Layer liabilities 
are $21,691 at the 90% CL, compared to $21,948,000 last year. This means the Banking Layer net position 
above the 90% CL is estimated at $7,575,000 compared to $6,600,000 last year. 
 
Assets for the Shared Risk Layer are estimated to be $27,965,000 on June 30, 2022. Liabilities are estimated 
at $25,381,000 at the 90% CL, compared to $25,211,000 last year. The net position in excess of the 90% CL 
is estimated to be $2,584,000, compared to $2,251,000 last year. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and request final report or provide direction.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: the underlying rates are decreasing 3.6%. No change is expected to the CL of 80%.   
 
BACKGROUND: NCCSIF annually receives an actuary report to determine the estimated Outstanding 
Liabilities (OL) for the Workers’ Compensation program as of June 30 and to estimate the amount of 
funding required for the upcoming fiscal year. These figures are used for financial reporting purposes and 
to prepare the budget for member deposits. The funding CL was increased from 75% to 80% in FY 18/19. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Bickmore Actuarial WC Program Study March 8, 2022 - DRAFT Summary 

 
Page 217 of 417



 
Page 218 of 417



 
 

180 Promenade Circle, Suite 300, Sacramento, CA 95834 • (916) 244-1160  • www.bickmoreactuarial.net 

 
 
Tuesday, March 8, 2022 
 
Mr. Marcus Beverly 
Vice President 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  
c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
2180 Harvard Street, Suite 460 
Sacramento, CA 95815 
 
Re:  Actuarial Review of the Self-Insured Workers’ Compensation Program 
 

Dear Mr. Beverly: 

As you requested, we have completed our review of Northern California Cities Self 
Insurance Fund’s self-insured workers’ compensation program. Assuming an SIR of 
$500,000 per occurrence, we estimate the ultimate cost of claims and expenses for 
claims incurred during the 2022-23 program year to be $9,834,000. This amount 
includes allocated loss adjustment expenses (ALAE), unallocated loss adjustment 
expenses (ULAE), and a discount for anticipated investment income, but excludes 4850 
TD (Temporary Disability) and 4850 SC (Salary Continuation). Of this amount, 
$6,552,000 is for the banking layer ($0 – $100,000 per occurrence) and $3,282,000 is 
for the shared layer ($100,000 – $500,000 per occurrence). ALAE is the direct cost 
associated with the defense of individual claims (e.g. legal fees, investigation fees, court 
charges). ULAE is the cost to administer all claims to final settlement, which may be 
years into the future (e.g. claims adjusters’ salaries, taxes). The discount for investment 
income is calculated based on the likely payout pattern of NCCSIF’s claims, assuming a 
1.5% return on investments per year. For budgeting purposes, the expected cost of 
2022-23 claims translates to a rate of $3.726 per $100 of payroll, $2.483 for the banking 
layer and $1.244 for the shared layer (assuming $263,935,180 in rated payroll). 

In addition, we estimate the program’s liability for outstanding claims to be $37,478,000 
as of June 30, 2022 again including ALAE and ULAE, and discounted for anticipated 
investment income, but excluding 4850 TD and 4850 SC benefits. Given estimated 
program assets of $57,231,000 as of June 30, 2022, the program will be funded above 
the 90% confidence level on a combined basis and for both the banking layer and 
shared layer separately (see Graphs 1a, 1b and 1c on pages 11, 12, and 13. 

The $37,478,000 estimate is the minimum liability to be booked by NCCSIF at June 30, 
2022 for its workers’ compensation program, in accordance with Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement #10. GASB #10 requires NCCSIF to 
accrue a liability on its financial statements for the ultimate cost of claims and expenses 
associated with all reported and unreported claims, including ALAE and ULAE. GASB 
#10 does not prohibit the discounting of losses to recognize investment income. 

DRAFT

 
Page 219 of 417



 

2 

Our conclusions regarding NCCSIF’s liability for unpaid loss and loss adjustment 
expenses (LAE) at June 30, 2022 are summarized in the table below. 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Workers’ Compensation Program 
Estimated Liability for Unpaid Loss and LAE 

Banking and Shared Layer Combined 
at June 30, 2022 

Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $37,519,000          

ULAE 2,098,000          

Investment 
Income Offset (2,139,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $37,478,000 $40,551,000 $41,750,000 $43,137,000 $44,824,000 $47,072,000

Assets 57,231,000          

Surplus or (Deficit) $19,753,000 $16,680,000 $15,481,000 $14,094,000 $12,407,000 $10,159,000

 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Workers’ Compensation Program 
Estimated Liability for Unpaid Loss and LAE 

Banking Layer 
at June 30, 2022 

Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $17,301,000          

ULAE 2,098,000          

Investment 
Income Offset (1,048,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $18,351,000 $19,507,000 $19,911,000 $20,388,000 $20,957,000 $21,691,000

Assets 29,266,000          

Surplus or (Deficit) $10,915,000 $9,759,000 $9,355,000 $8,878,000 $8,309,000 $7,575,000
 
  

DRAFT

 
Page 220 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



 

3 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Workers’ Compensation Program 
Estimated Liability for Unpaid Loss and LAE 

Shared Layer 
at June 30, 2022 

Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $20,218,000          

ULAE 0          

Investment 
Income Offset (1,091,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $19,127,000 $21,044,000 $21,839,000 $22,749,000 $23,867,000 $25,381,000

Assets 27,965,000          

Surplus or (Deficit) $8,838,000 $6,921,000 $6,126,000 $5,216,000 $4,098,000 $2,584,000
 
GASB #10 does not address an actual asset requirement for the program, but only 
speaks to the liability to be recorded on NCCSIF’s financial statements. Because 
actuarial estimates of claims costs are subject to some uncertainty, we recommend that 
an amount in addition to the discounted expected loss costs be set aside as a risk 
margin for contingencies. Generally, the amount should be sufficient to fund assets to 
the 75% to 85% confidence level for primary programs. We consider funding assets to 
the 70% confidence level to be marginally acceptable and funding assets to the 90% 
confidence level to be conservative. 

Furthermore, the Public Risk Innovation, Solutions, and Management (PRISM) standard 
states that based upon the actuarial recommendations, the member should maintain 
assets and make funding contributions equal to or exceeding the present value of 
expected losses and a reasonable margin for contingencies. 

 
  

DRAFT

 
Page 221 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



 

4 

The tables below show our funding recommendations for Northern California Cities Self 
Insurance Fund for the 2022-23 fiscal year with the Banking Layer $0 to $100,000 and 
the Shared Layer $100,000 to $500,000. 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Workers’ Compensation Program 
Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 

Banking and Shared Layers Combined 
Banking Layer: $0 to $100,000 

Shared Layer: $100,000 to $500,000 
Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $9,393,000          

ULAE 844,000          

Investment 
Income Offset (403,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $9,834,000 $10,827,000 $11,221,000 $11,683,000 $12,243,000 $12,981,000

Rate per $100 of 
2022-23 Payroll $3.726  $4.103  $4.252  $4.427  $4.639  $4.919

 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Workers’ Compensation Program 
Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 

Banking Layer: $0 to $100,000 
Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $5,977,000          

ULAE 844,000          

Investment 
Income Offset (269,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $6,552,000 $7,076,000 $7,260,000 $7,476,000 $7,731,000 $8,066,000

Rate per $100 of 
2022-23 Payroll $2.483  $2.681  $2.751  $2.833  $2.930  $3.056

  

DRAFT

 
Page 222 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



 

5 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Workers’ Compensation Program 
Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 

Shared Layer: $100,000 to $500,000 
Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $3,416,000          

ULAE 0          

Investment 
Income Offset (134,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $3,282,000 $3,751,000 $3,961,000 $4,207,000 $4,512,000 $4,915,000

Rate per $100 of 
2022-23 Payroll $1.244  $1.421  $1.501  $1.594  $1.710  $1.862

 

The funding recommendations shown in the preceding tables do not include any 
recognition of the existing funding margin (surplus or deficit) at June 30, 2022. They are 
for losses and loss adjustment expenses only, and do not include a provision for loss 
control, overhead, excess insurance premiums, and other expenses associated with the 
program. They do not include 4850 TD and 4850 SC benefits. 
  

DRAFT

 
Page 223 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



 

6 

The tables below show our funding recommendations for Northern California Cities Self 
Insurance Fund for the 2022-23 fiscal year with the Banking Layer $0 to $100,000 and 
the Shared Layer $100,000 to $750,000. 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Workers’ Compensation Program 
Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 

Banking and Shared Layers Combined 
Banking Layer: $0 to $100,000 

Shared Layer: $100,000 to $750,000 
Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $10,170,000          

ULAE 844,000          

Investment 
Income Offset (434,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $10,580,000 $10,847,000 $11,260,000 $11,722,000 $12,302,000 $13,060,000

Rate per $100 of 
2022-23 Payroll $4.009  $4.110  $4.267  $4.442  $4.662  $4.949

 
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Workers’ Compensation Program 
Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 

Banking Layer: $0 to $100,000 
Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $5,977,000          

ULAE 844,000          

Investment 
Income Offset (269,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $6,552,000 $7,076,000 $7,260,000 $7,476,000 $7,731,000 $8,066,000

Rate per $100 of 
2022-23 Payroll $2.483  $2.681  $2.751  $2.833  $2.930  $3.056

 
  

DRAFT

 
Page 224 of 417



 

7 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Workers’ Compensation Program 
Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 

Shared Layer: $100,000 to $750,000 
Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $4,193,000          

ULAE 0          

Investment 
Income Offset (165,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $4,028,000 $3,771,000 $4,000,000 $4,246,000 $4,571,000 $4,994,000

Rate per $100 of 
2022-23 Payroll $1.526  $1.429  $1.516  $1.609  $1.732  $1.892

 
 
The funding recommendations shown in the preceding tables do not include any 
recognition of the existing funding margin (surplus or deficit) at June 30, 2022. They are 
for losses and loss adjustment expenses only, and do not include a provision for loss 
control, overhead, excess insurance premiums, and other expenses associated with the 
program. They do not include 4850 TD and 4850 SC benefits. 
 

The estimates in this report do not include a provision for the potential impact on the 
cost of workers’ compensation claims as a result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) 
pandemic. 

The loss projections in this report reflect the estimated impact of benefit legislation 
contained in AB749, AB227, SB228, SB899, SB863, and recent WCAB court decisions 
based upon information provided by the WCIRB. The ultimate impact on loss costs of 
legislated benefit adjustments are generally difficult to forecast in advance because the 
changes typically take place over a period of several years following enactment. 
Furthermore, actuarially derived benefit level evaluations often underestimate actual 
future cost levels. The shortfalls result from a variety of circumstances, including: 
increases in utilization levels, unanticipated changes in administrative procedures, and 
cost shifting among benefit categories. Thus, actual cost increases could differ, perhaps 
substantially, from the WCIRB’s estimates. 

DRAFT

 
Page 225 of 417



 

8 

The report that follows outlines the scope of our study, its background, and our 
conclusions, recommendations, and assumptions. Judgments regarding the 
appropriateness of our conclusions and recommendations should be made only after 
studying the report in its entirety, including the graphs, attachments, exhibits and 
appendices. Our report has been developed for NCCSIF’s internal use. It is not 
intended for general circulation. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Northern California Cities Self 
Insurance Fund in preparing this report. Please feel free to call Mike Harrington at (916) 
244-1162, James Kim at (916) 290-4644 or Eric Small at (916) 244-1165 with any 
questions you may have concerning this report. 

Sincerely, 

Bickmore Actuarial 
 
 
DRAFT 
 
Mike Harrington, FCAS, MAAA 
President and Principal, Bickmore Actuarial 
Fellow, Casualty Actuarial Society 
Member, American Academy of Actuaries 
 
 
DRAFT 
 
James Kim, ACAS, MAAA 
Senior Analyst, Bickmore Actuarial 
Associate, Casualty Actuarial Society 
Member, American Academy of Actuaries 
 
 
DRAFT 
 
Eric Small 
Actuarial Consultant, Bickmore Actuarial 

DRAFT

 
Page 226 of 417



 

9 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

I. BACKGROUND 10

II. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 12

A. LIABILITY FOR OUTSTANDING CLAIMS 12

B. PROGRAM FUNDING: GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 17

C. HISTORICAL TRENDS IN THE SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAM 19

D. COMPARISON WITH PREVIOUS RESULTS 27

E. DATA PROVIDED FOR THE ANALYSIS 33

III. ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITATIONS 34

IV. GLOSSARY OF ACTUARIAL TERMS 36
 
V. EXHIBITS 38 
 
VI. APPENDICES 75 
 

DRAFT

 
Page 227 of 417



 

10 

I. BACKGROUND 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund began its self-insured workers' 
compensation program on July 1, 1979. Its purpose was to provide excess workers’ 
compensation coverage to its members which consist of Northern California 
municipalities. The predecessor to NCCSIF was Feather River JPA and this study 
includes 20 claims for that period. All of these claims are closed. The original NCCSIF 
program was comprised of eight members. Currently, the program includes the twenty 
two members shown below. 
 
ANDERSON ELK GROVE JACKSON PARADISE WILLOWS 
AUBURN FOLSOM LINCOLN PLACERVILLE YUBA CITY 
COLUSA GALT MARYSVILLE RED BLUFF  
CORNING GRIDLEY NEVADA CITY RIO VISTA  
DIXON IONE OROVILLE ROCKLIN  

The Program’s current self-insured retention is $500,000, and excess coverage is 
provided by the PRISM. Claims administration services are provided by Sedgwick. 
Additional background on the program is given in Appendix K. Please note that the 
estimates contained in this report exclude costs for 4850 TD (temporary disability) and 
4850 SC (salary continuation). 

 

 
  

DRAFT

 
Page 228 of 417



 

11 

Although NCCSIF carries a self-insured retention of $500,000, the program is actually 
split into two parts, a banking layer and a shared risk layer. The banking layer applies to 
the first $100,000 of each loss and each member is directly responsible for its actual 
losses in this layer. The shared risk layer applies to the portion of each loss between 
$100,000 and $500,000. The shared risk layer losses are pooled among members. The 
table below shows the confidence levels to which each layer was funded by year. 

Accident Year Shared Layer Banking Layer 

1996-97 70% 70% 
1997-01 80% 70% 
2001-02 80% Expected 
2002-03 60% 70% 
2003-04 70% 70% 
2004-05 70% Expected 
2005-06 70% 70% 
2006-07 70% 70% 
2007-08 70% 70% 
2008-09 60% 60% 
2009-10 60% 60% 
2010-11 60% 60% 
2011-12 60% 60% 
2012-13 60% 60% 
2013-14 60% 60% 
2014-15 65% 65% 
2015-16 67.5% 67.5% 
2016-17 70% 70% 
2017-18 75% 75% 
2018-19 80% 80% 
2019-20 80% 80% 
2020-21 80% 80% 
2021-22 80% 80% 
2022-23 80% 80% 

The purpose of this review is to provide a guide to NCCSIF to determine reasonable 
funding levels for its self-insurance program according to the funding policy NCCSIF 
has adopted and to comply with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements 
#10 and #30. The specific objectives of the study are to estimate NCCSIF’s liability for 
outstanding claims as of June 30, 2022, project ultimate loss costs for 2022-23, and 
provide funding guidelines to meet these liabilities and future costs. 

DRAFT

 
Page 229 of 417



 

12 

II. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

A. LIABILITY FOR OUTSTANDING CLAIMS 

Graphs 1a, 1b and 1c on the following pages summarize our assessment of NCCSIF’s 
funding position as of June 30, 2022. The dark-colored bars indicate our estimates of 
the program’s liability for outstanding claims before recognition of the investment 
income that can be earned on the assets held before the claim payments come due. 
The horizontal line across each graph indicates NCCSIF’s available assets at June 30, 
2022. 

Our best estimate of the full value of NCCSIF’s liability for outstanding claims within its 
pool limit is $39,617,000, $19,399,000 is for the banking layer and $20,218,000 is for 
the shared layer as of June 30, 2022. These amounts include losses, allocated loss 
adjustment expenses (ALAE) and unallocated loss adjustment expenses (ULAE), but 
exclude 4850 TD and 4850 SC benefits. ALAE is the direct cost associated with the 
defense of individual claims (e.g. legal fees, investigation fees, court charges). ULAE is 
the cost to administer claims to final settlement, which may be years in the future (e.g. 
claims adjusters’ salaries, taxes). 

There is some measure of uncertainty associated with our best estimate because of the 
random nature of much of the process that determines ultimate claims costs. For this 
reason, we generally recommend that a program such as this include some funding 
margin for the possibility that actual loss costs will be greater than the best estimate. 
We generally measure the amount of this margin by thinking in terms of the probability 
distribution of actual possible results around our best estimate. As the margin grows, 
the probability that the corresponding funding amount will be sufficient to meet actual 
claim liabilities increases. We typically refer to this probability as the "confidence level" 
of funding. Graphs 1a, 1b and 1c show the liabilities for outstanding claims at several 
confidence levels that are typically of interest to risk managers in formulating funding 
policies for self-insurance programs. 

NCCSIF can earn investment income on the assets it holds until claims payments come 
due. Assuming a long-term average annual return on investments of 1.5%, we estimate 
the impact of investment income earnings to be about 5.4% if the program is funded 
within the range indicated in the graphs, resulting in a discounted liability for outstanding 
claims of $37,478,000, $18,351,000 for the banking layer and $19,127,000 for the 
shared layer as of June 30, 2022. 

Investment income earnings will be less than this when the program does not maintain 
sufficient funding, and more when there is excess funding. Thus, thinking in terms of 
liabilities discounted for investment income can actually mask funding deficiencies and 
redundancies that might otherwise be obvious. However, the discounted liabilities do 
represent legitimate funding targets. The light-colored bars on Graphs 1a, 1b and 1c 
show our estimates of NCCSIF’s discounted liability for outstanding claims. 
  

DRAFT

 
Page 230 of 417



 

13 

Graph 1a 

 

 
  

37,478

40,551
41,750

43,137
44,824

47,072

$39,617

$42,866
$44,133

$45,599
$47,382

$49,759

$57,231

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

Expected 70% 75% 80% 85% 90%

T
h
o
u
s
a
n
d
s

Confidence Levels

NCCSIF - Workers’ Compensation
Available Assets vs Outstanding Liability ($000’s)

at June 30, 2022
Banking and Shared Layers Combined

Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC

Discounted Undiscounted Available Assets

DRAFT

 
Page 231 of 417



 

14 

Graph 1b 

 
  

18,351

19,507 19,911
20,388

20,957
21,691

$19,399

$20,621 $21,048
$21,552

$22,154
$22,930

$29,266

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

Expected 70% 75% 80% 85% 90%

T
h
o
u
s
a
n
d
s

Confidence Levels

NCCSIF - Workers’ Compensation
Available Assets vs Outstanding Liability ($000’s)

at June 30, 2022
Banking Layer

Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC

Discounted Undiscounted Available Assets

DRAFT

 
Page 232 of 417



 

15 

Graph 1c 

 
 
  

19,127

21,044
21,839

22,749

23,867

25,381

$20,218

$22,244
$23,085

$24,047

$25,228

$26,829
$27,965

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

Expected 70% 75% 80% 85% 90%

T
h
o
u
s
a
n
d
s

Confidence Levels

NCCSIF - Workers’ Compensation
Available Assets vs Outstanding Liability ($000’s)

at June 30, 2022
Shared Layer

Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC

Discounted Undiscounted Available Assets

DRAFT

 
Page 233 of 417



 

16 

The table below displays a breakdown of the program’s outstanding loss and LAE 
liabilities into case reserves and incurred but not reported (IBNR) reserves at June 30, 
2022, before recognition of investment income. 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Workers’ Compensation Program 

Estimated Liability for Unpaid Loss and LAE at June 30, 2022 
Banking and Shared Layers Combined 

Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC 

Year 
Case 

Reserves 
IBNR 

Reserves 
Total 

Outstanding 

Prior $1,399,107 $10,254 $1,409,361 

2001-02 61,344 11,867 73,211 

2002-03 243,904 32,932 276,836 

2003-04 178,899 34,413 213,312 

2004-05 253,766 41,247 295,013 

2005-06 382,152 53,829 435,981 

2006-07 629,106 97,416 726,522 

2007-08 494,987 79,575 574,562 

2008-09 365,197 95,611 460,808 

2009-10 590,328 123,930 714,258 

2010-11 261,914 100,449 362,363 

2011-12 984,750 91,710 1,076,460 

2012-13 426,249 209,989 636,238 

2013-14 1,069,808 181,531 1,251,339 

2014-15 1,505,079 240,551 1,745,630 

2015-16 1,157,419 464,088 1,621,507 

2016-17 1,124,571 564,282 1,688,853 

2017-18 1,564,890 701,505 2,266,395 

2018-19 3,175,390 943,975 4,119,365 

2019-20 2,834,430 1,560,301 4,394,731 

2020-21 2,907,846 2,745,875 5,653,721 

2021-22 2,561,374 4,960,860 7,522,234 

    

Loss and ALAE $24,172,510 $13,346,190 $37,518,700 

    

ULAE  2,098,367 2,098,367 

    

Total $24,172,510 $15,444,557 $39,617,067 
  

DRAFT

 
Page 234 of 417



 

17 

B. PROGRAM FUNDING: GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

As self-insurance programs have proliferated among public entities, it has become 
apparent that there is a large measure of inconsistency in the way in which these 
programs recognize and account for their claims costs. This is the result of the fact that 
there have been several different sources of guidance available, none of which has 
been completely relevant to public entity self-insurance programs. 

According to the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the most relevant 
source of guidance on the subject is Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement 
#60. A liability for unpaid claim costs, including all loss adjustment expenses, should be 
accrued at the time the self-insured events occur. This liability should include an 
allowance for incurred but not reported claims. It may be discounted for investment 
income at an appropriate rate of return, provided the discounting is disclosed. The 
regulations detailing the way in which this must be done are outlined in GASB’s 
statements #10 and #30. These regulations are required to be applied by NCCSIF. 

GASB #10 and #30 do not address asset requirements. They do, however, allow a 
range of amounts to be recognized for accounting purposes; specifically, GASB #10 
and #30 allow recognition of a risk margin for unexpectedly adverse loss experience. 
Thus, for accounting purposes, it is possible to formulate a funding policy from a range 
of alternatives. The uncertainty in any estimate of the program’s liability for outstanding 
claims should be taken into consideration in determining funding policy, but it may be 
offset by recognizing anticipated investment income earnings. This usually means 
developing a funding program based on discounted claims costs with some risk margin 
for unexpected adverse loss experience. 

The amount of the risk margin should be a question of long-term funding policy. We 
recommend that the risk margin be determined by thinking in terms of the probability 
that a given level of assets will prove to be adequate. For example, a reasonable goal 
might be to maintain assets at the 85% confidence level. 

A key factor to consider in determining funding policy is the degree to which stability is 
required in the level of contributions to the program from year to year. If you elect to 
maintain assets at a low confidence level, the chances are much greater that future 
events will prove that additional contributions should have been made for old claims. 
The additional contributions for old claims may be required at the same time that costs 
are increasing dramatically on new claims. The burden of funding for increases on past 
years as well as on current years, may well be prohibitive. 

DRAFT

 
Page 235 of 417



 

18 

We generally recommend maintaining program assets at the 80% confidence level, 
after recognition of investment income, with a recommended range of the 75% to 85% 
confidence levels. We tend to think of the 70% confidence level as marginally 
acceptable and of the 90% confidence level as conservative. We recommend the 75% 
to 85% confidence level range because the probabilities are reasonably high that 
resulting assets will be sufficient to meet claim liabilities, yet the required risk margins 
are not so large that they will cause most self-insured entities to experience undue 
financial hardship. In addition, within this range, anticipated investment income 
generally offsets the required risk margin for the most part, which means that assets are 
likely sufficient on an undiscounted basis. 

We also strongly believe, however, that the confidence level to which any future year is 
funded should be evaluated in light of the relative certainty of the assumptions 
underlying the actuarial analysis, NCCSIF’s other budgetary constraints, and the 
relative level of risk it is believed appropriate to assume. This means formulating both 
short and long-term funding goals, which may be the same in some years, but different 
in others. 

In general, we recommend funding each year’s claims costs in that year. When 
surpluses or deficits have developed on outstanding liabilities and funding adjustments 
are necessary, they should be clearly identified as such so that the habit of funding 
each year’s claims costs that year is maintained. We also recommend that you reduce a 
surplus more slowly than you would accumulate funding to reduce a deficit. 

It is estimated that program assets will be $57,231,000 at June 30, 2022, $29,266,000 
for the banking layer and $27,965,000 for the shared layer, resulting in the program 
being funded above the 90% confidence level on a combined basis and for both the 
banking layer and shared layer separately 

DRAFT

 
Page 236 of 417



 

19 

C. HISTORICAL TRENDS IN THE SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAM 

The program’s loss rate per $100 of payroll has been relatively flat during the last ten 
years, averaging $3.43 per $100 of payroll. We selected a loss rate of $3.46 per $100 of 
payroll for the 2021-22 program year based on the assumption that this trend will 
continue. See Graph 2a below. 

Graph 2a 

 

3.71

3.21

3.57
3.73

2.95

3.59

2.95

4.02

3.22
3.33

3.46

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50

4.00

4.50

11-12

12-13

13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

Program Year

NCCSIF - Workers’ Compensation
Banking and Shared Layers Combined

Dollars of Loss per
$100 of Payroll

Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC

Loss Rate

DRAFT

 
Page 237 of 417



 

20 

The banking layer loss rate per $100 of payroll has been relatively flat during the last 
ten years. Our projected 2021-22 loss rate of $2.22 per $100 of payroll reflects this 
trend. See Graph 2b below. 

Graph 2b 

 
 
  

2.45
2.37 2.37

2.43

1.94

2.33

2.00

2.55

2.20

2.04

2.22

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

11-12

12-13

13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

Program Year

NCCSIF - Workers’ Compensation
Banking Layer

Dollars of Loss per
$100 of Payroll

Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC

Loss Rate

DRAFT

 
Page 238 of 417



 

21 

The shared layer loss rate has varied a considerably over the last ten years, typical for 
excess layers losses. Overall rates appear to follow an increasing trend in the most 
recent ten years. We projected 2021-22 loss rate of $1.24 based on this trend. See 
Graph 2c below. 

Graph 2c 

 
  

1.27

0.84

1.20

1.30

1.01

1.26

0.95

1.47

1.02

1.29
1.24

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

11-12

12-13

13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

Program Year

NCCSIF - Workers’ Compensation
Shared Layer 

Dollars of Loss per
$100 of Payroll

Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC

Loss Rate

DRAFT

 
Page 239 of 417



 

22 

The program’s average cost per claim has been following a generally increasing trend 
over the past ten years. The program’s average cost per claim has ranged from a low of 
$13,000 to a high of $23,700. Our projected 2021-22 average cost of $21,600 per claim 
reflects this upward trend. See Graph 3a below. 

Graph 3a 

 

16,700

13,000

16,600

18,800
17,900

18,400

16,700

23,700

21,500

18,600

21,600

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

11-12

12-13

13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

Program Year

NCCSIF - Workers’ Compensation
Banking and Shared Layers Combined

Dollars of Loss per Claim
Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC

Claim Severity

DRAFT

 
Page 240 of 417



 

23 

The banking layer’s average cost per claim been following a generally increasing trend 
over the past ten years. The program’s average cost per claim has ranged from a low of 
$9,600 to a high of $15,000. Our projected 2021-22 average cost of $13,900 per claim 
reflects this upward trend. See Graph 3b below. 

Graph 3b 

 
 
  

11,000

9,600

11,000

12,300
11,800 11,900

11,300

15,000
14,700

11,400

13,900

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

11-12

12-13

13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

Program Year

NCCSIF - Workers’ Compensation
Banking Layer

Dollars of Loss per Claim
Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC

Claim Severity

DRAFT

 
Page 241 of 417



 

24 

The shared layer average cost per claim has been volatile over the period shown below 
but has been generally increasing during the past ten years. We project the 2021-22 
shared layer severity to be $154,600 per claim. See Graph 3c Below. 

Graph 3c 

 
 
  

124,500

81,100

94,000

109,300
103,000100,900

86,900

136,000136,000

172,100

154,600

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

180,000

200,000

11-12

12-13

13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

Program Year

NCCSIF - Workers’ Compensation
Shared Layer

Dollars of Loss per Claim
Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC

Claim Severity

DRAFT

 
Page 242 of 417



 

25 

The program’s frequency of claims per $1 million payroll has been generally trending 
downward. The projected 2021-22 frequency of 1.60 is based on that decreasing trend. 
See Graph 4a below. (Note that banking layer frequency is the same as shown below 
for the program.) 

Graph 4a 

 
  

2.23

2.48

2.15

1.98

1.65

1.95

1.76
1.69

1.49

1.79

1.60

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

11-12

12-13

13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

Program Year

NCCSIF - Workers’ Compensation
Number of Claims per 
$1 Million of Payroll

Claim Frequency

DRAFT

 
Page 243 of 417



 

26 

The shared layer frequency of claims per $1 million payroll has been somewhat volatile, 
following no discernable pattern. Such volatility is not unexpected since the program 
receives very few claims per year. Thus, even one additional claim can have a 
significant impact. We project the 2021-22 shared layer frequency to be 0.080 claims 
per $1 million payroll. See Graph 4b below. 

Graph 4b 

 

0.102
0.104

0.128

0.119

0.098

0.125

0.109 0.110

0.075 0.075
0.080

0.000

0.020

0.040

0.060

0.080

0.100

0.120

0.140

11-12

12-13

13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

Program Year

NCCSIF - Workers’ Compensation
Shared Layer

Number of Claims per 
$1 Million of Payroll

Claim Frequency

DRAFT

 
Page 244 of 417



 

27 

D. COMPARISON WITH PREVIOUS RESULTS 

The prior report for Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund was dated March 4, 
2021. In the table below we display actual versus expected development of incurred 
losses and ALAE by accident year between the December 31, 2020 evaluation date of 
the prior report and the December 31, 2021 evaluation date of the current report. 
 

Actual Versus Expected Incurred Loss and ALAE Development 

Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC 
    

Accident 
Year 

Expected 
Incurred 

Development 

Actual 
Incurred 

Development 
Actual 

Minus Expected 
    

Prior $58,000 ($45,000) ($103,000) 
2001-02 11,000 32,000 21,000 
2002-03 19,000 102,000 83,000 
2003-04 13,000 (12,000) (25,000) 
2004-05 11,000 10,000 (1,000) 
2005-06 11,000 34,000 23,000 
2006-07 17,000 (186,000) (203,000) 
2007-08 11,000 25,000 14,000 
2008-09 12,000 52,000 40,000 
2009-10 18,000 94,000 76,000 
2010-11 16,000 (21,000) (37,000) 
2011-12 30,000 6,000 (24,000) 
2012-13 48,000 (60,000) (108,000) 
2013-14 50,000 (80,000) (130,000) 
2014-15 36,000 (636,000) (672,000) 
2015-16 150,000 118,000 (32,000) 
2016-17 138,000 124,000 (14,000) 
2017-18 231,000 72,000 (159,000) 
2018-19 536,000 933,000 397,000 
2019-20 1,365,000 722,000 (643,000) 
2020-21 3,703,000 3,203,000 (500,000) 

    
Total $6,484,000 $4,487,000 ($1,997,000) 

 
As shown, actual incurred development was less than anticipated since the prior report. 
Based on the assumptions from the prior report, it was expected that incurred losses 
would increase by $6,484,000 between the two evaluation dates. However, actual 
development was approximately $4,487,000; or about $1,997,000 less than expected. 
Ten of the last eleven accident years have developed less than expected.  

DRAFT

 
Page 245 of 417



 

28 

In the table below we display actual versus expected development of paid losses and 
ALAE by accident year between the December 31, 2020 evaluation date of the prior 
report and the December 31, 2021 evaluation date of the current report. 
 

Actual Versus Expected Paid Loss and ALAE Development 

Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC 
    

Accident 
Year 

Expected 
Paid 

Development 

Actual 
Paid 

Development 
Actual 

Minus Expected 
    

Prior $220,000 $37,000 ($183,000) 
2001-02 16,000 55,000 39,000 
2002-03 29,000 12,000 (17,000) 
2003-04 29,000 13,000 (16,000) 
2004-05 33,000 19,000 (14,000) 
2005-06 40,000 10,000 (30,000) 
2006-07 81,000 37,000 (44,000) 
2007-08 52,000 15,000 (37,000) 
2008-09 41,000 13,000 (28,000) 
2009-10 87,000 157,000 70,000 
2010-11 70,000 95,000 25,000 
2011-12 229,000 136,000 (93,000) 
2012-13 150,000 60,000 (90,000) 
2013-14 286,000 229,000 (57,000) 
2014-15 437,000 325,000 (112,000) 
2015-16 320,000 87,000 (233,000) 
2016-17 570,000 898,000 328,000 
2017-18 776,000 377,000 (399,000) 
2018-19 1,768,000 1,286,000 (482,000) 
2019-20 2,086,000 898,000 (1,188,000) 
2020-21 1,862,000 1,243,000 (619,000) 

       
Total $9,182,000 $6,002,000 ($3,180,000) 

 
As shown, actual paid development was less than anticipated since the prior report. 
Based on the assumptions from the prior report, it was expected that paid losses would 
increase by $9,182,000 between the two evaluation dates. However, actual 
development was approximately $6,002,000; or about $3,180,000 less than expected. 
Most accident years are emerging less than expected. 

DRAFT

 
Page 246 of 417



 

29 

In the table below we display the change in our estimates of the program’s ultimate 
losses and ALAE by accident year since our prior report. 
 

Change in Ultimate Loss and ALAE 

Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC 
    
   Change 

Accident 
Year 

Prior 
Report 

Current 
Report 

In 
Ultimate 

    
Prior $52,871,000 $52,730,000 ($141,000) 

2001-02 3,905,000 3,926,000 21,000 
2002-03 6,790,000 6,874,000 84,000 
2003-04 4,219,000 4,194,000 (25,000) 
2004-05 3,786,000 3,786,000 0 
2005-06 4,174,000 4,197,000 23,000 
2006-07 6,131,000 5,926,000 (205,000) 
2007-08 3,918,000 3,934,000 16,000 
2008-09 4,160,000 4,201,000 41,000 
2009-10 4,760,000 4,837,000 77,000 
2010-11 3,426,000 3,387,000 (39,000) 
2011-12 5,946,000 5,907,000 (39,000) 
2012-13 5,108,000 4,996,000 (112,000) 
2013-14 6,632,000 6,506,000 (126,000) 
2014-15 7,864,000 7,324,000 (540,000) 
2015-16 6,220,000 6,121,000 (99,000) 
2016-17 7,561,000 7,610,000 49,000 
2017-18 6,650,000 6,330,000 (320,000) 
2018-19 8,628,000 8,981,000 353,000 
2019-20 8,431,000 7,560,000 (871,000) 
2020-21 8,785,000 8,044,000 (741,000) 

    
Total $169,965,000 $167,371,000 ($2,594,000) 

 
As shown, overall we have decreased our estimated ultimates by $2,594,000 since our 
prior report. These changes track well with actual versus expected incurred and paid 
development mentioned above. 
 

DRAFT

 
Page 247 of 417



 

30 

At the time of the prior report, we estimated the liability for outstanding claims as of 
June 30, 2021 to be $37,487,000 at the discounted, expected level. Our current 
estimate as of June 30, 2022, is $37,478,000, a slight decrease in our assessment of 
NCCSIF’s outstanding liabilities, as shown below: 

Outstanding Claim Liabilities for Loss and LAE 
Banking and Shared Layers Combined 

Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC 

 Prior Current  
 Report at Report at  
 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2022 Change 

(A) Case Reserves: $24,016,000 $24,173,000 $157,000 

(B) IBNR Reserves: 13,597,000 13,346,000 (251,000) 

(C) Claims Administration Reserves: 2,014,000 2,098,000 84,000 

(D) Total Reserves: $39,627,000 $39,617,000 ($10,000) 

(E) Offset for Investment Income: (2,140,000) (2,139,000) 1,000 

(F) Total Outstanding Claim Liabilities: $37,487,000 $37,478,000 ($9,000) 
 
As shown, our estimate of outstanding claims liabilities at the discounted, expected level 
has decreased between June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2022 as reflected in our prior and 
current reports respectively. 

DRAFT

 
Page 248 of 417



 

31 

At the time of the prior report, available assets were estimated to be $56,010,000 as of 
June 30, 2021, which corresponded to the then-estimated discounted liability for 
outstanding claims above the 90% confidence level. Available assets are currently 
estimated to be $57,231,000 as of June 30, 2022, which corresponds to the currently 
estimated liability for outstanding claims above the 90% confidence level. It can be 
summarized as follows: 

Funding Margin 
Banking and Shared Layers Combined 

Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC 

 Prior Current  
 Report at Report at  
 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2022 Change 
    

(A) Outstanding Liability at the 
 Discounted Expected Level: $37,487,000 $37,478,000 ($9,000) 

(B) Estimated Assets    
 At June 30: 56,010,000 57,231,000 1,221,000 

(C) Surplus/(Deficit): $18,523,000 $19,753,000 $1,230,000 
 

DRAFT

 
Page 249 of 417



 

32 

At the time of the prior report, our funding estimate for the 2021-22 year was $9,759,000 
at the discounted, expected level. That amount included allocated loss adjustment 
expenses (ALAE), unallocated loss adjustment expenses (ULAE), and a discount for 
anticipated investment income. Our current estimate for the 2022-23 year is $9,834,000 
at the discounted, expected level, an increase in the program’s expected loss costs, as 
shown in the table below: 

Comparison of Funding for Loss and LAE 
Banking and Shared Layers Combined 

Net of 4850 TD and 4850 SC 

 Prior Current  
 Report Report  
 2021-22 2022-23  

 
Pool Limit = 
$500,000 

Pool Limit = 
$500,000 Change 

(A) Ultimate Loss and ALAE: $9,319,000 $9,393,000 $74,000 

(B) Ultimate Claims Administration (ULAE): 840,000 844,000 4,000 

(C) Total Claim Costs: $10,159,000 $10,237,000 $78,000 

(D) Offset for Investment Income: (400,000) (403,000) (3,000) 

(E) Total Recommended Funding: $9,759,000 $9,834,000 $75,000 

(F) Funding per $100 of Payroll: $3.89 $3.73 ($0.16) 
 
As you can see, our funding recommendations at the discounted, expected level have 
increased between 2021-22 and 2022-23, as shown in our prior and current reports 
respectively. This increase is due to an increase in payroll, partially offset by less than 
expected claims experience in recent accident years. The funding rate per $100 of 
payroll has decreased from $3.89 to $3.73, a 4.1% decrease. 

DRAFT

 
Page 250 of 417



 

33 

E. DATA PROVIDED FOR THE ANALYSIS 

Overall, the data utilized in preparing this report appears to be accurate. 

Comments and issues regarding the data are as follows: 

 We have assumed that the program’s self-insured retention will remain at 
$500,000 per occurrence for 2021-22 and 2022-23 (See Appendix K). 

 We estimated the June 30, 2022 asset balance by beginning with the June 30, 
2021 asset balance, and adjusting for anticipated revenue and expense for 2021-
22 (see Appendix L). 

 We received loss data evaluated as of December 31, 2021 (See Appendix M). 
We also utilized the data from NCCSIF’s most recent actuarial study for our 
assessment of loss development. 

 We have assumed that NCCSIF’s payroll for 2022-23 will be $263,935,180 
based upon information provided by NCCSIF (See Appendix N). 

 Please note that the estimates contained in this report do not include costs for 
4850 TD (Temporary Disability) and 4850 SC (salary continuation). The loss run 
provided separated losses into various layers, including Banking and Shared. 
However, additional fields were developed which removed voucher amounts 
which are not paid from the insurance fund. These vouchers are the 
responsibility of the individual member. 

 The estimates in this report do not include a provision for the potential impact on 
the cost of workers’ compensation claims as a result of the coronavirus (COVID-
19) pandemic. 

The data provided for the analysis appears to be reasonable for use in this actuarial 
valuation of liabilities and projection of loss costs. 
  

DRAFT

 
Page 251 of 417



 

34 

III. ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITATIONS 
 
Any quantitative analysis is developed within a very specific framework of assumptions 
about conditions in the outside world, and actuarial analysis is no exception. We believe 
that it is important to review the assumptions we have made in developing the estimates 
presented in this report. By doing so, we hope you will gain additional perspective on 
the nature of the uncertainties involved in maintaining a self-insurance program. Our 
assumptions, and some observations about them, are as follows: 

 Our analysis is based on loss experience, exposure data, and other general and 
specific information provided to us by NCCSIF. We have accepted all of this 
information without audit. 

 We have also made use of loss statistics that have been developed from the 
information gathered and compiled from other California counties participating in the 
PRISM’s workers’ compensation program. 

 We have assumed that the future development of incurred and paid losses can be 
reasonably predicted on the basis of development of such losses in the recent past. 
We have also assumed that the historical development patterns for the participants 
of the PRISM’s workers’ compensation program in the aggregate form a reasonable 
basis of comparison to the patterns from Northern California Cities Self Insurance 
Fund’s data. 

 We have made use of cost relationships for claims of various sizes derived from the 
most recent actuarial review of the PRISM’s workers’ compensation program. 

 We have assumed that there is a continuing relationship between past and future 
loss costs. 

 It is not possible to predict future claim costs precisely. Most of the costs of workers’ 
compensation claims arise from a small number of incidents involving serious injury. 
A relatively small number of such claims could generate enough loss dollars to 
significantly reduce, or even deplete, the self-insurance fund. 

 We cannot predict and have not attempted to predict the impact of future law 
changes and court rulings on claims costs. This is one major reason why we believe 
our funding recommendations are reasonable now, but should not be extrapolated 
into the future. 

 The changes in cost levels associated with benefit increases and administrative 
changes typically take place over a period of several years following their 
enactment, and these changes are very difficult to forecast in advance. We have 
based our benefit level factors on those produced by the Workers’ Compensation 
Insurance Rating Bureau of California (WCIRB). See Appendix E for a display of the 
benefit level cost indices by fiscal year. 

DRAFT

 
Page 252 of 417



 

35 

 We have assumed that the loss rate trend associated with claim costs increases at 
1.5% per year. We have assumed that claim severity increases at 1.5% per year, 
and that claim frequency will remain flat. 

 We have assumed that payroll and other inflation-sensitive exposure measures 
increase 2.5% annually due to inflation. 

 We have assumed that assets held for investment will generate an average annual 
return of 1.5% over the duration of payment of the loss liabilities. It should be noted 
that actual future investment returns may vary significantly from this assumption, 
depending upon the prevailing investment market conditions. 

 The claims costs we have estimated include indemnity and medical payments, and 
all loss adjustment expenses. We have not included estimates for excess insurance 
contributions to the PRISM and other expenses associated with the program based 
upon information provided by NCCSIF. 

 Our funding recommendations do not include provisions for catastrophic events not 
in NCCSIF’s history, such as earthquakes, flooding, mass civil disorder, or mass 
occupational disease. 

 Our estimates assume that all excess insurance is valid and collectible. Further, our 
funding recommendations do not include a provision for losses greater than 
NCCSIF’s excess coverage. 

 NCCSIF’s assets available for the program are estimated to be $57,231,000 as of 
June 30, 2022 for use in this report. This is shown in further detail in Appendix L. 

DRAFT

 
Page 253 of 417



 

36 

IV. GLOSSARY OF ACTUARIAL TERMS 
 
Accident Year - Year during which the accidents that generate a group of claims 
occurs, regardless of when the claims are reported, payments are made, or reserves 
are established. 
 
Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses (ALAE) - Expense incurred in settling claims 
that can be directly attributed to specific individual claims (e.g., legal fees, investigative 
fees, court charges, etc.) 
 
Benefit Level Factor - Factor used to adjust historical losses to the current level of 
workers’ compensation benefits. 
 
Case Reserve - The amount left to be paid on a claim, as estimated by the claims 
administrator. 
 
Claim Count Development Factor - A factor that is applied to the number of claims 
reported in a particular accident period in order to estimate the number of claims that 
will ultimately be reported. 
 
Claim Frequency - Number of claims per $1 million of payroll. 
 
Confidence Level - An estimated probability that a given level of funding will be 
adequate to pay actual claims costs. For example, the 85% confidence level refers to an 
estimate for which there is an 85% chance that the amount will be sufficient to pay loss 
costs. 
 
Discount Factor - A factor to adjust estimated loss costs to reflect anticipated 
investment income from assets held prior to actual claim payout. 
 
Expected Losses - The best estimate of the full, ultimate value of loss costs. 
 
Incurred but not Reported (IBNR) Losses - Losses for which the accident has 
occurred but the claim has not yet been reported. This is the ultimate value of losses, 
less any amount that has been set up as reported losses by the claims adjuster. It 
includes both amounts for claims incurred but not yet received by the administrator and 
loss development on already reported claims. 
 
Loss Development Factor - A factor applied to losses for a particular accident period 
to reflect the fact that reported and paid losses do not reflect final values until all claims 
are settled (see Section IV). 
 
Loss Rate - Ultimate losses per $100 of payroll. 
 

DRAFT

 
Page 254 of 417



 

37 

Non-Claims Related Expenses – Program expenses not directly associated with 
claims settlement and administration, such as excess insurance, safety program 
expenses, and general overhead. These exclude expenses associated with loss 
settlements (Indemnity/Medical, BI/PD), legal expenses associated with individual 
claims (ALAE), and claims administration (ULAE). 
 
Outstanding Losses - Losses that have been incurred but not paid. This is the ultimate 
value of losses less any amount that has been paid. 
 
Paid Losses - Losses actually paid on all reported claims. 
 
Program Losses - Losses, including ALAE, limited to the SIR for each occurrence. 
 
Reported Losses - The total expected value of losses as estimated by the claims 
administrator. This is the sum of paid losses and case reserves. 
 
Self-Insured Retention (SIR) - The level at which an excess insurance policy is 
triggered to begin payments on a claim. Financially, this is similar to an insurance 
deductible. 
 
Severity - Average claim cost. 
 
Ultimate Losses - The value of claim costs at the time when all claims have been 
settled. This amount must be estimated until all claims are actually settled. 
 
Unallocated Loss Adjustment Expenses (ULAE) – Claim settlement expenses that 
cannot be directly attributed to individual claims (e.g., claims adjusters’ salaries, taxes, 
etc.) 

DRAFT

 
Page 255 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item I.2.b. 
 

ACTUARIAL STUDY FOR LIABILITY PROGRAM 
ACTION ITEM 

 
ISSUE: Mike Harrington will present his firm’s annual actuarial analysis to assist in making funding, 
dividend and assessment decisions. Below is a summary of this year’s report that will be discussed in greater 
detail at the meeting. 
 

FY 22/23 Funding 
The rate at the 80% CL for the current $500,000 SIR is $2.923 per $100 of payroll, compared to $2.851 last 
year, an increase of 7.2%. However, the group’s SIR will increase to at least $750,000 for FY 22/23, with 
total funding at the 80% CL estimated at $6,390,000, or $3.24 per $100 of member payroll. Banking Layer 
funding is $2,662,000 at a rate of $1.35, and the Shared Layer funding is $3,728,000 at a rate of $1.892. 
The increase to fund the additional $250,000 SIR at the 80% CL is $629,000 (or $500,000 at the Expected 
level). Funding for a $1M SIR is estimated to save $277,741 in excess coverage but cost members an 
additional $404,000 to fund themselves, so at this time increasing to $1M is not recommended.   

 
Outstanding Liabilities at June 30th 

The Actuary estimates the Liability Program will have total assets of approximately $19,088,000 on June 
30, 2022, compared to $17,915,000 last year. The estimated total Outstanding Liability at June 30 is 
$14,294,000 at the 90% Confidence Level (CL), compared to $13,202,000 last year. This results in an 
estimated net position of $4,794,000 above the 90% CL, compared to a net position of $4,713,000 last year. 
 
Assets for the Banking Layer are estimated at $7,637,000 as of June 30, 2022, compared to $8,054,000 in 
2021. Banking Layer liabilities are $4,670,000 at the 90% confidence level, compared to $3,367,000 last 
year. This means the Banking Layer net position above the 90% CL is estimated at $2,967,000, compared 
to $4,687,000 last year. 
 
Assets for the Shared Risk Layer are estimated to be $11,451,000 at June 30, 2022, compared to $9,861,000 
in 2021. Liabilities are estimated at $9,624,000 at the 90% CL, compared to $9,835,000 last year. This 
results in an estimated net position of $1,827,000 above the 90% CL, compared to $26,000 last year. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and request final report or provide direction.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: the NCC rate is increasing from $2.851 to $3.243, or 13.7%, with a 50% SIR increase.      
 
BACKGROUND: NCCSIF annually receives an actuary report to determine the estimated Outstanding 
Liabilities (OL) for the Liability program as of June 30 and to estimate the amount of funding required for 
the upcoming fiscal year.  These figures are used for financial reporting purposes and to prepare the budget 
for member deposits. The funding CL was increased from 75% to 80% in FY 18/19. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Bickmore Actuarial Liability Program Study March 14, 2022 - DRAFT Summary 

 
Page 256 of 417



 
Page 257 of 417



 
 

180 Promenade Circle, Suite 300, Sacramento, CA 95834 • (916) 244-1160  • www.bickmoreactuarial.net 

 
Monday, March 14, 2022 
 
 
Mr. Marcus Beverly 
Vice President 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  
C/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
1792 Tribute Road, Suite 450 
Sacramento, CA 95815 
 
Re:  Actuarial Review of the Self-Insured Liability Program 
 

Dear Mr. Beverly: 

As you requested, we have completed our review of Northern California Cities Self 
Insurance Fund’s self-insured liability program. Assuming a pool limit of $500,000 per 
occurrence, we estimate the ultimate cost of claims and expenses for claims incurred 
during the 2022-23 program years to be $4,322,000. Of this amount, $1,992,000 is for 
the banking layer ($0 – $50,000 per occurrence) and $2,330,000 is for the shared layer 
($50,000 – $500,000 per occurrence). These amounts include allocated loss adjustment 
expenses (ALAE), unallocated loss adjustment expenses (ULAE), and a discount for 
anticipated investment income. ALAE is the direct cost associated with the defense of 
individual claims (e.g. legal fees, investigation fees, court charges). ULAE is the cost to 
administer all claims to final settlement, which may be years into the future (e.g. claims 
adjusters’ salaries, taxes). The discount for investment income is calculated based on 
the likely payout pattern of NCCSIF’s claims, assuming a 1.5% return on investments 
per year. For budgeting purposes, the expected cost of 2022-23 claims translates to 
rates of $2.193 per $100 payroll, $1.011 for the banking layer and $1.182 for the shared 
layer (assuming $197,065,291 in 2021 DE-9 payroll). 

In addition, we estimate the program’s liability for outstanding claims to be $10,845,000 
as of June 30, 2022, again including ALAE and ULAE, and discounted for anticipated 
investment income. Of this amount, $3,511,000 is for the banking layer and $7,334,000 
is for the shared layer. Given estimated program assets of $19,088,000 as of June 30, 
2022, the program is expected to be funded above the 90% confidence levels on a 
combined basis. The banking layer is expected to be funded above the 90% confidence 
level.  The shared layer is expected to be funded above the 90% confidence level. (See 
Graphs 1a, 1b and 1c on pages 17, 18, and 19.) 

The $10,845,000 estimate is the minimum liability to be booked by NCCSIF at June 30, 
2022 for Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund’s liability program, in 
accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement #10. 
GASB #10 requires NCCSIF to accrue a liability on its financial statements for the 
ultimate cost of claims and expenses associated with all reported and unreported 
claims, including ALAE and ULAE. GASB #10 does not prohibit the discounting of 
losses to recognize investment income. 

DRAFT

 
Page 258 of 417



 

2 

Our conclusions regarding NCCSIF’s liability for unpaid loss and loss adjustment 
expenses (LAE) at June 30, 2022 are summarized in the table below. 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Liability Program 

Estimated Liability for Unpaid Loss and LAE  
Banking and Shared Layers Combined 

at June 30, 2022 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $10,810,000          

ULAE 325,000          

Investment 
Income Offset (290,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $10,845,000 $11,930,000 $12,363,000 $12,862,000 $13,480,000 $14,294,000

Assets 19,088,000          

Surplus or (Deficit) $8,243,000 $7,158,000 $6,725,000 $6,226,000 $5,608,000 $4,794,000

 
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Liability Program 

Estimated Liability for Unpaid Loss and LAE 
Banking Layer 

at June 30, 2022 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $3,280,000          

ULAE 325,000          

Investment 
Income Offset (94,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $3,511,000 $3,852,000 $3,999,000 $4,171,000 $4,385,000 $4,670,000

Assets 7,637,000          

Surplus or (Deficit) $4,126,000 $3,785,000 $3,638,000 $3,466,000 $3,252,000 $2,967,000

 
 

  

DRAFT

 
Page 259 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



 

3 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Liability Program 

Estimated Liability for Unpaid Loss and LAE 
Shared Layer 

at June 30, 2022 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $7,530,000          

ULAE 0          

Investment 
Income Offset (196,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $7,334,000 $8,078,000 $8,364,000 $8,691,000 $9,095,000 $9,624,000

Assets 11,451,000          

Surplus or (Deficit) $4,117,000 $3,373,000 $3,087,000 $2,760,000 $2,356,000 $1,827,000

 
 
GASB #10 does not address an actual asset requirement for the program, but only 
speaks to the liability to be recorded on NCCSIF’s financial statements. Because 
actuarial estimates of claims costs are subject to some uncertainty, we recommend that 
an amount in addition to the discounted expected loss costs be set aside as a risk 
margin for contingencies. Generally, the amount should be sufficient to fund assets to 
the 75% to 85% confidence level for primary programs. We consider funding assets to 
the 70% confidence level to be marginally acceptable and funding assets to the 90% 
confidence level to be conservative. 

 
  

DRAFT

 
Page 260 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



 

4 

The table below shows our funding recommendations for Northern California Cities Self 
Insurance Fund for the 2022-23 fiscal year. 

 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Self-Insured Liability Program 
Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 

Banking and Shared Layers Combined 
Banking Layer: $0 to $50,000 

Shared Layer: $50,000 to $500,000 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $4,170,000          

ULAE 297,000          

Investment 
Income Offset (145,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $4,322,000 $5,031,000 $5,368,000 $5,761,000 $6,258,000 $6,920,000

Rate per $100 of 
2021 DE-9 Payroll $2.193 $2.553 $2.724 $2.923 $3.176 $3.512

 
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Liability Program 

Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 
Banking Layers 

Banking Layer: $0 to $50,000 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $1,736,000          

ULAE 297,000          

Investment 
Income Offset (41,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $1,992,000 $2,322,000 $2,478,000 $2,662,000 $2,891,000 $3,199,000

Rate per $100 of 
2021 DE-9 Payroll $1.011 $1.178 $1.257 $1.351 $1.467 $1.623

 
 
  

DRAFT

 
Page 261 of 417



 

5 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Liability Program 

Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 
Shared Layers 

Shared Layer: $50,000 to $500,000 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $2,434,000          

ULAE 0          

Investment 
Income Offset (104,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $2,330,000 $2,709,000 $2,890,000 $3,099,000 $3,367,000 $3,721,000

Rate per $100 of 
2021 DE-9 Payroll $1.182 $1.375 $1.467 $1.573 $1.709 $1.888

 
 
The funding recommendations shown in the table above do not include any recognition 
of the existing funding margin (surplus or deficit) at June 30, 2022. They are for losses 
and loss adjustment expenses only, and do not include a provision for loss control, 
overhead, excess insurance premiums, and other expenses associated with the 
program. 
 
  

DRAFT

 
Page 262 of 417



 

6 

The table below shows our funding recommendations for Northern California Cities Self 
Insurance Fund for the 2022-23 fiscal year, assuming a $750,000 pool limit.  

 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Self-Insured Liability Program 
Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 

Banking and Shared Layers Combined 
Banking Layer: $0 to $50,000 

Shared Layer: $50,000 to $750,000 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $4,658,000          

ULAE 297,000          

Investment 
Income Offset (161,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $4,794,000 $5,580,000 $5,954,000 $6,390,000 $6,942,000 $7,675,000

Rate per $100 of 
2021 DE-9 Payroll $2.433 $2.832 $3.021 $3.243 $3.523 $3.895

 
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Liability Program 

Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 
Banking Layers 

Banking Layer: $0 to $50,000 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $1,736,000          

ULAE 297,000          

Investment 
Income Offset (41,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $1,992,000 $2,322,000 $2,478,000 $2,662,000 $2,891,000 $3,199,000

Rate per $100 of 
2021 DE-9 Payroll $1.011 $1.178 $1.257 $1.351 $1.467 $1.623

 
 
  

DRAFT

 
Page 263 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



 

7 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Liability Program 

Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 
Shared Layers 

Shared Layer: $50,000 to $750,000 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $2,922,000          

ULAE 0          

Investment 
Income Offset (120,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $2,802,000 $3,258,000 $3,476,000 $3,728,000 $4,051,000 $4,476,000

Rate per $100 of 
2021 DE-9 Payroll $1.422 $1.653 $1.764 $1.892 $2.056 $2.271

 
 
The funding recommendations shown in the table above do not include any recognition 
of the existing funding margin (surplus or deficit) at June 30, 2022. They are for losses 
and loss adjustment expenses only, and do not include a provision for loss control, 
overhead, excess insurance premiums, and other expenses associated with the 
program. 

  

DRAFT

 
Page 264 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



 

8 

The table below shows our funding recommendations for Northern California Cities Self 
Insurance Fund for the 2022-23 fiscal year, assuming a $1,000,000 pool limit.  

 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Self-Insured Liability Program 
Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 

Banking and Shared Layers Combined 
Banking Layer: $0 to $50,000 

Shared Layer: $50,000 to $1,000,000 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $4,971,000          

ULAE 297,000          

Investment 
Income Offset (171,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $5,097,000 $5,933,000 $6,330,000 $6,794,000 $7,380,000 $8,160,000

Rate per $100 of 
2021 DE-9 Payroll $2.586 $3.011 $3.212 $3.448 $3.745 $4.141

 
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Liability Program 

Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 
Banking Layers 

Banking Layer: $0 to $50,000 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $1,736,000          

ULAE 297,000          

Investment 
Income Offset (41,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $1,992,000 $2,322,000 $2,478,000 $2,662,000 $2,891,000 $3,199,000

Rate per $100 of 
2021 DE-9 Payroll $1.011 $1.178 $1.257 $1.351 $1.467 $1.623

 
 
  

DRAFT

 
Page 265 of 417



 

9 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Liability Program 

Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 
Shared Layers 

Shared Layer: $50,000 to $1,000,000 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $3,235,000          

ULAE 0          

Investment 
Income Offset (130,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $3,105,000 $3,611,000 $3,852,000 $4,132,000 $4,489,000 $4,961,000

Rate per $100 of 
2021 DE-9 Payroll $1.576 $1.832 $1.955 $2.097 $2.278 $2.517

 
 
The funding recommendations shown in the table above do not include any recognition 
of the existing funding margin (surplus or deficit) at June 30, 2022. They are for losses 
and loss adjustment expenses only, and do not include a provision for loss control, 
overhead, excess insurance premiums, and other expenses associated with the 
program. 

  

DRAFT

 
Page 266 of 417



 

10 

The table below shows our funding recommendations for Northern California Cities Self 
Insurance Fund for the 2022-23 fiscal year, assuming a $1,250,000 pool limit.  

 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Self-Insured Liability Program 
Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 

Banking and Shared Layers Combined 
Banking Layer: $0 to $50,000 

Shared Layer: $50,000 to $1,250,000 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $5,184,000          

ULAE 297,000          

Investment 
Income Offset (178,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $5,303,000 $6,173,000 $6,586,000 $7,069,000 $7,679,000 $8,490,000

Rate per $100 of 
2021 DE-9 Payroll $2.691 $3.132 $3.342 $3.587 $3.897 $4.308

 
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Liability Program 

Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 
Banking Layers 

Banking Layer: $0 to $50,000 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $1,736,000          

ULAE 297,000          

Investment 
Income Offset (41,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $1,992,000 $2,322,000 $2,478,000 $2,662,000 $2,891,000 $3,199,000

Rate per $100 of 
2021 DE-9 Payroll $1.011 $1.178 $1.257 $1.351 $1.467 $1.623

 
 
  

DRAFT

 
Page 267 of 417



 

11 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Liability Program 

Loss and LAE Funding Guidelines for 2022-23 
Shared Layers 

Shared Layer: $50,000 to $1,250,000 

   Marginally  Recommended Range   
 Expected  Acceptable  Low  Target  High  Conservative 
   70% CL  75% CL  80% CL  85% CL  90% CL 

Loss and ALAE $3,448,000          

ULAE 0          

Investment 
Income Offset (137,000)          

Discounted Loss 
and LAE $3,311,000 $3,851,000 $4,108,000 $4,407,000 $4,788,000 $5,291,000

Rate per $100 of 
2021 DE-9 Payroll $1.680 $1.954 $2.085 $2.236 $2.430 $2.685

 
 
The funding recommendations shown in the table above do not include any recognition 
of the existing funding margin (surplus or deficit) at June 30, 2022. They are for losses 
and loss adjustment expenses only, and do not include a provision for loss control, 
overhead, excess insurance premiums, and other expenses associated with the 
program.  

DRAFT

 
Page 268 of 417



 

12 

The estimates in this report do not include a provision for the potential impact on the 
cost of liability claims as a result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. 

The report that follows outlines the scope of our study, its background, and our 
conclusions, recommendations, and assumptions. Judgments regarding the 
appropriateness of our conclusions and recommendations should be made only after 
studying the report in its entirety, including the graphs, attachments, exhibits and 
appendices. Our report has been developed for NCCSIF’s internal use. It is not 
intended for general circulation. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Northern California Cities Self 
Insurance Fund in preparing this report. Please feel free to call Mike Harrington at (916) 
244-1162, James Kim at (916) 290-4644 or Eric Small at (916) 244-1165 with any 
questions you may have concerning this report. 

Sincerely, 

Bickmore Actuarial 
 
 
DRAFT 
 
Mike Harrington, FCAS, MAAA 
President and Principal, Bickmore Actuarial 
Fellow, Casualty Actuarial Society 
Member, American Academy of Actuaries 
 
 
DRAFT 
 
James Kim, ACAS, MAAA 
Senior Analyst, Bickmore Actuarial 
Associate, Casualty Actuarial Society 
Member, American Academy of Actuaries 
 
 
DRAFT 
 
Eric Small 
Actuarial Consultant, Bickmore Actuarial 
 
 
 

DRAFT

 
Page 269 of 417



 

13 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

I. BACKGROUND 14

II. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 16

A. LIABILITY FOR OUTSTANDING CLAIMS 16

B. PROGRAM FUNDING: GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 21

C. HISTORICAL TRENDS IN THE SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAM 23

D. COMPARISON WITH PREVIOUS RESULTS 31

E. DATA PROVIDED FOR THE ANALYSIS 34

III. ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITATIONS 35

IV. GLOSSARY OF ACTUARIAL TERMS 37
 
V. EXHIBITS 42 
 
VI. APPENDICES 65 
 

DRAFT

 
Page 270 of 417



 

14 

I. BACKGROUND 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund began its self-insured liability program on 
July 1, 1981. The program began with eight members and now includes nineteen 
Northern California municipalities delineated below.  
 
ANDERSON FOLSOM LINCOLN RIO VISTA 
AUBURN GALT MARYSVILLE ROCKLIN 
COLUSA GRIDLEY OROVILLE WILLOWS 
CORNING IONE PARADISE YUBA CITY 
DIXON JACKSON RED BLUFF  

Its current self-insured retention is $500,000, and excess coverage is provided by 
CJPRMA. Claims administration services are provided by Sedgwick. Additional 
background on the program is shown in Appendix K. 

As of June 30, 2022, NCCSIF is expected to have assets of $19,088,000 for the 
program. Additional background on program funding is given in Appendix L. 

Although NCCSIF carries a self-insured retention of $500,000, the program is actually 
split into two parts, a banking layer and a shared layer. Each member is directly 
responsible for its actual losses in the banking layer. The shared layer losses are 
pooled among members. 

For program years 2006-07 and prior, the banking layer applies to the first $25,000 of 
each loss ($100,000 for the City of Folsom). The shared layer applies to the portion of 
each loss between $25,000 and $500,000.  
  

DRAFT

 
Page 271 of 417



 

15 

Starting with the 2007-08 program year, the banking layer applies to the first $50,000 of 
each loss ($100,000 for the City of Folsom). The shared layer applies to the portion of 
each loss between $50,000 and $1,000,000. Effective 7/1/2013, NCCSIF decreased the 
shared layer retention to $500,000. The table below shows the confidence levels to 
which each layer was funded by year. 

Accident Year Shared Layer Banking Layer 

1996-97 70% 70% 
1997-01 80% 70% 
2001-02 80% Expected 
2002-03 60% 70% 
2003-04 70% 70% 
2004-05 70% Expected 
2005-06 70% 70% 
2006-07 70% 70% 
2007-08 70% 70% 
2008-09 60% 60% 
2009-10 60% 60% 
2010-11 60% 60% 
2011-12 60% 60% 
2012-13 60% 60% 
2013-14 60% 60% 
2014-15 65% 65% 
2015-16 67.5% 67.5% 
2016-17 70% 70% 
2017-18 75% 75% 
2018-19 80% 80% 
2019-20 80% 80% 
2020-21 80% 80% 
2021-22 80% 80% 
2022-23 80% 80% 

The City of Ione joined NCCSIF on 7/1/2010 and carried a banking layer of $25,000. 
Effective 7/1/2013, the City increased the banking layer retention to $50,000.  

The purpose of this review is to provide a guide to NCCSIF to determine reasonable 
funding levels for its self-insurance program according to the funding policy NCCSIF 
has adopted and to comply with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements 
#10 and #30. The specific objectives of the study are to estimate NCCSIF’s liability for 
outstanding claims as of June 30, 2022, project ultimate loss costs for 2022-23, and 
provide funding guidelines to meet these liabilities and future costs. 

DRAFT

 
Page 272 of 417



 

16 

II. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

A. LIABILITY FOR OUTSTANDING CLAIMS 

Graphs 1a, 1b and 1c on the following pages summarize our assessment of NCCSIF’s 
funding position as of June 30, 2022. The dark-colored bars indicate our estimates of 
the program’s liability for outstanding claims before recognition of the investment 
income that can be earned on the assets held before the claim payments come due. 
The horizontal line across each graph indicates NCCSIF’s available assets at June 30, 
2022. 

Our best estimate of the full value of NCCSIF's liability for outstanding claims within its 
pool limit is $11,135,000, $3,605,000 for the banking layer and $7,530,000 for the 
shared layer as of June 30, 2022.  These amounts include losses, allocated loss 
adjustment expenses (ALAE), and unallocated loss adjustment expenses (ULAE). 
ALAE is the direct cost associated with the defense of individual claims (e.g. legal fees, 
investigation fees, court charges). ULAE is the cost to administer claims to final 
settlement, which may be years in the future (e.g. claims adjusters’ salaries, taxes). 

There is some measure of uncertainty associated with our best estimate because of the 
random nature of much of the process that determines ultimate claims costs. For this 
reason, we generally recommend that a program such as this include some funding 
margin for the possibility that actual loss costs will be greater than the best estimate. 
We generally measure the amount of this margin by thinking in terms of the probability 
distribution of actual possible results around our best estimate. As the margin grows, 
the probability that the corresponding funding amount will be sufficient to meet actual 
claim liabilities increases. We typically refer to this probability as the "confidence level" 
of funding. Graphs 1a, 1b and 1c show the liabilities for outstanding claims at several 
confidence levels that are typically of interest to risk managers in formulating funding 
policies for self-insurance programs. 

NCCSIF can earn investment income on the assets it holds until claims payments come 
due. Assuming a long-term average annual return on investments of 1.5%, we estimate 
the impact of investment income earnings to be about 2.6% if the program is funded 
within the range indicated in the graphs, resulting in a discounted liability for outstanding 
claims of $10,845,000, $3,511,000 for the banking layer, and $7,334,000 for the shared 
layer as of June 30, 2022. 

Investment income earnings will be less than this when the program does not maintain 
sufficient funding, and more when there is excess funding. Thus, thinking in terms of 
liabilities discounted for investment income can actually mask funding deficiencies and 
redundancies that might otherwise be obvious. However, the discounted liabilities do 
represent legitimate funding targets. The light-colored bars on Graphs 1a, 1b and 1c 
show our estimates of NCCSIF’s discounted liability for outstanding claims. 

DRAFT

 
Page 273 of 417



 

17 

Graph 1a 

 

10,845

11,930
12,363

12,862
13,480

14,294

$11,135

$12,249 $12,694
$13,206

$13,841

$14,676

$19,088

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

Expected 70% 75% 80% 85% 90%

T
h
o
u
s
a
n
d
s

Confidence Levels

NCCSIF - Liability
Available Assets vs Outstanding Liability ($000’s)

at June 30, 2022
Banking and Shared Layers Combined

Discounted Undiscounted Available Assets

DRAFT

 
Page 274 of 417



 

18 

Graph 1b 

 

3,511

3,852
3,999

4,171
4,385

4,670

$3,605

$3,955
$4,106

$4,283
$4,503

$4,795

$7,637

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

Expected 70% 75% 80% 85% 90%

T
h
o
u
s
a
n
d
s

Confidence Levels

NCCSIF - Liability
Available Assets vs Outstanding Liability ($000’s)

at June 30, 2022
Banking Layer

Discounted Undiscounted Available Assets

DRAFT

 
Page 275 of 417



 

19 

Graph 1c 

 
 
  

7,334

8,075
8,361

8,691
9,094

9,622

$7,530

$8,291
$8,584

$8,923
$9,337

$9,879

$11,451

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

Expected 70% 75% 80% 85% 90%

T
h
o
u
s
a
n
d
s

Confidence Levels

NCCSIF - Liability
Available Assets vs Outstanding Liability ($000’s)

at June 30, 2022
Shared Layer

Discounted Undiscounted Available Assets

DRAFT

 
Page 276 of 417



 

20 

The table below displays a breakdown of the program’s outstanding loss and LAE 
liabilities into case reserves and incurred but not reported (IBNR) reserves at June 30, 
2022, before recognition of investment income. 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Self-Insured Liability Program 

Estimated Liability for Unpaid Loss and LAE at June 30, 2022 

Year 
Case 

Reserves 
IBNR 

Reserves 
Total 

Outstanding 

Prior $0 $0 $0 

2008-09 0 0 0 

2009-10 0 0 0 

2010-11 0 0 0 

2011-12 0 0 0 

2012-13 0 0 0 

2013-14 0 0 0 

2014-15 40,249 20,588 60,837 

2015-16 50,374 26,401 76,775 

2016-17 208,717 47,887 256,604 

2017-18 264,752 68,170 332,922 

2018-19 1,501,375 443,879 1,945,254 

2019-20 1,308,210 694,560 2,002,770 

2020-21 1,871,442 954,828 2,826,270 

2021-22 764,649 2,543,848 3,308,497 

    

Loss and ALAE $6,009,768 $4,800,161 $10,809,929 

    

ULAE  325,489 325,489 

    

Total $6,009,768 $5,125,650 $11,135,418 

DRAFT

 
Page 277 of 417



 

21 

B. PROGRAM FUNDING: GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

As self-insurance programs have proliferated among public entities, it has become 
apparent that there is a large measure of inconsistency in the way in which these 
programs recognize and account for their claims costs. This is the result of the fact that 
there have been several different sources of guidance available, none of which has 
been completely relevant to public entity self-insurance programs. 

According to the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the most relevant 
source of guidance on the subject is Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement 
#60. A liability for unpaid claim costs, including all loss adjustment expenses, should be 
accrued at the time the self-insured events occur. This liability should include an 
allowance for incurred but not reported claims. It may be discounted for investment 
income at an appropriate rate of return, provided the discounting is disclosed. The 
regulations detailing the way in which this must be done are outlined in GASB’s 
statements #10 and #30. These regulations are required to be applied by NCCSIF. 

GASB #10 and #30 do not address asset requirements. They do, however, allow a 
range of amounts to be recognized for accounting purposes; specifically, GASB #10 
and #30 allow recognition of a risk margin for unexpectedly adverse loss experience. 
Thus, for accounting purposes, it is possible to formulate a funding policy from a range 
of alternatives. The uncertainty in any estimate of the program’s liability for outstanding 
claims should be taken into consideration in determining funding policy, but it may be 
offset by recognizing anticipated investment income earnings. This usually means 
developing a funding program based on discounted claims costs with some risk margin 
for unexpected adverse loss experience. 

The amount of the risk margin should be a question of long-term funding policy. We 
recommend that the risk margin be determined by thinking in terms of the probability 
that a given level of assets will prove to be adequate. For example, a reasonable goal 
might be to maintain assets at the 85% confidence level. 

A key factor to consider in determining funding policy is the degree to which stability is 
required in the level of contributions to the program from year to year. If you elect to 
maintain assets at a low confidence level, the chances are much greater that future 
events will prove that additional contributions should have been made for old claims. 
The additional contributions for old claims may be required at the same time that costs 
are increasing dramatically on new claims. The burden of funding for increases on past 
years as well as on current years, may well be prohibitive. 

DRAFT

 
Page 278 of 417



 

22 

We generally recommend maintaining program assets at the 80% confidence level, 
after recognition of investment income, with a recommended range of the 75% to 85% 
confidence levels. We tend to think of the 70% confidence level as marginally 
acceptable and of the 90% confidence level as conservative. We recommend the 75% 
to 85% confidence level range because the probabilities are reasonably high that 
resulting assets will be sufficient to meet claim liabilities, yet the required risk margins 
are not so large that they will cause most self-insured entities to experience undue 
financial hardship. In addition, within this range, anticipated investment income 
generally offsets the required risk margin for the most part, which means that assets are 
likely sufficient on an undiscounted basis. 

We also strongly believe, however, that the confidence level to which any future year is 
funded should be evaluated in light of the relative certainty of the assumptions 
underlying the actuarial analysis, NCCSIF’s other budgetary constraints, and the 
relative level of risk it is believed appropriate to assume. This means formulating both 
short and long-term funding goals, which may be the same in some years, but different 
in others. 

In general, we recommend funding each year’s claims costs in that year. When 
surpluses or deficits have developed on outstanding liabilities and funding adjustments 
are necessary, they should be clearly identified as such so that the habit of funding 
each year’s claims costs that year is maintained. We also recommend that you reduce a 
surplus more slowly than you would accumulate funding to reduce a deficit. 

It is estimated that program assets will be $19,088,000 at June 30, 2022, $7,637,000 for 
the banking layer and $11,451,000 for the shared layer, resulting in the program being 
funded above the 90% confidence level on a combined basis and for both the banking 
and shared layer separately.  

DRAFT

 
Page 279 of 417



 

23 

C. HISTORICAL TRENDS IN THE SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAM 

The program’s loss rate per $100 payroll has varied during the past ten years. Losses 
during the 2011-12 to 2012-13 years reflect the higher pool limit of $1,000,000. Effective 
July 1, 2013, NCCSIF decreased the pool limit to $500,000. See Graph 2a below. 

Graph 2a 

 

1.92
2.03

1.55

2.57

1.75

2.01

1.08

3.01

1.80

2.20

1.88

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50

11-12

12-13

13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

Program Year

NCCSIF - Liability
Banking and Shared Layers Combined

Dollars of Loss per $100 of Payroll

Loss Rate

DRAFT

 
Page 280 of 417



 

24 

The banking loss rate per $100 payroll has been gradually increasing in recent years. 
See Graph 2b below. 

Graph 2b 

 
 
  

1.03

0.92

0.82

0.93

0.88

1.08

0.73

0.98

0.77

0.85
0.83

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

11-12

12-13

13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

Program Year

NCCSIF - Liability
Banking Layer

Dollars of Loss per $100 of Payroll

Loss Rate

DRAFT

 
Page 281 of 417



 

25 

The shared layer loss rate per $100 payroll has varied over the past ten years, typical 
for excess layers, with no apparent trend. The 2011-12 to 2012-13 years reflect the 
shared layer from $50,000 to $1,000,000 per occurrence. The 2013-14 and subsequent 
years reflect the shared layer from $50,000 to $500,000 per occurrence.  See Graph 2c 
below. 

Graph 2c 

 
 
  

0.90

1.11

0.73

1.64

0.88
0.93

0.35

2.03

1.03

1.35

1.05

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

11-12

12-13

13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

Program Year

NCCSIF - Liability
Shared Layer

Dollars of Loss per $100 of Payroll

Loss Rate

DRAFT

 
Page 282 of 417



 

26 

The program’s average cost per claim, or severity, has followed a generally increasing 
trend over the past ten years, with the 2014-15, 2018-19 and subsequent years coming 
in particularly high. The projected 2021-22 severity reflects that increasing trend. See 
Graph 3a below. 

Graph 3a 

 

12,700

14,400

10,700

19,600

14,600
15,200

9,400

27,900

20,000 20,200 19,800

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

11-12

12-13

13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

Program Year

NCCSIF - Liability
Banking and Shared Layers Combined

Dollars of Loss per Claim

Claim Severity

DRAFT

 
Page 283 of 417



 

27 

The banking layer average cost per claim, or severity, has followed a generally 
increasing trend over the past ten years. The projected 2021-22 severity reflects that 
increasing trend. See Graph 3b below. 

Graph 3b 

 
 
  

6,800
6,500

5,600

7,100
7,300

8,100

6,300

9,100

8,600

7,800

8,700

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

11-12

12-13

13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

Program Year

NCCSIF - Liability
Banking Layer

Dollars of Loss per Claim

Claim Severity

DRAFT

 
Page 284 of 417



 

28 

The shared layer average cost per claim has seen dramatic variation over the past ten 
years. This is not unexpected since there are few claims in that layer each year; even 
one claim can have a significant impact. See Graph 3c below. 

Graph 3c 

 
 
  

122,100

203,300

133,100

188,400

125,400

77,300

91,200

148,500
156,400

168,700166,200

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

11-12

12-13

13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

Program Year

NCCSIF - Liability
Shared Layer

Dollars of Loss per Claim

Claim Severity

DRAFT

 
Page 285 of 417



 

29 

The program’s frequency of claims per $1 million payroll has been generally decreasing 
over the past ten years. The projected 2021-22 frequency reflects that decreasing trend. 
See Graph 4a below. (Note that banking layer frequency is the same as shown below 
for the program.) 

Graph 4a 

 
  

1.52

1.41
1.45

1.31

1.21

1.33

1.16

1.08

0.90

1.09

0.95

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

11-12

12-13

13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

Program Year

NCCSIF - Liability
Banking and Shared Layers Combined

Number of Claims per $1 Million of Payroll

Claim Frequency

DRAFT

 
Page 286 of 417



 

30 

The shared layer frequency of claims per $1 million payroll has been quite volatile since 
2011-12. See Graph 4b below. 

Graph 4b 

 

0.07

0.05 0.06

0.09

0.07

0.12

0.04

0.14

0.07

0.08

0.06

0.00

0.02

0.04

0.06

0.08

0.10

0.12

0.14

0.16

11-12

12-13

13-14

14-15

15-16

16-17

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

Program Year

NCCSIF - Liability
Shared Layer

Number of Claims per $1 Million of Payroll

Claim Frequency

DRAFT

 
Page 287 of 417



 

31 

D. COMPARISON WITH PREVIOUS RESULTS 

The prior report for Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund was dated April 12, 
2021. At the time of the prior report, we estimated the liability for outstanding claims as 
of June 30, 2021 to be $9,939,000 at the discounted, expected level. Our current 
estimate as of June 30, 2022, is $10,845,000, an increase in our assessment of 
NCCSIF’s outstanding liabilities, as shown below: 

Outstanding Claim Liabilities for Loss and LAE 
Banking and Shared Layers Combined 

 Prior Current  
 Report at Report at  
 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2022 Change 

(A) Case Reserves: $5,381,000 $6,010,000 $629,000 

(B) IBNR Reserves: 4,845,000 4,800,000 (45,000) 

(C) Claims Administration (ULAE*): 0 325,000 325,000 

(D) Total Reserves: $10,226,000 $11,135,000 $909,000 

(E) Offset for Investment Income: (287,000) (290,000) (3,000) 

(F) Total Outstanding Claim Liabilities: $9,939,000 $10,845,000 $906,000 

* ULAE is included with Loss and ALAE for June 30, 2021 
 
As shown, our estimate of outstanding claims liabilities at the discounted, expected level 
has increased between June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2022 as reflected in our prior and 
current reports respectively. 

Claim reserves (case and IBNR) have increased. Reserves for future claims 
administration expenses were included with Loss and ALAE in the prior study but are 
separated in the current report. Overall, claims reserves has increased leading to a 
larger offset for investment income. The net change due to the above factors is an 
overall increase of $906,000 in our estimate of outstanding claim liabilities for loss and 
LAE. 

DRAFT

 
Page 288 of 417



 

32 

At the time of the prior report, available assets were estimated to be $17,693,000 as of 
June 30, 2021, which corresponded to the then-estimated discounted liability for 
outstanding claims above the 90% confidence levels. Available assets are currently 
estimated to be $19,088,000 as of June 30, 2022, which corresponds to the currently 
estimated liability for outstanding claims above the 90% confidence level. It can be 
summarized as follows: 

Funding Margin 
Banking and Shared Layers Combined 

 Prior Current  
 Report at Report at  
 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2022 Change 
    

(A) Outstanding Liability at the 
 Discounted Expected Level: $9,939,000 $10,845,000 $906,000 

(B) Estimated Assets    
 At June 30: 17,693,000 19,088,000 1,395,000 

(C) Surplus/(Deficit): $7,754,000 $8,243,000 $489,000 
 
As you can see, our estimate of the program’s funding margin at the discounted, 
expected level has increased by $489,000 between June 30, 2021 (as previously 
estimated) and June 30, 2022 (as currently estimated). This is driven by an increase in 
the estimated fund assets between the two points, partially offset by an increase in the 
estimated outstanding liability.  

DRAFT

 
Page 289 of 417



 

33 

At the time of the prior report, our funding estimate for the 2021-22 year was $3,926,000 
at the discounted, expected level. That amount included allocated loss adjustment 
expenses (ALAE), but excluded unallocated loss adjustment expenses (ULAE), and a 
discount for anticipated investment income. Our current estimate for the 2022-23 year is 
$4,322,000 at the discounted, expected level (including ULAE), an increase in the 
program’s expected loss costs, as shown in the table below: 

Comparison of Funding for Loss and LAE 
Banking and Shared Layers Combined 

 Prior Current  
 Report Report  
 2021-22 2022-23  

 
Pool Limit = 
$500,000 

Pool Limit = 
$500,000 Change 

(A) Ultimate Loss and ALAE: $4,059,000 $4,170,000 $111,000 

(B) Ultimate Claims Administration (ULAE)*: 0 297,000 297,000 

(C) Total Claim Costs: $4,059,000 $4,467,000 $408,000 

(D) Offset for Investment Income: (133,000) (145,000) (12,000) 

(E) Total Recommended Funding: $3,926,000 $4,322,000 $396,000 

(F) Funding per $100 of Payroll**: $2.139 $2.193 $0.054 

* ULAE is excluded from 2021-22 

** Payroll is 2020 DE-9 for 2021-22 Funding and 2021 DE-9 for 2022-23 Funding. 

 
As you can see, our funding recommendations at the discounted, expected level have 
increased between 2021-22 and 2022-23, as shown in our prior and current reports 
respectively. 

Our estimates of ultimate loss and ALAE have increased by $111,000, driven primarily 
by the inclusion of ULAE. Investment income is expected to be more. The net change 
due to the above factors is an overall increase of $396,000 in our annual funding 
estimate for loss and LAE. The rate has increased by 2.5% due to the inclusion of 
ULAE. Without ULAE, the rate has decreased by 4.5%. 

 

DRAFT

 
Page 290 of 417



 

34 

E. DATA PROVIDED FOR THE ANALYSIS 

Overall, the data utilized in preparing this report appears to be accurate. 

Comments and issues regarding the data are as follows: 

 We have assumed that the program’s self-insured retention will remain at 
$500,000 per occurrence for 2021-22 and 2022-23 (See Appendix K). 

 We estimated the June 30, 2021 asset balance by beginning with the December 
31, 2021 asset balance, and adjusting for anticipated revenue and expense for 
the last six months of 2021-22 (see Appendix L). 

 We received loss data evaluated as of December 31, 2021 (See Appendix M). 
We also utilized the data from NCCSIF’s most recent actuarial study for our 
assessment of loss development. 

 We have assumed that NCCSIF’s payroll for 2022-23 will be $207,796,052, 
based upon information provided by NCCSIF (See Appendix N). 

 We have calculated funding rates using 2021 DE-9 payroll of $197,065,291 since 
that is used as the rating base for the 2022-23 premiums. 

 The estimates in this report do not include a provision for the potential impact on 
the cost of liability claims as a result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. 

The data provided for the analysis appears to be reasonable for use in this actuarial 
valuation of liabilities and projection of loss costs. 

DRAFT

 
Page 291 of 417



 

35 

III. ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITATIONS 
 
Any quantitative analysis is developed within a very specific framework of assumptions 
about conditions in the outside world, and actuarial analysis is no exception. We believe 
that it is important to review the assumptions we have made in developing the estimates 
presented in this report. By doing so, we hope you will gain additional perspective on 
the nature of the uncertainties involved in maintaining a self-insurance program. Our 
assumptions, and some observations about them, are as follows: 

 Our analysis is based on loss experience, exposure data, and other general and 
specific information provided to us by NCCSIF. We have accepted all of this 
information without audit. 

 We have also made use of loss statistics that have been developed from the 
information gathered and compiled from other California public entities with self-
insured liability programs. 

 We have assumed that the future development of incurred and paid losses can be 
reasonably predicted on the basis of development of such losses in the recent past. 
We have also assumed that the historical development patterns for other California 
public entities with self-insured liability programs in the aggregate form a reasonable 
basis of comparison to the patterns from Northern California Cities Self Insurance 
Fund's data. 

 We have made use of cost relationships for claims of various sizes derived from the 
most recent actuarial review of other California public entities with self-insured 
liability programs in the aggregate. 

 We have assumed that there is a continuing relationship between past and future 
loss costs. 

 It is not possible to predict future claim costs precisely. Most of the costs of liability 
claims arise from a small number of incidents involving serious injury. A relatively 
small number of such claims could generate enough loss dollars to significantly 
reduce, or even deplete, the self-insurance fund. 

 We cannot predict and have not attempted to predict the impact of future law 
changes and court rulings on claims costs. This is one major reason why we believe 
our funding recommendations are reasonable now, but should not be extrapolated 
into the future. 

 We have assumed that the loss rate trend associated with claim costs increases at 
1.0% per year. We have assumed that claim severity increases at 3.5% per year, 
and that claim frequency decreases at 2.5% per year. 

 We have assumed that payroll and other inflation-sensitive exposure measures 
increase 2.5% annually due to inflation. 

DRAFT

 
Page 292 of 417



 

36 

 We have assumed that assets held for investment will generate an average annual 
return of 1.5% over the duration of payment of the loss liabilities. It should be noted 
that actual future investment returns may vary significantly from this assumption, 
depending upon the prevailing investment market conditions. 

 The claims costs we have estimated include indemnity and medical payments, and 
all loss adjustment expenses. We have not included estimates for excess insurance 
contributions and other expenses associated with the program based upon 
information provided by NCCSIF. 

 Our funding recommendations do not include provisions for catastrophic events not 
in NCCSIF’s history, such as earthquakes, flooding, mass civil disorder, or mass 
occupational disease. 

 Our estimates assume that all excess insurance is valid and collectible. Further, our 
funding recommendations do not include a provision for losses greater than 
NCCSIF’s excess coverage. 

 NCCSIF’s assets available for the program are estimated to be $19,088,000 as of 
June 30, 2022 for use in this report. This is shown in further detail in Appendix L. 

DRAFT

 
Page 293 of 417



 

37 

IV. GLOSSARY OF ACTUARIAL TERMS 
 
Accident Year - Year during which the accidents that generate a group of claims 
occurs, regardless of when the claims are reported, payments are made, or reserves 
are established. 
 
Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses (ALAE) - Expense incurred in settling claims 
that can be directly attributed to specific individual claims (e.g., legal fees, investigative 
fees, court charges, etc.) 
 
Benefit Level Factor - Factor used to adjust historical losses to the current level of 
liability benefits. 
 
Case Reserve - The amount left to be paid on a claim, as estimated by the claims 
administrator. 
 
Claim Count Development Factor - A factor that is applied to the number of claims 
reported in a particular accident period in order to estimate the number of claims that 
will ultimately be reported. 
 
Claim Frequency - Number of claims per $1 million of payroll. 
 
Confidence Level - An estimated probability that a given level of funding will be 
adequate to pay actual claims costs. For example, the 85% confidence level refers to an 
estimate for which there is an 85% chance that the amount will be sufficient to pay loss 
costs. 
 
Discount Factor - A factor to adjust estimated loss costs to reflect anticipated 
investment income from assets held prior to actual claim payout. 
 
Expected Losses - The best estimate of the full, ultimate value of loss costs. 
 
Incurred but not Reported (IBNR) Losses - Losses for which the accident has 
occurred but the claim has not yet been reported. This is the ultimate value of losses, 
less any amount that has been set up as reported losses by the claims adjuster. It 
includes both amounts for claims incurred but not yet received by the administrator and 
loss development on already reported claims. 
 
Loss Development Factor - A factor applied to losses for a particular accident period 
to reflect the fact that reported and paid losses do not reflect final values until all claims 
are settled (see Section IV). 
 
Loss Rate - Ultimate losses per $100 of payroll. 
 

DRAFT

 
Page 294 of 417



 

38 

Non-Claims Related Expenses – Program expenses not directly associated with 
claims settlement and administration, such as excess insurance, safety program 
expenses, and general overhead. These exclude expenses associated with loss 
settlements (Indemnity/Medical, BI/PD), legal expenses associated with individual 
claims (ALAE), and claims administration (ULAE). 
 
Outstanding Losses - Losses that have been incurred but not paid. This is the ultimate 
value of losses less any amount that has been paid. 
 
Paid Losses - Losses actually paid on all reported claims. 
 
Program Losses - Losses, including ALAE, limited to the SIR for each occurrence. 
 
Reported Losses - The total expected value of losses as estimated by the claims 
administrator. This is the sum of paid losses and case reserves. 
 
Self-Insured Retention (SIR) - The level at which an excess insurance policy is 
triggered to begin payments on a claim. Financially, this is similar to an insurance 
deductible. 
 
Severity - Average claim cost. 
 
Ultimate Losses - The value of claim costs at the time when all claims have been 
settled. This amount must be estimated until all claims are actually settled. 
 
Unallocated Loss Adjustment Expenses (ULAE) – Claim settlement expenses that 
cannot be directly attributed to individual claims (e.g., claims adjusters’ salaries, taxes, 
etc.) 

DRAFT

 
Page 295 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item I.3.a 
 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM 
ANNUAL BANKING PLAN ADJUSTMENTS 

 
ACTION ITEM 

 
 

ISSUE: Each year NCCSIF adjusts Member Banking Layer Fund balances by refunding amounts in 
excess of required funding or assessing members whose balances fall below the required funding. James 
Marta & Company has prepared the recommended dividend and assessment calculations for the 
Workers’ Compensation Program.    
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review, discuss and approve a recommendation for the Banking Layer Fund 
adjustments or provide direction. The recommended dividend is 35% of the available Net Position. The 
assessment at 20% of the amount below the benchmark is per the NCCSIF Policy and Procedure A-1. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: TBD - based on review and discussion at meeting. Recommended dividends 
totaling $2,238,280 and assessments of ($81,405) will impact individual members while the Banking 
Layer itself will remain funded above the 90% Confidence Level.   
 
 
BACKGROUND: On an annual basis, in accordance with Policy and Procedure A-1, Banking Plan 
Fund Adjustments, the NCCSIF Board of Directors reviews and determines whether to approve 
distribution of excess funds to members. This plan allows for redistribution to the members of funds in 
excess of the outstanding liabilities at a 90% Confidence Level plus a Buffer Layer of $1,000,000 (ten 
times the Self-Insured Retention (SIR) of $100,000). 
 
At the Board meeting, on January 8, 2015, members agreed to make a change to the adjustment formula 
by allocating the Buffer Layer contingency funds to all members rather than allocating the funds only 
to members whose balances are above the required funding levels. The formula spreadsheet was also 
revised to include more annotations explaining the calculations. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Workers’ Compensation Banking Layer Plan Adjustments - Draft 
 

 
  

 
Page 296 of 417



NCCSIF
Actuary Dated 3-04-22

$10,000 or 
less assess

Members above Limited 35% 100%, else
Adjusted O/S @ Exp margin Net Margin above target Amount Net Equity above 20%

Net Position times to 10 x SIR $1M (below) Amount Available pool 10xsir and Expected
Equity at 12/31/21 90% Factor 90% claims Layer Allocated 90% and 10xSIR Available Above target 90% conf. level Assessment

A B C D E F G H I
5530 A-C-D Limited 

1.182 to the net margin 
above target

should equal col E

ANDERSON 175,665                   518,270            79,801             23,951                        71,913                            71,913                          67,611                         23,664                        -                             
AUBURN 297,783                   779,745            120,062           41,278                        136,443                          136,443                        128,280                       44,898                        -                             
COLUSA 86,135                    110,830            17,066             5,784                          63,285                            63,285                          59,499                         20,825                        -                             
CORNING 95,494                    122,021            18,788             7,297                          69,409                            69,409                          65,257                         22,840                        -                             
DIXON 500,802                   875,565            134,816           46,293                        319,693                          319,693                        300,567                       105,198                      -                             
ELK GROVE 661,780                   3,124,090         481,036           148,297                      32,447                            32,447                          30,506                         10,677                        -                             
FOLSOM 1,617,060                5,118,093         788,065           238,538                      590,457                          590,457                        555,133                       194,297                      -                             
GALT 541,838                   565,921            87,139             28,684                        426,015                          426,015                        400,529                       140,185                      -                             
GRIDLEY 636,809                   121,653            18,732             6,871                          611,206                          611,206                        574,641                       201,124                      -                             
IONE 40,384                    32,982              5,078               2,154                          33,152                            33,152                          31,169                         10,909                        -                             
JACKSON 212,904                   162,239            24,981             7,825                          180,098                          180,098                        169,324                       59,263                        -                             
LINCOLN 710,221                   699,907            107,769           38,511                        563,941                          563,941                        530,203                       185,571                      -                             
MARYSVILLE 65,865                    629,388            96,911             27,644                        (58,690)                           -                                -                              -                              (11,738)                      
NEVADA CITY 230,247                   206,000            31,719             9,368                          189,160                          189,160                        177,844                       62,245                        -                             
OROVILLE 617,180                   384,879            59,262             19,701                        538,217                          538,217                        506,018                       177,106                      -                             
PARADISE 787,939                   363,219            55,927             16,625                        715,387                          715,387                        672,589                       235,406                      -                             
PLACERVILLE 302,273                   503,622            77,546             26,821                        197,906                          197,906                        186,066                       65,123                        -                             
RED BLUFF 8,603                      1,761,342         271,205           85,735                        (348,337)                         -                                -                              -                              (69,667)                      
RIO VISTA 162,349                   299,416            46,103             15,262                        100,984                          100,984                        94,943                         33,230                        -                             
ROCKLIN 957,893                   2,271,143         349,702           108,337                      499,854                          499,854                        469,950                       164,483                      -                             
WILLOWS 138,639                   4,408                679                  663                             137,297                          137,297                        129,083                       45,179                        -                             
YUBA CITY 1,692,929                1,765,037         271,774           94,360                        1,326,795                       1,326,795                      1,247,420                    436,597                      -                             

10,540,792              20,419,770       3,144,161        999,999                      6,396,632                       6,803,659                      6,396,632                    2,238,820                   (81,405)                      
Total

Margin to 90% 3,144,161                       
Plus 10x SIR 1,000,000                       

Total Target Margin 4,144,161                       
Amount above (below) Margin 6,396,632                       

Banking Layer Targeted Equity and Dividend and Assessment Worksheet
Workers Compensation Banking Layer

Evaluation of Equity by member above 90% confidence level
as of 12/31/21

C:\Pfx Engagement\WM\WorkPapers\{E78B976D-9EE4-45E9-B51E-0C204862DC46}\{743D6DC5-A317-4603-8F1B-BBB78D5A6251}\{61602AC0-53D3-4582-
9BF7-4DBA45ECDA12}.xlsx 3/15/2022

 
Page 297 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item I.3.b 
 
 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM 
ANNUAL SHARED RISK PLAN ADJUSTMENTS 

 
ACTION ITEM 

 
 

ISSUE: Each year NCCSIF reviews the financial status of the Shared Risk Layer Fund to determine if 
refunds or assessments may be declared. The total adjustment is allocated to members based on their 
pro-rata share of the total Shared contributions over a rolling ten-year period.    
 
Based on the latest actuarial report, the Fund has $2,584,000 in excess of the minimum required assets, 
defined as the lesser of total assets less outstanding liabilities at the 90% Confidence Level or Net 
Position of plus five times the SIR of $400,000 ($2,000,000). Please refer to the attached for details and 
discussion points, including how much of the available funds to disburse to each member.  
 
Last year the total available for distribution was $2,251,000, with a recommendation to refund as much 
as 50% of that amount, and the Board approved a 25% distribution. Given last year’s decision and 
similar funds available the Program Administrators have calculated the distribution at 25% for 
illustration.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and recommend refund amount of 25% or more of the available 
amount, per the attached breakdown by member. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: T.B.D., reduction of Net Position by amount of dividend approved. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: On an annual basis in accordance with Policy and Procedure A-12, Shared Risk 
Layer Plan Fund Adjustments, the NCCSIF Board of Directors reviews and determines whether to 
approve distributions of excess Shared Risk Layer Funds to the members or if assessments need to be 
declared. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Workers’ Compensation Shared Risk Layer Plan Adjustments.  
  

 
Page 298 of 417



Estimated 
Available Assets 
as of June 30, 

2022

Discounted 
Outstanding 
Liabilities @ 
Expected 

Outstanding 
Liabilities @ 

80% 
Outstanding 

Liabilities @ 90% 
5 times $400K 

SIR 

Available Refund, 
Lesser of the Two 

Formulas
A  B  C  D  E  F  A‐E or A‐F 

$27,965,000 $19,127,000 $22,749,000 $25,381,000 $2,000,000 $2,584,000
$8,838,000 $5,216,000 $2,584,000 $6,838,000

$646,000

Members 

Historical Shared Layer 
Contributions FY 06/07 

to FY 15/16  Total %  Available Refund  Assessment 

25% of 
Available 
Refund  

Anderson  $525,248 2.2% $57,695 $14,424  
Auburn  $830,398 3.6% $91,781 $22,945  
Colusa  $309,731 1.3% $33,439 $8,360  
Corning  $382,067 1.6% $41,944 $10,486  
Dixon  $1,079,984 4.7% $121,924 $30,481  
Elk Grove  $929,088 6.2% $160,179 $40,045  
Folsom  $5,046,001 20.9% $540,999 $135,250  
Galt  $1,198,446 5.1% $132,572 $33,143  
Gridley  $552,527 2.3% $59,821 $14,955  
Ione  $120,440 0.6% $15,042 $3,761  
Jackson  $309,283 1.3% $33,105 $8,276  
Lincoln  $1,555,952 6.7% $171,871 $42,968  
Maysville  $556,878 2.3% $58,560 $14,640  
Nevada City  $297,308 1.3% $33,060 $8,265  
Oroville  $952,132 4.0% $104,448 $26,112  
Paradise  $883,579 3.5% $89,336 $22,334  
Placerville  $822,535 3.7% $94,368 $23,592  
Red Bluff  $968,103 4.1% $104,680 $26,170  
Rio Vista  $459,976 1.9% $49,560 $12,390  
Rocklin  $2,476,518 10.4% $267,755 $66,939  
Willows  $309,565 1.3% $33,955 $8,489  
Yuba City  $2,503,634 11.1% $287,907 $71,977  
Total  $23,069,393 100.0% $2,584,000 $646,000  

Any Available Refund 
should be in excess of 
the liabilities at the 
90% confidence level 
and excess of the 
liabilities at expected 
plus 3‐5 times SIR. This 
year we suggest 5 
times SIR 

Refund of 25%  =

NCCSIF Shared Risk Layer Plan Fund Adjustments ‐ WORKERS' COMPENSATION for 2022 Distribution 

Net Position/NP over 5x SIR = 

 
Page 299 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item I.3.c. 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM 
FY 22/23 DEPOSIT PREMIUM CALCULATIONS 

ACTION ITEM 

ISSUE: Each year the Executive Committee reviews the actuary’s recommended funding levels for the 
upcoming fiscal year and recommends the Deposit Premium to the Board. 

Total funding at an 80% Confidence Level (CL) is estimated at $14,911,728, an increase of 2% over 
current funding at the 80% CL. Total payroll is increasing 7%, with the underlying rate for the self-
insured layers decreasing (-4.5%). The rest of the increase is due to the excess coverage increasing 
16%, or $314,000. The individual funding increase cap of 40% is not applicable this year. The average 
funding and payroll change for the group is 10.9% over last year.  

The excess coverage estimate as of March 2022 is $2,269,000, a 16% increase over last year and 93% 
of the total premium increase for FY 22/23.  

RECOMMENDATION: Maintain funding at the 80% Confidence Level. 

FISCAL IMPACT: TBD, based on final excess and admin expenses. 

BACKGROUND: Members have steadily increased the Confidence Level of annual funding over the 
years, from 65% to 70%, 75%, and as of FY 18/19 the current 80% CL. Over the same period the 
Discount Factor has decreased from 3% to 1.5%. Both changes have contributed to an increase in total 
funding, in addition to increases in payroll. NCCSIF’s Funding Policy sets a goal of annual funding at 
an 80% CL. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Preliminary FY 22/23 Workers' Compensation Deposit Calculations, 80% CL
2. PRISM FY 22/23 Excess Workers’ Compensation Version 3 Premium Estimate

 
Page 300 of 417



80% Confidence Level Total Admin Expense =  $959,728
A B C D E F G H I J K

Formula/Allocation

Member 
Share of: 

Last 5 Years 
Average 
Losses, 

Weighted 
75%;  FY 
18/19 

Member 
Share of EX 

MOD 
Adjusted 
Payroll

Member 
Share of: 

Last 5 Years 
Average 
Losses, 

Weighted 
25%;  FY 
18/19 

Member 
Share of 
Banking, 
Shared & 
Excess 

Premium 
22 Equal 
Shares C+D+E+F+G

Member % of 
Total Payroll 
Without 
Capped 

Members x 
Capped 
Amount

Member 

FY 22/23 
Estimated
PAYROLL (P)

BANKING
LAYER       

$0 to $100K

SHARED
LAYER       

$100K to 
$500K

PRISM 
EXCESS 
LAYER 

$500K TO 
STATUTORY 

Variable 
ADMIN
EXPENSE 
65%

Fixed 
ADMIN
EXPENSE 
35%

Preliminary
FY 22/23
DEPOSIT

FY 21/22
DEPOSIT

% Change
DEPOSIT

Total
FY 22/23 

Deposit With 
Cap of 40%

Payroll 
Change from
FY 21/22 

Rate/Amount Exposure Base $7,476,000 $4,207,000 $2,269,000 $623,823 $335,905 80% CL 80% CL ‐$                
Anderson $4,988,754.00 $125,284 $70,627 $41,591 $10,619 $15,268 $263,389 $291,106 ‐9.5% $263,389 21.8%
Auburn $7,277,687.00 $326,571 $154,546 $79,922 $25,085 $15,268 $601,393 $603,254 ‐0.3% $601,393 1.2%
Colusa $2,761,870.00 $64,196 $40,975 $27,583 $5,936 $15,268 $153,959 $171,026 ‐10.0% $153,959 6.0%
Corning $3,280,017.21 $86,158 $54,383 $27,067 $7,494 $15,268 $190,370 $185,443 2.7% $190,370 ‐1.0%
Dixon $11,926,891.00 $392,297 $217,170 $125,767 $32,874 $15,268 $783,377 $722,766 8.4% $783,377 8.9%
Elk Grove $46,204,226.00 $1,034,223 $685,991 $255,418 $88,335 $15,268 $2,079,234 $2,028,389 2.5% $2,079,234 0.4%
Folsom $49,786,271.00 $1,404,853 $766,319 $457,411 $117,529 $15,268 $2,761,381 $2,622,496 5.3% $2,761,381 4.6%
Galt $13,384,682.86 $360,644 $210,818 $112,621 $30,587 $15,268 $729,939 $728,472 0.2% $729,939 5.0%
Gridley $4,007,337.00 $83,157 $69,164 $33,736 $8,319 $15,268 $209,644 $181,152 15.7% $209,644 12.2%
Ione $1,743,640.00 $50,826 $25,316 $15,683 $4,106 $15,268 $111,199 $97,551 14.0% $111,199 3.8%
Jackson $2,287,230.00 $81,041 $43,073 $23,207 $6,587 $15,268 $169,177 $198,023 ‐14.6% $169,177 5.3%
Lincoln $21,077,979.65 $353,059 $198,841 $156,660 $31,681 $15,268 $755,509 $657,452 14.9% $755,509 25.5%
Marysville $5,005,611.00 $204,360 $76,903 $49,702 $14,798 $15,268 $361,032 $286,446 26.0% $361,032 10.5%
Nevada City $2,579,640.00 $88,221 $50,416 $23,849 $7,265 $15,268 $185,020 $273,182 ‐32.3% $185,020 ‐7.9%
Oroville $8,994,623.00 $219,301 $121,839 $78,327 $18,755 $15,268 $453,490 $509,028 ‐10.9% $453,490 6.2%
Paradise $6,179,996.00 $132,108 $81,663 $36,029 $11,169 $15,268 $276,238 $365,698 ‐24.5% $276,238 27.2%
Placerville $7,355,262.00 $167,164 $116,264 $64,776 $15,569 $15,268 $379,042 $396,306 ‐4.4% $379,042 ‐5.6%
Red Bluff $7,896,458.00 $493,607 $181,548 $110,140 $35,112 $15,268 $835,676 $671,721 24.4% $835,676 9.8%
Rio Vista $4,234,918.00 $109,963 $76,517 $45,175 $10,358 $15,268 $257,281 $261,728 ‐1.7% $257,281 0.9%
Rocklin $26,613,000.00 $809,485 $476,825 $222,959 $67,483 $15,268 $1,592,020 $1,501,302 6.0% $1,592,020 ‐2.7%
Willows $1,399,999.00 $65,744 $29,001 $18,197 $5,050 $15,268 $133,260 $129,048 3.3% $133,260 11.7%
Yuba City $24,949,087.00 $823,739 $458,800 $263,179 $69,112 $15,268 $1,630,099 $1,690,789 ‐3.6% $1,630,099 5.0%
Total: $263,935,180 $7,476,000 $4,207,000 $2,269,000 $623,823 $335,905 $14,911,728 $14,572,379 2.3% $14,911,728 5.2%
Actuary/Verif $263,935,180 $7,476,000 $4,207,000 est. 3/22

FY 22/23 NCCSIF Workers' Compensation Allocation PRELIMINARY 4/12/22

 
Page 301 of 417



FY 22/23 FY 21/22 Difference FY 22/23 FY 21/22
Base Rate* 4.427 4.637 ‐4.5% 2,269,000$      1,955,000$       

Rate per $100 Payroll 0.86$                0.79$                 

Member
Entity

 Current Year
FY 22/23        
80% CL 

 Prior Year
FY 21/22
80% CL  % Change

Estimated WC
FY 22/23
Payroll

Estimated WC
FY 21/22
Payroll

% 
Change

5‐Year Avg 
FY 2016‐20

5‐Year Avg 
FY 2015‐19

% 
Change

Total Incurred 
Losses FY 2016‐

20

Total Incurred 
Losses FY 2015‐

19
% 

Change FY 22/23 FY 21/22
% 

Change
Anderson $263,389 $291,602 ‐10% $4,988,754 $4,095,034 22% $73,896 $98,529 ‐25% $308,839 $319,380 ‐3% 0.98 1.05 ‐6%
Auburn $601,393 $604,126 0% $7,277,687 $7,189,036 1% $221,669 $211,595 5% $1,005,939 $733,451 37% 1.18 1.15 3%
Colusa $153,959 $171,342 ‐10% $2,761,870 $2,605,774 6% $31,471 $43,732 ‐28% $146,121 $171,802 ‐15% 0.97 1.02 ‐5%
Corning $190,370 $185,845 2% $3,280,017 $3,313,085 ‐1% $52,384 $44,389 18% $250,349 $154,609 62% 1.00 0.96 4%
Dixon $783,377 $724,095 8% $11,926,891 $10,956,807 9% $235,943 $210,499 12% $1,094,314 $740,174 48% 1.05 1.05 0%
Elk Grove $2,079,234 $2,033,966 2% $46,204,226 $46,004,008 0% $699,653 $659,376 6% $3,070,777 $2,180,825 41% 0.89 0.87 2%
Folsom $2,761,381 $2,628,263 5% $49,786,271 $47,574,717 5% $837,768 $770,531 9% $3,550,450 $2,494,388 42% 0.96 0.92 4%
Galt $729,939 $730,017 0% $13,384,683 $12,747,317 5% $219,962 $253,634 ‐13% $899,036 $791,812 14% 0.94 1.00 ‐6%
Gridley $209,644 $181,584 15% $4,007,337 $3,570,539 12% $42,799 $30,017 43% $198,086 $60,195 229% 0.92 0.86 7%
Ione $111,199 $97,755 14% $1,743,640 $1,680,112 4% $31,192 $21,573 45% $152,152 $100,000 0% 1.02 1.01 1%
Jackson $169,177 $198,286 ‐15% $2,287,230 $2,173,111 5% $51,569 $69,726 ‐26% $247,754 $276,656 ‐10% 1.03 1.10 ‐6%
Lincoln $755,509 $659,488 15% $21,077,980 $16,793,802 26% $168,022 $148,936 13% $633,840 $343,042 85% 0.80 0.75 8%
Marysville $361,032 $286,995 26% $5,005,611 $4,530,708 10% $139,033 $92,472 50% $577,610 $334,763 73% 1.14 1.07 6%
Nevada City $185,020 $273,522 ‐32% $2,579,640 $2,801,835 ‐8% $57,580 $106,402 ‐46% $264,039 $432,934 ‐39% 1.02 1.19 ‐15%
Oroville $453,490 $510,055 ‐11% $8,994,623 $8,466,026 6% $123,718 $153,057 ‐19% $508,918 $503,819 1% 0.96 1.02 ‐7%
Paradise $276,238 $366,287 ‐25% $6,179,996 $4,859,324 27% $85,902 $141,503 ‐39% $397,914 $541,948 ‐27% 1.01 1.17 ‐14%
Placerville $379,042 $397,250 ‐5% $7,355,262 $7,792,934 ‐6% $89,136 $93,802 ‐5% $380,446 $302,170 26% 0.89 0.91 ‐2%
Red Bluff $835,676 $672,592 24% $7,896,458 $7,190,045 10% $345,920 $258,989 34% $1,591,269 $873,402 82% 1.48 1.27 16%
Rio Vista $257,281 $262,237 ‐2% $4,234,918 $4,198,335 1% $56,020 $58,601 ‐4% $199,463 $109,164 83% 0.90 0.88 2%
Rocklin $1,592,020 $1,504,618 6% $26,613,000 $27,358,531 ‐3% $524,124 $468,701 12% $2,292,588 $1,484,448 54% 1.03 0.96 7%
Willows $133,260 $98,784 35% $1,399,999 $1,252,800 12% $42,477 $47,204 ‐10% $200,232 $166,961 20% 1.04 1.04 0%
Yuba City $1,630,099 $1,693,670 ‐4% $24,949,087 $23,763,368 5% $496,350 $512,557 ‐3% $2,245,371 $1,884,338 19% 1.05 1.11 ‐6%
Total 14,911,728$     $14,572,379 2% $263,935,180 $247,736,166 7% $4,626,588 $4,495,823 3% $20,215,507 $15,000,281 35%

Experience ModDeposit Premium Change Payroll Banking Layer Losses $0‐$100K Shared Layer Losses $20‐$120K

*Confidence Level Remains at 80%

NCCSIF Workers' Compensation Program Funding Changes 21/22 to 22/23 as of 3/17/22

Difference
Excess Insurance 16%

314,000$  

 
Page 302 of 417



Incurred Losses, less All 4850, Banking Layer $0 to $100,000

Total/5 % Total (A) (B) (C) (D)

Losses Losses Losses Losses Losses 5‐Year % of 5‐Year
Allocatio

n
Allocatio

n
Distributio

n
Distributio

n
Member 2016 - 2017 2017 - 2018 2018 - 2019 2019 - 2020 2020 - 2021 Grand Total Average % of Total 0.75 0.25 0.25 0.75

City of Anderson 5,332$                 197,355$         103,606$           18,616$              44,573$              369,481$                   $73,896 1.60% 1.20% 0.40%  $               142,133  1.91% 0.48% 1.43%
City of Auburn 85,066$               460,177$         168,029$           234,641$            160,434$            1,108,347$                $221,669 4.79% 3.59% 1.20%  $               230,447  3.10% 0.77% 2.32%
City of Colusa 1,219$                 8,135$             101,399$           46,604$              157,357$                   $31,471 0.68% 0.51% 0.17%  $               103,655  1.39% 0.35% 1.05%
City of Corning 542$                    36,576$           1,722$               165,937$            57,144$              261,921$                   $52,384 1.13% 0.85% 0.28%  $                 90,196  1.21% 0.30% 0.91%
City of Dixon 102,317$            71,362$           426,991$           460,409$            118,634$            1,179,713$                $235,943 5.10% 3.82% 1.27%  $               423,103  5.69% 1.42% 4.27%
City Of Elk Grove 472,880$            656,072$         868,046$           1,006,763$         494,502$            3,498,264$                $699,653 15.12% 11.34% 3.78%  $               741,164  9.97% 2.49% 7.48%
City of Folsom 943,535$            582,274$         1,129,360$       774,885$            758,785$            4,188,840$                $837,768 18.11% 13.58% 4.53%  $            1,549,717  20.84% 5.21% 15.63%
City of Galt 279,797$            101,450$         552,375$           53,216$              112,974$            1,099,812$                $219,962 4.75% 3.57% 1.19%  $               374,227  5.03% 1.26% 3.77%
City of Gridley 78,934$               766$                 50,999$             3,711$                79,585$              213,995$                   $42,799 0.93% 0.69% 0.23%  $               124,469  1.67% 0.42% 1.26%
City of Ione 101,308$            736$                 563$                  1,054$                52,300$              155,961$                   $31,192 0.67% 0.51% 0.17%  $                 51,811  0.70% 0.17% 0.52%
City of Jackson 105,020$            1,590$             97,617$             53,174$              443$                   257,845$                   $51,569 1.11% 0.84% 0.28%  $                 73,771  0.99% 0.25% 0.74%
City of Lincoln 161,889$            253,246$         24,132$             248,937$            151,908$            840,112$                   $168,022 3.63% 2.72% 0.91%  $               594,463  8.00% 2.00% 6.00%
City of Marysville 160,180$            117,484$         37,923$             23,205$              356,370$            695,163$                   $139,033 3.01% 2.25% 0.75%  $               142,678  1.92% 0.48% 1.44%
City of Nevada City 104,614$            100,000$         10,757$             48,835$              23,691$              287,898$                   $57,580 1.24% 0.93% 0.31%  $                 73,357  0.99% 0.25% 0.74%
City of Oroville 391,705$            50,888$           96,188$             3,380$                76,431$              618,592$                   $123,718 2.67% 2.01% 0.67%  $               275,947  3.71% 0.93% 2.78%
Town of Paradise 284,854$            3,095$             78,429$             63,133$              429,511$                   $85,902 1.86% 1.39% 0.46%  $               111,400  1.50% 0.37% 1.12%
City of Placerville 47,537$               132,572$         2,697$               156,932$            105,940$            445,678$                   $89,136 1.93% 1.44% 0.48%  $               235,269  3.16% 0.79% 2.37%
City of Red Bluff 252,939$            253,952$         457,673$           495,836$            269,198$            1,729,598$                $345,920 7.48% 5.61% 1.87%  $               295,914  3.98% 0.99% 2.98%
City of Rio Vista 86,839$               22,823$           124,624$           45,402$              413$                   280,101$                   $56,020 1.21% 0.91% 0.30%  $               167,368  2.25% 0.56% 1.69%
City of Rocklin 274,459$            475,159$         463,811$           755,148$            652,041$            2,620,618$                $524,124 11.33% 8.50% 2.83%  $               693,376  9.33% 2.33% 6.99%
City of Willows 77,736$               3,861$             100,987$           29,799$              212,384$                   $42,477 0.92% 0.69% 0.23%  $                 56,752  0.76% 0.19% 0.57%
City of Yuba City 672,548$            680,011$         565,309$           317,979$            245,905$            2,481,752$                $496,350 10.73% 8.05% 2.68%  $               883,982  11.89% 2.97% 8.92%
Grand Total 4,691,250$         4,209,584$      5,463,238$       4,897,860$         3,871,010$        23,132,942$             $4,626,588 100.00% 75.00% 25.00%  $            7,435,200  100.00% 25.00% 75.00%

FY 22/23 NCCSIF Workers' Compensation Banking Layer & Excess Allocation Calculations

WCIRB Pure 
Premium 2022

Estimated Losses 
Only Relative %

 
Page 303 of 417



Banking Banking Excess Excess
Layer Layer Insurance Insurance

% Distribution $ Distribution % Distribution $ Distribution

(A)+(C) (A)+(C) (B)+(D) (B)+(D)
Total Banking Layer Total Banking Layer PRISM Premium PRISM Premium

80% CL
$7,476,000 Allocation % $2,269,000

1.68% $125,284 1.83% $41,591
4.37% $326,571 3.52% $79,922
0.86% $64,196 1.22% $27,583
1.15% $86,158 1.19% $27,067
5.25% $392,297 5.54% $125,767

13.83% $1,034,223 11.26% $255,418
18.79% $1,404,853 20.16% $457,411
4.82% $360,644 4.96% $112,621
1.11% $83,157 1.49% $33,736
0.68% $50,826 0.69% $15,683
1.08% $81,041 1.02% $23,207
4.72% $353,059 6.90% $156,660
2.73% $204,360 2.19% $49,702
1.18% $88,221 1.05% $23,849
2.93% $219,301 3.45% $78,327
1.77% $132,108 1.59% $36,029
2.24% $167,164 2.85% $64,776
6.60% $493,607 4.85% $110,140
1.47% $109,963 1.99% $45,175

10.83% $809,485 9.83% $222,959
0.88% $65,744 0.80% $18,197

11.02% $823,739 11.60% $263,179
100.00% $7,476,000 100.00% $2,269,000

Estimated payroll  263,935,179$                      
March 2022 Estimate version 3

Funding Distribution

 
Page 304 of 417



FY 22/23 NCCSIF Workers' Compensation Shared Layer Calculations

Member L / 
Total L 

Losses Losses Losses Losses Losses % of Total 
Member 2016 ‐ 2017 2017 ‐ 2018 2018 ‐ 2019 2019 ‐ 2020 2020 ‐ 2021 Grand Total Losses
City of Anderson ‐$                 182,296$         96,351$           ‐$                 30,191$           308,839$            1.5%
City of Auburn 76,260$           429,177$         134,442$         222,995$         143,065$         1,005,939$        5.0%
City of Colusa ‐$                 ‐$                 100,000$         46,121$           146,121$            0.7%
City of Corning ‐$                 33,095$           ‐$                 164,585$         52,669$           250,349$            1.2%
City of Dixon 89,866$           43,443$           399,674$         464,184$         97,148$           1,094,314$        5.4%
City Of Elk Grove 416,176$         574,408$         770,806$         929,814$         379,572$         3,070,777$        15.2%
City of Folsom 805,336$         499,059$         1,009,058$     665,254$         571,744$         3,550,450$        17.6%
City of Galt 215,405$         71,317$           506,228$         31,751$           74,335$           899,036$            4.4%
City of Gridley 74,428$           ‐$                 45,767$           ‐$                 77,890$           198,086$            1.0%
City of Ione 100,000$         ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 52,152$           152,152$            0.8%
City of Jackson 100,000$         ‐$                 95,617$           52,137$           ‐$                 247,754$            1.2%
City of Lincoln 123,695$         199,117$         ‐$                 219,142$         91,885$           633,840$            3.1%
City of Marysville 134,928$         100,000$         ‐$                 ‐$                 342,682$         577,610$            2.9%
City of Nevada City 100,000$         100,000$         ‐$                 40,358$           23,681$           264,039$            1.3%
City of Oroville 318,747$         39,847$           90,723$           ‐$                 59,601$           508,918$            2.5%
Town of Paradise 268,449$         ‐$                 69,833$           59,632$           397,914$            2.0%
City of Placerville 29,203$           100,000$         ‐$                 151,243$         100,000$         380,446$            1.9%
City of Red Bluff 239,798$         224,846$         413,919$         467,060$         245,646$         1,591,269$        7.9%
City of Rio Vista 52,912$           ‐$                 103,393$         43,158$           ‐$                 199,463$            1.0%
City of Rocklin 221,488$         417,860$         409,955$         696,298$         546,987$         2,292,588$        11.3%
City of Willows 75,007$           ‐$                 100,000$         25,225$           200,232$            1.0%
City of Yuba City 603,786$         636,024$         517,337$         296,262$         191,963$         2,245,371$        11.1%
Grand Total 4,045,484$     3,650,490$     4,863,104$     4,469,465$     3,186,965$     20,215,507$      100.0%

Incurred losses, less 4850 Diff, Capped at $100,000 excess of $20,000 

 
Page 305 of 417



Member
City of Anderson
City of Auburn
City of Colusa
City of Corning
City of Dixon
City Of Elk Grove
City of Folsom
City of Galt
City of Gridley
City of Ione
City of Jackson
City of Lincoln
City of Marysville
City of Nevada City
City of Oroville
Town of Paradise
City of Placerville
City of Red Bluff
City of Rio Vista
City of Rocklin
City of Willows
City of Yuba City
Grand Total

FY 22/23 NCCSIF Workers' Compensation Shared Layer Calculations

Member P / 
Total P 

Payroll Payroll Payroll Payroll Payroll % of Total 
 FY 16/17   FY 17/18   FY 18/19   FY 19/20   FY 20/21  Total Payroll  Payroll 
$3,680,338 $3,354,498.00 $3,758,796 $3,839,020 $4,054,052 $18,686,704 1.68%
$6,275,045 $7,916,837.00 $6,562,867 $6,321,069 $7,039,088 $34,114,906 3.06%
$2,306,057 $1,966,977.00 $2,271,794 $2,146,602 $2,315,522 $11,006,952 0.99%
$3,124,638 $2,388,300.00 $2,841,529 $2,819,170 $3,045,046 $14,218,683 1.27%
$8,501,617 $8,982,975.00 $9,438,269 $11,079,329 $16,104,633 $54,106,823 4.85%

$37,066,858 $36,710,148.00 $40,866,211 $41,758,130 $43,846,037 $200,247,384 17.95%
$37,542,682 $40,270,106.00 $40,691,769 $44,508,834 $45,420,903 $208,434,294 18.69%
$10,435,537 $11,314,378.00 $11,835,264 $12,508,328 $12,440,697 $58,534,203 5.25%
$3,801,822 $3,801,769.00 $3,804,797 $3,779,000 $4,458,227 $19,645,615 1.76%
$1,249,020 $1,130,943.00 $1,092,528 $1,366,956 $1,615,600 $6,455,047 0.58%
$1,929,246 $2,101,191.00 $2,266,229 $2,276,617 $2,327,553 $10,900,836 0.98%

$12,645,221 $12,304,954.00 $12,747,000 $12,637,876 $14,194,860 $64,529,911 5.78%
$3,068,455 $3,244,568.00 $3,589,009 $3,615,073 $4,057,841 $17,574,946 1.58%
$2,330,662 $2,522,165.00 $2,579,036 $2,754,411 $2,722,499 $12,908,773 1.16%
$6,365,858 $7,060,401.00 $6,368,537 $6,151,597 $7,199,488 $33,145,881 2.97%
$3,944,092 $3,917,312.00 $4,204,235 $4,375,778 $4,650,691 $21,092,108 1.89%
$6,070,051 $6,321,107.00 $6,746,666 $7,243,503 $7,602,862 $33,984,189 3.05%
$5,989,909 $6,066,197.00 $6,264,914 $6,657,908 $7,030,038 $32,008,966 2.87%
$3,971,657 $3,833,651.00 $4,162,522 $5,031,278 $5,260,090 $22,259,198 2.00%

$20,654,240 $22,258,058.00 $24,306,065 $26,439,316 $27,167,992 $120,825,671 10.83%
$1,790,520 $1,804,372.00 $1,175,718 $1,229,607 $1,252,800 $7,253,017 0.65%

$21,979,436 $22,467,222.00 $22,211,361 $22,955,922 $23,929,647 $113,543,588 10.18%
$204,722,961 $211,738,129 $219,785,116 $231,495,324 $247,736,166 $1,115,477,695 100.00%

Anchor Member Payroll $85,000,000

Payroll Reported to PRISM by Fiscal Year

 
Page 306 of 417



Member
City of Anderson
City of Auburn
City of Colusa
City of Corning
City of Dixon
City Of Elk Grove
City of Folsom
City of Galt
City of Gridley
City of Ione
City of Jackson
City of Lincoln
City of Marysville
City of Nevada City
City of Oroville
Town of Paradise
City of Placerville
City of Red Bluff
City of Rio Vista
City of Rocklin
City of Willows
City of Yuba City
Grand Total

FY 22/23 NCCSIF Workers' Compensation Shared Layer Calculations 21/22 Funding 

80% CL 80% CL
4,207,000$              4,146,000$                

 Member %L 
/Member %P) 

Member 
P/MP + 
Anchor P

((MRLR x CF) 
+(1‐CF) x 
NCCRLR) P x Ex Mod

M Exposure/ T 
Exposure

(Shared Layer Total 
Funding * M 

Exposure)/OBF

(Shared Layer Total 
Funding * M 

Exposure)/OBF
 Relative   Credibility  Experience Total  %Total Pool Pool
 Loss Rate   Factor Modificatio Exposure Exposure Deposit Deposit

$0.91 0.18 0.98 $18,390,202 1.6% 70,627$                    75,024$                      
$1.63 0.29 1.18 $40,241,682 3.6% 154,546$                  158,460$                    
$0.73 0.11 0.97 $10,669,422 1.0% 40,975$                    43,071$                      
$0.97 0.14 1.00 $14,160,702 1.3% 54,383$                    59,047$                      
$1.12 0.39 1.05 $56,548,193 5.1% 217,170$                  193,763$                    
$0.85 0.70 0.89 $178,622,543 16.0% 685,991$                  662,836$                    
$0.94 0.71 0.96 $199,538,923 17.9% 766,319$                  736,043$                    
$0.85 0.41 0.94 $54,894,108 4.9% 210,818$                  225,701$                    
$0.56 0.19 0.92 $18,009,433 1.6% 69,164$                    64,498$                      
$1.30 0.07 1.02 $6,592,016 0.6% 25,316$                    24,195$                      
$1.25 0.11 1.03 $11,215,705 1.0% 43,073$                    45,978$                      
$0.54 0.43 0.80 $51,775,363 4.6% 198,841$                  183,667$                    
$1.81 0.17 1.14 $20,024,593 1.8% 76,903$                    71,495$                      
$1.13 0.13 1.02 $13,127,729 1.2% 50,416$                    58,709$                      
$0.85 0.28 0.96 $31,725,137 2.8% 121,839$                  135,105$                    
$1.04 0.20 1.01 $21,263,977 1.9% 81,663$                    95,422$                      
$0.62 0.29 0.89 $30,273,585 2.7% 116,264$                  117,474$                    
$2.74 0.27 1.48 $47,272,563 4.2% 181,548$                  156,008$                    
$0.49 0.21 0.90 $19,923,904 1.8% 76,517$                    72,787$                      
$1.05 0.59 1.03 $124,158,677 11.1% 476,825$                  436,634$                    
$1.52 0.08 1.04 $7,551,432 0.7% 29,001$                    33,084$                      
$1.09 0.57 1.05 $119,465,114 10.7% 458,800$                  497,002$                    
$1.00 0.93 1.00 $1,115,477,695 100.0% 4,207,000$              4,146,000$                
1.81$                $1,095,445,003 0.982041154 4,207,000$              4,146,000$                 

Off Balance Factor (OBF)

 
Page 307 of 417



 

 

 

 

NCSIF 

March 10, 2022 

 

Dear Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF),  

As part of your program participation in the Excess Workers Compensation Program with PRISM, 
staff has developed a Loss Performance Impact on Premium Summary to reference in 
conjunction with your Premium Estimate. This report has been put together to help members 
quantify how individual loss experience affects your overall premium charge in the program.  

This report was developed from the Underwriting Committee’s desire to provide members with 
additional details on how individual member loss experience affects the allocation of both the pool 
premium and the excess and reinsurance premiums. Although the purpose of a risk pool is for 
individuals to share their losses, it is also true that the loss experience from singular members 
can affect the collective loss experience of the pool.  

The program has historically used experience modifications and surcharges as a mechanism to 
spread and shift premium amongst the membership. The methodology of using experience 
modifications and surcharge credits and debits is not new. Each program methodology specifies 
how premium is allocated and includes provisions on how an individual member’s loss experience 
may impact their premium. This summary contemplates your entity’s loss data valued as of 
6/30/2021 and details the loss adjustment provisions for the program, including the layer affected, 
where your entity falls within each of those provisions, and the resulting premium impact.  

It is important to note as you review this analysis that the loss adjustments and premium numbers 
detailed in this report are, and have historically been, included in the overall premium estimates 
you receive. In addition, the calculations used to account for loss experience depend on different 
renewal cycle factors.  Your entity’s total EWC estimated premium adjustment is ($50,676). It is 
important to note the calculations for credits and debits are partially dependent on reinsurance 
pricing which is still unknown therefore, these credits and debits are still considered an estimate 
at this time.  An updated loss performance premium impact report will be provided in June. 

We hope you will find this information helpful. If you have any additional questions on the details 
in this report, please contact PRISM’s Underwriting Department at 916-850-7300.  

Sincerely, 

 

PRISM Staff 

 

 
Page 308 of 417



EWC March 2022 Premium Estimate: $2,269,000 Self Insured Retention: $500,000

Rating Group: HighSafety

$125k-$300k Ex-Mod: 0% $125k-$300k Premium Adjustment: N/A

$300k-$1M Ex-Mod: 98% $300k-$1M Premium Adjustment: -$24,468

$1M to $5M Layer Surcharge: $15,849 $1M to $5M Layer Credit: $0

Excess Loss Surcharge: $0 Excess Loss Credit: -$42,057

EWC Total Premium Adjustment for Loss History -$50,676

Total Loss Adjustment on Premium

Below is the combined total of the loss adjustment provisions detailed above, which are incorporated in

your March premium estimates.

An ex-mod of less than 100% indicates that your loss rate is better than average and your premium will be

reduced, while an ex-mod greater than 100% indicates that your loss rate is worse than average, so additional

premium will be allocated to your entity. Below are your entity's ex-mods and the resulting pool premium

adjustment:

$1M to $5M - Pool Premium Loss Adjustment

The $1M to $5M layer of the pool does not utilize an ex-mod since claims above $1M are generally infrequent,

so there is not enough data to credibly loss rate. Instead, this layer contemplates a surcharge matrix based on a

combination of claims above $1M within the last 7 years and an adverse loss ratio in this layer. The surcharge

collection is reallocated back to members with no claims above $1M in the last 7 years. Below is the additional

surcharge or reallocated credit for your entity:

Excess of $5M - Excess Premium Loss Adjustment

Severe losses adversely impact the reinsurance renewals for the entire program. To maintain equity in these

layers, members who have losses above specified thresholds within the last 10 years receive a surcharge. For

EWC, those thresholds are $3.5M for Core Tower members and $1.75M for School members. To make sure the

surcharge is not too punitive, it is capped. Both the surcharge and the cap increase with the number of claims

above the thresholds. This surcharge collection is reallocated back to the members who have no claims above

the thresholds.

Below is the surcharge or reallocated credit. This loss adjustment provision has not yet been finalized and the 

numbers are subject to change.

Public Risk Innovation, Solutions, and Management

2022/23 Loss Performance Impact on Premium Summary

Excess Workers' Compensation (EWC) Program

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF)

SIR to $1M - Experience Modification Factors (Ex-Mod)

Your experience modification factors (ex-mod) have been calculated for 2022/23 using the payroll from the

renewal application and loss data as of 6/30/21. Your ex-mod represents how your loss rate (based on 7 years

of payroll and losses) for the layer compares to the average loss rate of your rating group. The ex-mod

incorporates a credibility factor that accounts for your entity's size. There are two EWC loss rated layers: $125k

to $300k and $300k to $1M. 

 
Page 309 of 417

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item I.4.a. 
 

LIABILITY PROGRAM 
ANNUAL BANKING PLAN ADJUSTMENTS 

 
ACTION ITEM 

 
 

ISSUE: Each year NCCSIF adjusts member Banking Layer Fund balances by refunding amounts in 
excess of required funding or assessing members whose balances fall below the required funding. James 
Marta & Company has prepared the attached recommended dividend and assessment calculations for 
the Liability Program. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and make a recommendation for the Banking Layer Fund 
adjustments or provide direction. The recommended dividend is 35% of the available Net Position. The 
assessment at 20% of the amount below the target is per the NCCSIF Policy and Procedure A-1. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: TBD, based on committee recommendation. Recommended dividends totaling 
$959,300 and assessments of ($136,733) will impact individual members while the Banking Layer itself 
will remain funded above the 90% Confidence Level.   
 
 
BACKGROUND: On an annual basis, in accordance with Policy and Procedure A-1, Banking Plan 
Fund Adjustments, the NCCSIF Board of Directors reviews and determines whether to approve 
distribution of excess funds to members. This plan allows for redistribution to the members of funds in 
excess of the outstanding liabilities at a 90% Confidence Level plus a Buffer Layer of $500,000 (ten 
times the Self-Insured Retention (SIR) of $50,000). 
 
At the Board meeting, on January 8, 2015, members agreed to make a change to the adjustment formula 
by allocating the Buffer Layer contingency funds to all members rather than allocating the funds only 
to members whose balances are above the required funding levels. The formula spreadsheet was also 
revised to include more annotations explaining the calculations. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Liability Banking Layer Plan Adjustments - Draft 
  

 
Page 310 of 417



NCCSIF
Actuary Dated 3-14-22 $10,000 or 

less assess
Limited 35% 100%, else

Adjusted O/S @ Exp margin Net margin above Members above Amount Net Equity above 20%
Member times to 10 x SIR (below) target amount Available pool 10xsir and Expected

Equity at 12/31/21 90% Factor 90% claims Layer Allocated 90% & 10 x SIR Available Above Target 90% conf. level Assessment
A B C D E F G H I 

5540 A-C-D Limited 
1.330 to the net margin 

Above target
should equal col E

ANDERSON (136,533)                  369,730            91,738                       41,188                              (269,459)                        -                               -                      -                           (53,892)           
AUBURN 137,825                   305,869            75,892                       34,073                              27,860                           27,860                         22,394                7,838                       -                  
COLUSA 64,207                     43,960              10,907                       4,897                                48,403                           48,403                         38,907                13,617                     -                  
CORNING 78,914                     18,180              4,511                         2,025                                72,378                           72,378                         58,178                20,362                     -                  
DIXON 10,010                     199,248            49,438                       22,196                              (61,624)                          -                               -                      -                           (12,325)           
FOLSOM 1,683,883                1,034,341         256,641                     115,225                           1,312,017                      1,312,017                    1,054,607           369,112                   -                  
GALT 310,096                   109,284            27,116                       12,174                              270,806                         270,806                       217,676              76,187                     -                  
GRIDLEY 113,063                   135,659            33,660                       15,112                              64,291                           64,291                         51,678                18,087                     -                  
IONE (1,305)                      94,641              23,483                       10,543                              (35,331)                          -                               -                      -                           (10,000)           
JACKSON 133,457                   13,381              3,320                         1,491                                128,646                         128,646                       103,406              36,192                     -                  
LINCOLN 78,401                     590,468            146,507                     65,778                              (133,884)                        -                               -                      -                           (26,777)           
MARYSVILLE 202,271                   234,876            58,277                       26,165                              117,829                         117,829                       94,712                33,149                     -                  
OROVILLE 140,160                   132,758            32,940                       14,789                              92,431                           92,431                         74,297                26,004                     -                  
PARADISE 298,613                   109,946            27,280                       12,248                              259,085                         259,085                       208,254              72,889                     -                  
RED BLUFF 117,011                   103,738            25,740                       11,556                              79,715                           79,715                         64,075                22,426                     -                  
RIO VISTA (47,374)                    52,907              13,127                       5,894                                (66,395)                          -                               -                      -                           (13,279)           
ROCKLIN 853,126                   193,414            47,990                       21,546                              783,590                         783,590                       629,855              220,449                   -                  
WILLOWS (34,752)                    187,883            46,618                       20,930                              (102,300)                        -                               -                      -                           (20,460)           
YUBA CITY 353,447                   558,089            138,473                     62,171                              152,803                         152,803                       122,824              42,988                     -                  

4,354,520                4,488,372         1,113,658                  500,001                           2,740,861                      3,409,854                    2,740,863           959,300                   (136,733)         

Margin to 90% conf. level 1,113,658                      
Plus 10x SIR 500,000                         
Total target equity 1,613,658                      
Amount above/(below) margin 2,740,862                      

Banking Layer Targeted Equity and Dividend and Assessment Worksheet
Liability Banking Layer

Evaluation of Equity by member above 90% confidence level
as of 12/31/21

C:\Pfx Engagement\WM\WorkPapers\{E78B976D-9EE4-45E9-B51E-0C204862DC46}\{743D6DC5-A317-4603-8F1B-BBB78D5A6251}\{61602AC0-53D3-
4582-9BF7-4DBA45ECDA12}.xlsx 3/15/2022

 
Page 311 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item I.4.b 
 

LIABILITY PROGRAM 
ANNUAL SHARED RISK PLAN ADJUSTMENTS 

 
ACTION ITEM 

 
 

ISSUE: Each year NCCSIF reviews the financial status of the Shared Risk Layer Fund to determine if 
refunds or assessments may be declared. The total adjustment is allocated to members based on their 
pro-rata share of the total Shared contributions over a rolling ten-year period.  
 
Based on the most recent actuary report, the Fund is estimated to have available assets of $11,457,000 
as of June 30, 2022. This is $4,144,000 above Outstanding Liabilities at the Expected Confidence Level 
(CL) and $1,870,000 over Liabilities at the 90% CL, compared to $26,000 last year. The Fund has also 
increased assets to $644,000 above its other target benchmark of Net Position plus at least 5 times the 
projected SIR of $700,000, a great improvement from (-$670,000) last year.   
 
While the latest estimates are very encouraging and some funds are available, given the recent 
improvement and need to take on a higher SIR for FY 22/23, the recommendation is not to make any 
refunds or assessments this year.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: No refund or assessment.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None expected from this item.   
 
 
BACKGROUND: On an annual basis in accordance with Policy and Procedure A-12, Shared Risk 
Layer Plan Fund Adjustments, the NCCSIF Board of Directors reviews and determines whether to 
approve distributions of Shared Risk Layer Funds to the members or declare assessments. In accordance 
with the Target Equity Policy, it is NCCSIF’s goal to maintain a contingency fund equivalent to the 
90% confidence level and to maintain a Net Position-to-SIR ratio of 3 to 5 times the SIR. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Liability Shared Risk Layer Plan Adjustments 2022 – Draft  
 

  

 
Page 312 of 417



Estimated 

Available Assets 

as of June 30, 

2022

Outstanding 

Liabilities @ 

Expected 

6/30/21

Outstanding 

Liabilities @ 

70% 

Outstanding 

Liabilities @ 80% 

Outstanding 

Liabilities @ 90% 

Benchmark Comparison Net 

Position to 5x SIR Refund Available 
A  B  C  D  E  F  G Lesser of (A‐F) or (C‐G)

$11,457,000 $7,313,000 $8,059,000 $8,673,000 $9,587,000 Assets > 90% CL $1,870,000
Surplus/Deficit $4,144,000 $3,398,000 $2,784,000 $1,870,000 Net Position minus 5X SIR $644,000

$3,500,000
‐$  No refund recommended

Members 

Historical Shared 

Layer 

Contributions FY 

05/06 to FY 15/16  Total % 

Available 

Refund  Assessment 

Less CJPRMA 

Refund  Total  No assessment needed

‐$                     ‐$                        ‐$                           
Anderson  $448,753 2.61% $0 0 $0  
Auburn  $945,212 5.50% $0 0 $0  
Colusa  $284,690 1.66% $0 0 $0  
Corning  $426,439 2.48% $0 0 $0  
Dixon  $892,109 5.19% $0 0 $0  
Elk Grove  N/A
Folsom  $2,846,711 16.58% $0 0 $0  
Galt  $1,140,979 6.64% $0 0 $0  
Gridley  $458,569 2.67% $0 0 $0  
Ione  $71,389 0.42% $0 0 $0  
Jackson  $325,473 1.90% $0 0 $0  
Lincoln  $1,396,708 8.13% $0 0 $0  
Marysville  $679,694 3.96% $0 0 $0  
Nevada City N/A
Oroville  $1,059,847 6.17% $0 0 $0  
Paradise  $760,768 4.43% $0 0 $0  
Placerville N/A
Red Bluff  $973,379 5.67% $0 0 $0  
Rio Vista  $380,549 2.22% $0 0 $0  
Rocklin  $1,786,838 10.41% $0 0 $0  
Willows  $218,492 1.27% $0 0 $0  
Yuba City  $2,076,093 12.09% $0 0 $0  

 
Total  $17,172,692 100.00% $0 0 $0  

* Missing data from 2001/02 and 2004/05

Any refund should be in excess of the liabilities at the 90% confidence level and excess of the liabilities at expected plus 5 times SIR.  

NCCSIF Shared Risk Layer Plan Fund Adjustments ‐ LIABILITY for 2022 Distribution

 
Page 313 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item I.4.c 
LIABILITY PROGRAM 

FY 22/23 DEPOSIT PREMIUM CALCULATIONS 

ACTION ITEM 

ISSUE: Each year the Executive Committee reviews the actuary’s recommended funding levels for the 
upcoming fiscal year and recommends a Deposit Premium to the Board. This year the Program 
Administrators have prepared deposits based on the projected $750,000 Self-Insured Retention (SIR).  

Total funding at an 80% Confidence Level (CL) and $750,000 SIR is estimated at $11,918,293, an 
increase of 25% over FY 21/22 funding. A payroll increase of 7%, excess coverage increase of 31%, 
and 14% increase in the base rate (with $250,000 SIR increase) are the factors driving the funding.  

Last year the increases were more severe, particularly in the excess coverage, and the traditional 30% 
cap on individual member funding had to be raised to 60%. This year the increases are much less 
dramatic, with five members seeing significant increases. Given the relatively high percentages among 
those five the Program Administrators applied a 40% net of payroll cap to those members, with a sixth 
member, Galt, capped due to the total redistribution among the remaining members.   

The redistributed amount comes out of that member’s Banking Layer contribution and in certain cases 
ends up being more than the contribution for that year. To avoid that possibility and ensure at least 
some contribution is made to the Banking Layer each year the Program Administrators have compared 
the redistributed amount to the annual contribution and any assessment and suggested a variable cap 
that results in each member contributing at least half of their FY 22/23 Banking Layer contribution 
when also considering any assessments.  

For example, Anderson is the only member whose redistributed amount, $97,160, is more than their 
Banking Layer contribution of $92,880. However, they are being assessed $53,892, resulting in a net 
contribution of $49,612.       

RECOMMENDATION: Review and approve funding at an 80% CL with an SIR of $750,000. 
Approve variable 40% net cap on funding or provide direction.  

FISCAL IMPACT: Estimated total funding of $11,918,293, a net increase of 18%, pending final 
excess coverage pricing.   

BACKGROUND: Members have steadily increased the Confidence Level of annual funding from 
65% to 70%, 75%, to the current 80% CL. Over the same period the Discount Factor has decreased 
from 3% to 1.5%. Both changes have contributed to an increase in total funding, in addition to increases 
in payroll in prior years.  

         ATTACHMENT(S): Preliminary FY 22/23 Liability Deposit Calculations, 80% CL, $750,000 SIR.   

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

 
Page 314 of 417



FY 22/23 NCCSIF General Liability Funding Allocation 

80% Confidence Level $497,433
A B C D E F G H I

Formula/Allocation Payroll (P)

Member 
Weighted
Share Last 5 

Years
25% Payroll, 
75% Losses

Member Share 
of EX MOD 

Adjusted Payroll 
X Total Funding

Member 
Weighted
Share Last 5 

Years
75% Payroll, 
25% Losses

 (Admin/2) X 
Member % of 
Total Payroll 

(Admin/2) ÷  
19 Equal 
Shares C+D+E+F+G

Member

2021
Calendar Year
Payroll (DE 9)

BANKING LAYER
$0 to $50K

(*Folsom $0 to 
$100K)

SHARED LAYER
$50K to $500K 
at 80% CL

CJPRMA
EXCESS LAYER
$500k to $40M 

ADMIN
EXPENSE 50%

ADMIN
EXPENSE 
50%

FY 22/23
TOTAL DEPOSIT

FY 21/22
TOTAL DEPOSIT

Rate/Amount Exposure Base $2,662,000 $3,728,000 $5,030,860 $248,717 $248,717 80% CL 80% CL
Anderson $4,712,278 $92,880 $120,528 $139,714 $5,947 $13,090 $372,159 $177,419
Auburn $7,212,513 $210,738 $224,064 $262,298 $9,103 $13,090 $719,293 $605,772
Colusa $2,871,320 $68,557 $67,215 $88,427 $3,624 $13,090 $240,913 $187,810
Corning $3,565,563 $42,218 $80,946 $90,362 $4,500 $13,090 $231,117 $202,349
Dixon $10,326,168 $70,654 $173,091 $210,710 $13,033 $13,090 $480,578 $258,537
Elk Grove
Folsom $49,252,555 $548,188 $648,336 $1,143,823 $62,162 $13,090 $2,415,599 $2,385,537
Galt $11,687,045 $115,767 $228,506 $285,272 $14,750 $13,090 $657,385 $452,721
Gridley $3,753,546 $60,534 $103,486 $113,818 $4,737 $13,090 $295,666 $244,839
Ione $1,741,897 $18,733 $37,352 $39,299 $2,198 $13,090 $110,673 $133,980
Jackson $3,215,294 $30,445 $67,632 $70,036 $4,058 $13,090 $185,261 $92,854
Lincoln $16,748,517 $260,225 $348,170 $445,257 $21,138 $13,090 $1,087,880 $955,079
Marysville $4,853,691 $141,871 $121,655 $160,775 $6,126 $13,090 $443,517 $446,225
Nevada City
Oroville $7,126,132 $89,035 $149,751 $173,673 $8,994 $13,090 $434,543 $395,031
Paradise $5,608,999 $46,933 $104,830 $116,384 $7,079 $13,090 $288,317 $246,661
Placerville
Red Bluff $6,972,768 $118,212 $162,275 $193,993 $8,800 $13,090 $496,371 $373,363
Rio Vista $4,047,976 $162,571 $149,566 $181,188 $5,109 $13,090 $511,524 $291,254
Rocklin $23,537,071 $232,872 $418,303 $578,051 $29,706 $13,090 $1,272,023 $780,857
Willows $907,730 $58,249 $38,598 $60,897 $1,146 $13,090 $171,980 $166,150
Yuba City $28,924,226 $293,319 $483,696 $676,884 $36,505 $13,090 $1,503,495 $1,126,956
Total: $197,065,291 $2,662,000 $3,728,000 $5,030,860 $248,717 $248,717 $11,918,293 $9,523,393

Total Admin Expense =

 
Page 315 of 417



A

Formula/Allocation

Member
Rate/Amount
Anderson
Auburn
Colusa
Corning
Dixon
Elk Grove
Folsom
Galt
Gridley
Ione
Jackson
Lincoln
Marysville
Nevada City
Oroville
Paradise
Placerville
Red Bluff
Rio Vista
Rocklin
Willows
Yuba City
Total:

FY 22/23 NCCSIF General Liability Funding Allocation 

J K L M

H‐I J/I

H + Member % of 
Total Uncapped 
Payroll X Capped 

Amount (L‐I)/I

$ Change
Overall

% Change
Overall

2022 
Payroll 
Increase 
from
2021

Net  % 
Increase

Total FY 22/23 
Deposit With 

Variable* Cap of 
40%

% 
Change 
After 
Cap

Net % 
Increase

$194,740 110% 1% 109% $271,983 53% 52%
$113,521 19% 4% 15% $719,293 19% 15%
$53,103 28% 14% 15% $240,913 28% 15%
$28,768 14% ‐2% 16% $231,117 14% 16%

$222,041 86% 7% 79% $433,049 68% 61%

$30,061 1% 12% ‐11% $2,415,599 1% ‐11%
$204,664 45% 6% 39% $657,385 45% 39%
$50,827 21% ‐12% 33% $295,666 21% 33%
‐$23,308 ‐17% 11% ‐29% $110,673 ‐17% ‐29%
$92,407 100% 12% 88% $170,201 83% 71%

$132,801 14% 7% 7% $1,087,880 14% 7%
‐$2,708 ‐1% 7% ‐8% $443,517 ‐1% ‐8%

$39,512 10% 7% 3% $434,543 10% 3%
$41,656 17% 16% 1% $288,317 17% 1%

$123,009 33% 9% 23% $496,371 33% 23%
$220,271 76% 2% 74% $417,949 44% 41%
$491,166 63% 3% 60% $1,155,668 48% 45%

$5,831 4% ‐7% 11% $171,980 4% 11%
$376,539 33% 9% 25% $1,503,495 33% 25%

$2,394,900 25% 7% 18% $11,545,599 21%

 
Page 316 of 417



A

Formula/Allocation

Member
Rate/Amount
Anderson
Auburn
Colusa
Corning
Dixon
Elk Grove
Folsom
Galt
Gridley
Ione
Jackson
Lincoln
Marysville
Nevada City
Oroville
Paradise
Placerville
Red Bluff
Rio Vista
Rocklin
Willows
Yuba City
Total:

FY 22/23 NCCSIF General Liability Funding Allocation 

N

H‐L

Amount 
Capped ‐ NOT 
Redistributed

Banking Layer 
‐ Capped 
Amount

Banking Layer 
Assessment

Total Banking 
Contribution

Minimum 
Banking 

Contibution 
50%

Net Dividends  
and 

Assessments
6 Capped

$100,176 ($7,296) $53,892 $46,596 $46,440 ($15,804)
$0 $75,681
$0 $42,802
$0 $53,688

$47,529 $23,125 $12,325 $35,450 $35,327 $123,354
$50,722

$0 $698,659
$0 $0 $0 $249,515

$0 $234,166
$10,000 $4,670

$15,060 $15,385 $0 $15,385 $15,223 $103,731
$26,777 $201,762

$0 $36,051
$70,510

$0 $229,222
$0 $330,629

$88,715
$0 ($21,071)

$93,575 $68,996 $13,279 $82,275 $81,286 $32,341
$116,354 $116,518 $0 $116,518 $116,436 $451,871

$20,460 $33,208
$0 $551,562

372,694$           3,625,982$      

 
Page 317 of 417



FY 22/23 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 21/22
Base Rate* 3.243$            2.851$          5,030,860$    3,833,207$    Includes surcharge of $545,091

% of total increase =   59%

Member
Entity

Current Year
FY 22/23 
$750K SIR

80% CL; 40% 
Variable Cap 

Prior Year
FY 21/22 
$500K SIR

80% CL, 60% 
Cap

% 
Change

2021 Calendar 
Year Payroll

2020 Calendar 
Year Payroll

% 
Change

5‐Year Avg 
FYE 2016‐20

5‐Year 
Avg FYE 
2015‐19

% 
Change

Shared Layer 
Totals

FYE 2016‐20

Shared Layer 
Totals

FYE 2015‐19 % Change
FY 

22/23 FY 21/22
% 

Change
City of Anders $271,983 $177,419 53% $4,712,278 $4,654,184 1% $53,197 $6,408 730% $345,394 $110,656 212% 1.57 1.38 14%
City of Auburn $719,293 $605,772 19% $7,212,513 $6,948,048 4% $128,222 $42,362 203% $789,956 $618,079 28% 1.83 1.78 3%
City of Colusa $240,913 $187,810 28% $2,871,320 $2,527,589 14% $41,287 $11,615 255% $218,946 $270,178 ‐19% 1.57 1.71 ‐8%
City of Corning $231,117 $202,349 14% $3,565,563 $3,631,789 ‐2% $20,488 $20,804 ‐2% $78,437 $61,822 27% 1.34 1.37 ‐2%
City of Dixon $433,049 $258,537 68% $10,326,168 $9,695,118 7% $26,108 $8,155 220% $116,344 $20,001 0% 1.10 1.04 6%
Elk Grove
City of Folsom $2,415,599 $2,385,537 1% $49,252,555 $43,894,742 12% $270,082 $174,420 55% $1,070,198 $928,605 15% 0.86 0.86 0%
City of Galt $657,385 $452,721 45% $11,687,045 $11,027,133 6% $51,025 $20,024 155% $276,787 $234,668 18% 1.14 1.15 ‐1%
City of Gridley $295,666 $244,839 21% $3,753,546 $4,275,659 ‐12% $31,542 $13,247 138% $210,886 $123,381 71% 1.45 1.37 5%
City of Ione $110,673 $133,980 ‐17% $1,741,897 $1,563,176 11% $9,200 $9,202 0% $45,336 $89,545 ‐49% 1.44 1.54 ‐7%
City of Jackson $170,201 $92,854 83% $3,215,294 $2,875,922 12% $14,105 $1,105 1177% $95,000 $122,740 ‐23% 1.41 1.50 ‐6%
City of Lincoln $1,087,880 $955,079 14% $16,748,517 $15,614,334 7% $141,644 $92,132 54% $692,703 $464,903 49% 1.31 1.25 5%
City of Marysv $443,517 $446,225 ‐1% $4,853,691 $4,529,402 7% $88,494 $36,403 143% $524,048 $414,204 27% 1.80 1.79 1%
Nevada City
City of Oroville $434,543 $395,031 10% $7,126,132 $6,629,871 7% $45,530 $27,969 63% $246,477 $172,082 43% 1.35 1.31 3%
Town of Parad $288,317 $246,661 17% $5,608,999 $4,839,826 16% $20,586 $11,131 85% $85,960 $377,171 ‐77% 1.28 1.68 ‐24%
Placerville
City of Red Blu $496,371 $373,363 33% $6,972,768 $6,369,163 9% $65,482 $26,056 151% $343,877 $253,298 36% 1.44 1.41 2%
City of Rio Vist $417,949 $291,254 44% $4,047,976 $3,964,129 2% $101,824 $13,878 634% $747,021 $694,535 8% 2.01 2.05 ‐2%
City of Rocklin $1,155,668 $780,857 48% $23,537,071 $22,914,454 3% $102,061 $26,675 283% $645,936 $700,157 ‐8% 1.03 1.11 ‐7%
City of Willow $171,980 $166,150 4% $907,730 $979,430 ‐7% $37,036 $12,139 205% $237,802 $184,524 29% 1.69 1.65 2%
City of Yuba Ci $1,503,495 $1,126,956 33% $28,924,226 $26,621,274 9% $135,595 $61,642 120% $813,043 $714,235 14% 1.04 1.07 ‐3%
Grand Total $11,545,599 $9,523,393 21% $197,065,291 $183,555,242 7% $1,383,505 $615,366 125% $7,584,150 $6,554,784 16%

Difference
14%

NCCSIF Liability Program Funding Changes 21/22 to 22/23 DRAFT 4/13/22

Difference
31%

$1,197,653
Excess Insurance

*$750K SIR v. $500k, Confidence Level Remains at 80%  

Experience ModDeposit Premium Change Payroll Banking Layer Losses $0‐$50K  Shared Layer Losses $75k XS $5K 

 
Page 318 of 417



Losses within Banking Layer ‐ $0 to $50,000
Folsom Losses $0 to $100,000

Total/5 % Total (A) (B)

Losses Losses Losses Losses Losses 5‐Year % of 5‐Year Allocation Allocation

Member 2016 - 2017 2017 - 2018 2018 - 2019 2019 - 2020 2020 - 2021 Grand Total Grand Total Average 0.75 0.25
City of Anderson 4,753$              9,518$                 101,015$           50,697$           100,000$           265,984$            53,197$                      3.85% 2.88% 0.96%
City of Auburn 395,741$          14,824$              160,574$           65$                   69,906$             641,110$            128,222$                   9.27% 6.95% 2.32%
City of Colusa 105,579$          88,645$              9,847$               360$                2,002$               206,434$            41,287$                      2.98% 2.24% 0.75%
City of Corning 49,149$            21,601$              4,761$               15,863$           11,064$             102,438$            20,488$                      1.48% 1.11% 0.37%
City of Dixon 1,411$              5,461$                 2,868$               16,344$           104,456$           130,539$            26,108$                      1.89% 1.42% 0.47%
City of Elk Grove
City of Folsom 372,640$          461,311$            178,929$           79,423$           258,106$           1,350,410$         270,082$                   19.52% 14.64% 4.88%
City of Galt 133,849$          32,907$              61,253$             27,101$           15$                     255,125$            51,025$                      3.69% 2.77% 0.92%
City of Gridley 3,131$              1,053$                 60,882$             2,623$             90,019$             157,708$            31,542$                      2.28% 1.71% 0.57%
City of Ione 32,620$            12,786$              595$                   46,001$              9,200$                        0.66% 0.50% 0.17%
City of Jackson 51,319$            3,912$                 15,292$           70,523$              14,105$                      1.02% 0.76% 0.25%
City of Lincoln 124,710$          170,968$            134,551$           157,562$        120,428$           708,219$            141,644$                   10.24% 7.68% 2.56%
City of Marysville 136,227$          41,707$              178,506$           50,480$           35,552$             442,471$            88,494$                      6.40% 4.80% 1.60%
City of Nevada City
City of Oroville 34,589$            27,204$              3,021$               62,835$           100,000$           227,649$            45,530$                      3.29% 2.47% 0.82%
Town of Paradise 31,469$            2,585$                 18,122$             50,741$           11$                     102,928$            20,586$                      1.49% 1.12% 0.37%
City of Placervile
City of Red Bluff 14,378$            64,873$              112,392$           83,856$           51,910$             327,410$            65,482$                      4.73% 3.55% 1.18%
City of Rio Vista 76,503$            16,488$              364,703$           50,601$           827$                   509,122$            101,824$                   7.36% 5.52% 1.84%
City of Rocklin 204,893$          142,400$            113,273$           10,002$           39,736$             510,304$            102,061$                   7.38% 5.53% 1.84%
City of Willows 54,129$            50,000$             60,801$           20,251$             185,181$            37,036$                      2.68% 2.01% 0.67%
City of Yuba City 94,586$            110,593$            206,868$           164,638$        101,288$           677,973$            135,595$                   9.80% 7.35% 2.45%
Grand Total 1,921,678$      1,228,834$         1,762,159$       899,285$        1,105,570$       6,917,526$         1,383,505$                100.00% 75.00% 25.00%

Don't Participate

FY 22/23 NCCSIF Liability  Banking Layer & Excess Allocation Calculations

 
Page 319 of 417



DE‐9 Payroll by Fiscal Year Banking Excess 4,485,769$                    Funding
Layer Insurance 545,091$                       Surcharge

(C) (D) Distribution Distribution FY 21/22
5‐Year Avg.  % P Distribution Distribution (A)+(C) 80% CL (B)+(D) $750K SIR 80% CL

FY Payroll % Total Payroll 0.25 0.75 Total Banking Layer $ Banking Layer CJPRMA Premium $ CJPRMA Premium $ Banking Layer Change

$2,662,000 Allocation %  $5,030,860 $2,410,000 10%
$4,269,250 2.42% 0.61% 1.82% 3.49% $92,880 2.78% $139,714 41,419$                  124%
$6,810,608 3.86% 0.97% 2.90% 7.92% $210,738 5.21% $262,298 179,829$                17%
$2,378,467 1.35% 0.34% 1.01% 2.58% $68,557 1.76% $88,427 80,592$                  ‐15%
$3,352,514 1.90% 0.48% 1.43% 1.59% $42,218 1.80% $90,362 29,953$                  41%
$8,737,973 4.96% 1.24% 3.72% 2.65% $70,654 4.19% $210,710 33,699$                  110%

$41,980,316 23.81% 5.95% 17.86% 20.59% $548,188 22.74% $1,143,823 683,447$                ‐20%
$11,163,908 6.33% 1.58% 4.75% 4.35% $115,767 5.67% $285,272 127,512$                ‐9%
$3,979,051 2.26% 0.56% 1.69% 2.27% $60,534 2.26% $113,818 47,514$                  27%
$1,445,709 0.82% 0.20% 0.61% 0.70% $18,733 0.78% $39,299 27,412$                  ‐32%
$2,673,771 1.52% 0.38% 1.14% 1.14% $30,445 1.39% $70,036 56,339$                  ‐46%

$14,790,664 8.39% 2.10% 6.29% 9.78% $260,225 8.85% $445,257 178,804$                46%
$3,753,912 2.13% 0.53% 1.60% 5.33% $141,871 3.20% $160,775 103,321$                37%

$6,182,019 3.51% 0.88% 2.63% 3.34% $89,035 3.45% $173,673 68,005$                  31%
$4,564,452 2.59% 0.65% 1.94% 1.76% $46,933 2.31% $116,384 81,115$                  ‐42%

$6,283,985 3.56% 0.89% 2.67% 4.44% $118,212 3.86% $193,993 76,942$                  54%
$4,141,582 2.35% 0.59% 1.76% 6.11% $162,571 3.60% $181,188 93,805$                  73%

$22,678,224 12.86% 3.22% 9.65% 8.75% $232,872 11.49% $578,051 261,381$                ‐11%
$1,272,477 0.72% 0.18% 0.54% 2.19% $58,249 1.21% $60,897 38,752$                  50%

$25,872,368 14.67% 3.67% 11.00% 11.02% $293,319 13.45% $676,884 212,644$                38%
$176,331,251 100.00% 25.00% 75.00% 100.00% $2,662,000 100.00% $5,030,860 2,422,487$            10%

FUNDING DISTRIBUTION

 
Page 320 of 417



Incurred losses $75,000 excess of $5,000 

Member L / 
Total L 

Losses Losses Losses Losses Losses Total  % of Total 
Members 2016 - 2017 2017 - 2018 2018 - 2019 2019 - 2020 2020 - 2021 Grand Total Losses

City of Anderson 5,394$                      100,000$                80,000$                  160,000$                 345,394$               4.6%
City of Auburn 535,467$                  159,487$                95,002$                   789,956$               10.4%
City of Colusa 100,000$                  113,147$                 5,799$                    218,946$               2.9%
City of Corning 44,260$                    12,559$                   15,696$                  5,921$                      78,437$                 1.0%
City of Dixon 16,344$                  100,000$                 116,344$               1.5%
City of Elk Grove 

City of Folsom 287,444$                  359,066$                 131,066$                72,982$                  219,640$                 1,070,198$            14.1%
City of Galt 147,669$                  18,167$                   85,950$                  25,001$                  276,787$               3.6%
City of Gridley 90,882$                  120,004$                 210,886$               2.8%
City of Ione 32,620$                    12,716$                   45,336$                 0.6%
City of Jackson 80,000$                    15,000$                  95,000$                 1.3%
City of Lincoln 97,155$                    157,988$                 147,952$                141,949$                147,659$                 692,703$               9.1%
City of Marysville 172,731$                  18,292$                   255,024$                48,000$                  30,002$                   524,048$               6.9%
City of Nevada City

City of Oroville 31,956$                    22,704$                   61,817$                  130,000$                 246,477$               3.2%
Town of Paradise 22,170$                    13,790$                  50,000$                  85,960$                 1.1%
City of Placerville 

City of Red Bluff 50,000$                   136,678$                110,000$                47,199$                   343,877$               4.5%
City of Rio Vista 88,382$                    6,153$                      572,486$                80,000$                  747,021$               9.8%
City of Rocklin 249,111$                  191,034$                 166,143$                39,648$                   645,936$               8.5%
City of Willows 80,000$                    80,000$                  57,801$                  20,001$                   237,802$               3.1%
City of Yuba City 84,441$                    121,709$                 230,046$                245,612$                131,234$                 813,043$               10.7%
Grand Total 2,053,406$             1,088,930$            2,175,303$           1,020,201$           1,246,309$            7,584,150$          100.0%

Don't Participate

FY 22/23 NCCSIF Liability  Shared Layer Calculations

 
Page 321 of 417



Members

City of Anderson

City of Auburn

City of Colusa

City of Corning

City of Dixon

City of Elk Grove 

City of Folsom

City of Galt

City of Gridley

City of Ione

City of Jackson

City of Lincoln
City of Marysville

City of Nevada City

City of Oroville

Town of Paradise

City of Placerville 

City of Red Bluff

City of Rio Vista

City of Rocklin

City of Willows

City of Yuba City

Grand Total

Don't Participate

FY 22/23 NCCSIF Liability  Shared Layer Calculations

DE‐9 Payroll by Fiscal Year 

Member P / Total 
P 

Payroll Payroll Payroll Payroll Payroll Total  % of Total 
FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 18/19  FY 19/20 FY 20/21 Payroll  Payroll 
$3,663,710 $4,025,742 $4,404,498.97 $4,438,467.97 $4,813,829.32 $21,346,249 2.4%
$6,776,889 $6,690,773 $6,365,220.94 $7,119,229.24 $7,100,929.07 $34,053,041 3.9%
$2,306,057 $2,353,497 $2,351,918.12 $2,185,685.90 $2,695,177.69 $11,892,336 1.3%
$3,075,568 $3,293,094 $3,367,401.25 $3,495,779.91 $3,530,726.79 $16,762,570 1.9%
$7,980,528 $7,927,144 $8,449,630.28 $9,345,168.99 $9,987,394.05 $43,689,865 5.0%

$37,958,579 $40,499,509 $40,283,583.40 $44,949,668.97 $46,210,238.26 $209,901,579 23.8%
$10,719,539 $10,932,227 $11,746,797.29 $11,130,178.49 $11,290,797.97 $55,819,540 6.3%
$3,781,087 $3,919,365 $4,081,234.61 $4,427,264.58 $3,686,306.24 $19,895,257 2.3%
$1,318,717 $1,321,431 $1,456,910.95 $1,416,094.87 $1,715,390.71 $7,228,544 0.8%
$2,215,873 $2,447,215 $2,819,221.68 $2,972,397.77 $2,914,148.78 $13,368,857 1.5%

$13,742,424 $14,185,742 $14,563,450.32 $15,432,310.56 $16,029,393.02 $73,953,320 8.4%
$3,299,460 $3,374,543 $3,492,466.42 $3,895,514.52 $4,707,575.42 $18,769,560 2.1%

$6,189,234 $5,201,436 $6,325,298.96 $6,385,486.42 $6,808,640.12 $30,910,095 3.5%
$4,162,393 $4,192,847 $4,638,612.01 $4,475,887.31 $5,352,521.95 $22,822,261 2.6%

$5,962,844 $6,323,449 $6,585,304.83 $6,179,370.47 $6,368,957.14 $31,419,925 3.6%
$3,936,801 $4,168,147 $4,429,003.43 $4,243,303.17 $3,930,653.94 $20,707,909 2.3%

$23,272,623 $21,211,367 $23,068,572.24 $22,580,699.58 $23,257,857.20 $113,391,119 12.9%
$1,844,610 $1,326,967 $1,202,629.67 $1,168,103.83 $820,074.30 $6,362,385 0.7%

$24,473,728 $25,194,450 $26,156,254.54 $26,870,951.92 $26,666,456.07 $129,361,841 14.7%
$166,680,666 $168,588,945 $175,788,010 $182,711,564 $187,887,068 $881,656,253 100.0%

$88,000,000

 
Page 322 of 417



Members

City of Anderson

City of Auburn

City of Colusa

City of Corning

City of Dixon

City of Elk Grove 

City of Folsom

City of Galt

City of Gridley

City of Ione

City of Jackson

City of Lincoln
City of Marysville

City of Nevada City

City of Oroville

Town of Paradise

City of Placerville 

City of Red Bluff

City of Rio Vista

City of Rocklin

City of Willows

City of Yuba City

Grand Total

Don't Participate

FY 22/23 NCCSIF Liability  Shared Layer Calculations

80% CL
$3,728,000

Member %L / 
Member %P

Member 
P/Anchor 
Member P

((MRLR x CF) +(1‐CF) 
x NCCRLR) P x Ex Mod

M Exposure/ T 
Exposure

Shared Layer Total 
Funding * M Exposure

Relative  Credibility  Experience Total  %Total Pool Deposit
Loss Rate Factor Modification Exposure Exposure $3,728,000

$1.88 0.20 1.571462 $33,544,814 3.2% $120,528
$2.70 0.28 1.831284 $62,360,777 6.0% $224,064
$2.14 0.12 1.573033 $18,707,034 1.8% $67,215
$0.54 0.16 1.343989 $22,528,708 2.2% $80,946
$0.31 0.33 1.102639 $48,174,167 4.6% $173,091

$0.59 0.70 0.859653 $180,442,421 17.4% $648,336
$0.58 0.39 1.139330 $63,596,900 6.1% $228,506
$1.23 0.18 1.447672 $28,801,805 2.8% $103,486
$0.73 0.08 1.438139 $10,395,648 1.0% $37,352
$0.83 0.13 1.407979 $18,823,069 1.8% $67,632
$1.09 0.46 1.310304 $96,901,323 9.3% $348,170
$3.25 0.18 1.803904 $33,858,483 3.3% $121,655

$0.93 0.26 1.348366 $41,678,128 4.0% $149,751
$0.44 0.21 1.278392 $29,175,795 2.8% $104,830

$1.27 0.26 1.437425 $45,163,775 4.4% $162,275
$4.19 0.19 2.010181 $41,626,643 4.0% $149,566
$0.66 0.56 1.026716 $116,420,457 11.2% $418,303
$4.34 0.07 1.688447 $10,742,553 1.0% $38,598
$0.73 0.60 1.040650 $134,620,373 13.0% $483,696
$1.00 0.91 1.045048 $1,037,562,873 100.0% $3,728,000
$1.50 $3,728,000

 
Page 323 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item I.5. 
 

TRUSTEE E&O INSURANCE  
 

ACTION ITEM 
 
 

ISSUE: The Board is presented a proposal and pricing indication for Trustee Errors and Omissions 
Insurance through the Alliant Public Pool Liability Program (APPL). The coverage provides a $1M limit 
for claims arising from Wrongful Acts committed by an Insured, including the governing board, officers, 
and professional liability of the pool.  
 
Typical claims are outlined in the attached and include disputes regarding board decisions such as 
coverage and membership, board member v. board member actions, and regulatory proceedings.  
 
The policy has a $25,000 deductible for those claims in which the JPA is able to indemnify the insured 
member and no deductible if the claim is solely against a member and/or it may not be indemnified by 
the JPA. See attached Government Code sections 995 to 996.6 for reference on that topic.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and request a formal quote for the next meeting, reject the coverage, 
or provide direction.     
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Annual Premium indication is $18,068.75 and is not expected to increase.  
 
 
BACKGROUND: Members have requested a quote for this coverage in case of a claim against a Board 
member, officer, or others acting for or on behalf of the organization. While claims are rare, this 
coverage protects the group’s assets when required to indemnify a member and covers the individual’s 
exposure when the JPA is not involved or can’t indemnify the member.   
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
1. Proposal and pricing indication 
2. APPL Brochure 
3. Government Code reference  
 
  

 
Page 324 of 417



 

 

APPL JPA Primary Claims 
Made Trustees Errors and 
Omissions 
 
Insurance Indication 
2022 – 2023 
Presented by: 
 
 
David Evans, Senior Vice President 
Jenna Wirkner, Account Representative 
Daniel Rettura, Account Manager 
 

  

Northern California Cities Self 
Insurance Fund 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
1301 Dove Street, Suite 200 
Newport Beach, CA 92660 
O 949 756 0271 
F 619 699 0907 

CA License No. 0C36861 

www.alliant.com 
 

Page 325 of 417



 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 1 

Named Insured / Additional Named Insureds 
Named Insured(s) 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
 
Additional Named Insured(s) 
None reported 
 
 
NAMED INSURED DISCLOSURE 
 
 The first named insured is granted certain rights and responsibilities that do not apply to other policy named insureds and is designated to act on behalf of all insureds for making policy 

changes, receiving correspondence, distributing claim proceeds, and making premium payments. 

 Are ALL entities listed as named insureds? Coverage is not automatically afforded to all entities unless specifically named. Confirm with your producer and service team that all 
entities to be protected are on the correct policy. Not all entities may be listed on all policies based on coverage line. 

 Additional named insured is (1) A person or organization, other than the first named insured, identified as an insured in the policy declarations or an addendum to the policy 
declarations. (2) A person or organization added to a policy after the policy is written with the status of named insured. This entity would have the same rights and responsibilities as an 
entity named as an insured in the policy declarations (other than those rights and responsibilities reserved to the first named insured). 

 Applies to Professional Liability, Pollution Liability, Directors & Officers Liability, Employment Practices Liability, Fiduciary Liability policies (this list not all inclusive). Check your Policy 
language for applicability. These policies provide protection to the Named Insured for claims made against it alleging a covered wrongful act. Coverage is not afforded to any other 
entities (unless specifically added by endorsement or if qualified as a “Subsidiary” pursuant to the policy wording) affiliated by common individual insured ownership or to which 
indemnification is otherwise contractually owed. If coverage is desired for affiliated entities or for contractual indemnities owed, please contact your Alliant Service Team with a full list 
of entities for which coverage is requested. With each request, include complete financials and ownership information for submission to the carrier. It should be noted, that the 
underwriter’s acceptance of any proposed amendments to the policy, including expansion of the scope of “Insureds” under the policy could result in a potential diminution of the 
applicable limits of liability and/or an additional premium charge. 

 
Page 326 of 417

http://www.alliant.com/


 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 2 

Line of Coverage 
Primary Claims Made Trustees Errors and Omissions Coverage 
 

   Proposed Coverage 
    
INSURANCE COMPANY:   Lloyds of London 

Aspen Syndicate 4711  
 

A.M. BEST RATING:   A (Excellent), Financial Size Category XV ($2 Billion or 
greater) as of July 12, 2021 

   Aspen Syndicate: Not Rated 
STANDARD & POOR’S RATING:   A+ (Strong) as of April 23, 2021 

   Aspen Syndicate: Not Rated 
    
STATE STATUS:   Non-Admitted 
    
COVERAGE TERM:   July 1, 2022 - July 1, 2023 
    
RETROACTIVE DATE:       Inception 
    
COVERAGE:   Primary Claims Made Trustees Errors and Omissions 
    

 
Option 1: 

LIMIT:   $1,000,000 
 

Any One Claim including 
Claims Expenses per 
Individual Organization. 

   $1,000,000 In the Aggregate including 
Claims Expenses 

   Included in limit Breach of Confidentiality 
    Libel and Slander 

 
Page 327 of 417

http://www.alliant.com/


 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 3 

 
Option 2: 

   $2,000,000 
 

Any One Claim including 
Claims Expenses per 
Individual Organization. 

   $2,000,000 In the Aggregate including 
Claims Expenses 

   Included in limit Breach of Confidentiality 
   Included in limit 

 
 

Libel and Slander 

 
Page 328 of 417

http://www.alliant.com/


 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 4 

   Proposed Coverage 
    
EXTENSIONS OF COVERAGE:  
(Including but not limited to) 

  Option 1: 
$1,000,000 
 
Option 2:  
$2,000,000  

One Direct Reinstatement* 
 
 

     
*Subject to an additional premium equal to   Option 1: 

$100,000 
 
Option 2: 
$200,000     

Additional Defense Limit 

100% of the annual premium     
**Sublimits are a part of and not in addition to 
the overall policy limit 

  Option 1 & 2: 
$   100,000 

Loss of Documents 
  Sublimit** 
 

   Option 1: 
$1,000,000 
 
 
 
 
Option 2: 
$2,000,000 

Employment Practices 
Violation Sublimit** Any one 
claim including Claims 
Expenses / $1,000,000 
Aggregate 
 
Employment Practices 
Violation Sublimit** Any one 
claim including Claims 
Expenses / $1,000,000 
Aggregate 

    
 
 
 

   
 
 

 
 
 

 
Page 329 of 417

http://www.alliant.com/


 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 5 

   Proposed Coverage 
    
DEDUCTIBLES: 
The Deductibles only apply to Loss incurred by 
the Organization or for which the Insured 
Individual is Indemnifiable. For Losses which 
the Individual Insured is not Indemnifiable by 
the Organization Nil Deductible(s) shall apply. 

Option 1 & 2: 
$     25,000 

Any one claim including 
Claims Expenses  

 
Option 1 & 2: 

 

$     25,000 Employment Practices 
Violation/Aggregate 

    
ENDORSEMENTS AND EXCLUSIONS: 
(Including but not limited to) 
 

   Same as expiring 

DEFENSE INSIDE/OUTSIDE THE LIMIT:   Inside the Limits except for the additional defense limit 
    
WHO HAS THE DUTY TO DEFEND:   Insurer 
    
 
 
 
ANNNUAL COST: 

    
 
 
Option 1: 
$17,500.00 Annual Premium 
$     525.00 Surplus Lines Tax (3%) 
$       43.75 Service Fee (.25%) 
$18,068.75 Total Annual Cost 
 
Option 2: 

   $27,000.00 Annual Premium 
$     810.00 Surplus Lines Tax (3%) 
$       67.50 Service Fee (.25%) 
$27,877.50 Total Annual Cost 
 
 

 
Page 330 of 417

http://www.alliant.com/
mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight

mbeverly
Highlight



 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 6 

   Proposed Coverage 
    
TERRORISM:      1% of Allocated Premium included in Premium shown  
    
   IMPORTANT NOTICE:  THE NONADMITTED & 

REINSURANCE REFORM ACT (NRRA) GOES INTO EFFECT ON 

JULY 21, 2011.  ACCORDINGLY, SURPLUS LINES TAX RATES 

AND REGULATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE WHICH COULD 

RESULT IN AN INCREASE OR DECREASE OF THE TOTAL 

SURPLUS LINES TAXES AND/OR FEES OWED ON THIS 

PLACEMENT.  IF A CHANGE IS REQUIRED, WE WILL PROMPTLY 

NOTIFY YOU.  ANY ADDITIONAL TAXES AND/OR FEES OWED 

MUST BE PROMPTLY REMITTED TO ALLIANT INSURANCE 

SERVICES, INC 
    
EXTENDED REPORTING PERIOD:   An optional discovery period is available based on the 

premium schedule shown here: 
• 1 year for 100% of the total premium paid 
• 2 years for 150% of the total premium paid  
• 3 years for 200% of the total premium paid 

 
CHOICE OF LAW:   Florida 
    
 
 
TERRITORIAL LIMITS: 
This insurance applies to any Wrongful Act 
which takes place anywhere in the world 
provided that Claim is first made against the 
Insured during the Policy Period (or Discovery 
Period, if purchased) 

   
 
Anywhere in the World 

    

 
Page 331 of 417

http://www.alliant.com/


 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 7 

   Proposed Coverage 
    
BINDING CONDITIONS:   • Non-Bindable Indication 

 
    
INDICATION DATE:   April 1, 2022 
    
INDICATION VALID UNTIL:   July 1, 2022 
    
CLAIMS REPORTING:   Robert Frey 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
100 Pine Street, 11th Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94111-5101 
Phone: 415-403-1445 
Fax :    415-402-0773 
rfrey@alliant.com 

 
See Disclaimer Page for Important Notices and Acknowledgement

 
Page 332 of 417

http://www.alliant.com/
mailto:rfrey@alliant.com


 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 8 

Disclosures 

This Indication of insurance is provided as a matter of convenience and information only.  All information included in this Indication, including but no      
real property values, locations, operations, products, data, automobile schedules, financial data and loss experience, is based on facts and representa     
Insurance Services, Inc. by you.  This Indication does not reflect any independent study or investigation by Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. or its age    
 
Please be advised that this Indication is also expressly conditioned on there being no material change in the risk between the date of this Indicatio      
of the proposed policy (including the occurrence of any claim or notice of circumstances that may give rise to a claim under any policy which the po      
renewal or replacement).  In the event of such change of risk, the insurer may, at its sole discretion, modify, or withdraw this Indication, whether or n      
been accepted. 

This Indication is not confirmation of insurance and does not add to, extend, amend, change, or alter any coverage in any actual policy of insur       
existing policy terms, conditions, exclusions, and limitations apply.  For specific information regarding your insurance coverage, please refer to      
Insurance Services, Inc. will not be liable for any claims arising from or related to information included in or omitted from this Indication of insuranc  

Alliant embraces a policy of transparency with respect to its compensation from insurance transactions. Details on our compensation policy, including the types      
earn on a placement, are available on our website at www.alliant.com. For a copy of our policy or for any inquiries regarding compensation issues pertaining to y      
contact us at: Alliant Insurance Services, Inc., Attention: General Counsel, 701 B Street, 6th Floor, San Diego, CA  92101.   

Analyzing insurers' over-all performance and financial strength is a task that requires specialized skills and in-depth technical understanding of all aspects of ins    
and operations. Insurance brokerages such as Alliant Insurance typically rely upon rating agencies for this type of market analysis. Both A.M. Best and Stand      
industry leaders in this area for many decades, utilizing a combination of quantitative and qualitative analysis of the information available in formulating their rati  

A.M. Best has an extensive database of nearly 6,000 Life/Health, Property Casualty and International companies. You can visit them at www.ambest.com.    
regarding insurer financial strength ratings visit Standard and Poor's website at www.standardandpoors.com. 

Our goal is to procure insurance for you with underwriters possessing the financial strength to perform. Alliant does not, however, guarantee the solvency of an     
insurance or reinsurance is placed and maintains no responsibility for any loss or damage arising from the financial failure or insolvency of any insurer. We en      
publicly available information collected to enable you to make an informed decision to accept or reject a particular underwriter. To learn more about compan      
state, visit the Department of Insurance website for that state.   

 
Page 333 of 417

http://www.alliant.com/
http://www.alliant.com/
http://www.ambest.com/
http://www.standardandpoors.com/


 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 9 

NY Regulation 194  
 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. is an insurance producer licensed by the State of New York. Insurance producers are authorized by their license to confer with i    
the benefits, terms and conditions of insurance contracts; to offer advice concerning the substantive benefits of particular insurance contracts; to sell insuran      
for purchasers.  The role of the producer in any particular transaction typically involves one or more of these activities. 

Compensation will be paid to the producer, based on the insurance contract the producer sells.  Depending on the insurer(s) and insurance contract(s) the purch    
will be paid by the insurer(s) selling the insurance contract or by another third party.  Such compensation may vary depending on a number of factors, includin     
and the insurer(s) the purchaser selects.  In some cases, other factors such as the volume of business a producer provides to an insurer or the profitability of insu     
provides to an insurer also may affect compensation.   

The insurance purchaser may obtain information about compensation expected to be received by the producer based in whole or in part on the sale of insuran       
applicable) compensation expected to be received based in whole or in part on any alternative quotes presented to the purchaser by the producer, by requestin      
producer. 

 
Other Disclosures / Disclaimers 
 
FATCA: 

The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires the notification of certain financial accounts to the United States Internal Revenue Service.  Alliant      
so please contact your tax consultant for your obligation regarding FATCA.  

Claims Reporting: 
Your policy will come with specific claim reporting requirements.  Please make sure you understand these obligations.  Contact your Alliant Service Team with   
 

Claims Made Policy: 
This claims-made policy contains a requirement stating that this policy applies only to any claim first made against the Insured and reported to the insurer      
applicable extended reporting period.  Claims must be submitted to the insurer during the policy period, or applicable extended reporting period, as required p     
Notification Clause within the policy in order for coverage to apply.  Late reporting or failure to report pursuant to the policy’s requirements could result in a dis      
insurer. 
 

  

 
Page 334 of 417

http://www.alliant.com/


 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 10 

Other Disclosures / Disclaimers - Continued 
 
Changes and Developments 

It is important that we be advised of any changes in your operations, which may have a bearing on the validity and/or adequacy of your insurance.  The type       
include, but are not limited to, those listed below: 

• Changes in any operations such as expansion to another states, new products, or new applications of existing products. 
• Travel to any state not previously disclosed. 
• Mergers and/or acquisition of new companies and any change in business ownership, including percentages. 
• Any newly assumed contractual liability, granting of indemnities or hold harmless agreements. 
• Any changes in existing premises including vacancy, whether temporary or permanent, alterations, demolition, etc.  Also, any new premises either purchase     
• Circumstances which may require     an increased liability insurance limit. 
• Any changes in fire or theft protection such as the installation of or disconnection of sprinkler systems, burglar alarms, etc.  This includes any alterations to   
• Immediate notification of any changes to a scheduled of equipment, property, vehicles, electronic data processing, etc. 
• Property of yours that is in transit, unless previously discussed and/or currently insured. 

 
Certificates / Evidence of Insurance 

A certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder.  The certificate does not affirmatively or negatively amend       
afforded by a policy.  Nor does it constitute a contract between the issuing insurer(s), authorized representative, producer or certificate holder.   
 
You may have signed contracts, leases or other agreements requiring you to provide this evidence.  In those agreements, you may assume obligations and/or liab     
Hold Harmless) and some of the obligations that are not covered by insurance.  We recommend that you and your legal counsel review these documents. 
 
In addition to providing a certificate of insurance, you may be required to name your client or customer on your policy as an additional insured.  This is only p      
insurance company, added by endorsement and, in some cases, an additional premium. 

 
By naming the certificate holder as additional insured, there are consequences to your risks and insurance policy including: 

• Your policy limits are now shared with other entities; their claims involvement may reduce or exhaust your aggregate limit. 
• Your policy may provide higher limits than required by contract; your full limits can be exposed to the additional insured. 
• There may be conflicts in defense when your insurer has to defend both you and the additional insured. 

 
  

 
Page 335 of 417

http://www.alliant.com/


 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 11 

Optional Coverages 
 

The following represents a list of insurance coverages that are not included in this Indication, but are optional and may be available with further underwriting info  

Note some of these coverages may be included with limitations or insured elsewhere.  This is a partial listing as you may have additional risks not contemplate        
organization.  

• Directors & Officers Liability 

• Earthquake Insurance 

• Employed Lawyers 

• Employment Practices Liability 

• Event Cancellation 

• Fiduciary Liability 

• Fireworks Liability 

• Flood Insurance 

• Foreign Insurance 

• Garage Keepers Liability 

• Kidnap & Ransom 

• Law Enforcement Liability  

• Media and Publishers Liability 

• Medical Malpractice Liability 

• Network Security / Privacy Liability and Internet Media Liability 

• Pollution Liability 

• Owned/Non-Owned Aircraft 

• Owned Watercraft 

• Special Events Liability 

• Student Accident 

• Volunteer Accidental Death & Dismemberment (AD&D) 

• Workers’ Compensation  

• Workplace Violence 

 

Glossary of Insurance Terms 
 
Below are a couple of links to assist you in understanding the insurance terms you may find within your insurance coverages: 
 

http://insurancecommunityuniversity.com/UniversityResources/InsuranceGlossaryFREE.aspx 
http://www.ambest.com/resource/glossary.html 

http://www.irmi.com/online/insurance-glossary/default.aspx  

 
Page 336 of 417

http://www.alliant.com/
http://insurancecommunityuniversity.com/UniversityResources/InsuranceGlossaryFREE.aspx
http://www.ambest.com/resource/glossary.html


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ALLIANT PUBLIC POOL 
LIABILITY PROGRAM (APPL) 
Protecting the vision 

 
 

 

Your leadership works tirelessly to move your organization forward. Their vision, tenacity, and 
sense of purpose have propelled you to new levels of success and serve as a roadmap to your 
future. They are the heart of your organization and must be shielded from liability. 

 
Page 337 of 417



The Alliant Public Pool Liability Program (APPL) provides liability 
coverage for the leadership of pooling organizations and similar groups. 
This best-in-class program covers the governing board, officers, and 
professional liability exposure of the pool, enabling you to conduct your 
business unencumbered by the confines of liability exposures. 

COMPREHENSIVE COVERAGE 
Alliant Insurance Services designed APPL 
to address the unique exposures faced by 
public pool organizations and their governing 
bodies. This includes claims arising from: 

■ Failure to buy adequate insurance

■ Claims handling errors and 
omissions

■ Board member versus board member 
actions

■ Member dispute over coverage

■ Member dispute over withdrawal

■ Employment practices arising from a 
pool employee

■ Non-compliance with
statutes/governing documents

■ Unfair claims practicesW■   e have created a propriety policy form that 
will respond to your exposure as it exists. 
This important coverage is integral to 
organizations of all sizes. In fact, even pooling 
organizations with no staff and third-party 
contracts face a liability exposure simply 
because they exist. 

ELIGIBLE ENTITIES 
APPL was designed with the flexibility to 
cover a broad range of entities. Furthermore, 
our long-standing experience servicing public 
sector clients and our high level of 
sophistication enables us to customize 
programs to meet the specific needs of the 
entities we serve. Eligible entities include: 

■ Risk-sharing pools

■ Joint powers authorities (JPAs)

■ Joint insurance funds (JIFs)

■ Insurance trusts

■ Inter-local agreements

■ Self-insurance groups (SIGs)

■ Group purchasing programs Not-for-profit
group captives

PROGRAM FEATURES 
APPL’s broad range of program features 
ensures that your entity will receive extensive 
protection from the myriad liabilities facing 
both its leadership and its mission, including: 

■ Basic program limits of $5 million with
flexible deductible options

■ Employment practices liability insurance
available if organization has employees

■ Coverage limits in excess of $5 million
available

■ Sub-limits available for the following:

■ Employment practices violation

■ Additional defense limit

■ Loss of documents

■ Breach of confidentiality extension

■ Libel and slander

■ Fidelity and dishonesty

■ A.M. Best “A” rating with full financial
security of Lloyd’s

ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES: 
THE PARTNER YOU DESERVE. 

With a history dating back to 1925, Alliant 
Insurance Services is one of the nation’s 
leading distributors of diversified insurance 
products and services. Operating through a 
national network of offices, Alliant provides 
property and casualty, workers’ compensa- 
tion, employee benefits, surety, and financial 
products and services to more than 26,000 
clients nationwide. 

www.alliant.com

CA License No. 0C36861 
© 2015 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. All rights reserved. [2013-2230] 

Contact: David Evans 
First Vice President 
415 403 1484 
devans@alliant.com 

 
Page 338 of 417

http://www.alliant.com/
mailto:devans@alliant.com


Code: Select Code Section:

 
Page 339 of 417



995.3.

995.4.

995.6.

the public entity and the employee or former employee. For the purposes of this section, “specific conflict of
interest” means a conflict of interest or an adverse or pecuniary interest, as specified by statute or by a rule or
regulation of the public entity.

(b) If an employee or former employee requests in writing that the public entity, through its designated legal
counsel, provide for a defense, the public entity shall, within 20 days, inform the employee or former employee
whether it will or will not provide a defense, and the reason for the refusal to provide a defense.

(c) If an actual and specific conflict of interest becomes apparent subsequent to the 20-day period following the
employee’s written request for defense, nothing herein shall prevent the public entity from refusing to provide
further defense to the employee. The public entity shall inform the employee of the reason for the refusal to provide
further defense.

(Amended by Stats. 1982, Ch. 1046, Sec. 1.)

(a) If a state employee provides his or her own defense against an action brought for an alleged violation of
Section 8547.3, and if it is established that no violation of Section 8547.3 occurred, the public entity shall reimburse
the employee for any costs incurred in the defense.

(b) A public entity which does provide for the defense of a state employee charged with a violation of Section
8547.3 shall reserve all rights to be reimbursed for any costs incurred in that defense. If a state employee is found
to have violated Section 8547.3, he or she is liable for all defense costs and shall reimburse the public entity for
those costs.

(Amended by Stats. 1995, Ch. 277, Sec. 1. Effective January 1, 1996.)

A public entity may, but is not required to, provide for the defense of:

(a) An action or proceeding brought by the public entity to remove, suspend or otherwise penalize its own employee
or former employee, or an appeal to a court from an administrative proceeding by the public entity to remove,
suspend or otherwise penalize its own employee or former employee.

(b) An action or proceeding brought by the public entity against its own employee or former employee as an
individual and not in his official capacity, or an appeal therefrom.

(Added by Stats. 1963, Ch. 1683, Sec. 16.)

A public entity is not required to provide for the defense of an administrative proceeding brought against an
employee or former employee, but a public entity may provide for the defense of an administrative proceeding

 
Page 340 of 417



995.8.

995.9.

brought against an employee or former employee if:

(a) The administrative proceeding is brought on account of an act or omission in the scope of his employment as an
employee of the public entity; and

(b) The public entity determines that such defense would be in the best interests of the public entity and that the
employee or former employee acted, or failed to act, in good faith, without actual malice and in the apparent
interests of the public entity.

(Added by Stats. 1963, Ch. 1683, Sec. 16.)

A public entity is not required to provide for the defense of a criminal action or proceeding (including a
proceeding to remove an officer under Sections 3060 to 3073, inclusive, of the Government Code) brought against
an employee or former employee, but a public entity may provide for the defense of a criminal action or proceeding
(including a proceeding to remove an officer under Sections 3060 to 3073, inclusive, of the Government Code)
brought against an employee or former employee if:

(a) The criminal action or proceeding is brought on account of an act or omission in the scope of his employment as
an employee of the public entity; and

(b) The public entity determines that such defense would be in the best interests of the public entity and that the
employee or former employee acted, or failed to act, in good faith, without actual malice and in the apparent
interests of the public entity.

(Added by Stats. 1963, Ch. 1683, Sec. 16.)

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, upon a request made in writing to a public entity, the public
entity may defend or indemnify or defend and indemnify any witness who has testified on behalf of the public entity
in any criminal, civil, or administrative action. The decision of the public entity to defend or indemnify or defend and
indemnify such a witness shall rest within the sound discretion of the public entity and may be based on any
relevant factors, including, but not limited to, whether the provision of defense or indemnity would serve the public
interest. The public entity may defend or indemnify or defend and indemnify the witness only if it is determined by
the public entity that the action being brought against the witness is based directly upon the conduct which the
public entity requested of the witness related to the witness’ testimony or provision of evidence. The public entity
has the discretion to provide a defense alone apart from indemnity, and the public entity may offer to defend or
indemnify or defend and indemnify while reserving all rights to subsequently withdraw these offers upon reasonable
notice.

 
Page 341 of 417



996.

996.4.

996.6.

Neither defense nor indemnification shall be provided if the testimony giving rise to the action against the witness
was false in any material respect, or was otherwise not given by the witness with a good faith belief in its truth; nor
shall representation or indemnification under this section be offered or promised unless the action has been
commenced and the witness has requested the public entity to act for the witness’ benefit under this section. The
public entity shall not be liable for indemnification of a defendant witness for punitive damages awarded to the
plaintiff in such an action. If the plaintiff prevails in a claim for punitive damages in an action defended at the
expense of the public entity, the defendant shall be liable to the public entity for the full costs incurred by the public
entity in providing representation to the defendant witness.

(Added by Stats. 1995, Ch. 799, Sec. 2. Effective January 1, 1996.)

A public entity may provide for a defense pursuant to this part by its own attorney or by employing other
counsel for this purpose or by purchasing insurance which requires that the insurer provide the defense. All of the
expenses of providing a defense pursuant to this part are proper charges against a public entity. A public entity has
no right to recover such expenses from the employee or former employee defended.

(Added by Stats. 1963, Ch. 1683, Sec. 16.)

If after request a public entity fails or refuses to provide an employee or former employee with a defense
against a civil action or proceeding brought against him and the employee retains his own counsel to defend the
action or proceeding, he is entitled to recover from the public entity such reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and
expenses as are necessarily incurred by him in defending the action or proceeding if the action or proceeding arose
out of an act or omission in the scope of his employment as an employee of the public entity, but he is not entitled
to such reimbursement if the public entity establishes (a) that he acted or failed to act because of actual fraud,
corruption or actual malice, or (b) that the action or proceeding is one described in Section 995.4.

Nothing in this section shall be construed to deprive an employee or former employee of the right to petition for a
writ of mandate to compel the public entity or the governing body or an employee thereof to perform the duties
imposed by this part.

(Added by Stats. 1963, Ch. 1683, Sec. 16.)

The rights of an employee or former employee under this part are in addition to and not in lieu of any rights
he may have under any contract or under any other enactment providing for his defense.

(Added by Stats. 1963, Ch. 1683, Sec. 16.)

 
Page 342 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item I.6. 
 

FY 22/23 RENEWAL UPDATES  
 

INFORMATION ITEM 
 

ISSUE: The Program Administrators provide an overview of the upcoming insurance renewals. 
 
Property Program: while rates have steadied somewhat, the property market, particularly for wildfire 
exposures in CA, continues to be extremely challenging. After a good start, the second half of 2021 saw 
a number of extreme weather events, most notably Hurricane Ida eve diminished hope that the market 
was starting to stabilize. NorCal Cities remains on the loss leader list in the APIP program, with an 
initial estimated increase in rates of up to 65%. Since the initial estimate that has been reduced to 15% 
to 25%. This is in addition to the inflation trend factors increasing the total insured values an average of 
6% this year. Combined we are expecting 30% to 35% increases in total premium.   
 
The Program Administrators have reached out to obtain coverage options, with the most likely option, 
if any, being a primary layer of coverage to as much as $20-$25M, with APIP providing the Auto and 
Excess coverage as well as Cyber and Pollution. 
 
Cyber Insurance: this market is also experiencing extreme rate increases, from 60% to 600%, due to 
the frequency and severity of insured losses over the last couple of years. We have been asked to provide 
applications for the excess coverage for the first time, and members can expect increases in that $3M xs 
$2M limit. The Cyber coverage that comes with APIP will also increase but the impact will not be as 
noticeable as with the excess or stand-alone coverages.  
 
Crime: we are expecting a 10% to 15% increase overall for the coverage in the ACIP program. Losses 
overall have also trended up though not as dramatically as in property and cyber. 
 
Individual Purchase Coverage: other lines of coverage, including airport and auto physical damage 
programs, are expected to be stable for renewal, with increases of 5-10% based on exposure increases.   
      
RECOMMENDATION: None – information only. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: TBD, based on coverage and exposure. 
 
BACKGROUND: None 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): None 

  

 
Page 343 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item I.7. 

APPOINTMENT OF CJPRMA BOARD ALTERNATE  
AND NOMINATIONS OF NCCSIF BOARD OFFICERS  

ACTION ITEM 

ISSUE: The Board of Directors is asked to appoint a new Alternate Board Representative to the 
California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority (CJPRMA). Stephanie Van Steyn from the City of 
Galt has indicated a desire to be the Alternate Representative. 

The Board is also asked to solicit nominations for the positions of President and Vice President of the 
JPA.  Both positions are up for replacement as of July 1, 2022, for two-year terms. The officers are often 
chosen from the ranks of the Executive Committee, but any Board Member may serve as an officer. The 
incoming Executive Committee and current officers are provided on the next page for reference. Jen 
Lee and Jennifer Styczynski have agreed to continue as the Treasurer and Secretary, respectively, 
pending approval from the Board. 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve appointment of CJPRMA Alternate and solicit nominations and/or 
appointments from the members for the upcoming President and Vice President vacancies.  

FISCAL IMPACT: None expected from this item.  

BACKGROUND: The CJPRMA Board Representative attends meetings and votes on behalf of 
NCCSIF on all liability program issues (NCCSIF does not participate in their property or auto 
programs). The Board meets three times a year in Livermore, with an additional Annual Membership 
Meeting in May that lasts two days and is usually held in another Northern California location. NCCSIF 
is an important member of the group, representing 10% of their total payroll exposure base. 

ATTACHMENT(S): None 

 
Page 344 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item I.7. 
continued 

 
 
 

FY 22/23 NCCSIF Executive Committee 
 

 
Member 

 
Representative 

Term of Office 
New Second Year Term 

City of Anderson Liz Cottrell July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2024 

City of Auburn Nathan Bagwill July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2024 

City of Corning  Kristina Miller  July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023 

City of Dixon Rachel Ancheta July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2024 

City of Elk Gove Kara Reddig July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023 

City of Ione Michael Rock  July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023 

City of Red Bluff Sandra Ryan                          July 1, 2022, to June 30,2023 

City of Rocklin Andrew Schiltz July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2024 

City of Yuba City Spencer Morrison July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023 

 
The current Officers are as follows: 

 
President Dave Warren October 29, 2020, to June 30, 2022 

Vice President Jose Jasso October 29, 2020, to June 30, 2022 

Secretary Jennifer Styczynski June 1, 2020, to June 30, 2022 

Treasurer (non-voting) Jen Lee Appointed annually 
(Appointed until June 30, 2022) 

CJPRMA Rep (non-voting) Elizabeth 
Ehrenstrom  

Appointed as needed 

  

 
Page 345 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item I.8. 
 

PRELIMINARY 22/23 MEETING CALENDAR  
AND LOCATIONS 

 
ACTION ITEM 

 
ISSUE: The proposed NCCSIF 22/23 Meeting Calendar is presented for review to determine if any 
dates should be modified due to conflicts. 
 
In addition, members have requested consideration of holding some meetings by videoconference, given 
the recent experience during the COVID pandemic and traveling distances for some members.  
 
The Board meets four time a year, with the December meeting primarily a planning and/or training day, 
so that would be best in person.  
 
The October meeting usually focuses on the group’s finances, including the audit, investments, and 
related benchmarks. It is preceded by a Risk Management Committee meeting.  
 
The April and June Board meetings focus primarily on the budgets for the upcoming program renewals. 
The April meeting includes the actuarial estimates and preliminary budgets and adjustments for the 
Workers’ Compensation and Liability Programs and is preceded by a Risk Management Committee 
meeting. The June meeting includes the final budgets for all the programs, including property, excess 
cyber, and crime.  
 
The Executive and Claim Committees meet three times per year and most often the Executive 
Committee agenda is a preview of the items to be presented to the Board.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review the proposed dates and approve the Meeting Calendar and locations 
as presented or revised or provide direction.     
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: Annually, the Executive Committee reviews and recommends the meeting calendar 
for NCCSIF Board, Executive, Risk Management, Claims, Police Risk Management and Finance 
Committees. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Preliminary 22/23 Meeting Calendar 

 

 
Page 346 of 417



A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

PROGRAM YEAR 22/23 MEETING CALENDAR 

Thursday, August 4, 2022 ........................................  Police Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

Thursday, September 22, 2022 ................................................................. Claims Committee at 10:00 a.m. 
Executive Committee at 11:30 a.m. 

Thursday, October 20, 2022.................................................  Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 
Board of Directors at 12 noon 

Thursday, November 3, 2022...................................  Police Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

Thursday, December 15, 2022* ..............................................................  Board of Directors at 10:00 a.m. 

Thursday, February 2, 2023 .....................................  Police Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

Thursday, March 23, 2023 ........................................................................ Claims Committee at 10:00 a.m. 
Executive Committee at 11:30 a.m. 

Thursday, April 20, 2023 .....................................................  Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 
Board of Directors at 12 noon 

Thursday, May 4, 2023 ............................................  Police Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

Thursday, May 25, 2023 ........................................................................... Claims Committee at 10:00 a.m. 
Executive Committee at 11:30 a.m. 

Thursday, June 22, 2023* .......................................................................  Board of Directors at 10:00 a.m. 

Meeting Location: Rocklin Event Center - Garden Room  
 2650 Sunset Blvd., Rocklin, CA 95677 

Rocklin Event Center – Ballroom * 

Note: Additional Claims Committee Meetings may be scheduled as needed for Claims Authority approval 
which will be held via teleconference. 

Page 347 of 417

mbeverly
Underline

mbeverly
Underline

mbeverly
Underline

mbeverly
Underline



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item I.9. 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE REVISIONS 
ACTION ITEM 

 
ISSUE: The Program Managers are undertaking a review of NorCal Cities Policies and Procedures 
and making recommendations as appropriate. The following three Policies have been reviewed by the 
Executive Committee and a brief description and recommendation for each policy is listed below, with 
attached, red-lined versions for review and discussion. 
 
L-4: Formula for Determining Liability Annual Deposit 
The P&P has been revised to clean up the language describing the formulas for the Banking 
Layer and Excess Insurance allocations and the allocation of administrative expenses, with no 
changes to the formulas themselves. 
 
A-2: Service Provider Performance Evaluation 
This P&P has been updated to remove reference to the specific timing of the evaluation and use 
of the NorCal Cities website. The latest survey questions are also added to update the Policy. 
 
A-10: Annual Calendar of Reports, Audits and Filings 
No updates are required for this Policy, and it will be noted as reviewed 9/16/21. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and approve recommended revisions as presented or revised or 
provide direction. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: No fiscal impact is expected from this item. 
 
BACKGROUND: NorCal Cities has four sets of Policies and Procedures: Administration, Risk 
Management, Liability and Workers’ Compensation. The Risk Management policies were expanded in 
2016. Other polices for Work Comp and Liability have been updated within the last 4-5 years. The 
Administration policies have been expanded in the last few years to add an Underwriting Policy, with 
others relating to funding and claims procedures updated in the last 2-3 years. However, there are 
other policies, mostly administrative, that have not been reviewed in the last five years and will be 
brought to the appropriate committees for review. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Policies and Procedures: 
1. L-4: Formula for Determining Liability Annual Deposit, red-lined and clean versions 
2. A-2: Service Provider Performance Evaluation, red-lined version 
3. A-10: Annual Calendar of Reports, Audits and Filings, reviewed with no revisions 
  

 
Page 348 of 417



Northern 
California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

c/o Alliant Insurance 
Services, Inc. 

Corporate Insurance License No. 0C36861 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
NCCSIF Liability Policy & Procedure 

 

 

NCCSIF 
 
LIABILITY POLICY AND PROCEDURE #L-4  
 
SUBJECT: FORMULA FOR DETERMINING LIABILITY ANNUAL DEPOSIT 
 
The Liability Annual Deposit shall be calculated annually based on five cost components that 
comprise the annual deposit.  The five cost components are as follows: 
 
I.  Banking Layer Loss Fund 
The Banking Layer Loss Fund represents an amount determined annually by an outside actuary 
and approved annually by the Board of Directors to fund the losses occurring within the Banking 
Layer during the next fiscal year. Two factors are used for determining the amount of each 
Member's share of the Banking Layer Loss Fund. The first factor is based on Average Total 
Incurred Losses within in the Banking Layer and yields 75% of the total Banking Layer Loss Fund.  
The second factor is based on Payroll and yields 25% of the total Banking Layer Loss Fund.  The 
formulas for the two factors are: 
 

FORMULAS 
 

Factor 1:  Average Total Incurred Losses within the Banking layer 
 

City's Member's Percentage of the JPA’s Five Year Average Incurred Losses within the Banking Layer 
beginning six years prior and ending one year prior ($) 

/ 
JPA's Five year Total Average Incurred Losses within the Banking Layer ($) 

= 
City's Percentage of JPA's Five Year Total Average Incurred Losses (%) 

X 
Weighting Factor of 75% 

X 
Banking Layer Loss Fund ($) 

= 
 75% of the Member’s Banking Layer Loss Fund Contribution Based on Average Total Incurred Losses 

($) 
 

Factor 2:  Payroll 
 

City's Payroll ($) 
/ 

JPA's Total Payroll ($) 
= 

City's Member's Percentage of the JPA’s Total Five Year Average Payroll for the same period as losses 
($) 

 
X 

 
Page 349 of 417



Northern 
California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

c/o Alliant Insurance 
Services, Inc. 

Corporate Insurance License No. 0C36861 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
NCCSIF Liability Policy & Procedure 

 

 

NCCSIF 
Weighting Factor of 25%  

XX= 
Banking Layer Loss Fund ($) 

= 
* 25% of the Member’s Banking Layer Loss Fund  

Based on Payroll 
 

* The sum of Factor 1 and Factor 2 equals the Member’s Banking Layer Loss Fund 
 
 
 
 
II. Plan Fund Adjustments 
In accordance with Policy and Procedure #A-1 the Plan Fund Adjustments are calculated annually and 
presented to the Board of Directors at its spring meeting.  
 
 
III. Shared Risk Layer 
The formula for allocation of the Shared Risk Layer Loss Fund is determined separately under Policy and 
Procedure #L-1. 
 
IV. Excess Coverage 
The component for the cost of the excess coverage is calculated in the following manner: 
 

Use the same factor’s as the Banking Layer Calculation but flips the applicable percentages: 
 

City's Member's Payroll is weighted 75% 
X+ 

Average Banking Layer losses are weighted 25%  
= 

Excess Coverage Premium Allocation Percentage 
 
V.  Administrative Costs 
Administrative costs are comprised of two components: applicable claims adjusting and auditing 
expenses, program administration expenses, 50% of the Safety and Risk Management Budget, any other 
expenses specific to the Program, and a share of the remaining overall JPA expenses such as financial 
audits, accounting services, and Board meeting expenses.  
 
The costs are allocated to Members in the program as follows: 
 
 
1. General Administration including unallocated claims adjusting expense, 50% of the Safety and Risk 

Management Budget, all ongoing expenses such as financial and claims audits and a per member 
Program Administration fee. Equal Shares – 50% of the total costsThese expenses are shared equally 
by all Program Members. 

 

 
Page 350 of 417



Northern 
California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

c/o Alliant Insurance 
Services, Inc. 

Corporate Insurance License No. 0C36861 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
NCCSIF Liability Policy & Procedure 

 

 

NCCSIF 
2. Program Administration Fee.  This includes 50% of the Safety and Risk Management Budget, 

Accounting Fees, and Program Administration fees that are apportioned to the Shared Risk and Excess 
layers. These Pro-Rata – 50% of the total costs expenses are shared by all Program Members based on 
the percentage of each Member’s payroll to total payroll.   

 
MAXIMUM DEPOSIT 

 
The premium for the Banking Layer, Shared Risk Layer, Excess Insurance, and the Administrative 
costs will be developed annually as a net rate per $100 of payroll per member.  This net rate will 
not increase for any member on a year- to- year basis by more than a percentage determined 
annually by the Board of Directors.  If any member’s deposit would exceed that amount then it 
will be capped with the resulting cost spread among the other members pro-rata by payroll. 
 
 
Effective Date:  December 6, 1996 
 
First Revision:  December 14, 2006 
 
Second Revision: January 8, 2015  
 
Third Review/Revision: September 16, 2021  

 
Page 351 of 417



Northern 
California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

c/o Alliant Insurance 
Services, Inc. 

Corporate Insurance License No. 0C36861 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
NCCSIF Liability Policy & Procedure 

 

 

LIABILITY POLICY AND PROCEDURE #L-4  
 
SUBJECT: FORMULA FOR DETERMINING LIABILITY ANNUAL DEPOSIT 
 
The Liability Annual Deposit shall be calculated annually based on five cost components that 
comprise the annual deposit.  The five cost components are as follows: 
 
I.  Banking Layer Loss Fund 
The Banking Layer Loss Fund represents an amount determined annually by an outside actuary 
and approved annually by the Board of Directors to fund the losses occurring within the Banking 
Layer during the next fiscal year. Two factors are used for determining the amount of each 
Member's share of the Banking Layer Loss Fund. The first factor is based on Average Total 
Incurred Losses within in the Banking Layer and yields 75% of the total Banking Layer Loss Fund.  
The second factor is based on Payroll and yields 25% of the total Banking Layer Loss Fund.  The 
formulas for the two factors are: 
 

FORMULAS 
 

Factor 1:  Average Total Incurred Losses within the Banking layer 
 

Member's Percentage of the JPA’s Five Year Average Incurred Losses within the Banking Layer 
beginning six years prior and ending one year prior ($) 

X 
Weighting Factor of 75% 

X 
Banking Layer Loss Fund ($) 

= 
 75% of the Member’s Banking Layer Loss Fund Contribution ($) 

 
Factor 2:  Payroll 

 
Member's Percentage of the JPA’s Five Year Average Payroll for the same period as losses ($) 

X 
Weighting Factor of 25%  

X 
Banking Layer Loss Fund ($) 

= 
* 25% of the Member’s Banking Layer Loss Fund  

 
* The sum of Factor 1 and Factor 2 equals the Member’s Banking Layer Loss Fund 
 
 
II. Plan Fund Adjustments 
In accordance with Policy and Procedure #A-1 the Plan Fund Adjustments are calculated annually and 
presented to the Board of Directors at its spring meeting.  

 
Page 352 of 417



Northern 
California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

c/o Alliant Insurance 
Services, Inc. 

Corporate Insurance License No. 0C36861 

III. Shared Risk Layer
The formula for allocation of the Shared Risk Layer Loss Fund is determined separately under Policy and
Procedure #L-1.

IV. Excess Coverage
The component for the cost of the excess coverage is calculated in the following manner:

Use the same factors as the Banking Layer Calculation but flip the applicable percentages: 

Member's Payroll is weighted 75% 
+ 

Average Banking Layer losses are weighted 25%  
= 

Excess Coverage Premium Allocation Percentage 

V. Administrative Costs
Administrative costs are comprised of  applicable claims adjusting and auditing expenses, program
administration expenses, 50% of the Safety and Risk Management Budget, any other expenses specific to
the Program, and a share of the remaining overall JPA expenses such as financial audits, accounting
services, and Board meeting expenses.

The costs are allocated to Members in the program as follows: 

1. Equal Shares – 50% of the total costs are shared equally by all Program Members.

2. Pro-Rata – 50% of the total costs are shared based on the percentage of each Member’s payroll to total
payroll.

MAXIMUM DEPOSIT 

The premium for the Banking Layer, Shared Risk Layer, Excess Insurance, and the Administrative 
costs will be developed annually as a net rate per $100 of payroll per member.  This net rate will 
not increase for any member on a year-to-year basis by more than a percentage determined 
annually by the Board of Directors.  If any member’s deposit would exceed that amount then it 
will be capped with the resulting cost spread among the other members pro-rata by payroll. 

Effective Date:  December 6, 1996 

First Revision:  December 14, 2006 

Second Revision: January 8, 2015  

Third Review/Revision: April 21, 2022

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
NCCSIF Liability Policy & Procedure 

 
Page 353 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
 Corporate Insurance License No. 0C36861 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
NCCSIF Administrative Policy & Procedure 

 

NCCSIF 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY AND PROCEDURE #A-2 
 

 
SUBJECT: SERVICE PROVIDER PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
 

Policy Statement: 
 

It shall be the policy of the Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund to perform every odd numbered 
year to ask the Board of Directors, at the October Board Meeting, if a Service Provider Performance Evaluation 
at least every odd-numbered year, should be performed, with all Board and Committee members having the 
opportunity to evaluate the services of the primary Service Providers. the following Spring. 
 
If the Board determines that the Performance Evaluation is not needed, then the Executive Committee will 
assume responsibility for Service Provider feedback. 
 
Procedure: 
 
1. The bi-annual Service Provider performance evaluation shall take place bi-annually, in the Spring, prior to 

the anniversary date of the Service Provider’s contract regardless of the duration of the contract. 
 
2. An evaluation form provides for the review of the performance of the Service Provider. An evaluation form 

for the following Service Providers is attached: 
 

a. Third Party Claims Administrators 
b. Safety & Risk Control Services 
c. Program Administrator 

 
3. A copy of the evaluation form shall be sent to each Board and Committee member. 
 
4. The evaluation may be conducted on-line, via the NCCSIF website (nccsif.org) or by printing, completing 

the form and returning per the instructions on the form either to the Program Administrator or to the 
Ppresident of NCCSIF. 

 
5. The evaluation may be anonymous. 
 
6. The results of the evaluation will be reviewed by the Executive Committee and shall be made available to 

the Board of Directors. 
 
7. The Service Provider shall be made aware of the overall results and shall be provided with an opportunity 

to respond to specific deficiencies, with the said response being forwarded to the president of NCCSIF. 
 
  

 
Page 354 of 417



 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Vendor Service Performance Survey of 
NCCSIF Service Providers 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
NCCSIF Administrative Policy & Procedure 

 

 
PURPOSE: 
 
This survey provides the member an opportunity to evaluate the level of service, communication, 
professionalism, and responsiveness of service providers listed below. All responses are confidential. Your 
candid response is greatly appreciated and will help us ensure you receive excellent service. To take the survey 
on the nccsif.org website, click on the Begin Survey button or you may elect to take the survey by printing a 
copy and completing the same. 
 
 
Alliant Insurance Services 
Brokerage Risk Management and Program Administration 
 
 
York Sedgwick Risk Services Group, Inc. 
Third Party Claims Administrators 
 
 
Bickmore Sedgwick 
Safety and Risk Control Services 
 
 
 
 
 
Effective Date: May 26, 1989 

First Revision Date: June 20, 2008 

Second Revision Date: June 26, 2009 

Third Revision Date: December 15, 2010 

Fourth Revision Date:  October 13, 2011 

Fifth Revision Date:  October 10, 2013 

Sixth Revision Date: October 15, 2015 

Seventh Review/Revision September 16, 2021  

 
Page 355 of 417



 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Vendor Service Performance Survey of 
NCCSIF Service Providers 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
NCCSIF Administrative Policy & Procedure 

 

This page refers to your interactions with Alliant Insurance Services. Choose the answer that best describes 
your experience working with Alliant Insurance Services. If you cannot rate an item, or it is not applicable, 
please select N/A. 
 
Alliant Insurance Services 
The broker/administrator for NCCSIF, providing services including administration support for the NCCSIF 
Board of Directors, NCCSIF Executive Committee, NCCSIF Risk Management Committee, administrative 
services for self-insurance programs, consultative support for NCCSIF Members on insurance issues, and 
broker services for purchasing insurance. 
 
 Well Below/ 

Does Not Meet 
Expectations 

 Fair/ 
Below 
Expectations 

 Good/ 
Meets 
Expectations 

 Very Good/ 
Above 
Expectations 

 N/A 
Don’t Have 
Sufficient 
Experience to 
Evaluate 

1. Responds promptly to inquiries and 
requests 

         

2. Maintains contact and keeps member 
apprised on all important and pertinent 
matters 

         

3. Provides high quality advice and 
assistance 

         

4. Communicates well both orally and in 
writing 

         

5. Handles all interactions in a professional 
manner 

         

6. Accomplishes goals and objectives and 
also provides additional value 

         

7. Overall level of satisfaction 
         

 
Comments/Suggestions:   

   

  

 
Page 356 of 417



 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Vendor Service Performance Survey of 
NCCSIF Service Providers 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
NCCSIF Administrative Policy & Procedure 

 

This page refers to your interactions with York Risk Services Group, Inc., the Third Party Claims 
Administrator. Choose the answer that best describes your experience working with York Risk Services Group, 
Inc. as the third party administrator. If you cannot rate an item, or it is not applicable, please select N/A. 
 
York Risk Services Group, Inc. - Third Party LIABILITY Claims Administrator 
The third party claims administrator for NCCSIF providing comprehensive and appropriate claims adjusting 
and claims administration services for all liability and claims reported by NCCSIF or its members. 
 
 Well Below/ 

Does Not Meet 
Expectations 

 Fair/ 
Below 
Expectations 

 Good/ 
Meets 
Expectations 

 Very Good/ 
Above 
Expectations 

 N/A 
Don’t Have 
Sufficient 
Experience to 
Evaluate 

1. Controls the claims management 
process well 

         

2. Have you had a claims review with 
York in the past year 

         

3. Are the reserves set on claims 
reasonable 

         

4. Submits timely written status reports  
         

5. Recommendations concerning claims 
settlement or denial are clear and 
generally accepted 

         

6. Maintains good contact and keeps 
member apprised on all important  
matters 

         

7. Provides high quality advice and 
assistance 

         

8. Communicates well both orally and in 
writing 

         

  

 
Page 357 of 417



 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Vendor Service Performance Survey of 
NCCSIF Service Providers 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
NCCSIF Administrative Policy & Procedure 

 

9. Accomplishes goals and objectives and 
also provides additional value 

         

10. Provides feedback and suggestions  for 
mitigating claims 

         

11. Overall level of satisfaction 
         

 
Comments on what doing well/Suggestions for improvements:   

  

  

  

  

 
Page 358 of 417



 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Vendor Service Performance Survey of 
NCCSIF Service Providers 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
NCCSIF Administrative Policy & Procedure 

 

This page refers to your interactions with York Risk Services Group, Inc., the Third Party Claims 
Administrator. Choose the answer that best describes your experience working with York Risk Services Group, 
Inc. as the third party administrator. If you cannot rate an item, or it is not applicable, please select N/A. 
 
York Risk Services Group, Inc. – Third Party WORKERS’ COMPENSATION Claims Administrator 
The third party claims administrator for NCCSIF providing comprehensive and appropriate claims adjusting 
and claims administration services for all workers’ compensation claims reported by NCCSIF or its members. 
 
 Well Below/ 

Does Not Meet 
Expectations 

 Fair/ 
Below 
Expectations 

 Good/ 
Meets 
Expectations 

 Very Good/ 
Above 
Expectations 

 N/A 
Don’t Have 
Sufficient 
Experience to 
Evaluate 

1. Controls the claims management 
process well 

         

2. Have you had a claims review with 
York in the past year 

         

3. Are the reserves set on claims 
reasonable 

         

4. Submit timely written status reports on 
claims 

         

5. Recommendations concerning claims 
settlement or denial are clear and 
generally accepted 

         

6. Maintains good contact and keep 
member apprised on all important 
matters 

         

7. Provides high quality advice and 
assistance 

         

8. Communicates well both orally and in 
writing 

         

9. Accomplishes goals and objectives and 
also provides additional value 

         

 
Page 359 of 417



 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Vendor Service Performance Survey of 
NCCSIF Service Providers 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
NCCSIF Administrative Policy & Procedure 

 

10. Provides feedback and suggestions  for 
mitigating claims 

         

11. Overall level of satisfaction 
         

 
Comments on what doing well/Suggestions for improvement:   

  

  

  

  

 
Page 360 of 417



 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Vendor Service Performance Survey of 
NCCSIF Service Providers 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
NCCSIF Administrative Policy & Procedure 

 

This page refers to your interactions with Bickmore for Safety and Risk Control Services. Choose the answer 
that best describes your experience working with Bickmore. If you cannot rate an item, or it is not applicable, 
please select N/A. 

Bickmore - Risk Control Services 
Bickmore provides Safety and Risk Control services and develops injury and illness policies to meet standards, 
consults and coordinates with the Program Administrator, and coordinates the Police Risk Management 
Committee, consulting with the Program Administrator. 
 
 Well Below/ 

Does Not Meet 
Expectations 

 Fair/ 
Below 
Expectations 

 Good/ 
Meets 
Expectations 

 Very Good/ 
Above 
Expectations 

 N/A 
Don’t Have 
Sufficient 
Experience to 
Evaluate 

1. Is Bickmore responsive to your needs 
and concerns, and responds promptly to 
inquiries and requests 

         

2. Maintains good contact and keep 
member apprised on all important and 
pertinent risk management matters 

         

3. Knowledgeable and experienced in 
handling member inquiries and 
requests 

         

4. Risk Assessments provided timely and 
provides sufficient information to 
support member cities in making 
informed decisions 

         

5. Do you use the Employee Safety 
Training Matrix 

         

6. Do you use the Employee Risk 
Management Vendor Matrix 

         

7. Accomplishes goals and objectives as 
well as provides additional value to the 
JPA 

         

  

 
Page 361 of 417



 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Vendor Service Performance Survey of 
NCCSIF Service Providers 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
NCCSIF Administrative Policy & Procedure 

 

8. Overall level of satisfaction 
         

 
Comments/Suggestions:   

  

  

  

 

 
Page 362 of 417



1

Jenna Wirkner

Subject: NCCSIF Service Provider Survey **Response Requested by 8-31-21** - NEED 100% PARTICIPATION

Greetings NCCSIF members, 
 
We are conducting a survey for NCCSIF Service Providers  and 100% participation is needed to get appropriate feedback.  
 
We have divided the surveys in to four service categories: Work Comp Claims, Liability Claims, Risk Control Services, and Program Administration. 
Please have the person most knowledgeable about the vendor’s performance complete the survey by Tuesday, August 31, 2021. 
 
These are brief online surveys that can be completed in 10‐15 minutes. Please note that we have kept the same questions from the previous 
surveys, completed in September 2018 and July 2020, to accurately measure the progress made to date.  
 
Click the links below to start the surveys. 
 
 

 NCCSIF Workers’ Compensation Claims Administrator – Sedgwick 
 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/3K5FQ97 

 

 NCCSIF Liability Claims Administrator Sedgwick 
 

             https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/F5C8WRW 
              

 NCCSIF Safety and Risk Control Services Sedgwick 
 
              https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/389WQQ2 
 

 NCCSIF Brokerage Risk Management & Program Administration Alliant 
 
            https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/38W7D5B 
 
Thank you very much for your time and cooperation. 
 
Please let us know if you have any questions. 
 
 

Jenna Wirkner 
Account Representative 
Public Entity 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
 
T: 916.643.2741 
F: 916.643.2750 
Alliant.com 

  
 
The More Rewarding Way to Manage Risk 
 

CA License No. 0C36861 
  
Important note about mail service, remitting payment and reporting claims:  
A number of our offices around the region are experiencing disruption with mail and deliveries.  To make sure we receive your payment timely, 
please mail all checks to the lockbox address on your invoice and follow claims reporting procedures provided by your claims advocate.  Please 
contact us at any time if you have concerns or questions.   

 

 
Page 363 of 417



NCCSIF Brokerage Risk Management & Program Administration Survey

Q1. Responds promptly to inquiries and requests.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q2. Maintains contact and keeps member apprised on all important and 
pertinent matters.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q3. Provides high quality advice and assistance.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q4. Communicates well both orally and in writing.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

 
Page 364 of 417



Q5. Handles all interactions in a professional manner.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q6. Accomplishes goals and objectives and also provides additional value.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Well Below (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q7. Overall level of satisfaction.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q8. Comments on what doing well and/or provide suggestions for improvement:
Answered
Skipped

Q9. Survey Completed by
Answer Choices
City Name:
Company:
Address:
Address 2:
City/Town:
State/Province:
ZIP/Postal Code:
Country:
Email Address:
Phone Number:

 
Page 365 of 417



NCCSIF Safety and Risk Control Services Survey 

Q1. Sedgwick responsive to your needs and concerns, 
and responds promptly to inquiries and requests.

Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q2. Maintains good contact and keep member apprised on 
all important and pertinent risk management matters.

Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q3. Knowledgeable and experienced in handling member 
inquiries and requests.

Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q4. Risk Assessments provided timely and provides 
sufficient information to support member cities in making 
informed decisions.

Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)

 
Page 366 of 417



N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q5. Do you use the Employee Safety Training Matrix?
Answer Choices

Yes
No
Other (please specify)

Q6. Do you use the Employee Risk Management Vendor 
Matrix?

Answer Choices
Yes
No
Other (please specify)

Q7. Accomplishes goals and objectives as well as 
provides additional value to the JPA.

Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q8. Overall level of satisfaction.
Answer Choices

Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor(Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q9. Comments on what doing well and/or provide 
suggestions for improvement:
Answered
Skipped

 
Page 367 of 417



Q10. Survey Completed by
Answer Choices

City Name:
Company:
Address:
Address 2:
City/Town:
State/Province:
ZIP/Postal Code:
Country:
Email Address:
Phone Number:

 
Page 368 of 417



NCCSIF Workers' Compensation Claims Administrator 
Q1. Controls the claims management process well.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Comment (please provide specific example where appropriate)

Q2. Have you had a claims review with Sedgwick in the past year?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Comment (please provide specific example where appropriate)

Q3. Are the reserves set on claims reasonable?
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Comment (please provide specific example where appropriate)

Q4. Submits timely written status reports.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Comment (please provide specific example where appropriate)

Q5. Recommendations concerning claims settlement or denial are 
clear and generally accepted.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Comment (please provide specific example where appropriate)

 
Page 369 of 417



Q6. Maintains good contact and keeps member apprised on all 
important matters.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Comment (please provide specific example where appropriate)

Q7. Provides high quality advice and assistance.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Comment (please provide specific example where appropriate)

Q8. Communicates well both orally and in writing.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Comment (please provide specific example where appropriate)

Q9. Accomplishes goals and objectives and also provides additional 
value.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Comment (please provide specific example where appropriate)

Q10. Provides feedback and suggestions for mitigating claims.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)

 
Page 370 of 417



Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Comment (please provide specific example where appropriate)

Q11. Overall level of satisfaction.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Comment (please provide specific example where appropriate)

Q12. Who is your Workers' Compensation Claims Examiner?
Answered
Skipped

Q13. Please provide any comments on what Sedgwick is doing well 
and/or needs to improve on?
Answered
Skipped

Q14. Would you like to speak to an Alliant Representative regarding 
the service you're receiving from Sedgwick?

Answer Choices
Yes
No
If yes, please contact Marcus Beverly via email at Marcus.Beverly@alliant.com or by 
phone at 916-643-2704.

Q15. Survey Completed by
Answer Choices

City Name:
Company:
Address:
Address 2:
City/Town:
State/Province:
ZIP/Postal Code:
Country:
Email Address:
Phone Number:

 
Page 371 of 417



NCCSIF LIABILITY Claims Administrator Survey 2021
Q1. Controls the claims management process well.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q2. Have you had a claims review with Sedgwick in the past 
year?
Answer Choices
Yes
No
Other (please specify)

Q3. Are the reserves set on claims reasonable?
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q4. Submits timely written status reports.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q5. Recommendations concerning claims settlement or denial 
are clear and generally accepted.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)

 
Page 372 of 417



N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q6. Maintains good contact and keeps member apprised on 
all important matters.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q7. Provides high quality advice and assistance.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q8. Communicates well both orally and in writing.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q9. Accomplishes goals and objectives and also provides 
additional value.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Well Below (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

 
Page 373 of 417



Q10. Provides feedback and suggestions for mitigating claims.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q11. Overall level of satisfaction.
Answer Choices
Very Good (Above Expectations)
Good (Meets Expectations)
Fair (Below Expectations)
Poor (Does Not Meet Expectations)
N/A (Don't have sufficient experience to evaluate)
Other (please specify)

Q12. Comments on what doing well and/or provide 
suggestions for improvement:
Answered
Skipped

Q13. Survey Completed by
Answer Choices
City Name:
Company:
Address:
Address 2:
City/Town:
State/Province:
ZIP/Postal Code:
Country:
Email Address:
Phone Number:

 
Page 374 of 417



 

NCCSIF Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
Corporate Insurance License No. 0C36861 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
NCCSIF Administrative Policy & Procedure 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY AND PROCEDURE #A-10   
  
SUBJECT:  ANNUAL CALENDAR OF REPORTS, AUDITS AND FILINGS 
 
Policy Statement 
 
It shall be the policy of the Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund to take the following 
action on an annual or semi-annual basis: 
 
 REPORTS AND AUDITS: 
 
 1. Actuarial Study:  Annually, an actuarial study will be performed on both the workers' 

compensation and liability programs to ascertain (1) the necessary funding for the upcoming fiscal 
year and (2) the outstanding liabilities for the prior fiscal years. 

 
 2. Workers' Compensation Claims Administration Audit: This audit will be performed by an 

independent outside auditor every even numbered year. 
   
 3. Liability Claims Administration Audit: This audit will be performed by an independent 

outside auditor every odd numbered year. 
 
 4. Financial Audit:  This audit will be performed annually by an independent outside auditor. 
 
 STATE OF CALIFORNIA REGULATORY REQUIRED FILINGS: 
 
 1. Conflict of Interest Code:  This code will be reviewed (and amended if necessary) and filed 

with the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) by October 1 of every even numbered year. 
 
 2. Public Self Insurer's Annual Report for Joint Powers Authority and Members: This report will 

be filed with the State of California each year by October 1. 
 
 3. Statement of Facts / Roster of Public Agencies Filing: For each amendment, this report will 

be filed with the Secretary of State and with the County Clerk of the County in which the JPA has 
offices.  

 
 4. Financial Audit: This report will be filed with the State Controller, and with the County Clerk 

of the County in which the JPA has offices. 
 
 5. Form 700 - Statement of Economic Interests: All designated and alternate Board of Director 

members will annually file with the FPPC the Form 700 - Statement of Economic Interests by April 1. 
All designated and alternate Board of Director members will also file with the FPPC the Form 700 
upon retiring or becoming a designated or alternate Board Director.   

 
 6. Annual Report of Financial Transactions. The report will be filed with the State Controller 

each year by October 1. 
 
Effective Date: September 12, 1997      Second Revision:      September 16, 2021  

First Revision:  December 15, 2005 

 
Page 375 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item I.10. 

SEDGWICK WC CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION  
RENEWAL PROPOSAL 

ACTION ITEM 

ISSUE: The Board is provided the attached renewal proposal for Workers’ Compensation claims 
administration to replace the agreement expiring as of 6/30/22.  

Sedgwick has offered to continue their services for a three-year period with an initial increase of 3%, 
to $626,645, and increases of 3% in each of the two subsequent optional years. The significant 
difference in the proposal for Option 1 is the use of an NCC dedicated claims team of three indemnity 
adjusters with caseloads not to exceed 125 pending. Those three adjusters will work exclusively for 
NCC members. The two Medical Adjusters will be designated, meaning they will work with other 
clients, though Rebecca Summers has been assigned to NCC for some time and is very familiar with 
the members.  

Two additional options have been proposed at our request, adding additional resources to the team but 
at additional cost. After receiving feedback from the Executive Committee and in further discussions 
with Sedgwick the recommendation is to proceed with the Option 1 model and pricing that is more in 
line with the past but with the dedicated unit and perhaps more ad hoc use of a Return to Work (RTW) 
Coordinator for the more difficult cases.  

The proposal includes updated service standards and instructions that are attached for review that will 
be used for continued audits and as the benchmark for feedback from members, including the regular 
service provider survey in late August. Sedgwick’s performance will be reviewed at the September 
Executive Committee meeting and a recommendation made for the October Board meeting regarding 
the extension of the optional years or request for further direction.      

RECOMMENDATION: Approve proposal and conditions as presented or amended or provide 
direction.  

FISCAL IMPACT: Increase of 3% in current budget, from $608,392 to $626,645.    

BACKGROUND: Sedgwick and its predecessors York and Bragg & Associates have been providing 
claims administration services to NCCSIF since the inception of the Workers’ Compensation and 
Liability Programs. The Board reviewed the service and latest performance surveys at their December 
16, 2021, meeting and provided direction to negotiate a new agreement with Sedgwick with options for 
improving service and performance plan benchmarks.   

ATTACHMENT(S): NCCSIF Program Design and Pricing Proposal, 2/15/22   

 
Page 376 of 417



  

 

1 
Sedgwick Copyright © 2021 The information contained herein is confidential and proprietary to Sedgwick. It is being provided in order to allow 
evaluation of Sedgwick’s services and capabilities. Nothing contained herein should be disclosed to a third party without the prior consent of Sedgwick. 

NCCSIF Program Design and Pricing Proposal                     2/15/2022 

Contract Term: 07/01/2022 – 06/30/2025 

Annual flat fee option – Workers Compensation Life of Contract 

Sedgwick offers an annual flat fee pricing option in the amount of $626,645 based on the estimated claim volumes 
outlined above and the estimated required staffing to service those claims. This proposal offers a 3% year over year 
annual increase. Under this option, Sedgwick reserves the right to modify the annual flat fee if acquisitions, 
divestitures, changes in program requirements, or an increase in claim volume of greater than 10% impacts the 
staffing requirements of the unit.  

To address optional staffing models the below pricing and models are offered for member consideration.  

Option 1:  

This model moves the existing team to a dedicated claims team for NCCSIF which offers a case load of 125 for the 
three (3) indemnity adjusters.  This is the proposed structure we are putting into place as quickly as possible to ease 
work flow and improve communications.  

Term Annual Fee 

07/01/2022 – 06/30/2023 $626,645 

07/01/2023 – 06/30/2024 $645,445 

07/01/2024 – 06/30/2025 $664,800 

 

 

 
Page 377 of 417



  

 

2 
Sedgwick Copyright © 2021 The information contained herein is confidential and proprietary to Sedgwick. It is being provided in order to allow 
evaluation of Sedgwick’s services and capabilities. Nothing contained herein should be disclosed to a third party without the prior consent of Sedgwick. 

 

Option 2:  

This model retains the dedicated team and adds a dedicated IAP (Industry Advancement Program) adjuster 
internally trained taking on a lower case load to bring down the caseloads to 100 allowing for greater member and 
injured worker focus/contact.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Term Annual Fee 

07/01/2022 – 06/30/2023 $770,845 

07/01/2023 – 06/30/2024 $793,970 

07/01/2024 – 06/30/2025 $817,789 

 
Page 378 of 417



  

 

3 
Sedgwick Copyright © 2021 The information contained herein is confidential and proprietary to Sedgwick. It is being provided in order to allow 
evaluation of Sedgwick’s services and capabilities. Nothing contained herein should be disclosed to a third party without the prior consent of Sedgwick. 

 

Option 3:  

This model retains the dedicated team and adds a dedicated RTW Coordinator/Ombudsman focused on return to 
work efforts and greater responsiveness to the injured worker to facilitate RTW and reduce lost time.    

Term Annual Fee 

07/01/2022 – 06/30/2023 $829,847 

07/01/2023 – 06/30/2024 $854,743 

07/01/2024 – 06/30/2025 $880,385 

 
 

Sedgwick managed care 

All claim administration fees and services contemplate the deployment of Sedgwick’s managed care services for 
all bill review and case management services.  

Service Rate 

Medical bill review 

State fee scheduling/usual, customary and 
reasonable; state reporting 

$13.00 per bill 

 
Page 379 of 417



  

 

4 
Sedgwick Copyright © 2021 The information contained herein is confidential and proprietary to Sedgwick. It is being provided in order to allow 
evaluation of Sedgwick’s services and capabilities. Nothing contained herein should be disclosed to a third party without the prior consent of Sedgwick. 

Service Rate 

Provider networks 

California outcomes-based statewide medical 
provider network (MPN) (all California bills) 

 Add $5.00 per bill 

Telephonic Clinical Services 

Telephonic case management:  
 · Telephonic Nurse Case Manager,  
 · Surgery Nurse Case Manager,  
 · Behavioral Health Specialist 

$102 per hour 

Customized Nurse Services $102 per hour  

Utilization Review & Physician Advisor 

Utilization review     $149 per review 

Physician advisor/peer review $200 per review 

Physician review of records $275 per hour 

Complex pharmacy management  
Pharmacy nurse management/pain coaching: $115 per hour 
Physician and PharmD management (as needed): $275 per 

hour 

Field Case Management 

Medical field case management: Full field  $102 per hour, plus direct expenses  

Crisis Care RN $165 per hour  

Field Case Management Tasks: 

    Limited Assignment Task $105 per hour  

    Specialty task services: Life Care Plan, Expert     
testimony, customized services, Catastrophic Case 
Management 

$165 per hour 

Clinical Consultation Services 

Clinical consultation 

Standard (24x7x365 access to nurse): $90 per triage call 
Premium (blended nurse intake option): $105 per triage call 

Advanced (ability to customize workflows): $115 per triage call* 
*level of customization may warrant additional fees 

 

Some of the Managed Care services and pricing outlined require an opt in and are not automatic services such as 
Clinical Consultation.  All other terms and conditions not outlined above will remain as is under the current 
service agreement. 

 
Page 380 of 417



NCCSIF Performance Standards ‐ 22/23

Category Sub Category Topic Criteria Measurement

I. Claims Handling ‐ Administration 

Case Load 125 Indemnity Pending Not to exceed 140 claims Quarterly Report

300 Med Only/FM Weighted at 2:1  Quarterly Report

Case Review & Documentation  Indemnity Diary review Every 45 Days PRISM Audit

MO/FM Diary Review Every 90 Days PRISM Audit

Supervisor

60 day review of all new claims and thereafter 

120 calendar days, 180 MO/FM PRISM Audit

Communication Return Phone Calls

One Working Day ‐ Documentation to reflect 

efforts  PRISM Audit/Member Survey

Return Emails One Working Day PRISM Audit/Member Survey

Written Correspondence

Written response shall me provided in Five 

Working Days PRISM Audit/Member Survey

Ongoing Contact – TD claimants

Minimum every 30 days and within 3 day post 

hospital discharge PRISM Audit

Claim Status Call

At least 30 minutes/month/connect with each 

member Member Feedback

Fiscal Handling  Case/File Balancing 

Semi‐annual and prior to sending benefits 

termination notice  PRISM Audit

Medicare  Section 111 & Eligibility 

Medicare shall be documented in the claim file 

at time of settlement  PRISM Audit

PRISM Audit

II. Claim Creation 

Three Point Contact Three Point Contact

3‐Point Contact, Minimum 3 working days from 

date of TPA receipt PRISM Audit

Compensability Compensability Notice  Within 14 days PRISM Audit

Compensability Determination 

Within 90 days of employers receipt of claim 

form PRISM Audit

AOE/COE Investigation AOE/COE Investigation Within 3 days PRISM Audit

Reserves  Reserves  Established at most probable outcome  PRISM Audit

Initial reserves established within 14 days from 

receipt of claim  PRISM Audit

Indexing  Indexing  All claims shall be reported to the Index Bureau  PRISM Audit

 
Page 381 of 417



III. Claim Handling ‐ Technical 

Payments  Temporary and Permanent Disability 

Initial payment shall be issued within 14 calendar 

days.   PRISM Audit

Completed DWC

Benefit Notice mailed to EE within 14 calendar 

days  PRISM Audit

Subsequent/Final Payment  Shall be issued timely PRISM Audit

IW Expense Reimbursement 

Shall be issued to IW within 15 days/Advance 

issued 10 days prior to date of travel  PRISM Audit

Outcomes Reports/Training

Activity Reporting  Work Comp 101 Member specific training Quarterly Report

File Reviews  Member Specific by schedule  Quarterly Report

Activity Summaries  Pool/Member  Quarterly Report

Annual Reviews Pool/Member  Quarterly Report

Claim Reviews At least 1 per year

 
Page 382 of 417



                                           NCCSIF Workers' Compensation Team   
Gagain, Bernie  Baumle, Erik  Brainard ‐ DeLong, Devora  
Operations Team Lead  Director, Client Services  Vice President, Client Services  

Bernard.Gagain@Sedgwick.com  

Erik.Baumle@Sedgwick.com   Devora.Brainard@Sedgwick.com  

Phone:  279.900.3084  Phone: 360.742.2799   Phone: 951.231.6825 

                 

Marx, Jessica (Dedicated)  Lopez, Rosa (Dedicated)  Silva, Sandra (Dedicated)  

Jessica.Marx@Sedgwick.com   Rosa.Lopez@Sedgwick.com   Sandra.Silva@Sedgwick.com  

Phone:  916.960.0902   Phone: 916.788.9985   Phone: 279.900.3087 

Members Served   Members Served   Members Served  

   City of Rocklin      City of Folsom     City of Elk Grove (Lopez, Coverage) 
   City of Yuba City      City of Dixon     City of Red Bluff (Marx ‐ Coverage)  

   City of Anderson      City of Auburn     City of Galt (Marx ‐ Coverage)  

   City of Colusa      City of Corning     City of Marysville (Marx ‐ Coverage)  

   City of Jackson     City of Gridley       

   City of Lincoln     City of Ione       

   City of Nevada City      Town of Paradise       

   City of Rio Vista      City of Placerville        

   City of Oroville     City of Willows        

   City of Red Bluff      City of Elk Grove      

   City of Galt              

   City of Marysville             
                 

Summers, Rebecca   Rivas, Diane   Santiago‐Dean, Margarita  

Rebecca.Summers@Sedgwick.com   Diane.Rivas@Sedgwick.com   Margarita.SantiagoDean@Sedgwick.com  

Phone:  916.960.1029   Phone: 916.788.985   All COVID Claims 

Future Medical Examiner  Medical‐Only Claims    
                 
                 
      To File a New Claim        
      E‐mail:  7374NCCSIF@Sedgwick.com     
      Or use your Global Intake Link to file online  
                 
      Sedgwick       
      P. O. Box 14433       
      Lexington, KY 40512       

     
(800) 922‐5020  
Fax (844) 346‐1322      

 

 
Page 383 of 417



BACK TO AGENDA 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

April 21, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item. J 
 

INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
 

ISSUE: The following items are being presented as information for NCCSIF members. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: None. This item is offered as information only. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: None 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Glossary of Terms 
2. NCCSIF Organizational Chart 
3. NCCSIF 2021-2022 Meeting Calendar 
4. NCCSIF Resource Contact Guide 
5. Sedgwick Who’s Who in Claims – WC and Liability Contacts 
6. James Marta & Company Accounting team bio  
7. ACI Training Flyer – Supporting Employees Mental Health – April 26th, 2022 
8. Police Risk Management Training with Ed Obayashi – May 5th, 2022 
9. ACI Training Flyer – Developing Team Relationships – May 24th, 2022 
10. Travel Mileage Reimbursement Form  

 
 

 
Page 384 of 417



GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Page 1 of 9 

Term Definition 
4850 Labor Code Section 4850 provide a special benefit for certain public employees who 

are essentially in safety and law enforcement positions. 

AB 1234 Ethics Education for Local Officials 

AB 1825 Harassment Prevention Training for Supervisors 

Active Negligence The party that was negligent took an active part in doing whatever caused the 
damage. For example, a city digging a hole and someone falls in 

ACV (Actual Cash Value) The amount equal to the replacement cost minus depreciation of a damaged or stolen 
property at the time of the loss. It is the actual value for which the property could be 
sold, which is always less than what it would cost to replace it. 

Adhesion When one party has greater power over the other party in drafting the contract (i.e. 
the provisions of the contract are prepared by one party --the insurer. The other party 
the insured does not take part in the preparation of the contract). 

ATD (Aerosol Transmissible 
Diseases) 

An epidemiologically significant disease that is transmitted via droplet or airborne 
route. 

Aggregate The term used to describe the cumulative amount of all losses for a period of time. 

Aggregate Stop Loss A financial arrangement with a JPA’s excess carrier that caps the aggregate to a 
predetermined limit at which point the excess carrier would “drop down” and pay 
losses within the JPIA’s SIR, or pooled layer. 

AME (Agreed Upon Medical 
Examiner) 

A medical provider who has been certified by the Division of Workers’ Compensation 
by passing an administrative exam. An AME is selected (or agreed upon) by two 
parties in order to help resolve a dispute about a WC claim. 

Aleatory An insurance contract is aleatory meaning it is contingent on an uncertain event (a 
loss) that provides for unequal transfer of value between the parties. 

ACIP (Alliant Crime Insurance 
Program) 

Program offered by Alliant that created to bring the advantages of group purchase to 
public entities seeking very broad coverage for illegal acts committed by their 
employees while on the job. 

APIP (Alliant Property 
Insurance Program) 

The largest single property insurance placement in the world. Formed by Alliant 
Insurance Services in 1993 to meet the unique property insurance needs faced by 
public entities. 

ADA (American Disability Act) A federal law that prohibits discrimination against people with disabilities in 
employment, transportation, public accommodation, communications, and 
governmental activities. The ADA also establishes requirements for 
telecommunications relay services. For the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission office (EEOC office) in your area, call 1-800-669- 4000 or 1-800-669-6820 
(TTY). 

Assessment company Providing primarily fire and windstorm insurance for small towns and farmers (charge 
members a pro rata share of losses at the end of each policy period) 

AIS (Associate in Insurance 
Services) 

Professional designation awarded by the Insurance Institute of America (IIA) upon 
successful completion of four national exams, one specifically designed for this 
program and the three examinations in the IIA Program in General Insurance. 

AGRIP (Association of 
Governmental Risk Pools) 

A national organization of JPA’s and public agency insurance pools. Formed for 
educational, information gathering and political lobbying purposes. 
Affiliated with PRIMA 

 
Page 385 of 417



GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Page 2 of 9 

ALCM (Associate in Loss 
Control Management) 

A professional designation earned after the successful completion of five national 
examinations given by the Insurance Institute of America (IIA). 

ARM (Associate in Risk 
Management) 

A nationally recognized educational program for dedicated risk management 
professionals, developed by the Insurance Institute of America. 

Attachment Point The dollar amount of a loss where the next layer of insurance begins to pay for the 
loss. 

Automobile Liability Designed to afford bodily injury and property damage liability coverage associated 
with owned, non-owned and hired vehicles. May include medical payments, 
uninsured/underinsured motorists’ liability coverages. 

Automobile Physical Damage Usually a first party coverage; however, some entities have “Bailment” or “care, 
custody and control” liability exposures such as garages, maintenance facilities that 
service vehicles of others, and parking lots 

Best’s Rating A rating system that indicates the operating and financial condition of insurance 
companies. Information is developed and published annually by the A. M. Best 
company. Generally one looks for a company with a rating of A VII or better. 

BOD/BD (Board of Directors) Body of elected or appointed members who jointly oversee the activities of a 
company or organization. 

BI (Business Interruption) A form of insurance coverage that replaces business income lost as a result of an 
event that interrupts the operations of the business, such as fire or a natural disaster. 

CAJPA (California Association 
of Joint Powers Authorities) 

Performs regulatory and legislative lobbying as well as accreditation of Joint Powers 
Authorities to promote the financial stability of JPAs. 

CIPRA (California Institute for 
Public Risk Analysis) 

Organized to develop, analyze and disseminate information on risk management in 
California’s public sector, especially self-insured entities and Joint Powers Authorities 

CJPRMA (California Joint 
Powers Risk Management 
Authority) 

CJPRMA provides the excess coverage to NCCSIF’s Liability Program 

CSAC (California State 
Association of Governments) 

CSAC is a lobbying, advocacy and service organization representing the state's 58 
counties at the state and federal level. Areas of focus include the state budget, 
health-care reform, corrections reform, transportation funding, water and climate 
change 

CSAC-EIA (California State 
Association of Governments - 
Excess Insurance Authority) 

CSAC-EIA is a member directed insurance risk sharing pool. The EIA has developed 
effective risk management solutions to help California public entities proactively 
control losses and prepare for different exposures. 
 
CSAC-EIA provides excess coverage to NCCSIF’s workers’ compensation pool. 

CalTIP (California Transit 
Insurance Pool) 

In 1986 the California Transit Association formed an insurance committee and 
authorized the preparation of a study of alternative methods of providing liability 
insurance coverage and began providing liability coverage in 1987. 

Catastrophic Loss Reserve A separate JPIA reserve account designated to pay losses without additional premium 
assessments to members. 

CIC (Certified Insurance 
Counselor) 

An insurance agent professional certification designation 

 
Page 386 of 417



GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Page 3 of 9 

CIH (Certified Industrial 
Hygienist) 

CIH is a professional whose job it is to protect the health of workers and the general 
public. A CIH is educated, trained and certified to recognize health hazards, test the 
environment for those hazards and determine when they pose a risk to those who 
might be exposed to them. 

CPCU (Chartered Property 
Casualty Underwriter) 

CPCU is a professional designation in property-casualty insurance and risk 
management 

Claim A demand of a right. In general a demand for compensatory damages, resulting from 
the actions of another. 

Claims Made A provision of an insurance policy that requires it to pay only for claims presented 
during the policy period with no regard for when the action causing the claim took 
place. Typically, a claims-made form also includes a retroactive date setting the 
earliest date for which a covered occurrence can happen. (Also see “Occurrence”) 

C&R (Compromise and 
Release) 

A type of settlement in which you receive a lump sum payment and become 
responsible for paying for your future medical care. A settlement like this must be 
approved by a workers' compensation judge. 

Conditional An insurance policy includes a number of conditions that both the insured and the 
insurer must comply with. (i.e. a covered loss occurs, the insured must notify the 
insurer about the loss and the insurer must use the valuation methods specified in the 
policy to settle the loss- thus the contact is conditional) 

Conditions Describe the responsibilities and the obligations of both the insured and the insurance 
company. 

CL (Confidence Level) An estimated probability that a given level of funding will be sufficient to pay actual 
claim costs. The higher a CL the greater the certainty the actuary has that losses will 
not exceed the dollar value used to attain the CL. 

Contract A legal agreement between two competent parties that promises a certain 
performance in exchange for a certain consideration. 

Contract of Utmost Good 
Faith 

As the insurance company relies on the truthfulness and integrity of the applicant 
when issuing a policy. In return, the insured relies on the company’s promise and 
ability to provide coverage and pay claims. 

CSP (Certified Safety 
Professional) 

CSP’s are qualified persons that are competent and trained to detect and appraise 
hazardous materials, procedures and activities of workers, materials and work 
environments. They are highly educated, trained and experienced in the field of 
safety. 

Cumis Counsel Cumis refers to a lawsuit against the Cumis Insurance Society in which they were 
found to have controlled the defense attorney to the detriment of their insured. The 
court determined that the Society should have assigned separate counsel to represent 
the exclusive interests of the insured. The need for cumis counsel arises in situations 
where there are significant coverage issues and defense counsel is conflicted between 
his duty to his client and the obligations to the insurance carrier. 

DE9 Quarterly Contribution Return and Report of Wages 

Declarations Contain information such as the name of the insured, the address, the amount of 
coverage provided, a description of property, and the cost of the policy 

Deductible It is that portion of each claim that is paid by the member at the time of loss. It is in 
addition to any premium already paid 

Defense A defendant's denial to a complaint or cause of action 

 
Page 387 of 417



GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Page 4 of 9 

Definitions Clarify the meaning of certain terms used in the policy 

Deposit Premium Premium required at the beginning of a policy period based on estimated costs 

DIC (Difference In Conditions) A specialized property insurance policy written to provide coverage for perils not 
covered in a standard property policy or in the JPIA’s Memorandum of Property 
Coverage. In particular, it is most often used to provide coverage for earthquake 
and/or flood losses. 

D&O (Directors and Officers) Liability insurance payable to the directors and officers of a company, or to the 
organization(s) itself, as indemnification (reimbursement) for losses or advancement 
of defense costs in the event an insured suffers such a loss as a result of a legal action 
brought for alleged wrongful acts in their capacity as directors and officers. 

Directors, Officers and 
Trustees Liability 

Intended to protect nonprofit board members, officers, and directors for faulty 
decisions, which imperil the entity. Usually written to include entity reimbursement 
for legal actions and personal liability of specific wrongdoers 

DOL (Date of Loss) Regarding property claims this is usually the date of occurrence of physical damage to 
property. In WC claims this is usually the date a physical injury occurred to an 
employee. 

Doctrine of reasonable 
expectations 

a policy includes coverages that an average person would reasonably expect it to 
include regardless of what the policy actually provides 

EQ (Earthquake) a sudden and violent shaking of the ground, sometimes causing great destruction, as 
a result of movements within the earth's crust or volcanic action 

Employers’ Liability Included as part of a worker’s compensation insurance policy. Covers liability for 
losses arising out of injuries to employees that are not covered by statutory workers’ 
compensation benefits 

EPL (Employment Practices 
Liability) 

Written to protect an entity from liabilities arising from allegations of discrimination, 
failure to promote or hire, harassment, ADA responsibilities, wrongful termination, 
etc. 

Endorsement Any change to the original policy (attached to the policy itself) 

Environmental Impairment 
Liability 

Also referred to as “Pollution” and “Pollution Legal” Liability; can be written to protect 
an entity from actions resulting from contamination of air, water, property. First party 
(damage to owned property) and third party (liability for damage to others) 
protections are often provided on the same policy 

E&O (Errors and Omissions 
Insurance) 

Professional liability insurance that protects companies and individuals against claims 
made by clients for inadequate work or negligent actions, usually includes both court 
costs and any settlements up to the amount specified on the insurance contract. 

Errors and Omissions Liability Excludes bodily injury and property damage; intended to afford protection for the 
“misfeasance, malfeasance or non-feasance” of public officials, employees and 
volunteers. May also include incidental medical personnel (paramedics), police and 
fire personnel, architects and plan checkers, engineers, and on-staff attorneys 

Excess Insurance Insurance that is purchased to provide higher limits than the primary policy or 
coverage provides 

Excess Loss The portion of a loss that is allocated to, or paid by, excess coverage 

Exclusions Describe the losses for which the insured is not covered 

EC (Executive Committee) Committee within that organization which has the authority to make decisions and 
ensures that these decisions are carried out. 

 
Page 388 of 417



GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Page 5 of 9 

Expected liabilities Outstanding reserves plus Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) and Loss Adjustment 
Expense, discounted at the “Expected” Confidence Level (CL). 

Exposure A condition or situation that presents a possibility of loss (i.e. home built on flood 
plain is exposed to the possibility of flood damage). 

FASB (Financial Accounting 
Standards Board) 

FASB standards, known as generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), govern 
the preparation of corporate financial reports and are recognized as authoritative by 
the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Fidelity Bonds Written as financial guarantees of employees’ honesty. Personnel with money- 
handling responsibilities are considered exposures to loss. 

Fiduciary Liability Covers board members, executives and other decision-making personnel with 
responsibilities for pension funds, retirement plans and employee benefit monies for 
negligent decisions that result in losses to such funds. 

GAAP (Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles) 

GAAP refers to the standard framework of guidelines for financial accounting used in 
any given jurisdiction; generally known as accounting standards or standard 
accounting practice 

GASB (Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board) 

GASB) is the source of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) used by State 
and Local governments in the United States. As with most of the entities involved in 
creating GAAP in the United States, it is a private, non- governmental organization. 

General Liability Written to protect the member's assets against liability for property damage of or 
bodily injury to third parties (see definition of parties). 

Hazard Anything that increases the chance of loss (also see Physical Hazard, Morale Hazard 
and Moral Hazard). 

HIPAA (Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability 
Act) 

A federal law enacted in 1996 that protects continuity of health coverage when a 
person changes or loses a job, that limits health-plan exclusions for preexisting 
medical conditions, that requires that patient medical information be kept private and 

 IBNR (Incurred But Not 
Reported) 

It is that part of the total claims that is unknown at any point in time. At any time, 
NCCSIF has claims that have not been reported or recognized by NCCSIF or has claims 
recognized by NCCSIF but without knowledge of the cost when such claim is finally 
closed. NCCSIF uses an actuary to project the costs of these unknown liabilities to 
NCCSIF 
- the estimate of funds needed to pay for covered losses that have occurred but have 
not been reported to the member and/or NCCSIF and expected future development 
on claims already reported 

Incurred Loss This is the ultimate expected total value of any claim. It includes the amount already 
paid, plus the estimated amount yet to be paid (reserves) 

IIPP (Injury Illness Prevention 
Program) 

Proactive process of assessing workplace hazards prior to an injury being reported 

Insurable Interest Before you can benefit from insurance; you must have a chance of financial loss or a 
financial interest in the property 

Insurance A contract or device for transferring risk from a person, business, or organization to 
an insurance company that agrees, in exchange for a premium, to pay for losses 
through an accumulation of premiums 

IRIC (Insurance Requirements 
in Contracts) 

In insurance, the insurance policy is a contract (generally a standard form contract) 
between the insurer and the insured, known as the policyholder, which determines 
the claims which the insurer is legally required to pay. 

 
Page 389 of 417



GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Page 6 of 9 

ISO (Insurance Services 
Office, Inc.) 

An insurance industry association that collects statistical data for rate making and 
develops standard insurance policy forms. ISO is the organization that drafted the 
standard commercial general liability (CGL) commonly used by insurers 

Insuring agreements State in general what is to be covered, also includes a description of what type of 
property is covered and the perils against which it is insured (i.e. the losses for which 
the insured will be indemnified) 

Inverse Condemnation Both the United States Constitution and the California Constitution require that a 
private citizen be compensated if property is "taken" by a public entity. When the 
property is taken proactively it is called eminent domain. When the property is taken 
"accidentally," without due course, it is called inverse condemnation. 
Negligence need not be proven. The claimant’s legal expenses are payable in addition 
to actual damages. 

Limit The most that will be paid in a loss 

LRP (Long Range Planning) Exercise aimed at formulating a long-term plan, to meet future needs estimated 
usually by extrapolation of present or known needs. It begins with the current status 
and charts out a path to the projected status, and generally includes short- term 
(operational or tactical plans) for achieving interim goals. 

LAE (Loss Adjustment 
Expense) 

Administrative expense to manage a claim to conclusion - Allocated LAE (ALEA) are 
expenses attributable to a specific claim such as attorney fees - Unallocated LAE 
(ULAE) are overhead expenses not attributable to a specific claim such as salaries or 
office rental. 

Loss Ratio The amount of loss divided by the amount of premium, contributions, payroll or 
property values. 

Master Plan Documents A document issued by a JPA defining the structure, rights and obligations of the 
participants and procedures of an insurance or self- funded program 

MMI (Maximum Medical 
Improvement) 

When an injured employee’s condition is well stabilized and unlikely to change 
substantially in the next year, with or without medical treatment. Once an employee 
reaches MMI, a doctor can assess how much, if any, permanent disability resulted 
from the work injury. See also P&S 

MOC (Memorandum of 
Coverage) 

A document issued by a JPA defining the coverage provided to the members 

Moral Hazard A person might create a loss situation on purpose just to collect from the insurance 
company (i.e. a pre-arranged faked theft of an older vehicle so the owner could 
collect insurance money and buy something new). 

Morale Hazard An individual, through carelessness or by irresponsible actions, can increase the 
possibility for a loss (i.e. a person who drives a car carelessly because he knows a loss 
will be insured if an accident occurs). 

Mutual interest company The insureds are also owners of the company and so they can vote to elect the 
management of the company (profits are returned to the insureds in the form of 
dividends or reductions in future premiums) 

Named Insured Any person, firm, or corporation, or any of its members specifically designated by 
name as insured(s) in the policy as distinguished from others who, although unnamed, 
are protected by the policy definition. A named insured under the policy has rights 
and responsibilities not attributed to additional insureds, such as premium payment, 
premium return, notice of cancellation, and dividend participation 

 
Page 390 of 417



GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Page 7 of 9 

Net Assets (Equity, surplus or Net Position) Total assets less Expected liabilities- the amount of 
funds remaining after subtracting liabilities at the actuarially determined “Expected” 
Confidence Level (approx. 50% CL) 

Net Contribution A total contribution for losses less excess insurance costs 

Non Vacant land Refers to land that is occupied and used, and/or has structures on it (i.e. shack, 
building, park with benches). 

Obligee Is an individual, partnership, corporation, or a government entity which requires the 
guarantee that an action or service will be performed. If not properly performed, the 
surety pays the obligee for any damages or fulfills the obligation. 

Occurrence A) In order for NCCSIF to pay a liability claim, it must arise out of an occurrence. This is 
an accident, event, act or omission to act which results in "damages," "bodily injury," 
or "property damage" neither expected nor intended from the covered parties’ 
conduct. 
B) A provision of an insurance policy that requires it to pay for a claim caused during 
the policy period regardless of when it is presented. 

Passive Negligence The party that was negligent did not take part in the action that caused the damage, 
but was responsible for somehow allowing it to take place. For example, a city 
allowed a contractor to dig a hole on city property and someone fell in. 

Peril Cause of a loss 

P&S (Permanent and 
Stationary) 

When an employee’s medical condition has reached maximum medical improvement. 
Once an employee is declared P&S, a doctor can assess how much, if any, permanent 
disability resulted from the work injury. If the disability is rated under the 2005 
schedule you will see the term maximal medical improvement (MMI) used in place of 
P&S. See also MMI 

PD (Permanent Disability) Any lasting disability that results in a reduced earning capacity after maximum 
medical improvement is reached. 

PPE (Personal Protective 
Equipment) 

PPE refers to protective clothing, helmets, goggles, or other garments or equipment 
designed to protect the wearer's body from injury. 

Physical Hazard A hazard that arises from the condition, occupancy, or use of the property itself (i.e. 
skateboard left on the porch steps). 

Plaintiff The party who complains or sues in a personal action. A claimant becomes a plaintiff 
by filing suit. 

Pooled Loss The portion of a loss that is allocated to, or paid by, the self-insured pool. NCCSIF’s 
Liability Program pools, or self-insures, the first $500,000 of each occurrence. Loss 
costs exceeding this amount are paid by excess insurance. 

Principal Is an individual, partnership, or corporation who offers an action or service and is 
required to post a bond. Once bonded, the surety guarantees that he will perform as 
promised. 

Principle of Indemnity When a loss occurs an individual should be restored to the approximate financial 
condition he was in before the loss no more and no less. 

Property Insurance This covers the member for damage to its own property, sometimes called first- party 
coverage. 

PARMA (Public Agency Risk 
Managers Association) 

A statewide association for risk managers in the public sector. Educational and 
lobbying activities. 

 
Page 391 of 417



GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Page 8 of 9 

PRIMA (Public Risk 
Management Association) 

A national association for risk managers in the public sector. Formed for educational, 
information gathering and political lobbying purposes. 

Pure Risk Involves only the possibility of loss 

QME (Qualified Medical 
Examiner) 

A medical provider who has been certified by the Division of Workers’ Compensation 
by passing an administrative exam. 

Reciprocal company (to give/take), a member of a reciprocal agrees to share the insurance responsibilities 
with all other members of the unincorporated group (all members insure each other 
and share the losses with each other) NOTE: managed by an attorney-in-fact who is 
empowered to handle all of the business of the reciprocal. 

RC (Replacement Cost) The cost to replace damaged property with like kind and quality, with no deduction 
for depreciation, but still subject to a “limit” 

Reserve In order to budget for its expected costs and to know when a claim must be reported 
to the excess coverage, NCCSIF estimates the ultimate expected total value of each 
claim and "reserves" part of the not paid. As moneys are paid out for a claim, the 
reserve amount is decreased 

Retrospective Premium 
Adjustment 

At the beginning of each policy period, NCCSIF collects a deposit premium 
representing the estimated costs for that year.   Each year a calculation of expenses 
associated with the policy period are subtracted from the deposit premium.  At some 
point the excess funds will be returned, or shortage of funds will be charged. This 
process is repeated annually for each coverage year until all claims for that year are 
closed out and there is no IBNR allocated to that policy year. 

Risk The chance or uncertainty of loss (also see Speculative Risks and Pure Risks) 

RIMS (Risk and Insurance 
Management Society) 

National professional organization to promote principles of risk management and 
assist risk managers in their daily activities 

Risk Control Those risk management techniques designed to minimize the frequency and/or 
severity of claims. Risk control techniques include exposure avoidance, loss 
prevention, loss reduction, segregation of loss exposures, and contractual transfer to 
shift losses to others 

Risk Financing Techniques for generating funds to pay for losses that risk control methods do not 
entirely eliminate. There are two types of risk financing techniques -- retention and 
transfer. Retention involves paying for losses using an organization’s own assets; 
transfer involves covering losses by an unrelated entity for a consideration (such as a 
payment of a premium) 

Risk Management One of the specialties within the general field of management, the process of 
managing an organization’s activities to minimize the adverse effects of accidental 
losses on a cost-effective basis. Risk management has two components -- risk control 
and risk financing. 

Self-Insured Coverage of losses from the insured’s own funds, rather than an insurance policy. 
Generally refers to a planned program for financing or otherwise recognizing losses 

SIR (Self-Insured Retention) The maximum amount of exposure to a single loss retained by NCCSIF 

 
Page 392 of 417



GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Page 9 of 9 

Severability of Interests 
Clause 

An insurance policy provision clarifying that the word “insured,” as it appears within 
various parts of a policy, applies severally and not collectively. When there is more 
than one insured, the effect is as though a separate policy is issued to each insured. 
Thus, a policy containing such a clause will cover a cross liability claim – a claim made 
by one insured against another insured. The one exception to the separate application 
to each insured of a policy containing a severability of interest clause is that the limits 
are not cumulative; that is, one set of limits applies to all insureds collectively 

Special Events Designed to cover your sponsorship of events, such as fireworks shows, festivals, 
community/entity celebrations; often written to protect other policies’ loss integrity. 
Another type of special event coverage, known as a “tenants and permittees” policy, 
can be issued for third parties who rent or use your owned facilities. 

Speculative Risk Risks in which there exists both the possibility of gain and the possibility of loss (i.e. 
poker game) 

Spread of Risk The greater the spread of risk the less likely that there will be a catastrophic loss for 
the insurance company (i.e. NOT insuring every person in a single town that could be 
hit by a fire which destroys the town= catastrophic loss for the insurance company vs. 
insuring several people in MANY towns to spread out the risk of a catastrophic loss) 

Stock company Sells stock to stockholders to raise the money necessary to operate the business 
(profits attributed to the operation of the company are returned as dividends to the 
stockholders, not the insureds) 

Subrogation The insurer’s right to proceed against a third person if that third person was 
responsible for a claim paid by the insurer.  Employee dishonesty can be subrogated 
by the insurance company against a dishonest employee 

Surety Is usually a corporation which determines if an applicant (principal) is qualified to be 
bonded for the performance of some act or service. If so, the surety issues the bond. 
If the bonded individual does not perform as promised, the surety performs the 
obligation or pays for any damages. 

TD (Temporary Disability 
Benefits) 

Payments an employee receives if they lose wages because of a work related injury 
which prevents them from doing their usual job while recovering. 

TPA (Third Party 
Administrator) 

TPA is a person or organization that processes claims and performs other 
administrative services in accordance with a service contract, usually in the field of 
employee benefits. 

TIV (Total Insured Values) The values shown on a member city’s schedule or appraisal for property coverage. 
Only those items shown on the schedule are covered for loss. 

TRIA (Terrorism Risk 
Insurance Act) 

TRIA is a United States federal law signed into law by President George W. Bush on 
November 26, 2002. The Act created a federal "backstop" for insurance claims related 
to acts of terrorism. 

Vacant land Refers to land that is unoccupied and unused, and/or has no structures on it. 

VIN (Vehicle Identification 
Number) 

Unique code including a serial number, used by the automotive industry to identify 
individual motor vehicles, towed vehicles, motorcycles, scooters and mopeds as 
defined in ISO 3833. 

 

 
Page 393 of 417



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
21-22 Organizational Chart
Updated as of 4/13/2022

MEMBER ENTITY BOARD ALTERNATES

RISK MANAGEMENT

COMMITTEE

POLICE

RISK MANAGEMENT

COMMITTEE

City of ANDERSON Liz Cottrell Jeff Kiser Liz Cottrell Chief Michael Johnson

City of AUBURN Nathan Bagwill April Hildalgo April Hildalgo  Chief Ryan L. Kinnan(Vice‐Chair)

City of COLUSA Ishrat Aziz‐Khan  Shelly Kittle  Ishrat Aziz‐Khan  Chief Josh Fitch

City of CORNING EC / CC *Kristina Miller Tom Watson Tom Watson Chief Jeremiah Fears

City of DIXON Rachel Ancheta Kate Zawadzki

Rachel Ancheta

Kim Staile  Chief Thompson 

City of ELK GROVE *EC *Kara Reddig Jim Ramsey 

Jim Ramsey

Anjmin Mahil ‐ Alternate

Lieutenant Ryan Elmore

City of FOLSOM Vacant Steven Wang Vacant  Chief Rick Hillman

City of GALT Stephanie Van Steyn Lorenzo Hines Stephanie Van Steyn Chief Brian Kalinowksi 

City of GRIDLEY Vacant Elisa Arteaga Elisa Arteaga Chief Rodney Harr

City of IONE EC / CC *Michael Rock Chris Hancock Michael Rock  Chief Jeff Arnold

City of JACKSON EC *Yvonne Kimball Dalacie Blankenship Yvonne Kimball Interim Chief Chris Mynderup

City of LINCOLN Veronica Rodriguez Ruthann Codina Veronica Rodriguez Chief Doug Lee

City of MARYSVILLE  S /  EC /CC *Jennifer Styczynski Vacant Jennifer Styczynski Chief Chris Sachs

City of NEVADA CITY Sean Grayson  Gabrielle Christakes  Sean Grayson  Chief Chad Ellis

City of OROVILLE Liz Ehrenstrom  None Appointed Liz Ehrenstrom (Chair) Chief Joe Deal

Town of PARADISE Ross Gilb  Crystal Peters Crystal Peters Chief Eric Reinbold

City of PLACERVILLE  *P / *EC **Dave Warren (Chair) Cleve Morris Dave Warren Chief Joseph Wren

City of RED BLUFF EC  Sandy Ryan Anita Rice Sandy Ryan Chief Kyle Sanders (Chair)

City of RIO VISTA T/*EC/*CC Jennifer Schultz  **Jen Lee, CPA Jose Jasso Chief Jon Mazer 

City of ROCKLIN Andrew Schiltz, CPA Amanda Tonks  Andrew Schiltz, CPA Chief Chad Butler

City of WILLOWS Marti Brown None Appointed Marti Brown  N/A

City of YUBA CITY EC /CC **Spencer Morrison Natalie Springer  Sheleen Loza Chief Brian Baker 

Term of Office

President (P) Dave Warren 10/29/2020 ‐ 6/30/2022

Vice President (VP) Vacant  Vacant 

Treasurer (T) Jen lee 10/29/2020 ‐ 6/30/2022

Secretary (S) Jennifer Styczynski 7/1/2020‐ 6/30/2022

CJPRMA Board 

Representative
Elizabeth Ehrenstrom  appointed 6/17/2021

CLAIMS ADMINISTRATORS

(Sedgwick formerly York )

RISK CONTROL CONSULTANTS

(Sedgwick formerly 

York/Bickmore) ADVISORS

Marcus Beverly Conor Boughey Bernie Gargain (WC) Eric Lucero  Byrne Conley (Board Counsel)

Jenna Wirkner Erik Baumle (WC) Tom Kline (Police RM) James Marta, CPA (Accountant)

Summer Simpson (Liability)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PROGRAM ADMINISTRATORS

(Alliant Insurance Services)

OFFICERS

Executive Committee (EC) ‐ membership on the EC rotates annually based on a rotation schedule and each 

member serves for a two‐year term, with the President serving as Chair of the Committee.

Claims Committee (CC) ‐ members of the CC are annually selected by the EC. CC is traditionally made up of at 

least five members of the EC, with the Vice President serving as Chair of the Committee.

 
Page 394 of 417



 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

 

 

PROGRAM YEAR 21/22 MEETING CALENDAR 
 

 
 

 

 
Thursday, August 5, 2021 ........................................  Police Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

 
Thursday, September 16, 2021 ................................................................. Claims Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

 Executive Committee at 11:30 a.m. 

 
Wednesday, October 27, 2021 ................................................................  Board of Directors at 10:00 a.m. 

  

Thursday, November 4, 2021...................................  Police Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

 
Thursday, December 16, 2021* ........................................... Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

 Board of Directors at 12:30 p.m. 

 

Thursday, February 3, 2022 .....................................  Police Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

 
Thursday, March 24, 2022 ........................................................................ Claims Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

Executive Committee at 11:30 a.m. 

 
Thursday, April 21, 2022 ..................................................... Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

 Board of Directors at 12 noon 

 
Thursday, May 5, 2022 ............................................  Police Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

 
Thursday, May 26, 2022 ........................................................................... Claims Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

 Executive Committee at 11:30 a.m. 

 
Thursday, June 23, 2022* .......................................................................  Board of Directors at 10:00 a.m. 

 

 

Meeting Location: Rocklin Event Center - Garden Room  

 2650 Sunset Blvd., Rocklin, CA 95677 

 

Rocklin Event Center – Ballroom * 

 

 

Note: Additional Claims Committee Meetings may be scheduled as needed for Claims Authority approval 

which will be held via teleconference. 

 
Page 395 of 417



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

 

Updated: 10/14/2021 

T A B L E   O F   C O N T E N T S  
 

As a member of NCCSIF, your City/Town has many risk management resources available. This Services Matrix is designed to assist you with identifying and 
locating these resources. 
 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
Pg. 1‐2  Program Service Providers 

Pg. 3  Other Coverage Providers 

Pg. 4‐6  Contracted Vendor Services (additional member cost) 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICE CATEGORY 

SED
G
W
IC
K
 

P
R
ISM

 

TA
R
G
ET 

SO
LU

TIO
N
S 

O
CCU

 ‐ M
ED

 

A
P
IP
 

LEX
IP
O
L 

A
C
I EA

P
 

C
A
L‐TIP

 

D
K
F 

SO
LU
TIO

N
S/ 

C
SR

M
A
 

Pg. 7  Telephone Hotline ‐ Questions & Guidance  X                 

Pg. 7  Hazard & Safety Assessment  X                X 

Pg. 8  Program/Policy Development  X  X        X      X 

  Safety Materials/Web‐based Courses/Videos  X  X  X            X 

Pg. 8  On‐Site Training  X  X              X 

Pg. 8  Ergonomic Evaluations  X                 

Pg. 9  Risk Management Webinars  X  X      X         

Pg. 9  Employer Pull Notice Program    X               

Pg. 10  Pre‐Employment Medical Services        X           

Pg. 10  Employee Assistance Program ‐ Health & Wellness              X     

Pg. 11  Transit Resources (available to CalTIP members)                X   

* Services and resources are available at no additional cost, unless specifically noted. 
 

Page 396 of 417



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

 

Page 1 

PROGRAM SERVICE PROVIDERS 

SERVICE PROVIDERS  CONTACT INFORMATION  SERVICES PROVIDED 

PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION 
 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
2180 Harvard Street, Suite 460 
Sacramento, CA 95815 
Main: (916) 643‐2700 
Fax: (916) 643‐2750 
www.alliant.com 

Marcus Beverly 
Office: (916) 643‐2704 
Cell: (916) 660‐2725 
Marcus.Beverly@alliant.com 
 
Conor Boughey 
Office: (415) 403‐1400 
Cell: (415) 744‐4889 
cboughey@alliant.com 
 
Jenna Wirkner 
Office: (916) 643‐2741 
Jenna.Wirkner@alliant.com 
 
  

 

JPA MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 Governance ‐ policies and procedures, 

program budget/funding, financial 
analysis, program management, 
personnel, contracts, consultants. 

 Coverage ‐ coverage questions, 
quotations, new members, development 
of shared risk program coverage 
agreements, RFPs for services, actuary 
liaison, excess insurance/additional 
coverage marketing (Crime coverage, 
etc.), program development. 

 Risk Management ‐ Insurance 
Requirements in Contracts (IRIC), third 
party contract review, hold harmless and 
indemnification clauses, risk management 
program planning, RFPs for JPA payment 
approval of budgeted funds. 

MAIN CONTACT 
Marcus Beverly 
Jenna Wirkner 
Conor Boughey 
 

JPA ADMINISTRATIVE ISSUES 
 Meetings & Compliance ‐ agendas; 

minutes; development/maintenance of 
governing documents, 
development/interpretation of policies 
& procedures, JPA state compliance, 
Form 700, changes in Board members, 
website updates. 

 Certificates ‐ certificates of coverage, 
additions/deletions of coverages, special 
events liability coverage, automobile 
identification cards, auto/mobile 
equipment physical damage programs. 

MAIN CONTACT 
Jenna Wirkner 
Marcus Beverly 

 
Page 397 of 417



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

 

Page 2 

PROGRAM SERVICE PROVIDERS 

SERVICE PROVIDERS  CONTACT INFORMATION  SERVICES PROVIDED 

ACCOUNTING SERVICES 
 

James Marta & Company LLP 
701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3 
Sacramento, CA 95825 
Main: (916) 993‐9494 
Fax: (916) 993‐9489 
www.jpmcpa.com 
 

Jim Marta, CPA 
jmarta@jpmcpa.com 
 
David Becker, CPA 
  
 
Orysya V. Savchuk 
osavchuk@jpmcpa.com 
 

 Billing, accounting and financial managements 

SAFETY AND RISK CONTROL SERVICES 
 

Sedgwick 
formerly York/Bickmore 
1750 Creekside Oaks Drive, Suite 200, 
Sacramento, CA 95833 
Main: (800) 541‐4591 
Fax: (855) 242‐8919 
www.sedgwick.com 

 
Eric Lucero 
Office: (916) 869‐0772 
Eric.Lucero@sedgwick.com 
 
Tom Kline ‐ Police Risk Management 
Office: (916) 244‐1121 
Tom.Kline@sedgwick.com 
 

 Telephone Hotline ‐ Questions & Guidance 
 Hazard & Safety Assessment 
 Program/Policy Development 
 Ergonomic Evaluations 
 On‐site Training 
 Safety Materials 
 On‐line Streaming Videos 
 Webinars ‐ WC and Liability Risk Management Topics 
 

CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION 
 

Sedgwick 
formerly York Risk Services Group, Inc. 
P.O. Box 14522 
Lexington, KY 40512 
Main: (916) 783‐0100 
Fax: (866) 548‐2637 
www.sedgwick.com 

Erik Baumle‐ Client Service Director  
Office: (714) 258‐5313 
Erik.baumle@sedgwick.com 

Steven Scott – Team Lead 
 Workers’ Compensation  
Office: (916) 960‐0946 
steven.scott@sedgwick.com 
 
Summer Simpson ‐ Claims Team Lead 
Office: (916) 746‐6332 
summer.simpson@sedgwick.com 
 

Third‐Party Workers’ Compensation (WC) and Liability Claims 
Administrator ‐‐refer to Sedgwick’s Who’s Who in Claims for specific 
Claim Adjuster’s contact information. 
 
Report New WC Claims via Global Intake or via email 
7374NCCSIF@sedgwick.com 
 
Report New Liability Claims to:  
7374NCCSIF@sedgwick.com 

 
Page 398 of 417



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

 

Page 3 

OTHER COVERAGE PROVIDERS 

SERVICE PROVIDERS  CONTACT INFORMATION  SERVICES PROVIDED 

PRISM 
Excess Workers’ Compensation Coverage 

Travis Clemmer 
Kristen Calderon (video library) 
Office: (916) 850‐7300 
Email: tclemmer@csac‐eia.org 
https://www.prismrisk.gov/dashboard/ 
 

 Program/Policy Development (*additional member cost) 
 On‐site Training 
 Safety Materials 
 Video Library 
 Webinars ‐ WC Risk Management Topics 

Vector/Target Solutions 
Web‐based Resources available through 
partnership with PRISM. 

https://www.prismrisk.gov/services/risk‐
control/training/vector‐solutions/ 
 
 

 Web‐based Courses* 
 Records Management 
*EIA members are able to access the standard course library at 
no cost. However, there is a cost to the member for the premium 
content listed under “Additional Courses” 
 

CJPRMA (California Joint Powers 
Risk Management Authority) 
Excess Liability Coverage 

Tony Giles ‐ General Manager 
Office: (925) 290‐1316 
Email: tony@cjprma.org 
http://www.cjprma.org/ 
 

 Regional Training provided on a variety of Liability‐related 
Topics 

APIP ‐ Alliant Property Insurance Program  Contact Marcus Beverly, Alliant Insurance 
Services, for questions. 
 

 Webinars ‐ Property Risk Management Topics 
 
In addition, Boiler and Machinery coverage is provided through 
your participation in APIP. 
 
 For  resources  with  your  boiler,  electrical, mechanical,  and 

HVAC equipment, visit www.hsb.com/calc/ENG and use  the 
online  tools  and  calculators  developed  by  Hartford  Steam 
Boiler’s engineering staff. 

 
 Useful information specific to equipment care, operating logs 

and maintenance  fact  sheets on  the website www.hsb.com 
which has several resources available under the  ‘Knowledge 
Center’ tab. 

 

 
Page 399 of 417



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

 

Page 4 

Lexipol 
Law Enforcement and Fire risk management 
 
Website: www.lexipol.com 
 

Sean Brannon 
Strategic Partnerships Manager 
Office: (469) 553‐0676 
Email: SBrannon@lexipol.com 

 Police Risk Management Policies and Procedures 
 Fire Training (*additional member cost) 

CalTIP ‐ California Transit Indemnity Pool 
Self‐insurance program for public transit 
operators 

Terrie Norris, Sedgwick 
Office: (916) 290‐4655 
Email: terrie.norris@sedgwick.com 
Website: http://www.caltiponline.org/ 
 

 Transit Specific Risk Management Resources for Member 
Cities (Auburn and Dixon) 

 
Page 400 of 417



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

 

Page 4 

CONTRACTED VENDOR SERVICES (additional member cost) 

VENDOR SERVICES  CONTACT INFORMATION  SERVICES PROVIDED 

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
 
ACI Specialty Benefits Corporation 
6480 Weathers Place, Suite 300 
San Diego, CA 92121 
Main: (800) 932‐0034 
Fax: (858) 452‐7819 
www.acieap.com 
 

Sasha Abrahms, Account Manager 
Office: (858) 736‐3976 
Email: sabrahms@acieap.com 
 
 

 Employee Assistance Program 

Pre‐employment Medical Services 
 
Occu‐Med 

Bill Vogeler 
Office: (559) 435‐2800, ext. 101 
Email: bvogeler@occu‐med.com 
Website: www.occu‐med.com 
 

 Review of Pre‐placement Medical Exams 
 Job Analysis 

Sewer Risk Management 
 
DKF Solutions Group, LLC 

David Patzer 
Office: 707.373.9709 
Email: dpatzer@dkfsolutions.com 
Website: http://www.dkfsolutions.com 

 Sewer Risk Management 

Aquatics Risk Management 
 
Total Aquatic Management 
www.totalaquaticmanagement.webs.com 

Jim Wheeler 
Office: (510) 523‐3155 
Email: jim@totalaquaticmanagement.com 

swimnjim@hotmail.com 
 

 Aquatic Safety services 
 Certified Pool Operator (CPO) Trainings 

Sidewalk Repair Services 
 
Precision Concrete Cutting 
Main: (866) 792‐8006 
Fax: (650) 240‐3866 
www.dontgrind.com 

Katrina Lynch 
(916) 847‐7346 
Klynch@dontgrind.com 
 
Joseph Ortega 
jortega@DontGrind.com 
 

 Sidewalk cutting to repair defects 
 Will inspect to your specifications 
 Map defects 
 Repairs @ $35 to $50 per location 

 
Page 401 of 417



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

 

Page 5 

CONTRACTED VENDOR SERVICES (additional member cost) 

VENDOR SERVICES  VENDOR CONTACT INFORMATION  SERVICES PROVIDED 

ADA Compliance  City Consulting Engineer ‐ CEC Inc. Yuba City 
1110 Civic Center Blvd. Ste. 404 
Yuba City, CA 95993 
Email: Swartz@cecusa.net 
(530) 751‐0952 
 

 

ADA Compliance  Sally Swanson Architects 
220 Sansome Street. STE 800 
San Francisco, CA 94104 
(415) 445‐3045 ext. 118 
 

 

ADA Compliance  SZC Consulting Group 
 
Sacramento Office 
2377 Gold Meadow Way, # 100 
Gold River, CA 95670 
(916) 669‐8750 
 
Silicon Valley Office 
228 Hamilton Avenue, 3rd Floor 
Palo Alto, CA 94301 
(866) 694‐7637 
 

 

Arborist 
 
ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #480 
ISA Certified Arborist & Municipal Specialist 
#WE‐0151 AM 
ISA TRAQ Risk Assessment Qualified 
 

Gordon Mann ‐ Consulting Arborist 
California Tree and Landscape Consulting, Inc. & 
Mann Made Resources 
10556 Combie Road 
Auburn, CA 95602 
Cell: (650) 740‐3461 
Email: gordon@mannandtrees.com 
website: https://mannandtrees.com/ 

 Contract Preparation and Supervision 
 Diagnosis of Tree and Landscape Problems 
 Insect and Disease Identification and Management 
 Municipal Ordinance Development 
 Training and Education, Tree, Landscape, and Nursery 

Appraisals 
 Tree Plant Inventories 
 Tree Protection for Construction Projects 
 Tree Risk Assessments and Surveys 

 
Page 402 of 417



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

 

Page 6 

CONTRACTED VENDOR SERVICES (additional member cost) 

VENDOR SERVICES  VENDOR CONTACT INFORMATION  SERVICES PROVIDED 

Arborist  Professional Landscape Solutions 
6108 27th Street, Ste. C 
Sacramento, CA 95822 
(916) 424‐3815 
 

 

Drug & Alcohol Testing  Datco Services Corporation 
2280 Grass Valley Highway Suite 232 
Auburn, CA 95603 
530‐268‐8101  
(800) 95‐DATCO (32826) 
 

 

Drug & Alcohol Testing  Feather River Hospital 
5974 Pentz Road 
Paradise, CA 95969 
(530) 876‐7919 
 

 

Janitorial Services  City Wide 
6108 27th Street STE C 
Sacramento, CA 95822 
(916) 424‐3815 
 

 

Janitorial Services  Peerless Building Maintenance 
4665 Mountain Lakes Blvd. 
Redding, CA 96003 
(530) 222‐6369 
 

 

Janitorial Services  Ultimate Building Maintenance Inc 
598 Garden Hwy Suite 5 
Yuba City, CA 95591 
(530) 671‐1564 
 

 

 

 
Page 403 of 417



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

 

Page 7 

RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICE CATEGORY 

Telephone Hot Line 
Questions/Guidance 

  SEDGWICK (formerly York/Bickmore) 
Sedgwick is NCCSIF’s risk control services provider. Dave Beal is your point of contact for risk management questions and 
guidance. 

Hazard & Safety 
Assessment 

  SEDGWICK (formerly York/Bickmore) 
A comprehensive Hazard & Safety Assessment is completed for each city to help identify risk management strengths and 
improvement opportunities. The assessment is used as a tool to help prioritize risk management efforts. It includes best 
practices in the following areas: 

1. Risk Management Program Overview 
2. Aerial Lift Operations 
3. Aerosol Transmissible Diseases (ATD) Control 
4. ADA Compliance 
5. Animal Control Services 
6. Automobile & Fleet Liability 
7. Blood Borne Pathogens ECP 
8. Business Continuity Plan 
9. Confined Space Entry Program 
10. Contractor Selection & Control 
11. Contractual Transfer of Risk 

12. Emergency Response & Management 
13. Employment Practices Liability 
14. Ergonomic Injury Management 
15. Fire Department Operations 
16. Fire Prevention Program 
17. Forklifts & Powered Industrial Trucks  
18. Hazard Communication Program 
19. Hearing Conservation Program 
20. Heat Illness Prevention Program 
21. Information Technology 
22. Injury & Illness Prevention Program 

23. Lockout‐Tagout 
24. Parks & Recreation Operations 
25. Personal Protection Equipment 
26. Police Department Operations 
27. Respiratory Protection Program 
28. Return‐to‐Work & Transitional Duty 
29. Sewers Liability Management 
30. Sidewalks Liability Management 
31. Traffic Engineering 
32. Trenching & Excavation Operations 
33. Urban Forest Management 
34. Work Zone Safety 

 
Page 404 of 417



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

 

Page 8 

Program & Policy 
Development 

  SEDGWICK (formerly York/Bickmore) 
Our  risk  control  service  includes  assistance with  the development  and  implementation of Cal/OSHA  required written 
programs such as Injury & Illness Prevention Program, Hazard Communication Program, Aerosol Transmissible Diseases 
Procedures  for  fire  and  police,  Bloodborne  Pathogens  Exposure  Control  Plan,  etc. Our website  also  includes  sample 
programs and guides. 

PRISM (Additional Cost) 
PRISM loss prevention specialists are available to provide assistance with program development at an additional cost to 
NCCSIF members. Contact PRISM directly for assistance. 

LEXIPOL 
NCCSIF members have access to the law enforcement and fire risk management policies offered through Lexipol. 

On‐Site Training    SEDGWICK (formerly York/Bickmore) 
On‐site training is available to members on a variety of workers’ compensation, liability, and EPL exposures. Training topics 
include,  but  are  not  limited  to,  Cal/OSHA  program  requirements,  hazard  inspections,  accident  investigation,  forklift 
certification, driver training, sexual harassment, CPR certification, various workplace safety topics, and more. Contact Dave 
to discuss and schedule on‐site training. 
 
PRISM 
PRISM is available to conduct a variety of workers’ compensation related safety training at an additional cost to members. 
Contact Travis Clemmer to discuss available topics and scheduling. 
 
CJPRMA 
Every year CJPRMA conducts up to five regional training workshops throughout California. In the past, topics have included 
contractual risk transfer, police liability, parks and recreation liability, and sidewalk liability controls. CJPRMA will send the 
training announcement to Alliant, who will then forward to all NCCSIF members. 
 

Ergonomic 
Evaluations 

  SEDGWICK (formerly York/Bickmore) 
Sedgwick is available to conduct office and industrial ergonomic evaluations for all members. Contact Dave Beal to discuss 
and schedule ergonomic evaluations. 
 

 
Page 405 of 417



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

 

Page 9 

Risk Management 
Webinars 

  SEDGWICK (formerly York/Bickmore) 
Throughout the year, Sedgwick risk control staff conducts webinars on a wide range of safety topics such as heat illness 
prevention, scaffold safety, disaster management, and new safety regulations. Our goal is to communicate relevant safety 
information in an all‐inclusive and cost‐effective way. NCCSIF members will receive webinar announcements via email. The 
one‐hour webinars are recorded and available to view at any time on the Sedgwick Risk Control website. 

 
PRISM 
PRISM conducts several workers’ compensation related webinars throughout the year, which are available to all NCCSIF 
members. Contact Travis Clemmer to ensure your city is included in the announcement distribution. 
 
APIP 
NCCSIF members have access to all APIP property related webinars. Contact Marcus Beverly to ensure your city is included 
in the announcement distribution. 
 

Employer Pull 
Notice Program 

  PRISM & TARGET SOLUTIONS (Additional cost to members) 
PRISM and Target Solutions have partnered with A‐Check America to automate your Employer Pull Notice (EPN) program. 
Using this program, you can electronically monitor your employees’ driving records and receive notification within hours 
of a reportable incident. 
 
You can access your driver roster and key data from a dashboard within Target Solutions. This data is accessible only to 
you and A‐Check America and  features a summary of  the number of drivers added and removed  from  the system, an 
overview of the violations and accidents that have occurred, and a breakdown of your employees’ license renewal status. 
For additional information go to www.prismrisk.gov, Services/Loss Prevention/Target Solutions Platform. 

 
Page 406 of 417



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

 

Page 10 

Pre‐Employment 
Medical Services 

  OCCU‐MED 
Services offered at an additional cost: 
 Review of Pre‐Placement Medical Exams 
 Job Analysis 
 Maintaining a network of qualified and trained medical providers and medical specialists for necessary exams 
 Conducting job analyses and preparing job profiles and medical examination profiles 
 Providing orientation of client staff in the legal/medical/risk management and human resources aspects of our service 
 Scheduling and harvesting of pre‐placement medical exams 
 Organizing and managing return‐to‐work and fitness‐for‐duty exams 
 Evaluating medical information in relation to the essential duties of jobs in a legally defensible manner (EXAMQA®) 
 Communicating directly with applicants to obtain the confidential medical information that is needed for clearance for 
a particular job (RDQA) 

 Developing “Occu‐Panels” with a national laboratory that allows for the selection of only those tests for the blood 
chemistry panel that are compliant with state law for each job class 

 Performing bill review for the medical exams performed by clinics 
 Providing customized services such as OSHA Respirator Questionnaire Evaluations, Bloodborne Pathogen Programs, 
and clinic trainings 

Employee 
Assistance Program 

  ACI 
Services offered at an additional cost: 
 Employee Assistance Program (Additional cost to members) 
Employees and their family members can receive up to three counseling visits per year. The family members do not need 
to be within the same residence. The visits are considered short‐term resolution. If the person needs additional counseling, 
ACI will help them transition into their private insurance plan. 
 
 Legal and Financial Services (Additional cost to members) 
Employees and their family members have unlimited access to telephonic legal and financial services. 

 
Page 407 of 417



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

 

Page 11 

Transit 
Resources 

  CalTIP ‐ California Transit Insurance Pool 
Self‐insurance program for public transit operators. Member cities include Auburn and Dixon. 
 
Programs and Safety Materials 

 System Safety Program Plan (SSPP) Development 
 SSPP Implementation Assessment & Follow‐up Process 
 SAMPA Fleet Watch Paperless DMV EPN Program 
 Bus Operator Selection Survey (BOSS) 
 CalTIP Risk Profile 
 APTA Membership 
 Bus Stop Location & Design Evaluation Program 

 Digital Video Event Recorder System 
 Mobility Device Marking & Tethering Program 
 APTA Safety Standards 
 Best Practices 
 Bus Stop Toolkit 
 Pedestrian Safety Guide for Transit Agencies 
 Safety Posters and Flyers 

 

 
Page 408 of 417



NCCSIF Workers' Compensation Team   

Gagain, Bernie  Baumle, Erik  Brainard ‐ DeLong, Devora  
Operations Team Lead  Director, Client Services  Vice President, Client Services  

Bernard.Gagain@Sedgwick.com  Erik.Baumle@Sedgwick.com  Devora.Brainard@Sedgwick.com 

Phone:  279.900.3084  Phone: 360.742.2799   Phone: 951.231.6825 

Marx, Jessica (Dedicated)  Lopez, Rosa (Dedicated)  Silva, Sandra (Dedicated)  

Jessica.Marx@Sedgwick.com  Rosa.Lopez@Sedgwick.com  Sandra.Silva@Sedgwick.com 

Phone:  916.960.0902   Phone: 916.788.9985   Phone: 279.900.3087 

Members Served   Members Served   Members Served  

City of Rocklin   City of Folsom  City of Elk Grove (Lopez, Coverage) 
City of Yuba City   City of Dixon  City of Red Bluff (Marx ‐ Coverage)  

City of Anderson   City of Auburn  City of Galt (Marx ‐ Coverage)  

City of Colusa   City of Corning  City of Marysville (Marx ‐ Coverage)  

City of Jackson  City of Gridley 

City of Lincoln  City of Ione 

City of Nevada City   Town of Paradise 

City of Rio Vista   City of Placerville  

City of Oroville  City of Willows  

City of Red Bluff   City of Elk Grove 

City of Galt  

City of Marysville 

Summers, Rebecca   Rivas, Diane   Santiago‐Dean, Margarita  

Rebecca.Summers@Sedgwick.com  Diane.Rivas@Sedgwick.com  Margarita.SantiagoDean@Sedgwick.com 

Phone:  916.960.1029   Phone: 916.788.985   All COVID Claims 

Future Medical Examiner  Medical‐Only Claims  

To File a New Claim  

E‐mail:  7374NCCSIF@Sedgwick.com  

Or use your Global Intake Link to file online  

Sedgwick 

P. O. Box 14433 

Lexington, KY 40512 
(800) 922‐5020
Fax (844) 346‐1322

Page 409 of 417



 
 

 

 

 

                       

                                         Who’s Who in Claims 
                                                   Liability Contacts 
 
 

            Shawn Millar 
(530) 210-4910 
shawn.millar@sedgwick.com 

                  Anderson, Colusa, Corning, Gridley, 
              Marysville, Oroville, Paradise, Red Bluff 
              Willows, Yuba City 

 
 

Dwayne E. Witherspoon | Claims 
Examiner 
DIRECT (916) 746-6319   
CELL 916.704.7145 | EMAIL 
dwayne.witherspoon@sedgwick.com 

 

Brian Davis 
            (916) 746-8832 
             brian.davis@sedgwick.com 

Handles All Cities As Needed 
 

            Summer Simpson 
            Claims Team Lead 
            (916) 746-6332 
             summer.simpson@sedgwick.com 

 

To File a New Claim:    
7374NCCSIF@sedgwick.com 

cc: Kathryn.greene2@sedgwick.com 
Office Hours Emergency (916) 960-0980 

After Hours Emergency Call-Out (916) 971-2701 
 
 

Resources 
 

Jill Petrarca 
            Claims Assistant Manager 
            (916) 746-8849 

jill.petrarca@sedgwick.com 
 

 
 

Dori Zumwalt 
Client Service Director 
(916) 749-5877 
dorienne.zumwalt@sedgwick.com 
 

Sedgwick 
P. O. Box 14012 

Lexington, KY 40512 
(916) 783-0100 ꞏ Fax (866) 548-2637 

http://www.sedgwick.com  
 

 
Page 410 of 417



 MEET YOUR  

ACCOUNTING TEAM 

James Marta & Company’s experienced and knowledgeable AccounƟng Team can help you accomplish criƟcal 

accounƟng procedures and controls without adding permanent staff. Whether you need help with a special 

project, an acƟng CFO/Controller, or a team to handle processes, we understand the nuances and obligaƟons 

of professional accounƟng. Our team provides services to help you record and manage obligaƟons and debt, 

reduce risk, support accountability, monitor progress and provide informaƟon to inform decision making.  

The following lisƟng provides an introducƟon to the team: 

JAMES MARTA, CPA, CGMA, ARPM 

 Title Managing Partner 

Role CFO, oversight, strategy, policy, underwriƟng, budget, claims analysis, payroll, risk 

financing, special projects, bank authorizaƟon, cash management, training, and  

investment planning and oversight. 

Bio James applies more than 30 years of experience in accounƟng, audit, tax,  

consulƟng and strategic planning. James provides CFO services for several Joint  

Powers AuthoriƟes and is a resource to his clients. James is a recognized expert in 

GASB, JPA accreditaƟon, execuƟve leadership, refinancing, accounƟng system design, 

risk management and board responsibiliƟes. He authored the IEA Pool Manager 

Course and teaches the IEA ARM Risk Management and Risk Financing course. 

EducaƟon B.S. AccounƟng and Finance Law, Portland State University.  

Associate in Risk Management (ARM). Associate in Risk Pool Management (ARPM). 

Contact JMarta@JPMCPA.com  Tel: 916.993.9494 ext. 111 

 Title AccounƟng Manager 

Role CFO, Assistant Treasurer, oversight, strategy planning, policy, underwriƟng, budget, 

claims analysis, payroll, risk financing, special projects, bank authorizaƟon, cash man-

agement, and training.  

Bio Ritesh has 20 years of experience in accounting, audit, consulting and strategic planning. 

Ritesh provides CFO services for several Joint Powers Authorities and is a resource to his 

clients. Ritesh has provided executive leadership, accounting system design, risk manage-

ment and board responsibilities. He  is a participating member of the finance and tech-

nology committee of CAJPA (California Association of Joint Powers Authorities) as well as 

a regular presenter at the conferences.   

EducaƟon B.S. AccounƟng, University of Phoenix  

Contact   Rsharma@JPMCPA.com  Tel: 916.993.9494 ext. 119, Cell: 916.267.3371  

RITESH SHARMA 

  
Joint Powers AuthoriƟes trust our expert financial services to support 

essenƟal management, accountability and compliance requirements. 

Tel: 916.993.9494     ǀ    www.JPMCPA.com 

 
Page 411 of 417



GEMMA MARTA  

 Title Senior Accountant 

Role Accounts payable, deposits, billing noƟces, set up ACH and wires for approval,  

monitor posiƟve pay, cash management. 

Bio Gemma brings more than 30 years of experience in complex government and fund  

accounƟng. She has been responsible for federal grants up to $48 million and  

associated compliance reporƟng. Marta’s skills include fund accounƟng, balance 

monitoring, cerƟfying fund availability, funding sources, funding splits, analyzing 

transacƟons, approving expenditures, reporƟng financial trends, comparing actuals 

to budget, and projecƟng expenditures by category, fund raƟos and fund type. 

 Title Senior Accountant 

Role Accounts payable, general ledger, set up ACH and wires for approval, monitor  

posiƟve pay, quarterly and year-end adjusƟng entries and reporƟng, and financial 

statement preparaƟon 

Bio Orysya applies three years of full-cycle accounting experience to help Joint Powers  

Authorities conduct accounting  procedures and controls. Her experience includes  

accounts payables and receivables, transactions, bank reconciliation, invoicing and audit. 

EducaƟon B.S. Business AdministraƟon, Accountancy, California State University Sacramento.  

 

JHON MUNOZ  

 Title Staff Accountant 

Role Account reconciliaƟon, billing calculaƟons. 

Bio Jhon is a CPA candidate with 2 years of experience in AccounƟng, Audit and Tax. Prior 

to joining James Marta & Company, Jhon worked as an auditor and accountant at a 

CPA firm in the Philippines. He is a licensed CPA in the Philippines. 

EducaƟon Bachelor of Science in Accountancy, Sacred Heart College, Philippines 

ORYSYA BEZVERHNIY  (SAVCHUK), CPA  

CONTINUED: JAMES MARTA & COMPANY ACCOUNTING TEAM 

JAYSON LEACH  

 Title Staff Accountant 

Role Billing noƟces, account reconciliaƟons, quarterly and year-end adjusƟng entries 

Bio Jayson prepares and reconciles data for financial statements and prepares closing 

and adjusƟng entries  for Joint Powers AuthoriƟes. 

EducaƟon B.S. Business AdministraƟon, Accountancy, California State University  

 
Page 412 of 417



CONTINUED: JAMES MARTA & COMPANY ACCOUNTING TEAM 

KNOWLEDGE SERVICE TRUST SOLUTIONS 

We know what quesƟons to 

ask and when answers are 

“out of range.” 

We apply experience with 

insurance/risk pools, special 

districts, nonprofits, and 

business. 

We’ve overcome challenges; 

learned what to avoid; and 

how to do it right the first 

Ɵme. 

Our Partners are your  

resource for insight on 

your important projects. 

We’ll answer your quesƟons 

and discuss alternaƟves. 

We tailor services to your 

specific needs: 

 CPA Oversight. 

 Internal controls and  

procedures. 

 Full cycle accounƟng.  

 ConfidenƟal and independ-

ent perspecƟve. 

 Cloud-based systems support 

secure and easy access to 

your informaƟon. 

We’re accountable to you. 

 Licensed professionals. 

 Fiduciary responsibiliƟes. 

 CFO leadership backed by a 

proven team of finance and 

accounƟng professionals. 

 Controller oversight and 

analysis. 

 Full-cycle accounƟng  

management. 

 Policy and procedure review 

and firming. 

 System and controls design 

and implementaƟon. 

 
Page 413 of 417



SAVE THE DATE - REGIONAL TRAINING  
Supporting Employees’ Mental Health  

ACI Specialty Benefits Training  
Presented by Tia Brisco   

 

Topic Includes: 

This training assists leadership and management to 
build an awareness and understanding of mental health. 
It offers insight on factors that may influence 
behaviors, signs an employee may need support and 
how to engage in conversation surrounding mental 
health. The session also describes how the EAP can 
serve as a resource to provide employees the 
appropriate assistance to improve productivity and 
create a better work environment. 
 
Date and Time: 
Tuesday, April 26, 2022 10:00a.m. – 11:00 a.m.  
 
Location: Zoom Webinar  
 
Register:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZUkc-
CqrjsrHNyvg8PFnJzgFwK-6Phe1uq-  
 

Please reach out to Jenna Wirkner if 
you have any questions.  

Jenna.Wirkner@alliant.com 

(916)643-2741 

 

 

   OPEN TO ALL JPA MEMBERS 

       SPONSORED BY NCCSIF  
 

   

Trainer – Tia Brisco, LMFT 

 Tia Brisco is a licensed marriage and 
family therapist in both California 
and Texas. Tia specializes in multi-
cultural based treatment and 
supporting large companies with all 
of their mental health needs. She is a 
double graduate of California State 
University, Northridge where she 
obtained a bachelor’s degree in Child 
Development and a Master’s degree 
in Marriage and Family Therapy. She 
is currently obtaining her PsyD in 
Clinical Psychology with a 
specialization in Cultural Diversity 
and Organizational Psychology. She 
currently operates a private practice 
in her hometown of Lancaster, CA. 
Before becoming a therapist, Tia 
taught special education preschool for 
six years, where her love for diversity 
and public speaking fostered. Tia 
provides wellness training, diversity 
education, and crisis services for 
various organizations throughout the 
United States. 

 

 

 
 

   
Page 414 of 417



SAVE THE DATE - 5/5/22 - REGIONAL TRAINING  
Police Risk Management Use of Force Update  

Training with Ed Obayashi  

“Hot Button” Issues: Current  Use of Force 
Controversies in Law Enforcement 
 

                                   TOPICS 

1) Deadly Force: “The AB 392 Myth: Did It Change 
Anything?”  

2) “The Politicization of Officer Involved Shootings 
and other UOF Prosecutions”  

3) De-Escalation: “The Myth of De-Escalation and Its 
Dangers” and other “Dangerous Trends” 

4) “Mystery” Use of Force issue   

5) Other Use of Force Issues and a current Quick Legal 
Update  

 
Date and Time: 
Thursday, May 5, 2022 @ 11:30a.m.–1:30p.m.  
 
Location:  
Rocklin Event Center - Garden Room 
2650 Sunset Boulevard 
Rocklin, CA 95677 
 
Who should attend: 
Risk Managers, Police Chiefs and Command Staff. 
 
 
RSVP: 
Jenna.Wirkner@alliant.com  
916-643-2741  

   

                   

Presenter 
Ed Obayashi is the Sheriff Deputy/Legal 
Advisor for the Plumas County Sheriff’s Office 
and is also the legal advisor to multiple other 
California local and state law enforcement 
agencies. Ed is a former special prosecutor and 
deputy public defender. He was selected as the 
keynote speaker by the U.S. State Department 
for the international Internal Affairs 
Investigations and Use of Force conferences in 
Mexico City. He lectures internationally for law 
enforcement groups, legal organizations, and 
law schools. He was retained as the operational, 
legal, and training consultant by the California 
DOJ for AB 1506 Officer Involved Shooting 
investigations. Ed is a subject matter expert for 
both POST and the state BAR in Use of Force 
and other law enforcement disciplines and is the 
Legal and Use of Force advisor for the 
California Association of Police Training 
Managers (CAPTO). He is an expert witness in 
criminal, civil, and personnel administrative 
cases and was the expert witness in the 
successful defense of the largest law 
enforcement civil liability case in U.S. history. 
Ed conducts high profile investigations of Use 
of Force, including OIS, and is a widely quoted 
and influential media consultant for Use of 
Force and Police Practices. 

https://lawcop.net/about/ 
 
 

 

 

 

  

 

OPEN TO ALL MEMBERS 

SPONSORED BY NCCSIF 

 
 

Page 415 of 417



SAVE THE DATE - REGIONAL TRAINING  
Developing Team Relationships  
ACI Specialty Benefits Training  

Presented by Patrina Smalls  

Topic Includes: 

Personality assessments help people understand 
themselves and others with the goal of working 
together more effectively. “Developing Team 
Relationships” is a fast-paced, lively approach to 
reducing stress personally and professionally. Discuss 
practical and easy techniques for dealing with various 
personality styles for better working relationships. 
 
Date and Time: 
Tuesday, May 24th, 2022 10:00a.m. – 11:00 a.m.  
 
Location: Zoom Webinar  
 
 
Register:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZwsc-
CvpjorHNA89AJhWNt895OR2x7JrEUf 

 

Please reach out to Jenna Wirkner if 
you have any questions.  

Jenna.Wirkner@alliant.com 

(916)643-2741 

 

 

 

   OPEN TO ALL JPA MEMBERS 

       SPONSORED BY NCCSIF  
 

   

Trainer – Patrina Smalls, 
ACC, MBA   

  
 Patrina is an ICF certified coach who 
holds a Master of Science Degree and 
MBA. With over 20+ years of 
experience training within various 
corporate industries including as an 
executive and leadership coach, sales 
coach, professional development, 
adapting to change management, 
psychological safety, self-care, 
forgiveness, and obtaining goals. 
Patrina Smalls is the founder of 
Prophetic Sculpting Coaching LLC 
whereas an author and empowerment 
speaker she is passionate about 
helping people pursue their purpose.  

 
 Learn more about this facilitator: 
https://www.linkedin.com/in/patrinasmalls/ 

 

 

 

 
 

   
Page 416 of 417



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Travel Reimbursement Expense Form 

Member Representative:   

Entity:   

Payee Address:   

Meeting or Committee:   

Date of Meeting:   

Location of Meeting:   

Total Mileage:   

Payment Made to:   

Signature________________________ Date_______________ 

 
Page 417 of 417


	NCCSIF BOD 2022 04 21 Agenda Page Draft 9
	D. Consent Calendar
	D.1.2021 12 16 NCCSIF BOD Meeting Minutes
	D.2.Check Register October - February
	06- December 2021
	07- January 2022
	08- February 2022

	D.3.a.Chanlder Investment Reports December - March
	D.3.b.AIF Quarterly Interest 12.31.2021
	D.3.c.Treasurers Report
	D.4.NCCSIF Workers Compensation Update April 2022
	D.6.. NCCSIF Sedgwick Audit Response March 2022
	D.5.Alliant Opt Out Letter 11-15-21 (Executed)
	D.7.lintelio_MSA
	D.8.PE Pool - Data Use Agreement for Clients
	D.8.PE_Pool_Database-Flyer as of 022822
	E. General Risk Management Issues
	E.1. ERMA Legal Alert FEHA Claims
	F.4. Summary of March 24, 2022 Meeting
	G. FY 22-23 NorCal Cities EC Rotation and Officers
	G.2.2019-2025 EC Rotation Schedule by Size Chart revised 1-16-20 FY
	G.1. Sections 4&5 of Bylaws
	H.1. Quarterly Financial Report
	H.1.NCCSIF Financial Report 12.31.21 mb
	H.2. Budget to Actual as of December 31, 2021
	I.1. FY 22-23 NCCSIF Admin Budget
	I.1.NCCSIF Budget 2022-23 Draft 14 Updated Net Funding
	I.2.a. Actuarial Study for WC Program
	I.2.a.1. NCCSIF WC Rpt 2021-22 Draft 2022-03-08 Summary
	I.2.b.1. NCCSIF GL Rpt 2021-22 Draft 2022-03-14
	I.2.b. Actuarial Study for Liability Program
	I.3.a. Workers Compensation Program Annual Banking Plan Adjustments
	I.3.a.1. NCCSIF WC Banking Layer Adjustments 12-31-21
	I.3.b. Workers Compensation Program Annual Shared Risk Plan Adjustments
	I.3.b.1. WC Shared Layer Adjustments 2022 Draft
	I.3.c. Workers Compensation Program FY 22-23 Deposit Premium Calculations
	I.3.c.1. WC Funding Comparison NCCSIF Budget 2022-23 Draft 15
	I.3.c.2. PRISM 22-23 v3 Premium Estimate
	I.4.a. Liability Program Annual Banking Plan Adjustments
	I.4.a.1. NCCSIF GL Banking Layer Adjustments 12-31-21
	I.4.b. Liability Program Annual Shared Risk Plan Adjustments
	I.4.b.1. Liability Shared Layer Adjustments 2022 Draft
	I.4.c. Liability Program FY 22-23 Deposit Premium Calculations
	I.5. Trustee E&O Insurance
	I.5.1. Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 22-23 APPL NON-BINDABLE Indication
	Named Insured / Additional Named Insureds
	Line of Coverage
	Primary Claims Made Trustees Errors and Omissions Coverage

	Disclosures
	NY Regulation 194
	FATCA:
	Claims Reporting:
	Claims Made Policy:
	Changes and Developments
	Certificates / Evidence of Insurance

	Optional Coverages
	Glossary of Insurance Terms

	I.5.2. APPL Brochure
	COMPREHENSIVE COVERAGE
	ELIGIBLE ENTITIES
	PROGRAM FEATURES
	ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES: THE PARTNER YOU DESERVE.

	I.5.3. Gov Codes Re Indemnity
	I.6. FY 22-23 Renewal updates
	I.7. Appointment of CJPRMA Board Alternate and Nominations of nccsif board officers
	I.8. Preliminary 22-23 Meeting Calendar
	I.8. 22-23 Meeting Calendar Proposed
	I.9. Policy and Procedure Revisions
	I.9.a.L-4 Liability Plan Funding Formula within the Banking Layer Rev 2015 01 08 Suggested Revisions 2021 Red-Line
	I.9.a.L-4 Liability Plan Funding Formula within the Banking Layer Rev 2015 01 08 Suggested Revisions 2021
	I.9.b.A-02 Service Provider Performance Evaluation Rev 2015 10 15 Draft with surveys
	A-02 Service Provider Performance Evaluation Rev 2015 10 15 Draft 9.7
	Service Provider Email
	NCCSIF Brokerage Risk Management  Program Administration Survey Questions
	NCCSIF Safety and Risk Control Services Survey Questions
	NCCSIF Workers Compensation Claims Administrator Questions
	NCCSIF LIABILITY Claims Administrator Survey Questions

	I.9.c.A-10 Annual Calendar Rev 2021 09 16
	I.10. Sedgwick WC Claims Administration Renewal Proposal
	J. Information Items
	J.1.Glossary of Terms
	J.2.2021-2022 Organizational Chart as of 3-17-22
	J.3.21-22 Meeting Calendar Proposed - updated 11-22-21
	J.4.Resource Contact Guide as of 12-21-21
	J.5.NCCSIF WC Who's Who at Sedgwick 4.08
	J.7.ACI Specialty Benefits - Supporting Employees' Mental Health - April 26, 2022
	J.8.PRMC Training Annoucement - Ed Obayashi May 5, 2022
	J.9.ACI Specialty Benefits - Developing Team  Relationships - May 24, 2022
	J.10. Travel Mileage Reimbursement Form



